
OCTOBER 11, 2021 – Regular Meeting Agenda – 7:00 p.m. 

Printed on Recycled Paper See Reverse

47+---

October 11, 2021 – City Council Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

City Council Chamber
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, California
209) 941- 7200

www. ci. lathrop. ca. us

City Council

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

Jennifer Torres- O’Callaghan, Vice Mayor

Paul Akinjo

Minnie Diallo

Diane Lazard

City Staff

Stephen Salvatore, City Manager

Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Teresa Vargas, Government Services
Director / City Clerk

Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer

Michael King, Public Works Director

Cari James, Finance Director

Mark Meissner, Community Development
Director

Zachary Jones, Parks, Recreation and
Maintenance Services Director

Raymond Bechler, Chief of Police
Commission Start Date 7/1/2022) 

Lieutenant Michael Alagna, Acting Chief
of Police

General Order of Business
1. Preliminary

Call to Order
Closed Session
Roll Call
Invocation
Pledge of Allegiance
Announcements by Mayor/ City Mgr. 
Informational Items
Declaration of Conflict of Interest

2. Presentations
3. Citizen’s Forum
4. Consent Calendar
5. Scheduled Items

Public Hearings
Appeals
Referrals and Reports from
Commissions and Committees
All Other Staff Reports and/ or Action
Items
Study Sessions

6. Council Communications
7. Adjournment

Order of Discussion
Generally, the order of discussion after introduction
of an item by the Mayor will include comments and
information by staff followed by City Council
questions and inquiries. The applicant, or their
authorized representative, or interested residents, 
may then speak on the item; each speaker may only
speak once to each item. At the close of public
discussion, the item will be considered by the City
Council and action taken. 

Consent Calendar
Items on the Consent Calendar are considered
routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one
motion and one vote. There will be no separate
discussion of these items unless a Councilmember or
interested resident so requests, in which case the
item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and
considered separately.  

1



October 11, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THIS MEETING & COVID- 19

Executive Order N-29-20, issued by the Governor on March 17, 2020, set provisions which relaxed
the teleconferencing requirements of the Brown Act to facilitate virtual meetings during the
COVID- 19 declared emergency, said provisions expired after September 30, 2021. 

This public meeting will be conducted in person; all members of the City Council will attend in
person. Members of the public are welcomed. COVID- 19 and social distancing guidelines will be
enforced. As a courtesy, this meeting will be available for public participation by teleconference
via ZoomGov at the following link: 

https:// www.zoomgov.com/ j/ 1602470775?pwd=bVRNaFJ1eDVlOElren
VpaWY1UTBlQT09

During the meeting, those joining by ZoomGov, will be allowed to speak prior to the close
of public comment on an item. If you are using this method, please “ raise the hand” 
feature to inform the City Clerk ( meeting host) you wish to speak on the matter. Please
ensure your computer speaker and microphone are fully functional.  

For audio / calling in only, dial: + 1 (669) 254 5252
o To request to speak ( same as the “ raise hand” feature) press * 9 / When the City

Clerk calls your name, press * 6 to unmute. 

Meeting Webinar ID: 160 247 0775/ Passcode: 850130

If you are not able to attend the meeting in person or virtually - Public comment/ questions
will be accepted by email to City Clerk Teresa Vargas at website_cco@ci. lathrop.ca.us or
by calling ( 209) 941-7230

Questions or comments must be submitted by 4:00 p.m., on the day of the meeting. 

To address City Council in person, please submit a purple card to the City Clerk indicating
name, address, and number of the item upon which a person wishes to speak.  

Council Meetings are live-streamed ( with Closed Captioning) on Comcast Cable Channel 97, and
on the City Council Webpage: https:// www.ci.lathrop. ca.us/ citycouncil/ page/ live-stream

Addressing the Council

Any person may speak once on any item under discussion by the City Council after receiving
recognition by the Mayor. Purple speaker cards will be available prior to and during the meeting. 
To address City Council, a card must be submitted to the City Clerk indicating name, address and
number of the item upon which a person wishes to speak. When addressing the City Council, 
please walk to the lectern located in front of the City Council. State your name and address. In
order to ensure all persons have the opportunity to speak, a time limit will be set by the Mayor
for each speaker ( see instructions on speaker form). In the interest of time, each speaker may
only speak once on each individual agenda item; please limit your comments to new material; 
do not repeat what a prior speaker has said. If you challenge the nature of a proposed action in
court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public
hearing described in this notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the City Council at, or
prior to, the public hearing. 

2



October 11, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2

Citizen’ s Forum

Any person desiring to speak on a matter, which is not scheduled on this agenda, may do so
under the Citizen’s Forum section. Please submit your purple speaker card to the City Clerk prior
to the commencement of Citizen’s Forum, or submit your request to speak via the “ raise hand” 
feature in ZoomGov. Only those who have submitted speaker cards, or have expressed an interest
to speak, prior to the conclusion of Citizen’s Forum will be called upon to speak. Please be aware
the California Government Code prohibits the City Council from taking any immediate action on
an item, which does not appear on the agenda, unless the item meets stringent statutory
requirements. The Mayor will limit the length of your presentation ( see instructions on speaker
form) and each speaker may only speak once on this agenda item. Please note, the Council
Chamber has limited occupancy due to social distancing.  

To leave a voice message for all Councilmembers simultaneously, dial (209) 941-7230. To send
an e-mail for Councilmembers simultaneously email: citycouncil@ci. lathrop.ca.us. This City
Council Agenda and meeting materials can be accessed by computer or any smart device at: 
https:// www.ci.lathrop.ca.us/ meetings

General Information

For reports citing supplemental documents relating to specific agenda items, these are available
for review in the City Clerk’s Office. This agenda was posted at the following locations:  City Hall, 
Community Center, Generations Center, Senior Center, and the Lathrop- Manteca Fire District “ J" 
Street and Somerston Parkway Offices. The meetings of the Lathrop City Council are broadcast
on Lathrop Comcast Cable Television Channel 97 and live streamed on the City’s website. 

Assistance will be provided to those requiring accommodations for disabilities in compliance with
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable
the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility and/ or accommodations to this
meeting. [ 28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II] Interested persons must request the
accommodation at least 2 working days in advance of the meeting by contacting the City Clerk
at (209) 941-7230. Information about the City or items scheduled on the Agenda may be referred
to: 

Teresa Vargas
Government Services Director / City Clerk

390 Towne Centre Drive
Lathrop, CA 95330

Telephone: ( 209) 941-7230

3



October 11, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 3

CITY OF LATHROP
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MONDAY, OCTOBER 11, 2021
7:00 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE: There will be a Closed Session commencing at 6:00 p.m.  The Regular
Meeting will reconvene at 7:00 p.m., or immediately following the Closed Session, 
whichever is later. 

1. PRELIMINARY

1.1 CALL TO ORDER

1.2 CLOSED SESSION

1.2.1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: Anticipated Litigation - 
Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54956.9(b) 

2 Potential Case( s) 

1.2.2 CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS: Pursuant to
Government Code Section 54956.8
Property: 16490 McKinley Avenue ( APN: 198-100-09) 
Agency Negotiator: Stephen J. Salvatore, City Manager
Negotiating Parties: 1694 McLouise, LLC
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Negotiations
City Project: CIP PS 15-02

1.2.3 CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS: Pursuant to
Government Code Section 54956.8
Property: 1909 E. Louise Avenue ( APN: 198-100-10) 
Agency Negotiator: Stephen J. Salvatore, City Manager
Negotiating Parties: 342 Sycanda, LLC
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Negotiations
City Project: CIP PS 15-02

1.2.4 CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS: Pursuant to
Government Code Section 54956.8
Properties: 18800 Christopher Way ( APN 198-130-35), 18800
Christopher Way ( APN 198-130-36) and No address, Christopher
Way ( APN 198-130-59) 
Agency Negotiator: Stephen J. Salvatore, City Manager
Negotiating Parties: PG&E
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Negotiations

4



October 11, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 4

RECONVENE

1.2.5 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

1.3 ROLL CALL

1.4 INVOCATION

1.5 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

1.6 ANNOUNCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

1.7 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) – None

1.8 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST

2. PRESENTATIONS

2.1 PROCLAMATION DECLARING INDIGENOUS PEOPLES’ DAY OCTOBER 11, 
2021

2.2 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT UPDATE

2.3 LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT PROJECT UPDATE, GG 21-11

2.4 MAYOR’S COMMITTEE REPORT( S) 
Parks & Recreation Update on Committee Events and Programs

3. CITIZEN’ S FORUM

Any person desiring to speak on a matter, which is not scheduled on this agenda, may do
so under Citizen’s Forum. Please submit a purple speaker card to the City Clerk prior to
the commencement of Citizen’s Forum. Only those who have submitted speaker cards, or
have expressed an interest to speak, prior to the conclusion of Citizen’s Forum will be
called upon to speak. Please be aware the California Government Code prohibits the City
Council from taking any immediate action on an item, which does not appear on the
agenda, unless the item meets stringent statutory requirements. The City Council can, 
however, allow its members or staff to briefly ( no more than five (5) minutes) respond to
statements made, to ask questions for clarification, make a brief announcement or report
on his or her own activities. ( See California Government Code Section 54954.2(a)). Unless
directed otherwise by a majority of the City Council, all questions asked and not answered
at the meeting will be responded to in writing within 10 business days. ALL PUBLIC
COMMENTS MUST BE MADE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE LATHROP CITY COUNCIL
HANDBOOK OF RULES AND PROCEDURES! 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR

Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine by the City Council and will be
enacted by one motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items
unless the Mayor, Councilmember, or citizen so requests, in which event the item will be
removed from the Consent Calendar and considered separately. 

5



October 11, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 5

4.1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS
Waive the Reading in Full of Ordinances and Resolutions on Agenda and
Adopt by Reading of Title Only, Unless Otherwise Requested by the Mayor
or a Councilmember

4.2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Approve Minutes for the Special Council Meeting of August 2, 2021, and
Regular Council Meeting of August 9, 2021

4.3 SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 21-427 BY TITLE ONLY
AMENDING LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 8 “ HEALTH & SAFETY”, 
CHAPTER 8.16 “ GARBAGE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL” TO INCLUDE
MANDATORY ORGANIC WASTE DISPOSAL REDUCTION” TO ENSURE

STATE REGULATION COMPLIANCE FOR RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL
GENERATORS
Waive Full Reading And Adopt Ordinance 21-427 By Title Only Amending
Lathrop Municipal Code Title 8 “ Health & Safety”, Chapter 8.16 “ Garbage
Collection And Disposal” To Include “ Mandatory Organic Waste Disposal
Reduction” To Ensure State Regulation Compliance For Residential And
Commercial Generators

4.4 TREASURER’ S REPORT FOR JUNE 2021
Approve Quarterly Treasurer’s Report for June 2021

4.5 ANNUAL REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF THE CITY’S INVESTMENT POLICY
Adopt a Resolution Approving the Annual Investment Policy for Fiscal Year
2021/ 22

4.6 APPROVE OUT OF STATE TRAVEL FOR THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
ADMINISTRATOR TO PARTICIPATE IN A TARGET INDUSTRY SPECIFIC
CONFERENCE IN DECEMBER 2021
Adopt a Resolution Authorizing Out of State Travel for the Economic
Development Administrator to Attend and Represent the City of Lathrop at
the International Council of Shopping Centers ( ICSC) 2021 Conference in
Las Vegas, Nevada from December 5, 2021 to December 7, 2021

4.7 CHRISTMAS PARADE TEMPORARY STREET CLOSURE
Adopt Resolution Approving Temporary Street Closures for the Lathrop
Christmas Parade on December 11, 2021

4.8 AUTHORIZE PURCHASE OF HEAVY EQUIPMENT FOR THE PARKS, 
RECREATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES DEPARTMENT
Adopt a Resolution Approving the Purchase of Seventeen ( 17) Units of
Heavy Equipment for the Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services
Department

4.9 AUTHORIZE BUDGET AMENDMENT FOR THE PURCHASE OF ADDITIONAL
CITY VEHICLES FOR PUBLIC WORKS, UTILITIES, STREET AND
MAINTENANCE SERVICES

6



October 11, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 6

Adopt a Resolution Approving the Purchase of Three ( 3) City Vehicles from
American Chevrolet for Maintenance Services and Utility Maintenance

4.10 AUTHORIZE BUDGET AMENDMENT TO FUND A MAINTENANCE WORKER I/II
POSITION FOR THE PARKS, RECREATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES
DEPARTMENT
Adopt a Resolution to Approve Funding for a Maintenance Worker I/II
Position

4.11 AWARD CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO G&G BUILDERS, INC. FOR THE
MANUEL VALVERDE PARK SHELTER IMPROVEMENTS, CIP PK 22-08 AND
RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT
Adopt Resolution Awarding a Construction Contract to G&G Builders, Inc. 
for the Manuel Valverde Park Shelter Improvements, Capital Improvement
Project ( CIP) PK 22-08 and Approve Related Budget Amendment

4.12 APPROVE TASK ORDER NO. 7 WITH CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP FOR
THE PREPARATION OF THE 2022 TRAFFIC MONITORING PROGRAM AND
ANALYSIS AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT
Adopt Resolution Approving Task Order No. 7 with Crane Transportation
Group for the Preparation of the 2022 Traffic Monitoring Program and
Analysis, Pursuant to Master Consulting Agreement dated June 11, 2018
and Related Budget Amendment

4.13 APPROVE LATHROP POLICE DISPATCH AGREEMENT
Adopt Resolution to Approve the Agreement between the City of Lathrop
and the City of Ripon to Provide Dispatch Services to the City

4.14 APPROVE ANIMAL SHELTER SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF
MANTECA
Adopt a Resolution Approving an Animal Shelter Services Agreement with
the City of Manteca

4.15 APPROVE FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT FOR
191 LOTS IN TRACT 4062 WITHIN PHASE 1C OF THE CENTRAL LATHROP
SPECIFIC PLAN
Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 4062 within Phase 1C of the
Central Lathrop Specific Plan, Totaling 191 Single Family Lots and
Subdivision Improvement Agreement with Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC

4.16 APPROVE REAL PROPERTY SALE AND EASEMENT DEEDS FOR THE
OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL TRANSMISSION LINES ON CHRISTOPHER WAY
AND D’ARCY PARKWAY WITH PG&E, AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT
Adopt Resolution Approving Real Property Sale and Approval of Easement
Deeds for the Overhead Electrical Transmission Lines on Christopher Way
and D’Arcy Parkway with PG&E and a Related Budget Amendment

7



October 11, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 7

4.17 ACCEPT REMAINING PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR TRACT 4017, PHASE
1B1, IN THE CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN AND RELEASE
ASSOCIATED BONDS AND DEPOSIT SECURITY
Adopt Resolution Accepting Remaining Public Improvements for Tract 4017, 
Phase 1B1 in the Central Lathrop Specific Plan, and Release Associated
Bonds and Deposit Security

RIVER ISLANDS CONSENT ITEM(S) 

4.18 APPROVE FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT FOR
47 LOTS IN TRACT 4053 VILLAGE “ JJ2” WITHIN LAKESIDE WEST DISTRICT
OF RIVER ISLANDS
Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 4053 Village “ JJ2” within
the Lakeside West District, Totaling 47 Single Family Lots and Subdivision
Improvement Agreement with River Islands Stage 2B, LLC

5. SCHEDULED ITEMS

5.1 PUBLIC HEARING ( PUBLISHED NOTICE) TO CONSIDER THE SCANNELL
PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PROJECT GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT NO. GPA-
20-139, REZONE NO. REZ- 20-140, SITE PLAN REVIEW NO. SPR- 20-141, 
AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO. TPM- 20-142
Council to Consider the Following: 

1. Hold a Public Hearing;  
2. Adopt a Resolution Adopting the Initial Study and Mitigated Negative

Declaration for the Scannell Properties Industrial Project; 
3. Adopt a Resolution Approving a General Plan Amendment from SC, 

Service Commercial to GI, General Industrial; 
4. First Reading and Introduce an Ordinance to Approve a Zoning Map

Amendment from CS, Service Commercial to IG, General Industrial; 
5. Adopt a Resolution Approving the Site Plan Review for the Scannell

Properties Industrial Project to Construct Three ( 3) Industrial
Warehouse Buildings Totaling 191,160 sq. ft. in Size; and

6. Adopt a Resolution Approving a Vesting Tentative Parcel Map to
Subdivide an Existing 18.2 Acre Parcel into Four ( 4) Parcels: Parcel
1 is 6.54-acres, Parcel 2 is 5.58-acres, Parcel 3 is 3.50-acres, and
Parcel 4 is 2.52-acres. 

5.2 CONSIDER CREATION OF CIP PK 22-34 SHILLING AVENUE PARK PROJECT
AND APPROVE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT
Council to Consider the Adoption of a Resolution Approving the Creation of
CIP PK 22-34 for the Shilling Avenue Park Project and Authorize Related
Budget Amendment

8



October 11, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 8

6. COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6.1 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL – Appointment of One ( 1) Member to the
Measure C Oversight Committee with Term Expiring June 30, 2022, Due to
Unscheduled Vacancy

One Application Received

6.2 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL – Appointment of One ( 1) Member to the
Senior Advisory Commission with Term Expiring June 30, 2024

One Application Received

6.3 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL – Consider Installation of Rubberized Surface
in City Parks

6.4 COUNCILMEMBER DIALLO – Consider City Council Monthly Stipend Increase

6.5 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT( S) 
Central Valley Executive Committee/ LOCC ( Akinjo/ Diallo) 
Council of Governments ( Lazard/ Diallo) 
Integrated Waste Management Solid Waste Division ( Akinjo/ Torres-
O’Callaghan) 
Reclamation District 17 Joint Powers Authority ( Salvatore) 
San Joaquin Partnership Board of Directors ( Salvatore)  
San Joaquin County Commission on Aging ( Zavala) 
San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District ( Akinjo/ Dhaliwal) 
Water Advisory Board ( Torres- O’Callaghan/ Lazard) 
Tri Valley- San Joaquin Valley Regional Rail Authority ( Akinjo) 
San Joaquin Area Flood Control Agency ( Akinjo & Lazard) 
LAFCo ( Diallo) 

6.6 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S) 

7. ADJOURNMENT

Teresa Vargas/ 
Teresa Vargas, CMC, City Clerk

9



10



ITEM 4. 2

CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING

MONDAY, AUGUST 2, 2021, 6: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL

390 Towne Centre Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330

MINUTES

PLEASE NOTE: The Soecia/ Meeting commenced at 6: Oi p.m. C/ osed Session fo/% wed

after the conc/ usion of Item 4. 1,

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Dhaliwal called the meeting to order 6: 01 p. m.

Director of Government Services / City Clerk ( City Clerk) Teresa Vargas provided an
overview on ZoomGov login instructions for those joining virtually.

1. 2 ROLL CALL Present: Mayor Dhaliwal; Vice Mayor Torres- O' Callaghan;

Councilmembers: Akinjo, Diallo and Lazard

Absent: None

1. 3 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Vice Mayor Torres- O' Callaghan provided the
pledge of allegiance.

2.       PRESENTATIONS

2. 1 LATHROP POLICE DEPARTMENT PROJECT UPDATE, GG 21- 11

City Manager Stephen Salvatore provided an overview of the progress in
the Chief of Police recruitment process; announced upcoming recruitments
of the Police Department Command Staff; upcoming vehicle purchases, and
the upcoming acceptance of the new Lathrop Police Department Station.
City Clerk Teresa Vargas announced public comment letter, dated August
2, 2021, for Item 2. 1, submitted by Neal Lawson.

3.       CONSENT CALENDAR

On a motion by Councilmember Lazard,  seconded by Vice Mayor Torres-

O' Callaghan, the City Council approved the Consent Calendar, by the following roll
call vote, unless otherwise indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Diallo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Dhaliwal
Noes:   None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

August 2, 2021 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 1

11



3. 1 AWARD CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AND RATIFY PURCHASE ORDERS FOR
CIP GG 21- 09 CITY HALL RENOVATIONS

Pulled by Councilmember Diallo. City Manager Stephen Salvatore provided
additional information regarding the item.

Adopted Resolution 21- 4930 awarding a Construction Contract to Hale
Construction,   Inc.   and ratified Purchase Orders with DLD Design   &

Consulting for CIP GG 21- 09 City Hall Renovations.

4.       SCHEDULED ITEMS

4. 1 CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION REGARDING REGULATION AND PERMIT

OPTIONS FOR CANNABIS ACTIVITIES IN THE CITY OF LATHROP

City Attorney Salvador Navarrete provided a brief overview and introduced
City Planning Consultant David Niskanen ( JB Anderson Land Use Planning).
Mr. Niskanen provided the presentation, which included the purpose of the
discussion,  background on prior City Council Meeting discussions on the
matter, the application process, development of potential regulations for
commercial cannabis use,  overview of a potential selection process,
application requirements and fees,  and next steps and implementation
actions as provided by the City Council.  A question and answer period
ensued throughout the presentation.

Javier Nunez  ( Lathrop resident,  in person speaker)  spoke in support of

permitting commercial cannabis activities;  supported the merit based

system for local Lathrop businesses. Donald Jimenez ( Lathrop resident, in
person speaker)  spoke in support of permitting commercial cannabis
activities; cited potential sales tax revenue for the city and accessibility of
cannabis products.   Michael Bittaw ( Lathrop resident, in person speaker)
spoke in support of permitting commercial cannabis activities;  supported

the developer agreement process; and provided a copy of a memorandum
for the record,  from City of Stockton Police Chief Eric Jones to City of
Stockton City Manager Harry Black, dated July 27, 2021, regarding data
related to Cannabis Dispensaries in Stockton. Jennifer McGrath ( ZoomGov

speaker)  introduced herself as an Attorney specializing in land use and
business regulations for cannabis; provided information related to Prop 64
The Control, Regulate and Tax Adult Use of Marijuana Act); and spoke in

support of permitting commercial cannabis activities and the use of the
developer agreement process. Brendan Floyd ( ZoomGov speaker) spoke in
support of permitting commercial cannabis activities;   cited medicinal
benefits for health and mental illnesses.  Nicolaus ( Nick)  Cortez ( Lathrop
resident,  in person speaker)  spoke in support of permitting commercial
cannabis activities; cited medicinat benefits for health and mental illnesses.

The City Council continued their discussion on the matter.  Vice Mayor

Torres- O' Callaghan expressed interest in an ordinance to allow options for

the regulation and permitting of cannabis activities; supported the concept
of commercial business hours to match surrounding businesses;   and

August 2, 2021 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 2

12



supported the developer agreement process.   Councilmember Diallo

expressed interest in an ordinance to allow options for the regulation and
permitting of cannabis activities;  supported the developer agreement
process;  did not support the use of light industrial zoning areas or
properties near school zones; supported commercial zoning areas and the
use of the developer agreement process. Councilmember Lazard expressed
support for the matter;   expressed interest in implementing similar

application processes used by City of Tracy,  Stockton and Riverbank.
Councilmember Akinjo opposed the matter.  Mayor Dhaliwal expressed

support on the matter; and supported allowing one cannabis dispensary per
50, 000 residents;  and limiting businesses near school zones.  Council

consensus provided staff with direction to prepare an ordinance for review
by the Planning Commission and subsequent consideration of the City
Council, for regulation and permit options for cannabis activities.

Mayor Dhaliwal adjourned the meeting to Closed Session at 7: 58 p. m.

5.       CLOSED SESSION

5. 1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL:  Anticipated Litigation - Significant

Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9( b)
1 Potential Cases

RECONVENE - Mayor Dhaliwal reconvened the meeting at 8: 18 p. m.

5. 2 REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION

City Attorney Salvador Navarrete reported that direction was provided to
stafF; no other reportable action was taken.

6.       AD OURNMENT - There being no further business, Mayor Dhaliwal adjourned
the meeting at 8: 21 p. m.

l  ,,,":,,-:
Y  ,,..---_

T resa Vargas, CMC      ,,
13irector of Government Services / City Clerk

This meeting was called by a majority of the Crty Council per Gove nment Code Section 54956. 5.
Members of the public interested in addressing the City Council during this Special Meeting may
address the item( s), which have been described in the notice of this Special Meeting in accordance
with Government Code Section 54954. 3( a).

August 2, 2021 Lathrop City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 3

13



CITY OF LATHROP

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MONDAY, AUGUST 9, 2021
7: 00 P. M.

COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

MINUTES

PLEASE NOTE: There was no C/osed Session The Reau/ar Meeting commenced at 7•03
a m•

1.       PRELIMINARY

1. 1 CALL TO ORDER - Mayor Dhaliwal called the meeting to order at 7: 03
p. m.

1. 2 ROLL CALL Present: Mayor Dhaliwal; Vice Mayor Torres- O' Callaghan;
Councilmembers: Akinjo, Diallo and Lazard.

Absent: None

1. 3 INVOCATION - Pastor Jason Tacderan, Thrive Church, provided the
invocation.

1. 4 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Pastor Jason Tacderan led the pledge of
allegiance.

1. 5 ANNOUNCEMENT( S) BY MAYOR / CITY MANAGER

City Manager Stephen Salvatore announced that Item 2. 1 would be pulled
from the agenda and moved to the next Regular Meeting of September 13,
2021.

1. 6 INFORMATIONAL ITEM( S) - None

1. 7 DECLARATION OF CONFLICT( S) OF INTEREST - None

Director of Government Services / City Clerk ( City Clerk) Teresa Vargas provided an
overview on ZoomGov login instructions for those joining virtually.

2.       PRESENTATIONS

2. 1 NATIONAL NIGHT OUT COMMUNITY APPRECIATION AWARDS

As announced under Item 1. 5; Item 2. 1 will be pulled from the agenda
and moved to the next Regular Meeting of September 13, 2021.

August 9, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1

14



2. 2 MAYOR' S COMMITTEE REPORT( S)
Parks & Recreation Update on Committee Events and Programs

Parks,  Recreation and Maintenance Services Director Zach Jones and

Deputy Director Todd Sebastian reported the following past and upcoming
events and programs:

Past Special Events
Reported on past special events:  Family Fun Night, held August 6th
at Mossdale Landing Community Park, over 1, 500 participants.

Upcoming Special Events
Provided an overview on various upcoming events: Summer Movies
in the Park,  scheduled for August 13tn,  20tn and 27th at the

Generations Center; and Backyard Camp Out, scheduled for August
14th, registration available at: www. ci. lathrop. ca. us/ parksrec

Senior Center Programs
Provided an overview on various upcoming events:   Book Club
scheduled for 3 d

Wednesday of each month at 3 p. m.;  Tai Chi
scheduled on Tuesdays at 10: 30 a. m.; and Drumming 360 Workout
Class scheduled for Wednesdays at 8: 30 a. m.

Leisure Classes
Provided an overview on upcoming classes,  which included Paint

Night, Dance Lessons for Kids, Youth Karate, Tennis Camp, Basic Dog
Puppy Training, Zumba Fitness, and Zumba & Yoga Fitness.

Youth Development

Provided an overview on upcoming youth workshops, which included
Kid' s Club and Friday Fun Nights @ the Grind.

Sports Programs

Provided an overview on upcoming sports programs, which included
Mini Movers T- ball,  NFL Flag Football,  Fitness Fun Afterschool PE
Program, and Adult Cornhole League.

Maintenance Services
Provided an overview on Maintenance Services activities,  which
included Booster Pump Station preventative maintenance all

locations, speed limit sign and crosswalk sign maintenance, citywide
weed abatement on city owned storm ponds, and monthly streetlight
night sweep.

Solid Waste & Recycling
Provided an overview on Solid Waste & Recycling activities, which

included upcoming ordinance regarding State mandate on organic
waste disposal reduction for residential and commercial generators.

August 9, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2

15



3.       CITIZEN' S FORUM

There were no speakers.  City Clerk Teresa Vargas announced public comment
letter submitted by Christina Laughlin expressing concerns regarding traffic issues
within school zone areas. Acting Police Chief Alagna provided an update on traffic
enforcement activities throughout school zones.

4.       CONSENT CALENDAR

On a motion by Councilmember Lazard,  seconded by Vice Mayor Torres-
O' Callaghan, the City Council approved the Consent Calendar, by the following roll
call vote, unless otherwise indicated:

Ayes:    Akinjo, Diallo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

4. 1 WAIVING OF READING OF ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS

Waived the reading in full of ordinances and resolutions on agenda and
adopt by reading of title only, unless otherwise requested by the Mayor or
a Councilmember.

4. 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Approved Minutes for the Regular Council Meeting of) une 14, 2021.

4. 3 UNCOLLECTIBLE UTILITY AND MISCELLANEOUS CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS

Pulled by Councilmember Akinjo.   Deputy Finance Director Thomas

Hedegard provided additional information.

Approved write- off of uncollectible utility and miscellaneous accounts for
Fiscal Year ( FY) 2020/ 21.

4. 4 AUTHORIZE PARTICIPATION AND ALLOCATION OF FUNDING FOR THE
REGIONAL EARLY ACTION PLANNING GRANTS FUNDS AWARDED TO SAN
JOAQUIN COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS ON BEHALF OF THE SAN JOAQUIN
COUNTY MEMBER AGENCIES

Pulled by Councilmember Akinjo. Community Development Director Mark
Meissner provided additional information.

Adopted Resolution 21- 4931 authorizing application for, and receipt of,
REAP Grant Program Funds through the San   ] oaquin Council of
Governments.

August 9, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3

16



4. 5 AWARD CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO AMERICAN PAVEMENT SYSTEMS,
INC. FOR THE MANTHEY ROAD REHABILITATION, CIP PS 21- 08

Adopted Resolution 21- 4932 awarding a Construction Contract to

American Pavement Systems, Inc. for the Manthey Road Rehabilitation, CIP
PS 21- 08.

4. 6 APPROVAL OF PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR
ON- CALL LAND SURVEY AND MAPPING SERVICES WITH DARRYL

ALEXANDER & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Adopted Resolution 21- 4933 approving a Professional Consulting
Services Agreement with Darryl Alexander & Associates, Inc. to provide on-
call land survey and mapping services.

4. 7 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT
FOR 48 LOTS IN TRACT 4031 VILLAGE  S3"  WITHIN LAKESIDE EAST
DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Adopted Resolution 21- 4934 approving Final Map for Tract 4031 Village
S3" within the Lakeside East District, totaling 48 single- family lots and

Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands Stage 2A, LLC.

4. 8 APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP,   COMMON USE AGREEMENT,   OFFER OF
DEDICATION,     CFD ANNEXATION NO.     22,     AND SUBDIVISION

IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT FOR 42 LOTS IN TRACT 4101 VILLAGE MM1"

WITHIN LAKESIDE WEST DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Adopted Resolution 21- 4935 approving Final Map for Tract 4101 Village
MM1" within the Lakeside West District,  totaling 42 single- family lots,

Common Use Agreement with Island Reclamation District No. 2062, CFD

Annexation No. 22, Subdivision Improvement Agreement and Acceptance

of Offer of Dedication for Public Utility Easements with River Islands Stage
26, LLC.

4. 9 APPROVE A FEE WAIVER REQUEST FROM LATHROP COMMUNITY

VOLUNTEER CLUB

Adopted Resolution 21- 4936 approving the Facility Fee Waiver Request
from Lathrop Community Volunteer Club for Calendar Year 2021.

4. 10 APPROVE A FEE WAIVER REQUEST FROM LATHROP LIONS CLUB

Adopted Resolution 21- 4937 approving the Facility Fee Waiver Request
from Lathrop Lions Club for Calendar Year 2021.

4. 11 ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS CONSTRUCTED BY GSE

CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. FOR CIP WW 19- 01 WOODFIELD SEWER
PUMP STATION UPGRADES

August 9, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4

17



Pulled by Councilmember Akinjo.  Public Works Director Michael King and
City Manager Stephen Salvatore provided additional information.

Adopted Resolution 21- 4938 approving public improvements constructed
by GSE Construction Company, Inc. for CIP WW 19- 01 Woodfield Sewer
Pump Station upgrades, authorizing the filing of a Notice of Completion,
release of contract retention,  and release of Performance and Payment
Bonds.

4. 12 ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND OFFERS OF DEDICATION
FOR STORM DRAIN EASEMENTS FROM SAYBROOK CLSP, LLC

Adopted Resolution 21- 4939 accepting public improvements and offers
of dedication for storm drain easements from Saybrook CLSP, LLC.

4. 13 ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR TRACTS 3997, 3998, 3999,
4000, 4001, AND 4002 FROM RIVER ISLANDS DEVELOPMENT, LLC

Adopted Resolution 21- 4940 accepting public improvements for Tracts
3997, 3998, 3999, 4000, 4001, and 4002 from River Islands Development,
LLC.

4. 14 CONDITIONAL ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND

ACCEPTANCE OF A GRANT DEED FOR THE LATHROP POLICE STATION, CIP
GG 19- 08 AND ASSOCIATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

Pulled by Councilmember Akinjo.  Public Works Director Michael King and
City Manager Stephen Salvatore provided additional information.

Adopted Resolution 21- 4941 conditionally accepting public

improvements and accepting a Grant Deed for the Lathrop Police Station,
CIP GG 19- 08 and associated budget amendment.

5.       SCHEDULED ITEMS

5. 1 AMEND CALPERS CONTRACT TO ADD A POLICE SAFETY RETIREMENT
FORMULA

Deputy Finance Director Thomas Hedegard provided the presentation. A

question answer period followed. Senior Pension Actuary Julian Robinson,
with CaIPERS Actuarial Office provided additional information.

On a motion by Councilmember Lazard, seconded by Mayor Dhaliwal, the
City Council adopted Resolution 21- 4942 of Intention to amend the
contract between the Board of Administration of the California Public
Employees Retirement System and the City of Lathrop, by the following roll
call vote, unless otherwise indicated:

August 9, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 5

18



Ayes:    Akinjo, Diallo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Dhaliwal

Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

5. 2 PUBLIC HEARING   ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)   TO CONSIDER TENTATIVE

SUBDIVISION MAP TSM- 21- 15 and MINOR VARIANCE MV- 21- 70 FOR THE

WARREN AVENUE SUBDIVISION PROJECT

Community Development Director Mark Meissner provided the

presentation.   Director Meissner announced a public comment letter

received in support of Item 5. 2 from Jacqui Breitenbucher, Chief Business

Officer with Manteca Unified School District. A question and answer period
ensued.  Councilmembers discussed various topics relating to residential
development projects, development of future Lathrop schools, and Manteca
Unified School District' s Community Facility Districts on residential projects.
Finance Director Cari James provided additional information.

Mayor Dhaliwal opened the public hearing. Maribel ( zoom speaker) spoke

on the matter, commented on a recent fire incident near the property, and
potential environmental studies on the subject property. There were no
other speakers. Mayor Dhaliwal closed the public hearing. The question and
answer period continued.   City Attorney Salvador Navarrete provided
additional information.  ( After the Public Hearing) Pam Hurban ( in person
speaker,  NorthStar Engineering)  was allowed to speak on the matter;

requested the City Council' s approval of the project.

Council consensus directed City Clerk Teresa Vargas to contact Manteca
Unified School District and invite the Lathrop Board Representatives to a
public discussion during the next Regular City Council Meeting scheduled
on September 13, 2021.

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Diallo, the
City Council tabled the matter and postponed the item to a date uncertain.

The City Council did not adopt the proposed resolution approving Tentative
Subdivision Map  ( TSM- 21- 15)  and Minor Variance  ( MV- 21- 70)  for the

proposed Warren Avenue Subdivision Project.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Diallo, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    Lazard

Absent: None

Abstain: None

5. 3 REVIEW OPTIONS AND PROVIDE DIRECTION ON LIGHTED CROSSWALKS

ON 5TH STREET NEAR LATHROP ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

Public Works Director Michael King provided the presentation. A question
and answer period ensued.

August 9, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 6

19



The City Council discussed and reviewed the proposed options,  which

included roadside flashing pedestrian signs and in road warning signs.

Council consensus directed staff to move forward with Option 1 ( roadside

flashing pedestrian signs) as the preferred option for lighted crosswalks on
5th Street near Lathrop Elementary School.

5. 4 REVIEW OPTIONS AND PROVIDE DIRECTION ON LATHROP ROAD TRUCK
ROUTE

Public Works Director Michael King provided the presentation. A question
and answer period ensued throughout the presentation.  City Manager
Stephen Salvatore and City Attorney Salvador Navarrete provided
additional information.

The City Council discussed and reviewed the proposed options,  which

included Option 1 - funding a truck study and continuing enforcement for
STAA trucks and speeding, approve budget of $ 50, 000 for proposed study;
Option 2 - current status and continue to issue citations for STAA truck and
excessive speeding; and Option 3 - prohibit all truck traffic, direct traffic
onto McKinley Avenue and Louise Avenue,  increase traffic volume at

interchange of Louise Avenue and I- 5, not aligned with the Regional Truck

Study being performed by SJCOG,  amendment needed to the Lathrop
Municipal Code ( LMC).

City Clerk Teresa Vargas announced public comment letter submitted by
Alicia Guerra,  with Buchalter Law Firm,  representing Scannell Properties

1520 Lathrop Road) opposing Option 3, and expressing support for either
Option 1 or Option 2.  Jonathan Pruitt  ( zoom speaker)  representing the
Environmental Justice Program at Catholic Charities Diocese of Stockton

expressed support in redirecting commercial truck traffic away from
residential areas on Lathrop Road and placing proper signage indicating not
a STAA route. Adriana Flores Lopez ( in person speaker) comment on City
Ordinance No.  06- 262,  spoke in support of redirecting commercial truck
traffic away from residential areas on Lathrop Road. Bill Barnhart ( in person
speaker) expressed concern with a City of Manteca approved project on
Airport Way that is expected to produce approximately 816 commercial
truck trips per day exiting on Roth Road and potentially using Lathrop Road
for freeway access; expressed support with redirecting commercial truck
traffic away from residential areas on Lathrop Road.  Mary Meninga  ( in

person speaker) expressed concern with increased commercial traffic on

Lathrop Road;  expressed support in redirecting commercial truck traffic
away from residential areas on Lathrop Road. Margaret Luevano ( in person
speaker) expressed concern with increased commercial trafFic and traffic
violations on Lathrop Road;  expressed support in redirecting commercial
truck traffic away from residential areas on Lathrop Road.

August 9, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 7

20



Council consensus directed staff to move forward with Option 3 as the
preferred option on the use of Lathrop Road as a truck route in accordance
with Lathrop Municipal Code Section 10. 16. 030,  and bring back for

consideration during the next Regular City Council Meeting scheduled on
September 13, 2021.

5. 5 OUT- OF- STATE TRAVEL APPROVAL FOR THE 2021 SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY
ONE- VOICE TRIP

City Clerk Teresa Vargas provided the presentation. A question and answer
period followed.

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal,   seconded by Vice Mayor Torres-
O' Callaghan, the City Council adopted Resolution 21- 4943 authorizing
Option 1,  out- of- state travel for two Council Members  ( the Council
nominated Councilmembers Akinjo and Diallo)  and the City Manager to
attend the 2021 San Joaquin One Voice Trip to Washington,  D. C.  from

October 17- 22, 2021, and approved related budget amendment.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Diallo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

5. 6 APPOINTMENT OF VOTING DELEGATE/ ALTERNATE FOR 2021 LEAGUE OF
CALIFORNIA CITIES ANNUAL CONFERENCE

City Clerk Teresa Vargas provided the presentation. A question and answer
period followed.

The City Council discussed and agreed to appoint Councilmember Akinjo as
the City' s Voting Delegate, and Councilmember Diallo as the City' s Voting
Alternate,  for the 2021 League of California Cities Annual Conference,
September 22- 24, 2021.

Furthermore,  Council consensus directed the Voting Delegate to oppose
Resolution  # 1 submitted by City of Rancho Cucamonga regarding the
distribution of the Bradley Burns 1% Local Sales Tax from in- state online
purchases,  based on data where products are shipped to;  and support
Resolution # 2 submitted by City of South Gate regarding funding for CPUC
to fulfill its obligation to inspect railroad lines to ensure that operators are
removing illegal dumping, grafFiti and homeless encampments.

5. 7 DISCUSSION REGARDING SCHEDULING AN UPCOMING CITY COUNCIL
WORKSHOP FOR GOALS AND PRIORITIES SETTING FOR FISCAL YEARS 21-
22 & 22- 23

City Clerk Teresa Vargas provided the presentation. A question and answer
period followed.

August 9, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 8

21



The City Council discussed the matter.  Vice Mayor Torres- O' Callaghan

expressed interest in the formation of a future school district for the City of
Lathrop, a Homeless Action Plan, attracting family entertainment centers,
and solar light poles for the Lathrop Historical/ Acres area. Councilmember
Lazard expressed interest in building a community pool.  Councilmember

Diallo stated she would email her goal project ideas to staff. Councilmember
Akinjo expressed interest in the construction of a second Senior Center
location, and planning for the expansion of the Police Station to keep up
with future growth.  Mayor Dhaliwal expressed interest in building a new
park at the retention basin near Maurice Cotton Drive and Schilling Avenue;
and developing the city owned property next to the Skate Park on 7th Street.

City Council consensus directed staff to schedule a future Goal and Priorities
Setting Workshop for Fiscal Years 21- 22 & 22- 23 to a date uncertain.

6.       COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS

6. 1 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL   -   Review Current Senior Advisory
Commission Vacancies:   Appointment of One  ( 1)  Member to the Senior

Advisory Commission with Term Expiring June 30,  2024;  and Consider

Extending the Terms of Three ( 3) Existing Members Not Able to Meet During
the COVID- 19 Pandemic, from ] une 30, 2021 to June 30, 2022

One ( 1) Application Received

Mayor Dhaliwal made the following appointments:

Senior Advisory Commission Term Exuires
Malia Tenisia Mika June 30, 2024

Robert Long June 30, 2022
Vada Klingman June 30, 2022

Extended the terms of two ( 2) existing members not able to meet during
the COVID- 19 Pandemic, from June 30, 2021 to June 30, 2022. The third
eligible member declined the extension citing unable to fulfil the

commitment.

On a motion by Councilmember Akinjo, seconded Councilmember Lazard,
the City Council approved the appointment made by Mayor Dhaliwal as
noted above.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Diallo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

6. 2 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL
Appointment of One ( 1) Member to the Measure C Oversight Committee
with Term Expiring June 30, 2024

One ( 1) Application Received

August 9, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 9

22



Mayor Dhaliwal made the following appointments:

Measure C Oversight Committee Term Expires

Brandy Perkins June 30, 2024

On a motion by Councilmember Akinjo, seconded Councilmember Lazard,
the City Council approved the appointment made by Mayor Dhaliwal as
noted above.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Diallo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

6. 3 MAYOR DHALIWAL REFERRAL
Appointment of One ( 1) Member to the Parks and Recreation Commission
with Term Expiring June 30, 2024

One ( 1) Application Received

Mayor Dhaliwal made the following appointments:

Parks and Recreation Commission Term Expires
Jennifer Hopping June 30, 2024

On a motion by Councilmember Akinjo, seconded Councilmember Lazard,
the City Council approved the appointment made by Mayor Dhaliwal as
noted above.

Ayes:    Akinjo, Diallo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

6. 4 VICE MAYOR REFERRAL - Crosswalk at Golden Spike Trail and Open Range
Avenue

Vice Mayor Torres- O' Callaghan provided an overview citing public safety
and safe routes for pedestrians. City Manager Stephen Salvatore explained
that matters of public safety could take a higher priority and suggested the
installation of a three- way stop sign and crosswalk ramps at the proposed
location. City Attorney Salvador Navarrete explained that if the City Council
felt they had sufficient information on the matter they could provide
direction to staff on how to handle the proposed matter.

On a motion by Mayor Dhaliwal, seconded by Councilmember Lazard, the
City Council directed staff to install a three- way stop sign and crosswalk
ramps at the proposed location, and bring back budget approval for Council
ratification if over City Manager signing authority.

August 9, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 10

23



Ayes:    Akinjo, Diallo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Dhaliwal
Noes:    None

Absent: None

Abstain: None

6. 5 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE REPORT( S) - None

6. 6 MAYOR & COUNCILMEMBER COMMENT( S)

Councilmembers thanked those in attendance and expressed appreciation
to Lathrop- Manteca Fire District,   Police Services and stafF for the

coordination of the National Night Out event.

7.       AD70URNMENT — There being no further business, Mayor Dhaliwal adjourned
the meeting at 10: 21 pm

f,     ,   ,;_  Z('
r sa Vargas, CMC

City Clerk

August 9, 2021 Lathrop City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page il

24



ITEM 4. 3

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       SECOND READING AND ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE

21- 427 OF THE CITY OF LATHROP AMENDING THE

LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 8 HEALTH AND

SAFETY",    CHAPTER 8. 16 ENTITLED    GARBAGE

COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL",  SECTION 8. 16. 010

ENTITLED   DEFINITIONS"  AND ADDING A NEW

SECTION 8. 16. 290 ENTITLED      MANDATORY

ORGANIC WASTE DISPOSAL REDUCTION"   AND

SECTION 8. 16. 300 ENTITLED VIOLATIONS"

RECOMMENDATION:     Waive Full Reading and Adopt Ordinance 21- 427 Of
The City Of Lathrop Amending The Lathrop Municipal
Code Title 8  Health And Safety",  Chapter 8. 16

Entitled Garbage Collection And Disposal", Section

8. 16. 010 Entitled  Definitions" And Adding A New
Section 8. 16. 290 Entitled Mandatory Organic Waste
Disposal Reduction" And Section 8. 16. 300 Entitled

Violations"

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

The City Council to conduct second reading and adopt Ordinance 21- 427 entitled:

A ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP AMENDING THE

LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 8  HEALTH AND SAFETY",   CHAPTER 8. 16

ENTITLED " GARBAGE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL", SECTION 8. 16. 010 ENTITLED

DEFINITIONS" AND ADDING A NEW SECTION 8. 16. 290 ENTITLED MANDATORY

ORGANIC WASTE DISPOSAL REDUCTION"  AND SECTION 8. 16. 300 ENTITLED

VIO LATIO N S"

SUMMARY:

On September 13, 2021, the City Council approved the introduction and first reading
of the subject Ordinance by the following vote:

AYES:   Akinjo, Diallo, Lazard, Torres- O' Callaghan, and Dhaliwal

NOES:  None

ABSTAIN:     None

ABSENT:       None

The Ordinance will take effect 30 days after adoption.

SUBMITTED BY:

lti 1 , c'       I   7,- 1
eresa Vargas, Cit lerk Date

25



ORDINANCE NO. 21-

A ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP AMENDING

THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 8 HEALTH AND SAFETY", CHAPTER

8. 16 ENTITLED" GARBAGE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL", SECTION 8.16. 010

ENTITLED  DEFINITIONS"  AND ADDING A NEW SECTION 8. 16. 290

ENTITLED MANDATORY ORGANIC WASTE DISPOSAL REDUCTION" AND

SECTION 8. 16. 300 ENTITLED VIOLATIONS"

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop City Council held a duly noticed public hearing
at a regular meeting on September 13, 2021 to review and consider this ordinance;
and

WHEREAS, the proposed municipal code text amendment is citywide and
affects all applicable properties in the City; and

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to amend section 8. 16. 010 to include" Definitions"

and add section 8. 16. 290 to include" Mandatory Organic Waste Disposal Reduction"
to incorporate the requirements of SB 1383 and appropriate to add section 8. 16. 300

entitled" Violations" to include an enforcement mechanism that would establish fines

for violations; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed all written evidence and oral
testimony presented to date.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Chapter 8. 16 of the Lathrop Municipal Code entitled ' Garbage
Collection and Disposal" is amended as follows:

A.     Section 8. 16. 010 entitled Definitions" is amended to add the

following to be codified in alphabetical order with existing definitions:

Commercial Generator" means multifamily residential or a Commercial Business,
which generates Solid Waste, Recyclables, Organic Waste or Compostable Materials
and may be amended from time to time, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Contaminated Container" means a container, regardless of color, that contains

incorrect materials or prohibited contaminants and may be amended from time to
time, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Green Waste" refers to material that can be broken down into, or otherwise become

part of, usable compost in a safe and timely manner ( including food scraps, food-
soiled paper, and compostable plastics) and may be amended from time to time,
which is incorporated herein by reference.

Organic Waste" refers to waste containing material originated from living organisms
and their metabolic waste products ( including but not limited to food, green waste,

Ordinance No. 21-       Page 1 of 4

26



landscape waste, organic textiles and carpets, lumber, and paper products) and may
be amended from time to time, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Residential Generator" means single family residential, which generates Solid Waste,
Recyclables, Organic Waste or Compostable Materials and may be amended from
time to time, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Source Separate" means the process of removing Recyclable Materials, Green Waste
and Organics Waste from Solid Waste, prior to collection, into separate containers
that are separately designated for Recyclables, Green Waste or Solid Waste and may
be amended from time to time, which is incorporated herein by reference.

B.      A new Section 8. 16. 290 entitled Mandatory Organics Waste
Disposal Reduction" is added to read as follows:

Single family, multifamily and commercial business Generators shall adhere to the
Mandatory Organic Waste Disposal Reduction and be subject to the following
regulations:

A.  Residential and Commercial Generators must subscribe to a basic level of

recycling service that includes at a minimum, the collection of recyclable
materials and green waste as stated in Chapter 8. 16. 080.

B.  Residential and Commercial Generators will Source Separate recyclable

materials, Green Waste and Organic Waste from solid waste; using the
three ( 3) bin system provided by the contractor.

C.  Contractor shall provide educational information to Residential and
Commercial Generators about Organic Waste recovery requirements and
the proper way to Source Separate into the three ( 3) bin system.

D.  Commercial Generators must provide adequate instructions to employees,
contractors and volunteers; and post signs containing information on the
proper way to Source Separate.

E.  Contamination monitoring is primarily done by the contractor.  For

generators with a Contaminated Container,  contractor will issue

contamination notices;  multiple notices will trigger a more detailed

inspection by an auditor or penalty.

1.  If the contractor first finds a Contaminated Container, they shall notify
the Generator by written notice attached to the Contaminated
Container and shall provide a copy of the notice to the City.

2.  If the contractor finds a Contaminated Container a second time, they
shall notify the generator by a written" Second Notice" attached to the
Contaminated Container and shall provide a copy of this " Second
Notice" to the City for possible follow up and enforcement.

Ordinance No. 21-       Page 2 of 4

27



3.  The contractor may refuse to empty the container if contractor finds a
Contaminated Container a third time. Subject to California Code of

Regulations Title 14, Section 17331, or if determined by the City, the
Generator may face potential penalties. If the container is not emptied,
the contractor must leave a tag and send a written notice to the
generator, identifying the incorrect materials and describing what
action must be taken for the materials to be collected; provided,
however, that a contractor may not refuse on this basis to empty
containers from multifamily or commercial properties with multiple
tenants and joint account collection service.

C.     Section 8. 16. 300 entitled " Violations"  is added to read as

fol lows:

Generators will receive three ( 3) written " Courte Warnin'_ notice rior to th_2 I, dc Violation of any ofthe provisions ofthis
enforcement of the first penalty violation isted below:  chapter shall be an infraction punishable by a fine of

not more than five hundred dollars($ 500. 00).¶

R __ identia_I_ Generator___50_ 00_first violati_o_n,    
es

es _       ___

Residential Generator $ 100. 00 second violation.

Residential Generator $ 250. 00 third and subsequent violations.

Commerciai_Generator_ 100. 00 first__v_iolation,
Commerciai Generator $ 250. 00 second vioiation.

Commeraal Generato_ r 500. 0_0 thir_d_ and subsequent violations.
oe eced:¶

Section 2.   This Ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given
effect in a manner that imposes upon the city or any officer or employee thereof a
mandatory duty of care toward persons and property within or without the city so as
to provide a basis of civil liability for damages, except as otherwise imposed by law.

Section 3.    Severabilitv.    If any section,  subsequent subdivision,  paragraph,
sentence,  clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be
unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such a decision shall not affect the validity of
the remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council hereby declares that it
would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence,
clause or phrase of this Ordinance irrespective of the unconstitutionality or invalidity
of any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase.

Section 4.   Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take legal effect 30 days from and

after the date of its passage.

Section 5.   Publication. The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this ordinance
and shall publish a summary thereof and post a certified copy of the full ordinance in
the office of the City Clerk at least five days prior to the adoption of the proposed
ordinance; and within fifteen days after adoption, the City Clerk shall publish a
summary of the ordinance with the names of the members of the City of Lathrop City
Council voting for and against the same.

Ordinance No. 21- Page 3 of 4

28



THIS ORDINANCE was regularly introduced at a regular meeting of the City
Council of the City of Lathrop on the 13 h day of September 2021, and was PASSED
AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lathrop on
llt'' day of October 2021, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwaf, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Ordinance No. 21- Page 4 of 4

29



ORDINANCE NO. 21-

A ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP AMENDING

THE LATHROP MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 8 HEALTH AND SAFETY", CHAPTER

8. 16 ENTITLED GARBAGE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL", SECTION 8. 16. 010

ENTITLED   DEFINITIONS"   AND ADDING A NEW SECTION 8. 16. 290

ENTITLED  MANDATORY ORGANIC WASTE DISPOSAL REDUCTION"  AND

SECTION 8. 16. 300 ENTITLED VIOLATIONS"

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop City Council held a duly noticed public hearing
at a regular meeting on September 13, 2021 to review and consider this ordinance;
and

WHEREAS,  the proposed municipal code text amendment is citywide and
affects all applicable properties in the City; and

WHEREAS, it is appropriate to amend section 8. 16. 010 to include Definitions"

and add section 8. 16. 290 to include " Mandatory Organic Waste Disposal Reduction"
to incorporate the requirements of SB 1383 and appropriate to add section 8. 16. 300

entitled ' Violations" to include an enforcement mechanism that would establish fines

for violations; and

WHEREAS,  the City Council has reviewed all written evidence and oral
testimony presented to date.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1.  Chapter 8. 16 of the Lathrop Municipal Code entitled Garbage

Collection and Disposal" is amended as follows:

A.       Section 8. 16. 010 entitled " Definitions" is amended to add the

following to be codified in alphabetical order with existing definitions:

Commercial Generator" means multifamily residential or a Commercial Business,
which generates Solid Waste, Recyclables, Organic Waste or Compostable Materials
and may be amended from time to time, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Contaminated Container"  means a container,  regardless of color,  that contains

incorrect materials or prohibited contaminants and may be amended from time to
time, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Green Waste" refers to material that can be broken down into, or otherwise become

part of, usable compost in a safe and timely manner ( including food scraps, food-
soiled paper, and compostable plastics) and may be amended from time to time,
which is incorporated herein by reference.

Organic Waste" refers to waste containing material originated from living organisms
and their metabolic waste products ( including but not limited to food, green waste,

Ordinance No. 21-       Page 1 of 4

30



landscape waste, organic textiles and carpets, lumber, and paper products) and may
be amended from time to time, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Residential Generator" means single family residential, which generates Solid Waste,
Recyclables, Organic Waste or Compostable Materials and may be amended from
time to time, which is incorporated herein by reference.

Source Separate"" means the process of removing Recyclable Materials, Green Waste
and Organics Waste from Solid Waste, prior to collection, into separate containers

that are separately designated for Recyclables, Green Waste or Solid Waste and may
be amended from time to time, which is incorporated herein by reference.

B. A new Section 8. 16. 290 entitled  Mandatory Organics Waste
Disposal Reduction" is added to read as follows:

Single family,  multifamily and commercial business Generators shall adhere to the
Mandatory Organic Waste Disposal Reduction and be subject to the following
regulations:

A.   Residential and Commercial Generators must subscribe to a basic level of

recycling service that includes at a minimum, the collection of recyclable
materials and green waste as stated in Chapter 8. 16. 080.

B.   Residential and Commercial Generators will Source Separate recyclable
materials, Green Waste and Organic Waste from solid waste;  using the
three ( 3) bin system provided by the contractor.

C.   Contractor shall provide educational information to Residential and

Commercial Generators about Organic Waste recovery requirements and
the proper way to Source Separate into the three ( 3) bin system.

D.   Commercial Generators must provide adequate instructions to employees,
contractors and volunteers; and post signs containing information on the
proper way to Source Separate.

E.   Contamination monitoring is primarily done by the contractor.   For

generators with a Contaminated Container,   contractor will issue

contamination notices;   multiple notices will trigger a more detailed

inspection by an auditor or penalty.

1.  If the contractor first finds a Contaminated Container, they shall notify
the Generator by written notice attached to the Contaminated

Container and shall provide a copy of the notice to the City.

2.    If the contractor finds a Contaminated Container a second time, they
shall notify the generator by a written " Second Notice" attached to the
Contaminated Container and shall provide a copy of this  " Second

Notice" to the City for possible follow up and enforcement.

Ordinance No. 21-       Page 2 of 4

31



3.  The contractor may refuse to empty the container if contractor finds a
Contaminated Container a third time.  Subject to California Code of

Regulations Title 14, Section 17331, or if determined by the City, the
Generator may face potential penalties.  If the container is not emptied,

the contractor must leave a tag and send a written notice to the
generator,  identifying the incorrect materials and describing what
action must be taken for the materials to be collected;  provided,
however,  that a contractor may not refuse on this basis to empty
containers from multifamily or commercial properties with multiple
tenants and joint account collection service.

C.       Section 8. 16. 300 entitled  " Violations"  is added to read as

follows:

Generators will receive three  ( 3)  written " Courtesy Warning" notices prior to the

enforcement of the first penalty violation listed below:

Residential Generator $ 50. 00 first violation.

Residential Generator $ 100. 00 second violation.

Residential Generator $ 250. 00 third and subsequent violations.

Commercial Generator $ 100. 00 first violation.

Commercial Generator $ 250. 00 second violation.

Commercial Generator $ 500. 00 third and subsequent violations.

Section 2.     This Ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given
efFect in a manner that imposes upon the city or any officer or employee thereof a
mandatory duty of care toward persons and property within or without the city so as
to provide a basis of civil liability for damages, except as otherwise imposed by law.

Section 3.     Severabilitv.     If any section,   subsequent subdivision,   paragraph,
sentence,  clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be

unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such a decision shall not affect the validity of
the remaining portions of this Ordinance.   The City Council hereby declares that it
would have passed each section,  subsection,  subdivision,  paragraph,  sentence,

clause or phrase of this Ordinance irrespective of the unconstitutionality or invalidity
of any section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase.

Section 4.     Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take legal effect 30 days from and

after the date of its passage.

Section 5.     Publication.  The City Clerk shall certify to the adoption of this ordinance
and shall publish a summary thereof and post a certified copy of the full ordinance in
the office of the City Clerk at least five days prior to the adoption of the proposed
ordinance;  and within fifteen days after adoption,  the City Clerk shall publish a
summary of the ordinance with the names of the members of the City of Lathrop City
Council voting for and against the same.

Ordinance No. 21-       Page 3 of 4

32



THIS ORDINANCE was regularly introduced at a regular meeting of the City
Council of the City of Lathrop on the 13th day of September 2021, and was PASSED
AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lathrop on
llt'' day of October 2021, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Ordinance No. 21-       Page 4 of 4

33



34



i,

Y

ITEM 4. 4
City of

Quarterly Investment Report
June 2021

This report presents a detailed discussion of the City' s investment portfolio as of June 30, 2021.  It includes all

investments managed by the City on its own behalf as well as the City' s Trustees. The report provides information
on cash flows, broken down by both investment manager ( City or Trustee) and by percentage allocation within

the portfolio.

As of June 30, 2021, the investment portfolio was in compliance with all state laws and the City' s Investment

Policy.

Current Portfolio Summary

As directed by the Investment Policy adopted by City Council, City staff strives to attain three primary goals with

the City' s investments as follows( in order of priority):

1.   Safety— Preservation of the principal of invested funds

2.   Liquidity— Ability to liquidate one or more of the City' s investments if unexpected expenditures arise

3.   Return— Attainment of a market rate of return

The majority of the portfolio is invested in the Local Agency Investment Fund ( LAIF), which is administered by the
California State Treasurer' s office.  LAIF provides the City with an investment vehicle with yields that are slightly

greater than U. S. Treasuries ( T- bills) with a 2- year maturity or less.  LAIF is a high quality investment in terms of

safety, liquidity, and yield. Additionally, LAIF is an " On Demand" account; meaning funds may be withdrawn upon

with 1 day notice, representing maximum liquidity.

In addition to LAIF, the City holds investments in Money Market Mutual Funds, Nonnegotiable Certificates of
Deposit, and State and Local Government Securities ( SLGS). These investments are prudent investment choices

and are included in the City' s Investment Policy as allowable investments.

Each investment mentioned above has a specific maturity date.  However, much of the portfolio is On Demand.

The short weighted average maturity provides the City with a great deal of liquidity during this period of

heightened economic uncertainty and period of low investment yields. This liquidity places the City to invest in

longer term maturity investments once interest rates begin to move up toward their historical norms; overall

macroeconomic indicators signal solid and consistent growth in future years.

The following table ( Table: 1) provides a summary of the City' s cash and investments, by holding party, based on
recorded value as of June 30, 2021 compared with the prior quarter:

35



Tabfe: l
March 31, 2021 June 30, 2021    

Holding Party Fund Amounts( i)       
f        

Fund Amounts( i)
of     (

E Portfolio I Portfolio  

Investments/ Cash held b the Gt 161, 563, 692 81%      179, 865, 784         82%Y—- Y

Investments held byTrustees 38, 106, 873 19% 38, 455, 581 i 18%
k   ---     ---"-- 1-

TOTAL 199, 670, 565        100%       I   $ 218 321365 100%

1)  Small variances are due to the summation and rounding of multiple figures to the nearest whole dollar

Please see the following pages ( Tables: 2 through 5) for a more detailed analysis of transactional additions and

reductions due to cash flow needs, debt service payments, and maturities/ rollovers of certain investments.

Revenues arrived during the quarter, per City staff expectations, are as follows: utility payments, property tax,
franchise fees, sales tax( including Measure C), developer billing fees, grant reimbursements, building permit fees,
plan check fees, and Transient Occupancy Tax ( TOT).

Significant payables paid out during the quarter include:

I. Nonrecurring Expenditure Capital Improvement Projects — General Government, Parks, Streets,

Water, and Wastewater

II. Recurring Expenditures
a.   Contractual— Park& Street Landscaping, and Water Treatment Services
b.   Intergovernmental payments — San loaquin County ( Police Services), Lathrop Manteca Fire

District, City of Manteca ( Wastewater Contract)

Quarterly Economic Update

According to the latest projections from PFM Asset Management; In Q2, U. S. economic conditions were impacted

by: ( 1) dramatically lower COVID- 19 caseloads as vaccine inoculations accelerated, balanced with waning vaccine
demand and the emergence of more infectious variants; ( 2) strong consumer data supported by ongoing fiscal
stimulus measures; ( 3) elevated inflation fueled by surging economic activity amid labor and supply chain
shortages; ( 4) a late- quarter hawkish signal from the Federal Reserve ( Fed), as anticipation of bond purchase

tapering gained traction and the timeline for expected rate hikes was pulled forward; and ( 5) the largest increase

in corporate earnings estimates in nearly 20 years, which propelled major U. S. stock indices to all- time highs. The

U. S. labor market recovery is accelerating after a spring lull. Following a disappointing April jobs report, employers

added over 580, 000 and 850, 000 jobs in May and June, respectively. The service sector led the job recovery in the

first half of 2021 as leisure and hospitality accounted for 1. 6 million jobs created, or almost half of the year' s
payroll gains. The robust demand for workers pushed wages up by a brisk pace of 3. 6% year-over-year ( YoY).

Locally, the San Joaquin Valley area experienced a decrease in unemployment rates ( San Joaquin County: 8. 5%;

City of Lathrop: 7. 2%).

I certify that all of the investments reported herein are in accordance with the" City of lathrop Investment Policy" adopted on November 9, 2020, with the

Government Code, and other contractual agreements. I further certify the investments reported herein provide for the ability of the City to meet cash flow

needs for the next six months.

w/

Step en J. Salvatore Cari Jam

City Manager Director f Finance and Administrative Services

36



Z        
0          n       •   m v tn C C C n    Otn cn          ( U N         pp  7    N         N

m rfDo  :':           S N D    o    W  '  0 N v
o r+   y         

a,  m v,    
3 w T D  -

r+       
3

0  ,  ,   
v o  c,  ao

m  o rt    3 r°          °'   
ln A

fD rr
a  `*           '       D O n

fp n         p    O G

O O fSD     2 C  0
s     f1 7  ( D 7  ( p r O  

Q Q f'f    UU W 0  Q ND+  S         
fl-       

C  d0 fD

v ci d D        7           v  G  ,.. r

rp'  rp  p  , rt p         
n    

S Q-      0  c  Q Q

O-+,  p rt D  -  

n T
ro ru C rr c
rt    C N G 7      

d Q

i     
t  7

r+

rt rt
O Q O C

v+  v+   
tii Q- -- I

C D   d T
fD  ( D Q in C
Q Q

s N   G N Q
a' . s N cn

C  D
C fp

l

f D  

N
C

N    n

0 0 0   

c  ..,,  O
0 0

o
D

l0 N W I--      V
D T W

N Cl   N W O N W fp r r
00 A A 00 W lD  I  .   N 00 00  .  D m
W o0 0o tn oo        o ln o0 0o p    
l0 F-       lD N N O O ll7 01  N

A oo I  tn Oo lo I         O  W W    N fD 70
l0 01 N 00 O N  . A A O W O rt Q
00 00 I-    al     N 00 I A Ql

fD
3

r

O O O O O O O O O O

A N 00 N O O O O O W
ln W 00 Ol O O N 00 I-  ln

O O O O O O  1 O O V

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

O   •       O    O O O W 0o N  
O   .

W  '   W O V O  '       F--  W
F-   00

h F '(/? '(/? '(/ i/  i/ i./} '(,/}

F
N W F-      V
Ul N W O N W

A 00 W l0 V N 00 00
00 W U' I W A l0 Ul W 00
I       lD N N O O lJ  01  . A

00 I  lJ7 00 l0 I--  01 W W
01 N 00 O N A O W
00 I    Ol i N 00 V A Q1

37



fD o       Z

C C  `  W Cl      

m    O D  ^.  
O    

C  
W d_  O

G
N        

T
3    c D o N v

r o D 0° 

aTi oqF
d    .. t rr d rt 0

G N d
p        .      01    ( D

rr 7 T.           3

X h o -a D o  "
a, 

3     W          W      °  +„ 3oa  D         n p rr O

N -           Q W 7  

Q O   Q"           
D T  

7 C  ` G r'j.D  <  fD         C   

Q G7    d0 ff
D             ni t D   r3-r

G          Q D T

f D phj rN+  r- r      F C

rt    d QN      G     ,..  C
0 d Gi fp       

F
7       O F''

C Oq  

d Tc
Q O     +      

Q-  O c

frtD            N

3 n
N O

rp             7
N       

v
i./? /? ill t/ D i! A rt

O O G       
D 3

7 y  3 n

D n 7     -  
D              W I--      I

N W O N W Q  
n p q 7     <   00    l0 W       N 00 00 R WN Q fD W 00    00 00 U' I 00 00

X       Q-  U't l0 O W 00  •      U'7 Q1 A  `  T
X   '-*.     7 U' 1 Q1 lD U'1  I N N W

T  

N .          ln  I ln to N W l0 rn
N 0c    

W

v,      , O G Q
N D  

v    3 0 3

a

cn
Qo *    

a o
G

n

h W
vf

3           N.

o   o o rn w

N '+           u i o
cnii ci n          O  ln          W A       
C 7       D N A W N N

N fl- ,    -
p F-  01 V lD W lJ

y       

O ° r °°     `a       c

Qo   x     o O

v fD     

a u            wm        
7

w

n o-    00
fD Q Ul         V     i i i

Ul W Ol
7  • N U' 7 W
Q 

3 i/ i/1 {/} {/} t/T i/? Vf V1

r+  ( p

W 1-      V

F
N W O N W

r-r S 00 V lD W A    N 00 00  •
ln lD A 00 00 lJl 00 00

rD      N O O N l0 lJl Q1 A

7 lJl F  l0 00 1-        Q1 W W  
00  . A N O N O W

A 00 N Q1 F V  A Q1N

38



d
O N

T D
3 0     CO
0     fD

D O e3i

N

C

3 C

d M
3

T

fD
3 3
C.     eM

h

fD

3
Q

O00
r y N  D 
n          

3 h  
Z 

G N

D V
ni m

n 7 W 7O
h
T      

W C

Z rt
7

O
Cn     n

oo c 3
A C

fl-   fp
O f'1 H

F,       

D    
n

D
O    

ti N  G

o D
W

Q    r

z z z o    
m

D D D
N A 70

N   O

0 0 o N  ,   

0 o w
N

a o o\'      

rr

01

v v
rD     rD     rD

O O O

ru m m

3 3
m m o,

a Q

I   I--       V V

O O N N W W

N N 00 00 00 00    
V1 U' i 00 00 00 00
tn ln Qi m A A

o  a w w w w
A A O O W W
V V A A Q1 Ql

O O N N W W

N N 00 00 00 00
tA Ul 00 00 00 00
V1 U' I Ql Ol A A

Q1 Ol W W W W

A   O O w w
V   I A   . A 01 a1

39



3 3

N K N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N D D 1       N    N    O  ''

m o         o00000 00000 0000 oaoa o         g o o $  o a w 31.`   
H+ F+ F t-+ r+ 1-+  F+ --+ 1 I F+  1-- F+ f+ F+       y T

O O
I+  fDN  (       V1 Vt V1 V1 V1 l! 1 W W W W W W W W W  ( D fD =     7 7 W 3 7 O N N N 7

o N n  nnc n   NNN    NNr      « y  « o v c',    n
0 0 0 0 0 ' 0      v+  on    m m        -      ro o '

o 0 0 o
v ro m m

o  ,
3» .»   `° o, o, a o, d '

O n         
v+ v+   C C C in iD S G < N fD

o C o O o 0 o O      D D      ir c   ir i 
c    .,  C. .

fl
ui w oi oi ni oi a Q G Q oi

O. C a d n n
N     ,-. K   ..    v

fl d d Q fl G

N N rD ( D   7 7 7   O O T D  ' n         N N K

a   W m m rNo r'o  r"u v a c p
x

w oa w <   ,+ 

o o vfD,  p 70 m 3
D D   C

r.                   W     =       O   O_ '       N 7
m m m m m N n t i t i n   ' o ' o ' o oi  '       < rD m  a N N y O

a
1      N N N N V1 YI

61 6! N 0! Q O O O   ( D N N a   

3   '      
w w w w w W

v  < < <  D           o m
O a a, n i c i

m m m ro D      . D 3 m m   
oWi

o n n r r
x x x x            <      

n O    e   7
r,         O 3 O O O u o m ro O      " ^     ..     3

fD o d n ,`"» 
w w T D c

o 0 m   
o N N ° °      w w m 3 N     ,+ a  , c

3 N ry     3 3 7         C n Z Z    DO OI O.    O. Q n.   O O N
f1

fp 3 ei 7 c+ ry o Q
7C 7 N n

b O O    
C

S D fD O F+ F+ „„   
r TG 00

D N fND N 
1 fD N

n           fD fD 
Q           n n ij
C           N N 

r3r          p 
U' i U' i

N 
O 

u, a

0 3
o a

o'

TT C 7a 3
a

fDhM
m

m m m rn rn   m m rn m rn m m m rn m m rn m m m rn
i . i . i . i . i    . i . i . i      v v      . i       . i           v        D  f1

r  Nr.    r N N               N           i--+ N
tn  N N N N N N N N N N N N N F+ F+     F+ F+ 1--     F+ 1     N N O

rrNr o000 000     ca            mm      N

lD W W W W W V V V V V V V O O N I-- N Vl Vl W W
00 00 00 00 00 0o Ol Ol Ol 01 Ol Ol Ol Oo 0o O N O I-- f+     00 00 fD
00 00 00 00 00 00 W Oo 00 00 lD lD lD 0o Oo O N O I-- I--     Ol Ol O

W0 0 0 0 0 o O O O O O O O O O O O O o 0 0 0 3 O.
F ln A W F+ O Ql A W I--     W I-- O F O N O I--     F+ w N 1--       fD a r

yJ ,   m
u

M N   

ON 
r   

m
v

3

N p

M
7

fl.      0 0              0            0

O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O W O O O O O O

y' j
O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O ln N F-     N N F- 

O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O V O O O O O O

o o 0 0 0 0 0    \ \     \ \ \     o 0 0 0 0 0      o\' o\°

C

i O.

O O O O O O I--` 1- I--` I--`     I--` 1-' 1--     t- t+     O r+ r+      
G  D lD lD lD lD lD O O O O O O O N N W N N          O O

W N O O O O O O O O O O O O O N N f-` f-' '     
N N     ' ''

W       F+ F- F+ 1-- F-+ F-`  F- 1-- F-` F-     F- 1-- 1--`     N N lD N N          00 00

GD   M N N -+ N N N N N N N f+ N N N N O O O      0 O O
tn ln (. n ln ln ln w w w w w w w O O w w w U't ln

n0
C O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O

7 7 J 7 7 7 7 7 3 7 7 7 3 3 3 7 7 7 7 7 7 

N
O O   0            O            0  0            

N N 3 fD fD fD N fD rD N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N ( D

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3  3 3 3 3 3
W  `' W

ci ui ci ni ai a ni d ni ni n d a a a d a ni d ai ni c

d   " d 7  3 7 7   7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
3 3 n n n n n Q n n n n n n a Q n n Q n n a n n
c

V  V iA V N i/ t/ V t/ tn t/ ln ln N tn in ln ln in tn tn tn tn tn tn

W

A A V V N lD ln W Ol N
00 Oo l0 A T A lD O lD A
lC lD O F-    1--     N O1 V O 0o O

1-+   1--` F+     W W Ol Ol 1--` I--'       Ol lD 00 I--

N N A     D O ln lD V O ln F- V W Ol I--    lD ln
F+  f-+ 00 i Ol i A T ln ln T i I--     Ol 00 i OC I A i 1       i lD F+

iA tA A lA{/ Vf Vf ln A tA ln Vf{ A tA N lA Vl Vl t/* R tA iA tA tA{ A

W

A A V V N l0 tn W Ol N
00 00 O A 01 A lD O l0 A
tD tD O F+    F+     N Ol V O Oo O

F+   F-+ F+     W W Ql Ql F- F+       Ql lD 00 F-

N N A     O O ln lD V O ln F- V W Ol I--    lD ln
F+   1- 00     01 i A Ol ln ln Ol   F+     01 00      0o V A i 1-             lD I--'

40



3

o

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3   3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3   3 3 3   3   0 3 m  m  3  0 3
o  ' o ' o v v v ' o ' C ' o ' o v v ' o ' o v V  v v ' C ' o v ' o v ' o ' o a  ' o -+  ' 6 ^ r'' Q 7 rD N O
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o a o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ` o °

p fD ^'  
n    ^-. O1  

r o r o ro  m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m 3 m n     v' ,..,     •
m m m m m m m m m m m m m r o m m m m m m r o m m m m r o m m II m   3 3 2

t°  Q°      x
q  D

D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D D  D   T " 
O

n

j   ' •
m m ro io m m m ro m m m ro m ro ro ro ro m m m fo ro m m o  m ro  fo O      3 n o  ,
N N N N N Gl nl w N N N N N N w N 01 N N Ol N N N N N N N  N

S 3         S
v+ (n ln ln A A A A A A W w w W W w N N N N N N N ' ' ' ' ' 

D ~ O      x C

D  z v v  D  z v n o D  z v n o D  z v n z D > > o v
a a 3

Q  ro  c  Q ro  c ro a ro  c ( o a    o  c      
m D

O_  o - 3 N Q  fo fl-         ! o Q 3 vi  T W
3    - o m 3      - o io 3      v io 3      - o m          

3 - o' N <  
f° 

3 - a' N <  
D 3 v' N <  

D  -
o' N <  

D 3 - o' y  

O N W

m ^ - p o    ! o
m .: - p w m

m .+ - p w ro
m .. - p ni ro

m '* - O d n m 7

D a- a `° o  ^ a a  o  ^ a a  o  ^ - o_  o  ^ '  0
rp  D c fp  D c ip  n c       ! p  n c rp  D c X rp O
D o ..       D " " .»       D " " .»       D " " .»       D " "  -° z f'Df
n

C C n C C G      
OO      O     O      O      O        p N
C

c c c c c

3
rAo r n r

T
Q O

TC
d

C

N

M3
3

D fD
w rt P)

f+ F-+ -+ N r -+ N r-     r N    N N N  r N N N N  N N N  r           n

A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A
lD lD l0 l0 lD lD lD l0 lD lO lO l0 l0 lD lD l0 l0 lO lD lD lD l0 l0 lD lD lD l0 l0 l0 lD F-+ F-` F-' F- F-' F- F-

N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

O DOl Ol Ql Ql Ql Ol Ol Ol Ol 01 Ol 01 Ol Ol 01 01 01 01 Ol Ol Ol 01 W W W W W W W W N N N N N N N C
lD l0 lD lD 00 00 00 00 00 00 V V V V V V ln ln ln ln ln ln N N N N N N N N Ol Ol 01 Ol Ol Ol 01 a T7 W
A W N 1-- Ql Vl A W N I-- V 01 lf1 W N I-- 01 lfl A W N I-- 00 V Ol tf1 A W N I--`     V 01 lf1 A W N 1--'       I   r

W , c D rn
o  _ 

N   

OO rt
N   F+ 

v
ro

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N l0 l0 l0 00 00 l0 l0

O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O I-- 1-+ I-- N N N h\+
F- 1-- 1-- F- F-` F- F-` F- I- F- 1- 1- F- 1- F- F+ F- F- F- F- F+ F+ F- F- F+ F+ 1-- F- F- F+     N N N O1 01 N N

N N N N N N N N N h+ -+ N f-+ H-+ f+ f+ f+ N f-+ f+ f+ f+ H-+ F-+ f+ f+ F+ H-+ f+ f+     O O O f+ F+ O O
lD lD t0 l0 lD tD lD tD tD D D D tD lD lD O D D lD l0 l lO t0 tD l0 lD D tD l0 O ol ol Ol O O Ol Ol

0                 0 0 0  0             
7 7 7 7 7 3 3 3 3 7 7 3 3 3 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 3 7 7 7 7 7 7 3 3 3

O 0      0 0    O  O O O  O  0    O  0   0      0   O O 
N fD fD N N N N fD fD fD fD fD fD N fD ( D N N N N N N N N N ( D N N N N N N N N N N fD

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3  3
a ni m v v ni v a d d o, a a ui ei ci w d oi ui m n d m ni ni ni v ai ni ni ni v d d d d

7 7 7 7  7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 3 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
a n n a n n n a a n a a a a o_ n fl. n a n n n n n a n n n n n n n n n n n Q

tn in tn tn tn tn v tn tn tn tn tn tn tn in in tn tn in tn tn tn tn tn in tn tn tn in tn tn tn tn tn tn tn tn

N 1-+

W A N N N F+    lD N V N F- Ol A
O N Ol lD ln N Oo N    -- lD V ln l0 O O O

N Ul O V O Ol W ln W N U' I N O O V F-
O    D I O Oo O A O O W N O A ln W O W Oo

V N   O   tn t0 i i O i W O A i  + i Ol A N i I-- i  I V Ol   F- ln W             i    i

A V1/ T i/? iA iA V! lA lA' l/? VT t/ 1 VT lA t/ T t/f l/ 1' N i/ t/ V1 t/ 1 V V1 V1 V1 i/ 1 V1 V1 iA VT i/?i/ lA lA VT VT

N F-    1-+
W A N N N I-    l0 N V N 1-+ Ol A
O N Ol lD ln N 0o N f+ l0 V Vt lD O O O

N ln O V O O1 W ln W N U' i N O O V 1-
I--' I--'    O l0 V O 0o O A O O W N O A ln W O W Oo
V N   O   ln lD     O i W O A   I--   O1 A N i 1--   V V Ol i I ln W i    i i i i  

41



3 36
fD fD
N N

c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c   T         o 0 3 o   31 ( n (/ t l/ 1 N (/ 1 (/ 1 l/ 1 (/ 1 (/ (/ 1 (/ 1 (/ 1 (/ 1 (/ 1 Vl (/ 1 V1 Vf Vf Vf V1 V1 Vf V)

i     - i   3 m        =  m
o v

ro io m m m m ru ro io m m ru ro io m ro ro ru rc ro ro io ro ro ro  D n  . r a °  . i
n  

o 0
Cl 91 O1 OJ O1 G/ O1 Ol Cl N O1 O! N N O1 61 61 4! G! G! 9! N 61 C! 01   n N

T n   
N N V1 N N VI {/ i N VI N   »   T  

N

c c c    c c c c  c c c c c c c c c c c c c       S 3 r"'o  = 
x   

ro r o

3  '       Q F  
z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z m   =  Q-        :  a

a a •
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o a         n     a  o ro

t ii t ii 1 n 1 n 1 n tn I n 1 i1 1 n t if (

D N fD fD ! D / D
V i t n 1 n 1 n 1 n 1 n tn 1 n '             ^         

S Ol Ol
N N N V N

Q   T       ( p N d O   

Z              3 3        a  + z
o

o n        n   

r"u D 3,  0 p  - o o
a a

D
N C r T

3
d

ao a

d       '     o      m

a

o
D

0

C
y       3rr

I

iD
OJN

QrtO
o"i

7C
N

7

C N 3  1
N Z vi  

O A A A A

N N N N

I I-- I--     lD lD L O
W

l0 N 1--+     Ol V1 D     [ r

N y, . D m

O  _ 

O N C  

T c  N ,,, O
o  

o    o    ic  ic oa o o     io  o       3 ro
I--, F- I-- F- I-- F- 

F- I--' 
F- 1-' I-- 1 F- F- I-- F- F- 1-' F-' F-' 1' 1-- ~     T G 1

nl N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
C p

vp0 00 00 00 00 00 OG   00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00      7 V1 O
nl N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

d K

00  Cl cl ao c n n n n n C w oo ao 00 00 00 00 0o ao 0o w 0°     
v,  m

Cl C X W 07   W W D N f N  N { N N < N N        y
G1 L1  <    m D v v rr O w r. i c n n D v v N

pl A A O N  N ,, O 00 Ol Oo D ln Oo tO O Oo Oo N A A p
n'  7 3

O G

2

F- I-+ O O
N

O O O O O O O O ,,,   
N F,, , F, F, F, F, F,      Q O

ln ln N N W N 1-- 1-- F- F- F-+ I--    N
O O ln ln  V ln N N N N N N   V ln W Ol Ol lJl 00 00 V 3

O O O O  ln O ln ln ln ln ln t,n
O O ln O 0o W W O 00 00 ln L    N

0 0 0 0  o 0 0 0 0 \ \ \ o 0 0 0 0     o \ o

C

00000000   00000  000000 rp̂ F,  
o0 00

I-- O Ql 41 l! 1 A W N N F+ N O V1 W W N I- O 00 00 00 V V A a N N N ND fD O
w w r- r- O r- r r r r r r r- w -+ O N r- w w r- w w w D O O O O
O N tn tn r tn tn tn tn v+ tn tn tn r+ tn f-+ tn tn r r tn r r o D r r r i-+

1-- 1-- N N F- N N N N N N N N F+ N F+ N F- F+ I-- I-- F- F+ F+       3 Vl0 l0 -- 1 V F I F+ F+ F+ O O O 01 O O1 O tD V V l0 V V ln lD lD l0 l0

fD

4 iQ
N  00000000N  00000 -+ 000000 c

O
C

00 00

3   

w w F- F+ w F-+ F+ 1--+ 1--+ I-- I-- I-- F+ W 1--+ W I-- F+ w w F-` w w w ry
O 1--` ln ln O ln ln ln ln tn ln ln ln f+ ln F- ln ln -- F-+ ln -- 1-- O

O 3 3 3 3
N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N C N W N 61 N G1

A A A A A A A A A A W W W W W W W N N N N N N N 3 7 d 7 7 7 7
a d Q Q Q

iA tA tA tA iA tA tA t/ t/ t1y Vt tA tn ln tn ln in t/ f Vf tn tA tA tA tA tR tR iA tA i/    i/ lA Vf tA

FM F+      F-

00 W A lD A 00 W 1. 11 I-- I-- l0 N N V al W Ul O V 00 N 00 V Ol ll1 W W lD
00 W F- lD lD W N N A l0 l0 A l0 N 00 ln W N Ol lD V Ol W W 00 00 00 A N
A lJ1 N W Ol lll A N N 00 A 00 00 W V 1-- V O I-+ O lD W 00 Q1 V     I N N O O

W W V lD l0 lJt lJt lD Ql V O Ql V ln I-- V lD W 00 W 00 I-- 00 l0 l0 O 00 OD l0 A
N ln ln O ln O lD A W F- 01 V W N N ln Ol 1+ W t-+ h+ A N -+ I 0o O O N I
V l0 O Ol W O A lD W lD W N A V ln O N W Ql W W OD O A ln V 01 Ol N       i        O

i/ i/{/ f i/ f V/ t/ f t/ f i/ 1 t/ VT in i// i// i/ f Vf VT/ T( A VT V/ lA i/ 1 i// V/ y/ f i/ 1 t/ 1 N t/ f i/ T/ T

1+l! 1 I--`       F      I--

00 W A lD A 00 W V1 1--` F-` lD N N V 01 W V1 O V 00 N 00 I O1 U' I W W lO
00 W F+ l0 lD W N N A l0 l0 A l0 N 00 V1 W N Ol lD V 01 W W 00 00 00 A N

A V1 N W Ol Vl A N N 00 A 00 00 W I I--` V O I-- O O W 00 Ql V V N N O O

W W V l0 l0 in ln iD Ol V O 01 V ln F+ V l0 W 0o W 0o i-- 00 lD lD O 00 0o t0 A
N ln ln O ln O lD A W F- O V W N N 1Ji Ol -+ W -+ 1 A N I-- V 00 O O N V
V to O m W O A  W  W ni A  tn O N w rn w w oo O A tn V G  O  N               O

42



s

T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T     — — — — VI
n »     N O1 0 6 G 91 0 O1 O1 9J N N N N N N fD fD T G G fD 0 fD fD ! D fD fD r    C

3 n        > >      > > > >    n n n   n  a a Q a a    = o = _ o
u       m m w   ru  m ru ro ro rn

w  w w d
ro »     ru ro m' m m o ro ro o ro io io io ro ru ro n o, z m m a ro a a u, m w'     c D  .

3       n i a i n i m n i d n i n i n i n i n i ni e i o i o i a i = c' i io u i n i = a i = oTi o' i m D m m m r o 01
o f N n n n fD n tD n fD fD tD n rD n f     + to c  ff   f D O ' O O D

z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z z  3
z z  z  3 3 3          

N o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  c    o o  o  f n f,^       D  
01

r       •* m r m m m r `° N `° r r r o `° o o ° iu r m
o m o ro  ro W o     D

n

N N         ,    Q- n n o,      o m a o wo

n 0o p 07 w 07 07 W fl-    m fD 0  7

n 
y

O1 6 
C G1 0l   t

pp 7r N 7c 7r 
c 7c 7c O    " O 7C 2" O W

0
N 1/    { A

V1 Vf Vf / T     ( ( 7  (/ 1 O
Z z D Z 2 Z Z        m z p.o o o 0 0 0       - c v z

Za °'    m o

m

c z

m
0

cv
d

T Z
N m

CA O

d
m

m

n

L

C

Q a

r O
o+ 3

fDHr
3

D fD
h n

O 

7 C' T Wr
y, , G  m

O  _ 

3 N

fD r N 

3 W W W W W W W W W W W W W W U, W W
W W W

W W W W W
W

W A A A N  
F+ F-' N F+ 

F- F- 1-- F+ 
F- i F- I--` F- 

Ha
1- F-' F- 

N
F- F- F- 

F+ F+ 1-+ F F- ' F+       V1  
A 

W W W w W W W W W W W W w W W W W
W W W

W W W W W
W

W lD   lD
1

K m Gl m m m m m m i Gl Gl Gl m Gl m m  m m L'1 m u   m 
C

m        x  

T T m m m m m m m O O O
m A m m    < m    { C          ` 0 7D = N <     <  cǹi c"'i n p o p m

x x u, - a, m c o
p

z         < C
D N F+ 0o F+ ln ln ln ln V O A A A w Ol 0o W

lD A W
N lD 01 V lD

N
A Ol V  1--

C

O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O N O O I-- O N O O O O O O O O N

N N N 1-+ N N N N N W N N N N W W W !- 1-+ W F+ F+ N N N W U' i N ln 1- 1--+
ln ln ln N ln ln ln ln ln O lJ1 lf1 V1 lJ1 V V V N N V N N lJ1 ln V V W lJl O N N
O O O ln O O O O O O O O O O ln ln ln ln ln ln ln ln O O O ln O O O ln ln

p o\' o\' o\° o\° o\° o\'     o o\' o\' o\' o\° o\° o\° o\° o\°    o   o 0 0 0\' o\' o\'
fD

r- r r r o O o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o i-+ o 0 0 0 0 0 0 o N o 0 0T
N F- I-- O D lD lD lD 00 0o V V Ol ln ln A N N 1-+ t0 V Ol Ol Ol ln A W 1 A A ln

O N O -- O O O O N 1-- I--+ r N N O N N O N O N O F+ r-+ O O F+       --+ N N N

D A ln ln Ol A A A A M- O O O Ol N V O F W W O1 W F+ N N O1 00 Oo V A O lD

y    N
N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N 1-- N I-- N N N N N N N N 1--'

p O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O N O tD O N O O O O O O O f+ l0
t

W3 N -- -- N O O O O O O O O O O O O O O  O O O O O O O O 1- O O O

y N F-+ F+ O lD l l0 lD 00 0o V V Ol ln ln A N N F- lD V Ol Ol Ol ln A F-`       F-` ln A V

f3D A V Ol Ol W 00  W A O O O ONi N  O V W W O i lNn O W W O l 0o W A A O 
7 N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
fD W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W N N N N N N N N N W W W N
3

iA lR iA t/ i/* t/ Vl tA N V1 V1 tA iA Vf h l/' Vf Vl t/ f V1 V1 V1 i/ tA A VT iA lA VT A iA tA t/'{/ Lf

W F+

N lJ1 f+

00 A ln A V A ln A A W 01 W lD W 00 Ol ln Ol ln N Ol 01 W Ol 00 01 O1 V1 Ol A W W A W
l!   Ol l0 W W A V ln lD F- lD A l0 N l0 00 ln V O ln 01 W N lD W O N lfl O U1 O I-- N ln O
N V W w A 00 W l0 l0 A l0 lD lD A lD O O I-+ F+ ln l0 A W l0 Ol-- ln O I-- --     O A 01 w tn

t! 1 J N l0 W lD N O1 Ql V V V lD 00 lD 1- N U' I Ol W Ql V1 lD lD 00 O V V O Ol N O A OG W
00 W W l0 tD 00 W Ol lD A ln ln N U' i W Ol W !- Ol lD V lD ln lD F- O V lD V W O l0 O lO O
A F+     lA Ol 00 00 ln F- O] l0 00 W A U' I V ln lD A 01 01 V V F- U' I W F+ O 1-+ N V A ln 00 W OD

tA V? i/) i/ 1 i/1 l/ 1 i// l/ f/ f{/? y/ T/ T iA y/ T i/ T yn{/ f i! 1 y/ f i/?/ T i/? y/? y/} j/ T y/(/ y/ f/ 1 y/{/ T y/ f y/ f t/ f

W F+
N V1 f+

Oo A tn A V A tn A A W m W D w ao Oi tn O tn r. i rn m W m Oo m m tn rn A w W A W
l!   Ol l0 W W A V ln lD F-+ l0 A lD N l0 00 Ul V O ln Ol W N lD W O N lfl O U1 O I-- N Vl O
N V W W A 0o W tD t0 A D 1D lD A l0 O O I-- I-- ln lD A W lD Q1 -- ln O i-- i--    O A 01 W ln

A V N l0 W lD N Ol Q1 V V V lD 00 lD F+ N ln Ol W Q1 ln lD lD 00 O V V O 01 N O A 00 00
00 W W lD lD 00 W Q1 lD A ln ln N ln W 01 W F+ O1 lD V lD ln lD F- O V lD V W O lD O l0 O
A        tn rn Oo Oo ln I ao lD ao W A tn V tn 1D A rn rn V V f+ tn W r- O  n V A tn Oo w Oo

43



44



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT
ITEM 4. 5

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       ANNUAL REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF THE CITY' S

INVESTMENT POLICY

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Approving the Annual
Investment Policy for Fiscal Year 2021/ 22

SUMMARY:

PFM Asset Management,  LLC  ( PFM), the City' s investment portfolio manager,  has

conducted its annual review of the City' s Investment Policy to ensure compliance
with investment regulatory agencies and the California Government Code.   PFM has

found that the City' s Investment Policy for Fiscal Year 2021/ 22 is comprehensive, is
consistent with the City' s objectives and risk tolerances, and is in compliance with
the California Government Code and has no recommended changes to the policy at
this time. The proposed FY 2021/ 22 Investment Policy is attached ( Attachment B).

StafF recommends the approval of the Investment Policy as presented by PFM to be
in compliance with current investment regulations adopted by the California

Government Code.

BACKGROUND:

PFM manages over  $ 118 billion for public entities nationwide and has a strong
history of providing professionals dedicated to actively managing and supporting
the administration of fixed- income operating funds, capital funds and reserves, and
bond proceeds.

PFM has actively managed the City' s investment portfolio since the initial Council
approved contract in 2015.    PFM is nationally recognized as one of the leading
investment advisory organizations, specializing in providing services to the public
sector.  Some of the services PFM provides are:

Review of the City' s Investment Policy

Cash flow analysis to determine current and future liquidity needs

Develop and implement investment strategy

The investment policy serves as the foundation of the City' s investment goals and
priorities.   An annual review assures that it continues to meet the City' s goals and
priorities for its portfolio. It contributes to the protection of the assets of the City.
The approved investment policy demonstrates that the City Council is fiducially
responsible, thereby; promoting trust and confidence from the public that it serves.

PFM has performed its annual review of the City' s Investment Policy along with
current state laws governing investment activities of local governments.   PFM has

found that the City' s Investment Policy for Fiscal Year 2021/ 22 is comprehensive, is
consistent with the City' s objectives and risk tolerances, and is in compliance with

45



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ANNUAL REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF THE INVESTMENT POLICY FOR FY

2021/ 22

the California Government Code and has no recommended changes to the policy at

this time. The proposed FY 2021/ 22 Investment Policy is attached ( Attachment B).

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The City' s investment policy provides the Finance Department with direction as to
the investment objectives of the governing body ( in order of priority):

1.  Safety - Preservation of the principal of invested funds
2.  Liquidity  -  Ability to liquidate one or more of the City' s investments if

unexpected expenditures arise

3.  Return - Attainment of a market rate of return

It also establishes standards approved by Council;  concerning the prudent care of
City invested funds,  the ethics of the investment officer,  and internal controls/

reporting procedures.

In addition, the Government Finance OfFicers Association' s ( GFOA)  Committee on

Cash Management advocates the adoption of a municipal resolution that consists

of; a legal list of allowable securities, a prudent investor clause and the mandatory
enactment of written investment policies.  An adopted investment policy, prudently
followed by the investment officer,  is favorably viewed by municipal credit rating
agencies.  The submitted resolution meets GFOA standards.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Review of the City' s Investment Policy is a service provided within the scope of
PFM' s annual contract.

ATTACH M E NTS:

A.  Resolution Approving the Annual Investment Policy for Fiscal Year 2021/ 22

B.  Investment Policy for Fiscal Year 2021/ 22

C.  Memorandum Confirming Review of the Investment Policy from PFM Asset
Management, LLC.

46



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ANNUAL REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF THE INVESTMENT POLICY FOR FY

2021/ 22

APPROVALS:

3d Zo21
Thomas Hedegard Date

Deputy Finance Director

Cari Ja es Date

Direct r of Finance and Administrative

Service

3 z/

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

D•$ • Zl
Ste en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

47



RESOLUTION NO. 21-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE ANNUAL INVESTMENT POLICY FOR FISCAL YEAR

2021/ 22

WHEREAS,   Government Code      53646( a)   ( 1)   of the State of

California was amended to offer the suggestion, rather than the requirement,

that local agencies file an annual investment policy; and

WHEREAS, the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission
highly recommends local agencies'   legislative bodies adopt an annual

investment policy to increase the policy' s authority and legitimacy; and

WHEREAS,  Staff recommends and the City Council desires to adopt
the Fiscal Year 2021/ 22 Investment Policy; and

WHEREAS, the City' s Investment Policy provides the Finance
Department with direction as to the investment objectives of the governing
body ( in order of priority):

1.  Safety - Preservation of the principal of invested funds
2.  Liquidity - Ability to liquidate one or more of the City' s investments if

unexpected expenditures arise

3.  Return - Attainment of a market rate of return; and

WHEREAS,  the Investment Policy for the City of Lathrop for Fiscal
Year 2021/ 22 is attached to the City Manager' s Report as Attachment B";

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the
City of Lathrop, does hereby authorize the Investment Policy for the City of
Lathrop for Fiscal Year 2021/ 22.

Resolution No. 21-    Page 1 of 2

48



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11t'' day of
October, 2021, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 21-   Page 2 of 2

49



City of Lathrop

Investment Policy

ATTACHMENT " B"

50



City of Lathrop

Investment Policy

Table of Contents

i. o Pot y 1

2.0 Scope 1

3. 0 Prudence 1

4.0 Objectives 2

5. 0 Delegation of Authority 2

6. 0 Ethics and Conflict of Interest 2

7. 0 Authorized Broker/ Dealers 3

8. 0 Authorized and Suitable Investments 3

9. 0 Competitive Transactions 6

10. 0 Selection of Depositories 6

11. 0 Safekeeping and Custody 7

12. 0 Diversification 7

13. 0 Maximum Maturities 7

14. 0 Performance Standards 7

15. 0 Reporting 8

16. 0 Investment Policy Adoption 8

Glossaries 9

51



1. 0 POLICY

The City Council of the City of Lathrop, California( the City) has adopted this Investment Policy
in order to establish the investment scope, objectives, delegation of authority, standards of
prudence,  reporting requirements,  internal controls,  eligible investments and transactions,

diversification requirements, risk tolerance, and safekeeping and custodial procedures for the
investment of the funds of the City.  All City funds will be invested in accordance with this
Investment Policy and with applicable sections of the California Government Code.

This Investment Policy was endorsed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Lathrop on
October 11, 2021. It replaces any previous investment policy or investment procedures of the City.

2. 0 SCOPE

This Investment Policy shall apply to all investment activities and financial assets of the City, as
accounted for in the City' s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and which include the
following:

General Fund

Special Revenue Funds

Debt Service Funds

Capital Project Funds

Enterprise Funds

Trust and Agency Funds

The provisions of this Investment Policy do not apply to those cash assets governed by bond
indentures, bond resolutions, employee' s retirement and deferred compensation funds, as those are

administered separately.

3. 0 PRUDENCE

The standard of prudence to be used for managing the City' s investments shall be California
Government Code Section 53600. 3, the prudent investor standard, which states that " when

investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing public funds, a
trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing,
including, but not limited to, the general economic conditions and the anticipated needs of the
agency, that a prudent person acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use
in the conduct of funds of a like character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and
maintain the liquidity needs of the agency."

The City' s overall investment program shall be designed and managed with a degree of
professionalism that is worthy of the public trust. The City recognizes that no investment is totally
without risk and that the investment activities of the City are a matter of public record.
Accordingly, the City recognizes that occasional measured losses may occur in a diversified
portfolio and shall be considered within the context of the overall portfolio' s return, provided that
adequate diversification has been implemented and that the sale of a security is in the best long-
term interest of the City.

Individuals having investment responsibilities who act in accordance with written procedures and
this Investment Policy and who exercise due diligence in performing their duties shall be relieved
of personal responsibility for an individual security' s credit risk or market price changes, provided

1 -

52



that deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and appropriate action is taken to
control adverse developments.

4. 0 OBJECTIVES

The City' s funds shall be invested in accordance with all applicable City municipal codes and
applicable resolutions, California statutes, and Federal regulations, and in a manner designed to

accomplish the following objectives, which are listed in priority order:

1.   Preservation of capital and protection of investment principal.
2.   Maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet anticipated cash flows.
3.   Attainment of a market value rate of return.

4.   Diversification to avoid incurring unreasonable market risks.

5.0 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

Authority to manage the City' s investment program is derived from the City of Lathrop Municipal
Code, Title 2, Chapter 2. 08, Section 2.08. O10. F.2. and from California Government Code Section

53607. In exercise of that authority, the City Council has delegated responsibility for the investment
program to the Treasurer.  The City Manager, who serves as Treasurer, shall be responsible for all
transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate

officials. The City Manager may delegate investment decision making and execution authority to the
City' s Director of Finance and to other specifically authorized officers and employees. The Director
of Finance shall maintain a list of persons authorized to transact securities business for the City.
No person may engage in an investment transaction except as expressly provided under the terms
of this Investment Policy.

The Director of Finance shall develop written administrative procedures and internal controls,
consistent with this Investment Policy, for the operation of the City' s investment program.  Such
procedures shall be designed to prevent losses of public funds arising from fraud, employee error,
misrepresentation by third parties, or imprudent actions by employees of the City.

The Director of Finance shall establish a process for annual independent review of the City' s
investment program by an external auditor. This review will provide internal control by assuring
compliance with policies and procedures.

The City may engage the support services of outside investment advisors in regard to its investment

program, so long as it can be clearly demonstrated that these services produce a net financial
advantage or necessary financial protection of the City' s financial resources.

6.0 ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity
that could conflict with the proper execution and management of the City' s investment program, or
that could impair their ability to make impartial decisions.  Investment officials shall disclose any
material interest in financial institutions that conduct business with the City. They shall further disclose
any personal financiaUinvestment positions that could be related to the performance of the City' s
investment portfolio.  Employees and of cers handling investment transactions shall refrain from
undertaking personal investment transactions with the same individual with whom business is

conducted on behalf of the City.

2-

53



7. 0 AUTHORIZED BROKER/ DEALERS

The Director of Finance shall maintain a list of authorized broker/ dealers approved for investment

purposes, and it shall be the policy of the City to purchase securities only from those brokers and
the firms they represent. Each approved broker/dealer must possess an authorizing certificate from
the California Commissioner of Corporations as required by Section 25210 of the California
Corporations Code.

The firms they represent must:

1.   be recognized as a Primary Dealer by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York or have a primary
dealer within their holding company structure, or

2.   report voluntarily to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or
3.   qualify under Securities and Exchange Commission ( SEC) Rule 15c3- 1 ( Uniform Net Capital

Rule).

Broker/ dealers will be selected by the Director of Finance on the basis of their expertise in public
cash management and their ability to provide services for the City' s account.

Annually, each authorized broker/ dealer shall submit a City approved Broker/ Dealer Information
Request form and the firm' s most recent financial statements.  The Director of Finance shall

maintain a list of approved broker/ dealers, along with each firm' s most recent Broker/ Dealer
Information Request form.

The City may purchase commercial paper from direct issuers even though they are not on the
approved broker/ dealer list as long as they meet the criteria outlined in Item 8. 6 of the Authorized
and Suitable Investments section of this Investment Policy.

Broker/dealers or municipal securities dealers, that have made political contributions to any
member of the City Council or to any candidate for that office, in amounts exceeding the limits set
forth in Rule G-37 of the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, are prohibited from serving as
a City approved broker/dealer for a period of two years following such contributions.

If the City engages the support services of an outside investment advisor, the adviser is authorized
to transact with its broker/dealer relationships on behalf of the City.

8. 0 AUTHORIZED AND SUITABLE INVESTMENTS

All investments and deposits of the City shall be made in accordance with California Government
Code Sections 16429. 1, 53600- 53609 and 53630- 53686, except that reserve funds from the proceeds

of debt issues may be invested in permitted investments specified in the indenture of the debt issue.

The City has further restricted authorized investments to the following:

8. 1 Government Obligallons

As authorized in Government Code Sections 53601( a) through ( e), this category includes a wide
variety of government securities.  There are no portfolio limitations on the amount; however, the
maturity term of these investment vehicles may not exceed five years from the date of trade settlement
unless approved by the City Council. These securities include the following:

3 -

54



8. l.a.   United States Treasury bills, notes, bonds, or certificates of indebtedness, or those for which
the faith and credit of the United States are pledged for the payment of principal and interest with a
final maturity not exceeding five years from the date of trade settlement.

8. 1. b.   Federal Agency mortgage backed securities and debentures with a final maturity not
exceeding five years from the date of trade settlement.

8. l. c.   Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise obligations, participations,
or other instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by federal
agencies or United States government- sponsored enterprises with a final maturity not exceeding five
years from the date of trade settlement.

8.2 State and Local Agency Obligations

8. 2.a.   Obligations of the State of California and any local agency within California, including bonds
payable solely out of the revenues from a revenue-producing property owned, controlled, or operated
by the local agency, ar by a department, board, agency, ar authority of the local agency or of the state
with a final maturity not exceeding five years from the date of trade settlement, and rated in a rating
category of " A" or the equivalent or better by a Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating
Organization( NRSRO) at the time of purchase. The aggregate investment in state and local agency
obligations shall not exceed 30°Io of the City' s total portfolio.

8. 2. b.   Registered treasury notes or bonds of any of the other 49 states in addition to California,
including bonds payable solely out of the revenues from a revenue- producing property owned,
controlled, or operated by a state or by a department, board, agency, or authority of any of the other 49
states, in addition to California with a final maturity not exceeding five years from the date of trade
settlement, and rated in a rating category of " A" or the equivalent or better by a Nationally
Recognized Statistical Rating Organization ( NRSRO) at the time of purchase.  The aggregate

investment in state and local agency obligations shall not exceed 30°Io of the City' s total portfolio.

8.3 Medium- Term Notes

Medium-Term Notes issued by corporations organized and operating within the United States or by
depository institutions licensed by the United States or any state and operating within the United States,
with a final maturity not exceeding five years from the date of trade settlement, and rated in a rating
category of" A" or the equivalent or better by a NRSRO at the time of purchase. No more than 10%
of the City' s total portfolio shall be invested in medium- term notes and the commercial paper of
any one issuer, and the aggregate investment in medium-term notes shall not exceed 30% of the City' s
total portfolio. In addition, AAA rated FDIC- guaranteed corporate bonds are herein authorized,
within the aforementioned diversification and maturity requirements.

8. 4 Negotiable Certificates of Deposit

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit with a maturity not exceeding five years from the date of trade
settlement, issued by a nationally or state- chartered bank, a savings association or a federal
association ( as defined by Section 5102 of the Financial Code), a state or federal credit union, or

by a federally licensed or state- licensed branch of a foreign bank.  Certificates of Deposits may be
purchased only from financial institutions that meet the criteria set forth in the section of this
Investment Policy, " Selection of Depositories."  Investment in negotiable Certificates of Deposit

shall not exceed 30°Io of the City' s total portfolio.

4-

55



8. 5 Non- negotiable Certificates of Deposit

Non- negotiable Certificates of Deposit with a maturity not exceeding five years from the date of
trade settlement, in FDIC insured state or nationally chartered banks or savings banks, subject to
the limitations of California Government Code Section 53638.   Amounts in excess of FDIC

insurance coverage shall be secured in accordance with California Government Code Section

53652.  Certificates of Deposits may be purchased only from financial institutions that meet the
criteria set forth in the section of this Investment Policy, " Selection of Depositories." Investment

in non-negotiable Certificates of Deposit shall not exceed 30°Io of the City' s total portfolio.

8. 6 Commercial Paper

Prime Commercial Paper with a maturity not exceeding 270 days from the date of trade settlement
with the highest ranking or of the highest letter and number rating as provided for by a NRSRO.
The entity that issues the commercial paper shall meet all of the following conditions in either sub-
paragraph A. or sub-paragraph B. below:

A. The entity shall( 1) be organized and operating in the United States as a general
corporation, ( 2) have total assets in excess of$ SOO, OOO, OOOand( 3) have debt other

than commercial paper, if any, that is rated in a rating category of " A" or the
equivalent or higher by a NRSRO.

B. The entity shall ( 1) be organized within the United States as a special purpose
corporation, trust, or limited liability company, ( 2) have program-wide credit
enhancements, including, but not limited to, over collateralization, letters of credit
or surety bond and( 3) have commercial paper that is rated" A- 1" or higher, or the
equivalent, by a NRSRO.

No more than 10% of the City' s total portfolio shall be invested in the commercial paper and
corporate notes of any one issuer, and the aggregate investment in commercial paper shall not
exceed 25% of the City' s total portfolio.

8.7 Banker' s Acceptances

Eligible Banker' s Acceptances with a maturity not exceeding 180 days from the date of trade
settlement, drawn on or accepted by a FDIC insured commercial bank with combined capital and
surplus of at least$ 250 million, whose senior long- term debt is rated in a rating category of" A" or
the equivalent or better by a NRSRO at the time of trade settlement.  No more than 30% of the

City' s total portfolio shall be invested in banker' s acceptances of any one issuer, and the aggregate
investment in banker' s acceptances shall not exceed 40% of the City' s total portfolio.

8. 8 Repurchase Agreements

Repurchase Agreements with a final termination date not exceeding 30 days collateralized by U. S.
Treasury obligations, Federal Agency securities, or Federal Instrumentality securities listed in
Section 8. 1 above with the maturity of the collateral not exceeding five years. For the purpose of
this section, the term collateral shall mean purchased securities under the terms of the City' s
approved Master Repurchase Agreement. The purchased securities shall have a minimum market
value including accrued interest of 102% of the dollar value of the funds borrowed. Collateral shall

be held in the City' s custodian bank, as safekeeping agent, and the market value of the collateral
securities shall be marked- to- the- market daily.

5 -

56



Repurchase Agreements shall be entered into only with broker/ dealers who are recognized as

Primary Dealers with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, ar with firms that have a Primary
Dealer within their holding company structure.   Primary Dealers approved as Repurchase
Agreement counterparties shall have a short- term credit rating of at least A- 1 or the equivalent and
a long- term credit rating in a rating category of " A" or the equivalent or better.  Repurchase

agreement counterparties shall execute a City approved Master Repurchase Agreement with the
City.  The Director of Finance shall maintain a copy of the City' s approved Master Repurchase
Agreement along with a list of the broker/dealers who have executed same. There are non portfolio
limits for repurchase agreements.

8.9 Money Market Funds

Money Market Funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 that ( 1) are " no- load"
meaning no commission or fee shall be charged on purchases or sales of shares); ( 2) have a constant

net asset value per share of$ 1. 00; ( 3) invest only in the securities and obligations authorized in the
applicable California statutes and ( 4) have a rating of AAAm or the equivalent by not less than two
NRSROs. The combined investment in money market funds and mutual funds shall not exceed 20°Io
of the City' s total portfolio.

8. 10 Mutual Funds

Mutual Funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 which ( 1) are " no- load"
meaning no commission or fee shall be charged on purchases or sales of shares); ( 2) invest in the

securities and obligations authorized in the applicable California statutes and ( 3) have a rating of
AAAm or the equivalent by not less than two NRSROs.  No more than 10% of the City' s total

portfolio may be invested in mutual funds of any one issuer, and the combined investment in mutual
funds and money market funds shall not exceed 20% of the City' s total portfolio.

8.11 Local Agency Investment Fund

State of California' s Local Agency Investment Fund ( LAIF), pursuant to California Government
Code Section 16429. 1.

8. 12 Shares of beneficial interest issued by a joint powers authority

Shares of beneficial interest issued by a joint powers authority organized pursuant to Section 6509. 7
that invests in the securities and obligations authorized in California Government Code Section

53601 subdivisions( a) to( r), inclusive. Each share shall represent an equal proportional interest in
the underlying pool of securities owned by the joint powers authority. To be eligible under this
section, the joint powers authority issuing the shares shall have retained an investment adviser that
meets all of the following criteria:

1) The adviser is registered or exempt from registration with the Securities and Exchange

Commission.

2) The adviser has not less than five years of experience investing in the securities and
obligations authorized in subdivisions( a) to( q), inclusive.

3) The adviser has assets under management in excess of five hundred million dollars

500, 000, 000).

6-

57



8. 13 Supranational Debt

United States dollar denominated senior unsecured unsubordinated obligations issued or

unconditionally guaranteed by the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development,
International Finance Corporation, or Inter-American Development Bank, with a maximum

remaining maturity of five years or less, and eligible for purchase and sale within the United States.
Investments under this subdivision shall be rated in a rating category of" AA" or the equivalent or
better by an NRSRO and shall not exceed 30°Io of the City' s total portfolio.

8. 14 Allowable Investment Vehicles

It is the intent of the City that the foregoing list of authorized securities and transactions is strictly
interpreted. Any deviation from this list must be approved in advance by the City Council.

The City may, from time to time issue bonds, the proceeds of which must be invested to meet
specific cash flow requirements. In such circumstances the reinvestment of debt issuance or related

reserve funds will be governed by the bond documents and may deviate from the provisions of this
Investment Policy.

9.0 COMPETITIVE TRANSACTIONS

Each investment transaction shall be competitively transacted with authorized broker/ dealers.  At
least three broker/ dealers shall be contacted for each transaction and their bid and offering prices
shall be recorded.

If the City is offered a security for which there is no other readily available competitive offering,
then the Director of Finance will document quotations for comparable or alternative securities.

10. 0 SELECTION OF DEPOSITORIES

To be eligible for designation to provide depository and other banking services or for an institution' s
certificates of deposit to be eligible for purchase, a bank or savings bank must be a member of the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and shall qualify as a depository of public funds in the State
of California as defined in California Government Code Section 53630.

7-

58



11. 0 SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY

The Director of Finance shall select one or more banks to provide third party safekeeping and
custodial services for the City, in accordance with the provisions of Section 53608 of the California
Government Code.  A Safekeeping Agreement approved by the City shall be executed with each
custodian bank prior to utilizing that bank' s safekeeping services. Custodian banks will be selected
on the basis of their ability to provide services for the City' s account and the competitive pricing of
their safekeeping related services.

The purchase and sale of securities and repurchase agreement transactions shall be settled on a
delivery versus payment basis.  Title to all securities shall be perfected in the name of the City.
Sufficient evidence to title shall be consistent with modern investment, banking and commercial
practices.

All investment securities, except Non- negotiable Certificates of Deposit, Money Market Funds,
Mutual Funds, shares of beneficial interest issued by a joint powers authority, and LAIF, purchased
by the City will be delivered by either book entry or physical delivery and will be held in third-
party safekeeping by a City approved custodian bank, its correspondent bank or its Depository
Trust Company ( DTC) participant account.

All Fed wireable book entry securities owned by the City shall be held in the Federal Reserve
System in a customer account for the custodian bank which will name the City as" customer."

All DTC eligible securities shall be held in the custodian bank' s DTC participant account and the
custodian bank shall provide evidence that the securities are held for the City as " customer."

All non- book entry ( physical delivery) securities shall be held by the custodian bank or its
correspondent bank and the custodian bank shall provide evidence that the securities are held by
the bank for the City as " customer."

12. 0 DIVERSIFICATION

The City will diversify its investments by security type and institution.  With the exception of

Government Obligations set forth in Section 8. 1,  Repurchase Agreements and LAIF,  and

notwithstanding the individual limitations set forth herein, no more than 50% of the City' s total
investment portfolio will be invested in a single security type or with a single nancial institution.

13. 0 MAXIMUM MATURITIES

To the extent possible, investments shall be matched with anticipated cash flow requirements and
known future liabilities. With the exception of reserve funds, the City will not invest in securities
maturing more than five years from the date of trade settlement, unless the City Council has by
resolution granted authority to make such an investment at least three months prior to the date of
investment.

Reserve funds may be invested in securities exceeding five years if the maturity of such investments
is made to coincide as nearly as practicable with the expected use of the funds.

8-

59



14. 0 PERFORMANCE STANDARDS

The investment portfolio shall be designed to attain a market rate of return throughout budgetary
and economic cycles, taking into account prevailing market conditions, risk constraints for eligible
securities, and cash flow requirements. The performance of the City' s investments shall be
compared to the average yield on the U.S. Treasury security that most closely corresponds to the
portfolio' s weighted average effective maturity.  When comparing the performance of the City' s
portfolio, its rate of return will be computed net of all fees and expenses.

15. 0 REPORTING

The Director of Finance shall provide the City Council quarterly Investment Reports. The reports
shall include the following on all invested monies:

1. Issuer name

2. Type of investment instrument

3. Purchase date

4. Maturity date
5. Weighted average maturity
6. Ending balances
7. Yield on cost

8. Weighted average yield
9. Benchmark suitable for weighted average maturity
lO. Purchase Price

11. Market value

12. Percent of portfolio of each investment
13. Investments under the management of contracted parties
14. Statement of compliance with the investment policy
15. Statement of ability to meet obligations of next six months

16A INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION

This Investment Policy shall be adopted by resolution of the City Council. The policy will be
reviewed by the City Council annually, and any modifications made thereto must be approved by
the City Council.

9-

60



GLOSSARY OF SELECTED TERMS

Benchmark

A passive index used to compare the performance, relative to risk and return, of an investor' s
portfolio.

Cash Flow

A comparison of cash receipts ( revenues) to required payments ( debt service, operating expenses,
etc.).

Credit Risk

The chance that an issuer will be unable to make scheduled payments of interest and principal on
an outstanding obligation. Another concern for investors is that the market' s perception of a
corporation' s credit will cause the market value of a security to fall, even if default is not expected.

Credit Rating
Various alphabetical and numerical designations used by institutional investors, Wall Street
underwriters, and commercial rating companies to give relative indications of bond and note
creditworthiness.  Standard & Poor' s and Fitch Ratings use the same system, starting with their
highest rating, of AAA, AA, A, BBB, BB, B, CCC, CC, C, and D for default. Moody' s Investors
Service uses Aaa, Aa, A, Baa, Ba, B, Caa, Ca, C, and D. Each of the services use pluses(+), minuses

or numerical modifiers to indicate steps within each category. The top four letter categories are
considered investment grade ratings.

Duration

A measure of the timing of cash flows to be received from a security that provides the foundation
for a measure of the interest rate sensitivity of a bond.  Duration is an elasticity measure and
represents the percentage change in price divided by the percentage change in interest rates. A high
duration measure indicates that for a given level of movement in interest rates, prices of securities
will vary considerably.

Fiduciary
An individual who holds something in trust for another and bears liability for its safekeeping.

Investment Oversight Committee

A committee of three to eleven members formed under Government Code Section 27131 to monitor

and review a county' s investment policy by causing an annual audit and discussing its finding at
an open meeting. Although cities and other local agencies are not required to compose an
investment oversight committee, the State Legislature has declared that all local agencies " should

participate in reviewing the policies that guide the investment of those funds."

Liquidity
The ease with which an investment may be converted to cash, either by selling it in the secondary
market or by demanding its repurchase pursuant to a put or other prearranged agreement with the
issuer or another party.

10-

61



Liquidity Risk
The chance that a security, sold prior to maturity, will be sold at a loss of value. For a local agency,
the liquidity risk of an individual investment may not be as critical as how the overall liquidity of
the portfolio allows the agency to meet its cash needs.

Market Risk

The chance that the value of a security will decline as interest rates rise. In general, as interest rates
fall, prices of fixed income securities rise. Similarly, as interest rates rise, prices fall. Market risk
also is referred to as systematic risk or risk that affects all securities within an asset class similarly.

Maturity
The stated date on which all or a stated portion of the principal amount of a security becomes due
and payable.

Net Present Value

An amount that equates future cash flows with their value in present terms.

Par Amount or Par Value

The principal amount of a note or bond which must be paid at maturity. Par, also referred to as the
face amount" of a security, is the principal value stated on the face of the security. A par bond is

one sold at a price of 100 percent of its principal amount.

Pooled Investment

A market institution authorized under various sections of state law that represents the combined

deposits of more than one local agency and pays returns based upon each local agency' s share of
investment in the pool.

Portfolio

The combined holdings of all investment assets held by an investor.

Principal Amount

The face amount or par amount of a bond or issue of bonds payable on stated dates of maturity.

Put

The ability of a holder of an investment security to sell at a specified time and for a specified price
the security back to the issuer or prior holder.

Return

The principal plus interest on an investment or portfolio of investments. In certain unfavorable
market environments or due to risk factors, income derived from principal and interest may be less
than the original amount invested.

Risk

The uncertainty of maintaining the principal or interest associated with an investment due to a
variety of factors.

Yield

For the purposes of this publication, return and yield are synonymous.

11 -

62



GLOSSARY OF INVESTMENT INSTRUMENTS

Asset- Backed Securities

Securities that are supported by pools of assets, such as installment loans or leases, or by pools of
revolving lines of credits. Asset- backed securities are structured as trusts in order to perfect a
security interest in the underlying assets.

Bank Note

A senior, unsecured, direct obligation of a bank or U. S. branch of a foreign bank.

Banker' s Acceptance

Normally, a short- term bill of exchange that is accepted as payment by banks engaged in financing
trade of physical assets or merchandise.

Bond

A debt obligation of a firm or public entity. A bond represents the agreement to repay the debt in
principal and, typically, in interest on the principal.

Callable Security
An investment security that contains an option allowing the issuer to retire the security prior to its
final maturity date.

Certificate of Deposit

A short- term, secured deposit in a financial institution that usually returns principal and interest to
the lender at the end of the loan period. Certificates of Deposit ( CDs) differ in terms of
collateralization and marketability. Those appropriate to public agency investing include:

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit — Generally, short term debt instruments that usually
pay interest and are issued by a bank, savings or federal association, state or federal credit
union, or state- licensed branch of a foreign bank. The majority of negotiable CDs mature
within six months while the average maturity is two weeks. Negotiable CDs are traded in
a secondary market and are payable upon order to the bearer or initial depositor( investor).

Non- Negotiable Certificates of Deposit — CDs that carry a penalty if redeemed prior to
maturity. A secondary market does exist for these non-negotiable CDs, but include a
transaction cost that reduces returns to the investor. Non- negotiable CDs issued by banks
and savings and loans are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to the
amount of $ 250, 000, including principal and interest.   Amounts deposited above this

amount may be secured with other forms of collateral through an agreement between the
investor and the issuer.  Collateral may include other securities including Treasuries or
agency securities such as those issued by the Federal National Mortgage Association.

Commercial Paper

A short- term, unsecured promissory note issued by a large corporation.

Corporate Notes and Bonds

Debt instruments, typically unsecured, issued by corporations, with original maturities in most
cases greater than one year and less than ten years.

Federal Agency and Instrumentality Obligations

12-

63



Obligations issued by a government- sponsored entity or a federally regulated institution.

Mortgage Pass- Through Obligations

Securities that are created when residential mortgages( or other mortgages) are pooled together and
undivided interests or participations in the stream of revenues associated with the mortgages are
sold.

Municipal Notes, Bonds, and Other Obligations

Obligations issued by state and local governments to finance capital and operating expenses.

Notes

Debt obligations of a firm or public entity, usually maturing in less than ten years.

Repurchase Agreements

From the perspective of a local agency, the short term, often overnight, purchase of securities with
an agreement to resell the securities at an agreed upon price.

Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Differs from a repurchase agreement in the sense that a reverse repurchase agreement is an

agreement to sell securities in return for cash with an agreement to repurchase the securities at an

agreed upon price.

State and Local Investment Pools

The combined deposits of state and local agencies organized and operated by a state treasurer or a
local official. These pools operate much like a mutual fund, with local agencies investing money
together in order to increase efficiency and reduce costs.

State Noted, Bonds, and Warrants

Obligations of the State of California or another state government with different maturity lengths.

Zero- Interest Bond

A bond on which interest is not payable until maturity ( or earlier redemption), but compounds

periodically to accumulate to a stated maturity amount. Zero- interest bonds are typically issued at
a discount and repaid at par upon maturity.

Excerpted from Understanding Public Investment Reporting - A Hartdbook For Local Elected

O ccials California Debt and Investment Advisory Comrr ission, 2003.

13 -

64



pfm September 30, 2021

Memorandum

To:      Cari James, Finance Director

Thomas Hedegard, Deputy Finance Director
City of Lathrop

From:   Monique Spyke, Managing Director
Allison Kaune, Senior Analyst

PFM Asset Management LLC

Re:     Investment Policy Review 2021

We reviewed the City of Lathrop' s ( the" City") Investment Policy ( the" Policy"), as part of the City' s

annual review process. As written, the Policy is comprehensive, is consistent with the City' s

objectives and risk tolerances, and is in compliance with the California Government Code( the

Code") sections that govern the investment of public funds. Consequently, we are not

recommending any changes to the Policy at this time.

Please let us know if you have any questions. Thank you.

ATTACHMENT " C"
65



66



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT ITEM 4. 6

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       OUT- OF- STATE TRAVEL APPROVAL FOR THE

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATOR

TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ICSC CONFERENCE IN

DECEMBER 2021

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Authorizing Out-of-State Travel for the
Economic Development Administrator to Attend and

Represent the City of Lathrop at the International Council
of Shopping Centers   ( ICSC)   2021 Conference in Las

Vegas,  Nevada from December 5,  2021 to December 7,

2021

SUMMARY:

In an effort to market the City of Lathrop to new job generating businesses and
retail establishments that complement the needs and desires of its residents, the
Economic Development Administrator requests approval to travel out- of- state to
attend the annual International Council of Shopping Centers  ( ICSC)  conference.

ICSC 2021 is focused on the attraction of retail establishments and shopping center
developers.

BACKGROUND:

On January 14,  2019, the City Council approved funding for a full- time Economic
Development Administrator position to carry out economic development activities,
including marketing the City for attraction of commercial businesses,   retail

businesses, services and other vital outlets for the success of our community.

On January 13,  2020,  City Council approved Resolution No.  20- 4667 authorizing

out-of-state travel and participation at the ISCS 2020 event by the Economic
Development Administrator.  However,  the conference was canceled due to the

outbreak of COVID- 19.

Attending conferences such as ICSC provides access to key decision makers,  site

selection consultants,  developers,  company representatives,  and retailers,  while

providing an opportunity to showcase the City of Lathrop as a potential location for
new business.

ICSC is an annual international event held in Las Vegas, Nevada.  Staff will arrange

meetings prior to the conference with shopping center developers,  real estate

brokers, and retailers for the purpose of showcasing site opportunities in Lathrop.

Expenses for this out- of- state conference request include registration,  airfare,

transportation,  hotel,  food,  and participation in the Team California exhibit booth
less a cancellation credit offset received from various pre- paid reservations for the

67



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER li, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

OUT- OF- STATE TRAVEL FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATOR

ICSC 2020 event.  ATTACHMENT B" includes additional ICSC 2021 Conference and

Team California Exhibit Booth Information.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff requests the City Council adopt the proposed resolution authorizing Out- of-
State Travel for the Economic Development Administrator to participate in the ICSC
2021 conference to be held in Las Vegas Nevada from December 5 through

December 7, 2021 for purposes of marketing, outreach, and business attraction.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total cost for the ICSC conference is estimated to be  $ 2, 850.  All expenses

relating to this conference are within the City Manager Department' s Economic
Development Division FY 2021- 2022 budget as approved by City Council.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.       A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop to Authorize Out- of-
State Travel for the Economic Development Administrator to Attend and

Represent the City of Lathrop at the International Council of Shopping
Centers 2021 Conference in Las Vegas,  Nevada from December 5,  2021

to December 7, 2021

B.       ICSC 2021 Conference and Team California Exhibit Booth Information

68



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

OUT- OF- STATE TRAVEL FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATOR

APPROVALS:

2l- 2021

Shelley Burcham Date

Economic Development Administrator

Q/-- o
Cari Jame Date

Financ i ctor

S L  Z-(

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

4•Z? Z(

Steph n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

69



RESOLUTION NO. 21-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO

AUTHORIZE OUT- OF- STATE TRAVEL FOR THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

ADMINISTRATOR TO ATTEND AND REPRESENT THE CITY OF LATHROP AT
THE INTERNATIONAL COUNCIL OF SHOPPING CENTERS   ( ICSC)   2021

CONFERENCE IN LAS VEGAS,   NEVADA FROM DECEMBER 5,   2021 TO

DECEMBER 7, 2021

WHEREAS, City Council approved funding for a full- time Economic Development
Administrator position to carry out economic development activities on behalf of the
City; and

WHEREAS, staff has identified targeted industry opportunities to market the City
for the attraction of businesses and retail establishments; and

WHEREAS,  funding identified for marketing event has been considered and
approved within the FY 2021- 2022 budget.

THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lathropk
authorizes out- of- state travel for the Economic Development Administrator to attend

and represent the City of Lathrop at the International Council of Shopping Centers 2021
Conference in Las Vegas, Nevada from December 5, 2021 to December 7, 2021.

Resolution No. 21- Page 1 of 2

70



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop at a regular
meeting on the 11t'' day of October, 2021 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

SONNY DHALIWAL, MAYOR

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 21- Page 2 of 2

71



ATTAC H M E NT  -  B

r -   -    .-     

INNOYATING COMMERCE 1 E   .SERVING COMMUNITIES

Get back on track at ICSC — Here, We Go. 2021, our biggest live event this year.

At Here, We Go. 2021 you will experience:

Networking with dealmakers, changemakers and innovators

Gatherings and meetups with like- minded professionals

Interactive content from across the Marketplaces Industry

Schedule of Events

Sunday, December 5
Registration Fees

By Invitation Only Events
Member   $ 395

Non- member   795

Monday, December 6

9: 00 am- 5: 00 pm • Exhibit Hall Open Retailer Member   0

5: 30 pm- 7: 30 pm •  Opening Reception
Public Sector/ Student  50

Tuesday, December 7

9: 00 am- 3: 00 pm • Exhibit Hall Open

72



ATTAC H M E NT  -  B

Shelley Surcham

Fram:  Rabin Reimold- TeamCalifornia < robin@teamca. org>
5en   Thursday, September 16, 2021 8: 1 S AM
To:      Shelley Burcham
Subject:       Join TeamCalifornia at ICSC- Here, We Ga! This December

ICSC - Here, We Go. 2021 Deal Making
December 5 - 7, 2021   Las Vegas,  NV

sr

f       •     

Let your presence be known and get back on track with ICSC at their biggest live
event this year!

With safety precautions and CDC health guid lines in place, ICSC will be delivering
atl the networicing and content yau've come to expect from the organization.

Meet with Prospects in

Private Meeting Space

Display your Marketing
Materials and Giveaways

Exhibit with TeamCalifomia

for a Fraction of the Cos of

Going it Alone!

Members: $2, 000 Nonmembers: $ 4, 5 0

73



74



ITEM 4. 7

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       CHRISTMAS PARADE TEMPORARY STREET CLOSURE

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Temporary Street
Closures for the Lathrop Christmas Parade on
December 11, 2021

SUMMARY:

On December 11, 2021, the City of Lathrop will host the annual Christmas Parade.
The parade will begin at 11: 00 a. m. at the corner of Fifth and J Street and travel

south and turn west on Thomsen Road; follow Thomsen Road to Cambridge Drive;

turn north onto Cambridge and follow Cambridge to J Street; turn east onto J Street

and conclude at the corner of Fifth and J Street.  Staff has coordinated the route and

the temporary street closures with Public Works, Community Development, Lathrop
Police Services and the Lathrop Manteca Fire District to ensure the safety of this
event.  Since the parade will utilize the entire street at these locations,  staff is

requesting Council approval of the proposed temporary street closures.

BACKGROUND:

On December 11, 2021, the Parks and Recreation Staff will be hosting the annual
Christmas Parade.   This year' s theme is " Gingerbread Christmas".   More than 50

entries are anticipated.

The parade will begin at 11: 00 a. m. at Fifth & J Street; continue south on Fifth Street

and turn west on Thomsen Road;  continue on Thomsen Road and turn north on

Cambridge Drive;  continue on Cambridge and turn east on J Street;  parade will
continue on J Street and conclude at the corner of J and Fifth Street.   The ) udges

Review Stand will be located along J Street.   Staging of the parade entries will be
located on J Street between 6th Street and Revere Lane as well as Sixth Street
between J and K Streets.

Staff will coordinate the temporary street closures with Public Works,  Community
Development, Lathrop Police Services and the Fire Department.   Forty- eight hours
prior to the parade, the barricades will be set on the side of the road to alert the
community about areas of " No Parking" and " Street Closure".   On the day of the
parade,  additional barricades are set with advanced warning signs:  ' Road Closed

Ahead" and " Detour Ahead".   Approximately / 2 hour prior to the beginning of the
parade, the actual " Road Closure" signs are set in place, volunteers with the Parks
and Recreation staff help at all intersections for traffic flow.  At the conclusion of the

parade, barricades are collected.

75



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE Z

OCTOBER 11, 2 21 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CHRISTMAS PARADE TEMPORARY STREET CLOSURE

The Lathrop- Manteca Fire District ( LMFD) will provide Santa Claus a ride in a unit that
is temporarily placed out of service.  LMFD in- service vehicles will also participate . at
the end of the parade allowing quick response to calls if necessary.

The Community Development Department has found the Parade to be exempt from
the provisions of CEQA under Title 14 California Code of Regulations,  Chapter 3,

Article 19, Section 15304( e) ( Minor Alterations to Land).

To ensure the safety of the parade,  and all spectators and participants,  staff is

requesting temporary closures of the following streets:

J Street - From Cambridge Drive and 5th Street

5t'' Street - From J Street to Thomsen Road

Thomsen Road - From 5t" Street to Cambridge Drive

Cambridge Road - From Thomsen to J Street

This temporary closure will take place on Saturday,  December 11,  2021 from

approximately 10: 00 am to 12: 30 pm for the purpose of presenting the annual
Christmas Parade.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The adoption of this resolution will approve the temporary street closures to allow
staff to facilitate the 2021 Christmas Parade.

FISCAL IMPAC' T:

Expenses are offset by revenue from donations and entry fees.  No other anticipated

costs, other than staff time to prepare this report.

ATTACHMENTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Temporary Street Closure
B.       Parade Route Map

76



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOE4ER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEET' ING

CHRISTMAS PARADE TEMPORARY STREET CLOSURE

APPROVALS:

r

Z?  Zaz
achary Jo Date

Director of r Recreation and Maintenance Services

29-- 1
Ma Mei sn Date

Director f ommu ity Development

f

30- Zo Z

Michael Kin Date

Director of Public Works
1

y o

Cari ) ames Date

Director of inance and Administrative Services

z%-Zo1. 1

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

s'

r

l"' 2 f
Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

77



ATTACHMENT A

RESOLUTION NO. 21-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING TEMPORARY STREET CLOSURES FOR THE 2021 CHRISTMAS

PARADE ON DECEMBER 11, 2021

WHEREAS, on October 11, 2021 City Staff requested City Council approval for
temporary street closures for the Christmas Parade on December 11, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the streets recommended for temporary closure for the Christmas
parade route are:

7 Street - From Cambridge Drive and 5t" Street
5t'' Street - From J Street to Thomsen Road

Thomsen Road - From 5th Street to Cambridge Drive

Cambridge Road - From Thomsen to ] Street

WHEREAS, these street closures will be in affect from approximately 10: 00
a. m. to 12: 30 p. m. on Saturday, December 11, 2021 for purpose of presenting the
annual Christmas Parade; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop' s Public Works Department has agreed to set
barricades on the side of the road to alert the community about areas of closure 48
hours in advance of the parade; and

WHEREAS,  advanced temporary signage will be placed on the streets
identifying the temporary closure from approximately 10: 00a. m. to 12: 30p. m.  on

December 11, 2021; and

WHEREAS, local volunteers will be utilized to help at intersections for traffic
flow during the temporary street closure and the Fire Department has been
coordinated with for the parade route; and

WHEREAS, the parade is exempt from the provisions of CEQA pursuant to
Title 14 California Code of Regulations,  Chapter 3,  Article 19,  Section 15304  ( e)

Minor Alterations to Land).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that pursuant to Vehicle Code Section
21101, subdivision ( e), the City Council of the City of Lathrop does hereby approve
temporary closure of:

J Street - From Cambridge Drive and 5t'' Street
5t'' Street - From J Street to Thomsen Road

Thomsen Road - From 5t'' Street to Cambridge Drive

Cambridge Road - From Thomsen to J Street

This temporary closure is authorized to take place on Saturday, December 11, 2021
from approximately 10: 00 am to 12: 30 pm for the purpose of presenting the annual
Christmas Parade.      

Page 1 of 2

78



ATTACHMENT A

PASSED AND ADOPTED this llth day of October 2021, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM:      ATTEST:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Page 2 of 2

79



2021 Christmas Parade
ATTACHMENTB

Proposed Route

4 d d'  i    .` a..t

t,  

rJC;    . 
N a

t       `     .     -  ,   9d

r     
m     +    

4

ka,

d
dek

4

k     .,    

g

r l^      6a      '    a t   ;

s  ,      ' 4    9 ,    ',

r , F   t
m.  t`.

v  

y a
u

b mr
X    

e :  

w "       {
j y

r-,  ,
p"' r         ,    

W     

s   ,    
z

a a q ' a ' r w       ""       .#`.*  

t'     Y'    y.,  ;  ,          ,  `                

2  x s. r      
s

s     ,., 

x      ,
x 

a,   

x a  .

E:    . 3        
a

y,        

Pr

w    ,      ``  

b

f

S

a a`     _    
f,

4     

a      

I     
f     -

s

e F l       k'   `    a ' sa,,;    
v, , >g. 

g '    R.._ f , a z-   ° t` ; a           t ltit
k  ,

r
r , " k x,-       ..

e, c 3x'`     L ra`'''   . ..     .    
r;             ..      .' g.

y    .'`'.  ,
t°^.,'

t 

r ,,

u       y       .,            ' .'      "§`,,.. '.`:

r  

a  .

t       „ 

g '

y dc '   
a . s E  }   t      °€..   .    

e

k
J

fj}'  , 6 v9•...  , ..

@     qm
R

e%$   
M,  ,            

8.    
i

g

F

ys P k .

a
t..  .. 

xsY e—

e

v,

b   ir  , '  '         4"'`      `       

a.

s    `
w`.  `     '"'.',``      " ts  ,.'

s 

S ?

6"    "     r   +^^'
Y

s       ..  '   

wo
e        '   Y+ M—   LP.+$ J'

J   
f y     

a,"   

3       , ,.    

KK MF t

a  

R 

r. 

w h

i v

k 2, r    
s„^" .

a:

r   :

z'     

4,

t"      .

flf', tc- f ut•    
r,. ,   k

f : p

E.,`'"     ry '&  
r s.?       „`      ;

5t girvg Ars a r; w;   

a  ' t!{{' t'. 5 0'( f a    .„'"` .  ' .   .        -. 

c` s,     €     

s       t+ a' , 

z,

t"` r           ' ,", ,-   

ry 

a"

s s

r. w.       ,    .. ' ',„'-       ".

W...,              °'. a.   '      '~    ,...    , u   ,

It l' 1

i`       --—

y  .""'-
c  ' i r V    "`"„'^--,,.

80



ITEM 4.8

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER il, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE HEAVY EQUIPMENT PURCHASES FOR THE

PARKS, RECREATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES

DEPARTMENT

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Approving the Purchase of

Seventeen  ( 17)  Units of Heavy Equipment for the
Parks,     Recreation and Maintenance Services

Department

SUMMARY:

The City is currently in need of replacing old equipment and securing new equipment
to better meet the needs of the day- to- day operations of the City as well as to be
better able to respond to emergencies that may arise.

Staff has researched multiple companies and received multiple quotes for each unit
of equipment.  The equipment listed below would best meet the needs of the

Maintenance Services Division. Staff requests Council approve the purchase of the
equipment listed under the Recommendation section below totaling $ 303, 286.

BACKG ROU N D:

As the City continues to grow rapidly, the City' s needs continue to grow as well. The
City must obtain and maintain the appropriate equipment and tools to allow City
employees to perform required tasks.  The City must also be able to replace
equipment that is at the end of its lifespan.

In accordance with LMC 2. 36 regarding purchasing, staff has researched multiple

companies and received three ( 3) quotes for each piece of equipment and has chosen
to recommend Council approves the purchases based on the lowest price quotes. The
pricing associated with the purchase Chevrolet 3500 Spray Rig was provided by
American Chevrolet through the Government Pricing Contract and was the lowest of
the quotes received.   Staff has determined that the equipment below would best

meet the needs of the City and has the best return on the City' s investment by having
equipment in stock as opposed to renting the equipment or using outside contractors.

RECOMMENDATION:

Purchase of the following:
Two ( 2) 3000 Watt Portable Generators 3, 298

One ( 1) 5000 Watt Portable Generator 2, 299

One ( 1) Tow- behind Aerator 9, 614

One ( 1) Anchor Core Drill with Motor 3, 159

One ( 1) Tow- behind Compressor Trailer 22, 950

81



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
APPROVE HEAVY EQUIPMENT PURCHASES FOR THE PARKS,  RECREATION

AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES DEPARTMENT

One ( 1) Concrete Walk Behind Saw 2, 715

One ( 1) Single Disc Grinder 5 070

One ( 1) Edge Grinder 3, 293

One ( 1) Emergency Response Equipment       $  16, 251

One ( 1) Pole Saw 550

One ( 1) Pressure Washer w/ Turbo Nozzle     $ 686

One ( 1) Seed Spreader 15, 861

One ( 1) Chevrolet 3500 Spray Rig 128, 036

One ( 1) Vacuum Excavator 62 938

One ( 1) Water Pump w/ Hoses 1 524

Tax 25, 042

Total     $ 303, 286

FISCAL IMPACT:

Sufficient funds have been included in the fiscal year 2021- 22 adopted budget and
will be paid from funds allocated in the Parks & Landscape Maintenance Division,

Water Division, MWQCF Collection System Division and the CTF- MBR Sewer Division.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop Approving the
Purchase of Seventeen ( 17) Units of Heavy Equipment for Parks, Recreation
and Maintenance Services

B.  Quote - ( 2) 3000 Watt Portable Generator

C.  Quote - 5000 Watt Portable Generator

D.  Quote - Tow- behind Aerator

E.  Quote - Anchor Core Drill with Motor
F.  Quote - Tow- behind Compressor Trailer
G.  Quote - Concrete Walk Behind Saw

H.  Quote - Single Disc Grinder

I.   Quote - Edge Grinder

J.   Quote - Emergency Response Equipment
K.  Quote - Pole Saw

L.  Quote - Pressure Washer w/ Turbo Nozzle

M. Quote - Seed Spreader

N.  Quote - Chevrolet 3500 Spray Rig
O.  Quote - Vacuum Excavator

P.  Quote - Water Pump w/ Hoses

82



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE HEAVY EQUIPMENT PURCHASES FOR THE PARKS,  RECREATION

AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES DEPARTMENT

APPROVALS:

d

r

achary )   s Date

Director o a s, Recreation and

Mai enance    rvi

Cari Ja Date

Director of Fin nce

b  ` 6  z  z (

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

d • l • 21
Steph J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

83



ATTACH M E NT A

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF SEVENTEEN ( 17) UNITS OF HEAVY

EQUIPMENT FOR PARKS, RECREATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES

WHEREAS, the City operates and maintains an inventory of heavy
equipment for the purpose of inspecting, maintaining and repairing City facilities
and infrastructure; and

WHEREAS, seventeen ( 17) new units of heavy equipment are needed to
replace existing equipment at the end of their service life and to obtain new
equipment to increase productivity and better serve the City; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with LMC 2. 36 regarding purchasing, staff has
researched multiple companies and received three ( 3) quotes for each piece of
equipment and has chosen the lowest price quotes; and

WHEREAS, the pricing associated with the purchase Chevrolet 3500 Spray
Rig was provided by American Chevrolet through the Government Pricing Contract
and was the lowest of the quotes received; and

WHEREAS, staff is requesting Council approval to place an order for the
following equipment:

Purchase of the following:

Two ( 2) 3000 Watt Portable Generators 3, 298

One ( 1) 5000 Watt Portable Generator 2, 299

One ( 1) Tow- behind Aerator 9, 614

One ( 1) Anchor Core Drill with Motor 3, 159

One ( 1) Tow- behind Compressor Trailer 22, 950

One ( 1) Concrete Walk Behind Saw 2, 715

One ( 1) Single Disc Grinder 5, 070

One ( 1) Edge Grinder 3, 293

One ( 1) Emergency Response Equipment       $   16, 251

One ( 1) Pole Saw 550

One ( 1) Pressure Washer w/ Turbo Nozzle     $ 686

One ( 1) Seed Spreader 15, 861

One ( 1) Chevrolet 3500 for Spray Rig 128, 036

One ( 1) Vacuum Excavator 62, 938

One ( 1) Water Pump w/ Hoses 1, 524

Tax 25, 042

Total     $ 303, 286

WHEREAS, sufficient funds have been included in the fiscal year 2021- 22
adopted budget.

Page 1 of 2

84



ATTACH M E NT A

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the purchase of seventeen ( 17) units of heavy
equipment from multiple companies for a total amount of $ 303, 286.

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this llth day of October,
2021, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Page 2 of 2

85



ATTACHMENT B

C

O
O
M
m

vw
w

O         
t'    

r C
a        O a    3              z,

b,

O D     

T7 C d; 8
1         

tS U                  

W      '

1...  • O w
a                    

0.          -.,    ..

r      C     :     `     c     C

J         41 V f          tn    `,    '
LLI    /}

86



a;
G. r Cr        

v C! Gf p9      
rss rn u+     G 3

y,    . e3 c       s. sJ ia O b s.. o y       
y sn j T7       .. ' "'"  «. Q       C u v  o C1 '  

O G
t+1  w  t

r

U 3..   U p O   O aQJ Y l 3

c        
t'   s  u Q   c t3 E x   .    u 5" +

w            `  ,     
ttt .  wN

C C    '' ` J       '-'  GS     ` y       Q if7

p       c. u        4' °' x       G   '   fl    E w
q

m o

4
n ?      O ,' y, G   rO t0 3  + 0 uf           7+ p Lt t1 4a

sA      `     CJ { J '  U eD j     `'  Uy! 
17  + o y G , 13

r       
vj        

q       tA i  ' C
tg g ' C3

Os O  O  S         x C  
s')  

O y  
U   O  ..   

tki T  it{   V     K7'     Q+   

Q, C3. '  Cj    + ^,,       G d Vf

QT ,'# (,
j

yp,t ,
C    C 4J

r     ,         G U Y tJ    p  `  C[+           d C?  vi  + t> 
y O  '—    '' +

U

tL  ]'. Ui  C    ,   ! 4 l y
Vt  ?' N p '

C        . D
P3 N u-

G        
th               i^  t?  tA ` y„ 

O C C7 y       V5   '   >. .,    a i

cy  '   X    E       '       ro   .
0

d y} '
G.   m cq.     x o    m E  `"  °' °' 

t*'d . t S W lL U G. e             C    O t7 y  C# ..' LLJ O+    W C.?   N L? SaJ .. i B i C
O             •  

i  •  •  •  #   t i
k

1

87



Honcta Industria! 5040- Watt Gasoline Powered P' i able Generator...  https: tiwww.homedepot. com/ ly,onda- Industrial- SU00- WatbGasoli...

M

1 Home improvement Retailer
ATTACHMENT C

Yau' re shopping Delivering'-
ManteCA., 95336•  gearch g     Cart 0 items b

OPEN unti( i0 pm

Hame  / Outdoars  / Oufdt or Power Equipment  / Generators /  Portabte Generators

internet# 20fi055770 Model# EB5008XK3 Sto e SKU k100146B180

Customers Who Viewed This Also Viewed

i siYe Bast sen r

tag H t SERtES       
Top c d

x
u

a

DUAL 1FdEl

DEWALT 8, 000-   Westinghouse Duromax Honda 1000- Watt DUROf 

Watt Gasoline WGen9500DF 13000/ 1050Q- Watt Super Quiet i3004/  

Powered Electric 12, 500/ 9, 500- Watt Dual Fuel Electric Gasoline Powered Push S  
36B)   5908)  t180)   88)      

LL-+

l:

1169°0 99900 1799ao 89900 159

Honcia

Industrial 5000- Watt Gasoline Powered Portabfe Generator with GFCI

Protectian and iGX QHV Commercial Engine

Questians 8 Answers( 5}

MM

i

t3C?     9: 4 AM

88



nunuu inuu uia uvu- wa 44, c soune rowerea ronanie veneracor...  n[ tps: h aa uw. homeaepot. com/ p/ Honda- lndustnal- SOQ- Wutt- GasdrJi:; L

a+

Hover Image to Zoom ro
t

a

a

229g 00

u

384.00/ mo' suggested payments with 6 months' financing Apply Wow

r

How To Get i#

This item is unavai( able at ManteCA

Check Nearby Stores

Delivery is unavailable for this product

Product Overview

The EB5000 is the ultimate in partable, comrnercial- grade Info & Guides

jabsite generators. Its heavy- duty construction is made to You will need Adobs Acrobat Reader to view PDF

withstand the rigors of the industrial jobsite. It comes documents. Downlaad a free capy from the Adobe

Web siie.

standard with a wheel kit, easy fold handles and a hanger kit

with lifting eye. With a large 6.2 Gal, fuel tank, and a Honda

iGX commercial engine with Oil Alert, you can be confident

that this Nonda generator will be ready to get the job done,

anytime that you are.

8' 10; 2021, 9: i7 AM

89



Hsxrdatindustrial 5000- Watt Gasoline Powered Portable Gen'sietor...  https:.?www.homedepot. com/ p/ Hond indn trial- 5000- Watt- Gasoli...

Sponsored Products

X SERfES   HJ4 SERIESG1

m a

i   fl

DUAI# FUEL OUAL FUEt v
d

Duromax DUROMAX Pulsar 12, 000- Pulsar Duromax

13000/ 10500- Watt 13U00/ 1050Q- Watt Watt/ 9, 500- Watt 6, 580/ 5, 500- Watt 12000l9500- Watt     

Dual Fuel Electric Push Start Heavy-     Oua1 Fuei Po table Dual Fuel Dual Fuel Electric    

1$ 0}  605)      6U5}      181)   v
A

s179900 9°°     s884" 59900 15990°    

Add To Cart Add To Cart Add To Cart Add To Cart Add To Cart

Specifications

Dimensions

Praduct Meight( in.)      30. 4

Produot Length{ in.)      41. 1

Product Width{ in.)       27.8

Detaiis

3°     8<<'10,`? 0? I, 9: 47 AM

90



Honda Endustrial 5000- Watt Gasolin uuered Portable Generator...  https:` r'www.hamddapnt, com/pPHonda- Industriat- SOQ4- Watt-Gasoli...

Application Job Site

CA( CARB} Compliant CARB Compliant
t

CO Shutof Capabte Yes

Color Family Red

Engine Dispiacement( cc}      389

Engine Make Honda Engine

Features Auto Idle Control, Automatic Voltage Regulation, CU    

Shutoff, Fuel Gauge, GFCI Dutlet( s), ow Oil

Shutdown, Muffler, OSHA Required GFCI C} utlets

J

Fue( Tank Capacity( gallons)   6.2

Full load fuel consumption ( gallons/ hour}   1. 3

a

Half- Load Run Time 11. 2
a

Horsepower( hp)  11. 7

Included WheeE Kit

d

Operational Volume( d6} 72

Outle# Type 120/ 240 Single Phase

Pawer/ Fue1 Type Gas& Oil Mix

Product Weight{ Ib.)      212

V'P/ Certifications 3o- oay

Certi cations and Listings A Certified, CARB Compliant, EPA

Approved, OSHA Gompliant, UL Recognized

Recoil Start

Manufacturer Warran# y 3 year
F nn

Customers Who Viewed This Also Viewed

Exdusivs BestSeper

SERIES 
Top Rated

i of 7 8? 10! 20? l, 9: 47 AM

91



VR
ATTACHMENT D

Date: August 25, 2021

Quotcrtion for City of tathrop
Quote No: 627284- 00

i i

City of Lathrop iQuote No:     84444

PO Box 473 Sales Person:   Kevin Eppich

Lathrop, CA 95330 kevin. eppich@turfstar. com

916) 709- 71Z2

Sourcewell contract fi 031121- TT'C.

Summar

Coafguration Name Qty Unit Price Sub TaEal Sales Tax Total

O1Q- 68b AeratoC 1 58, 844. 10 8, 840. 14 5773. 51 9, 613. 61

TO c11S:    8, 840. 30 5773. 51 4, 613. 61

t

1  ' s  e

92



w e vR
Date: August 25, 2021

Quotation for City of tathrop
Quate No: b27280• 00

Configuration Product Details

010- 686 Aerator

Model Product Description Qty Unit Price Extended Sales Tax Total

44856 Aerator 686 1 8, 363. 94      $ 8,3b3. 94 731. 85      $ 9, 095. 74

108- 9298 TINE- SPOOiV, OPEN S00 96 A. 96 476. 16 41. 66 5i7.82

TO S.       9,513.61

V

Pag 

93



N'' AR
wc* ran.v

Date: August 2S, 2021

Quotation for City of tathrop
Quote No: 62728Q- 00

Standard Terms and Canditions

Prices, including all finance options, are valid for 30 days from date of quotation. Open Accaunt Terms are
N30, subject to credit approval. Used and demo equipment is in high demand and availability is subject to
change. Delivery is FOB Destination, unless otherwise stated

Office Locations

Northern California: Southern California:      Paci c Northwest:

5646 W Barskow Ave Ste 104 79- 253 Country Club Drive 11175 SW Elligsen Way
Fresno, CA 93722 Bermuda Dunes, CA 92203 Sherwood, OR 97140

Fax: ( 559) 277- 7123 Fax: ( 760) 345- 4297 Ph: ( 503) 691- 0250

2438 Radley Court 955 Beacon Street 5869 South 194th

Hayward, CA 94545 Brea, CA 92821 Kent, WA 98032

Fax: ( S I O) 785- 3576 Fax: ( 800) 775- 8873 Fax: ( 253) 872- 6942

11373 Sunrise Gofd Circte 2110 La Mirada Ste 100 2824 East Garland

Rancho Cordova, CA 95742 Vista, CA 92083 5pakane, WA 99207

Fax: ( 800) 241- 1997 Fax: ( 760} 734- 4285 Fax: ( 509) 483- 7563

vAw xc:

Canaer and Rcproductivc Hatm Ilf13};:" W' K' W', PSS W: 1CpYII1 S, C1. tiv

Far more intotmation, please visit hnn: ftwww. tt oCA[' m!' i5. caisi
CALIFORNiA SPARK ARRESTER NARNING

Operation of this equipment in the Swtc of Culifomia may create sparks that can start res around dry vegetatian. A spark nrrestor muy bc rcquired.
Thc operator should contact local fire agencies for laws or rcgulations relating to 6re prevention mquirements.

3  ; a :  e

94



R   ,  '`      
a'      

t   
s   . m k

ih'    S

GS  m h      t   

wrn r  ``'

r"    

e' 3 '' 
s `   a" '   ,

h
t 

3  
m .   ry   ,     '.    s'  

ry
a,

v i 2 , : m'". r_ 4 F   :'-
i'   ".      u..``+- 

x.+  Y'r r   . 2        -    .   '.
ff aS fgr 2f       k rC  C      ' 2         fJ

h' M".
c'` '     

r'"  '*:   i' ", f s rro s§ ,"` s, 5: z 9 .'' ., ''
s.'     °

r      3. c        ,.   a

a,   s s     ,    
3'","`;.`  -'=,

i r   ".        '' 
s xp:     r     `

w' u, '. s-,..*:  ".;    ``      ',  t* 
e      ..

sr      `'   a,
t . .

ra
t    "      ,   i

u"     x.,.?,. x C  , `

z# s€'' t       

N  .

w ,' Z   `'.„ J`.`.'  `` .       zr   z.    
k1 k t R G E A R E A` Q E R A T f2 5

G '"   
n a a-,'   tr, r a `,, s`   .

s
f `', ., 

s`"*:
xr S`,  `" m,."',    .

X

a   . ;' L'  4         s, R`
s    , ta r ff  

K.    ,,'       - t'.,,.     
k....,:     

i;' #    t,   ''    .,,,,.  ?
w. w?. `',.. r. r, r_

A  -   u      F s Productive Aerafion. Simple Design.
a The 686 ard b97 Tu f Acr tcrs are an ef iinent and effect vc ray to acrale iarye ti,ri arcas.

n . r' is:, t_n  ',           , Uesigned al th 70 pounci( 31. 75 kgl cast wheei> anci 3 un G ie tEoat: ng head design. these

ar.rztors give excellent depth and groemd fallo ring capah<! ties. For h! c3hly compacted nr

ur us, ally unevert yroured,, optianat re r vreiyt ts are avarE b! e
r 1

k

a1

t    '
Y

N1" `"`
t  :.

fr
a, 4 6  :'+ s £ 

s   .

Y  ..
t° 1k. *- ,,"

z  
f a k",.'. k  ,. '" t   r ,.'  ?,:=

k;   '
a'".`   : . vt' a a    *:

a

A   '\,.    k   ,.       . y
q'"

R            
R  

z'S 

i t "' d"F'      d 1    ',& r'  

m'     3 f ..yt+d F'

i*           '  .,.,
w   :

s.,   ai        X     `
z    ,..

a-.....    .,    ..     .   . ..     .  ..,« Z. v.       .* x. . 3, r     '.'. t.s   ,..  ..-;.     '

s• y    rx,',          

Y

s.i.,-

j,°": s rx    =' 
wj

s
r i p_

t 

P" s"""s
t r

c # 

t k     

a
y, .

v`;   z``' tv': t r      w      

s

a . z     

rdfD flf'' C 1Ft' G fl

Catt your Toro distributor a# 800- 803- 8b76

95



Turf Aerators 686 & b87

The 68b and 687 iurf Aerators give excellent deplh pertormance and fo( tow ground conlours, wertically antl orizontally, like no
other aeralor available,

w .

g,         . r

s:     J

I

r

r+a.. fC $._
g`, p

a", i° a
e

1.' 4 i`'   -,.`^

s',,-+ n'

s

a    rs '          F:   v'< c,

F
a Y       

1
a` y  

aax r

t 

F

M    .       a,'         .-  ?   '

a
f i

F. a .

i

UST WHEEI. S 3 sels af 6, each set moves iaCependenily. 7016s.{ 32 kgl, i 3'{ 33 cm} d ameler

AERATING SWbTN 7B'{ l98 cm 18'( 19B cm

TINES thoiu ot 112" 112 7 mml or 31b'( 14 mm) aRen ar ciosed hnes. 4" 114 tmJ aad 6' 115 cm} s6cmg 6lades

PATiERN 6' fi5 cm1 lorward. 3'{ 8 tm) lafera!

HIRH Drap pn, tow lype with hydraulic cylmdes ic 1- ti, hand pump standard.  pt., Category 1

OPERI tING SFEED 1- 10 mph( 1. 6- lb. l kMh) 1- 10 mph{ 1. 8 16J kmlh}

LENGTH 76' 148 cm1 48'{ i22 cm)

WIOTN 9D' f119 mi B2' 1208 cml

NEIGHT Approx, LO' 4102 cm)    Apptax. 60' II02 cmI

Weighis: 35l6s( 16 kgl each, l max mum per cor, ng head. Tracror Remote Kst
W iq is 35 tbs. ItE kgl each, 2 macimum per cor ng head; sel oI 3.OPTIONS Model b8 bC8 3521
Nate: Irdudes we ghis, kut additiana! weighls can te addedNote: lr,cludes weighis, b; aCdiUona'. we gAts c n be added.

SNIPPING WfIGHT I, k2D Ihs.( 84d kg)      13001hs.( 540 kgi

WAARAN Y Two- yeac limited warranty, Relei fa the Operalor s Manaal for Iurther deta° s

s

Speniaabamaiddt: qnwh ecttad:3nqeri o tnolice PraCuctsdeDKrdalE sCle'+ re reimdermneU E ai jmsnmalY.
kh l yrtdutts cttctt9lm ule,rar rtry in Ctsiga tqcired anxha,erts nd sa+e y k wra{ eucU y r loc i To a Ues: ri; 1u

2018iomCnrr. me; ccalEG+ F eniGw r 1904 t Rcr. t' 18 2 a

96



97



a

r „

98



ATTACHMENT F

CAPITAL, A1R TC} C3L, L,L.. C,     ESTIMAT

1 64 KATHL EN AVE.      DA7E ESTIMATE NO.

SACRAMEN- CO, CA 9 81 5
7i7/ 24? I Sb2

P /  F { 91 6)925-5889

i+aAME t AODRESS Ship To

City o£ Lathrop City of Iathrop
2112 E. l.auisc At c, 2l 12 E. l.ouisc tivc.

Lathrop, CA 95330 i. athmp, CA 95330

P. O. NO.       TERMS SHfP VIA REP FOB

Credit Card 5flc FlA Will Call

ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION C45T 1' OTAL

tD185T F 1 Rotair b1857' 4F Toii ahle C mpressor. I: oliler biescl 19, 500. 00 19, SOO. 00T

engine, IRScfmn lUGpsi
SGX34    4 SQ' x 314", 254I' SI supply hose+ v/ Disan Cpl.       78. 85 31. IOT

F5048At1 l Safety Air Blo v Gu     148. 0 198. SU"1'

1817002.'.569 I Chicago Pneumatic CI' PG5. 5, 5, SU0 V+'ait Gcncrator 1, 089. 40 1, 089.00' I'

Salcs Ta.       8, 75° o I, SAG. 50

TOTAL 9 g. aa

Thartl:} ou for the opponunity to quotc. Quotc ood for 30 da} s.

99



t,

I II    ''
i F

6
s

t k.
r.4. 

e.»., e-  . a.':.>.;.     ``' 

j       ' _

e= W,

a `

100



I: ;?; o. t{° Construction Equip ncnt- 3 Less https..'a'rdcostnre. com:ch ckout+r

ATTACHMENT G

PRODUCT SUBTOTAL

Water Tank Assembly( OS- 18, OS- 20, KL- 18) x i 2Q5. 39

High Performance Cured Concrete Blade x 1 174.b0

SU BTOTAI 52, 530.94

S H I P P i N G t  Free shfpping

Orders using Next Day shipping must be received by 2pm In- PersonPitkup
EST for delivery the foltowing business day. F[ ede ick, MD)

CA SALES TAX I83.50

TOTAL 2. 714.49

Credit Card vt    

Pay securely using your credit card.

Card Number'

Expiration( MM/ Y'     Card 5ecu ity Code'

MM J YY CSC

Yaur persona! data wiEl be used to process your order, support your experience throughout this website,

and for other purposes described in our:

Orders w(th Next Day shipping must be submitted by 2pm EST far dellvery on the following

business day.

3 c ff,     8117? 2021. E; 15 AM

101



t

a

a

d.
l

4

g,   
7      

d 4

2 qP   .`   a     
Ye:  i. E.

r:

t'

fc

f a

r
n„   

q n

3

1.

102



r,  a n,.      •,,,-    P100- 884- 0661

onstruction
ATTACHMENT H     c,

E      c:; zac: s cle, z. 5:'+ rys      7r 5, rk.c',at> z^ G 7 Ge, arae     ... k:. t Gcr a; f? c, c r; l;, aEr, s z. r,;. sc.,z,r=,rG i22r, r Cas

t

Shopp ng Cart
LfyF1`+L7   -'

0  

I   
r• r tF-A p il[.IML1 il( il1i

Rotii;[ ttc nc 4h eP x̂e f] r, vm, rcy SJ' a',« f̂a

EE7C( 3 TG 1 1( J' I1H Gas H rda Turt a Gr+r dpe 5;56{?C3 e a s.:-.. r:        s  = M.:.    

ceet• nue slwppn=        add e+ew arm updsfe s1+ a pv+ n cxi c1ee+ w

ESTIMATE SHIPPING AND DISCOUNT CODES s. i 5oe rs

TAX u.      suasa

p a, x,  

GRAND TOTAL$ 5, 512. 81

Entet ycK,tr desUnatmra w geI k

stripping estknate

103



e m
e.

ATTACHMENT I

PRODUCT SUBTOTAL

iiorsepower:    NJA

Vatt:

SU BTOTAL 3, 292. 24

SHlPPING C  Freeshipping

Orders asing Next Day shippi g must be received by pm 1 In- PersonPickup
S' f far deEivery the fo towing business day. Frederick MD)

CA SAl. ES TAX 238. 69

TOTAL 3, 530. 92

Credit Card vts a

Pay securety using your credit card.

Carcf Number*

e• a a ss ra•

Expiration{ MMJYY}"     Card Security Code"

Mi i / YY SC

Your persanat data witl be used to process your order, support your experience throughout this website,

and far othet purposes destribed in our

Orders with F1ext Day shipping must be submltted by 2ptn EST for detfvery an the f4ttowing
buslness day.     

17 2( l? l, Ci:"_ AR1

104



F= --.

t µ<`

t
r    

Y

r"     i

1.     :.

4

z.

E,     

r.,..  ,

s.-- ."'

T'u'" 1.  ,     [ ] r

j, l 4 + a
rr+»,   J

105



ATTACHMENT J

Sierra Safety Company s      , s 

215 Taylor Road

Newcasite, GA 95658 Quote Number. m2594

g y fluote Date:    Sap 15, 2421
Page:   i

Voice;  816- 663- 2026

Fax:    916- 663- t 858

F.....,_,...    

Quoted 70:       Sh s 7a:   

CNECK SALES ATTN: III. Y

I

Satea Rep Shipping Method       Good Thru Payment' Cerms

FERREIRAM WILL CA L 101 5i21 Prepaid

4.. tt..._,..

Quantity Item Uescripdon lfnEt Price           Amount

4. 00. RTMISCfTEMSNIF CUSTC7M UILT 16'' fRAtLER, DUAL 16, 254. 00     16, 250. U0

AXl, ES, BUIlT TO CUSTOMER REQU ST       

TC? HOID 50 EA BARRIGADE W/ I. IGHTS,

i 50 PtAIN BARRICAQE AND 100 EA CONES       i

i i

3

i
i

k

i

i
i

I

E

i

I4
v_...t,....-...._.--....--....--. m-„>....._

Y.   

PRC?P 6S- WARNING: Some prcrducts contain chemicals knawn     
Subtatal 16, 250. 00 

SalesTax 1, i78. 13 ;ta the State of California to cause cancer and birth defecks 4r 3 __  

other reprc ductive harm. Freight

ETURt f POLICY: i TOTAI 17,428. 13 ;

All returns mus4 be accampanied by a receipt and will be subject to a
20% restock g fee. Cusiflm orders, non- Slack ilems and harcl hat sales are
final. Goods heki over 15 days are considared narrrefundable.

106



1   

S'

bi Y1LYe' vMi4Yf     
11

Q

p

NaPa,   
j

wP"     

k 

r,, ,       

i F r ef'Jti   

I

L 4. a t.. ` f

srwF jt

n; s      

w   ,    ,   ,     v       

h n

c,{, m, s% E/ ar,nkw r,.,o Y. 7%"7' 4 1
5

d  a`` _..

s  ''    d,;

i

a.   + i1 i 1̀ Nr+f
4 a';«     i,

i   1      1

j     

k
1..   •

i( p 
n S   +'%  ^ a f

x        i4  a.  
ti a iR 3

a      r      
a  a# t a       

7'} i €^. 
e, P t   4`

p ix t
t

E.       
y$

ta       °      

y      '    

i
gr

hi
a lim) IS     • i.. " e,: d d8       

s,     MI 

N   '^  
d   •  i    :      

f 1  

R^.     " 
k 5

A
7' r.J

M"  {. {

V b5( t1 f !        '
4         "

R (  ^
f r P4A(` 4 g t R      .      `. .     

r  

k! 7

1 If     t.

1/q', f1 fs i's
e i 4, tr99'..'.,,   ,     

I t s t̀

i; 

rt
r.  . T,,.     

x

I f i  Af,j!:  K7Fr'.       

f1,,
pr
l

Y'

3;     
Y

n,

Y'        ... a i

I .»          

µf;.

i Y
s;:::..A r,..

ro`:
A'N;.

w       j:       

r

s

i

1  

A

107



ECHQ PPT 2b20Fi#'or sal un ianteca, CA. Ca!- Central Equipme...  httpsc P hvw.bitlsmowerandsaw.nednew- modelsaFecho- ppt-2620h- 2...
j

ATTACHMENT K

xd3- mobiie- Search...   

nav}  

204) 825- 0200( tel+ 1{ 209} 825- 0244)  8S2 N Main St Manteca. CA 95336(/ iocatiorrs)

ECHQ PPT2b2 H

549. 99

a

r

ECHO PPT262QH

Availabitity
B ochure

Manufacturer

ECN4

Model

PPT 2620H

4verview

I of 3 8 10l2021, 10: 34 AM

108



M{l PPT? b20H for salc in Manteca, CA. Cal- Central quips aa...   https-' www, billsmowerandsaw. net new it'texfetsr`echo- ppi- 2620h- 2...

Descriptian
Increased power and greater cutiing performance with an in- iine handle.

F t l t'E' S

25.4 cc professional- grade two-stroEte engine manufactured frorn magnesium
Automatic, adjustab( e ailer to match cutting conditians

Easy start-ability especially for re-starts in hot, dusty cfimates
Large 2Q. 6 fluid aunce fuel tank for extended run time between fi(l- ups

Ribbed fiberglass auter shaft far rigidity and control
Tool- less access for convenient in-field servicing
Two-stage air filtratian system dramatically increases cleaning cap biiity and allaws for
langer rnaintenanc intervals

Spe+cifications

ngine Displacement ( cc): 25. 4

Length Extended ( in): 14b

Engine Displacement ( cu, in.); 1, 55

p#ional Extension { ft): 4
Carburetor. Ratary
Bar Length { in): 12

Starting Systern: Standard

Dry W ight (!bs) 1: 17
Fuef Capacity ( fi. oz.): 20. 6

Oil Capacity ( fl. az.): b. 6

Length Collapsed ( in); 107

tNarranty; 2 y commercial/ 5 yr consumer

NUTES:

1 Without bar and chain

SpeCS

A WARNING: perating, servicing, and maintaining a passenger vehicle, an off-highway motor vehicle, or a

recreational marine vessei can expose yau to chemicafs including engine exhaust, carbon monaxide, phthalates, and
lead, which are known to the State of California to cause cancer and birih defects or ather reproductive harm, To

minimize exposure, avoid breathing exhaust, do not idle the engine except as necessary, service your vehicle or
vessel in a well- ventitated area and wear glaves or wash your hands frequently when servicing your vehicle or vessel.

Z of 3 8* 1032021, 10; 39 AM

109



CHO NY t-? 6'ZUH tor sale in Mantdsseq CaA. CaE- Cemral Equipme...    https:Jtwww,bill noa nerandsaw.net/ new-models/ echo-ppt-2b20h- 2.,.

For more infarmation go to https:// www. pb5wernings. ca. gov/ productslpassenger- vehicle

https:// www.p65warnings. ca. govlproducts/ passenger-vehicle} and https:// www.p65warnings. ca.gov/ products
marine( https:// www.p65warnings. ca. gov/ products/ marine).

Contact Us

Hours

Find Us

Available Pramotions

Home( t)( New Models{/ new- models)  Privacy Policy(/ privacypalicy} ; Terms and CondiUons(/ termsandconditions) ;

Accessi611ity(/ accessibitity) ! Site Map( lsitemap)

2021 CabCentral Equipment- Powered by ARI Network Services- ARI Responsive Websiies( https/ larinet cam)

t I Or`2021, 10: 39 AM

110



ATTACHMENT L

µ

A    a    «    a
e a  . r

ri a    .    
m

E
3 y  ,„  ^      

e

r.. 

c    E y   ., g

7
e p

E         E   Y

6 r    

r      ;,  
p d

q

S         s e 4  ..  H F

ia     gc    EC
p

Sy 3       

i  

O

i

y;      S       ^  2  .^  ip Ot

W Q W H     

E

8
s 

o
a v 

a    

a    

p
1g a     y   

E7 r P O           =V            !     U s o

g 6 g g      
a

n3
Y t a  , 93 i  ;  2

A

9
n

8   *       s s

P O

g E
f

N P i          M •

U r P $

Y             
za

0a 2
n n

A.    '       O
v      "

r c-i a o
M             p x O

a m o
n t n o

v

z si v~ s
H m

m m

v i z f' 3

o c    s

g m
3 o a a
a 5 r r m

4 m 3 L7
e o p f E
p a, r^+ a
z`     

x Q+ Y $a     `       

u io k p ^      
3

w        2       

rna cosvel
Q

C d 

o a

t

l l

111



ATTACHMENT M

Jt' HN DEERE BELKURPA{ 3

Quote Id: 25748fi88

Prepared For:

CITY OF LATHROP

s,. ma;   ,  a r

sy4  :' k     
Y

E
F'    

A . A
p iMR f" qip I nww i uY$ i,   wr       

r    
c Qi y a°.,+." 1

i   

t%'  ma y, F/; u° a

H   '  i nr€-

Rt$

3

Prepared 8y:    Jeffrey Kerley

Belkorp Ag, LLC
1120 W Charter Way
Stockton, CA 95206

Tel: 209- 944- 5714

Mobile Phone:  209- 482- 1 Q$ 1

Fax:  2Q9- 942- 4346

Email: jkeriey@beikorpag.com

Date: 23 August 2021 Ofier Expires: 22 September 2021

Con denfiat

112



1C HN DEERE BELKORPA4

L

Quote Summary
Prepared For:   Prepared By:
CIIY OF LATNROP Jeffrey Kerley
390 T WNE CENTRE DR Belkorp Ag, LLC
LATHROP, CA 95330 1120 W Cha ter Way

Stockton, CA 95206
Phone:  209-944-5714
Mabile: 209-482- 1 b81

jkerley@belkorpag. com

By signing this purchase order, buyer agrees to assume ownership Quote Id:    25108688
and all associated risks when equipment is delivered, picked up, or Created On:      23 August 2021
invoiced, whichever carnes frst. 

Last Madified On:      23 August 2021

Expiration Date: 22 September 2021

Equipment Summary Suggested Ust Selling Price Qty Extended

Turfo 1550 17, 456. 00       $ 15, 853. 57 X 1    = 15, 853. 57

Equipment Total i 15, 853. 57

Cluote Summary

Equipment Total 15, 853. 57

CA Tire Fee 7. 00

Canvenience CC Fee finra Q• Q

and half percent
SubTotal 15, 86Q. 57

5ales Tax-( 8. 75°,b)    1, 387. 19

Est. Service Agreement Tax a4

Tota(     17, 247. 7fi

Down Payment 0. 00)

Rental Applied 0. 04}

Balance Due S 17, 247.76

s

Salesperson: X Accepted By: X

Confidential

113



JC?HN DEERE E+ R

Selling Equipment
r

Quota Id: 25108688 Customer: CITY OF LATHROP

Turfo 155

Hours: 0 Suggested List

Stock Number:   17, 456. 00

Code Description Qty
85829CA WideSpin 1550 Tow Behind Broadcast 1

Top Dresser
Standard Opttons ' Per Unit

0 ta..      ..__....
oe._,_ a   .. e. ._ ,,._ . .

1000 13HP Briggs B Stratton, Electric Start 1

2000 Adjustable Spinners 1

3000 Standard Controls 1

Ot e': C .-:
u. 

h r hargea
w..... . .    :u x....   ,..  ,.,_.__ .     .__._      

W,....    ...._.. ax....    u. .  

Freight 1

Setup 1

v _ ._.. r_ .. .. li  _,_,.. a. w , ., m,    .,.   u... m.., ., ._.,_.,... w..  . ... _,

t

Confdentia!

114



x

3} CIfiC3 10i1S

Et{Gl!! E POyVfRED i l

Sl aot C t s  

Bse c at    
Hrt r c o t o

HifUURNfUC!' J D iSil Stntt C rd. i17I
s c crac; e e a.. k c m ac, rn

e s
w u ea.._   w_. W.._  _ ,.__  r .

E. me P c H eri 

w_..    

jdr c hunere e a
a

a_____._.     ...,_ a. ._.._    __._____.__., __,..   _.

Ssnrt 3- goait rn s; prfl sarrr sbie pra s,

an o rd r c u t; insta mns et# ar t
S nR: tmn r rttci; 4 r r u, saabte Fr 6s:

spzn S f c t ol; it3; iar ihrutt4e Q wn con ra(       
ribaaa r f calc ie?tt, it stat# et ao s as d

t'fctpzite Pm eradl spin es F d tcrrtxai

Electrodc, St 7 atd 3- cai#nn sazt h K s rnanua9 t r trd
EIedraic: 5taadarfl 3- posstian swi+ th s a[ 1 coc i  

faa s aar nd b i s ee i
fir spinner and be t spe ti i

s_, a ....      .____    __.,__._  ...... _ w....___

En e P tdk 1. 32 tbs tfi I ic, l i
r pNc Pe I.02I tbs td& 3 kgl

71Q! s thout u# ir I it i3221t i

r_.   w_. ._ __  a...___..,..__._    _ w____.___.._._,_.,_ .      ____.._.

w      s      Z! fi' t0. 54 r? str act I r 25 tt'{ 0 71' h ap$d
r  W_._._..__..

8t1' i 3b. 5' S2 03 x 0.9 ml a# tha taq

12" up ta 4' t2. 7 up ta I2 m;.

M. ., u. ___   ____ __ .__._

a..,_-

0 45 fl' pet 1,{ lOD ft' t 12 tt' pet I, t} t} tt' tsin patented l deSpsn Tect' aot r   __-,

m_... ___._

Up t 8 MAi ti2 8 i th}___._.._ _._. _ .._

a...   ___., _,,,._ .  _._,...

k      > , p t 8 MPN i I2 8 lc fi}
w__.._..  __ e.___ ___,_ w,_....   ._____._.___.... w. a,___  . __ w...  . s a   . n_._.__._ .,._._.._____.

18 t0 46 m> ride pe6bie S rfacP c4mposc# n wtttr heavy tl pr ste cacd
s. a_._.   ___ u_   ,._.,.___...._... ..,.._.,____ ____,.__....

m..._.___

Manualiy operated wath lig t SpreadlNeav Spread CalE ra# ans
w     ...  .,  ._..._ . a

Fnglne Po trrd. Engsne PaMvared Ny traulies
Truck Powwered I draultcs

H dr Uc Povrae r Yeh c1 Powered dra lEcs  _    

4 E t 26 5 x 14 UO x 12 Tuai Na

II   y
s.,_.,   __   ,.....__. m._   __ n_.   _ w._  .____

3 years

Irench__

w mm_ m._.__ . m.___,.__... . m_      

Fil ng Attachmerrt{ a$ 615     
E te sch Fitting Ati chr ent 8515Di
I Cross C nve orAttact ent CR8& I81I

Gross Ca r e or Attachment t986 811 j 5inrege Star,d tt S197>   
v  .__. m.._ ,_. e . . ._ w_.., m  .,__  .    _      ,._..  . w

Sp ad'lqt ts stiq Ct tn ct r e rKtYwl ydre

a

115



Talk Qirect: 800- 679- 8207 About Us Service& Suppart Dealer Locator

LANDSCAPE PRUFESSIUNALS GOLF COURSE SPORTS TURF Q       0

Enter for a chance to WIN a Torrent 2 Debris Blower! C ick for details.,       Q
W
J

d
W

C

d

Continue Shopping W I D ES P t N Z

1550
BROADCAST Q
TOPDRESSER       

Tired of doing wheel- to-wheel

spreads, overlapping spreads,

dealing with complicated
mechanical adjustments and

wasting time checking in with

your crew to verify spread
settings? The Widespin 1550

solves these problems and more.
Available in tow behind & truck

mount options.

Testing

1 in topdressing for a i

REQUEST A DEMO

116



u 
Need Heip? Receive a catalog,

sPeak to a product expert or view
a demonstration.

s u

VlDEO FEATURES SPECIFICATIONS

J

Q
LJJ

O

Turfco Widespin 1550 topdresser
0

z

c

0
J

Q

Q
U

W

W

l.L.

Q

F^-
w

C7

FEATURES

OVERVIEW KEY FEATURES

117



Topdressing is key to helping your
fields s ay their best. Topdress to help p p tented controller gives you a
level #he field where minar variations

i r range of rates to choose
re present, and to create a better

from and allows you to loek in yaur
growth environment for your turf and

favorites usirtg ti e controllet'' s four
reduce thatch while improving

presets.
conditions for safer play. From soi( to
sand, compost to crumb, wet or dry, our Hydraulic system and spsnner

easy to operate, award winning design delivers a consistent, even

topdressers always deliver a consistent spread. Go from a new, super-light

spread.      application to heavy, and

everything in between.       
a

Turfco's patented WideSpin"       

technology takes topdressing control Know your application rates, and      

and precision to unprecedented levels determine how much material you   

all while making operat an even
need to budget — alI for the frrst       

easier. Everything is easily adjustable
time ever with our on- board

for maximum control—belt spe d,   
calcu( ator

7inner speed, spinner angle and
Reduce the numb r of passes and   

metering gat. And speciaHy designed
increase productivity with

twin spinners provid a consistent
WideSpin edge- to-edge

spr ad, fram super- Hght to heavy, and Q
applications.

everything in between, The WidespinTM

1550 makes calculating and knowing

your rates is easier. Adjusting settings

is easier. Saving preferred settings is

easier. Loading is easi r,  And getting

the exact spread you want, every time,
is easier.

118



SMART C NTROLLER

Know your application rates,

a   '      calculate the rates you want, and

determine how much material you
s, su   r_

need to budget — all for the first
m  

a

time ever with our on- board

calculator. Smart Controller with

four programmable presets and

rate calculator allows you to make

changes at the touch of a button Q
and lock- in your rates.     

0

a

LARGE HOPPER
T,    "'

ca

y.      
O

Large, galvanized steel hopper Q
can easily be filfed with a front-    
end loader and requires fewer

Q

trips to refff. Load i# with a wide W

variety of topdressing mixtures

such as sand, compost, peat and

humus, rye grass and blends, as

we(I as crumb rubbers, gypsum,
lime and calcine clays.

e¢. z.,,,.     j,;,, x:> n<, Q{; j{ Qr, a      

REDUCE NUMBER F
x PASSES

a

Save time and increase the

efficiency of your crew. Decrease
the number of passes on your

119



y

fields by up to 720 times per year
when compared to the whe l- to-

wheel method. You get your fields

done faster and your crew can
move an to other tasks.

W

d
W

SPECIFICATIt NS Q

Engine Powered*- 155d Smart Contral (# 85828), 155a Electronic Controf(# 85829)
Mode!

Hydraulic Powered*- 1550 Smart Contral (# 85824), 1550 Electranic Controi (# 85825)       
b
J

Warranty 3 Years Q
U

W

Engi e J
Engine Pawered: ' 13 HP Briggs and Strattan, Hydraulic Powered: n/ a QModels

w

Smart: 3- position switch; 4 programmable presets; onboard rate calcufator; instantaneous belt
flperator

and spinner speed control; instant throttle down cantrol (Engine Powered) Electronic:
Control

Standard 3-pflsition switch with manual control for spinner and belt speed

Weight Engine Powered: 1, 324 (bs { 601 kg} Mydraulic Powered: 1, 021 Ibs{ 463 kg}

Hopper

21 ft3 ( 0. 59 m3} struck( evel; 25 ft3 ( 0. 7' i m3) heaped
Capacity

Hnpper
80" x 36. 5"{ 2. 03 x 0.92 m} at the tap

Size

s   ' Spr ading
12' upto4d'( 2. 7upto12m)

Width

120



Spread

Q. 45 ft3 per 1, OOfl ft3 up to 12 ft3 per 1, 0 0 ft3
Applicatian

Ground

Up to 8 MPN ( 12. 8 krnth}
Speed

Conveyor
18"( Q. 46 m) wide pebble surface composition with heavy- duty po(yester cord

Selt

Metering
Manually operated with Light Spread/ Neavy Spread Calibrations

Gate

Engine Powered: Engine Powered Hydraulics/ Hydraulic Powered: Tow Vehicle Powered
Drive

Hydraulics

Wheels 4 Ply 26.5 x 14.OQ x 12 Turf

C]
J

Q
U

LiJ

W

SIGNUP FOR EXCLUSlVE SAVlNGS,  NEWS AND EXPERT TIPS.       

W

SUBSCRISE TO OUR NEWSI. ETTER

PR{} DUCTS COMPANY SERVICE  &      C4NTACT

andscape About Us
S U P P 0 RT

Turfca
Professlanals

Histor Cantact Us
Y 1 b55101 st Ave NE,

G°°    
Deafer Locator Blaine, MN 55449Articles

ra'''      

At Support 800- 679-
C reers

Request a Catalog 8201

Send Us a iv essage

121



8J23/ 2021 snawex taw behind+ broadcast spreader products- Grainger Industrial Supply

GRAWGER,

Pro+uct Categurica t 6utdoar Equipment ! Sp ayors a» t! SpreaCeis 1 Tow Behittd Spreadera ! RlSuIS31ot' Snowex' within 7ow BeF lnd Spteade

f

Satt& Flker

Showing results for" snowex tow behind+ brdadcast spreader     Vfew All Catego Ses Related to Your Search >

7ow 8ehind Sprraden       Talfqate Spreadcrs
p' OP Bmadcast Teilqate Spreader Shoutder end Hand

y Spreaders Aecessales SpreaCen

Tow Behind Spreaders

1 product

Shop for tow behind spreaders at Groinger. These pneumatic spreaders can be useful seeding tools to help dramaticaliy cut down the time it takes to seed lawns and

gardens. A1sa use them( or spreading safl and s nd on Icy roads, driveways and walkways. Find be type and s7ze ot tow behind spreader that can help you get the joh done
at Grainger!

Purchased products Ta61e = f.ist

s: r, tn to view purchased Praluc s

Cf c A11  & ex9 SNOWEX X

Tow Behind Spreaders

These spreaders are desEgned to be towed behind a vehicle to spread sait, sand, grass seed, and teniltzer They teature industrial duty co structioe v '

coRosion- resistant alumirwm gears. Use to seed lawns and gardens, or to spread salt and sand on icy roads, driveways, and walkways.

erands

SNOWEX

T ttcm CspacNy Whtel Typa Drop Typa Fbw Crntml Moun1 T rpa tlem I Propt

SNOWEX Web Prace

Tow 8ehind Spreader, 3560 Ib. Capacdty, High Outpui Drop 7ype, Knabby S1 i,900, 00 i eacn

Pneumatic 1Nhee! Type Thie Item requirce special shfppin¢ odditional

Item# 5NTR1
charqea may epply.

M} r Madet u SP-] 000 Ships from supplfer£ upected to arrive on or

Catalog Page# 946 beforg W+ed. Sep 08.

V ewx Pxoduct petaiis Shtp ta 95334 v`

l J

rte Ptoduct av: liWhry is real- iune basS a d adjusied conlarnpusly. The prodix,K wi0 6e resnxd( or rou rrhen you cmnpktr.your order More

https: ltwww grainger.comisearch/ outdoar- equipmanUsprayers- and- sprsaderslWw- behind- spreaders7tv optin= true8searchQuery= snowex++ fow+ behin...  td1

122



ATTACHMENT N

Vehicle: [ leet] 2 22 Chevrolet Silverado 35QOHD CC ( CK31403) 4WD Reg Cab 171" WB, 84.5" CA
Work Truck t 1 Complete)

Quote Worksheet

MSRP
Base Price 39, 100. 00

Dest Charge 1, 695. 00(

Total Options 0.00
r

Subtota!   4.0;795 00'

S ra tec s ra bp __Y__ p-_ yo udy_      _. .      .     96, 225. Q0 j
Subtotai Pre- Tax Adjustments 96;Z25 00

w._

Less Customer iscount 8, 984. 00) 3
E .,.... :_____.__..;..  . ...._ ._..  Subtotal Discount  ; - -;   ($ 8,984 00) j
Trade in 0. 00'

Subtotal Trade In  ` O. QO'

t
TaxablsPrice  ° S92$, 036_4Q

818s Tax 8 75%   11, 203 15

Subtotal Taxes_:_:_._._  .$ 11, 20-  315

Subtotal Post 1' ax Ad ustments 0 00i1     _.. _ .. ---, __ .._._._
w._.

Total Sales Arice  <   139, 23915

Dealer Signature i Date Customer 8ignature/ Date

This document contains information considered Confidential between GM and its Clients uniquefy. Fhe information provided is not intended for public disctosure. Pnces,
specitications, and availabiFiry are subject to change without notice, and do noi include certain fees, taxes and charges that may ba required by 1aw or vary by manufacturer or region.
Performance figures are guidelines only, and actual perFormance may vary. Photos may not represent actual vehiCles or exact oortfiguraFions. Corttent based on reporl preparer' S
input is subject to ihe accuracy of the input provided.
Data Yersion: 14876. Oata Updated: OCt 6, 202i 120:00 AM PDT.

M._„_._._.__.._,....-...

Oct 6, 2021 Page S

123



ATTACHMENT O

Investment Proposal (Quote} D QRNING
R      RDO Equipment Co. Wamin Cancerand
EC. APMB tTCO.     3980 Research Dnve Reproductive Harm.

Sacramento CA, 95838
r;,„ r,, r,,,

Phone:{ 916} 643- 0999- Fax; ( 916} 643- 0998 s

Proposel lor.  Investrnent Pmposal Dsb:  7I1t2021

CITY OF LATHROP Prlctny VaNd UnUI.  8! fi/2Q21

2112 E Louise Av9 Deei Number 1463565

LATHROP, CA, 95330 CuatomerAccau:  7200955

Aocaunt Men 9gx:       Wck Oraper

Phone:    916j860- 0644

Fex: 643- d998

EmaN:       RDraperQrdaequipment. com

Eguipmerrt lnformeNon
QuantHy Se Eat Number Hoias Stahia/ Year 1 Mske! I del Cesh Pdce

StoCk Number appt4x. Z Additlonsl liems

1 TBO 0 New 2021 VACTRON LP5T3XOT 361, 381. 00

TBD

Freight in Fteighi In 53, 500_00

Prep I Reconditbning Machine Prep 5640 00

Customer Discount Promotional pisCount 57, 72d C1d)

Equipment S tolsl:       557, 801. OD

w  .  _  

Pu` eae, OrderTOta18. m  as„ w e .     

ea a ce:        ssi,so. oa
CA STATE TAX: 3, 468, d6

CA COUMY TAX:   5144, 50
CA Cf' TY TAX:   578. Ot

CA SPECIAI. TAX:   5887. 02

Setee Tmc Total: 55,057. 59
P ePald Tax Lioerue:    572. 00

CATire Fee:     7_00

St Totsl: 562,937.59
C h wNh Order.     O, i]t3

Baianoe Due:       s62, 937. 59

Equipme t,Optlons      
QtY Ser1a1 Nwnber Year! t lalce/ Model Deecrbtlon

1 TBD 2021 VACTROM LP573XDT LPXDT1004 LP 500- 9,995GVWR DE- RATEO 2Z1-- GAL VJTl2

TANKS

LPXOT3520 HYDRAUUC JACK

LPXDT4010 STRONG ARM 800M

D1483585 Pepe 1 ot 1

124



j i       .

4

i:..,    

µ

r

V' u,      

v+. '
a.,  a  . y.

i

r"„,w .::     
1   wr ... 4

a

r:.!     `,:  M

o

r,   

a

w`     

h.'.""    

I
i

OPEN     — 

CLOSED

E i

CVS( CYCIONE 4• WAY VAL IE SlLENCEii}    REAR NYQRAfAIC CLAW DOOR. R r 1 BEAM THAILER. tlnils arc bn t Iran siart tn

FiLTRATIOH SYSTEM. 5- rn`Kran filtralion. The hYdra ic daw door has an we- cer er lock p fin'sh st ax factory i GnO tl e baler wtud
LY5 f ter hassinp also aantaiis tl e- way raMe md mnism tor a no- hus posikve bck and rnlock cnnsisls ot a siurdy 1 beam ca viruction.
fa rererae pressurc and an wersued sBencer tor
quiet operaGon. The siknar is Iocafed inside tl e
28- m{ 71- cm} diameler cydo e.

i".      
tw

i
i

I,`   F  t      i
j ' a  

i+ i

STRON6 AAM( QPTIOl. Wdh 270 depree S10E HQSE AHD TODUHB( St( STORAf E ROWMIASTER( OP110t 1). The Fbw, ka er
rotation, the sL g amr supports ttie weiQht the       ( OATiON}. The new SHi padcape allows fa option can be used m hydrauGcaAy exercise wdter
vacuum twse, and the roiler head makts handTnp 60 ft( 18 m) d suction hose staape on a val+es and hydrants, m np s re theY wil work
e icienl by allowinp smoofh. tluid nwvemerts and baaer- mo led unit This daubles the tradrtional rapet in times uf need
adlustmenls.       3U- ft( 9- m) hose staaqe an a1 dfier b ands.

Y¢rmaer

E c 0 •  VERM ER.COM
a       

z,..,, ,::....     .;     ti a           
ou oTo

DO MORE,

125



LP XDT VAGUUM EXCAVATtJR

P
DiMB SiqNS- TAA.. ER a73 573 HeaYy 873 873 Heatty 1273

Le gth 23t in( 586 7 cm) 23i in( 586. 7 cm       268. 8 in' e cm)      266. B n( 6828 cm)       255 in( 673. 1 vn)

Widlh 92 a 234 an   97 in( 24b cm) 92 in( 231 cm}  102 4s Q59 an)  t02 in Q59 cm)

Neiqht 95 in 241 anl 95 Inl241 cm1 95 in( 241 cm  95 e( 211 cm)  22 m( 31U an)

Efnpty weipltt 6. 3{ 2,858 k 6, Ib 2. 858 k      7.40Qlb( 3.357 kg)       7. So0 6( 3.dU2 kg}       9. 4D0 41d, 264 kg

GVWN 9, 995( l,533 k 1 74,000 Ib{ 6,3563 k    14, 000 6{ 6, 350.3 ig)    20,ODp b( 9,071. 8 ky)     2d,D00 b( 1 p, 886,2 k

12, b{ 5,C43 k

Taibt aslas 2j 7,QDO Ib( 3, 1751c      ( L) 7, 00010( 3, 175 kcj    ( 2 7,000 b( 3, 175 la}    ( Z) SD. DDO b( 4.535. 9 kg)  12. OD0 a{ 5. 443. 1 kc

EHGiNE

Nlske sad modd Kahla diesei Trer Fial Koder diese! Tict d Fsrai Kohter dirsel Tier 1 RBI Kd diesd 11er 4 Final Kohla diaef 7er 4 Firral

Nmsepower 2 hp I7.9 kW)  24 t{ 17.9 kYV} 2!! p( 17. 9 kW) 2 Ip 17. 9 IdN} 2 hp( 179 kW}

Foel Vtdc eaNaek t 30 pal( 1135 L}  3D g( t S 3S L} 30 gal( 1135 L 30 gai t i 3.51}  3D qal( 1 i3S i

Enciesua  Yes Yas 14f Mas y4

WATEH TANK
w e. r c, t v r c t. U 300, i3i.fi u 2D0 t at 757. 1 L) 4dQ 11, 514. 1 U       8 I1, 5U. 1 U

w. r o t,     z 2 2 z 2

F ph preswro pmap IIow raM 4 g{ m( 15. 1 t/ min) 4 pm 15. 1 Vmin)      4{ pm 15. 5 Vmi       4 rn( 1 S. i Umin)       4 gpa( 55. 1 U

19ph pressute prmA 3. ODU ps) I. B Cer1 3.0 A C B!     3.000 D 1206. 8 ba4 3,DOD P I. B baA 3.000 P R 1

IN r pressum hose knpth 50 fl( 15 m)     5D( 15 m)   50 R{ t5 m)    50 R( 15 m     5011; 15 m)

law wairr sfw6olt Ya Yas 11  Yas Yee

SPQI TANt
r,. ..  ,     

SDoH fsnk pDedlp 500 98 51. 8927 U 500 pd( 1. 8427 U 800 Pdl( 3. Q283 L}       800 DY( 3,026. 3 U i. 0 t4.5425 U

Doot typt y ufc Nydraufc Hydraiic Fydrauic FfydaWc

Ta 8d hPo NYdrauic tlydradc Hpdraiic F ic F tad's
e, .. 

vAcu ut
M .      

Type of Allen 5 miaon S micran 5 micrm 5 mivan S mic on

losa lerq 301f 9.1     30 R( 9. f   30 q( 9.I m)    30 R( 9. 1 m)    30 p( 9.1 m)

Hose wkdih 3 b[ J. 6 ur     3 fa( T. fi an)   3 In( T. fi emj 3 in( B cm)    3 in( 7. 6 a

Vacwm 580 Am 985 m'/ hn 580 dm 5 m' Au?     580 dm( 9A.5 m' Ihq 5 ctrn i98.5 m'/ A      580 dm( 9B5 m'/ Ju

Vacuum biower type PD trbwer PQ blourer PD bbwer Pp Wower PD bbwm

Yacuum mencr     4 Yt hy{. pa  14 in hp( A Gir 1 in hg(. 4 t 14 k hp(. 4 bar)  14 in hy( 4 bet)

COMROL PANQ

cwmots          cubs fe Cu ostae Wrd oe axostae curnsfde

II° s Artab9 14nb9 Nub9 M o4 Malo9

OFTI IS( FOR ALL)

Sbanp arm Reciral im ktt    • SHT pxlape
flarhlaster padaDe   • HYdradic Jacic

t

if i•

126



ATTACHMENT P

a  

i
a

r   (
y

o

N
p

y r

O

M M

a    '.:.... 

r

zk

i

I.oi O
Q N

O

w iF

m

a

a

m 13!       
W

o    O

i N

K r

Y j C a
a

c...'.:' 
U .   

L
V

C

a   C L.

S n
g x

a,       hv
0 0
h MO
i")       

a
a

o',       cWo M 
o

a 

oEj '""'   "    
O g

U
m ,    

N c
0    '      n-.

0
L
t

127



128



ITEM 4. 9

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE PURCHASE OF THREE VEHICLES FOR

PUBLIC WORKS,   UTILITIES,   AND MAINTENANCE

SERVICES DEPARTMENTS AND RELATED BUDGET

AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Approving the Purchase of Three
3) City Vehicles from American Chevrolet for Public

Works,     Utilities,     and Maintenance Services

Departments and Related Budget Amendment.

SUMMARY:

The City operates and maintains a fleet of work vehicles for the purpose of inspecting,
maintaining and operating City facilities and infrastructure. Due to the growth of the
City and its operations additional fleet vehicles are needed for staff to continue to
efficiently perform Citywide maintenance and repairs.   Staff is requesting Council
approval of the purchase of the following vehicles:

Tota I

Division Vehicle Quantity Price per Extended

Description Vehicle Price

Including Tax,
Licensing and

Fees

Maintenance 2022 Chevrolet 2 37, 090 74, 180

Services Silverado 2500HD

4WD

Utilities 2021 Chevrolet 1 154, 884 154, 884

Silverado MD Crane

Bod

Subtotal 229, 064

BACKGROUND:

The City operates and maintains a fleet of work vehicles for the purpose of inspecting,
maintaining and operating City facilities and infrastructure. The current approved FY
2021- 22 budget includes $ 190, 000 for the purchase of one ( 1) Chevrolet Silverado

2500 and one ( 1) Chevrolet Silverado MD with Crane Body Truck. Staff is requesting
a budget amendment of an additional  $ 53, 000 for the purchase of an additional
Chevrolet Silverado 2500 Truck and the installation of additional equipment such as

safety lighting and lift gate.  Staff requested quotes from multiple dealerships which
included a proposal from American Chevrolet,  a Chevrolet dealer in Modesto.   In

129



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE PURCHASE OF THREE VEHICLES FOR PUBLIC WORKS, UTILITIES,

AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES DEPARTMENTS AND RELATED BUDGET

AMENDMENT

accordance with LMC sections 2. 36. 050( D) and 2. 36. 110( B) the pricing provided by
American Chevrolet is through the Government Pricing contract and was also the
lowest of the quotes received.

RECOMMENDATION:

Due to the growth of the City and its operations,  staff is requesting approval to
purchase three ( 3) additional vehicles which will maximize the efficiency of staff time
needed to perform Citywide maintenance and repairs.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The approved FY 2021- 22 budget included $ 190, 000 for the purchase of one 2022
Chevrolet Silverado 2500 HD and one Chevrolet Silverado MD with a crane body.
Staff is requesting Council approve the purchase of an additional Chevrolet Silverado
2500HD to meet the needs of the City Wide Maintenance needs.

Staff is requesting Council approve a budget amendment of $ 53, 000 which will

include $ 48, 000 to be transferred from Park Maintenance Capital Replacement Fund,

2, 500 be transferred from the Water Capital Replacement Fund,  $ 1, 500 will be

transferred from the MWQCF Collection System Fund, and $ 1, 000 will be transferred

from the MBR West Sewer Fund to fund the project as follows:

Decrease - Capital Replacement

1010- 243- 00- 00 48, 000

Park & Landscape Maintenance Capital Replacement

5620- 243- 0000 2, 500

Water Capital Replacement

Increase Appropriation

1010- 30- 10- 450- 20- 00 48, 000

Park Maintenance

5620- 50- 50- 450- 20- 00 2, 500

Water

6010- 5030- 450- 20- 00 1, 500

MWQCF Collection System

6080- 5034- 450- 20- 00 1, 000

MBR West Sewer

130



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE PURCHASE OF THREE VEHICLES FOR PUBLIC WORKS, UTILITIES,

AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES DEPARTMENTS AND RELATED BUDGET

AMENDMENT

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop approving a Budget
Amendment and Purchase of Three  ( 3)  City Vehicles from American
Chevrolet for Public Works, Utilities, and Maintenance Services Department.

B.  Quote - ( 2) 2022 Chevrolet Silverado 2500HD 4WD

C.  Quote - 2021 Chevrolet Silverado MD Crane Body

131



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE PURCHASE OF THREE VEHICLES FOR PUBLIC WORKS, UTILITIES,

AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES DEPARTMENTS AND RELATED BUDGET

AMENDMENT

APPROVALS:

U• S'• 2 2

Z chary Jo e Date

Director of Parks, Recreation and

Mainte ance S     ' es

a-/'

Cari Jame Date

Director f Finance

lo - Z zl

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

l0• l0 7!
St en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

132



ATTACHMENT A

RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF THREE ( 3) CITY VEHICLES FROM

AMERICAN CHEVROLET, FOR PUBLIC WORKS, UTILITIES, AND

MAINTENANCE SERVICES DEPARTMENTS AND RELATED BUDGET

AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, the City operates and maintains a fleet of work vehicles for the
purpose of inspecting, maintaining and operating City facilities and infrastructure;
and

WHEREAS, due to the growth of the City and its operations, additional fleet
vehicles will minimize the number of staff hours needed to perform Citywide
maintenance and repairs; and

WHEREAS, staff requested multiple proposals from various dealerships; and

WHEREAS, the proposal, from American Chevrolet, a Chevrolet Dealer in
Modesto was the lowest priced quote received; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with LMC sections 2. 36. 050( D) and 2. 36. 110( B) the

pricing provided by American Chevrolet is through the Government Pricing contract
and was also the lowest of the quotes received.

WHEREAS, staff is requesting Council approve the purchase of the following
vehicles:

Extended

Division Vehicle Quantity Price per Price

Description Vehicle      ( Including Tax,
Licensing and

Fees

Maintenance 2022 Chevrolet 2 37, 090 74, 180

Services Silverado 2500HD

4WD

Utility 2021 Chevrolet 1 154, 884 154, 884

Maintenance Silverado MD Crane

Bod

Subtotal 229, 064

WHEREAS, the adopted Fiscal Year 2021/ 22 Budget included $ 190, 000 for

one ( 1) Chevrolet Silverado 2500 HD 4WD and one ( 1) Chevrolet Silverado MD with

Crane Body; and

WHEREAS, staff is requesting a budget amendment of $ 53, 000 for an

additional one ( 1) Chevrolet Silverado 2500HD 4WD with lift gate and safety
lighting.

133



ATTACHMENT A

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the purchase of three ( 3) City vehicles from American
Chevrolet, assigned to Maintenance Services and Utility Maintenance division.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
approve a budget amendment of $ 53, 000 to the adopted Fiscal Year 2021/ 22

Budget as follows:

Decrease - Capital Replacement

1010- 243- 00- 00 48, 000

Park & Landscape Maintenance Capital Replacement

5620- 243- 0000 2, 500

Water Capital Replacement

Increase Appropriation

1010- 30- 10- 450- 20- 00 48, 000

Park Maintenance

5620- 50- 50- 450- 20- 00 2, 500

Water

6010- 5030- 450- 20- 00 1, 500

MWQCF Collection System

6080- 5034- 450- 20- 00 1, 000

MBR West Sewer

134



ATTACHMENT A

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11th day of October,
2021, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

135



ATTACHMENT B

Dealership informatian
Zach Riedinger

leei Manager

American Chevrolet

4742 Mchenry Ave
Modesto, Ca 95356

209. 648. 8285

zriedinger a americanchevrolet. com

Prepared By;

This documenl oonlaias infigrmeGon cansldared CanTdenliai bahv6en GM enC ita Cieni uniquety_ The in[ormalron provided ia nol int0ndbd for pub(ic disdosure. Piicee, 
ped sa8ons, end avai4 blilry are subJect io change wkhout notica, end do noi inGude certa i tees, taxes and chargas t a may be requ rod by law rx vary by manufeuurer or roqlon.

Pedormanca fipurea are guldelines only, and aGuaf pe fotrnance may vary. P' fiotos may not rapreseni acwal vehicie or ezacl conliguratlone. Cqntent based on report prepana n
input i wbject tp Iha accuracy at tha input pmvided.
Data Venlan: 14803, baia Upda ed: Sep 27, 2021 11: 54. 00 PM POT.
e..,,._...__. w._.,,...._.....  __ _.__     

5aP 28. 2421
Paye 1

136



Vehicle: [ Fieet] 2022 Chevrolet Siiverado 2500HD CK20743) 4WD Crew Cab 159" Work Truck  
Complete}

Quate Worksheet
a.—__ .   _  _       

T    . _  _       _ M, ttP
j Base Pnce

42, SU0.00
dest Charge

t, 695. 00

o4a1 Opkions   _ _ _ 1, 035.Q0
64-

Subtotal M' a45 3, 0
User lierrt

v.._.     

0. 00

q

Subtatai Pre- Tax AdJustments 0. 00

Less Customer Discouni
11, 425. 00

3ub#atal Discount    ,'     11, 425. 00
u.._.___...:....._____

Trade- In
4. 00

I._._.  __ __    Subtotal7radedn            SO; Ob
a.. m_....__.

T able Prtoe   `.:   .     534, l05:A0w_   

SalesTax
r..  ____ .. .  8. 75%       2, 984. 18

Subtotal Ta ces    `: k  ,. ,r_ ,..
0  ._       _    32;984; 19.

4
t_     ___.

Subtotal Post T Ad; eestnie,nb. ,.   ',,.     _ : 50, 00:
e __ v __ ....

nm r

r_...._..
otal Sales Pr1c     S37 Q89: l 9

Dealer Signafurs/ DaEe Customer Signature/ Dake

This document conlairts infamatlon conaidared Confb9nNa1 hetwean GAA and its C enis uniquely. ihe iniamaGWn pravided is not tntendeG fpr public dEsclpsure. Prkms,
apodticetions, and aysilab l ty are avbJeci to eAange witlwut notico, gnd do noS Guda ceRoln feei. taxes and charges Ihat may be requJred 6y law a vary Dy manufecWter or reyion,
Perfarmanca 8gutes are guideknes anly, and acwak pedamense may vary, Photo may not represent actual vehicles or axael canf gwaGau. Contsnt Da eC on report preparer
input a aubJect ta 1t a acevrooy af Ihe inpvt providad,
Data Vetslor: 1dgQa. pala Updatod: 5ap 27, 202f 1 i. 5A: 00 PM ADT.

Sep 28. 2021    _..'__..__......._.,_...,  ___ _   
x ._'       

Pe9e 2

137



a

Vehicle: [ lee#) 2022 Chevrolet Silverado 2500HD ( CK20743} 4WD Crew Cab 15J" tNork Tn ck  :?compiele)

Technical Specifications

Powe' b ln t';     j.     ¢-    =
F "  {$'#`

y`

a.` rYl..2' Ps

f

j...+p

t`; txyaF7..' A' f.
t: t. r,;

Tranamission

Dr3vetrain Faur Wheel Drive Trans Order Code ryYp

Trans Type 6 Trans DescripGon Cont.      Automatic

Trans Description Cont. Again NIA First Gear Ra#io(: i) 4.fl3

Secar; d Gear Ratio(: 1}      2.36 Third Gaar ftatio(: 1} 3

Fourth Gear i2st(a(' 1)       E. tS Fifth Gear RaGo(: 1) 0.$ 5

Sixth Gear Ratio(: 1}   •     4. 87 Reverse Ratio(: 1}   3, g

Clutch Size N/ A Trans Power Take Qtf wA

Final Qrive A cle Ratio(; 1)    N!p Transter CaSe IVIode1 Magna MP162516

Transter Case Gear Ratio{. 1), High 1. 00 Transfer Case Gear F atio(: 1}, ow 2, 72
Transfer Case Pawer Take O f NJA

M! loage

EPA Fuel Economy Est- Nwy NfA Cruising Range- City NIA

EPA Fual Economy st- City N/ A Fuel Economy Est-CorrtbEned t/ q

Cruising Range- Hwy NIA

Engine

Engtne Order Code L8T Engina 7ype Gas V8

il

Oisp acamant 6. 6U400 Fuel Syslem Direct InJection
SAE Net Horsepower{ a RPM d01 a 5200 SAE Net Torque aQ RPM 4G4 Q Q000
Engine Oil Cooler Yes

Efectrical

Cold Cranking Amps(} 0° F{ Primary}       720 Cald Cranking Amps @ 0' F 2nd}   l UA

Cold Cranking Amps @ Q' F( 3rd)    NIA t+haximum Altemator Capacity( amps} 170

Coo4ng System

To#ai Cooling System Capeciiy N! A

r,...

fhis document cantsin} ntom ation considered ConCrdentlai behyean GM and it Clienb uniquefy_ The Intormatian prov ded ia t intgndod for pubiic dtsttosure, prfce, 
specifications. and eva labflity are su4ject to Ct anga withuut natice, end da not inGude ccttairs fess, taxes and charges that may b8 tet} uirad by tew or vary py manufecturer ar region,
Aertormenc9 fiiguree are gutdelines ony, ar p actuat performance may y2ry. ph ros may not repro ent acnral v¢hitiles a ezact conRgur tiorts. Conleni ba ed on repart prop8reryInput is euojact to ihe eccuracy of U, e input D ded,

Oata VerSfon: 14' 774. DaW tlpdaied: Sep 24, 2021 2;52:90 AM PDF.
r_,.___  .. _

V . .

Sep24, 2412t

Paga 3

138



s

Vehicle: [ Fieet] 2022 Chevralet Silverado 2500HD CK20743) 4WD Crew Cab 159" Work Truck  {.Camplete j

1 19      :    c   ;      . .
x      _

ff y .=` y  b..
t',-. a.. r r,:.z.

Emissiatss

Tons/ yr of CO2 Em3ssfons 15K mUyear NIA EPA Greenhouse Gas Score N1A

L i . =,.       
e,

t.      ,.     " S'    y  !     •,

f,  S i V t y '
y       .    02a k3'  -.{,_.

a ... . 4 .       .

Weight InPorrstation

8tanderci Weighi- Front O. bO ibs Standard Wefght- Rear 0. 00 Ibs
8ase Curb Weight N/ A Gross Axle Wt Ralirrg- Front 4800 tbs
Gross AxOe Wt Rating- Rear 6390 Ibs Curb We3ght- Fron! 3849 Ibs
Curb Weight- Rear 278411as Oplian Weight- Front 4.40! s
Option Weight- Rear 0. 00 ibs Reserve Aac1e CapacHy- Front 851. 00 ibs
Reserve F,xle Capacity- Rear 3808, 4414s As Spec' d Curb Weigh{      6833. Q0 Ibs
As Spec'd Payload 3387. dO lbs Ma mum Payload Capacity 3367. OU Ibs'
Gross Combined Wt Rating 24QOD Ebs Gross Axle Weight Raling 11190. 40 Ibs
Curb Weight 6633. QO Ibs Reserve Axte Capacity 4557. 00 Ibs
Tatal Optian Wetght q,00 Ibs Pay(aad Weight Front O ibs
Payload Weight Rear 0 Ibs Gross Vehicte Weight Rating 10000. 00 Ibs

7rai3ering

Dead Weight Hilch- Max i'railer Wt. 5QOO Ibs Dead Weight Nitch- Max Tongue Wt. 500 Ibs
Wt p stributing Hiich- Max Trailer Wk. 145t10 Ibs Wi Diatributing HKch- Max Tongue Wt.       145d Ibs
Fifth Wheel Hitch- Max Traifer WL 18650 Ibs Fifth Whee1 Hftch- t 1ax TQngue Wt,  Q162 Ibs

Maximum Traifering Capacity 1850d Ibs

Frame

Frame 7' yp  Hydraformed Sect Madulus Raits On1y N!A

Frame RBM N/ A rame Strenglh N/A

Frame Thickness N! A

Suspensfon

Suspension Type- Front ShorVLong Arm 5uspension Type- Rear Mu ti eaf Springs

Spring Capacity- Front N! A Spring Capacity- Rear N/ A

Thia dacument containa infa

tion cOnsidereC Confidenliai between GM and ib Clienl unSquefy The lnt rmalien provided is na intended for puhHC Q xbsure. Prita,
apxiRcabons, ana ava: 4ibiYty are subJec to change without notfce, 8nd do nai include eertaa fees, taxee and chazges IAat may be requirad by iaw or vaty by menutac4urer orregion.
Pe lormenee i'iguroa are Quide(ine only, a d acWnl peKormersc nwy vary, Photos may rrot repre arn ecival vehkfee or exact aonBgurei oni. Conceot paeed an epo r p,r pareryAU= n+) ect ta the oxuraay pt tha I put provided.
aata Yerslon: 147Tq. pb j Updated: 5ep 24, 2Q21 t2 2;00 AM PDT.

Sep 24, 2U27
Psge 4

139



Y  -

Vehicle. [ FleetJ 2022 Chevralet Si(verado 2500HD { CK20743) 4WD Crew Cab 159" Wor1c Truck  
Complete}

C tas s E

r
s   '     

Suspensian

Axie Type- Front NtA Axle Type- Rear N/ A

A cle Capacity- Front N/ A AxEs Capaaity- Rear N! p

A cie Ra#io{: i j- Front 3. 73 Axie Ratio{: i)- f2ear 3. 73

Shock Absorber Diameter- Frant 51. 0 mm 5hock Absarber Diameter- Rear 51. 0 mm

Slabitizer Sdr Diarneisr- Front 4. 38 3n Stabiiizer 8ar Dlameter- Rear NIA

Tires

Front Tire Order Code QHQ Ftear Tire Order Code QHf

5pare Tire Orcler Code ZHCt Frnnt Tire Size i. T245i75R17E

Rear Tlre Size T245/ 75R17E Spare i'ire Size 4T2A5( 7 R17E

Front Tire CapaCity NtA Rear Tire Capacity N1A

Spare Tire Capacity N!A RevolutionstMfle a 45 mph- Frant N(A

Revolutions/ Mile @ 45 mph- Rear N/ A iievolutionsiMite @ 45 mph- Spare IV/ A

VYheets

Fmnk Whee) Size 97 x- TBd- in Rear Whee! Size 17 x- 78D- En

Spare Wheel 5ize i7 x- l'BD- in ront Whee! Maierial 5teeE  

Rear Whesl Materia! Steel Spare Wheel Materiaf Steei

Sfesrlrtg

Steerin9 YP Fwr Steering Ratio(; 1), Overatl N/ A

Steering Ratio(: i), On Center N!A Steering Ratio(: 1), At Lock N/ q

Tuming Diameter- Curb to Curb 52. 7 ft Tuming diameter- Wa11 to Wall N/ A

Brakes

Brake' fype Pwr Brake ABS System 4-Wheel

Brdke ABS 5ystem( Secand Line)    NIA isc- Front{ Yes or  )       y g

Disc- Rear( Yes or } Yes Front 6rake Rotor Diam x Thlckness 14. 0 x 1. 6 in

Rear Brake Rotor Diarn x 3' hickness E4. 1 x' i. 3 In Drum Reor( Yes or }       N! A

Rear Drum Oiam x Width N! A

Thie docament co»tains information con idered Confidential Eetween GM and tb GIIenU unlQuety ihe intormallon provided is not Inknded tar puMic dlxbwre. Prices,
sp ciflwUor s, and eveilabibry ere subjsct w change wftfiout notice, and uo not induda ocrtain lees, tazes and cna goo mat rnay ba req irod by tavr ar vary by manutacwrer or reyion.
Perlormance fipures ero puid tiney onty, and actual peAormance may vary. Photas may not repretent oct ai vehieles w axact conGguratlorrs. CoMeM baaed on raport prepa; er' e
tnput u subJeci to the aacuracy of the lnput provklal,
Data Versipn tq774 Data UpdateC Sep 24, 2p21 12.52:00 AM pp3,

Sep29. 202t      "_ _ .

m..__   

Pagn 5

140



Vehicie: [ Fleet 2022 Chevro3et Si verado 2500HD ( CK20743) 4WD Crew Cab 158° Wflrk Truck  e9Camplete j

Cha`sisls 4 f ,;,

i      . 
Y,  W. 1.. ,;..

Fuet Tank

Fue] Tank Capacity, Apprax 3B ga9 Aux Fuel 7ank Capaciiy, Approx y/A

Fuel Tank Location N1A Aux Fuei Tank Location N/p

ElT Tl Irlsloll                f   

C   . _..,  
3 f   : : s;'

i t  . 5t, .

Intartor Dimanaions

Passsnger Capacity 6 Front Nead Roam 43, U3 in

Frant Leg Ropm q4. 53 in Frant Shoulder f?oom 66.021n
Front Hip Room 61. t$ in Secc nd Eiead Room 44, 12 in

Set and! eg Room 43.A In Second Shoulder Room 6b. 3 In

Seco d Hip Raom 80.24 in

xiarlar Dimensions

Wheelbase 158. 94 tn length, Overap w/ o rear bumper N/A

Length, Overall w/ rear bumpsr tVlA length, Overatl 249. 95 in

Width, Max w/o mRrrors 81. 8a In Ftelghk. Overall 79. 82 in

Ovefiang, Front N! A Ovefiang, Rear wto bumper q

Frant Bumper to Hsck of Cab htlA Cab fo Axle a2. 

Cab to End of Frame N/ A Ground to Top of Laad FJoar Ilq

Ground to Top of Frame N!A Frame Width, Rear WA

Ground Clsarance, Front 10. 12 in Ground Ctearance, Rear 10. 12 in

Body Length 0. 00 fi Cab ia BodY N/A

Cargo Area Dimenslans

Cargo 8ox Length Q Floor 82.25 in Cargo Bflx Width @ Top, Rear N/ A

Cargo Box W(dth @ Floor 71. 4 in Carga Hox dth @ Wheslhausings 51. 85 in

Cargo 8ox( Areaj Height 21 in Teilgate Width q

Cargo Volume 69. 5 tt' Exi'd Gah Cargo Volume q

r_.__.._.

W .....

Thie clocument conteins iNormetian con idered ConAdenti bclween GM and fls GdEnU untquely The tntoRnation providad Is no! Interxl4d for puhlfc disclosure, Ptioea,
apedfications, arul avaiyt Ity are auCJeU to Change wi houl notice, and do no( include eertein tees, taxei and Giarpe that may 4e required by Iaw or uary by manufaaurar or regbn.
PeHorrnar,ce flgures am yuldeliney onty, snd actual performarice may vay, pt otos moy o represens ea ual vehklea or exaet configurotia s. Conient bdsed on repon preparerbinput b wbjed to ihe axuracy of ihe input provided
OaW Versioq: 14T74, Dala Updeted: Sep 24, 2lf21 12 52;00 AM ppT.

m. __,..       ,      .__

Sep 24 2t3] 1
Pape 6

141



Vehicie: [Fleet 2022 Chevrolet Silverado 2 OOHD ( CK2p743) 4WD Craw Cab 159" Woric Truck tco, Prei

Selected Model and Clptians
r} +

i/ LJ. r i  
y       ...

rr fi
3     

i.;      .
m. s C' ';

CODE fNdDEt.      
MSRP

GK247A3 2Q22 Chevrolet Silverado 2500ND 4WQ Crew Cab 159„ wo k Truck a2,800.U0

co o' s   a t r     -={

r==coo       DESCf21PT10N

G Summit Whit

M ss a s          A:

1` C'  hf#,*Y'°"
a 

l': e.: t2C4DE DE8Ct2{ P' i l̀ON
MSRP

YF5 Emissions, Ca1i(omfa staie requfremenis
50. 00

NI IN  '= 
i  {     '

s a:.'
COdE DESCRfPTIOt 

MSRi'
L8' f Engina, 6. 6L VS

0. 00

r' a is ioN 7,,< .

x;,;;
CClDE QESCRIPTION

M

MSRP
MYO Transmisslon, 6- spegd automatic, heavy- duty O, fl

cvv`R    . y.
r  . ,   

r

rK ;.;.    x ,    ,   ;,}

V_' T, s FCODE DESCRIPTION
MSRP

CTA owered GVWR, i0,040 ibs:{ 4538 kg}  a, D4

F CqSiA 9* ;  a     ;; .. ..  . 

J'..
41

t  .-  ..', ,.-  
3;       z.< 7 4'F r-' M,.. s

r ,  i „*?tL;.
CO[ E DESCRlPTIUN

MSRP

GT4 Rear a e, 3. 73 retio
0,04

iti R 
4

b EQt( PMEt i, GRQl1P r:y":}
t,'

CODE DESCRiPT10N YLMSRP
11NT Work Truck Preferred EquEpment Group Q '

Thi;

mani eontalns intomtat3on tan idered ConfidenUa! beMreen GM and ile Ci enis unkqvaly. The Mlarmation providgd ia not iMetxtad for pubpc d(aeloaurs. P iCes,
padflcaGans, erx! avaitab; ily are ubjec! to chenge wqhou nobca, and do nol include eenain fees, t xes and charges that rnay be requirod by law w vary by mnnafaaturer or region,

PeAormance fpures aro guideline oniy, and actual peHortnance may vary Pholos muy not repr yent aclvsl rehft3ea w axaC ppn( IpuraGans, Contant based o report prapararsfnpul ia sub ect to the ecwraCy oi f e{ nput provided
Oata Vanson; 14774. Data Updated: Sep 2d, 2U21 12: 52: Otl AM PDT

seQ 2a, 2az 

Page

142



Vehicie; [ FleetJ 2022 Chevralet Si verado 2500HD ( CK20743) 4WD Crew Cab 159" Work Truck t icomplete)

EELS F   

e. .,,

CODE DESCRIP' TION
MSRP

Y Wheels, 17"{ 43.2 cm) painted steel, Silver
O. QQ

w    _

fIF2 5     

CODE DESCRIPTION
MSRP

C1HCi Tires, T245/ 75R17E al]- season, btackwail
O. QO

SPA E
z ''+-

Z•      t a  .  
3  .

y

f      :    F   {..  ? 

F.C' i ;..1.   ,
CODE DESCRIPTION

MSRP
ZHQ fire, spare LT245/ 75R17E a!!- seasan, blackwaii

Inc.

t 151 If l' '     
t' f{'

coo       a scR PrioN
MSRP

GAZ Summ':t Whfte
SO. OQ

a '        
t , x€,? -,..-     :'   ,  h.  ,    ;. "'"

H, ,,;  };
n,,.;D       DESCRIPTiON

MSftP
AE7 5eats, firont 40120140 spEil- bench

O. a

z SE, d T;`!'# IAd`      ,       r,     ,.
i  '    

T- Y C`
3` i'_iy il.

F',_- T3., 1, i.., 4,;, --,CObE dESCRIPTION
MSRP

H2G Jet 81ack, Vinyl seat Er3m
a

oro'         Y

k 3 E F,

lp'' s' ' sif"#` L Gt r v;F+
V" y{.`, c2 i i.:. s

4 ; y` r«.  u

CODE t3ESCRIPTION
MSRP

IQR Audia system, C4evrolet Infotainment 3 system 0

aAiJDi' i'i SNAL QUipN1 NT'- PAGISAGE i,      44., R',} f{ {
i.'. 1f' ,,,.,,b, tr1` '` rr, k:+ d
i, 7 ..`.,", i t}` Y l a: t 5.' ,'CaDE DESCRIPTI4N

MSRF
ZLQ WT Fleet Gonvenience PaCkage

s

Ths documant wntains Entorrr lion co sideml Cqrtk lenGet batween 4h1 and its Clients uniquely The iniormation provWed Ie not intended for pu6fic disclooure. Prices,epeaflcaBans, and avaiWDiBty orp subJect ttl chsnge wilhaut npt3cp, and do not nciude certain ices, tazes er Q tl3arges U at may be Wrud py law or vary by manu aeturer or raglnn.
Farformance GQurgs aro Qufdb' inta only, end acNal peAormence may vary Phatoe may nqt roprcsont actual vehickv3 qr er,atl mnfipuratiana. Contant based on report preparerainput ia sub ect to the accurncy p! ihe Input provided,
Data Yersipn. 1. tT7A, Oata Upclsied: Sep 24, 2Q21 12:52: Q0 AM P07.

5e 24, 2021     _._,___._   _     _   ___  . .  _   

Page 8

143



Vehicfe: [ Fleet) 2022 ChevroleE Silverado 2500HD ( CK20 43) 4W0 Crew Cab 159" Work Truck t 4'Gomplele)

Aa 11 C) i1 1: QUIPMENT- MECHANICAL    
r.   ti ,  

6      -r k  ....  ..
i..

i ' r

COOE DESCRIPTION
MgRP    '

JC.1 Trailer hrake controiler, integrated
27$, OQ

CS[? I7' 14 I C EQUIF! NfENT.• EX'fERiAR 34     r A,,i.
z.,:  .;_.,,:. :

CODE DESCRlPTION
Mg

OBG Mirrors, outside powar- adjustab( e veriical tralfering
QT5 Tailgate, gata function rnanual with EZ titt

nc.

F yL

ADC T aL.EQt13t M NT- IN' T' ERIOR
g. y  ..        . .- '  

i4_,= d`.x4.
T' F'... i...c X.  _ '``+

1s

CODE       ESCRIPTION
MSRp

Ya

AQCt Remole Keyless Entry
Mc,

K3d Cruise c ntrol, electror lc
Ina.

Options Toia(
51, 435. U0

This document cpnfains iniorma ion ns dered ConBdantlai beMreen GM end ita Clients uniqusiy. T'h9 mfp mal'ron providecl i8 not Inten4ed iw pubOc dtsdoscsro. PtiC6S,
ap8dfieations, and evaHabflJry erb wbjeCi! a chenge wtshou npdte, erW da ot include cettain fee3, 4 xea an6 eharqes that may be required by law or vary by manufaeturer or re{?ion.
Petformance flgurpa are guidalfne9 aily, and acwai pedwenance may rary phetos may nat represent actual vetdcies ur e wct configvratiorm, Gontent baaed on ropon preparereinput is evbjecl to thg aocur,scy pf ths Ir pul pmvided.
Data Version: 14774, pata Updated Sep 24, 2021 12:52 Q0 A 1 POT.

Sep 24, 2021
Page 9

144



Vehicle: jFleet] 2022 Chevrolet Silverado 500HD ( CK20743) 4Wd Crew Cab ' i59" Work Truck  ricomp ete)

S#andard Equipmen#

ackage`   : r   

r . ;  :

Trailering Package Includes trafter hitch, 7- pin con ector and{ C7T} liftch Guldance{ Deleted when( ZW9}
plckup bed deloie is ordered)

M an':     y,

Dura6ed, plCkup bed

Engine, 6. 6L V$ with Direct Injection ancf Varieble Va{ve Timing, gasoline,( 401 hp[ 299 kWj aQ 5204 rpm, A6416ft of torque[ 629 N- m) Q 4000 rpm}( STD)

T' ransmission, 8- speed automaiic, heavy- duty{ STQj( Requ tes{(. 8T) 6. 81. V8 gas engiqe,)
Rear axle, 3.73 ratio( Requires{ 8T) 6. 6L V8 gas engine. Not available with( i. SP) puram 6.8l. Turba- 0lesel
V8 engine.}

GiiWR, 1D, 4501bs.{ 4740 kgj{ STD}( Inciuded and only avaiiabie w3th CK2U743 modei and( lBT} 6.6L VB gasengfne with 17" wheeEs or CK20903 model and( L8T} 6,6L V8 gas engfne wilh 1$" ar 20" wheeEs.}

Air filker, heavy- tiuty

Air filtration manftaring

Transfer cass, twa.speed eiectronic shlR with push bution controts{ Requires 4WD models.)
Auto- lackFng rear differe tial

Four wheel drive

Cooling, extemal engine oil cooler

Cooling, auxiEiary extemal transmission oii cooler

Batiery, heavy-doty 720 cotd• cranking amps/ 84 Amp-hr maintenancs-fres with rundown protection and retained
accsssory pawer( Included and only available with{ L8T) 8. 6L V8 gas engine.}

Aiternalor, 170 amps{ Requires( LST} 6, 61 V8 gas ongine,)

Frdme, fully-boxed, hydrofarmed front section and a tuliy-boxed slamped rear section
Recovery hooks, fmnt, frame- mounted, Slack

Suspens[ on Package

Steering, Recirculating 8atf with smart( low power steering system
Brakes, 4- wheel antilock, 4-wheel disc wilh DURAIIFE rotors

Brake lining wear indicator

Caplesa Fuel Fill{ Requires( L8T} 6.6L YS gas engine. f ot available with{ ZW9) pickup bed defete j
6h1,'' "    t

f:      yF j " f,`' f r
Whee(s, 17"{ 43.2 cm) psinted skeel, Sitver{ STQ)     

Tires, LT245t75R17E all- season, btackwall( 5TDj
St iS documen! cantains Intom aa0n wnstdered Confidenttal betwean GM and it CGen(s un{ guely. The( ntamsauan providad ia nat intended fot pubFcs dt dowre. Pdtea,
peci catlona, and evaifability aro suajeci lo charge wfthoul nutice„ imd da nat include certain kee. taxes arnt rharqes that may be requlred 6y k w or vpry by manufatturor or regbn.Pe iortnance fpures arc

deiines only, end sctual perfwinance may v ry, Phaton may not represent actual vehictea or ezact contfguretione. Contant baaed on report prepara' sinput i 1ub)eci to Ihe CCCura y of the input prOvided.
Oota Varabn iA7) q, Oala Vpdated: Sep 24, 202 12S2; pp AM pDT.

V ,___

Sap24. 2021 k,..   

Psgo 10

145



ro

Vehicle: [ Fleet] 2422 Chevrolet Siiverado 2500Nd ( CK20743) 4WD Crew Cab 159" Wark Truck  i`Complete)

t# i+ r _   r+:       .
x    ,;'„ wr    .

r x r`;  .;. ri;  •

Tire, spare LF245/ 75F217E ail- season, blacicwall( STD)( fncluded and only available with( QHQ) LT245R5R17E
all- season, blackwafi tires with( E63) Durabed, p3ckup bed. Available to order when{ ZW9} pickup bed delete
and( QFiQj LT245t75R17E alt-season, blackwall tires are ordered,}

lire carrier iock keyed cylinder lock that utifizes same key as ignatian and doar( Deteted wikh{ ZVi/ 9) pickup beddelete.}

8umpers, front, 81ack

Bumpers, rear, Blacls

CornerStep, rear bumper

BedStep,$ t ck( ntegrated o iorward po tinn oE bed on driver and passenger side( Deleted whe{ ZW9) pickupbed delete is ordered,)

Moldings, beltline, Hlack

Cargo lie downs( i2), fixed rated at 5001hs per comer( Deleted with{ ZW9) pickup bed delete.}
GriEle( Front grille bar wiih" CHE1/ ROI. ET' mqided in 81ack, inciudes 81ack mesh Inserts with smali Go1d 6owtie
emblem.)

Headiamps, halogen reflsctor with halogen Daytime Runniny I. amps
Taifiamps with incandescent taif, stop and reverse Iights

lamps, cargo area, cab moun, ed integrated with cenEer high mount stop lamp, wlth awitch In bank on left slde of
stee ing wheel

Mlrrots, outside hfgh- visibiliry vertical# rallerirtig lower convex mirrors, manual- folding/ extending( extends 3. 31"84.25mm), malded in Black

MirroFcaps, Black

Glass, solar absor6=ng, tinted

Taitgate, standard{ Qeieted with( ZW9) pickup bed delete.)

Tailgate and bed raii protection cap, iop

Teilgate, locking, uii3izes same key as ignition and door{ Upgraded to( QT5} EZ Lift power bck and release
tallgate when( ZLQ) WT Fleet Convenlence Package or( PCV} WT Convenience Package is ordered. Not
av&ilab(s with( ZW9j pickup bed detete.}

Taiigaie, gate funetion manuai, no EZ tift t0e eted with( ZW9} pickup bed delele,)
Doar hancEfes, 81ack grained

Ent itairiti eijE
k

r:>-    ;,

Audio system, Chevrolet Infotsinmenl3 system 7" diagonal color touchscreen, AMI M stereo Additianal
features for compatibla phones include- Bluetooth audio streamit g far 2 ective devices, vaice command pass-
through to phone, wired Apple CarPtay and Android Auio capat le.( STD}

Audio system feature, 6- speaker system{ ReqUires Crew Cab or double Cab modeL?

This tlocumenl conW(ns Inlortnatlon considettd Confidentia( hehvetn GPd and its Co9nta tpt[qualy fie Mtomtation providgt! Is noS Interxfad( o pubhc disqosuta Pricsa,
apedfcatione, end eva taDility are sub)ect to change wiltoui naGce, and do not inclvde certein feee, ta ea and dsaryes lhai m y be required by Iaw or vary by manufadurer or rqgion,
Perfortnance frpuree are Qui4elines o ly, and ectuat perforrrr nce may vary Photoa may not repreneM ach al veh±cks or exaa conliquraliens Content Lesed on repan preparersinput Ea eub)ect to ihs aa raCy ol the input pruviCed
Oeta Venion; 14TT4. D ts Upcieiec Sep 24, 2p2 12 52' 40 AM PQT,

Sop 24. 202f ,.! ._

v ._.. . _   . .  

Paga 11

146



c

Vehicle: [' leatj 2022 Chevrolet Silverado 2500MD ( CK20743} 4WD Crew Cab 159" Work Truck  ' rcomprete j

p'  .   

n#er; aii y y   {       11 I i    -  p.,       ,

i

Bluetooth far phane connectiv ty to vehfcie lnEatainment system
IC1E@t OC , .. '

k   
v'>' i j

r i, t 4.{ s  ` , i,..
Seals, front d0120i4Q spl+t- bench with upper covsred armrest s. orage with tixed I mbar( STD)
V{ny sest# rim

Seat adjuster, driver 4-way rnanual

Seat adjusier, passenger 4- way manuai

Saat, rear 60140 folding bench( faids up), 3-passenger( inciudes child seat top tether anchor)( Requires Ctaw
Cab or doubte Cab model.)

Floar covering, rub}aerized- vinyl{ Not available with LPO 800r liners.}
Steering wheel, urethane

Skeering column, Tilt- Whee1, manual with wheet locking securiiy fealura

instrumertt cluster 6-gauga cluster( ea4uring spEedomei r, fuel level, engine iemperature, iachometer, voEtage
and oil pressure

Driver tnfs mration Center, 3. 5" d9agonal monflct romatic dispiay
F. cierior Temperaiute Dispiay lacated in radia disptay
Rear Seat Reminder( Requires Crew Cab qr pou61e Cab mode(.)

Wtndow, power front, drivers express up/ down( Standard on Crew Cab and Double Cab modeis. On Regular
Cah model, fnctuded and only available with( ZLQ) WT Ieet Canve ience Package or( PCVj W'!' CanvenisncePackage.}

Window, power frant, passenger express down( Starul rd on Crew Cab and Dauble ab models. On Regular
Cab model, included and only available with( ZLQ} WT Fleet Convenience Package or{ PCV) WT Convenience
Package,}

Windaws, power ear, express down{ FJot avalfable with Regular Cab madeis.)

DQor locks, power( Standard on Crew Cab and Double Cab modefs. On Regular Cab models, incEuded and oniy
available with( ZLQ} WT Fleet Convenierice Package or{ PCV) WT Conveniance Padcag,)
USg pohs, 2( rrst row) ocated on instrument panei

Power outlet, iront aux( iary, 72- volt

Air conditlaning, singie- zone

Afr vents, rear, heatinglcooling{ Noi available an Regu ar Cab mod ls.)
Mirror, inside rearview, manual ti4t

Assist handles front A-piltar mounted far driver and passenger, rear 8- piltar mounted

Th s tlocumenl cantains fntormaS}an considereC Confidentlal beN+sen GM and ita Clfents iquc3y 17ie iotormatfon providad y nai fnten0ed tor puElk diaCtocum, Price,
PeCifi a one, erfsi ovaitabi&ty ara subJect to thange wl;houi no6ce, and dn not inctuGe tertafn fees, tt xes and cherqes thaR mey 6e raquired by taw or very by manufacNrer ar re lon.

Pcrfortnance fpunea ero quldetlpes anly, and actual pedormance may vary, Ahatoc may not repreagnt actual vehkfen pr exaCt x fiqureUona. Content baeed on report proparorainput is auD ect to hg aca,ra y o( ti e input prbvided,
Data Var ton: 1A774, daW Vpdated: 3ep 24, 2p21 12: 52:Q0 AM PQT,

Sep24, 2021       _..__._.. __., -      _.  _ ___       w._.._.._.......+..,._ 

Pago 12

147



Vehicle: [ Fleet 2022 Chevrolet Silverado 2500HD CK20743) 4WD Crew Cab I59" Work Truck  <
Complete}

Saf tjrw c h̀ nical E

tt_  
r,

SlabiliTrak s( abiiity control syskem wtth Proactive Ro(I Avaidance anc! tractEon controi, lncludes electronlc trailer
sway control and hill staR assis!

Saf+fy ExEaria'r k    `,;` ,

t_.=., .

Daylime Running l. amps with automatic extenor lamp control

5a`eitjr'`-infenor F Y{.
5 a

4. f rY. ,...  ..

Aicbags, Dual-stage frontal airbags for driver and tronl outboard passenger: Seat-mounted s de- impact afrbags
iar driver and froz t aufboard passenger; Head-curtain airhags for front and rear outboard seaBng posiiians;
inctudes front outboard Passenger Sensing Sysiem for frontal outboard passengar airb8g( Always use sesi
bells and chifd restrainta. Ghildren are safer when properly secured in a rear seak in the eppropriate chitd
restraint. See the Owner' s Manual for more information.)

Rear Vislon Camera( Deieted with( ZW9) ptckup bed sSelete.}

Hitch Guidance dynamic singEe line to aid in irailer al gnment for hilch(ng( Deleted with( ZW9) pickup bed
delete.)

Teen Driver a oa figurabte feature that leis you activate customizable vehicle settings associated w{th a key fob,
ta help enaourage safe drivfng behavior. N can limit ce lain available vehicle featurss, and It prevents certaln
safery s}rstems from being turned off. An in- vehicie report card gives you information on driving habits and helps
you to conEinue ta coach your new driver

Tire Pressure Monitoring System urith Tire Fili Alert( does nol apply to spara tire)
a -:,;.

P tn h$ 4

7railering Informetfon label provtdss max trailer ratings for tongus weigh#,convenUanai, gaoseneck and 5th
wheel traEter3ng( lat avaitable wiih( ZW9} pickup bed delete. j

Wd F R1 NTY          f-:
F '

y d
li - S  1i 2

3_ r      .._.. a.....,,  .',
i...',,., ., 

i

Warranly Nota: < a< Preliminary 2022 Warranty?»
Basia Years; 3

Basic Mileslkm 36, 400

Orivekrain Years: 5

Drivetrain Miieslkrn; 60,Q00

Qrivetrain Note HO Duramax O: esel: 5 YBar51100, 440 t+ i' es; Quaiifed Flset!' urchases: 5 Years/ 10d, 000 Miles
Corrosion Years( Rust- Through): 6
Gorrosion Years: 3
Corrosion Mileslkm( Rust-Through)  i00.000

Corzosion Mi3eslkm: 36, 004

Roadside Assistance Years: 5

Roads3de Assistance Mileslkm; 84, 400

Roadside Assistance Note: HD Cluramax Diesel: 5 YearstlQq, 000 Miles; Qualified Flset Purchases; 5
Yearsii00, 000 Miles

Maintanance Note: 1 YearlS Vis€i

ihis dpcumenl contains InfarmaUon conaidered ConpdenUal trenvee GM and iL5 Clients unlqusty The iotormallan ptovided Is ot intended for pu60c tli dasura. Pdces,
ypecifiwtlan, an4 availahility are subJect to chet7ge wlthoul noti e, and dn nat incfude certafn tees, taxes end cparpeo that may ae requhed by 43w ar vary Uy manataCturor or regipn.
PeAormance rguree ere puidellnee any, and actual performenca may vary. Photo may nqt repre e t actua! vehiGes or ercaCt confpuraGans. Cont nt based on report preparors
i put[ a eubJed W the etxuraty o! ing input provided.
Oata Veraion: 14774 Deie Updeted Sep 24, 2621 12 2:Op Aft pDT.

Sep 24. 2021
Page 13

148



a 4

Vehic{e: [ Fleet] 2022 Chevrolet Silverado 2504H0 ( K20743) 4WD Crew Cab 159" Work Truck  c'

Complete)

W'rndow Sticker

s k'lfi+i rAR f# t         , h,:

r,       _  

FleetJ 2422 Chevralei Siiverado 2 OOH0( CK20743} 4WD Crew Cab 159" Work Truck MSRP.$ 42, 806. 00

IntenocJei 6lack, Vinyi seat tr n

Euterior 1: Summit White

Exterior 2:Na calor has been selected.

Englne, 6. GL V8

Transmiss{ on, 6- speed automat: c, heavyduty
h          

4 s xr- f
y ry r1'` p s z i: r a

JI. I V`'tA _ k9,      x'; c a'   Ci, f.    , le. dfii+p
3 .: Sit, , _.,- !.  _ ..: i..: a.+.-.

CODE 14AODEL MSRP

CK24743 jFleet] 2022 Chevralet Silver do 2500HD( CK24743) 4WD Crew Cab 42, 800. QQ

i 59' Work Trucic

OPYlONS

1W"t Wock Truck Preferred Equipment Group p,pp

AE7 8eats, fro t 40/ 201d0 split- bench 4.00

AQQ Remate Keylsss Entry inc.

C7A Lowered GVWR, 10,ti001bs.( 4538 kg)    0. 00

DBG MiRors, autside power- adjustabls vertical trdfle ng Inc.

GAZ Summit White p,pp

GT4 Rear exie, 3. 73 ratio Q. 00

H2G Jet 8lack, Unyl seat trim U. 00

IOR Audio system, Chevrolet Infoiainment 3 system 0.00

JL9 Traller brake cantroper, integraied 275AQ

K3d Cruise controi, etactranlc inc.

L8T cngina, 8. 8L VB p,pp

MYb Transrnisslon, 6- speed autamatic, heavy- duty 0.00

PYN Wheels, i7"( 43.2 cm) painied steel, Silver Q. 00

QHQ Tires, Li245t75R17E ell-saasan, blackwa' I so. aa

C2T5 Taiigate, gate Tunctian manual with EZ Lift Inc.

YF5 Emissions, Califamta staie requirements Q. OU

ZF{Q Tire, spare LT245/ 75R17E ai!- seasan, blackwaU Inc.

This documenl cantafrts k+fortnalton con fdered Confidenuel behs een GM and[ ts CI en4s uniquety Tha tnlormetion provided is not intendad far pubtic disctosuro. Pdces,
spadfrcations, and avaUaOqlty are aubjea to change wdhaui netice, arxf do not includa cerbM tea, taxea end charpen Uiat may be requirod by law or vary hy rrWnufactur8 or region,
PeAortnante Ggurea are gulde"Ines only, and acwa! performance may vary. Phatoa may not represem aauat vehicies or exact canRguratbns. Content based on report preparer' s
hpui is aubJect! o the eccuracy qi tha fnput pro dod.
DBta Ve sbn, iq7Ta. OSta Updated: Sep 24, 2021 12: 52: 40 Atvi PDT.

Sep 24, F421  "__   .  .     

14       

Pege 14

149



a- ,.

Vehicie: [ leet] 2022 Chevrolet Siiverado 2500HD { GK20743} 4WD Crew Gab 159" Work Truck t v
Compaete)

2LQ WT Fteei Canvenience Package 3760. 00

SUBTOTA 43, 835. 00

Adjustments Total O. Qp

pestinatian Charge 1, 695. 04

T4' iAt PRIC      aA5, 530A0

f,iitiE1` rE t 10M1' k.
t

a`;,'` ``
a l    ..... o-   '#°' .... r•... 1 ..

Est City: N/ A

Est Highway: N/ A

Est Highway Cruising Range: NlA

Thia dpcvmenl contelm Infarmalion cpnsidered Gonfidantfal ktehvicen GM and RS CNenls umqueiy. Tha fntormetion prorided is rtat EntenQod lor pubiio discbsuro. Prtcgs,
epedAcauone, arut ava fabiliry are subJect to changa witnout noUce, and da nat ndudg certa; n teae, taxes and cnarqes ihat may he raquired Dy law ar vary by manuiacturer oa roqlon.
Pedflm ance igures are guldeilnes onty, and attual perlomwnce may vary. Photos may nol repreeenl actual vehicies or e wct canCiguratiane. Content baaas! on report properers
tnput is aub ect to the eauracy ot the fnput p+uvided.
Data Version: 14774. Da a Updatad Sep 2A, 20 1 12 S2:pp AM POT.

Sep 24, 2027
Qa9 1g

150



ATTACHMENT C

Y-

Dealsrship Information
Zach RE dingar

Fleet Manager

American Chevrolet

4742 Mchenry Ave
Modesto, Ca 95356

os.saa.a2 s

zriedinger@america nch evro I et_com

Prepared By:

ihia documeni conlalns iniom albn w 9iCetad Curft denUal barivaen GM and iis CIIenW uMquely. 7t a infoanatbn provicSgd ia no1 iotended for pu68c disdoaure, Prtc y, spedficatians, and eva aabNiry are eubject to change withoul roUcc, and da rotlnUude ceAa; n t e taxes ar d charges ihdt may be requi qy y pr yery yy manufacturer ar rgpion.Pa ormance Ggursa are yuidelines aMy, and actual performanca may mry, phoios may not repre ent actual vehlclea qr p.xaci ayn{gjur tions. Cpnien! b0sed on t9poq preparorsinput la subJact lo the acwreey a( fha Input provided.
Daca Varsbn: tA774, Data Updated; Sep 24, 2021 72; 52 00 aM PpT

Sep 2a, 2021

Pagt31

151



Vehicie; j leetJ 2021 Chevrolet Silverado MD ( CC56043) 2WC? Crew Cab Work Truck  comp eta

Quote {Norksheet
e_

t__,...__.
W_._     

f    ' .,   kMSRfBase Arice

Dest Charge 53, 300. 00

Total 0 tions 6g5.

1U, 415. Q0

Sa3 total,    -      ; 85;41b: 00
Crane 8ady

m..,       
r s ____ .._

R.____ 
a2, ss. oa

Subtotal Pre- Tax Ad' ustments     '-          ' fp`   A
r._   .... 

Q t ry  -
v, ._..     . ..  .   

i. V i1Vl Y
r

ess Customer D scount
Y -    ------

6,000. 40)

Subtotaf Dtscouni
i Trade- In     _ 

6, 000. 00
e___       _ .   __

0. 00
n.E     _

m:._

Subtatal Trade- tn SOi4Q`
4._     ____.  _.   m__.     

i .  ___ V. .._., .       
Taxab-le Price 5142, 3 7.i00

Tire Wefght Tax

N

Seles i'ax 26. 64
s_  __ .

8. 75%      12. 459, 74

Sebtotal T'azes      ''     "; 12, 486. 38
Subtotal Pos!- Tax Adjustments     ,_'      ;   l  '.so:oar

Total 8ales Price,     t 5,, 883:38,

Dealer Signature! Date
Customer Signature! Date

V.___.,. __-

7hia document mntaina infortna6on wnstdered Conibential bttwgen GM a d its Cben4a unique y 1't e. nlprtnailan   ' 

l

p
g

apec: ficarions, and availabiliry ars suflject to cl angg wltnout notice, ond do not inclutle certa+ n tees, taxe9 and cha t ma bel
tended uGHe di laenro, Pricea.

PQ G e e puideiiocs on y, and actual paAarmance maY rary. Fho os may nol represenl acWal vbhi es o exau centrgwai ans, Cn cn baed on rerporl praparers

n

Input is subjecl to the ecw acy ol tl+a input pravidatl
Oata Vgnipn; 14790. Oata Updated: Sep 26, 20215. 10:00 AM PDT

T_ ..._ .__,

Sap27. 2021

Papa 1

152



tti

Vehicle: [ FIe tJ 2021 Chevrolet Silverada MD ( CC56043) 2WD Crew Cab Work Truck  { ' Complete)

Technica! Specifications
Pov+re` rain

Transmission      

Orivetrain
Rear Wheei Drive Trans f rcfer Code MBX

Trans Type 6 Tr ns Oescription Conl.      Aufomatic
Trans Descrlption Gont. Agein N/ A First Gear Ratio(: 1) 3, jp

Secand Gear Ratia(: 1}      1, 8p Thfrd Gear Ratio(: I) 4p
Fae rth Gear Ratio{: 1)       1, 00 Fifth Gear Ratio(: 1) q, p
Sixth Gear Ratio(: 1} 0. 61 Reverse Ratio(; i)   N1A
Cluich Size NIA Trans Power Taka q1f q
Final Dnve Axle Rat10{:}    N! A Transfer Gase Made1 q
Transfer Casa Power Take OFf N/A Secand Revarse Gear Rafio(: 1}     N/ A
Thlyd Reverse Gear Ratio{: 1} N/ A Fourt Reverse Gear Ratio(: 1)      NiA
F1Rh Reverse Gear Rakio(: t) tJ/ A Slxth Reverse Gear Ratio(: 1) wp
Transmissian Manufacturer Afllson Transm3ssfon 7ype A2750HS Anison

Engine

Engine Otcter Code l5D EngJne Type Turbachargad

Dtesel V8
Displacemenf 6.SU402 Fue System Direci injectian
5AE Net Horsepower RPM 350 @ 270    SAE Net Torque @ RPM 700 Q 180Q
Englne 0 1 Cooter Yes Govemed Engine Speed( RPM}     290D
Engine Saries Dura{ nax

Electrica!

Cold Cranking Amps @ 0° F{ Primary)       1104 Coid Cranking Amps 0` F( 2nd)   1pp
Co!d Cranking Amp& @ 0' F( 3rdj N/ A Maxfmum Alteme; or Capaciiy( amps) 15p

Cooltng Syatem

Total Cooling Syster» Capaaity 48 qfs

Thia document xntains informetian oon IderpC GonfidenNal 6ehreen Gf 1 and R Cfients un' uef 7he n ortnatip 

j p

spacN ceUana, snd avaiWbili, y arc aubJec! to ct,ange wiihout notice, and dv no1 inctude certake fees, tazes and cha o3tha m'py pgiroqu xed Oy law or vary by anut rer or r gionPerfarrnanaf fpurs are guldellnes only, gnd arctua per{,

may vary Phptoa mey not repreaenl actuaC Yehictes ar exact confguratiorsa. Content Oasad on report preperot' alnput ts subjeCt to Ihe eccuraCy of ttle input prpvldnd
DaW Varolon; 14774. Oata Updatcd: 9ep 2d, 2Q21 12b2:00 AM POT.

Sep 24, 102s

Paga 2

153



Vehicie: [ Fleet] 2021 Ch vrolet Silverado MD ( CC56043) 2WD Crew Cab Work Truck  { 'Jco, ete}

ehic J̀e y

r
3; 3

t     °`;;».

Vehlcle

Axfa Ratia- Low Rear(: 1}    N/ A As Spec Curb Weight- Fropt 5178. 00 Ibs
As Spec Curb Weight- Rear 3240. 0{} Ibs

rr1 Sl S
q;- c;

ti`;>
Weight Infarmatfort

Slandarci Wefght- Front O. QO ibs Standard Weight- Rear p. OQ s
Totat Weigh; a ea. oa i 5 Gross Axle Wt Rating- Froni gppp«$
Gross Axle Wt Rating- Rear 155401bs Gurb Weight- Front 5i78 Ibs
Curb Weight- Rear 3240! bs Option WeEghi- F ont p.QO Ibs
Option Weight- Rear O. QO Ibs Reserve Aacfe Capaciiy- Frant 2472. p0 tbs
Reserve, 4a le Capacity- Rear 12260. 00! bs As Spec'd Curb Weight 8418. 00 ibs
As 5pec' d Payload 15482. 40 Ibs Gross Combined Wt Rating 37000 Ibs
Cargo We?ght OA4 ibs Gross Vehicle Wef ht9 8768. 00 Ibs
Axte Weight 87&8. 00 Ibs Gross AxJe Weight Rating 23500. 00 Ibs
Curb Weight 8418. 00 Ibs ReseNe Ax1e Capaciiy 14732. 00 Ibs
T' otal Option Weighi 0. 0 ibs Payioad Weighk Front 0. 00 ibs
Payload Wefght Rear 0, 4Q tbs Maximum Axle Rasing Frant gaQp, pa bs
Maxfmum A cle Raling Rear 155Q0. 00 ibs Maxfmum Axfa Rating Tokai 23500. 40[ bs
Gross Vehicle Weighk Rating 23500. 0 Ibs ront PayLoad 350. 00 ibs
Rea Paylaad 0_041bs Total Payload Wsight( Cargo+ Oriuer+      35Q. 4Q Ibs

Body)

Frame

Frame Type High Strength Low Sect Modutus Raiis Qnly 8. 48 Front/ 10. 93
Atlay Stae1

Belly18. 47 Rear in'
Frame R8M 444000 Frame Strengkh SOd00 Ibs

FronU5465Q0

BaIly1423500 Rear

Frame Thickness Q, 312g

5uspension

Suspansion Type- Froni Mu1ti- Leai 5uspension Type- Rear MuIU- eaf

This documenl cqnta;ns Informatlom m sldered Conf+dentlal DeSween GM errd i19 Ct ents uniqe tly, The infomration provided} s not intended tar puCik discbsure, Prk,
apedl caUans, gnd evail ikty are subJeU to ehanpe wltheut noUee, and da not G clude esrWtn feea, taxe end charyes that may De requlrvQ py taw or vary by manufaettner or regfo.
Perfam nce gurea aro guidelfnee only, end acwai parfamar may vary Photas may not represent actual vehtclo or Qxact canfguraUons. CoMent based on repoR preparer' sinpW is aubJaci to the aeardcy af the lnput provideQ
Daia Venfort: 14774, Raia Updatad: Sap 24, 202' I t2S2 00 AM PpT,
R.._,_._._.....       ..._..__..._,._

S6P 24. 2021

PaQe 3

154



v :

Vehicle: [ Fieet] 202i Chevrolet Silverado MD ( CC56043) 2WD Crew Cab Wark 1' ruck  f9co, p ece}

G F'' s
w

s  
R. 

x       

Suspension

Spring Capacity- Fnant 8Q04 Ibs Spring Capacity- Rear E550016s
Axle 7ype- Front I- Beam Ax#e Type- Rear SingEe Reduction
Ucle Cepacity- Front 8Q00 Ibs A clo Capacity- Rear 16500 Ibs

Axle Ratio{: 1 j- Froni N/ A Axle Ratia(: 1}- Rear 4, 88
Shock Absorbar Diameter- Front 5'! mm Shoc& Absarber Oiameter- Rear IViq
Stabilizer Bar Olameter- Front NJA 5latail'rzer 8er iameter- Rear N/ q

Tires

Frorit Zire C? der Code XOV i2ear Tire( rder Code ypp
8pare Tlre Order Code NIA Froni Tire Size 225l7QR99. 5H
Reari' ire Size 225t70Rt9. 5H Spare Tire Size NlA
Front Tire Capacity 8000 ibs Raer Tire Capacity 955QO ibs
Spare Tire Capacity NIA RevolutianslMila @ 45 mph- Front 8dg

RevolutionstMile @ 45 mph- Rear 649 RevofutionsJMiie @ 45 mph- Spare N/ A
Tire Raling Total 235Q0. 00

Whaels

Froni Wheei 5ize 19. 5 x 6, 75 in Rear Whee! Size 19. 5 x 6. 75 In
Spare Wheel Size N/A Front Wheei Matariaf Stee
Rear Wheel Material 5tee1 Spare Wheei Material N/ A
Front Bolt Patiem 8 Hote J S 10. 83"       Reae Balt Pattern 8 Hote JIS 10. 83"
Spate 8olt Pattern NtA

Stae ing

Stesring Typa Pwr Steecing RaEio{: 1}, pn Center

Steering Ratio(; 1), At Lock 18. 6 Tuming Diameter- Curb ta Gurq 55.7 ft

Tuming Dismeter- Wall ka Wall 3, 3 ry

8rakes

Brake Type Pwr Brake ABS 5ystem 4- Wheel

8rake ABS Sysiem( Second ine}    NiA Disc- Front( Yes or )       y g

aw._  ..,_ 
T_.__

Tl is Cacumanl eonlaine intomu ison conssdered Canfidential CeRueen G1N gnd Ita C ienti a np eiy The u tormaUon provided is not intanded tor pub6c disdosure. Prioea,
apetifipUons, ond evalla6ility ure subJect io Chanqe w%hou! natSce, and do no nciude crrta tee, taxes and cnargns thnt may Ge required by Ww or vary by msnutadurer or reglon.
Periom ance 6gute pre guidelines oNy, and actual pedormance may very, Pholo may nat ropresnnt acwal vehi fes or exact con4gvreliata. Content hused on roport p spare' aInput a subject m the acaxacy ot Ihe input provlde4
Oata Vapion. 14774, paW Update Sep 2a,? pZt 12 52: 00 AM PDT.

Sep2a, 2021

Page 4

155



Vehicle: [ Fleefj 2021 Chevral t Silverado ( tl1D { CC56043} 2WD Crew Cab VVork Truck  ; Complete)

Cha' sis
3   „    r    .

Brakes

Disc- Rear( Yes or } Yes Front Brake Rotar piam x ThEckness 15. 375 x 1. 626 in
Rear 8rake Rotor diam x Thfakness 15. 375 x i. 625 in Drum- FronS( Yes or }      N/ A
F ant Drum Diam x Width tVlA Orum- Rear{ Yes ar  }      N! A
Rear Qrvm Diam x Width N! A

FuelTank

FueE Tank Capacity, Approx 40 gat Aux Fuel Tank Capacity, Approx N! A
Fue1 Tank Lacatfon Behind Rear A c( e Aux fuel Tank l. ocation p

Trailering

TrailBr Weigh#       p bs

P: Dirtiietisloti :      
p-t

t,., .? x t r.:-ry

Interior Dimensions

Pessenger Capacity fi Front Head Ftoom 42.8 in
Front I. eg Ftaom 45.28 fn Fron1 Shoulder Raom 64. 8A En
Front Hfp Room 80. 75 in Second Head Roorn 40, 51 in

Second eg Roorrt 40.94 in Sacond Shoulder Raom A. 33 in

Second Ftip Room 64.24 in

Extarlor Dimenslons

Wheelbase 199 in Length, OveraU w! o rear bumper fV/ A

Length, QVetSll 282. 8 in WidYh, Max w/o mtRors g.}, q in

Height, Overal       8289 in Overhang, Front 34, 4 n

Overhang, Rear w! o bumper A9 in Front eumper to Back of Cab 149.48 fn

Cab to Axis 84,09 in Cab to End oi Frame 133A in

Ground ta Top of Load Roar 29A FronU32. 1 Ground to Top af Frame iq
Re r in

Frame WEdfh, Rear 34. 1 in Ground Clearance, Front NiA

Ground Clearance, Rear NlA 8ody Length bA ft

Cab to Hody 3. 0 in Frontal Area ft

Thia docurtflnt conieins Gifarmstlon cpneldere0 Conildonliat behveen GM end its C ients unipue( y, The inWrmatbn provbded is no! intendeC kr pubt dhsCloaura, prices,
speaf Tans, and evaitaatiry arc aub)ect to change wknout nmice, and do not tnlude certuin fees, taxen and charpes ihat may Ge tequ red by faw qr vary by manutaoturer ar sggion.Ptdormanca figures era 9uldeiinea oniy, ar,0 aetudi perfiarmance rrwy vary ph tQs may not repre ent ach, al vehictes or e cact confguraGono. Canlenl baaad on repnrt preparar' sinPul u anbiect to the aecurscy o! ttra input p+avided,
OaW Venron: 14T74, pata Updated. Sep 2d, 2021 12: 52•00 AA,i PO'

u,.

Sep 2d, 2021
Dage S

156



Vehicle: [ Fleet] 2021 Chevrolet Silverado MD ( CC56U43} 2VtlD Crew Cab Work TrucEc  sr' c m tete}

Iedium` ity: ,      

Medium Duty Performance

Front Axle°/ a 63. 05 Rear Axte o 36. 95
Oriver Waight 354. 0 Ibs Front Ground Laad 5528. 00 ibs
Rear Ground oad 3240. 00 Ibs 1st gear High Speed{ Nigh Ax1e Gear) 17. 72 MPH
2nd gear Hfgh Speed( High Au3e Gear)       30 52 MPH 3rd gear Htgh Speed( High Axle Gear)       39. 2d MPH
4th gear High Speed( High Axie Gear}       54. 94 MPH 5th gear High Speed( High J cle Gear}       78, 49 MPH
6th gear Nfgh Speed( High A cie Gear}       90.Og Mph!     1 sl gear. ow Speed{ High Axle Gear) 8. 78 MPH
2 d gear Low Speed( High Aule Gear)       16. 84 MPN 3rd gear l.aw Speed( High Axie Gear} 21. 65 MPN
4th gear Low Speed( High Axle Gearj 30. 3i MPH 5th gear Lnw 9peed( Mgh Axle Gear) 43. 3Q MF' FI
fiin gear Low Speed( Nigh tUcle Gear} d9. 89 tvlPhi 1 st gear High Speed{ low Axle Gear} N/A
2nd geac High 8peed{ Low Aufe Geat}       N/A 3rd gear Nigh Speed( low Axfe Gear) iViA

4th gear High Spsed( Low Axle Gear} A 5in gear High Speed{ Low Ax(e Gear) NIA
6#h gear Hlgh Speeci( Lrny Axte Gear) M1l/ A tst gaar Low Speed( low fU le Gear) q
2nd gear Low Spsed( Low lUcle Gear) M1t1A 3rd gear low Speed( Low Axle Gear} Jq
4th gear Low Speed( Law Axle Gear) N/ A 5th gear Law Speed( Low Axle Gear} N/A
6th gear Low 5peed{ t, ow Aycle Gear) NiA Reduction 2g. gg

Torque Qa Cfutch Engage N/ q Starting Grade Index N! A

1si GearTractive Eftorl{ High Ax(e Gear}     71A7. 5$ 2nd Gear Tractive Ef{ort{ High Axle Gear)    4150, 1H
3rd Gear Tractive Efl àrt( High A sle Gear}    3227. g3 Ath Gear Tractive Effatt( Migh Il de Gearj 2305. fifi
5th Gear Tractive EBort( High Axle Gear)     1613, 96 6th Gear 7raclive Effort( Nigh Aicle Gear)     1406. 45
1 st Gear Tractive Etfa t( low Axie Gear)     N/A 2nd Gear Tractive E#fort{ Low Axls Gear)    MiA

3rd Gear Tractive Effort( Low R cle Gear)     N/ A 4th Gear 7ractive Effart{ Low Ax1e Gear}     N! A

5th Gear Tractive Effart{ Low Aute Gear}     IV/ A 6th Gear Traotive Ef( ort( Low Axle Gear)     WA

1st Gear Gradeabiiity( Hlgh Axte Gearj 2T. 63 2nd Gear Gradeabllity( Hlgh Ax3e Gear}      15. 32

3rd Gear Gradeability( High Ax1e Gear}       11. 26 4th Gear Gradeabiliiy( High Axle Gear)       6.8T

5th Gear Gradeabllity( high Axle Gear)       201 6th Gear Gradeabiltty{ High Axta Gear}       p. p4

isf Gear Gradeability( Law Ax1e Gear)       50.84 2nd Gear Gtadeability( Low Axte Gear)      29. 1q

3rd Gear Gradeability{ Low Axle Gear)       22.98 4th Gear Gradeabiliry{ l. ow Axte Gear)       15. 44

5th Gear Gradeabi ity( ow A cle Gear}       g, 8    61h Gear Gradeabiliky( Low Aacie Gear}       7.98

Geared Rosd Speed 90, 06 MPH Actual Loaded Speed 78. 5 MPH In Bih

Hi @ 2300 RPM

1'tfis documen contain Infarmalion consitiered CpnfidgnUa! kaMrem GM and iU Cfients un quely. The Informat:on provided is nol inlended for pubHc dlsctasun. Prfoes,
speciRcaGo+na, and evaibLi6ty ere subject to chanye wlthaut notice, and 4o not include eertain iees, Wxes and charpea thal may be rcquired by 1aw w vary by manufacturer or regton.
Pertqrmance Ggurea ere guidalines only, and attua! peAomtance may vary Photos rtwy not fepresent actua vehielee or exat4 contiQuratians. Conlem baaed on report pmpararsinput Is subject lo tne at ura y a( th$ Input hrovlded.
QatB Veratan: 14774, Qata Update4: Sep 14. 202t 12;Sr60 AM POT

Sep 24, Z027
Pagu 0

157



Vehicie: [ Fl et] 2029 Chevrole# Silverado N1D { CCv6p43} 2WD Crew Cab Woric Truck t com ete

Mediu buty' P F

s '`      

Medfum Quty Pe l`ormance

MPH
p'   

Z. a Maximum 8peed Gradeabilily 14,43°!0 @ 2504
RPM @ 65 MPH

Totque Convetter 1. 764 Maximum Capacity Q 0° F 2200. 00
o# Body on Front A cle 40. 75 to of Body on Rea Axie 9, z

Bady Weight Front 0. 00 Ibs Body Weight Rear 4.QO Ibs

Actual Loaded Speed{ First Part, MPH)      78. 5 MpH Actua! loaded Speed tSecond Part, RPM}   2900

Actual loaded Speed{ 7hird Parl, Gear)      5 Road Type Concrete

Body We(ght 4.O ibs Driver Weight Front 354. 00 Ibs
C} river Wefght Rear O, Q4 Ibs hJledium buty Body Type Narte

Fcant Total laad 5528. 00 Ibs Rear Toial Loac!     3240. 0 ibs

This documeni mnlains nformatlon cons dered GonlMent a{ 6stween GM and its Clients unfquely Tha inform8tion provkiaC is noi Vniended( ar publicc Qisetosure. Ptkei,
Dedfication9, and avaiFaGilily ere ub}eti to chenge wilhout notst, antl do ndtlnclude CeKain feea, taxes and cherpes lhat may be redulred tsy i8w or vary by manvfaUurer ar reglon.

Petformance Bgures are guiCeline oMy, ond actuel pedprmance may vary Phatos may nat re xe eat actual veMcles or exact mnfiguratlons. Conteni baseC an tepart proyarc' afnput ia auflfaeR to ihq accuracy oi tha input provided.
Oata Venlort: 147 4, Daia Updated Sep 24, 2021 12 52. d0 AM PDT.

w._...—..,.

Scp 2A. 242i
Paga 7

158



r -,

Vshicle: [ Fleet] 2029 Ghevrolet 8ilverada MD { CC56043} 2WD Crew Cab Work Truck  •: ICompfete)

Weight Distributian

SPECIFICA7' ION 9UrVIMARY
r s .  ,

Model#   CC56043

TrucklTractor

Whealh se( WB}  189 in

Cab to Axie( CA)  84.09 in

Cab la BodylSwing Clear( BOC}   3. 0 in

Body E. ength 4A Ft

Body Wefght 0. 0 Ibs

Cargo Welght 0,00 Ibs

Front GAWR SabO Ibs

Rear GAWR 15500! 6s

R
23544. 00 Ibs

BOC

A

CA:  84. 09 in

r

f       

a  `  BOC:  3. 0 in

W8:  199 i

Wg ,      

Fr°:  63. 05 Rr°,6:  38.95

Frank Wt:  5528, OQ ibs Rear Wt:  3240. 04 Ibs

GAWWGVWR GYW Remafning Payload VYf•  ,
23540, 00 Ibs 8788. 00! bs 14, 732, d0 Ibs

Thla documant conWin inhxmaGon considered Confidantlal batwee GM and: ts Clignts uniquely The infosmailon provfded is nut intended tpr p blic tl+scloeure. Prit,Aadika6a s, and avatlabiliry aie eub}ect W ch nge wiltwut notice, and do rsol Induda ceRa n taes, texas and chaiyes that moy roauired by faw pr vary dy me u( acturar or region.PeAormarxa figurea ary guidefinea only. and actual pe formonce rtcay vary. Ahotos may ot reprrrseni acEual vehtdes ot exatt conP uratians. Content ba ed on roport Areper rtnpsit( sub+act! o tt, a eccuraty of} f e inpui provtded
Data Versbrt: 1q

T4T Oab Updated Sep 24, 2021 t2 52. 00 AM p0,
SQp 2a, zo2      r...,      ._._._ 

Pa e 8

159



Vehicle: [ Fleet] 2021 Chevrolet Silverado MD ( CC56043) 2WD Crew Cab Wor}c Truck  co, Piece)

Weight Distributian

SP CIF ATf N D' T1 iIl. S
RL;; $,     "-  „   ,-;

x  J   - _   . .,,;:,  .  ,'

FrQnt Axle Rea Axle Total ,
Actuat

Chassis
5i78. 00 Ibs 324Q. OQ Ebs 8418. 00 fbs

eody
O, OO ibs 0.401bs O. O lbs

Paytoad
0.40 tbs 0.00 Ibs 0. 00 Ibs

Trailer
Q. 0 ibs

Tolais
5528. 00 lbs 3240. 40 Ihs 8768. OQ Ibs

Capacity

A cte
80001bs 155001bs 235UO. 00Ibs

Suspension
8000 Ibs 15500 Iba 23, 54Q. OQ tbs

Tire
8000 ths 1550U Ibs 235U0. 40

7ota1 Axle R ti tg 800Q. 00 Ibs 1b540, 00 Ibs 23500. 00 Ibs

1'his document containa tnfarmatan con idared Confidentfal bahveen GM end ib Ct onts uniquely, The intormaUon provlded is nat Intended for pu iic dk t,lpsure. Prtce3,
spedikntions, and availabliity are eubjxt to changg wnha r o ir, 8nd do not tnduda cena tees, taxes and charpes tha! mey be rcqui asl py! aw ar vary by manufacturer or region,peAom snce figvres ere yvidalin only, a d adual peAormance msy vaty. Photoa may not reprasant actual vehicles o e ct canfiBura ions. Conient yased pn repart prepurer' ainput is subJoct ta Itse atcutacy o} Ihe Input provWed,
Dats Varsionr 1A774. OaW Updat6d 59p 2a, 2421 12 52 00 AM F07

Sep 24, 2021
Paya 9

160



Vehicle: [ Flaefj 2021 Ghevrolet Silverado MD ( CC56U43 2WD Crew Cab Work Truck  omplste}

Selected Model and 4ptions
F Nl piEL , 

COO       MODEL
hASRP  `  ,

CC56tki3 2021 Ghevrolet Sitverada Md 2WD Crew Cab Work Trvck 53, 30Q. 00

co: oRs       a

CQDE DESCR[ PTION

GRZ Summil White

Nt D L OPTiO I ,
w

CQDE DESCRIPTiON
MSRp

z

R7P 8500 HO Series
tnc.

vwa E,    :,,;   a:

x
s,.  

Y   ., . i.,
CflDE DESCR1PTiON

MSRp

e__.,,

DD7 GVWR, 23, 5Q0 Ib.( i0,659 kg) 5, 450. 00

r -

R cau Ei}o iort h  ,   

E  ,  j
COdE DESCRIPTiON

t

MSRP

R6Y 37, a4Q ib. GCWR( 16, 782 Ecg}   d. QO

sENGIN`:   .   3        J'  ,-  s

CODE OESCRIPTlON MSRP
e ;

L5D Engine, Dutamax 6,6L Turbo-Qiesel V8, B2D- DiBse! r,ompaiible Q. 40

pOWER TÀKE FF f     z    :

s:,,-;;;;

COQE DESCRIPTIQN
R

f'TX Power Taka- Qff( PTO}, n t instat':ed 30.00

y  y tR c j
T 3Ml.Ni1dN    -_-     

r' b.I
t'€„'  

Y   ,,..;  `,

t,
CODE DESCRIP' ft4N

MSRP

MeX Highway Servrce Transmission Automatic close- ratio 6 Si D with doubE pverdrive, Allison,    9, 438. OU
A275aHS

u

r,..._.    

Tt+s dOCurm t oonWins fnfarmaiion cqnaidtred Confidetstlal deMreen GM and i1a CGenis uniquety. The informedpn p vylCed tS np fntendedlor public 4isCbsurB. Ftkea,
spedNcauons, and avaliabfiiry ere su jest Ur change wfthout noiice, and do not include tertain i4ee, taxee and charyca that may be required by lew or vary by m2nu aetuter or regbn.
Petfurmance fiquras are guisletines anly, and aGual pariarmance may vary. Photoa may not rcprese+tit aclusl vehtcks or exact wnfigun ttons Contant baoed on repoA preparer' y
inPut If sUbJ6Ct W the ecturacy oi the inpul providad
Oa1a Version: 14774, paca Updated: Sep 2a, 2D21 12 52 04 AM POF.

Sop 2, 2tiZi
Pape 14

161



i

Vehicle: [ F1eet] 2021 Ch vrolet Silverado MD ( CC5fi043) 2WD Crew Gab Work Truck  ( Complete}

I. E

CODE DESCRtPTION
MSRR

OQ8 Rear a e. 4. 88 raGo
Q. 40

FRONi' A7( LE s: 4 ,  , ;;

y;.

COOE OESCRtPTiON
MSRP

F' Cl Front axle, 8, fl041b., Dana/ Spicer D60Q- fJ," f"- beam, nan- driving 500. 00

PRONT 5l13? 1S101V T, f
r     ;: a,   

is`
COD       DESGRIPTION

MSRP 

FSN ront suspenslon, S, O O lb.( 3, 829 kg) mulli- leat, includes shack absorbers 3 ao. ao

R R A( LE
r ,P  ,.: y

n:;;
CODE DE5Cf21PTI0N

J27 Rear axte, 15,500 tb.( 7,03i kgj, Dana Spfcer 516- 730, single reduction 775. 00

R AA:' SCJSi ENS16N
w-       ra

cou       uEsc Pno v
MSRP

FU7 Rear suspension,' 15,50Q ib.{ 7,031 kg} mulU-' saf, vari- rate 30,04

WNE L ASE'"   
s  " 

r.
r.   '  '+;,?

s 1CODE D SCC21PTi0N!      
r'_"' s

MSRP
EM1 Whesibase, 1S9"{ 545. 5 cm), 84" CA

180. 00

PRE RR D'. QC1iPMENT GROUP F     "

t:
r    ,   ,  

a.. .    z s a
f}CODE,. .    QESCRIPTIdN

Ms P

1WT Wark' ruck Prefamed Equipment Group 0.00

vV r i:trlrp.       
i v,•

coa       o scR P r o a
MSR "'°

Wq Wheels, 19. 5" x 6. 75", stesi, Biack paintsd, 8- hales, hub piioted 4, p

NjERt) NT;7IR 8

L N" x,
a:_.   , wrCODE DESCRIPTI4N
MSRP

XDV Tires, front 225f70R19. 5 H 13dti28 L BW HWY Continental
13Q. 00

Thi ocumgni poMaFns Informallon oon

ConfidenGaf between GM and its Clleab uniquely_ The iniorsnaGon prowded ts rat intended for pubfic diubsaro, Prices,
epacu'ica6one, end availabiiiry are subJect ia ehange wilnout nolice, and da nal includa certain feeT, laxes and charpes that may De re uired by faw or vary py rnanufacturar a roy sn.PeAormance Cpure are fluideilnes onfy, end actual qe iormanca may vary Photas may nai represent actue! veh(aes or eract coMfyurations. Cantent na ed on report preparerainput is sul ecf lo tha accuracy ot fhe input pr4vided.
Dota Vers'son: 147T4. Oata Updatad: Sep 24, 2p21 52 2 00 AM POT

o-,,..,,--_....__._._

Sop24. 2U21

Page 11

162



Vehicle: [ FieetJ 2021 Chevrolet Silverado MD ( CC5fi043} 2W0 Crew Cab Work Truck  { com iete)

REA t TiFtES'   
E     _::t     ia•

x=• a  `.

CODE DESGRIPTlON
MSRP

YAP Tires, rear 225/ 1OR19. 5 N 13 J128 BW HWY Continenial
26Q. 00

Si, RE' flRE. a.::

COOE DESCRIP7tUN
nMSRPY .

9L3 Spare tire delete
OAO

PnrHr s t M     
r,,., r ,     -{

V;

CODE OESCRIPi' ION
MSRP

X' P1 Paint, solfd
a0    -

A tY,      r xc a .  ,.' 3-';   % sdti r`  d  fi., t. E
fi r' 

r{ 
r :

t   
Yyi`:C DE DESCI2IPTfON

MSRP
CAZ Summit Whita

O. aQ

S AT= YP 3      z     _.

r   ` s; t: s,.  ; Y,r x ;,;

CdOE DESCRIPTiON yMSRP
y µ'

AE7 Seats, front 40/ 20/40 sptit- bench, 3• passenger dQ

SEAT`TRII iI>=  

A` FC4D       DESC321PTIQN
MSRP

rY

H2Q Dartc Ash seats wlth Jet 81ack fnterior accents. Vinyl ssat trim
0,04

ftAD? t:a-'  <
E'

1  pjN
COC} E DESCRIPTION

i'-'

MSRP

3 Audia system, 4. 2" diago sl calor display 4. Op

ADf£!'" 1C 1 L- QLII' M NT= MECHANIGAL r   x"'`
r

r, a-}-_  ri:-:;}" j iF.9t,;  t u, e.` iCObE DESCRIPt70N
MSRP

JL1 Trailer brake controller, irttegrated
275. 40

UY7 Trai ering pravis;ons, traflering wir hames an6y, fr ler G smbined( Stop/ TaiUTum} t nneCiE4n gp, pp
sackei and hamess mountad at rear ot frame.

Tha docvment contalns informaSion conslderoG Confiqential boNroen GM end iu ClSents uniquely. The inlormeGon provided is nptlalended for pupt'io dlsclosura. PriCes,     
epedflcatlane, and avalla0ility ara subjeU tu rhanye wflnout notice, and do not include eertaio fees, taxes and charpes ihat may De r¢quirea by law ar vary by manutacturer ac pionParidrmance figuros are guideflaea anly, end acluaf perfomwanca may vary. Photos tnay not repreicnt ectual vehiClea ot BxaU canf gural3orts. Cantent base0 an roporl propBreYsinpar te auGjeci to the arr_wary ot the rput provided
Date Veroion: 147 4, gaia Updated: Sap 2d, 2{}21 t2 52. 00 AM PDT.

Sep 2k, 2021 -  
Pego 12

163



Vehicie: [ Fleet] 2021 Chevrolet Siiverado Mp ( CC56443) 2WD Crew Cab Work Truck f' I Complete)
xA fDli l̀OiVA' EQUIPMEN?'- EX' ERIOR

r'•'-     { -,       `

r, 

t ,`,
COD       D SCRIPTlON

MSRP
5pY

tecVical Provisians, rear of frame, upfitter, body builder wiring 230. 04

A4 DlTIONAL EQl11PM NT- orN r
i    ,

x_, ,_

t  ,   d

CODE DESCRIP7lON
MSRP

VO1 Fteet Processmg Optian
4. Q0

Optiorrs Total
510, 41 S. 04

This documen eanWins In`,wmeSqn can idered Conidentlai betwaen iiM and tts Cilents u iquety, 7h8 intormallon proridecf is nul Msended tor pubCc disclos ru, pR,,apecit ca ians, and avaflabUity are aubJect Io chsnge withoW aoiice, anri da not tnduda cartain teea, Wzea and charges that may be required by! ew or vary by menufadurer w regton,Perlormanee ffyurea are gutdetfnas onty, and actual performanca may vary, PMros may not rep+esent actual vehktes or ezaci conhguratlone. Co tent baeed on roporl preparer' aInputls aubject tp the eccuracy oI ihe input provided
Oeta Vereion: 14T 4. patp Updeted: 3ap 2q. 2021 12 52:Op AM PDT.

Sep 24, 2025 v_ __

Pays 13
a-_.,.,,...._...... 

164



f

Vehic(e: [ Fleet] 2021 Ghevrolet Silverado MD ( CC5 043) 2WD Crew Cab V1Jork Truck  ( JComplete)

Standard Equipmen#
N1ect antcal

i

4500 F1D Series{ Included and only evailehte with{ C7Y) 74, 4p1 ib. GVWft,( C5$} 15, OQ0 IG. GVyyfi,( C p)18, OQ0 tb. GVWR ot{ C7R) f6,500 Ib. GVWR.)( STCY)

GWUR, 16, 5401b.( 7484 kg){ SEtverado 4504 Hd 2Wp Crew Cab models require one of tha idllow9ng
com6inatlons:{ 1){ FTA} 7k tront axte and( FK6} 7k front suspertslon and( FN1} 1Qk rearax( e or( GLAj i1k rear
axlo and( GR3} 11k rear suspension or( G4a) 12K Rear air suspension.( 2j{ F1' A} 7k front axie and( FK9) 7k
iront suspansfan and( WD1) 9 5k rear axle ar( J27} 15. 5k rear ax;e and one of the following reat suspensions:
GR4) 13.5tc rear suspension,( FU7) 15.5k rear suspension,{ GPi) 13,5K rear air suspenaion,( GPB) 15.5k rear

afr suspension,{ 9) 8} 13. 5k l. iquidSpring prep single votume rear suspension,{ 91C) 13, 5k UquidSp ing prep
stacked volume rear suspensfon,( 8iD} 15. 5k Liquid5pring prep s3ngie volume tear suspensfon or{ H1E) 15.5k

iquidSprfng prep stacked voiume rear suspension,){ STO}
Emissions, SO siate certiflcation

Emissfons, USA 5U State certified

Englne, Duramax 6.fiL Turho• Diesef V8, 820-biesei compatibls 350 fip @ 2700 rpm, 700 Ib.- fl. torque @ 180Qrpm( S' fDJ

Highway Service Transmisslon, Automatic ciose- ratio 6 SPQ with doubls ove irive, Allison, A1700HS ratias:
3. 10 15T, 1.$ 0 2tVD, 1. A0 3RD, i.00 4TFt, 0, 70 STH, Q. 61 6TH Hlghway Series, 19. 5K GVW 8 26K GCW Max„
requires P7X and park pawl. Availabfe with GVWs tess than or equal to 19.5K( Requites{ C7Y) 14, OQ1 Eb.
GVWR,{ C58} 15, p00 3B. GVWR,( C7Pj 16, 4Q0 tb. GVWR,( C7R) 96, 5001b. GVWR,{ GZX} 17, SQ0 Ib. GVWR,GZJ) 1B4OOO Ib. GVW or( GZG} 19, 5001b. GVWR. Requires( R8G} 26,000 fb. GCWR( 11, 793 kg)•?( S7D}

Rear axle, 4, 10 ratio Max raad spesd: 79 MPH

Wheelbase, 175"( 444. 5 cm), 60" CA( Requfres( FOC} 49" axle to end of frame. Not available wtth{ G40) 12, OOQlh.,( GPf j i3,500 Ib. ar{ Gf'8) 15, 540 Ib. rear air s spenaion, or( NPK} Exhaust System.}( 5TD)

Front axle, 7,000 lb., Rana Spicer a800- iV," I"- beam, nan- driving( Requires( FKS) 7, 000 Ib.( 3, 175 kgj irontsuspension,)

Froni susp nsion, 7,000 fb.( 3, i75 kg) muiti- leaf, incfudes shock absorbers{ STD}
Raar axle, 10,000 Ib.{ 4,536 kg) Qana Spicer S14- 110, singfe reduction
Rsar suspenslon, 11, 000( 4, 990 kg) multi- teaf, vari- rate( tVoi available with air suspension,)( 5TD}

Veutra(- at-Stop Automaiic transmission shifts to neutrai when ihe service brake is depressed while the vehfcle is
et a comptete stop, and remains In neutral untlt ihe service brake is retg2sed

Transmissiort shi#t control calibration, fuel sense Performance
Rear whee) drive

Batteries, heavy-duty dua! 1100 cold- cranking amps includes battery bax mounted to left side under c:ab
Ai#emator, 150 amps

Incompleta vehicle

Axle to End of Frame, 49"( Requirss wheelbase{ EMt} 19g" or( FNV) 175". Nat available with( G40),( GP1} orGPS) rear air suspensian,)

w__ . _

Thls document wntains Iniormetion con; Jdered Confidentlal betwean GFA end 1ts CE enia uniquely. The Frttormation pcovtded ia npt intentled Ipr public diacbsur9. Priae,
sPear ca6aa, and avaiiability ara nubke to change w}thoui nol ce, end do nat intivda terta n tees. Wxe end chaiges tt at may 6e required by lew o vary by marwhcwrer or rogion.Pe fotmance figures ere guideNnes only, and actual podormance may vary. Pholos may not rapreyent actw' I vetUctes ot exact eonApwations. Contant based on tepott preparer' sitspui is eubJect W itie atcuracy pi! he Mpui prov{ded,
Data Venian: 1477a, Data Updatcd: Sep 24, 2021 f 2520f} AM PD7

Sap 24, 2021

Pape 14

165



Vehicie: [ F1eet] 202 Chevroiet Siiveradv MD ( CC56043j 2WD Crew Cab Wark Tr ck  { I comQ. e

Mechanicat r —      

Fii, i:

A cle, dpen rear axla, non- locking rear

j

Axle lubricant, rear, synthetic oil EmGard E- 75W- 8Q

Steertng, power{ Bosch S2 8014 Plus)

Brakes, hydraulic, heavy duty 8oschlhleritorMlabco system with 4- channel{ ABS}(! ncludes( J89) drive ine parlcbrake.)

Fuel iank, rear only, 4U gaElon mounted betwesn frame side reils and behind rear axle
Fuel, diesel B20

CappBd Fuei Fi11

Exhaust system, rear exit

Exhaust brake

JC fIOT ap,
r-?  , e F...

Whaels, 19, 5" x 8, 75", steel, Black pair ted, 8- hoies, hub piloted( ST}      
s + i

Tires, front 225l70R19. SG highway blackwaii Goodyear Ma Axle Load: 7,940 Ib.{ Repuires( YAL} fiires, rear
22SI74R1$. 5G highway blackwall Goodyear, Max Axle Load: 95, 004 Ib, or( YMF) Tires, rear 225R4R19. 5G
traction blackwall Gaodyear, Max A cle Load: 15, 040 Ib. J{ STDj

Ttes, rear 225/ 70R19. 6G highway blackwatl Goodyear Max A ris f oad: 15,000 ib.( STI}
5pare tire delete( STD}

Wheef, spare delete

8umper, front, Biack

Ass( st steps

Front# ender extenslon, mold- in- cofor 61ack( Not avallabis with( FNP} B4dy catar front tender eacter slon.)
Griffa, base, malded in cofor, Black

Grille gu rd screen, insect pratection{ mountsd behind grilte)
Headlamps, halogen projaGor- beam

Lamps, cargo area, cab mounled with switch on center switch bank
Lamps. Smoked Amber rooi marker

lamps, rear, stopltum!# ackup( 1- p{ece assembiy) with license piate 3ight

Mirrors, outsEde high- visibility vert cal camper-style, Black with manuai folding and sxtension and lower convex
spotier glass

G(ass, solar absorbing, t: nted

Antenna, fixed mast

Doar handles, Black

d.      
u_____..,-.__

This doa, mant oontaina informaGon aonskfered CanOdentiai 6etwoen GM and N C ianis un' ue 7he in{ wmatlon

ry

pzpeciflcaliono, end avaibbiii ero su ct to cha
M provided not ie nded[

awy
ubic di osuro. Pricea,

Perlorma ce fipurQs are pueNnes o, ena eaua i pertomi anee may vary n naosdmay not reprraoni ectua vhicles or exect configcuatio. Conient ba ad en repo preparoreoR.input U auDject to the atcuracy oi the Input provideC.
Oata Vemion; 14T1d, E) afa Upaate4 Sap 24, 202t 12: 52;a4 AM PDT

Sap 24, 2D2f..._._.»......__  .,.     

PaOa 95

166



Vehlcle: ( Fieet] 2021 Chevrolet Silverado M ( CC56 43) 2WD Crew Cab tNqrk Truck  ( r Carnplete)

Ente aiihrnertE f i+    t      •`

t i , ,.  . 1 e    . . .

Audio system, 4, 2" diagonai color display AMf M stereo with USB port and auxi!! ary Jack( Ftequires( AE7) front  
40/ 24140 spEit- bench seat. Nat avaiiabie with{ UE1) t?nStar or( U2K) SldusXM Radio.}( STD}

SiriusXtvi, deleie

6- speaker audio system

k; t9f 0[         
v<     _    '.

Seats, front 40t2fl/40 spiit-bench, 3-passengsr driver a d front passenger recline with outbaard head restr ainta   +
and center fotd- down armrest witii s orage. Vinyl t as fixed lum6ar a td doth has manually sd] ustable driver
umbar,( STD)

nierior trim, Jet 8(ackiDark Ash{ Required and only available wiih( H24/H2R) Oark Ash seats with Jei 81ack
interior aCce ts,)

Seat trim, Vinyl

8eai, rear 64/4U fotding bench{ folds up}, 3- passenger{' sncludes child seat lop tethar enchar}
Seat 8elt, Black

Floar covering, Gra h3te- colored rubberized- viny!
Steering wheel, urethane

Steering cofumn, manual Tilt-Whse!

instrumentation, 6-gauge ciusier fealuring speedomete, fuel tevet, eng ne temperature, tachameter, voltage and
oil pressure

Speedometsr, m les( kilometers

Dnver information Center, 3. 5- Ench diagonel mor achromatic display, provtdes waming messeges end baslc
vehicie infosmatlan

Upfitter sw; tch kil. pravides up io 4- 30 amp circuits to facpitale instailation af afterrr.atket electrical accessories
acatsd an the instrument panel

Windaws, power with driver express up anc! down and express down on a0 oiher wirtdows
Door locks, power

Cruise control, steering wheel- mounted

Air condiiioning, sl gls- zone

Mirror, inside rearview manual dayJnlght

Visors, dnver snd frant passenger, vinyl

Asslst fiandle, front passenger and driver on A-pillars

Safety-M` char ical
i

Brake, parici g, drtiveline park brake system

IeclroNc Stability Control System w'th Tractian Control includes Etectronic Traiter Sway GonUot and Hiif Stari
Assisi

This dxument conWlns informalion consatlerosl Confidentlal lsetwean GM and its Cliams ur+iquePy Tt e ntortnalian pravtdedis not Intended br pubHc Oiactasure. Fricea,
spadficatioru, and a+raiWD ry are suDject io change wilhaut notice, arw eo not include certain tea, taacea and t, trges ttw3t may be required hy law or vary by manufaeNrer er regio.
Perfortn0nce figure0 ere quidellnea oNy, and actua#perfarmance may vnry phptos may not represant ectual vehfcie9 or exack mnCguration. Conte l based on roport p eparoretnpul Es evbJeq 101he acwrscy ol the input prov#dad.
4ata Yenlon 147T4. 6aW Updal9d: Sep 24, 2Q21 12i52: t}0 Atd PDT,

Sep24, 202 t......

Y....__..._. , 4__

Page t8

167



tt      . 

Vehlcle: [ Fleet] 2021 Chevrolet Silusrado M[ 7 tCC56043) 2WD Crew Cab Work Truck  ( vnCamplete}

3a    - 1Vlectianlcal  _       

Traction cantrol
A

45' G CY@i7t3i'      r'
E` a

i   • ';;t. } p:#

Daytime Running lamps, with 2utomatic exterior lamp contrnt
ae8afsty- lnterlor_  

s °'"`    ;' i.`.
Airbags, 5ing e- stage trontsl airbags for driver and front ouiboard passenger, Seat- mounied side- impact airbags
for driver and iront outboard passenger, Head- curtain airbags for frank and rear aulboaN seatfng pasit(ons;
Always use seat be ts and child reslraints. Children are safer when properiy secured In a rear seat in the

aAproPrieie child restraint. See the Owner' s Manual for more IMormation.)

Airbag deaclivation switch, frontal passenger- side{ Included and only available with( AYO) alrbags.}
QnStar, delete

Nom, singie- nate

WARf A l' Y
3 y' j e..

Warranty Nate: < ca preliminary 2421 Warranty»>   
Basic Years: 3

gasic Mileslkm: 36, QQ0
Drivetraln Years( Alf3son$ asic}: 5
Drivetrain Years: 5

Drlvetrain Mi(eslkm( Atlison Basic}  Unlimited
privetrain Miles/ km: 100, 000
flrivetrafn tVote: Duramex Diesel
CoRosion Years( Rust-Through}: 8
Corrosion Years: 3

Corroswn Mileslkrn( Rust- Through}, 10UA00
Corrosion MilesJkrn 36, 000
Roadside Assistance Yoa s: 5

Roadside Assiskance Mifeslkm: 104, 404
Maintenan e Note 1 Yearll Visit

Thie documenl tAntalns( nformo6oa saneidered Canfidc Uet herireen OM and i1e Clienls uniqvety, The informaGod provlded is rwl intended tor pub&c dbc osuro Pricea,
aP aC calbna, snd availabilpy ara euhjeci io ct ange w haut natice, and do not fndude certain taes, taxes and charqas Iha! rrs y be requlrecf tty taw ot vary+by manuiBCSuror or reg{pn.
Perfamiance figuros are pWdetinas oNy, and eclual pedprmanee may vary. Plre4as may nat reprosenl acit+al vehicles cx e ct aonitpuratkyn, Cpq ent b8aed on tepoh praperersFnpvt Is aubj}ect m the aaura y oi tha input p avlded.
4ata Ves ian• td774, Oata Updated Sep 24, 2021 12: 52: 00 AM PDT,

SeP24. 202i   ._..__.._._. 

n_.....  _.,

Page 17

168



Vehicle: [ Fieet] 202 Chevralet Silverado M ( CC56043} 2WD Crew Cab Work Truck  (.' Comptete)

Window Sticker

a S11 1fIIVIAFtY'   3,

leat 2021 Chevrolet Silverado MD( CC56043} 2W0 Crew Cab Wark Truck MSRP: S53, 30Q. 40

Inferior: ark Ash seats with Jei Black nterior accents, Viny seai tri
Enlerfar 1: Summit Wt ite

Exte lor 2: No color has been se;acted,

ng(ne, Duramax 6.BL TurbaDiese! V8, B24- piesel compatibie

Highway Service Transmission Automatic clase- ratio 6 SPD wilh daubie overdrivs, Aitison, A2754H5
i

OPTIONS F`„ ,     3
r

x e   - , a  +     

CODE

j

MOOEL
MSRP

CC58043 Fleetj 2021 Chevrotet Silverado MD( CC56043j 2WD Cre Cab 53, 3Q0. 00
Work firuck

OPTtC1NS

Q Rear ax1e, 4. 88 ratia
4.00

Wflrk Truck Preterred quipment Group O. OQ

aY Elactrical Provis3ans, rear oi frame, upfitter, body builder wiring 230. 00

5pare tue delete
Q. 00

AE7 Seats,/ ront 44/20/ 40 split- taench, 3- passec ger 0. 00

p7 GVWR, 23,500 Ib.{ 10, 659 kg) 8, 450. 00

EM Wheslbase, 199"( 505. 5 cm), 84" CA 5i80. 00

FSN Front suspension, 8, 004 ib,{ 3,& 29 kgj multi- teaF, includes shock S100. 00
absorbers

F- Front axle, 8,0601b., Qana/ 5picer p$00- tV," 1^- beam, non-driving 500.00

FU? Rear suspensson, 15, 500 Itr.{ 7, 03' i kg) multi- leaf, vari- rdte 50.QQ

Summit White o.00

H24 Daric Ash seats with Jei Black inienar accents, Vinyl seai trim 0.00

143 Audio system, 4, 2" diagonal colar display p.pQ

27 Rear axle, 15, 500 ib.( 7, 031 kg), Dana Spicor S16- 130, single 77, pp
reductwn

JL1 7railer bralce caMrnller, integrated 275 p

l5D Engine, Quramax 6.6L Turbo- biese! V8, 820- Oisset compatibfe gp, p

This doeument t»ntains inlarmatlon consldered Confktentiai beriveen GM and its Clienis uniquely. The infomsaifon proviQad ts not Inientled for pubNo d' sdosure. Pricea,
apactfica iona, and 8vaitabiliry are subJect tp chenga without no6ce, and do no! tndude ceriain iee3, taxe and cherpes Ihat may be requi,rd by aw or vary by manufacturer or regian,
Perlormance fgures are guiQeli es oniy, and eGuai peAormance may vary, Pho; os may not reprosenl aetuai vehitles w exact conBQuralMm, Content baaed on ropart proparerai put is fubjsct to ths aa.vracy of tha input provided
bala Vsraian; 7417q, oaEa Updated: Sep 24,-ZU21 12: 52:4D AM PDT.

Sep 24. 2421.,

v..,,.._...._...... __     ,.      

Pa9e 18

169



Vehicle: [ Fleet] 2021 Chevralet Silverado MD ( CC56043} 2WD Creuv Cab Work Truck  { Complet)

X Highway Service Transmisslon Automatic close- ratio 6 SPD with 1, 435. 00
dauble overdrive, A1lison, A27SOHS

P Power Take- Off( P70), not instalted
Q QQ

PW       Wheels, 19. 5" x 6. 75", sieei, Black pafnted, 8- holss, hub piloted Q. 40
R6Y 37, 000 ih. GCWR( 18, 782 kgj O. QO
R7P 6500 HL} Series

Inc.

UY7 Trailering provisions, trailering wire hamess onSy, irailer cambEnsd 3q. pp
8iopfTalllfurn) conneciion sockel and harness maunted al rear of

frame.

Q Fleei Processing dption
aQ. O

XDV Tires, front 22a170R19. 5 i 130/ 128 L BW HWY Coniinental 130.00
YAP Tires, rear 225t74R19, 5 H 130/ i28 L BW HWY Continental g gp, qp
n Paint, solid

O. Da

SUB70TAI.
63, 7# S. Od

AdJustments Total
O. Oo

Tire Weight Tax
26. 64

DestinaGon Charge
1, 695. Q0

TOTAL PRICE
S65, 438. 84

r_,.___,. 

Thla dooument containy lntormation consEdered Cqnf ienGal betwean GM$ ntl its Clionts uniquely. The intannation provided Is not intended 14r pub9c diadasure. PriCes,
epecrficaUona, and ava'.IaClGy art subject to changa witF out notfce, end dp np jn tuda cartain fee taxe and charqes ihat may be required yy! aw or v8ry by m nufacturet or repion.
Pe tormance ipures re quideltnes only, and eGuaf peAormancq may vary. Photos may ot represem actuai vehkef s or exact wnfiyuralions. Conzeai based on ropoA preparefaInput is subject fo U a aaurncy o} th fnpm provlded
Data VOr ion: 14T74. DaW Updatetl: 3ap 2a, 20 1 12; 52: Q AfN Pd7>

a.„,_._._____.._....

SeP 24. 2021
Paqe 18

170



r ,

Vehicle; [ Fleet] 2021 Chevralet SIlverado MD ( CC56043} 2WD Crew Cab Work Truck  N.i com t e}

Gea ed Road Speed

i,  ,.,F' E I A' st BtINEMARY
Madel# CG56043

Engiae Order Code L5D

f++iodel Manu(eckurer Duramax

TYi      Turbacharged Qiesel VS

Displacement 8. 6U402

Flarsepowe      350 @ 2700

Slarting Tnrque q

Transmfssion Orrler Code g}(

Model Manufecturer Allison

TYP      6Speed Aukomatic

Seconcf Hip Room 60.24 En

Rear Axie Order Code J27

Model Manu( acfurer A2750H5 Atiison

Weight Rating pp p$

Ratio: 1 8g

Rear i'ires 225/ 70R19. 5N

RevoiullonslMlle Front 649

RevolutionstMite Rear 649

Sur(ace Type Concrete

DesirQd Grade Za,

Geared Road Spaed Actaal Loaded Speed

G` hs-- 1aa' p R    --
w-   R' Fy'

1'
h;.,   g' c`.  

9. 0  MPH     
j'  

78. MPH
944. 94 KPH 2904 RPM 126. 33 KPH 2800 RPM

U°! o Grade in 5in gear 2°k Gtade in 5th gear

Note: Simulated speedameter appearance may rtioi correspand wiih selected equipment.

This document contai in(ormaUon considered Ccnfidenpal becrresn GA and 11s C( ients uniquey. The MlormaUon pcoviGed n not ntsndad 16r pubiic diecbsure. Prices,
spedficatior i, snd avaitebllily era eubJatt W cManye w lhoul notke, and do not irsclude certaln{ eay, taxes snd tharpes that may he requirod by Faw or vary by manulacU reror reg! ao.
Pe tormance liflurea ets guidelinea onCy, end aclua pa formance may vary Photos may noi ropresa t actua! vehideo or a caci confgurations. Conte t baaed on repoA praperers
tnput is subJect tn he¢ ccx, racy oi Ihs put provided.
Qata Yeniore: 14774, ata Updated Sep 24, 202Y 12: 52: 00 Aiti7 POi'

r.       ._...,._...  .   

r

Sep 24, 2027
Pago 20

171



e  .

2

Vehicle: [ FleetJ 2021 Chevrolet Silveradcr MD { CC56043) 2WD Crew Cab Work Truck  ( Camplete}

Gradeability Cha t

Sp CIF(GAfiI' 3N 3111V11NARY f 

4 >#,,.:`

t

t_     _, 

Moda[# CC58Q43

Engine Order Code L5C}

Model Manuiacturer Duramax

Type Turbocharged Oiesal V8

bisplacement 6. 8L14D2

Harsepower 350 @ 2700

Starting Tarque N! A

Tran rnission Order Code M8X

Model Nlanufacturer Aliisan

Typa 6- Speec! Aulomatic

Second Hip Room 60. 24 3

Rear A cle Order Code J27

Model ManuFacturer A2750HS Allison

Weighk RaGng 1554Q Ibs

Rai o: 1 q, gg

Rear Tires 225ROR19. 5N

RevolutionsJMite Fronf 649

RevotutionslMi( 9 Rear pg

Surface Type Concrete

Uesfred Grade 2{ 0

7    i,.'.f" J  :   r c A{ iS' T.1 '   Y i Zt-  7   °   

Q r'*,` 
a    `£ kY. k3̀: i>.,     '" ' ,    +. s` 1..

i

g' g '       r  Jp      { r`
Y..

S

M

A

e.

n

d i c
S jY' ] Y. Z 1.,       1 12 7f, M'}

U
r

z'       .,   r ...    i 1;,'   ra . r. l4     .:j:%", .
9    1+:   x 4 '" s t x..

4  ; kr-    } , y r p.r  }+`
L3 f       E r    z  t.' fh

rt   =      

V'   `  "','.   {

1 High Gear
r  -     

i .     
j 4 Y^  k    ..

Y

ti,,,  2 rJ           is   E <       '.'       ;,     '     +      

zi: 

i  !'   ''    { :-     +   `'

i,.r 3i i`"t ul.'
x{.':.     .

OW ' @ f

6   ''   
t ,   F i'    . i        `  I-     j' i s

t v,

1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 6th

Gear

This document cnntatne iniorma( bn cansidered Confldentiei behva9n GM and its CGenis uniquey, Tho information provided ie nW 3nlanded iw pubNo dmdosuro. P ites,
spedficaGone, and evailabifaty ere sub act to change wlthout noike, and do noi k clude certain iaes, ane end charges that may b9 requlred Gy law or vary Dy manutecturer or region.
Pariormence fpures are guEdeTmes ordy, and actual peAormance may vary. Photoe may not represent actual vehicies or ezaci confcgwaGons. Content besed pn ropon prepacar` s
lnput fa aubJeCt w the acturacy of the input provided.
Oata Yeniart: 14774. E} aW Updated: Sep 24, 2U21 52.52 00 A6i POT.

Sep 24, 202/       
Pago 21

172



4

Vehicls: ( leet] 2421 Chevrolet Silverado MD ( CC56043} 2V1tD Crew Cab Work Tnsck  ;; Complete)

Tucning Circle
s i Qi tQ T at si iuiti+ aY y    .:

r,; .

Modai! k CC56043

Front Axts Order Code FTL

Capaciry( ibs}     80Q0 tbs

Wheeibase Order Code EM1

Whealb se{ irt}    199 in

Front Wheei Order Code

SizeJTyge{ fn)     19. 5 x 8. 75 in

Fro t Tire Order Cade X£1V

Size/ Type 22S/ 7QR1 S. fiH

j' t=::

i! _ J`
Walt to Wall( ft): 57.3 ft b•   I     Curh to Curb t: 55. 7 ft

r-_- 1::::--;      
We11 to WaA diameter is measured Curb to Curb diameter i measured
from tha ouierrnost part oE the cab,   Np!!

tQ N
aj,   cU

Q
cut irom the outside of the( ront tlre.

Thi dawment contains Mformetlon consldered ConfidenUai beiwean GM and Iis Gti nts unfqusry. 7tse informatbn provided is noi interWed for puhltc d'actoyv e. Pnces,
pedhcaqana, and avaftabilhy are subJec to cha ge withoul noUce, 8M do not inClude ceRa} n faes, t aa and cAsrpes tfrat may be requ' rrod by law or vary by mawfacWrer or repbn.

PtAotmance fpures are guideNne on1y, and actuai peAomwnte may vary. photos may nat rep ertt aclual vehicies or ezatt aonNgu Uons, ConteM baied an repori praparer' a
inpui Es subjacf tu 1he acwracy oi the Input provided.
Oaia Verofon; 14774. Oata UpdaEed. Sep 2A, 2021 12 52 OU Atr1 POT.

Sep 24, 2Q21

Y........_..

Pago 22

173



Bonnie Kirsch

From: Zachary Riedinger < zriedinger@americanctrevrolet. com>
Sent: Friday, September 24, 2021 1: 53 PM
Ta:   8onnie Kirsch

Subjec#:      RE: Quote Request- City of Lathrap
Attachments:       2021 Q92A 1 Z3108058. pdf

Hi Bonnie

Here is the information on the 6500.

L 329D• 21 KMTi Knapheide 6132Dl. R- 44K: 11 ft crane body with torq- isolator crane support system. A-40 galvanneal
cornpartments and doors, 3/ 15" treadpiate flaor, 1/ 8" tops and backs, Full- seam continuously welded. 12 gauge bottom
and end panels aF compartments and double panel 14 gauge outside panels, Exclusive 12 stage K- taaC protettian
includes 12 stages af cleaning, pre- kreat, electr tiepasition prime caat, rinse, and curing. { 6) recessed cargp tie- downs in
ffoar-- 6, 000# capacity, { 2) heavy duty afuminum grab handles, and LED stop/ tail/ turn lighfis, clearance lights, & backup
lights. 2i" work surface bumper with thru compartment, vise plate, & 2. S" receiver tube. ( Z} Grip- Strut flex steps, ( 1)
each side af rear tailshelf. 16" high doubfe panel slam tailgate with center latch and flat space for tailgate graphics,
Knapliner: Gommercial grade spray- on bed liner applied to cargo fioor, sides, compartment tops, bulkhead, tailgate, and
rear bumper Stellar 7&21 Service Crane: Max 7, 5401b lif ing capacity{ 38, 440f- Ibs), 21' hydraulie reach, planetary winch
60'/ min speed, and double-ac#ing cylinders w/ integral holding valves. Filters, crane hoak, snatch block, anti- two block
device& hydraulic shutdown, 3/ 8" cable, baom suppart, wireless remote conkrol ( RF} with back up pendant contral, PTO,
hydraufic pump for crane, hydraulic reservoir with guard, & remote docki g/ charge station for crane remote Cantrol
Panel: Power Cell, controller and ( 8) buttan switch panel in the rear crane compartment. CAN- bus system with continuous
working load oF 115 amps, features built in overload current proteckion for the system and operatar safety. Control panel
wi#h LCD display installed in cab Hydraulic Air Campressor: Boss 40 CFM hydraulic cr mpressor with Reeltrdit 50' x Ys"
hose reel and raller fairlead through the right rear compartment. FLR system and underbody air tank included with
compressor. Welder Bracket: Welder maunting plate Installed on the street side compartment top ak rear Side
Compartments: 44" high side packs and 60" high right front vertical compartment with automotive quality 3- pt T•handles
ist Ve tical Side Compartment: 7 drawer unit— 3- 3" high drawers, 3- 5" hig

drawers, and Z- 7" high drawer( street side)/ Gas bottle retainer( 2 bottles}, vented top& bottom; Full height vertical

partition with 3 adjustable divider she( ves( curbside) 2nd Vertical Side Compartment; 2 adjustable divider shelves with 4
dividers each( street& curbside) lst Hvri ontal Side Compartment: Bolt bin starage unit{ street side)/ bolt- in divider

she(f with 8 dividers( curbside) 3rd Vertical Side Compartment: 2 adjustable divider shelves with 4 dividers each( street
side)/ Fixed shelf( curbside} Master Lotking System: Secures ane entire side of compartments with a padlock in one easy
mation and acks as a visual theR deterrent Padlocks; { 2) codeable padlocks by OEM ignition key for master focking system
stowed in cab Cab Proteckor: with pu ched windaw Auxiliary Lighting: ( 4) E. ED work lights installed 8c LEp compartment

lights installed per each compartment except bottEe gas compartment Strobe system: S/ T/T backup lights with integrated
strobes& built in reflettivity; { 2} LED strobe lights installed on frant grill Outriggers: Hydraulic out/ hydraulic down at
curbside and hydraufic down at street side Backup Alarm: 97 db audible alarm Backup Camera: OEM backup camera
installed 7rim Package: Full height aluminum rock guards installed on the frant end panels and aluminum treadplate trim
an slam tailgate in lieu of KnapLiner Trailer Plug: 7- way flat trailer plug inskalled Finish Paint: Bady interior/ exterior
painted single stage to matth cab

Options be ow can be added;

174



ITEM 4. 10

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVE A BUDGET AMENDMENT TO FUND A

MAINTENANCE WORKER I/ II POSITION FOR

THE PARKS, RECREATION AND MAINTENANCE

SERVICES DEPARTMENT

RECOMMENDATION:       Adopt a Resolution to Approve Funding for a
Maintenance Worker I/ II Position for the

Parks,  Recreation and Maintenance Services

Department and Amend the Position Control
Roster.

SUMMARY:

The Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services Department is responsible for the

daily maintenance of City streets,  parks and buildings.  Due to the City' s current

growth plan,  the Parks,   Recreation and Maintenance Services Department is

requesting funding for one  ( 1) additional Maintenance Worker I/ II position in the
Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services Department.

BACKGROUND:

The Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services Department is responsible for the

daily operations and maintenance of the City' s parks, streets and buildings. As the
City grows, it is necessary to expand staff in order to keep up with the daily needs of
the City' s growing infrastructure.  Based on current and future construction trends,

there is a need for an additional full- time Maintenance Worker I/ II to meet the

demands of the City' s daily operations.

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends Council consider approval of a budget amendment to fund one ( 1)

additional Maintenance Worker I/ II position in the Parks, Recreation and Maintenance
Services Department. This will allow staff to maintain daily servicing operations for
the City' s infrastructure.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff requests City Council consider approval a budget amendment to fund an
additional Maintenance Worker I/ II position as follows:

FY 2021- 22

Increase Expenditures

1010- 30- 10- 410- 1100 87, 500

175



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE A BUDGET AMENDMENT TO FUND A MAINTENANCE WORKER I/ II

POSITION FOR THE PARKS, RECREATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES

DEPARTMENT

FY 2022- 23

Increase Expenditures

1010- 30- 10- 410- 1100 131, 200

ATTACH M EN NTS:

A.  A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop Approving a Budget
Amendment to Fund one ( 1) additional Maintenance Worker I/ II Position for

the Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services Department and Amend the

Position Control Roster

B.  Position Control Roster

176



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE A BUDGET AMENDMENT TO FUND A MAINTENANCE WORKER I/ II

POSITION FOR THE PARKS, RECREATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES
DEPARTMENT

APPROVALS:

l o • S • 1u' L- 1

hary Jon Date

Director of P ks,   ecreation and Maintenance Services

J Oa-
Cari Ja   e Date

Directc   f Finance

ID- ` zOZ

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

o•• Zr
S n J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

177



ATTACHMENT A

RESOLUTION NO

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A BUDGET AMENDMENT TO FUND AN ADDITIONAL

MAINTENANCE WORKER I/ II POSITION FOR THE PARKS, RECREATION

AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND AMEND THE POSITION

CONTROL ROSTER

WHEREAS,  the City is expanding and additional staffing is needed to

continue to meet the service level expectations of the community as the City
continues to grow; and

WHEREAS, the Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services Department is

responsible for the daily maintenance of City streets, parks and buildings; and

WHEREAS, the City Manager recommends funding one ( 1) additional

Maintenance Worker I/ II position in the Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services
Department.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves the funding to adding one ( 1) additional Maintenance Worker I/ II

position in the Parks,  Recreation and Maintenance Services Department and the

amendment to Position Control Roster; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
approve the following budget amendment to the adopted budget as follows:

FY 2021- 22

Increase Expenditures

1010- 30- 10- 410- 1100 87, 500

FY 2022- 23

Increase Expenditures

1010- 30- 10- 410- 1100 131, 200

Page 1 of 1178



ATTACHMENT A

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11t" day of October
2021, by the following vote of:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Page 1 of 1179



Budget for Fiscal Year 21/ 22 - 22/ 23 ATTACHMENT- B

2021/ 22 2022/ 23

2021/ 22 Amended 2022/ 23 Amended

Adopted 10/ 11/ 21 Adopted 10/ 11/ 21

CITY ATTORNEY

City Attorney

Administrative Assistant I/ II/ III 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

City Attorney 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Senior Administrative Assistant 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Total 3. 00 3. 00 3. 00 3. 00

CITY ATTORNEY- Total 3. 00 3. 00 3. 00 3. 00

CITY CLERK

City Clerk

Deputy City Clerk 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Director of Government Services/ City Clerk 0. 50 0. 50 0. 50 0. 50

Tota I 1. 50 1. 50 1. 50 1. 50

CITY CLERK- Total 1. 50 1. 50 1. 50 1. 50

CITY MANAGER

City Manager

City Engineer 0. 15 0. 15 0. 15 0. 15

City Manager 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Director of Government Services/ City Clerk 0. 50 0. 50 0. 50 0. 50

Economic Development Administrator 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Total 2. 65 2. 65 2. 65 2. 65

CITY MANAGER- Total 2. 65 2. 65 2. 65 2. 65

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

Planning

Administrative Assistant I/ II/ III 0. 33 0. 33 0. 33 0. 33

Associate Planner 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Director of Community Development 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Principal Planner 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Senior Administrative Assistant 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Total 4. 33 4. 33 4. 33 4. 33

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT- Total 4. 33 4. 33 4. 33 4. 33

180



Budget for Fiscal Year 21/ 22- 22/ 23 ATTACHMENT- B

2021/ 22 2022/ 23

2021/ 22 Amended 2022/ 23 Amended

Adopted 10/ 11/ 21 Adopted 10/ 11/ 21

FINANCE

Finance

Accountant I/ II 1. 00 2. 00 1. 00 2. 00

Accounting Manager 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Accounting Specialist I/ II/ Technician 5. 00 5. 00 5. 00 5. 00

Administrative Technician I/ II 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Deputy Finance Director 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Director of Finance 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Finance Manager 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Management Analyst I/ II 0. 50 0. 50 0. 50 0. 50

Senior Administrative Assistant 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Senior Management Analyst 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Total 13. 50 14. 50 13. 50 14. 50

FINANCE- Total 13. 50 14. 50 13. 50 14. 50

HUMAN RESOURCES

Human Resources

Human Resources Director 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Human Resources Manager 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

HR Analyst I/ II 0. 00 1. 00 0. 00 1. 00

Total 2. 00 3. 00 2. 00 3. 00

HUMAN RESOURCES- Total 2. 00 3. 00 2. 00 3. 00

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Information Technology
Administrative Assistant I/ II/ III 0. 50 0. 50 0. 50 0. 50

Chief Information Officer 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Information Technology Engineer I/ II/ III 3. 00 5. 00 3. 00 5. 00

Total 4. 50 6. 50 4. 50 6. 50

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY- Total 4. 50 6. 50 4. 50 6. 50

181



Budget for Fiscal Year 21/ 22 - 22/ 23 ATTACHMENT- B

2021/ 22 2022/ 23

2021/ 22 Amended 2022/ 23 Amended

Adopted 10/ 11/ 21 Adopted 10/ 11/ 21

POLICE DEPARTMENT

Sworn

Police Chief 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Police Commander 2. 00 2. 00 2. 00 2. 00

Police Detective 2. 00 2. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Police Officer 22. 00 22. 00 18. 50 18. 50

Police Sergeant 6. 00 6. 00 5. 00 5. 00

Total 33. 00 33. 00 27. 50 27. 50

Non- Sworn

Crime& Intelligence Analyst 0. 00 1. 00 0. 00 1. 00

Police Records Assistant I/ II 0. 00 2. 00 0. 00 2. 00

Police Records Supervisor 0. 00 1. 00 0. 00 1. 00

Tota I 0. 00 4. 00 0. 00 4.00

Administration

Management Analyst I/ II 0. 00 0. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Executive Assistant( Police Services Manager Underfill)     0. 00 0. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Senior Administrative Assistant 0. 00 0. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Total 0. 00 0. 00 3. 00 3. 00

Community Services Division

Community Services Supervisor 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Community Services Officer I/ II/ III 3. 00 5. 00 3. 00 5. 00

Administrative Assistant I/ II/ III 0. 50 0. 50 0. 50 0. 50

Animal Services Assistant 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Total 5. 50 7. 50 5. 50 7. 50

POLICE DEPARTMENT- Total 38. 50 44. 50 36. 00 42. 00

182



Budget for Fiscal Year 21/ 22 - 22/ 23 ATTACHMENT- B

2021/ 22 2022/ 23

2021/ 22 Amended 2022/ 23 Amended

Adopted 10/ 11/ 21 Adopted 10/ 11/ 21

MEASURE C

Administrative Assistant I/ II/ III 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Deputy Director of Parks, Recreation and Maint. Services 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Recreation Leader 0. 90 0. 90 0. 90 0. 90

Senior Recreation Leader 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Total 3. 90 3. 90 3. 90 3. 90

Essential City Services- Contract Staff

Deputy Sheriff II 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Deputy Sheriff II for Community Impact 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Deputy Sheriff II for Investigations 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Deputy Sheriff II for School Resource Off 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Deputy Sheriff II Patrol 0. 50 0. 50 0. 00 0. 00

Sergeant to serve as Supervisor 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Total 5. 50 5. 50 0. 00 0.00

Essential City Services- Police Department
Police Detective 0. 00 0. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Police Officer 0. 00 0. 00 3. 50 3. 50

Police Sergeant 0. 00 0. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Total 0. 00 0. 00 5. 50 5. 50

Lathrop Manteca Fire District
Battalion Chiefs 1. 98 1. 98 1. 98 1. 98

Firefighters/ Engineers 6. 00 6. 00 6. 00 6. 00

Total 7. 98 7. 98 7. 98 7. 98

MEASURE C- Total 17. 38 17. 38 17. 38 17. 38

183



Budget for Fiscal Year 21/ 22 - 22/ 23 ATTACHMENT- B

2021/ 22 2022/ 23

2021/ 22 Amended 2022/ 23 Amended

Adopted 10/ 11/ 21 Adopted 10/ 11/ 21

PARKS, RECREATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES

Parks and Recreation

Administrative Assistant I/ II/ III 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Director of Parks, Recreation and Maintenance Services 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Management Analyst I/ II 1. 25 1. 25 1. 25 1. 25

Recreation Coordinator 3. 00 3. 00 3. 00 3. 00

Recreation Leaders 8. 55 8. 55 8. 55 8. 55

Recreation Supervisor 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Senior Recreation Leaders 3. 35 3. 35 4. 35 4. 35

Total 19. 15 19. 15 20. 15 20. 15

Maintenance Services

Maintenance Services Supervisor 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Maintenance Worker I/ II/ III 9. 00 10. 00 9. 00 10. 00

Tota I 10. 00 11. 00 10. 00 11. 00

PARKS, RECREATION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES- Total 29. 15 30. 15 30. 15 31. 15

PUBLIC SAFETY

Administration

Management Analyst I/ II 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Police Services Manager 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Senior Administrative Assistant 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Tota I 3. 00 3. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Contract Staff

Chief of Police 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Deputy Sheriff II for Com Resource Off 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Deputy Sheriff II for Investigations 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Deputy Sheriff II for Patrol 16. 50 16. 50 0. 00 0. 00

Deputy Sheriff II for School Resource Off 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Lieutenant to serve as Supervisor 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Sergeant to serve as Supervisor 1. 00 1. 00 0. 00 0. 00

Total 22. 50 22. 50 0. 00 0. 00

PUBLIC SAFETY- Total 25. 50 25. 50 0. 00 0. 00

184



Budget for Fiscal Year 21/ 22 - 22/ 23 ATTACHMENT- B

2021/ 22 2022/ 23

2021/ 22 Amended 2022/ 23 Amended

Adopted 10/ 11/ 21 Adopted 10/ 11/ 21

PUBLIC WORKS

Building

Administrative Assistant I/ II/ III 0. 33 0. 33 0. 33 0. 33

Building Inspector i/ II/ III 2. 00 2. 00 2. 00 2. 00

Chief Building Official 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Permit and Plan Check Supervisor 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Permit Technician 2. 00 2. 00 2. 00 2. 00

Total 6. 33 6. 33 6. 33 6. 33

Pubiic Works

Administrative Assistant I/ II 2. 34 2. 34 2. 34 2. 34

Assistant Engineer 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Associate Engineer 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

City Engineer 0. 85 0. 85 0. 85 0. 85

Construction Inspector I/ II 2. 00 2. 00 2. 00 2. 00

Construction Inspector III 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Construction Superintendent 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Director of Public Works 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Executive Assistant 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Land Development Manager 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Management Analyst I/ II 0. 25 0. 25 0. 25 0. 25

Meter Reader 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Senior Administrative Assistant 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Senior Civil Engineer 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Senior Construction Manager 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Utility Operations Superintendent 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Utility Operator I/ II/ III 6. 00 6. 00 6. 00 6. 00

Utility Plant Manager 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00 1. 00

Total 24. 44 24. 44 24. 44 24. 44

PUBLIC WORKS- Total 30. 77 30. 77 30. 77 30. 77

Total City Staff Positions 136. 80 147. 80 137. 80 148. 80

Total Contractual Positions 35. 98 35. 98 7. 98 7. 98

185



186



ITEM 4. 11

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       AWARD CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO G& G

BUILDERS, INC. FOR THE MANUEL VALVERDE PARK

SHELTER IMPROVEMENTS,   CIP PK 22- 08 AND

RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Awarding a Construction Contract
to G& G Builders, Inc. for the Manuel Valverde Park

Shelter Improvements, Capital Improvement Project
CIP)   PK 22- 08 and Approve Related Budget

Amendment

SUMMARY:

The Manuel Valverde Park Shelter Improvements, CIP PK 22- 08 ( Project) was created
to replace the aging concrete patios,  shade shelters and outdoor furniture at the

Community Center and the Senior Center.  The plans and specifications for the
construction of the Project were advertised on August 27, 2021 in accordance with
California Public Contract Code ( PCC) and Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC).

A total of nine ( 9) bids were received and opened by Public Works on September 28,
2021.  Based on review and evaluation of the bids,  the lowest responsive and
responsible bidder was determined to be G& G Builders,  Inc.  ( G& G), with a bid of

337, 554.

Staff requests City Council award a construction contract to G& G for construction of
the Project in the amount of $ 337, 554 plus a 10% construction contingency in the
amount of $ 33, 755 for a total cost not to exceed $ 371, 309.

On June 3, 2021, the City Council approved the Biennial Budget for Fiscal Years 21/ 22
and 22/ 23.  The budget included funding from the General Fund for project PK 22- 08
in the amount of $ 330, 000. Additional funding will be needed to cover the contract
funding shortfall in addition to minor adjustments to landscape and irrigation that will
be made in the field as the job progresses. Therefore, Staff requests City Council
approve a budget amendment transferring an additional $ 45, 000 from the General

Fund Reserves ( 1010) to the CIP Project Fund ( 3010).

BACKGROUND:

The outdoor patios at the Community Center and Senior Center provide pleasant
outdoor accommodations for residents and guests, and are important spaces at each
facility. Constructed over 20 years ago, the main components of these facilities are
nearing the ends of their service lives, especially the furniture and shade shelters.
On June 2, 2021, City Council approved the creation of the Manuel Valverde Park
Shelter Improvements Capital Improvement Project ( CIP)  PK 22- 08 to replace the

concrete patio slabs, wooden shade shelters and exterior furniture comprising the
patio spaces at both the Community Center and the Senior Center.

187



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AWARD CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO G& G BUILDERS,  INC.  FOR THE

MANUEL VALVERDE PARK SHELTER IMPROVEMENTS,  CIP PK 22- 08 AND

RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

Existing tabies and benches are well worn, and in need of replacement.  New ADA-

compliant exterior seating and picnic tables will be installed, including a " game" table
with embedded checkerboard at the Senior Center.

The existing shade shelters are nearing the end of their service lives due to the
deterioration of their wooden structure.  The powder- coated steel construction of the
replacement shelters will last for many decades, and custom gable ornamentation
will soften the appearance of the structural components. The continuous metal roof

will provide more and deeper shade than that created by the louvres on the existing
shelters.

The existing concrete patios will be replaced with slightly larger slabs with improved
steel reinforcement, and the BBQ at the Community Center will be repositioned to
accommodate additional seating.  New durable steel waste receptacles will complete
the improvements, and small adjustments will be made to existing walkways and
landscape to accommodate expanded patio areas.

The plans and specifications for the construction of this project were completed by
Public Works staff and advertised on August 27, 2021, in accordance with CA PCC
20160 and LMC 2. 36. 060. A total of nine ( 9) bids were received, both determined to

be responsive and responsible. The bid results are summarized in Table 1 below:

Tab/ e 1; Summary of Bid Resu/ ts

Contractor Total Bid

G & G Builders, Inc. 337, 554

Goodland Landsca e Construction, Inc.    343, 005

HBC Enter rises 367, 989

Grou H Construction, Inc.       400, 000

Taylor Backhoe Service dba TBS Contractors 407 874

Emert Construction, Inc.  464, 998

B E A M Construction Enterprises, Inc.      476, 500

F. Loduca Com an 493, 027

Pro Ex Construction, Inc.  648, 220

Staff reviewed and evaluated the bids, and determined that the lowest responsive
and responsible bidder is G& G.  Staff requests City Council adopt a resolution
awarding a construction contract to G& G for the amount of $ 337, 554.  Staff also

requests City Council authorize a 10%  construction contingency of $ 33, 755,  and

authorize staff to spend the contingency as necessary to achieve the goals of the
project for a total cost not to exceed $ 371, 309.

188



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AWARD CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO G& G BUILDERS,  INC.  FOR THE

MANUEL VALVERDE PARK SHELTER IMPROVEMENTS,  CIP PK 22- 08 AND

RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The existing concrete slabs,  wooden shade shelters and tables and seating are
nearing the ends of their service lives. This project will provide attractive and long-
lasting outdoor gathering accommodations for the Community and Senior Centers.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The proposed construction contract with G& G is for $ 337, 554. A 10% construction

contingency is requested in the amount of $ 33, 755 for a total cost not to exceed

371, 309.

Funding for this project was included in the FY 21/ 22 budget;  however, sufficient

funds were not allocated. Therefore, staff requests City Council approve a budget
amendment transferring $ 45, 000 from the General Fund Reserves ( 1010) to the CIP

Project Fund ( 3010) as follows:

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 9900- 990- 9010 45, 000

Increase Transfer In

3010- 9900- 393- 0000 PK 22- 08 45, 000

Increase A propriation
3010- 8000- 420- 1200 PK 22- 08 45, 000

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Awarding a Construction Contract to G& G Builders,  Inc.  for the

Manuel Valverde Park Shelter Improvements,   Capital Improvement Project

CIP) PK 22- 08 and Approve Related Budget Amendment

B.  Construction Contract with G& G Builders, Inc. for the Manuel Valverde Park

Shelter Improvements, CIP PK 22- 08

189



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

AWARD CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO G& G BUILDERS,  INC.  FOR THE

MANUEL VALVERDE PARK SHELTER IMPROVEMENTS,  CIP PK 22- 08 AND

RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

APPROVALS:

1 - 4 - ZD21
Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

i -- 5 - zo21

Zachary Date

Parks, Recreation and Maintenance

Services Director

o •  • Zoz1

Michael King Date

Public Works Director

ac r
Cari Ja s Date

Financ irector

o • 7'- toz 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

j0 •• 2

Step Salvatore Date

City Manager

190



RESOLUTION NO. 21-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP AWARDING

A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO G& G BUILDERS,  INC.  FOR THE MANUEL

VALVERDE PARK SHELTER IMPROVEMENTS,   CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

PROJECT ( CIP) PK 22- 08 AND APPROVE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS,   the Manuel Valverde Park Shelter Improvements,   Capital

Improvement Project  ( CIP)  PK 22- 08 was created to replace the aging concrete
patios, shade shelters and outdoor furniture at the Community Center and the Senior
Center; and

WHEREAS, the plans and specifications for this project were developed by
Public Works staff and advertised for bid on August 27,  2021 in accordance with

Public Contract Code Section 20160, and with Lathrop Municipal Code ( LMC) Chapter

3. 30. 060; and

WHEREAS, a total of nine ( 9) bids were received and opened by Public Works
on September 28, 2021; and

WHEREAS, upon review and evaluation of the bids, the lowest responsive and

responsible bidder for the project was determined to be G& G Builders, Inc. with a bid
of $ 337, 554; and

WHEREAS, staff requests the City Council award a construction contract to
G& G Builders, Inc. in the amount of $ 337, 554; and

WHEREAS,   staff also requests Council authorize a 10%   construction

contingency in the amount of $ 33, 755 and authorize staff to spend the contingency
as necessary to achieve the goals of the project for a total cost not to exceed

371, 309; and

WHEREAS,  sufficient funds were not allocated in the adopted FY 21/ 22

Budget;   therefore,   staff requests City Council approve a budget amendment

transferring $ 45, 000 from the General Fund Reserves ( 1010) to the Project CIP Fund

3010) as follows:

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 9900- 990- 9010 45, 000

Increase Transfer In

3010- 9900- 393- 0000 PK 22- 08 45, 000

Increase A propriation
3010- 8000- 420- 1200 PK 22- 08 45, 000

191



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby awards a construction contract to G& G Builders,  Inc.  for Manuel

Valverde Park Shelter Improvements, CIP PK 22- 08 for a cost of $ 337, 554; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop does
hereby approve a 10% construction contingency in the amount of $ 33, 755 for a total

cost not to exceed $ 371, 309 for the construction and authorizes staff to spend up to
this amount as necessary to accomplish the goals of the project; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lathrop also
approves a budget amendment transferring $ 45, 000 from the General Fund Reserves

1010)  to the Project CIP Fund  ( 3010)  as detailed above in order to have the

necessary funds to pay for the project.

192



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11t''  day of October
2021, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO ORM:

C_

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

193



Attachment B

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

This Contract, dated Ocotober 11, 2021, is entered into by and between the City of
Lathrop, a municipal corporation of the State of California ( City), and G& G Builders, Inc.

Contractor), whose Taxpayer ldentification Number is

For and in consideration of the following covenants, terms and conditions, City and
Contractor ( the parties) agree:

L Term.  This Contract shall commence on, and be binding on the parties on, the date of
execution of this Contract, and shall expire on the date of recordation of the Notice of

Substantial Completion, or, if no such notice is required to be filed, on the date that final

payment is made hereunder, subject to the earlier termination of this Contract.

2. General Scope of Project and Work.  Construction Documents for the, CIP PK 22- 08,

Manuel Valverde Park Shelter Improvements ( Project).  Contractor shall furnish labor,

services, materials and equipment in connection with the construction of the Project and

complete the Work in accordance with the covenants, terms and conditions of this Contract

to the satisfaction of City.  The Project and Work is generally described as follows:

The work to be performed under this contract includes all work contained in the
Construction Documents, as detailed in Paragraph 3 below, including but not limited to
demolition, hauling and disposing of two ( 2) existing wooden shade shelters, associated
concrete slabs and outdoor furnishings, and construction of two ( 2) concrete slabs and

metal shade shelters and provision and installation of new exterior furnishings.

The work shall be completed within 70 working days following issuance of Notice to
Proceed.

The Work shall be complete,  and all appurtenant work,  materials,  and services not

expressly shown or called for in the Construction Documents which may be necessary for
the complete and proper construction of the Work in good faith shall be performed,
furnished, and installed by the Contractor as though originally specified or shown.  The

Contractor will be compensated for actual work performed in accordance with the unit
prices and provisions contained in these Construction Documents.

Bid Total: $ 337, 554 ( Three Hundred Thirty Seven Thousand, Five Hundred Fifty Four
Dollars)

3. Construction Documents. This Contract shall include the Construction Documents, which

are hereby incorporated by reference ( i.e. Project Specifications, Project Plans, addenda,
performance bond,  labor and materials bond,  certification of insurance,  workers

compensation certification, and guaranty) and the Bid Documents submitted by G& G

Builders, Inc. on September 28, 2021.  For the purposes of construing, interpreting and
resolving inconsistencies between the provisions of this Contract, these documents and the
provisions thereof are set forth in the order of precedence described in Article 3 of the
General Conditions.

Page 1 of 12

194



4. Compensation.  In consideration of Contractor' s performance of its obligations hereunder,
City shall pay to Contractar the amount set forth in Contractor' s Bid in accordance with
the provisions of this Contract and upon the receipt of written invoices and all necessary
supporting documentation within the time set forth in the Construction Documents.
Contractor hereby shall not be permitted to invoice the City nor accept compensation for
work not yet complete. In no event, shall the Contractor be entitled to payment for work
not included in the approved scope of work, a written task order, or change order signed

by the City' s Public Works Director prior to commencement of any work.

5. Insurance.  On or before the Date of Execution, Contractor shall obtain and maintain the

policies of insurance coverage described in Section 5. 2 of the General Conditions on terms
and conditions and in amounts as may be required by the City.  City shall not be obligated
to take out insurance on Contractor' s personal property or the personal property of any
person performing labor or services or supplying materials or equipment under the Project.
Contractor shall furnish City with the certificates of insurance and with original
endorsements affecting coverage required under this Contract on or before the Date of
Execution. The certificates and endarsements for each insurance policy shall be signed by
a person who is authorized by that insurer to bind coverage in its behalf. Proof of insurance
shall be mailed to the Project Manager to the address set forth in Section 15 of this Contract.

6.       Indemnification.  Contractor agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold City, its City
Council members, officers, employees, engineer, and construction manager harmless from

and against any and all claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, costs, expenses, liens,
penalties, suits, or judgments, arising in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, at any time
from any injury to or death of persons or damage to property as a result of the willful or
negligent act or omission of Contractor, or which results from Contractor' s noncompliance

with any Law respecting the condition, use, occupation or safety of the Project site, or any
part thereof, or which arises from Contractor' s failure to do anything required under this
Contract or for doing anything which Contractor is required not to do under this Contract,
or which arises from conduct for which any Law imposes strict liability on Contractor in
the performance of or failure to perform the terms and conditions of this Contract, except
as ma y arise from the sole willful or negligent act or omission of City or any of its City
Council members, officers, employees.  This indemnification shall extend to any and all
claims, demands, or liens made or filed by reason of any construction, renovation, or
remodeling work performed by Contractor under this Contract at any time during the term
of this Contract, or arising thereafter.

7. Assumption of Risk.  Contractor agrees to voluntarily assume any and all risk of loss,
damage, or injury to the property of Contractor which may occur in, on, or about the Project
site at any time and in any manner, excepting such loss, injury, or damage as may be caused
by the sole willful or negligent act or omission of City or any of its City Council members,
officers, or employees.

8. Waiver.  The acceptance of any payment or performance, or any part thereof, shall not
operate as a waiver by City of its rights under this Contract. A waiver by City of any breach
of any part or provision of this Contract by Contractor shall not operate as a waiver or

Page 2 of 12

195



continuing waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other provision, nor shall
any custom or practice which may arise between the parties in the administration of any
part or provision of this Contract be construed to waive or to lessen the right of City to
insist upon the performance of Contractor in strict compliance with the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Contract.

9. Compliance with Laws. Contractor shall comply with all Laws now in force or which may
hereafter be in force pertaining to the Project and Work and this Contract, with the
requirement of any bond or fire underwriters or other similar body now or hereafter
constituted, with any discretionary license or permit issued pursuant to any Law of any
public agency or official as well as with any provision of all recorded documents affecting
the Project site, insofar as any are required by reason of the use or occupancy of the Project
site,  and with all Laws pertaining to nondiscrimination and affirmative action in
employment and hazardous materials.

DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS- COMPLIANCE MONITORING UNIT

DIR Registration.

a)  Contractar and Subcontractor Compliance.    Strict compliance with DIR registration

requirements pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725. 5 is a material obligation of the
Contractor under the Contract Documents.   The foregoing includes without limitation,
compliance with DIR Registration requirements at all times during performance of the
Work by the Contractor and all Subcontractors of any tier.  The failure of the Contractor

and all Subcontractors of every tire to be DIR registered at all times during the perfarmance
of the Work is the Contractor' s default of a material obligation of the Contractor under the

Contract Documents.

b)  No Subcontractor Performance of Work Without DIR Registration.   No portion of the
Work is permitted to be performed by a Subcontractor of any tier unless the Subcontractor
is a DIR Registered contractor.

c)  Contractor Obligation to Verify Subcontractor DIR Registration Status.  An affirmative

and on- going obligation of the Contractor under the Contract Documents is the
Contractor' s verification that all Subcontractors,  of all tiers,  are at all times during
performance of Work in full and strict compliance with DIR Registration requirements.
The Contractor shall not permit or allow any Subcontractor of any tier to perform any Wark
without the Contractor' s verification that all such Subcontractars are in full and strict

compliance with DIR Registration requirements.

d)  Contractor Obligation to Request Substitution of Non- DIR Registered Subcontractor.  If

any Subcontractor identified in the Contractor' s Subcontractor List submitted with the

Contractor' s proposal for the Work is not DIR Registered at the time of opening of
proposals for the Work or if a Subcontractor' s DIR registration lapses prior to or during a
Subcontractor' s performance of Work, the Contractor shall request the CITY' s consent to

Page 3 of 12

196



substitute the non- DIR registered Subcontractor pursuant to Labor Code Section
1771. 1( c)( 3) and/ or Labor Code Section 1771. 1( d).

Certi ed Payroll Records

a)   Compliance with Labor Code Section 1771. 4 and 1776. A material obligation of the

Contractor under the Contract Documents is: ( i) the Contractor' s strict compliance with the

requirements pursuant to Labor Code Section 1771. 4 and 1776 for preparation and
submittal of Certified Payroll Records (" CPR"); and ( ii) the Contractor' s enforcement of

CPR preparation and submittal for all Subcontractars of every tier.

b)  Express Condition Precedent to Payment of Contact Price.  Strict compliance with CPR

requirements established pursuant to Labor Code Section 1776 is an express condition
precedent to the CITY' s obligation to: ( i) process any request for payment of any portion
of the Contract Price; or( ii) to disburse any portion of the Contract Price to the Contractor.
The Contractor shall demonstrate strict compliance with CPR preparation and submittal
requirements by delivery to the CITY of electronic files or hard copies of all CPR' s
submitted by the Contractor and/ or Subcontractors for Work pursuant to Labor Code
Section 1771. 4 and 1776 concurrently with the submittal thereof to the Labor
Commissioner.  The CITY: ( i) shall not be obligated to process ar disburse any partion of
the Contract Price; or ( ii) shall not be deemed in default of the CITY' s obligations under

the Contract Documents unless the Contractor' s demonstrates strict compliance with CPR

preparation and submittal requirements.

c)  PWR Monitaring and Enforcement.  During the Work pursuant to Labor Code Section
1771. 4( a)( 4),  the Department of Industrial Relations shall monitor and enforce the

obligation of the Construction and Subcontractors of every tier to pay the laborers

performing any portion of the work the PWR established for the classification of work/
labor performed.

RECORD OF WAGES PAID: INSPECTION

Pursuant to Labor Code section 1776, Contractor stipulates to the following:

a)  Contractor and each subcontractor shall keep an accurate payroll record, showing the name,
address, social security number, work classification, straight time and overtime hours
worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each journeyman,
apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by him or her in connection with the
public work under the Facilities lease and Construction Provisions.  Such records shall be

on forms provided by the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement or shall contain the
same information of such forms.  The payroll records may consist of payroll data that are
maintained as computer records, if printouts contain the same information as the forms
provided by the division and the printouts are verified as specified in subdivision ( a) of
Labor Code section 1776.

Page 4 of 12

197



b)  The payroll records enumerated under subdivision ( a) shall be certified and shall be

available for inspection at all reasonable hours at the principal office of Contractor on the
following basis:

1) A certified copy of an employee' s payroll record shall be made available for
inspection or furnished to such employees or his or her authorized representative

on request.

2) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in subdivision ( a) shall be made
available for inspection or furnished upon request to a representative of the CITY,

the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, and Division of Apprenticeship
Standards of the Department of Industrial Relations.

3) A certified copy of all payroll records enumerated in subdivision ( a) shall be made
available upon request by the public for inspection or copies thereof.  However, a
request by the public shall be made through either the CITY, the Division of
Apprenticeship Standards, or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement.  If the
requested payroll records have not been provided pursuant to paragraph ( 2), the

requesting parry shall, prior to being provided the records, reimburse the costs of
preparation by Contractor, subcontractors, and the entity through which the request
was made.  The public shall not be given access to such records at the principal
office of Contractor.

c)  Contractor shall file a certified copy of the records enumerated in subdivision ( a) with the
entity that requested such records within ten ( 10) days after receipt of the written request.

d)  Any copy of records made available for inspection as copies and furnished upon request to

the public or any public agency, by the CITY, the Division of Apprenticeship Standards,
or the division of Labor Standards Enforcement shall be marked or obliterated in such a

manner as to prevent disclosure of an individual' s name, address and social security
number. The name and address of contractor awarded the contract or performing the
contract shall not be marked or obliCerated.

e)  Contractor shall inform the CTTY of the location of the records enumerated under

subdivision ( a), including the street address, city, and county, and shall, within ( 5) working
days, provide a notice of a change of location and address.

f)   In the event of noncompliance with the requirements of this Article, Contractor shall have

ten ( 10) days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of written notice specifying in what
respects Contractor must comply with this Article.  Should noncompliance still be evident
after such 10- day period, Contractor shall pay a penalty of One- Hundred Dollars ($ 100. 00)

to the CITY for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker, until strict
compliance is effectuated.  Upon the request of the Division of Apprenticeship Standards
or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, such penalties shall be withheld from the
progress payment then due.

Page 5 of 12

198



The responsibiliry for compliance with this Article shall rest upon Contractor.

10.      Bonds.  As a condition precedent to City' s obligation to pay compensation to Contractor,
and on or before the date of Execution, Contractor shall furnish to the Project Manager the

Bonds as required under the Notice to Contractors.

11.      Representations and Warranties.  In the supply of any materials and equipment and the
rendering of labor and services during the course and scope of the Project and Work,
Contractor represents and warrants:

1)      Any materials and equipment which shall be used during the course and scope of
the Project and Work shall be vested in Contractor;

2)      Any materials and equipment which shall be used during the course and scope of
the Project and Work shall be merchantable and fit to be used for the particular
purpose for which the materials are required;

3)      Any labar and services rendered and materials and equipment used or employed
during the course and scope of the Project and Work shall be free of defects in
workmanship for a period of one ( 1) year after the recordation of the Notice of
Substantial Completion, or, if no such notice is required to be filed, on the date that

final payment is made hereunder;

4)      Any manufacturer' s warranty obtained by Contractor shall be obtained or shall be
deemed obtained by Contractor for and on behalf of City.

5)      Any information submitted by Contractor prior to the award of Contract,  or
thereafter, upon request, whether or not submitted under a continuing obligation by
the terms of the Contract to do so, is true and correct at the time such information

is submitted or made available to the City;

6)      Contractor has not colluded, conspired, or agreed, directly or indirectly, with any
person in regard to the terms and conditions of Contractor' s Bid, except as may be
permitted by the Notice to Contractors;

7)      Contractor has the power and Che autharity to enter into this Contract with City, that
the individual executing this Contract is duly authorized to do so by appropriate
resolution,  and that this Contract shall be executed, delivered and performed
pursuant to the power and authority conferred upon the person or persons
authorized to bind Contractor;

8)      Contractor has not made an attempt to exert Lindue influence with the Project

Manager ar any other person who has directly contributed to City' s decision to
award the Contract to Contractor;

9)      There are no unresolved claims or disputes between Contractor and City which
would materially affect Contractor' s ability to perform under the Contract;

Page 6 of 12

199



10)    Contractor has furnished and will furnish true and accurate statements, records,

reparts,  resolutions,  certifications,  and other written information as may be
requested of Contractor by City from time to time during the term of this Contract;

11)    Contractor and any person performing labor and services under this Project is duly
licensed as a contractor with the State of California as required by California
Business & Professional Code Section 7028, as amended; and

12)    Contractor has fully examined and inspected the Project site and has full knowledge
of the physical conditions of the Project site.

12.      Assi nment.   This Contract and the performance required hereunder is personal to
Contractor, and it shall not be assigned by Contractor.  Any attempted assignment shall be
null and void.

13.      Claims of Contractor.  All claims pertaining to extra work, additional charges, or delays
within the Contract Time or other disputes arising out of the Contract shall be submitted
by Contractor in accordance with the General Conditions.

14.      Audits by CitX.  During the term of this Contract and for a period of not less than three ( 3)
years after the expiration or earlier termination of this Contract, City shall have the right to
audit Contractor' s Project- related and Work- related writings and business records, as such

terms are defined in California Evidence Code Sections 250 and 1271, as amended, during
the regular business hours of Contractor, or, if Contractor has no such hours, during the
regular business hours of City.

15.      Notices.   All contracts,  agreements,  appointments,  approvals,  authorizations,  claims,

demands, Change Orders, consents, designations, notices, offers, requests and statements

given by either party to the other shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently given and
served upon the other party if ( 1) personally served, ( 2) sent by the United States mail,
postage prepaid, ( 3) sent by private express delivery service, or( 4) in the case of a facsimile
transmission, if sent to the telephone FAX number set forth below during regular business
hours of the receiving party and followed with two (2) days by delivery of a hard copy of
the material sent by facsimile transmission, in accardance with ( 1), ( 2) or ( 3) above.

Personal service shall include, without limitation, service by delivery and service by
facsimile transmission.

To City:      City of Lathrop
City Clerk
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Page 7 of 12

200



To City:      City of Lathrop
Department of Public Works

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330
PHONE:( 209) 941- 7430

FAX:     ( 209) 941- 7449

ATTN:   Senior Construction Manager

To Contractor:     G& G Builders, Inc.

Mailing Address:  4542 Contractors Place Livermore, CA 94551

Phone: 925) 846- 9023

Email:

ATTN:

Miscellaneous

1)      Bailee Disclaimer.  The parties understand and agree that City does not purport to
be Contractor' s bailee, and City is, therefore, not responsible for any damage to the
personal property of Contractor.

2)      Consent.  Whenever in this Contract the approval or consent of a party is required,
such approval or consent shall be in writing and shall be executed by a person
having the express authority to grant such approval or consent.

3)      Controlling Law.   The parties agree that this Contract shall be governed and
construed by and in accordance with the Laws of the State of California.

4)      Definitions.  The definitions and terms are as defined in these specifications.

5)      Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any
delay or failure to perform its obligations under this Contract, which directly results
from an Act of God or an act of a superior governmental authority.

6)      Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Contract and shall have no
effect upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Contract.

7)      Incorporation of Documents.    All documents constituting the Construction
Documents described in Section 3 hereof and all documents which may, from time
to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such reference
incorporated in this Contract and shall be deemed to be part of this Contract.

8)      Integration.    This Contract and any amendments hereto between the parties
constitute the entire contract between the parties concerning the Project and Work,
and there are no other prior oral or written contracts between the parties that are not
incorporated in this Contract.

Page 8 of 12

201



9)      Modification of Contract.  This Contract shall not be modified or be binding upon
the parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

10)    Provision.   Any contract, covenant, condition, clause, qualification, restriction,
reservation, term or other stipulation in the Contract shall define or otherwise

control, establish, or limit the performance required or permitted or to be required
of or permitted by either party.  All provisions, whether covenants or conditions,
shall be deemed to be both covenants and conditions.

11)    Resolution.   Contractor shall submit with its Bid a copy of any corporate or
partnership resolution or other writing, which authorizes any director, officer or
other employee or partner to act for or on behalf of Contractor or which authorizes
Contractor to enter into this Contract.

12)    Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision
of this Contract is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Contract not so
affected shall remain in full force and effect.

13)    Status of Contractor.  In the exercise of rights and obligations under this Contract,

Contractor acts as an independent contractor and not as an agent or employee of

City. Contractor shall not be entitled to any rights and benefits accorded or accruing
to the City Council members,  officers or employees of City,  and Contractor
expressly waives any and all claims to such rights and benefits.

14)    Successors and Assigns.  The provisions of this Contract shall inure to the benefit
of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns of the parties.

15)    Time of the Essence.   Time is of the essence of this Contract and each of its

provisions.  In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be

performed shall be computed by excluding the first Day and including the last.  If
the time in which an act is to be performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or any Day
observed as a legal holiday by City, the time for performance shall be extended to
the following Business Day.

16)    Venue. In the event that suit is brought by either party hereunder, the parties agree
that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California
in the County of San Joaquin or in the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of Ca ifornia.

17)    Recovery of costs.  The prevailing party in any action brought to enforce the terms
of this Contract or arising out of this Contract, including the enforcement of the
indemnity provision( s), may recover its reasonable costs, including reasonable
attorney' s fees, incurred or expended in connection with such action against the
non- prevailing party.

Page 9 of 12

202



18)    Contractor and subcontractors must comply with all applicable standards, orders,
or requirements issued under Section 306 of the Clean Air Act ( 42 USC 1857( h)),

Section 508 of the Clean Water Act ( 33 USC 1368), Executive Order 11738, and

Environmental Protection Agency Regulations at 40 CFR Part 15.

19)    Contractors and subcontractors must comply with mandatory standards and policies
relating to the energy efficiency which are contained in the State Energy
Conservation Plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation
ACT ( Public Law 94- 163, 89 stat 871).

20)    The Contractor shall provide access to the site for the Environmental Protection
Agency and its duly authorized representatives, and the City.

21)    If during the course of construction evidence of deposit of historical or
archaeological interest is found, the Contractor shall cease operation affecting the
find and shall notify the City, who shall notify the EPA and the State Historic
Preservation Officer.  No further disturbance of the deposits shall ensue until the
Contractor has been notified by the City that construction may proceed.  The City
will issue a notice to proceed only after the state official has surveyed the find and
made a determination to the EPA and the City.  Compensation to the contractor, if
any, for lost time or changes in construction to avoid the find, shall be determined

in accordance with changed conditions or change order provisions of the
Construction Documents.

22)    Notice to Proceed.      Prior to commencing work under this Contract,

CONTRACTOR shall receive a written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY. A Notice

to Proceed shall not be issued until all necessary bonds and insurances have been
received. City shall not be obligated to pay CONTRACTOR for any services prior
to issuance of the Notice to proceed.

23)    Signatures. The individuals executing this Contract represent and warrant that they
have the right, power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into and to execute this
Contract on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONTRACTOR and the 

CTTY.  This Contract shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

24)    This project is a public works project: Contractor shall comply with requirements
of California Labor Code § 1700 and following, and prevailing wages shall be paid
for work performed on this project.

25)    The statutory provisions for penalties for failing to comply with the State of
California wage and labor laws be enforced, as well as that for failing to pay
prevailing wages.

Page 10 of 12

203



EXHIBITS:

EXHIBIT A: Contractor' s Submitted Bid Packet

Certification of insurance,  performance and payment bonds,  and tivorker' s compensation

certification shall be furnished to the City by the Contractor after City Council' s approval with
resolution.

Page 11 of 12

204



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the date first above

stated in Lathrop, California.

CONTRACTOR:

By:

Name:

Title:

CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:

Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL:

By:
Michael King, Director of Public Works

APPROVED:

B y:
Stephen J. Salvatore, City Manager

END OF SECTION)

Page 12 of 12

205



Exhibit A
SECTtON 80300

t iANUFL YAl. VERDE PARK S![ ELTER IMPBQVE iENTS Blb PROPOSAI, F RMS
CIP PK 22-0$

BID PRUPOSAL FC?RMS

l:   City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

ATTENTIUN;     City Cleck

FflR: I ANUEL VALVERDE PARK SHELTEI MPROVEMENTS, CIP PK
22-{}8

THE UNDERSIGNED, AS BiDDER, HEREBY AGREES AND DECLAR S TI-IAT;

LEGAI, OMPLIANCE

Th only persc ns c r parties interested in this Bid as Principals are those named herein; that this
6id is made without collusion with any flther person, firm, parmership, corporaiion, or association;
t at he has carefully examined the location of the pcoposed work and the Cs nstruction Documents;
and he proposes and agrees that i' this Bid is accepted he wil! contract with the City af Lathrop, in
the form ofth Contract as set forth in the Construction Dtscuments for said project, to provide all
the necessary labor, servaces, materials, and equipment, and to do all the work and furnish ail the
materials; ar d that he will accepk in ful9 payment therefore the price as proposed in the follawing
Eiitl Schedule.

SCHEDULE UF P. ICES

Ali applicable permit fees, licensing costs, sa[ es taaces, State, and/ ar Federai, and any other taxes,
p tent ci; hts, or rayalties are ineluded in the prices quoted in the Bid.  AII blank spaces rnust be
filled in.

BASIS F AWARD

The basis for a vard of the cc ntract wili be the price af the base bid. The City of Lathrop reserves
the right tc a4vard the work contemp4ated by only th Base Bid, o ncsr of the vork.

0030Q- 1

206



SECTIdN 4034{ f

hiANUEL YALVEt2bE PARK SFiEL7'ER IM1iPROVEMENTS BIfl FROPUSAG FORl41S
C1P PK 22-08

MAlYUEL VALVERDE PA.RK SHELTER IMPROVEMENTS, CIP P'K 22- 0$

BASE BID SCHEDIJI,E

fl
DESC tIFT1UN

iJ1 1IT EXTENDED

ITEM QUANTITY UNITS
pRICE TUTAL

ESCP Fruvision and

Im lementation
l L 

2, 177. 00       $ 2, 177. 00

Demt lition, O# haul and Praper

2 Dispsasat of Existing Wooden 1 L

Arbors and PEantec Baxes 1 b,822. 00     $ 16, 822. OU

Demalition, Offt aul and Proper
3

Dis osat of Existin P' CC slabs
2  F

7. 55 I6,594.00

urnish and Install { 2} PCC
2   

Slabs 22. 58 49, 565. 00

urnish & Install Poligan modei
REK Shade Shelter or equa! for

1
Community Cent r @ 30' x 44'
x IO'       98, 393, 0{}      $ 98, 39. OQ

Furnish & Install Pt ligQn mode3

REK Shade Shelter or equal for t LS

S nior Center 20' x 44' x 10'    75, 783A0     $ 75, 783. 00

Trash R ceptacles, Da M r
7

Rece tacle 84
EA

2, 050. 50      $$, 242, 00

Furriish& Install Du Mor
g

TablelBench, model 8- 44
A

6, 412. 60       $ 32, 063. 00

Furnish& Instalt Du Mc r

9 Table/ Bench, maded 448- 44 i EA

Game U tit n Checkerboard 7, 058. 00       $ 7, 058. Ofl

Furnish&. Irista( 1 Du Mor ADA
10

TablelBench, mflde1448- 43
1 A       

5, 440. 00 5, 440. OQ

Furnish& Install Du Mar ADA

i 1 Table/ Bench, model 448- 43 l EA
Game t tion Checker6oard C, 350. 00

Fumish & Install4utdoor

l     Creatic ns T ble/ Bench Model 7 EA

1005SK l,$ 43. 57 12, 905. 00

Furnish& Install C7utdooc

13 Creations ADA Tabte/ Bench 1 EA

Mode1100SKL  2, 094. OD       $ 2,{19. 0

urnish & Install t utdaor

I4 Crea tions ADA Table i Bench 1 A       
51.Mndel 1 QOSKRE 2, i 97. Q

IS Relacate BBQ 2 EA 892. 40 1, 784.00

oa oo- 2

207



sECT atv ao o

ri1ANUEL VALVERD PAIti{ SHELT': Fi I14iPRQVEMENfiS 8ID Pt3flPO8Al. FQRMS
IP PK 22-08

BASE szD•  3. sz7. aa

BASE BID iN WCIRDS: Three Hundred.  ThsrtY Seven 7fiousand - Five Hundred, Tw nty Seven Dollars&
No Cents

IIYFC}RMATIC) N REQUIREll UF BIDDER

The Bidder ( Contractar} shall furnish the following infQrmation.  This ir formatian is consider d

essential in enabiing the Project IVianager to determine if the Bidder is experienced in similar types
af wc rk and if the Bid is based c n a careful stu iy of inethods appticable to the work an l futl
reaiization of the vacious factars which may affect the progress of the wark.  Failure to camply
with this requirement rrta render the Bid non- responsive and mav cause its re ection. Additianal
sheets shall be atiachetf as required.

s is l ou rra v

1}     IIidder' s nam and address:

G & G Builders, Inc.

4 42 Contractors P1ace

Livert ntare, CA 94551

2}     E3idder' s telepht ne number: _( 925 $ 46- 9023

3}     Bidtier' s f uc numbe: _      84C- 4 2

4}     Bidder' s Contra tor' s Lice se{ Class}:   , g

Licens Nt.;  750759

Expires:_ 6/ 221, 21

5}     P r an whQ inspected site of pr Q ed wark fc r C ntractor' s firm:

Nam:   Gerard Cailahan Date of inspection:   09/ 27C 021

6j List 3 projects of a naEt re simiiar tQ this project.

Prcaject Contract N rr e, Address nd

Price Tele hone Itilumbet- of(J vrier

La Colina Park b386, 710. 0i1 City of San Jvse- Sa+n 3ose, CA
5t ccy Palamar I{ 408) 535- 8 04

Huck& Suliivan Parks       370, 2$ S, tfO    ity ofTracy- Tracy, CA
Leissen Maxangias/( 209} 831- 6467

U030Q- 3

208



SECT1t tV Of3300

hiANUEL VAI. VERDC PARK S} I LTER IhiPROYEMEt i7' S BID PROPOSAL FOR 17S
C1P f'K 2- 08

SIUSb Ptayground SJUSD Various Sites- San Jose, CA

Modernizations
7' 72, 359. fl0    ,

Q lqyist/{ 7U7} 438- 37 0

403 QQ- 4

209



s c rto v ooao

rSANUEG VALVERUE PARK SHEI,'' ER IhiPROVE?'[ F;riTS S[ D PR{} POSAL FORh15

CIP PK 22- 48

LIST CiF SUBCflNTRACTt}RS:

The Bidder sk all list below the name and business address t f each subcontractoc who will perform
work under this Bid in excess of one-half of one percent of the Contractor' s Tatal Bid Price, and
shall also list ihe portion of ihe WORK which will be dane by such sub antractor, in accordance
with Section 4107 of the Public Contract Cc,de. After the openin of bids, no changes or

substitutions will be al owed except as otherwise provided by law. The listin af more than one
subcontractor for each item af work to be pecformed with the wards'° and/ ar" wil! t ot be permitted.
Failure to cr mply vith ihis requirement may render the Bid ston- responsive and may cause its
rejection. Should the Contract r provide bid that does not requir a subcnntractor, the Contractor

shall note that an khis page by writing " Not App3icable" in th list below.

Subcontr ctor

License Percent of

Work tc be Performed Number Tota1 Contraet Sa bcocatractor/ Addrt/ Phone#

1.   Concrete 868242 9 8%      Luminart Concrete-{ 925) 785- 7020

1 t}24 Sert entine Lane, Suite i OS

2.
Pleasanton, CA 94566

3.

4.

S.

6.

Nt te: Attach addit onal sheets if required.

40300- 5

210



SECTION 00304

RiAlVLJEL VALVERllE PARK SHELTER 1 4iPRpVF.hiENTS BID PR(3POSAL FQRhiS
CIP PI{ 22- 08

ADD ENDA

Bidder certifies he reviewed ARC Stockton' s website For addenda within 48 haurs ofbid opening
ar d acknowledges receipt of the following addendum ( addenda}:

1 9114/ 21

Respectfully submitted,

fl9/ 21i2021 G& G Buiiders, Inc.

17at d Legat Name c f Firm

ignature of Authorzzed Representative

Seal)

If Bidder is a corporation, show State in which incorporated.}

Caiifornia

The full names and pc st office addresses o#'ali persons and parties interested in the fc regoin Bid
as principals are as follows:

Nt?TICE):   Give cst and iast names in full; in case c f carporation, giue names af` President,
Secretary, Treasurer, and Ntanager, and in case of partnerships and jaint ventuces, give names and
Past flffice addresses of a! 1 ihe individual mernbers.

Gerard Callahan- President 1 Mana er

Lor aine Calla} ian- Secretary/ Treasure

003 30- 6

211



SECTION OQ30ti

MANUEL VALVEIiDE PARK SHF. TER[ MPRC3VEMEN' I'S BIU PROPOSAL FORl iS
CIP PIG ZI-08

NONCOLI USI N AFFIDAVIT

STATE flF

ss.

COUNTY OF

Gerard Callahan being first dUly sworn, deposes and says that he or she is

Pres' sdent p G 8c C, Builders, lnc.        
p y making the foregoing bid

that the b'td is not made in the in#erest of, c r on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership,
company, association, organiaation, or corporation; that the bid is genuine and not collusive or
sham; that the bidder has nat directly or indirectly induced or sc licited any other bidder to put in a
false or sham bid, and has not directly or indirectly cc l[ udeti, c+anspired, cannived, or a reed with
any bidder t r anyone else to put in a sha n bid, or that anyone sha l refrain from bidding; that the
bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, soa ht by agreement, communicatian, or
conference with anyane to x the bid price of the bidder c r any other bidder, ar of that af any other
bidder, or to secure any advantage agair st the public body awarding the contract af anyone
interested in the propvsed contract; that all staiements cant ir ed in the bid are true; and, further,
that the bidder has not, dire tly or indirectly, submitted his csc her bid price or any breakdown
theret f, or the contents thereof, or divulged inforrnation nr data relative thereto, or paid, and will
nai pay, any fee t o any carporatian, partn rship, company as ociated, organizatian, bid depository>
or io any member or agent thereof tt ffectuate a c a    i t r sh b' .

yf--
i nature of residen Secretary,

Manager, Project   ar ger or R presentative

The County of Al meda

Sta e of Ca ifornia

Subscribed an sworn tc ( t r af rmed) before me

o this 1 dsy c f S 1       .2t3 by

Z1   p`  R-  , fl NAl praved tc
me on the basis af satisfactory evidenc to be the
p rson( s) who app ared bsfor me,

Sea4

Signature  (,...   I IJ't..    l 1, o-f"'

At NA rdAAIE BREIMST R
CC} MNS. # 2292494 z 403{} 0- 8Y

m     ,,  Nntary Pts lic• Caii#orr,ia o
z w Alameda County

h', Gomrr. Ex ires JGne 11, 2023

212



i

SECTiqN Q0300

1iA11ii3EL VALYEBAE FARK SI3ELTEFi Ii 1PItOVEA9ENTS BID P12UPOSAL FOR111S
CI' PK 22-0$

PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE SECT ON 1016 QUESTIONNAIRE

Cn accordance rvith Public Contract Cflde Section t0I62, the Bidder shall complete, under penalty
of p rjury, the followin questiannaire:

tas the Bidder, any officer of the Bidder, or any employee of the Bidt er, who has
a praprietary interest in the Bidder, ever been disqualified, removed, or otherwise
prevented from bidding on, ar campleting a #' edernl, state, or local government
project because of a violation oflaw or a safety regu ation?

Yes No X

If th answer is yes, expiain the circumstances in the follawing space,

PUBLIC C{3N'' RACT SECTIUN 1 232 STA'TEMENT

In accordance with Public CQ tract ode Section ] 0232, . lte Contractor hereby states under
pcnalty of perjury, tk at no more than one final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a
federai court has been issued against the Contracit r vithin the immediately preceding Ewc y ar
period because c f the Contractor' s failure t cc mply tivith an c rd r t f a federal court which orders
the C ntra t4r to cc mply with an ord r of the 1` atic nal Labar kelations Bc ard.

IOTE:  T'he above Statem nt and Questionnaire are part of the Proposal.  5i ning this
prflposal on the signatu- e p rti r thereof shal isa constitute signature c f ihis
Statement and Queskic nnaire.

Bidders are cautioned that making a fa se certification may s bject the certifier to
criminal prosecutic n,

ENl7( F SECT. C7N)

oo3a-

213



214



ITEM 4. 12

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: APPROVAL OF TASK ORDER NO. 7 WITH CRANE

TRANSPORTATION GROUP FOR THE

PREPARATION OF THE 2022 TRAFFIC

MONITORING PROGRAM AND ANALYSIS AND

RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION: Adopt Resolution Approving Task Order No. 7
with Crane Transportation Group for the

Preparation of the 2022 Traffic Monitoring
Program and Analysis,   Pursuant to Master

Consulting Agreement dated 7une 11,  2018

and Related Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

The Development Agreements and Environmental Impact Reports for development

projects requires that each developer participate and fund the Traffic Monitoring
Program  ( TMP).  The TMP monitors roadway conditions,  projects future roadway
congestion, and schedules roadway improvements to keep traffic congestion at an
acceptable level.   On June 11,  2018, City Council approved a Master Professional
Services Consulting Agreement with Crane Transportation Group ( CTG), for traffic

analysis.

Staff recommends City Council approve Task Order No. 7 in the amount of $ 98, 170

with CTG,  to provide the Citywide Traffic Counts and the 2022 Traffic Monitoring
Program. The services provided by CTG will be fully funded by developers and the
costs for these services will only be paid if the revenue has been received. Sufficient
funds were not included in the approved fiscal year 2021- 22 budget. Therefore, staff
request City Council also approve a budget amendment to fund  ( 2020)  Land

Development Engineering.

BACKGROUND:

The Development Agreements and Environmental Impact Reports for development

projects requires that each developer participate and fund the TMP. The TMP monitors
roadway conditions,  projects future roadway congestion,  and schedules roadway
improvements to keep traffic congestion at an acceptable level.

The TMP is important because it establishes performance standards and details how
operations of the roadway system are to be monitored as well as how to schedule
improvements to avoid the roadway system from falling below the acceptable
standards of operation. Developers are required to fund the TMP on a continuing basis
until all required traffic improvements have been completed.

215



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF TASK ORDER NO. 7 WITH CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE 2022 TRAFFIC MONITORING PROGRAM AND

ANALYSIS AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

The last TMP was prepared in 2018, and due to the drastic increase in development,
the TMP needs to be updated.

Below is an overview of the proposed services by CTG;

Citywide Traffic Count Operations - This task order includes traffic counts and

turning movements at the City' s major intersections. It also includes counts
on major roadway segments including freeway interchanges.  These are

required to establish a baseline for all automotive and truck activities.  The

traffic counts support the preparation of the Transportation Monitoring
Program as well as the General Plan Circulation Element update and supporting
General Plan Environmental Impact Report.

Year 2022 Citywide Traffic Monitoring Program Studx - The Traffic Monitoring
Program analyzes and documents traffic impacts under existing conditions and
projects future traffic conditions while taking into consideration

proposed/ planned land use developments and planned circulation system
improvements. With this information, CTG will identify significant impacts and
mitigations to prevent any traffic congestion above the acceptable levels.

Below is a summary of approved task orders to date:

Task Order No. Date A roved Work Sco e Descri tion

1 2 07/ 11/ 18 Traffic Count and Traffic Monitorin Pro ram

3 08/ O1/ 18 Phelan Gatewa Site Circulation

4 09/ 11/ 19 CFT NV Develo ment Site Circulation

5 07/ 09/ 20 River Islands Phase 2 Traffic Anal sis

6 07/ 08/ 20
Environmental Impact Report ( EIR) Traffic

Anal sis Review

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Professional services are needed to complete a full 2022 TMP study. The last study
was completed in 2018,  however, due the increase in development of residential,

commercial, and industrial projects, an update is required to determine if any current
or future improvements will be required to keep the level of traffic congestion at a
satisfactory level.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The cost of Task Order No. 7 is not to exceed $ 98, 170 and will be fully funded by
developers. The costs for these services will only be paid if the revenue has been
received.

Sufficient funds were not included in the approved fiscal year 2021- 22 budget.
Therefore, staff request City Council approve a budget amendment as follows;

216



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF TASK ORDER NO. 7 WITH CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE 2022 TRAFFIC MONITORING PROGRAM AND

ANALYSIS AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

Increase Revenue

2020- 50- 04- 341- 02- 05      $ 98, 170

Increase A propriations
2020- 50- 04- 420- 0100 98, 170

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Approving Task Order No.  7 with Crane Transportation Group for
the Preparation of the 2022 Traffic Monitoring Program and Analysis, Pursuant
to Master Consulting Agreement dated June 11,  2018 and Related Budget

Amendment

B.  Task Order No.  7 Pursuant to Master Consulting Agreement dated June il,
2018 with Crane Transportation Group for the Preparation of the 2022 Traffic
Monitoring Program and Analysis

217



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF TASK ORDER NO. 7 WITH CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE 2022 TRAFFIC MONITORING PROGRAM AND

ANALYSIS AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

APPROVALS:

d/ l Z

Brad ylor Date

Land Development Manager

9 ._ { - ;

Michael Ki Date

Public Works Director

10,(
Cari Ja s Date

Finance irector

lt  - s -  zoZ. 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

D •S•Z(
S phen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

218



RESOLUTION NO. 21-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING TASK ORDER NO.  7 WITH CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE 2022 TRAFFIC MONITORING PROGRAM AND

ANALYSIS, PURSUANT TO MASTER CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED 7UNE

li, 2018 AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, the Development Agreements and Environmental Impact Reports

for development projects requires that each developer participate and fund the Traffic
Monitoring Program  ( TMP). The TMP monitors roadway conditions,  projects future
roadway congestion, and schedules roadway improvements to keep traffic congestion
at an acceptable level; and

WHEREAS,   the TMP is important because it establishes performance

standards and details how operations of the roadway system are to be monitored as
well as how to schedule improvements to avoid the roadway system from falling
below the acceptable standards of operation; and

WHEREAS, developers are required to fund the TMP on a continuing basis
until all required traffic improvements have been completed.  The last TMP was

prepared in 2018, and due to the drastic increase in development, the TMP needs to
be updated; and

WHEREAS, below is an overview of the proposed services by CTG;

Citywide Traffic Count Operations - This task order includes traffic counts and

turning movements at the City' s major intersections. It also includes counts
on major roadway segments including freeway interchanges.  These are

required to establish a baseline for all automotive and truck activities. The

traffic counts support the preparation of the Transportation Monitoring
Program as well as the General Plan Circulation Element update and supporting
General Plan Environmental Impact Report.

Year 2022 Citywide Traffic Monitoring Program Studx - The Traffic Monitoring
Program analyzes and documents traffic impacts under existing conditions and
projects future traffic conditions while taking into consideration

proposed/ planned land use developments and planned circulation system
improvements. With this information, CTG will identify significant impacts and
mitigations to prevent any traffic congestion above the acceptable levels; and

WHEREAS,  Professional services are needed to complete a full 2022 TMP

study.  The last study was completed in 2018,   however,  due the increase in

development of residential, commercial, and industrial projects, an update is required
to determine if any current or future improvements will be required to keep the level
of traffic congestion at a satisfactory level; and

219



WHEREAS, the cost of Task Order No. 7 is not to exceed $ 98, 170 and will be

fully funded by developers.  The costs for these services will only be paid if the
revenue has been received; and

WHEREAS,  sufficient funds were not included in the approved fiscal year
2021- 22 budget. Therefore, staff request City Council approve a budget amendment
to fund ( 2020) Land Development Engineering in the amount of $ 98, 170 as follows.

Increase Revenue

2020- 50- 04- 341- 02- 05      $ 98, 170

Increase Appro riations

2020- 50- 04- 420- 0100 98, 170

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve Task Order No. 7 with Crane Transportation Group to
provide the Citywide Traffic Count and Year 2022 Traffic Monitoring,  pursuant to

Master Consulting Agreement dated June 11, 2018; and

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council of
the City of Lathrop does hereby authorizes a budget amendment to PW Land
Development Professional Services ( 2020) as follows:

Increase Revenue

2020- 50- 04- 341- 02- 05      $ 98, 170

Increase A propriations
2020- 50- 04- 420- 0100 98, 170

220



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11th day of October 2021, by
the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Sa va or Navarrete, City Attorney

221



ATTACHMENT B

CITY OF LATHROP

TASK ORDER NO. 7

PURSUANT TO MASTER CONSULTING AGREEMENT DATED JUNE 11,

2018 WITH CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP FOR TRAFFIC

MONITORING AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE PREPARATION OF THE 2022 TRAFFIC MONITORING PROGRAM

AND ANALYSIS

THIS TASK ORDER N0. 7 dated for convenience this 11t'' day of October 2021, is by
and made and entered into by and between Crane Transportation Group (" CONSULTANT")

and the CITY OF LATHROP, a California municipal corporation (" CITY");

RECITALS:

WHEREAS,  on June 11,  2018,  CONSULTANT entered into a Master Agreement

AGREEMENT") with the CITY, by which the CONSULTANT has agreed to provide Specialized
Traffic Analysis Services for the City of Lathrop. The City Council authorized the execution of the
AGREEMENT and with CONSULTANT, pursuant to Resolution 18- 4404.

WHEREAS,  CONSULTANT is specially trained,  experienced,  and competent for the
Preparation of the 2022 Traffic Monitoring Program and Analysis, which are required by this
agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, CONSULTANT and the CITY agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

1)      Incorporation Of Master Aqreement

This Task Order hereby incorporates by reference all terms and conditions set forth
in the Master Agreement for Consulting Services for this project, unless specifically
modified by this Task Order.

2)      Scope of Service

CONSULTANT agrees for the Preparation of the 2022 Traffic Monitoring Program
and Analysis in accordance with the scope of work and fee proposal provided in
Exhibit " A" to this Task Order. CONSULTANT agrees to diligently perform these
services in accordance with the upmost standards of its profession and to the
CITY' S satisfaction.

3)      Effective Date and Term

The effective date of this Task Order No. 7 is October 11, 2021, and it shall
terminate no later than June 30, 2022.

Page 1 of 3

222



CITY OF LATHROP — TASK ORDER NO. 7 WITH CRANE TRANSPORTATION - FOR

THE PREPARATION OF THE 2022 TRAFFIC MONITORING PROGRAM AND

ANALYSIS

4)       Independent Contractor Status

It is expressly understood and agreed by both parties that CONSULTANT, while
engaged in carrying out and complying with any terms and conditions of this
agreement, is an independent contractor and not an employee of the CITY.  As

an independent contractor,  CONSULTANT is responsible for controlling the
means and methods to complete the scope of work described in this Task Order

No.  7 to the City' s satisfaction.    CONSULTANT expressly warrants not to
represent, at any time or in any manner, that CONSULTANT is an employee of
the CITY.

5)       Compensation

CITY hereby agrees to pay CONSULTANT hourly rates and other charges
detailed in Exhibit" A" up to a total sum not to exceed$ 98, 170 for the Preparation
of the 2022 Traffic Monitoring Program and Analysis. CONSULTANT shall be paid
any uncontested sum due and payable within thirty ( 30) days of receipt of billings
containing all information pursuant to Paragraph 5 in the Master Consulting
Agreement Dated June 11, 2018.

6)       Notice to Proceed

Prior to commencing work under this agreement, CONSULTANT shall receive a
written " Notice to Proceed" from CITY.  A Notice to Proceed shall not be issued

until all necessary insurance have been received.  City shall not be obligated to
pay CONSULTANT for any services rendered prior to issuance of the Notice to
Proceed.

7)       Siqnatures

The individuals executing this Agreement represent and warrant that they have the
right,  power,  legal capacity,  and authority to enter into and to execute this
Agreement on behalf of the respective legal entities of the CONSULTANT and the

CITY. This agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the parties
hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

Page 2 of 3

223



CITY OF LATHROP — TASK ORDER NO. 7 WITH CRANE TRANSPORTATION - FOR

THE PREPARATION OF THE 2022 TRAFFIC MONITORING PROGRAM AND

ANALYSIS

Approved as to Form:     City of Lathrop
City Attorney

p • S- zvZ(
Salvador Navarrete Date

Recommended for Approvai:   City of Lathrop
Public Works Director

Michael King Date

Approved by:
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

CONSULTANT:     Crane Transportation Group
2621 East Windrim Court

Elk Grove, CA 95758- 7479

Fed I D # 19- 5404405

Bus License # 20144

Signature Date

Mark D. Crane

President

Page 3 of 3

224



EXHIBIT A

CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

CITY OF LATHROP

2022 TRAFFIC MONITORING PROGRAM ( TMP)

2- & 4- YEAR HORIZON TRIP GENERATION &

DISTRIBUTION PROJECTIONS,

OPERATIONS ANALYSIS,

IMPACT & MITIGATION DETERMINATION &

REPORT PREPARATION

PROPOSAL

September 3, 2021

L PROJECT INITIATION

A meeting will be conducted with the City of Lathrop staff to finalize details about locations
selected for analysis as well as to discuss land use and roadway improvement issues.

II.     EXISTING CONDITIONS

A.      ANALYSIS LOCATIONS ( SEE FIGURE 1)

City Staff has determined that the following intersections will be studied:

CTG 09/ 03/ 2021 — City of Lathrop - 2022 TMP - Proposal Page 1 of 9

225



1.    Roth Road/ Manthey Road
2.    Roth Road/ I- 5 SB Ramps

3.    Roth Road/ I- 5 NB Ramps

4.    Roth Road/ Harlan Road

5.    Roth Road/ McKinley Avenue
6.    Spartan Way/ Golden Valley Parkway
7.    Spartan Way/ Manthey Road
8.    Spartan Way/ I- 5 SB Ramps
9.    Lathrop Road/ I- 5 NB Ramps
10.  Lathrop Road/ New Harlan Road

l.  Lathrop Road/ Sth Street/ Woodfield Avenue
12.  Lathrop Road/ McKinley Avenue
13.  Golden Valley Parkway/ Stanford Crossing
14.  River Islands Parkway/ McKee Boulevard
15.  River Islands Parkway/ Golden Valley Parkway
16.  River Islands Parkway/ I- 5 SB Ramps
17.  Louise Avenue/ I- 5 NB Ramps

18.  Louise Avenue/ New Harlan Road

19.  Louise Avenue/ Cambridge Drive

20.  Louise Avenue/ Sth Street- Howland Road

2l.  Louise Avenue/ McKinley Avenue
22.  Golden Valley Parkway/ Towne Centre Drive
23.  Manthey Road/ Brookhurst Boulevard
24.  Yosemite Avenue/ Glacier Road

25.  Yosemite Avenue/ SR 120 EB Ramps

26.  Yosemite Avenue/ SR 120 WB Ramps

27.  Yosemite Avenue/ D' Arcy Parkway
28.  Yosemite Avenue/ McKinley Avenue
29.  Manthey Road/ I- 5 SB Ramps
30.  Mossdale Road/ I- 5 NB Ramps

31.  River Islands Parkway/ Dell' Osso Drive
32.  River Islands Parkway/ Somerston Parkway
33.  Somerston Parkway/ Marina Drive
34.  Somerston Parkway/ Academy Drive
35.  Somerston Parkway/ Lakeside Drive
36.  Lakeside Drive/ Commercial Street

37.  Manthey Road/ Stewart Road
38.  West Arbor Drive/ Paradise Road

39.  MacArthur Bivd./ I- 205 EB Ramps

40.  MacArthur BIvdJI- 205 WB Ramps

41.  McKinley Avenue/ SR 120 EB Ramps ( 2026 only)
42.  McKinley Avenue/ SR 120 WB Ramps ( 2026 only)

CiT 7 09/ 03/ 2021 - City of Lathrop - 2022 TMP - Proposal Page 2 of 9

226



B.      FIELD REVIEW

Mark Crane, P. E. will field review all analysis locations.

C.      TRAFFIC COUNTS

Please see traffic count Scope of Services. The traffic count cost is not included

in this Scope.

D.      OPERATIONS ANALYSIS

The following existing conditions operations information will be determined at
the analysis locations.

Level of Service using the Synchro software program-- all locations.

95th percentile vehicle queuing using the Synchro software program-- most
intersections within or adjacent to freeway interchanges ( locations 1, 2, 3, 4, 8,
9, ] 0, 16, 17, 18, 25, 26, 39, 40).

E.      IDENTIFY ALL LOCATIONS WITH EXISTING UNACCEPTABLE

OPERATION & REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS

List all locations with unacceptable intersection Level of Service, unacceptable

95th percentile queuing and those unsignalized intersections meeting signal
warrant criteria.

Recommend measures to mitigate all unacceptable operation.

III.     FUTURE CONDITIONS

A.      ANALYSIS HORIZON YEARS

2024

2026

CiTC7 09/ 03/ 2021 — City of Lathrop - 2022 TMP- Proposal Page 3 of 9

227



B.      PROPOSED/ PLANNED LAND USE DEVELOPMENT

Lathrop City Staff will provide detailed information regarding all development in
the cities of Lathrop and Manteca as well as San Joaquin County that should be
included in the traffic projections for the two future years.  This will also include

any expected changes in the number of students for the local schools as well as
increased activity in existing industrial or warehousing/ distribution facilities.

One land use scenario will be studied for each horizon year.  City Staff will obtain
traffic studies from Manteca and San Joaquin County for projects in these two
jurisdictions potentially contributing a significant amount of traffic to the Lathrop
roadway system.

C.      PLANNED CIRCULATION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

Lathrop City Staff will provide a list of any circulation system improvements to be
considered in place for each horizon year. In particular, the City will need to decide
if the McKinley interchange will be in place by 2026, additional lanes will be
provided along local freeways, Harlan Road will be realigned at Roth Road and
other River Islands access will be provided..

D.      FUTURE PROJECT TRIP GENERATION

Peak hour trip generation projections for all proposed land uses within Lathrop will
be developed using trip rates from the Institute of Transportation Engineers ( ITE)
Trip Generation Manual, IOth Edition ( 2017).  The exception will be new single

family residential units within Lathrop, where trip rates may be developed from the
subdivision traffic counts conducted for this study. This wilt be at the discretion of
the City Engineer. Please note that the existing significant amount of construction
worker traffic associated with the River Islands development will be assumed on

the circulation system in 2024 and 2026.

Trip generation from ail developments within Manteca and San Joaquin County
will be obtained from studies conducted for these proposed developments. Lathrop
City Staff will be required to obtain copies of these studies.   If no studies are

available, trip generation and distribution projections will be developed using the
most recent ITE trip generation rates.  Projections for small non- Lathrop
developments will be completed as part of the proposed Scope.  Projections for

larger developments will be considered extra work.

CiTC7 09/ 03/ 2021 — City of Lathrop - 2022 TMP- Proposal Page 4 of 9

228



E.      EXISTING NON- PROJECT TRAFFIC REDISTRIBUTION DUE

TO CIRCULATION SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS

Existing AM & PM peak hour volumes will be redistributed based upon new
roadways and interchanges projected to be in operation by City Staff for each
horizon year.

F.      FUTURE PROJECT TRIP DISTRIBUTION

Traffic from new development within Lathrop will be distributed to the local
roadway network based upon distribution patterns from the existing counts as well
as input from the new Lathrop Traffic Model.   Trip distribution will take into
account all new roadways and interchanges projected to be in operation by each
horizon year.  Projections for small non- Lathrop developments will be completed
as part ofthe proposed Scope. Projections for larger developments outside Lathrop
without traffic studies will be considered extra work.

Trip distribution patterns to/ from Lathrop residential, commercial and employment
Traffic Analysis zones will be obtained from Fehr & Peers usin the City' s new
traffic model. The cost for obtaining this data is not included in the base Scope.

Traffic from new development in Manteca or San Joaguin County without a traffic
study will be distributed to the Lathrop street network based upon data from
available studies in these jurisdictions.

G.      FUTURE TRAFFIC PROJECTIONS

Year 2024 and 2026 AM and PM peak hour turn movement increments at each
analysis intersection will be developed for each major development area in the

City ( Central Lathrop Specific Plan, Mossdale, River Islands, South Lathrop,
remainder of City) as well as for City of Manteca and San Joaquin County
development.

Total volume increments will then be determined for each horizon year.

CiT( 7 09/ 03/ 2021 — City of Lathrop - 2022 TMP - Proposal Page 5 of 9

229



H.      FUTURE OPERATIONS ANALYSIS

Year 2024 AM and PM peak hour Level of Service will be determined at all
analysis intersections, while 95th percentile queuing using Synchro software results
will be determined at those select intersections listed in Scope item II-C. Peak hour

signal warrant evaluation will also be conducted at all unsignalized intersections.

Year 2026 AM and PM peak hour Level of Service will be determined at all
analysis intersections, while 95th percentile queuing using Synchro software results
will be determined at those select intersections listed in Scope item II-C. Peak hour

signal warrant evaluation will also be conducted at ali unsignalized intersections.

L ROTH ROAD INTERSECTIONS AT I-5 INTERCHANGE &

HARLAN ROAD - YEAR 2026 SECOND ANALYSIS WITH

ALTERNATIVE HARLAN ROAD ALIGNMENT

AM and PM peak hour Year 2026 operating conditions ( Level of Service, delay,
Signal Warrant# 3 and 95th percentile yueuing) will be determined at the Roth Road
intersections with Harlan Road, the I- 5 Northbound Ramps and the i-5 Southbound

Ramps for two Harlan Road alignment plans.  The frrst will maintain the existing
Harlan Road alignment with stop- sign control at all three intersections. The second
will have Harlan Road south of Roth Road realigned farther to the west to a new

signalized " Tee" intersection.  Harlan Road north of Roth Road will remain in its

existing location and be stop- sign controlled on its approach to Roth Road.
Stop- sign control at the two- ramp intersections will also remain.

IV.     SIGNIFICANT IMPACTS

YEAR 2024 A determination will be made of all locations projected to experience
unacceptable peak hour Level of Service or 95th percentile c ueuing.
Unsignalized intersections with peak hour volumes above Warrant # 3
criteria levels will also be listed.  The percent contribution in net new
traffic from all Specific Plan areas in the City will be determined at all
locations with unacceptable operation.

YEAR 2026 A determination will be made of all locations projected to experience
unacceptable peak hour Level of Service or 95th percentile queuing.
Unsignalized intersections with peak hour volumes above Warrant # 3
criteria levels will also be listed.  The percent contribution in net new
traffic from all Specific Plan areas in the City will be determined at all
locations with unacceptable operation.

CiTG 09/ 03/ 2021 — City of Lathrop - 2022 TMP- Proposal Page 6 of 9

230



V.     MITIGATIONS

YEAR 2024 Measures will be recommended to bring all unacceptable peak hour
Level of Service or queuing back to acceptable operation. Measures
will be discussed with City Public Works staff to assure that only
mitigations are recommended that can realistically be constructed.

YEAR 2026 Measures will be recommended to bring all unacceptable peak hour
Level of Service or queuing back to acceptable operation. Measures
will be discussed with City Public Works staff to assure that only
mitigations are recommended that can realistically be constructed.

VL MEETINGS

Two meetings will be conducted with City Staff during the course of the project.

VIL REPORTS

DRAFT REPORT A draft report will be prepared and E- Mailed to
City Staff for review.

FINAL REPORT A final report will be prepared after incorporation of all
agreed- to changes in the Draft Report and E- Mailed to

the City. Ten hours principal time plus support staff time
has been allocated to this task.

TECHNICAL APPENDIX Two USB Flash Drives will be provided to the City with
all Level of Service/ queuing worksheets.  Alternatively,
files can be E- Mailed to the City.

VIII.     PUBLIC HEARING ATTENDANCE

Attendance will be made by Mark Crane, P. E. at one public hearing.

P/ ease note: A[ l work products wi[ I be to a p[ anning level of detai[ only, and not to n rfesign level of detail.

CTC7 09/ 03/ 2021 — City of Lathrop - 2022 TMP - Proposal Page 7 of 9

231



WHAT IS NOT INCLUDED IN THIS SCOPE

BUT COULD BE ADDED FOR ADDITIONAL COST

WITH WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION

1.   Attendance at more than one public hearing.
2.    Evaluation of any additional locations not specified in the above Scope.
3.   Traffic count costs— please see traffic count Scope.
4.   Attendance at any additional meetings beyond those listed in the Scope.
5.    Any trip generation/ distribution analysis for major projects in Lathrop, Manteca or

San Joaquin County that have not had a traffic impact report prepared.
6.    Responses to Caltrans, Manteca, San Joaquin County or public comments.
7.   I- 5, SR 120 or SR 205 freeway mainline analysis or freeway ramp- mainline

merge/ diverge analysis.

8.    SIM traffic evaluation of vehicle queuing at freeway interchanges.
9.   Production of hard copy reports.

COST OF SERVICES & CONDITI:ONS OF PAYMENT

The Crane Transportation Group' s above Scope of Services will be completed for a fee not to
exceed $ 98, 170. 00 ( Ninety- Eight- Thousand- One- Hundred- Seventy-Dollars).   See attached

Table 1.  An additional cost will also be incurred obtaining Traffic Analysis Zone distribution
patterns from the new Lathrop Traffic ModeL This cost will be provided by Fehr& Peers.  Any
work beyond the above Scope or attendance at any additional meetings will be billed on a
time- and- materials basis ( with prior approval) or will be subject to a contract addendum.  Billing
will be sent by CTG on a monthly basis with payment due to CTG within 30 days receipt of our
billing. Any late payments to CTG will be subject to a 0. 833% per month( 10% annual) compound

interest charge plus a late fee of $45 per month ( until the invoice is fully paid) plus any

administrative and legal charges required to collect the Iate payments.  In addition, all work will

stop if payments are in arrears. Cost estimates are good for a 30- day time period from the date on
our proposal.  If, for any reason, work on the project is stopped for longer than a three- month
period,  CTG reserves the right to increase its budget a minimum of 10% for associated

administrative and refamiliarization costs with the restart of the project.

CT 7 09/ 03/ 2021 — City of Lathrop- 2022 TMP- Proposal Page 8 of 9

232



TIME OF SERVICES

A draft traffic study will be completed within 50 working days after receipt of signed authorization
to proceed, conduct and receipt of all needed traffic counts and receipt of all needed information
from Lathrop City Staf£  Time of completion estimates are good for a 14- day time period from
the date on our proposal.

We thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal and look forward to working with you
on this project.

Mark D. Crane, P. E.

President

Attachments:

Table 1

Figure 1

CiT 7 09/ 03/ 2021 — City of Lathrop - 2022 TMP - Proposal Page 9 of 9

233



TABLE 1

CRANE TRANSPORTATION GROUP

CITY OF LATHROP

2022 TRAFFIC MONITORING PROGRAM ( TMP)

2- & 4- YEAR HORIZON STUDY

COST ALLOCATION BY TASK

TASK DESCRIPTION COST

1 Startup meeting& field review of all locations to be evaluated during       $ 4, 680

eak traffic eriods

2 Existin AM/ PM eak hour Levels Of Service— 42 Intersections 6, 300

3 Existin 95th ercentile ueuin at interchan es 2, 320

4 Existin si nal warrant evaluation 1, 230

5 Existin Unacce table O eration& Re uired Im rovements 1, 470

6 Assist City in developing 2- & 4- year horizon land use data for Lathrop,    $ 1, 680

Manteca& San Joa uin Count

7 Trip generation/ distribution projections— 2- year horizon land use 13, 950

increment

8 Trip generation/ distribution projections— 4- year horizon land use 15, 150

increment

9 Year 2024 AM/ PM intersection Level of Service ( LOS) 3, 510

10 Year 2024 AM/ PM 95th ercentile ueuin at interchan es 1, 840

11 Year 2024 AM/ PM si nal warrant evaluation 1, 230

l2 Year 2026 AM/ PM intersection Level of Service LOS) 5,] 80

13 Year 2026 AM/ PM 95th ercentile ueuin at interchan es 2, 405

14 Year 2026 AM/ PM si nal warrant evaluation 1, 555

5 Year 2024— Identify unacceptable intersection operation 2, 850

LOS/ ueue/ si nal need)

16 Year 2026— Identify unacceptable intersection operation 2, 850

LOS/ ue ie/ si nal need)

17 Determine Year 2024 re uired im rovements 3, 140

18 Determine Year 2026 re uired im rovements 2, 800

19 Pre are Draft Re ort text/ ra hics/ tables 14, 250

20 Pre are Final Re ort 5, 060

21 Pre are technical a endix 1, 940

22 Attend 1 additional meetin with Cit Staff 1, 270

23 Attend 1 ublic hearin 1, 510

TOTAL COST 98, 170

Tri distribution at erns usin Cit model

Cost to be supplied by Fehr& Peers

CT .7 09/ 03/ 2021 — City of Lathrop - 2022 TMP- Proposal Page 1 of 1

234



0
s` 

Nm
J

O O

o U a
cfl a 

N

O
a N J

N
S

t i e    m e N      
epow a u    

o

ao ap fw y ad eys ny a uiN W a Q
j ny a wN W m

ny. fa uiH Nr
a pa

Q Q
c pue nnoH

a
L

aOi   O PlayPooM 3S 4J4 m g 3  ++
P

Np eH       

j,L H
p aQ a6puqwe    y H L2! 

a4lueW i a NO e    
Q Nue

eH Q

p ỳ(
a4lUp       ,' 010

e a   
N J@  

M
d fa e  uap o in    

No.,       m    >,

N
timc 

y\

u a Y 3 c     a f

N    
m

om
G

N

N9 SG m N

m m      a

P
s   a N

Z      d. 4    i O
A

m ~

a3i Om

a aww  '      in
3S O

an     uoas awos

C

C ?       o 0$ a

O a-,

O

C

m
c a5 g
Q ac
rn T 5

c c

yao

w Q d

d  >, o 7s--  . °' 

oc  

m Q
a

U U P,     
d Q

N N Q'

O O

bb' as/•

opJpd Z

N

F-      O
J J Q      -

O
a

O a-

a

Z N
c o

m V a N N
C

p S F'      O

m      =  W t
V O Z J

O O

o Z U w
Z O n4l b' eW U

235



236



CITY MANAGER s REPORT
ITEM 4. 13

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVE LATHROP POLICE DISPATCH AGREEMENT

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution to Approve an Agreement Between

the City of Lathrop and the City of Ripon to Provide
Dispatch Services to Lathrop and Related Budget
Amendments

SUMMARY:

The new Lathrop Police Department project identifies the need to provide dispatch
services to support the City' s law enforcement activities. City staff and MRG evaluated
four potential service providers and is recommending the City of Lathrop enter into a
ten year Agreement with the City of Ripon to provide police dispatch services to
Lathrop. The agreement includes initial staff and equipment development and full
dispatch services beginning July 1, 2022. The City of Ripon is familiar with providing
the services identified in the agreement and already has an existing agreement with
the City of Escalon to provide similar services.

Tonight, staff is requesting Council adopt a resolution to approve the agreement for
the City of Ripon to provide Police Dispatch Services. The proposed agreement is
detailed in Attachment B of the staff report.

BACKGROUND:

At the March 22, 2021, Special City Council Meeting, Council directed staff to create
Capital Improvement Project GG 21- i1, to begin the creation of the new Lathrop
Police Department, and implement the transition of law enforcement services from
the San Joaquin County Sheriff to the City.  The new Police Department project

identifies the need to provide dispatch services in support of the sworn staffing.

Provisions of dispatch services to law enforcement agencies is an essential

component of daily activities.    As such,  a qualified and competent provider will
become an integral partner in the City' s new Police Department. The City initially
contacted San Joaquin County Sheriff to request the agency continue to provide
dispatch services to the new Lathrop Police Department.   The Sheriff' s Office staff

indicated that the County was moving to a new dispatch system and that timing and
other constraints would preclude them from extending the services to Lathrop.

City staff and MRG identified four agencies as potential service providers and
conducted meetings, site visits and technical evaluations of each agency. The four
agencies included the Stanislaus Regional 911 JPA, and the Cities of Manteca, Ripon
and Tracy.    Although the evaluative criteria included the complex technical and
operational capacity of each agency, it also included the agency' s interest in providing
the service and the capacity of each to manage the approximately 24, 000 calls for
service Lathrop would add to their existing workload.

237



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE LATHROP POLICE DISPATCH AGREEMENT

Following lengthy conversations with each agency, staff and MRG concluded that the
most suitable and stable partner would be the City of Ripon.  The following describe
the basis for the conclusion:

1.  The City of Ripon already provides contract dispatch services to the City of
Escalon and is familiar with the joint service model.  Ripon has provided those
services for 26 years and Escalon is very satisfied with the services.

2.  The City of Ripon' s dispatch equipment and Computer Aided Dispatch ( CAD)

System are robust and can be updated to accept additional services.

3.  The City staff is seriously interested in providing the service and the City will
gain staffing and equipment which will provide greater capacity for service to
Ripon and Escalon.

4.  The technical evaluation of the Ripon equipment, radio system and CAD system

has been vetted with the service providers and the system can be expanded
to serve additional users and the radio connections are relatively

straightforward and will include redundancy.

The workload increase represented by the City' s new Police Department will

effectively double the current number of calls handled, records developed, etc. for

the Ripon Dispatch Facility.   This will require expansion of the number of dispatch

consoles and related equipment.

In addition to the expansion to provide service to the Lathrop Police Department, the
agreement addresses the need to expand the Dispatch Facility in the future due to
future population growth.  The future expansion demand will be driven substantially
by Lathrop' s rapid development and already approved growth. As part of the Service
Agreement, an evaluation of the future service demands will be conducted and a

long- range plan for expansion developed.  The costs for the ultimate expansion will

be assigned to each of the three participating agencies based on the actual growth
of each agency.

The Service Agreement will provide a stable ten year dispatch and radio

communications platform for the new City of Lathrop Police Department.    The

Agreement provides for either party to opt- out of the Service Agreement following a
2 year notice period.   This provision will permit the City of Lathrop to move to an
alternative provider or its own Dispatch Services platform.   If the City of Lathrop
decides to leave the Ripon Dispatch Service Agreement, it will be required to either

offer employment to excess Dispatch staff of pay for the costs of their employment
discontinuance.

In summary, the Services Agreement with the City of Ripon will provide a stable,
reliable and expandable service platform for the City of Lathrop' s Police Department
for a 10 year period.   The Agreement provides the services for less cost than the
alternative of Lathrop establishing its own dispatch facility.   It is,  essentially,  an

investment in assuring safe and reliable dispatch services as a critical component of
the new Lathrop Police Department.

238



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE LATHROP POLICE DISPATCH AGREEMENT

Tonight, staff is requesting Council adopt a resolution to approve the agreement for
the City of Ripon to provide Police Dispatch Services. The proposed agreement is
detailed in Attachment B of the staff report.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The City of Ripon agreement provides the City with police dispatch services as
identified in the original project and assures a robust and technologically sound
service for a ten- year period.  The Ripon agreement will also b.enefit all three

participating agencies because it provides for additional resources through the
economies of scale of being associated with a larger dispatch center than either
agency could provide individually.

FISCAL IMPACT:

During the March 22, 2021 Special Meeting, the City Council approved the project
budget for CIP GG 21- 11, to begin the creation of the new Lathrop Police Department,
and implement the transition of law enforcement services from the San Joaquin

County Sheriff to the City.  The Council approved project budget has  $ 550, 000

identified for the start- up of dispatch services. This estimate assumed the City would
be able to contract with an agency that had existing capacity to handle the intake of
Lathrop' s calls for service.  The City of Ripon agreement will require a budget
amendment of an additional $ 245, 000 for equipment and an additional $ 415, 000 for

staffing.   The staffing budget augmentation will provide assistance in hiring
dispatchers, as well as six months of training prior to the ) uly 15t go- live date.

Decrease Equipment Reserve

1010- 243- 0000 245, 000

Increase Transfer Out

1010- 9900- 990- 9010 660, 000

Increase Transfer In

3010- 393- 0000 GG21- 11      $ 660, 000

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution to Approve the Agreement Between the City of Lathrop and the
City of Ripon to Provide Dispatch Services Lathrop and Related Budget
Amendments

B.  Agreement for the City of Ripon to Provide Police Dispatch Services to the
City of Lathrop

239



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 4

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVE LATHROP POLICE DISPATCH AGREEMENT

APPROVALS:

j l  —   —   Z Z !

Thomas Hedegar Date

Deputy Finance Director

Cari Ja Date

Di f Finance

B     

Raymond Bechler Date

Chief of Police

v - Zo Z

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

Z/
St en J Salvatore Date

City Manager

240



RESOLUTION NO. 21-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

THE CITY OF RIPON TO PROVIDE DISPATCH SERVICES TO LATHROP

AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENTS

WHEREAS,  at the March 22,  2021,  Special City Council Meeting,
Council directed staff to create Capital Improvement Project GG 21- 11,  to

begin the creation of the new Lathrop Police Department, and implement the
transition of law enforcement services from the San Joaquin County Sheriff to
the City; and

WHEREAS, the new Police Department project identifies the need to
provide dispatch services in support of the sworn staffing; and

WHEREAS,   provisions of dispatch services to law enforcement

agencies is an essential component of daily activities; and

WHEREAS,  City staff and MRG identified four agencies as potential
service providers and conducted meetings,   site visits and technical

evaluations of each agency.  The four agencies included the Stanislaus
Regional 911 ] PA, and the Cities of Manteca, Ripon and Tracy; and

WHEREAS,  following lengthy conversations with each agency,  staff

and MRG concluded that the most suitable and stable partner would be the
City of Ripon.  The following describe the basis for the conclusion:

1.  The City of Ripon already provides contract dispatch services to the
City of Escalon and is familiar with the joint service model.   Ripon has

provided those services for 26 years and Escalon is very satisfied with
the services.

2.  The City of Ripon' s dispatch equipment and Computer Aided Dispatch
CAD)  System are robust and can be updated to accept additional

services.

3.  The City staff is seriously interested in providing the service and the
City will gain staffing and equipment which will provide greater

capacity for service to Ripon and Escalon.
4.  The technical evaluation of the Ripon equipment,  radio system and

CAD system has been vetted with the service providers and the
system can be expanded to serve additional users and the radio

connections are relatively straightforward and will include redundancy;
and

Resolution No. 21-   Page 1 of 3

241



WHEREAS,  the Services Agreement with the City of Ripon will

provide a stable,  reliable and expandable service platform for the City of
Lathrop' s Police Department for a 10 year period.   The Agreement provides
the services for less cost than the alternative of Lathrop establishing its own
dispatch facility.  It is, essentially, an investment in assuring safe and reliable
dispatch services as a critical component of the new Lathrop Police

Department.

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the
City of Lathrop, does hereby approve the agreement for the City of Ripon to
provide Police Dispatch Services to the City of Lathrop.

Resolution No. 21-   Page 2 of 3

242



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11th day of
October, 2021, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 21-    Page 3 of 3

243



A IMEN' ....

AGREEMENT FOR THE CITY OF RIPON TO PROVIDE POLICE

DISPATCH SERVICES TO THE CITY OF LATHROP

This Agreement for the City of Ripon to Provide Police Dispatch Services to the City of
Lathrop ( hereinafter, the " Agreement") is made and entered into this _ day of October, 2021

Effective Date"), by and between the CITY OF RIPON, a municipal corporation (" Ripon") and

the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation (" Lathrop"), each of which may be referred to
herein as (" Party") or collectively as (" Parties").

RECITALS

A. Lathrop made a request of Ripon to enter into an Agreement for Ripon to provide police
dispatch services to Lathrop as it is establishing a Lathrop law enforcement department with a
target date for the commencement of service on July l, 2022.

B.       Lathrop' s request will require that certain infrastructure be constructed,  as well as staff
hired/ trained, and software/ equipment purchased to implement the Agreement, which shall be referred to
herein as the (" ProjecY').

C.       This Agreement is intended to address and describe the relationship between the Parties
during two distinct phases of their anticipated relationship; first, the " Startup Phase", and second,

the " Operations Phase", each of which is addressed in more detail herein.  Notwithstanding, these
terms are used for the convenience of the Parties and have no independent legal significance.

D.       The Startup Phase refers to the time period between the Effective Date (defined as the date
on which both cities have approved the execution of this Agreement) and June 30, 2022, during
which the Parties are expected to diligently undertake the design and installation of the components
for the expansion of Ripon' s Dispatch Center to provide dispatch services to Lathrop, as well as
the hiring and training of dispatchers.

E.       The Operations Phase refers to the time period after July 1, 2022, during which time the
parties are expected to fulfill each of the obligations set forth herein, and to undertake such other
and further actions as may be necessary and appropriate consistent with applicable law and the
implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing.  Lathrop would thus have reasonable access to
property and equipment owned by Ripon, on terms and conditions to be set forth herein.

F.       The Parties have determined there is mutual benefit associated with Ripon providing
dispatch services to Lathrop, and desire to enter into an Agreement on the terms and conditions set
forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

1. Duties of the Parties-Startup Phase. The Parties acknowledge that, in general terms, certain
capital improvements or upgrades to existing equipment are needed to allow Ripon to provide
dispatch services to Lathrop, which Lathrop has retained consultants to grepare a study for review
by the Ripon and Lathrop Police Chiefs.  Additionally, Ripon will need to hire and train the staff

i

244



necessary to carry out the terms of this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Agreement, the intention of the Parties is as follows:

a. Communications Equipment. Lathrop shall be responsible to design, purchase, and
install the communications equipment necessary to transmit the radio signal as determined by
Ripon, from Lathrop 9ll call system, patrol cars, and portable radios to the Ripon Dispatch Center.

b. Dispatch Equipment.    Lathrop shall be responsible to purchase and install
equipment, software, and hardware necessary to facilitate Lathrop' s future installation of one ( 1)
dispatch console to be located in the Ripon Dispatch Center.

c. Staffin•  Ripon shall be responsible to hire and train six ( 6) dispatch employees to

provide dispatch services to Lathrop.  Ripon shall be responsible for all salary, benefits, training,
uniforms, performance reviews, and future liabilities ( with the exception of the severance pay
obligations outlined in Section 3( c)) related to these positions.

d. Ripon Dispatch Center Expansion Stud  Lathrop shall be responsible to hire an
architect to prepare a " Dispatch Center Expansion Plan" to address the current dispatch center

layout and the improvements that may be needed to add additional workstations based on planned
growth of Ripon, Lathrop, and the City of Escalon.  Additionally, the study will recommend the
allocation of the cost of those improvements to each jurisdiction. The Dispatch Center Expansion
Plan shall be submitted to Ripon for approval.  The Dispatch Center Expansion Plan shall also be

submitted to the City of Escaion for its review and comment.

2.       Duties of the Parties- Operations Phase.  Ripon shall provide " Police Dispatch Services" as
defined in Exhibit " A" to Lathrop for and during the Term of this Agreement, and any extension
thereof.

a. Communications Equipment. Lathrop shall be responsible to maintain and replace
the communications equipment necessary to transmit the radio signal as determined by Ripon,
from Lathrop 911 call system, patrol cars, and portable radios to the Ripon Dispatch Center.

b.       Dispatch Equipment.   Ripon shall be responsible to maintain and replace the

equipment, software, and hardware at the dispatcher consoles in the Ripon Dispatch Center.

c. Dispatch Center Expansion. The capital cost to expand the Ripon Dispatch Center

necessary to accommodate growth in Lathrop, Ripon, and Escalon, including future dispatch
consoles and tenant improvements to the building,  HVAC,  and electrical necessary to
accommodate the future dispatch consoles, shall be allocated to Lathrop, Ripon, and Escalon based
on the Dispatch Center Expansion Study.

i.     On or prior to each annual anniversary of the Agreement, the Ripon Police Chief
will evaluate the capital improvement schedule developed as part of the Ripon
Dispatch Center Expansion Study and, after appropriate consultation with the
Lathrop Police Chief and the Escalon Police Chief, shall make adjustments to that
schedule, in his or her discretion, based on actual growth and calls for service such

2

245



that Ripon is able to continue to provide dispatch services.   The results of this

evaluation will be communicated to Lathrop in writing.

ii.     Ripon shall be responsible to obtain the bids necessary to perform the capital
improvements recommended in the Dispatch Center Expansion Study according to
the Ripon procurement policy and contract with the contractors and vendors
accordingly.

d. Staffin. Ripon shall be responsible to employ the dispatchers necessary to provide
dispatch services as described herein. Except as otherwise provided in Section 3( c), below, Ripon

shall be responsible for all salary, benefits, training, uniforms, performance reviews, and future
liabilities related to these positions.       

i.     On or prior to each annual anniversary of the Agreement, the Ripon Police Chief
will evaluate the staffing needs of the Ripon Dispatch Center projected over a five
5) year period in his or her discretion, based on actual growth and calls for service

such that Ripon is able to continue to provide dispatch services. The results of this
evaluation will be communicated to Lathrop in writing and used as a basis for the
subsequent fiscal year billing (see Section 4.b).

3. Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on October 1, 2021, and shall expire
on June 30, 2032.  However, if neither Party informs the other Party of its intent to allow for the
automatic expiration of this Agreement prior to June 30,  2030,  this Agreement shall be

auComatically extended for another twenty- four ( 24) month term.  Thereafter, and subject to the

termination provisions of Section 3( a), if neither Parry informs the other Party of its intent to
terminate this Agreement prior to June 30rh in any given year in which this Agreement remains in
effect, this Agreement shall be automatically extended for another twenty- four (24) month term.

a. Termination.

i.       This Agreement shall automatically terminate on the date either Party
ceases to be a member of the Central San  . oaquin Valley Risk Management Authority

CSJVRMA") unless both parties mutually agree in writing that a requested substitution to the
CSJVRMA is acceptable. If either Party receives notice, or obtains other knowledge, that the Party
will cease to be a member of the CSJVRMA, that Party shall immediately so notify the other Party,
and shall provide to the other Party the effective date that the Party will no longer be a member of
the CSJVRMA.

ii.  This Agreement may be terminated by either Party, with or without cause,
at any time during the Original Term or the first sixty ( 60) days of any Extended Term by vote of
that Party' s legislative body to terminate and notice of such action to the other Party. The effective
date of said termination shall be twenty-four (24) months after the date of mailing the notice of
termination, unless this Agreement is sooner terminated pursuant to subparagraph 3( a)( i) herein or
paragraph 9( a)( ii) herein.    

3

246



b. Pro Rata Payment.   In the event of termination under paragraph 3( a)( i) herein,
paragraph 3( a)( ii) herein or paragraph 9( a)( ii) herein, Lathrop shall pay Ripon on a pro rata basis
for services rendered up to the effective date of such termination; except that, in the event Lathrop
has paid for services in advance pursuant to paragraph 4 herein, Ripon shall pay to Lathrop a refund
on a pro rata basis far services rendered up to the effective date of such termination.

c. Severance Pa ment.   In the event Lathrop elects not to extend the term of the
Agreement or terminates this Agreement as set forth under paragraphs 3 and 3( a)( ii), Lathrop shall 
offer employment as a dispatcher to the number of Ripon dispatchers that have been allocated to

provide dispatch services to Lathrop,  as described in paragraph 2( d)( i)  (" Severance Basis

Number").  If an offer of employment is not made by Lathrop in the 12 months immediately
preceding the termination of this Agreement to any Ripon dispatcher in good standing that submits
an application, Lathrop shall be responsible for a severance payment equal to one year' s salary for
each employee that Ripon must terminate due to reduction of warkforce.  Lathrop shall also be
responsible for any and all additional cost or expense actually paid by Ripon as a result of a claim
filed by any terminated employee based on exclusively on their termination resulting from
Lathrop' s decision to terminate this Agreement.

4. Payment.  Lathrop agrees to pay Ripon, in consideration for the services to be performed
pursuant to this Agreement, the amounts for each phase of the Agreement, as described below:

a. Startup Phase. Lathrop shall pay Ripon $ 132, 000 annually per Full Time
Equivalent to hire and train dispatchers such that Ripon is able to provide Dispatch
Services.    

Ripon will invoice Lathrop each month based on the actual number of Full
Time Equivalent staff that are being trained during that monthly pay
period.

Invoice payable within 30 days of the date of the invoice.

b. Operations Phase.  During this phase of the Agreement, Lathrop shall be
responsible for their share of staffing and capital expenses.

i.     Staffin.  Lathrop shall pay Ripon $ 161, 000 annually per the Full Time
Equivalent of dispatchers allocated to Lathrop based on the annual staffing
evaluation ( see Section 2. d. i).

Ripon will invoice Lathrop each month.

Invoice payable within 30 days of the date of the invoice.

Beginning January 1, 2023, this payment rate shall be annually adjusted to
reflect any increases as shown in the Bureau of Labor Statistics, Bay Area
Cities " Consumer Price Index, CPI- U All Items, 12 month % Change" as

of June 30th.

4

247



ii.     Capital Improvements.  Lathrop shall be responsible to reimburse Ripon for
Lathrop' s share of future capital improvements to the Ripon Dispatch Center as
described in Section 2.c of this Agreement 30 days from the date of the invoice.

5. Service Interruptions.   Ripon shall not be responsible for any computer, network or
telephone malfunction or service interruption, not the fault of Ripon, that prevents or delays Ripon
from providing Police Dispatch Services.  Equipment malfunctions or service interruption within

the Ripon computer system will be the responsibility of Ripon. Failures in T- 1 connections or any
other point-to-point link will be considered part of the Lathrop computer system and Lathrop shall
be responsible for repair of these failures and any other malfunctions or interruptions within the
Lathrop computer system.  At the time of any malfunction or interruption, designated personnel
from each agency shall meet and confer regarding adequate coverage for. the period of time that
the malfunction or interruption occurs.

6. Personnel. All persons employed in the performance of Ripon' s and Lathrop' s obligations
under this Agreement shall be employees of Ripon. No person employed by Ripon shall have any
rights to pension, civil service, or other status or right from Lathrop by virtue of this Agreement.

7. California Law Enforcement Telecommunications System  (" CLETS"   Trainin and

Testin.  Ripon shall be responsible for the training and testing of all sworn/non- sworn personnel
employed by Ripon in adhering to all CLETS rules, regulations, policies, practices and procedures.
Lathrop shall be responsible for the training and testing of all sworn/ non- sworn personnel
employed by Lathrop in adhering to all CLETS rules,  regulations,  policies,  practices and
procedures.

8. Performance and Related Matters.

a. Ripon shall retain exclusive authority over the activities of Ripon personnel
performing Police Dispatch Services pursuant to this Agreement.  Subject to the terms of this

Agreement,  the planning,  organization,   scheduling,  direction,   supervision,   standards of

performance and discipline of Ripon personnel and all other related matters incident to delivery of
Police Dispatch Services shall be determined by Ripon.

b. Ripon shall give prompt consideration to all requests of Lathrop regarding the
delivery of Police Dispatch 5ervices pursuant to this Agreement.   

c. Each Party shall consult the other regarding any planned revisions or upgrades to
the Party' s dispatch computer software or hardware. Each Party shall notify the other Party of the
installation of all such upgrades or revisions.

9. Indemnification.

a. Indemnification by Lathro.

i.  Lathrop shall indemnify, defend and hold Ripon, and Ripon' s agents,
officers and employees, harmless from and against all claims, damages, losses, causes of action

5

248



and expenses, including attorneys' fees, for any personal injury, bodily injury, loss of life or
damage to property, violation of any federal,  state or municipal law, collective bargaining
agreement, ordinance or constitutional provision, or other causes which arise out of, relate to or

result from the activities or omissions, negligent or otherwise, under this Agreement of Lathrop,
and Lathrop' s officers, agents and employees.

ii.  Lathrop shall, upon execution of this Agreement, provide proof to Ripon
that Lathrop has obtained from the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority a
Certificate of Additional Covered Party issued to Ripon  (" CSJVRMA Certificate").    The

CSJVRMA Certificate shall include coverage amounts equal to the coverage amounts in the

applicable Risk Management Authority Coverage.  Lathrop shall keep the CSJVRMA Certificate
in effect during the Term of this Agreement, and any extension thereof.  Lathrop shall obtain the
CSJVRMA Certificate and keep the CSJVRMA Certificate in effect at Lathrop' s sole cost and
expense. If, for any reason, either the CSJVRMA Certificate is not in effect at any time during the
Term of this Agreement, and any extension thereof, Ripon shall have the right to terminate this
Agreement immediately.

iii.  For all claims, damages, losses, causes of action and expenses, including
attorneys' fees, covered by this paragraph 9, Lathrop shall pay any and all applicable Retained
Limit ( deductible) amounts under any Risk Management Authority Coverage, including any
Retained Limit increases pursuant to Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority
Resolution Number 18- 91, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit " B", and Lathrop shall
indemnify and hold Ripon harmless from and against any and all liability not covered by Risk
Management Authority Coverage.

b. Indemnification bv Ripon.  Ripon shall indemnify, defend and hold Lathrop, and
Lathrop' s agents, officers and employees, harmless from and against all claims, damages, losses,
causes of action and expenses, including attorney' s fees, for any personal injury, bodily injury,
loss of life or damage to property, violation of any federal, state or municipal law, ordinance or
constitutional provision, or other causes which arise out of, relate to or result from the " intentional
conduct"( as defined in exclusion# 10 of the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Agency
Memorandum of Coverage, attached hereto as Exhibit " C") under this Agreement of Ripon and

Ripon' s officers, agents, and employees.

c.       No AgencX.  At all times during this Agreement, Ripon shall be an independent
contractor, and not an employee, partner, agent, or principal of Lathrop.  At all times during this
Agreement, Lathrop shall be an independent contractor, and not an employee, partner, agent, or
principal of Ripon.

d. Notification. Each Party shall give the other prompt notification when it first learns
of an incident or occurrence covered, or likely to be covered, under the terms of this paragraph 9,
as well as prompt notification if a claim is made or suit is brought against a Party based on an
incident or occurrence covered, or likely to be covered, by the terms hereof.

e.       Related Agreements.    Except as provided in such other agreements,  these

indemnification provisions shall apply to and shall be deemed to be a part of all law enforcement

6

249



agreements now existing or hereafter entered into, including amendments, renewals, or other
extensions thereof, wherein Lathrop and Ripon have contracted under circumstances wherein the
liability of Lathrop and Ripon is joint and several under section 895. 2 of the California
Government Code.    Except as provided in such other agreements,  the provisions of this
indemnification paragraph shall supersede and control over any other provisions inconsistent
therewith in any such contract, heretofore and hereafter entered into by and between the Parties
hereto.

f. Continuing Obli ation.  To the extent that Ripon has agreed to indemnify, defend
and hold harmless Lathrop,  its officers,  agents and employees under this Agreement,  said
obligations shall continue to exist during this Agreement and subsequent to this Agreement for
those acts or omissions giving rise to liability which occurred during this Agreement. To the extent
that Lathrop has agreed to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Ripon, its officers, agents and
employees under this Agreement, said obligations shall continue to exist during this Agreement
and subsequent to this Agreement for those acts or omissions giving rise to liability which occurred
during this Agreement.

g. Insurance.    Either Party may purchase commercial insurance to cover their
exposure hereunder, in whole or in part.

10.      General Provisions.

a. Good Faith. Wherever in this Agreement a Party has the right to approve an act of
another Party, the former shall exercise such discretion reasonably and in good faith.  Similarly,
where a Party is required to satisfy a condition or complete an act in a certain fashion or within a
specified time period, that Party shall pursue such objectives in good faith and make all reasonable
efforts to accomplish the same; the other Party shall likewise in good faith cooperate and assist the
other Party in accomplishing this task to cause the consummation of the Agreement as intended
herein.

b. Other Instruments.  The Parties hereto shall, whenever and as often as reasonably
requested to do so by the other Party, execute, acknowledge and deliver or cause to be executed,
acknowledged and delivered any and all documents and instruments as may be necessary,
expedient or proper in the reasonable opinion of the requesting Party to carry out the intent and
purposes of this Agreement, provided that the requesting Party shall bear the cost and expense of
such further instruments or documents ( except that each Party shall bear its own attorneys' fees).

c. Construction.  The provisions of this Agreement should be liberally construed to
effectuate its purposes.  The language of all parts of this Agreement shall be construed simply
according to its plain meaning and shall not be construed for or against either Party.  Each Party
acknowledges that they have had the opportunity to have their legal counsel review this
Agreement.

d. Captions,  Headings and Exhibits.   The captions,  headings and index of this

Agreement are for convenience only and have no force and effect in the interpretation or

250



construction of this Agreement.  All exhibits attached hereto are by this reference incorporated
herein as though fully set forth in this Agreement.

e. Severabilitv. If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall

be or become illegal, null or void or against public policy, or shall be held by any court of
competent jurisdiction to be illegal, null or void or against public policy, the remaining provisions
of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall not be affected, impaired or
invalidated thereby.  The term, provision, covenant or condition that is so invalidated, voided or
held to be unenforceable shall be modified or changed by the Parties to the extent- possible to carry
out the intentions and directives set forth in this Agreement.

f. Assi_ n nt.  Neither Party shall have the right to assign its rights or delegate any
of its obligations or duties hereunder without the express written consent of the other Party, which
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.

g. Successors and Assi.   Except as restricted herein, this Agreement shall be

binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties and their respective legal representatives,
successors and assigns.

h. Waiver. The waiver of any breach of any provision hereunder by any Party to this
Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver or any preceding ar subsequent breach hereunder,
nor shall any waiver constitute a continuing waiver.  No waiver shall be binding unless executed
in writing by the Party making the waiver.

i. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of
California.  Venue for all purposes shall be proper only in the County of San Joaquin, State of
California.

j. Notices.  All notices, approvals, acceptances, demands and other communications

required or permitted hereunder, to be effective shall be in writing and shall be delivered either in
person or by mailing the same by United States mail( postage prepaid, registered or certified, return
receipt requested) to the Party to whom the notice is directed at the address of such Party as
follows:

To Ripon:      Chief of Police

City of Ripon
259 North Wilma Avenue

Ripon, California 95366

With copy to:  City Administrator
City of Ripon
259 North Wilma Avenue

Ripon, California 95366

g

251



With copy to:  City Attorney
Thomas H. Terpstra

Terpstra Henderson Hatfield, A Professional Corporation

578 North Wilma Avenue, Suite A

Ripon, California 95366

To Lathrop:    Chief of Police

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

With copy to:  City Manager
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

With copy to:  City Attorney
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

With copy to:  City Clerk
City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Any written communication given by mail shall be deemed delivered two ( 2) business days after
such mailing date. Either Party may change its address by giving the other Party written notice of
its new address as herein provided.

k. Attorneys' Fees.  If any action at law ar equity, including an action for declaratory
relief, is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing Party shall
be entitled to recover actual attorneys' fees incurred in bringing such action and/ or enforcing any
judgment granted therein, all of which shall be deemed to have accrued upon the commencement
of the action and shall be paid whether or not such action is prosecuted to judgment. The attorneys'
fees to be awarded the prevailing Party may be determined by the court in the same action or in a
separate action brought for that purpose.  The attorneys' fees award shall not be computed in

accordance with any court schedule but shall be made as to fully reimburse for all attorneys' fees,
paralegal fees, costs and expenses actually incurred in good faith, regardless of the size of the
judgment, it being the intention of the Parties to fully compensate for all attorneys' fees, paralegal
fees, costs and expenses paid or incurred in good faith.

1. Authorization.  All officers and individuals executing this and other documents on
behalf of the respective Parties do hereby certify and warrant that they have the capacity and have
been duly authorized to so execute the documents on behalf of the entity so indicated.   Each

9

252



signatory shall also indemnify the other Parties to this Agreement and hold them harmless, from
any and all damages, costs, attorneys' fees, and other expenses, if the signatory is not so authorized.

m.       No Third- Party Ri.  Nothing in this Agreement, whether express or implied, is

intended to confer any rights at remedies under or by reason of this Agreement on any persons
other than the Parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns, nor is anything in this
Agreement intended to relieve or discharge the obligations or liability of any third persons to any
Party to this Agreement, nor shall any provision give any third persons any right or subrogation or
action over or against any Party to this Agreement.

n. Remedies. Each Party hereto acknowledges that a remedy at law for any breach or
attempted breach of this Agreement may be inadequate, agrees that in addition to any remedy
provided at law, each Party hereto shall be entitled to specific performance and injunctive and
other equitable relief in case of any such breach or attempted breach, and further agrees to waive
any requirement for the securing or posting of any bond in connection with the obtaining of any
such injunctive or other equitable relief.

o. Entire Agreement and Amendment.  The Parties understand and agree that Ripon

has, since 1995, provided dispatch services to the City of Escalon, and that Ripon is in the process
of amending and extending the Ripon/ Escalon dispatch agreement. It is Ripon' s intent to complete
this process within 90 days after the Effective Date of this Agreement.  In conjunction with the

matters considered herein, this Agreement contains the entire understanding and agreement of the
Parties and there have been no promises, representations, agreements; warranties or undertakings
by any of the Parties, either oral or written, of any character or nature hereafter binding except as
set forth herein.  This Agreement may be altered, amended or modified only by an instrument in
writing, executed by the Parties to this Agreement and by no other means.  Each Party waives its
future right to claim, contest or assert that this Agreement was modified, canceled, superseded or
changed by any oral agreement, course of conduct, waiver ar estoppeL

IN WTTNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement at Ripon,
California on the date first above written.

Signatures on the next page]

0

253



Ripon"

CITY OF RIPON,

a municipal corporation

B y:
DANIEL DE GRAAF, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: gy:
LISA ROOS THOMAS H. TERPSTRA

City Clerk City Attorney

Lathrop"

CITY OF LATHROP,

a municipal corporation

By:
SONNY DHALIWAL, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: gy:
TERESA VARGAS SALVADOR NAVARRETE

City Clerk       City Attorney

11

254



EXHIBIT " A"

Police Dispatch Services

Dispatching functions:

1. Receive complaints and requests for assistance and information from citizens by
telephone, including 911 calls.       

2. Maintain two- way radio communications with units on routine or emergency
situations and general activities.

3. Maintain and type various logs.

4. Maintain computerized records of incidents.    

5. Enter all CLETS entries for staff, including but not limited to: Missing Persons,
Stored Vehicles, Stolen Vehicles, Firearm Entries, etc.

12

255



EXHIBIT " B"

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority Resolution Number 18- 91

To be provided at time of signing)

13

256



EXHIBIT` C"

Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Agency Memorandum of Coverage

To be provided at time of signing)

14

257



258



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING ITEM 4. 14

ITEM:       APPROVE ANIMAL SHELTER SERVICES AGREEMENT
WITH THE CITY OF MANTECA

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt a Resolution Approving an Animal Shelter
Services Agreement with the City of Manteca

SUMMARY:

The City of Lathrop has contracted for Animal Shelter services with the City of
Manteca for use of Manteca' s animal shelter since 2002. In 2012, the original contract

between the parties was revised and updated and each year thereafter the contract
continued to be renewed annually based on the language of the agreement. The 2012
contract started at a fixed price for use of the Manteca Animal Shelter of $ 60, 000.

The contract contained language that the cost of the contract would increase at 3%

annually at a flat rate.  In early 2021, the Manteca Police Department reached out to
City staff to begin negotiations on a new contract for Animal Shelter services. The
concern at the time was that the costs of providing the service had grown at a rate
that had outpaced the automatic increases of 3% annually. The City of Lathrop paid
Manteca $ 76, 006 in the prior Fiscal Year for the use of Manteca' s Animal Shelter.

Lathrop staff began to look at costs associated with operating Manteca' s Animal
shelter versus the proportion of the facility that was being used by the City of Lathrop.
While the previous contract was accurately paying for operating costs of the facility
it was determined that there were no charges for the facility itself. The new contract
contains a  $ 1, 000/  month charge for rent of the shelter itself.   After good faith
negotiations between representatives from both City' s a new contract was presented
to the Manteca City Council in the amount of $ 94, 587 annually. This contract was

approved by the Manteca City Council on September 21, 2021.

BACKGROUND:

The City of Lathrop has contracted for Animal Shelter services with the City of
Manteca for the use of Manteca' s Animal Shelter since 2002.  In 2012, the original

contract between the parties was revised and updated and each year thereafter the
contract continued to be renewed annually based on the language of the agreement.
The 2012 contract started at a fixed price for use of the Manteca Animal Shelter of

60, 000.  The contract contained language that the cost of the contract would

increase at 3% annually at a flat rate.  In early 2021, the Manteca Police Department
reached out to City staff to begin negotiations on a new contract for Animal Shelter
services. The concern at the time was that the costs of providing the service had
grown at a rate that had outpaced the automatic increases of 3% annually. The City
of Lathrop paid Manteca $ 76, 006 in the prior Fiscal Year for the use of Manteca' s
Animal Shelter.

259



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 2

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ANIMAL SHELTER SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF MANTECA

Lathrop staff began to look at costs associated with operating Manteca' s Animal
shelter versus the proportion of the facility that was being used by the City of Lathrop.
While the previous contract was accurately paying for operating costs of the facility
it was determined that there were no charges for the facility itself. The new contract
contains a  $ 1, 000/  month charge for rent of the shelter itself.   After good faith
negotiations between representatives from both City' s a new contract was presented
to the Manteca City Council in the amount of $ 94, 587 annually. This contract was
approved by the Manteca City Council on September 21, 2021.

Under the terms of the new contract the City of Manteca will provide animal shelter
services to Lathrop for animals impounded pursuant to and consistent with state and
local law. Such services shall include, but not be limited to receiving animals at the
Shelter, providing animals at the Shelter with food, water, housing, vaccinations and
emergency veterinary care,  euthanizing animals,  arranging for the redemption of
animals, arranging for the adoption of animals, arranging for placement of animals
with rescue organizations, arranging for the spay/ neutering of animals, and collecting
fees related to the aforementioned services. City of Manteca Staff advised Lathrop
Staff that Manteca will need to begin transitioning away from providing animal shelter
services to Lathrop in the near future.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The City of Manteca has made staff aware that this shall be the last contract and
term between the City of Manteca to provide Animal Shelter services to the City. Staff
will continue to research alternate Animal Shelter options for future consideration.

Staff recommends that Council approve the contract that was negotiated in good faith
until an ulterior provider or option can be identified and brought back to Council for
consideration.

FISCAL IMPACT:

On June 2, 2021 City Council approved the Fiscal Year 2021/ 22 Biennial Budget for
the Community Services Division which included the increased funding for the
proposed contract with the City of Manteca for the use of the Animal Shelter.  No
additional funding is being requested at this time.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.  Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Animal Shelter

Services Agreement with the City of Manteca

B.  Animal Shelter Services Agreement with the City of Manteca

260



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT Page 3

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ANIMAL SHELTER SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF MANTECA

APPROVALS:

C
to  2vz (

Thomas Hedegar Date

Deputy Finance Director

T/
J-'/

Cari Jam s Date

Directo f Finance and Administrative

Services

o      Zv L(

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

l0• Z

Stepl Salvatore Date

City Manager

261



RESOLUTION NO. 21-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING AN ANIMAL SHELTER SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH THE

CITY OF MANTECA

WHEREAS,  the City of Lathrop has contracted for Animal Shelter
services with the City of Manteca for use of Manteca' s animal shelter since
2002; and

WHEREAS,  in 2012,  the original contract between the parties was
revised and updated and each year thereafter the contract continued to be
renewed annually based on the language of the agreement.  The 2012

contract started at a fixed price for use of the Manteca Animal Shelter of
60, 000. The contract contained language that the cost of the contract would

increase at 3% annually at a flat rate; and

WHEREAS, in early 2021, the Manteca Police Department reached out
to City staff to begin negotiations on a new contract for Animal Shelter
services. The concern at the time was that the costs of providing the service
had grown at a rate that had outpaced the automatic increases of 3%
annually. The City of Lathrop paid Manteca $ 76, 006 in the prior Fiscal Year
for the use of Manteca' s Animal Shelter; and

WHEREAS, the previous contract was accurately paying for operating
costs of the facility it was determined that there were no charges for the
facility itself. The new contract contains a $ 1, 000/ month charge for rent of

the shelter itself.  After good faith negotiations between representatives from
both City' s a new contract was presented to the Manteca City Council in the
amount of $94, 587 annually; and

WHEREAS,  the new contract was approved by the Manteca City
Council on September 21, 2021. City of Manteca Staff advised Lathrop Staff
that Manteca will need to begin transitioning away from providing animal
shelter services to Lathrop in the near future.

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the
City of Lathrop,  does hereby approve the new Animal Shelter Services
Agreement with the City of Manteca.

Resolution No. 21-   Page 1 of 2

262



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11th day of
October, 2021, by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:   APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Resolution No. 21-    Page 2 of 2

263



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT REGARDING ANIMAL SERVICES FACILITIES

This agreement ( the  " Agreement")  is made by and between the City of Lathrop,  a

municipal corporation,  ( hereinafter " Lathrop")  and the City of Manteca,  a municipal
corporation ( hereinafter " Manteca")  ( together the  " Parties")  effective the 1 st day of
October 1, 2021, and expiring on September 30, 2022, regarding the use of the Manteca
Animal Control Facility ( hereinafter the " Shelter") subject to the following terms and
conditions.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, there is no physical facility in the city limits of Lathrop for the placement and
impoundment of animals found in the Lathrop city limits until redeemed, adopted or
euthanized; and

WHEREAS, Lathrop has been contracting with Manteca for Shelter services since 2002;
and

WHEREAS, Lathrop desires to continue to contract with Manteca for Shelter services
subject to the terms and conditions set out below;

WHEREAS, the Parties recognize, acknowledge, and agree that this shall be the last

contract and term between the Parties for Manteca to provide the services described herein
to Lathrop; and

WHEREAS, the Parties have met, conferred, and negotiated in good faith, and agree to the
terms and conditions set out below;

NOW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES DO HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1.       INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: No relationship of employer and employee is
created by this Agreement.  Neither Party is the agent,  representative,  and/ or

employee of the other in any capacity whatsoever. Neither Party nor its employees,
agents, and/ or representatives shall have a claim against the other Party under this
Agreement or otherwise, for seniority, vacation time, vacation pay, sick leave,
personal time off, overtime, health insurance medical care, hospital care, retirement
benefits,  social security,  disability,  Workers'  Compensation,  or unemployment

insurance benefits, civil se' vice protection, or employee benefits of any kind.

2.       INDEMNIFICATION: To the fullest extent permitted by law, Lathrop shall hold
harmless,  defend and indemnify the City of Manteca,  its City Council,  its

264



employees, staff, appointed, and agents from and against any and all claims, losses,
damages,  liabilities and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys'  fees,

arising out of or resulting from the performance of services under this Agreement,
provided that any such claim, loss, damage, liability or expense is attributable to
bodily injury, sickness, disease, death or to injury to or destruction of property,
including the loss therefrom, or to any violation of federal, state or municipal law
or regulation, which arises out of or is any way connected with the performance of
this agreement ( collectively " Liabilities") except to the extent such Liabilities are

caused by the negligence of Manteca. Manteca may participate in the defense of any
such claim without relieving Lathrop of any obligation hereunder. Lathrop shall
adjust and bolster its insurance, accordingly. The obligations of this indemnity shall
be for the full amount of all damage to Manteca, including defense costs, and shall
not be limited by any insurance limits.

Manteca shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify the City of Lathrop, its City
Council, its employees, staff, appointed, and agents from and against any and all
claims,  losses,  damages,  liabilities and eXpenses,  including but not limited to
attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from the performance of services under
this Agreement, except to the extent such Liabilities are caused by the negligence
of Lathrop. Lathrop may participate in the defense of any such claim without
relieving Manteca of any obligation hereunder.

3.  TERM AND COSTS: The term of this agreement shall begin on October 1, 2021, and

conclude on September 30,  2022.  This agreement and the Parties'  relationship

regarding Lathrop' s use of the Shelter shall expire at the end of this agreement
September 30, 2022). The Parties may mutually agree in writing to extend the term

of this Agreement an additional one- month, two- months, but no more than three-

months, subject to the same terms and conditions set out herein. Such an agreement

to extend this Agreement must be in writing and must be reached at least ninety ( 90)
days before the expiration of the term of this Agreement; otherwise, this Agreement

shall expire on September 30, 2022.

For the term set out herein, annual compensation is to be paid to the City of Manteca,
by the City of Lathrop, in the amount of$ 94, 587, subject to additional costs as noted
below in Section 8. The above mentioned amount includes one- thousand ($ 1, 000)

dollars a month rent for the Shelter. Payments shall be made monthly, in advance, for
one- twelfth of the year' s annual cost. Payments received later than the 15th of the
month in which they are due will be assessed a 10% late fee. Additional costs ( as set

out below in Section 8) shall be paid by Lathrop to Manteca within thirty ( 30) days
after Lathrop receives the bill from Manteca. Late fees for additional costs shall be
capped at 3%, unless Manteca agrees in writing to waive the late fee.

265



Either Party may terminate this Agreement by providing the other Party 120 days'
written notice.

4.       USE: The Parties agree that Manteca will provide animal shelter services to
Lathrop for animals impounded pursuant to and consistent with state and local law.
Such services shall include, but not be limited to receiving all live and dead animals
at the Shelter, providing live animals at the Shelter with food, water, housing,
vaccinations and emergency veterinary care, euthanizing animals, arranging for the
redemption of animals,  arranging for the adoption of animals,  arranging for
placement of animals with rescue organizations, arranging for the spay/ neutering of
animals, and collecting fees related to the aforementioned services.

5.       OPERATIONS: All Shelter operations, including all handling of animals
from intake to disposition, hours of operations, and facility management, shall be
under the exclusive control of the Manteca Police Department and in accordance

with the policies and procedures of the City of Manteca and Manteca Police
Department.

6.       EUTHANIZATION: In the event that an animal originating in the city limits
of Lathrop is impounded at the Manteca Shelter, and is to be euthanized, Manteca
personnel shall perform such euthanization, and shall do so in accordance with State
law. For purposes of determining the requisite impound period, Manteca personnel
shall use the impound date, in accordance with State law and City of Manteca
policies and practices. Animals may be held longer than is required, at the sole
discretion of the Shelter personnel. Any disputes arising under sections 5 or 6 shall
be resolved by the Manteca Chief of Police in his/her sole discretion.

7.       ADOPTION/ REDEMPTION: The Parties agree that Manteca shall provide
all necessary personnel for the surrender, adoption, and redemption of animals
originating in the corporate limits of Lathrop. Manteca shall collect all necessary
license, board, care, adoption, and surrender and impoundment fees relative to an

adoption,  surrender or redemption.  When providing adoption or redemption
services,  Manteca shall also collect the spay/neuter deposits required under
California Law, if applicable, for animals originating in the corporate limits of the
City of Lathrop. Manteca shall collect all fees mandated by State law, including but
not limited to, those fees required under the California Food & Agriculture Code.

8.  VETERINARY CARE & VACCINATION COSTS: Lathrop shall be responsible for
all veterinary costs associated with a Lathrop animal ( i.e., any animal Lathrop brings
to and/ or transports to the Shelter). In the event that Shelter personnel determine that
a Lathrop animal being held at the Shelter is in need of veterinary care the Manteca
personnel will contact Lathrop personnel for transport of the pet for veterinary care;
again, Lathrop will responsible for such related costs. In an emergency situation,

266



Manteca Shelter personnel will obtain the necessary care and then as soon as practical
Manteca Shelter personnel will make every effort to notify the Lathrop Animal
Services Director of the circumstances; again, Lathrop will responsible for such
related costs. Pursuant to Manteca Shelter practices and policies, all animals will be
evaluated at intake by Manteca Shelter personnel for the need to be vaccinated. All
animals determined to be in need of vaccination shall be vaccinated by Manteca
personnel. A record will be kept of all Lathrop animals that are vaccinated and the
City of Lathrop shall reimburse the City of Manteca for the actual cost of all vaccines
used on Lathrop animals. Lathrop will retain the right to vaccinate their own animals
prior to delivery at the shelter. If Lathrop personnel provide Manteca with proof of
vaccination, no further vaccinations are needed.

9.  CREDITS AND OFFSETS: Manteca shall pay Lathrop, on a monthly basis, all fees
and fines collected, including but not limited to unaltered animal impound fees,
license fees, surrender fees, adoption fees, impound fees, spay/ neuter fees, fines,
board, care and veterinary/ medical costs received by the Manteca facility for animals
originating in the city limits of the City of Lathrop.

10. SPAY/ NEUTER DEPOSITS AND FINES: Manteca shall collect all spay and neuter
deposits required under the California Food & Agriculture Code for all animals

originating from or adopted to Lathrop. Manteca shall pay over to Lathrop, on a
monthly basis,  all such deposits that may be received.  Lathrop shall expressly
indemnify, release, save, and hold Manteca harmless from and against any and all
third party claims relating to the legal collection, retention and expenditure of such
spay and neuter deposits.

11.     CONFLICT OF INTEREST; CONFIDENTIALITY:   The Parties covenant that

they presently have no interest, and shall not have any interest, direct or indirect,
which would conflict in any manner with the performance of services required under
this Agreement.

12.     NOTICES:  All notices, requests, demands, or other communications under this

Agreement shall be in writing. Notices shall be given for all purposes as follows:

Personal delivery:  When personally delivered to the recipient, notices are
effective on delivery.

First Class Mail:  When mailed first class to the last address of the recipient known

to the party giving notice, notice is effective three ( 3) mail delivery days after
deposit in a United States Postal Service office or mailbox. Certified Mail:  When

mailed certified mail, return receipt requested, notice is effective on receipt, if

delivery is confirmed by a return receipt.

267



Overnight Delivery:    When delivered by overnight delivery    ( Federal

Express/ Airborne/United Parcel Service/ DHL WorldWide Express) with charges

prepaid or charged to the sender' s account, notice is effective on delivery, if delivery
is confirmed by the delivery service.  Telex or facsimile transmission:  When sent

by telex or facsimile to the last teleX or facsimile number of the recipient known to
the party giving notice, notice is effective on receipt, provided that ( a) a duplicate
copy of the notice is promptly given by first- class or certified mail or by overnight
delivery, or ( b) the receiving party delivers a written confirmation of receipt.  Any
notice given by telex or facsimile shall be deemed received on the next business day
if it is received after 5: 00 p. m. ( recipient' s time) or on a non-business day. For
purposes of this Agreement, the Parties may also agree to electronic mail delivery
for purposes of Notice.

The Parties also agree that electronic mail may serve as an appropriate and effective
platform to effectuate notice, provided, however that each Party is responsible for
keeping the other Party up to date on the appropriate email address for purposes of
Notice.

Addresses for purpose of giving notice are as follows:

To Manteca:      CITY OF MANTECA

Attn:  City Manager
1001 W. Center Street

Manteca, California 95337

To Lathrop:      CITY OF LATHROP

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Any correctly addressed notice that is refused, unclaimed, or undeliverable because
of an act or omission of the party to be notified shall be deemed effective as of the
first date that said notice was refused, unclaimed, or deemed undeliverable by the

postal authorities, messenger, or overnight delivery service.

Any party may change its address or telex or facsimile number by giving the other
party notice of the change in any manner permitted by this Agreement.

13.     USE OF CITY OF MANTECA PROPERTY:   Lathrop shall not use Manteca
Shelter property  ( including equipment,  instruments,  storage,  and supplies)  or

personnel for any purpose except those described and/ or related to this Agreement.

14.     EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY PRACTICES PROVISIONS:  The

Parties agree that they will comply with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,

268



the California Fair Employment& Housing Act(" FEHA") and that no person shall,
on the grounds of race, creed, color, disability, sex, sexual orientation, national
origin, age, religion, Vietnam era Veteran' s status, political affiliation, or any other
non-merit factor, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
otherwise subjected to discrimination under this Agreement.

15.     AUDITS; ACCESS TO RECORDS:   A Party shall make available to the other
Party, its autharized agents, officers, or employees, for examination any and all
ledgers, books of accounts, invoices, vouchers, cancelled checks, and other records

or documents evidencing or relating to the expenditures or disbursements charged
to a Party, and shall furnish to the Party, its authorized agents, officers or employees
such other evidence or information as the Party may require with regard to any such
expenditure or disbursement charged by or to a Party. The Parties shall maintain full
and adequate records in accordance with generally accepted practices to show any
actual costs incurred by in the performance of this Agreement.

16.     WAIVER:  No waiver of a breach, failure of any condition, or any right or remedy
contained in or granted by the provisions of this Agreement shall be effective unless
it is in writing and signed by the party waiving the breach, failure, right or remedy.
No waiver of any breach, failure, right or remedy shall be deemed a waiver of any
other breach, failure, right or remedy, whether or not similar, nor shall any waiver
constitute a continuing waiver unless the writing so specifies.

17.     ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This Agreement, including all attachments, exhibits, and
any other documents specifically incorporated into this Agreement, shall constitute
the entire agreement between Manteca and Lathrop relating to the subject matter of
this Agreement.  As used herein, Agreement refers to and includes any documents
incorporated herein by reference and any exhibits or attachments.  This Agreement

supersedes and merges all previous understandings,  and all other agreements,

written or oral, between the parties and sets forth the entire understanding of the
parties regarding the subject matter thereo£  The Agreement may not be modified
except by a written document signed by both parties.

18.     HEADINGS:  Headings herein are for convenience of reference only and shall in
no way affect interpretation of the Agreement.

19.     ADVERTISING OR PUBLICITY:  Neither Party shall use the name of the other
Party, its officers, directors, employees or agents, in advertising or publicity releases
or otherwise without securing the prior written consent of the other Party in each
instance.

20.     MODIFICATION OF AGREEMENT:   This Agreement may be supplemented,
amended or modified only by the mutual, written agreement of the Parties. No

269



supplement, amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be binding unless
it is in writing and signed by authorized representatives of both Parties.

21.     SUBCONTRACTING/ ASSIGNMENT:  Neither Party shall subcontract, assign or
delegate any portion of this Agreement and/ or any duties or obligations hereunder
without the other Party' s prior,  written approval.  Failure to do adhere to this
provision shall result in a material breach by a Party. Moreover, neither party shall,
on the basis of this Agreement, contract on behalf of or in the name of the other

party. Any agreement that violates this Section shall confer no rights on any party
and shall be null and void.

22.     SURVIVAL:  The obligations of this Agreement,  which by their nature would
continue beyond the termination on expiration of the Agreement, including without
limitation, the obligations regarding Indemnification ( Paragraph 2) shall survive

termination or expiration.

23.     SEVERABILITY:  If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any provision of this
Agreement to be illegal, unenforceable, or invalid in whole or in part for any reason,
the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions, or portions of them, will
not be affected, unless an essential purpose of this Agreement would be defeated by
the loss of the illegal, unenforceable, or invalid provision.

24.     EXTENSION:  This agreement may be extended by mutual, written agreement of
Manteca and Lathrop, subject to the requisite approval of the City Council or their
designee, and subject to Section 3 above.

25.     SIGNATORY:  By signing this Agreement, signatory warrants and represents that
he/ she executed this Agreement in his/ her authorized capacity and that by his/ her
signature on this Agreement, he/ she or the entity upon behalf of which he/ she
acted, executed this Agreement.

26.     VENUE AND CHOICE OF LAW:  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws
of the State of California. The exclusive venue to resolve any disputes that may arise
during the term of and/ or related to this Agreement are the state and federal courts
of San Joaquin County, California.

27.     iNSURANCE

A. Insurance requirements for Lathrop can be found on the attached form to
this Agreement. Other insurance provisions can be found below:

270



B.      Endorsements.     Each general liability and automobile liability
insurance policy shall be with insurers possessing an A.M. Best' s rating of no less than
A:VI and shall be endorsed with language substantially as follows:

1)     Manteca,   its elected and appointed officers,   officials,

employees,  agents and volunteers are to be covered as

additional insureds with respect to general liability policy
arising out of work performed by or on behalf of Lathrop,
including materials,   parts,   or equipment furnished in

connection with such work.

2)     The general liability policy shall be considered primary
insurance as respects Manteca,  its elected and appointed

officers,  officials,  employees,  agents and volunteers.   Any

insurance maintained by Manteca, including any self-insured
retention Manteca may have,  shall be considered excess

insurance only and shall not contribute with it.

3)     The insurance shall apply to each insured and additional
insured as though a separate policy had been written for each,
except with respect to the limits of liability of the insuring
company.

4)     The insurer waives all rights of subrogation against Manteca,

its elected and appointed officers, officials, employees, and

agents.

5)     Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies
shall not affect coverage provided to Manteca, its elected and
appointed officers, officials, employees, agents, or volunteers.

6)     Any cancelled or non- renewed policy will be replaced with no

coverage gap and a current Certificate of Insurance will be
provided to Manteca.

7)     Manteca will not accept any endorsements that were issued in
2004.  Acceptable endorsement forms are CG 20 10 11 85 or

both CG 20 10 10 O1 and CG 20 37 10 O1 or equivalent.

C.      Deductibles and Self- Insured Retentions.   Any deductibles or self-
insured retentions must be declared to Manteca.  At Manteca' s option, Lathrop shall
demonstrate financial capability for payment of those deductibles or self- insured
retentions.

271



D.      Certificates of Insurance.     Lathrop shall provide to Manteca
certificates of insurance with original endorsements as evidence of the required insurance

coverage.     Certificates of insurance shall be filed with Manteca on or before

commencement of performance of this Agreement. Current certification of insurance shall
be kept on file with Manteca at all times during the term of this Agreement.

28.     MEDIATION: The Parties agree to make a good faith attempt to resolve any
disputes arising out of this Agreement through mediation prior to commencing
litigation.  The Parties shall mutually agree upon the mediator and shall divide the
costs of inediation equally.  If the Parties are unable to agree upon a mediator, the

dispute shall be submitted to JAMS/ ENDISPUTE (" JAMS") or its successor in

interest. JAMS shall provide the Parties with the names of five qualified mediators.
Each Party shall have the option to strike two of the five mediators selected by
JAMS, and thereafter the mediator remaining shall hear the dispute.  If the dispute

remains unresolved after mediation, either party may commence litigation.

REST OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

272



The Parties, by and through their duly authorized representatives are signing this
Agreement on the date stated in the introductory clause.

City of Manteca,
a California municipal corporation

By:

Benjamin Cantu

Mayor, City of Manteca

By:

Toby Wells
City Manager

ATTEST:

By:
City Clerk
Cassandra Candini- Tilton

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:
City Attorney
L. David Nefouse

By:
Acting Finance Director
Jared Hansen

By:
Director of Employee Services & Engagement

Aaron Slater

273



City of Lathrop,
a California municipal corporation

By:

Stephen J. Salvatore

City Manager
City of Lathrop

ATTEST:

By:
Teresa Vargas

City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:
Salvador Navarrete

City Attorney

274



ITEM 4. 15

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION

IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT FOR 191 LOTS IN TRACT

4062 WITHIN PHASE 1C OF THE CENTRAL LATHROP

SPECIFIC PLAN

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 4062
within Phase 1C of the Central Lathrop Specific Plan,
Totaling 191 Single Family Lots and Subdivision
Improvement Agreement with Lathrop Land

Acquisition, LLC

SUMMARY:

The proposed Final Map for Tract 4062, included as Attachment C", will subdivide
the third neighborhood in the Central Lathrop Specific Plan ( CLSP) area, known as

Phase 1C, which will establish a total of 191 single- family lots.   A Vicinity Map is
included as Attachment B".

Staff recommends that City Council approve the proposed Final Map for Tract 4062
within Phase 1C of CLSP,  totaling 191 single- family lots and a Subdivision

Improvement Agreement  ( SIA)  with Lathrop Land Acquisition,  LLC  ( Saybrook),

included as Attachment D".

BACKGROUND:

On October 5, 2006, the City approved a Vesting Tentative Map ( VTM) for Tract 3533
to create 62 parcels on 960 acres of land.   On March 20, 2007, the City approved a
VTM for Tract 3647 to subdivide a portion of Tract 3533 into 1, 071 parcels on 190
acres of land.   The land for the proposed Final Map for Tract 4062 is within the
geographic boundaries of the VTMs for Tracts 3533 and 3647 and will be the only
subdivision of Phase 1C.

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance,  all final maps must include a
Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee specific offsite and onsite
improvements.     The total cost of the improvements for CLSP Phase 1C is

14, 083, 770, however, a large percentage of the improvements have already been
constructed and therefore do not need to be guaranteed.   Performance and labor &

material securities have been provided to the City with the SIA in the amount of:

Unfinished Im rovement Total:  11, 931, 878

Performance Bond 110% of Unfinished Improvements  : 13, 125, 066

Labor & Material Bond 50% of Performance Bond  : 6, 562, 533

275



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

FOR 191 LOTS IN TRACT 4062 WITHIN PHASE 1C OF THE CENTRAL LATHROP

SPECIFIC PLAN

Acceptance of the public improvements will be prepared for Council consideration by
staff at a later date when the unfinished improvements are completed.    Prior to

acceptance, Saybrook will be required to provide a one ( 1) year warranty bond.

Saybrook must satisfy the Escrow Instructions,  included as Attachment  " E",  to

guarantee the payment of all fees and execution of the documents related to the SIA.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Saybrook has fulfilled the requirements of the City' s subdivision ordinance as listed
below:

Documents Status

1.  Final Map ready for signature Completed

2.  Subdivision Improvement Agreement Completed

3.  Faithful Performance and Labor & Materials Security Received

4.  Street Improvement, Landscape,  Light & Joint Trench
Completed

Plans

5.  Geotechnical Report Completed

6.  Allocation of Water and Sewer capacity Completed

7.  Escrow Instructions Completed

Fees Status

1.  Final Map plan check fee Paid

2.  Improvement Plans - Plan check and inspection fees Paid

3.  Sierra Club Settlement fee Paid

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no budget impact to the City as all costs are covered by development fees
and any shortfalls in the City' s maintenance and operating costs are covered by the
existing Community Facility District 2019- 2.

276



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

FOR 191 LOTS IN TRACT 4062 WITHIN PHASE iC OF THE CENTRAL LATHROP

SPECIFIC PLAN

ATTACH M E NTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 4062 within Phase 1C of the Central
Lathrop Specific Plan,  Totaling 191 Single Family Lots and a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement with Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC

B.       Vicinity Map - CLSP Phase 1C

C.       Final Map - Tract 4062

D.       Subdivision Improvement Agreement with Lathrop Land Acquisition,  LLC for

Final Map Tract 4062

E.       Escrow Instructions for Final Map Tract 4062

277



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

FOR 191 LOTS IN TRACT 4062 WITHIN PHASE 1C OF THE CENTRAL LATHROP

SPECIFIC PLAN

APPROVALS

I ZZ 21
Brad T or Date

Land Development Manager

I""`      q - Z Z- Z o 2l

Michael King Date

Public Works Director

r

23- 2 (
Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Engineer
7

f

q   _
Cari Jame Date

Finance D rec or

2^ vl

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

la'S'Zl
Step J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

278



RESOLUTION NO. 21-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 4062 WITHIN PHASE 1C OF THE

CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN, TOTALING 191 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS

AND A SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT WITH LATHROP LAND

ACQUISITION, LLC

WHEREAS, on October 5, 2006, the City approved a Vesting Tentative Map
VTM) for Tract 3533 to create 62 parcels on 960 acres of land.  On March 20, 2007,

the City approved a VTM for Tract 3647 to subdivide a portion of Tract 3533 into
1, 071 parcels on 190 acres of land; and

WHEREAS, the land for the proposed Final Map for Tract 4062 is within the
geographic boundaries of the VTMs for Tracts 3533 and 3647; and

WHEREAS, required by the City' s subdivision ordinance, all final maps must
include a SIA to guarantee specific offsite and onsite improvements; and

WHEREAS,  the total cost of the improvements for CLSP Phase iC is

14, 083, 770, however, a large percentage of the improvements have already been
constructed and therefore do not need to be guaranteed.   Performance and labor &

material securities have been provided to the City with the SIA in the amount of the
following; and

Unfinished Im rovement Total:  11, 931, 878

Performance Bond 110% of Unfinished Im rovements  : 13, 125, 066

Labor & Material Bond 50% of Performance Bond): 6, 562, 533

WHEREAS,  acceptance of the public improvements will be prepared for
Council consideration by staff at a later date when the unfinished improvements are
completed.   Prior to acceptance,  Lathrop Land Acquisition,  LLC ( Saybrook) will be

required to provide a one ( 1) year warranty bond; and

WHEREAS, there is no budget impact to the City as all costs are covered by
development fees and any shortfalls in the City' s maintenance and operating costs
are covered by the existing Community Facilities District 2019- 2; and

WHEREAS,  Saybrook must satisfy the Escrow Instructions,  included as

Attachment " E", as attached to the City Manager' s Report, to guarantee the payment
of all fees and execution of the documents related to the SIA.

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED,  by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves and accepts the following actions:

1.  The Final Map for Tract 4062 is hereby approved as submitted for recordation
with the San Joaquin County Assessor/ Recorder/ County Clerk Office.  The

recorded executed copy will be filed with the City Clerk.

279



2.  The City Manager, or their designee, is authorized to execute a Subdivision

Improvement Agreement with Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC, in substantially
the form as attached to the October 11, 2021 staff report, the file executed

copy will be filed with the City Clerk.

280



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11t" day of October 2021, by
the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVE AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

281



r....

ATTACHMENT B

z%"" fi' L<    
s  .   a t      

w,«'    

r    t
ffi         ,   ;'.

a    

a,-   
x          '',

s 73     q  41  

fi x,,  

M ',`,*"
A  ' s° e!" Y r9' aa

x

l ta`   tiW;,    p. o
y a             `     + w 9. t-  3 r,'

r e
a

i   a    ;  Et, k,—    a'       

d

y  
aea4 s

p

r         
i   ,

t$' R }  , 
i . c

tV " 
t''.'"    ' °       i  .

0   
O

v

g s. " , 
d"            

m».     ,.,
y   ,. m b     a r  

F
N

f 

F,' ,• ° ,," '

g
O  -

1

W
d

a

O  Z

O       

f

x

9

31b15N31Nr    . 
z    

U .      
d

O V1  

6,:       I
k    K o

x   o      a W oW
o ;  

S
Y.    e

U NZ W N
n ,          

a.    

i
ss    v„

r,p
N

Ytl 
3)

y E`
4tc ' Y•,            .

dy

r

N g

Q
o' o

C         G

t.  a'       ..
t.

4+ s a  ' :       

Z             V     '    

U

r      <,

N a s  

V           s€       

Q P

j

M 

i B e' a 3
f vyye       m'.

tia Z u

P 4     z

e
s   K   

ZQ 1    ^   

N 3rn   ') 4     ti C

J e`"   
3.       ".      

d
r       ';      a ez   h',, t      .       '.

U ry' 

q°'   

4t

a%p+;.
t '     t yY„„'  ,. °   -    "

a*,,,,k.

2 a.

U

L'      '    

i,  " ti ` : ',  

t3;,"  ,

t'"   ',  
n  .  .     E  

q

5

Yg
d   "    

k' ` 

Y'   
1° ^

a"   

F^...    t     y..
n r.

O    $'       d          "
i  °    

S .

r§." r'       `""!     ,      x
x g

W,":.'...   

A
U` :"`

re`` fx i

r*'"

a °`° 

1
Y r

d
Y

F`   t   ... n

E tk.  w       +
n4`-

Q Q   .  y  , «.' ':', a .''.` 6    ap,``.

G 1f t '' 9   .    $ A'  "     '    

C

3   '" k       Y' '. "'
r+ C"-  

Wxx ,.f       
r' 

i"''_   
t,': a    e; i          

s  x

U a

w      "      i w       

m   " ;     * 

w}  

u„   
e: r;

y  '
r'`   '

1
r r     `

M      , n          

r

t;$ 

S G   „       
rs        , ».,°*"'{        il" f;

o  

zha v i;      
F

rfl,

Af f3 J° b l 6f v Ct  }  °;,.,.,.
t t 1 t`

fg'    a   '

4,. 3,. bn t i?k t

y    6 W       u'   r/ y^.   /

s s

z'      r rz.

C       

Y 5

su% n

a,       

282



ATTACHMENT C

o

N          j     4\
NC[ P

k d vai

azofR y     _       oJg
d      __ p S o F-

F'  '
ep  

a

g   °'

b     
a a

o

W

s   y
dd

q>    oi o     rie3e •      d' 3o

o 3   ;   O  '    
3 a

o
s

o

N oi          U   W s
z<     gw

w i=      <   LL Z w
w  -   F-  z

F   _       g    ?
3       

W   - 
a fn

w w s

a  -   

W o      jo N

o

o=       -      o    o
w w Z      -   Y     a

s   

W
ow

c    <_=       w a  ` ag a   _       a
Z a        w

u w       =  -      _     c  z  _ o
a

F      -  wg-   -   c   
a  "

o aa t  _- a o       c  _, a oa  _ o      ,       ai   o      y     LL  LL      «

E p* w
c,°°     '    

gm
S

1b1Sa
1

o  

z z   

w  '      o:-      bryWa'b    ...  

N
S, aNd1*.      000 a

O ~ s 
o

y 0 b
ad...      .   C>  N3O1 s

z
m    o

wc
a

zz J a
z

o

w

o   ..<   

LLUzx
o U

Q
LL

a

z=

s'

dFmwo
w 2 O J

o

x

o       oQ      :        . O`

i aa o gV

O ' m¢ 

o= y
O C  ..    

w m Q       z o

N Qioa       
Y

FOQ- vai w z o  
ti      Z '    .  

y   

Uo              w

Uy    
m U

C7

6

z     "   

Z       3 a
Na   a. W            z         o Qo
ga¢    E i     /}       ~     W      

D a

g i
n a3

lb W z¢  

5    05' 3

aiu' o 06.  Q     -
3 fn f/ 1   _

o

N

v 26.  

a~   -

J'  
J

i_  
z

LL o'      z o    >   ~  -
Q     o z

pwa
0 g-   

ai oa   W

3a 3v
Q

f/ 1  , c».- sw o          d'  a oc, mooa oa=. ma y  ¢, i

s-   
r 3   -      

w u 3o w   ¢     
ZQ  -      _       

r- V   _-  _
f  z

z       
2  _      

Q a3 3      

V a `-
m w

3¢_   O o    _       _- 3 0 0 3 X    -
o       p  _   o z  -  

g    q
a     - 

e

oa

3

3    ' 

03
go

N      

g f- aC  g

30      _      _   _    ~   _       
J z i 3 0 W EoQ Q       . w o J o 0

H o o   3       a`
w' -  

V V     -   -  W   "       
N

a3m_
o

W    _     

0

U
3 0     

F

3   
O     -   q 

U       -  

W  ~ 

g H ig Q a3d e o i  
Q    w

N
p

oo zoo i 3 U gw`   
u        _    a z

W  -- ,            3 LL w3    .  W i_    

Z d F-    Z   o 30

O  a                      9    o a  ,  o V  . d_ a

O  3>  ,  oaa a   .       d d    

283



N
g 

3a mo     O  g

ga k  az       d a  =  s a' oo'.m    

n       
N

N w  Q d= Q
N    g N r? p     ' mx-       _  _  oz 6w  Z ooass alf_ om 3  = s  _-   \-   ---   

m
N    .''%e w_  --       "   -   s  _ e mmw i -oo  wsw.=  < mw--- oaa 3     U NLL`"      v -

m Y _ 

N

a:
I y N 

z3?  I

ma - w       ,    '   
c o o       _  _    

o ogg=    E=',

i       oda 3., ' N H' ao  I li  l ,      H
m_ Sm

Q o_

A     q 
o

Ne
A`,     n

V w
A N

U

I
O c   /

4 ry     
I B y  

r

V    _    m,

jd       < z,  40
d     e;.,    > Y o. , JcyO Cv
j

d.
M.   y 

y4!' .,\.N

O O BeS.\

I

ry
m 20`• s   /

d

o- i    
s      '  

O
oA Sse`\ ry2,` s.:.\\   o OC'

v Ao° sr .  '     1

ri-    o oo. >     7s  ' c    

d    oe
s Osb / b o

zN
9

b
ej z(

b i  T --
I         ;      s       n—    

NX I
I

I 7bIM b a° P Z00.  
I

J
ry  .

m    pN o. ss,y 
osi-_"     

sn      —9
0

o i

3op gEZ2lt-_ ' Ops°066g2 lE,lS( l S_
A__ ° 9lN S".,

D)  Sbgl_ b
Ell i\

I   
lU) 3. LS. CS, SIN / U      \

dbiY 3IH1 N1IM 03HSIl19NI1% 3 3B O1
Q

l' tl) 311tld, 02'% 3

2O       
Q        

ItlT3. Ll, 11. 69N     CY ,

3'  

S(   
tl) M. Lo, OS. 61N V  '   /     /

y      

tl13. 59 EO. BON` 

I  IC

md

J      \

o

m NV'  \

L 0

O

OO mO. a.   / 

Q

il
O   

il
o      b  `>, y     

o

6 sNQ N JIII      

J       I
I I

N i
I I

a o e

tiv      <. m, N w W`
o w .     Iw 2o' D o'

N no 2        
i-     o' ro m

n vi N b-
a 0^   , 

U I
N N J '   Q` y O

4'

u

i ym
o                <

i
i  .  , 

waa
1 0,

N m m z

I      .     .       .  , Ni'"       //     1 J;   

3o o w o r.i
t .-      -      _ ._ .

8     

I i

li_           ,   I     ' ._     l.< 
k

s sla i I a

H    -  - ao<  

wc
m

J I
I       _       goQ

I J. J

O¢
rKao

284



N s

U= Q       p   
y.

p

o  < ng   ss m
w

oE-'m 06„       w

G o x V      Q n     

z oo
O a _' o

I

3 3
J       omo 3

g w5,?    "       a g
z3  J5  _\     

a,---     m o= g _=wo s  
a o  ooNYmm i -z  o w-    r    

a w w  = LL.,,< m.,--- oaa s  _       m`< aW Q_r     

I ' ' 

g

i

w

Q"
9;' g"  

w 3=
o i

z

os=   E_;=
li i c o o=   -  -

w       :
v:      g o

3

w

K m r- rvlm
J

I
I i I .    mw--- z ou 3 i n .       

uv 

LL H
og

G

u

m

o s 

i

Q
b'

N  

c<  
m"

o            
J

d   

m
oQ pb_"-`_- 

N "' 
N     .

y i     

o m

N       `

r    

o      

d
b,

y
o L/      ——

o. <   

q
bj,`°   L J      

d 

w     

a iaaeva

m

n       
l  

a             .

o '-  

b
J v   

y    

0

4.     l

o'

C     

64     ; om`°` 
o      

1E    /

m
m '

e
O 9Q 0     , F' 

Z,F'       

c'i "     

a

v  

a

da,    5
4   a 

o  P R c a

V     y.    ` 2'
S

R.EF'        a z 

V A y m

o
a

I       /0
C,    

Q  x
o p

R
x

d   

C RPV''  
ci        

y, 
d O

ry       '  '          

4 A`
f           

a    5      ? 3jj

o
1    \   

K a      j    j,

io<=
m

o-    

285



a   N
g

o3am     = w p 
ox      `       <_    g" w

w
s c}- 's w` sd;

m    og¢     ' 2¢ t'     

z
k.,  '_`

3 a=  p  `       o
o

J 
o

I   =  
Nw=

o

Wp
o==

Q N6W    

z         

rJ
a Sgos

y '

N g       p=   3apJ    w             
f" i a LLo:`-<

o     ` o .;       _          _ owm N ' 3 ry.,,
N  ..     wo io a     4s<  f wm`d     -

ziooZw soo         
sa w c, a,.,--- oaais  _       r  oo.-    m   ..'  _

o  ,.,    

J , o` How a:w 3 3    o     o I i '      
ya

z I og   E::
z

o 

m.- ao w ao.-     w I I I II ' 
I    

OO O     ---    
a,   N g m N

o= m o_   
J       

i I i y
oaa ip._,   --       y  

og_

V

n

o

I   '

m        K I
Q I

f

m I

m

s  ---- ,,

f            `

ys

s

o j a
s'' z e'i•    jl  s6 op'o•, y.M s oEe;     

z Ne•    o0 r` y'JO   \
m s',,  

D

A    /     

p0
Ol`      s    

a      \      ^

Oy t,5 /  
o m F,O/°' 

m 39 M   
b:' e   

ry

Ni65iy1-+ lal R VF.
a$,;  

9 ^- CUTCER'
9h,

11-= g0 /'   /       

s

I I /  

I     I

i     b>' oye z 
s.  

d

y  ?,       

m

rv    /

ssy a      

i

i

o/     ti

le/     /

w

p
r

tiB OO'

w

0    ,  

SRRF'' 
5

p0      , o° iv,R
o a2     

w 2e%  R   
0 0o p,$
eo

j?
5

SPy
C

o     =

o S`"     

oo`

b _     
i /'/

f          

ab' Q)   

j   //      

f

5

SN

Y
9

5.
J y \  T

a o°
mm.

so,\ e
e 

m

Z`      

o

G'`, 
CJ d'       1

i
I"' II

O^  
r li  .  .

7 mI Im

I 8 I-       -di

yOO
ei III e e

m      ..,

v i_
i'

Ic,.
al,

286



o   o Y

g§ 

ws   O

K
J=               

m oE;
m=  ;       

a   
Wp         _      

O o
a==

o
3\ z J   _

x x
zwaw?       

t'      

W a S     o

wm   =       z y eo< LL;;

w     = s  < s ow LLSLL   '

a ;
o ""'< mw--- os 3  - U '«< mm Loo_

W

o
m Ca

o

i ; ' Ii NOJ a =

i c o o

y

s"< a E;',:
I il m'---: oad 3_., -.      ,

n'     
H s

3 oe a._     
W o

Bt o
9' 6l/ - '       '''   • BB   a

g

b9`. 64:'

f  ' e
g'      , ez           s; er
at    /       

l   , ys` a oo`   •!  w j r• - a     `  

ti h      ""  s    ° o

0 3   ;/    _ 
y/ Na 2    ryd       \   

3     n n/    $  /  
m

5/^\       \ U

a x         _ b            o

m     ,

cr       a.,

9pe       
6,,           y

1Ap       y` j            
a_ s• ei ,

sz      i     m rf.         
so wLL pn.             

a'..
e` g

d

o       

eat 3.
bp, so.

alN       

o? 

2 
m     v' 

N

3 02   "\
a-  r-7b B, 2      \      \    m

l Leo, stp      y   r.

J
a o    

9l
0 ry5       \` vi

o
a 3

9p'
B N o`       E` 

z H

ma    /      `/  N

og            '

i.       
m

f    ^      

m m a        

1
a   >     

9'
9!! 

m"      

9'!   

l
1

o

y/      N
b 3'

CO, SO,
BIry `    "

s.      
N'

p

O    -  ' 

f      "'  

a3a       wNv H/   -  
lv'

e'
sa    ti     b e a ome°1 `

ti'

oOim/ 
c,

h a 3.e,
00.

azp h ,       •   ,  ,/,  

o./      

dJ'  r ''' k    , 5h°  ti,    a?
it l    3:; y

s

s y   ,   ,
d?,

x ;   oa`   o•      G     / mp q,.      
jev d,

m        a
i

I      ti           -  ' tE•      2°,'"•s      .

mo '^ e e/ 

lV  .       Bl,+.  0e^   fii  r

1' -'       

a` 3 4'  ¢ v
zf'

SS.    a` 

d'
d'       - y`' i

R 2ry es a F     o h i   $ t,

5'       U       ea ' ze,e.  a      "       - e     ''<'.o N
e'  .,  

7     , O'

2
n       

q9,

Zx O i l

B
Q /

b/
39 69

N

AryOy'    ;/     eryy    ` S< l,N 
woom   4i,,  /      o . y b

OSC ab'        
s

mz3z 3 Lry b/

36p xp.
o^%   

A
O

2

r

z O  < -- e;,' '     ,    
z`

z   

61,
0   

v. a

Q,    ry

m     m   > a`°    e

1/    h "" ro  e
ae' 3to•

C
e       '     

y x

o    . 

Q' 

vti:       ,
ss(`   

mm

m_ v m
S•

y.`(   2ry   
S2ry'   ! 2ry em    , Bazp

f

ti o   o/ O .   
y

d
3,

s n

sz   b),   n i     
b/

a 2' %.
h  

so       :

y  se°°,>_ r   a      :;    o:,   h

z           s ' , 1.   Eo

3io N       '

vO e      oii  

o;  -
Fe.

sZN        OV o o
b/

3/     

e

y       

o

8.       eo   uLLi

t0[    

v

N

v     ,

w   ^ m S   '^     
N/ 3      o, i

o   ^       bJj-
C  

3•!  ry
h

N n

na
Z!

pv
0

fe0 N
p

s`
y,    

m n

n
v' 

Szry    N

gp.     o

p       

b/j n
o / 

y

u.   

i

ro    '       o    ss m

ep,
eo

m
IbI3•

r

z6.
OZp  

n      /  7b
e

os
zry

ry  

a o
b 3.

ng,
9[

v
ry gp,'

l

rN
mm

ao

3\      

3>   ¢   

0

zry Ne  '    
l,   '

ed        Bl,
Oy,

b

nobo        

I
o/

e

Dg    tr

Bz  :

v..      

tq       °' 2 ^.

e o 3.       

J

la m

e0l      
a

ltp               i
3

8p 

S'
6!°  Z   ^' H13.

f 2T wq       /  
3 e/      oZN 2,

yzN e.B
a D,

Bz.
lt          , 66.    a       /, .,    /  , ry  / a

ry     

H

o.     

ro
3•

Ff,(
2,     / s a   '      / ,       o

ry

p

aZN          
e/      \  Bstp  e

o.  
e   ``\ J     '^ 3qd`  B'

0
3 2S, y

y\ o   _  0[•
l       %       

g
3/ld, g!   I/°SZN

m o a;

9C
LB' bg-     0 8        i,

3       - 
c

oc N

y

m 3

o

sdsp.
PD'      

QbQ9[ 3. 00,
9{.

SlN \ 2@y9    
N 6   ,

Bd 2,l 3 1d
S

l  

nd
S L    ^

s u
J._

rt,- SQ/dy  sz      

e a a o

esia.o H o     l-,  r    -          !   -
ONB

st. sµ'           ' M  
Nm.,

1 
M.

zy  Q

EZ'
Z1d3. 0p,

gf 60  ' oss    c. a

g

as°
N\    ,   b fZ

SO2 ,

90 7\ , Osed`
I' 

ae.
y lro

287



N
o

Waz
a

F oW
o a      o o   as     

m  
sd -

m    

s      w3    
l

kN N i         _          

o

a? 
N 

g

0..
n     

g 3       
m Q      

o=    -   
F

o      
O g_

zwdw Z y osa=       

o    
W      

m3=  s._           _  

s  <<      NU mm` '
o w w< mw     o a 3   U 0

6 ° ea

3=;    QF a
o     ,   I  

h, ya  a

z   
m

w       z i Q o os<=   E
om na   ; a          I , o 0 o

m   _     
y 5 -

s ¢="

s o<    
o    w I I I  ' I I     

w--- oaa 3 ..
y= o

m_ m   _

o_

3          '     \

m  
m \      N P 6z

N2•
1, 9s4 J'J 

n

il

aOy  . s.    
6'!./. 2.'     

e     
2 Se'.       

06
W

5ti'     s         a
y 4,

v
C̀ ,

ti     'o,
c,    

9'C
a/

e a m
o

pl O 
n

Q``
J `^     '••

6•     Z
P\

O, pO  P` /., i0 e m`{  \

5.
A.

1 o•     . iJa     o
Q      /  

A P     oo     '"'%
S,

9peg

e

o, a
a • sd

e'   ,    

55 ti:   
w    • eq,       

tiaO0
2 2({    

Ay4;  ,   ry h"'           h 0 3¢/"-  QC 9 oy

eo,.  ^ ry"      , s    
v p..`

o    "'

a`   

2

m/     
f EA

m `, .

oyh'
6     •

Eb2   ._    \  

Y 3,, t.   ; • -      a`' •
5°     

a  ' ° e, ao ti    ' 00 a
s

yry/    ° a
v  

f2 ,
ea2ea o?`

P , A N`    

os Ati' Qu.
Os°'

s        y       \/    _2b
p

O/

SC  )  '  pl a, A6'    
a.[   

9
s     

Ae  rt,yJ,yi.' 0ry' s aia   . o'- o'           e.
s\ I, s s o

e4,: 
t 2s{ y? o so

e^' j° L s
y   . o    

i
e,a-,     ° • •    -    "'     S e'""°° d e   ' fb            _

a a a
t•    

o+ av,       B

e      E' :  -     tiV``,3h,.     i     
BO J -     6 p  ' B

30 l\
e' 

LL
e

i

O       '   s
mro 00  •

f'b   \
s   

v         
E.      Cd

y
A.      \   

u    v    '!% i F,\%' so`o.) 6'   
ti. ry,, e ei.` rb Ocf   '

o. 5' p9,
a     . '

LL s,
o i

m    ` I.6 P,'° a a
r,      

oA39    ` 7 oSdd

y    p$a\      , 9'

M1

tQa y`

V N°   
d

i

7J     ' y    e o e° Q;' rr  eb-'   "'• O
0.6       , o

e2 y=      ' o Q'

J' .  0 "     

b 4' s d'   ti- , 

g`
m -  3d

1-   . eti-      ,      
b   

y 4   `
s 

A°"   , . e

j  fi:     Q, PJ i
D

4

0`   __
1_'! 

m r `      

I.`, o.'  . a NqJ°7B' dB WLL v.
r

m .., _ oi y`    

I   ..
o  .     

d , . a

n
i

o ..       

ilo'^ NS 35 58' Wlp) 48. 15
a

p  '

a.' ii

I.$' f  -     J

JJ
f

1
o v

o y  ^'.    3 VIE dbd

U A I

o

I Si
i

oory, T \ O n=! 

P' A0    ! S 10    \
q'p v"

9 S'.   A''      
Z[(   

iN
T 9,

M1
g,

O 
Q

1
66,' _      , b/

3     hb    R

O oy;' Fzo' y:
l'   '  _  —-    Z,

Bt @3      

4,
p    '  • ',      ">;     

sr"     E

y``q  ,^
es'``'>  1 oza° sec o a'   

O¢OQ'   e`       2H
a

N

bti.

a  o., ti  
o s

0 0
a

SeN pery
y3, s`

8
J

P

Oa

92,: s

a

J

e   .,^

3

peN 2r0 ry N

SeN

m

m

s'

m    '  _  '  '   
m

J

288



m

N
g 

aa d o; o     w o Q i

o   -
agN

w        

z Wwq d`;
oUo CN Yu=       n n z  ?       o N

N 

LL O_
a    w  

z O   m6= o y
xmx o`    o y        za    

sa  = J
zWaw=  go a g.::_. o

NW o m

o     o   ;

3'  w  

i
4 amw--- s: oaa 3  _     o

m ' 
U _

oow w

o<   ea          a i   syya   
z I

os o             I , ,       o 0 0 •••    os    - " E .
w          II mw--- oa< 3'

0 N

g sws
o< o

og" 
4         

m P5 . pOE'BSBP•      
V 

0    \//
a, s„ ti,J 4,Fo

a''"°
d    5       

z

sl ' -
a. st.  'sg.a
i   d            

i

m      

y' JD
ao y    

b      \

V     _

n
pp•

0B   '
B l6.         v

s 
9e, 3•)

as, He's ar    b     \

oti.   , s'
sr

O)  

sso.   O'S    \

o

M'
ss a, N. tee ss       '° oo   

s J, 0  9

1
n O'  6

l     

m sb'.   

i T'.
y      

qa°  

f2a x  p%,'      °
R, 3 i Q'  a p

o
ti

m     ;    
p,        eo 3Y te`'

ium

NN
Z h1% , ry    +  . , h

r If').

s.     51' OS'  _       '  °+   
1 0

0' h         ''S1'      , BG'   ? 2   . 5,z b`,   
0 725'  . 82. g

6o /     , 0,   3
2y'

Y; y,v . s,
o     ¢ J,  .

s       \
b qVelLl= 7, 00' 

Zf'
0     "

p'   . A 3. 92` S

y w a< e   e ab  .
s,       te,

y       ,;   
a h;    e, s

m    

C` o
o£•    y

y•
e !\ `'   

2 y
m  •;       

p 
0

2      rd')       Y
y  

tl

49. 00' 
e '' 3

N     '  

T,

a i a

3
S a:

Z    ''.   / ` Rq0° 00' 00'      . pra,
a ry' 

g

I           
2f      ' B!/ c' j6. 97' M. N     . ef, 2 b;

o
g )   T ';s

o y  a         /  P, 20. 00'  S'    2sy     $
m'

Nm,'
3\ ?

i t     
m

m y0' OOOp•       
y     '

2.       n
O{     a 

c,`     ee.    <.;  aI   e", t. 4r b es    s" y v,

z x o w 9 e     ' id      "   . o 

a o  
b/,<

o/...,  y,/       /         Ob' << 3
r'°

9fa \   

J
m= a o3 29f2 H     

2y'
3',  

3,y2B Se    
Ji   \

2e6
f`*V

z "
o'

a    i
rv^ 6       4  

s N  \         J  . 0

om a   0s';
vo „       yro   ,?'  , s   

y"'         3s 4 s ee b

m.-_ p   2f° yos 12       ' L"`''`.( n   oa/     
o/`

o df'M1*  
N     '

1'
l 5

aOe,  n oo-• i   
j    ory A '

l vs 

o^   

622 P   

r    \ J

i
e a vo

y'
ry          ti E; eN

2. 5/i
m      .

hm O

o

1

y/   

a°

yNv% 
y

6?

2SS         N 6       ;
a,  `- Ze;     " e w,

o      ;     
s e<     

9p,
e2 ! zN\  s`  

l
e^  , 6/,: s2   A

Q
92,y u o tiy`

O   << 

3 3 Do a'' e

0sb     ,       ./     e  C;   v., zex. • ree rF   y   m

c.   h: R^       
n

2     .     ¢           F. 

y"

2, N/
3,  

p    ^      
d

r
G

oy

Q /

t£
d, 6f 0       'v

h/       sez; : ps
se`

bo       
ory  

a:JQR, /'
N

e
s       . a^ a Q'  Y

B 9 m

n a/       .,      
a

h o'   
di,;." q, e  A%', s Q'

si      o eTy ,, s '       :

a2,.
9   / 00'.      , 2,i  

f,
f i.

i ra   "       q°    
e   oe,y  0e,y     "„       

m e'
i

e

1

o    /

If..   ` 2
O N    A6      ' ` /  ' Sb.    o 3      °'   o

fd

0 9/2y`)  '
1r       

e  A9  
P   '

4.    A,
p'

Ly0

2Q`/

y

e

O    

m

0 ea,
p

O,'       

ey
a;  

y  \       I  r

0 t

N     
o      

e' Z   °'.;'       o
o       i  

9.   

ji  ,\   
O      , 

o /
v

df9\

a2` T1E
pr` b9Srf`  ,/  ``, 

a'     ¢
a o

N I•

r
e ••

d
a.

o.  /    , 0   /       
ry 0/    

e`

m

l 02 •!  -   i
1:  /  

9       C, ya  ' DB Ba, '?  /   l o  
6°; 

y

a U I
m

66      , pS  
5 6S. q9:

G 62 /    p5:         p$,    .  

s

2.      : 8` 
00' OL= d      `

e
1 

a
9  

d\     
BfNz

OO    \    .?   
r ,

O
b   .` .        

u

i
l      , \ Q'•  

p     `

O 9

O6     '/ ; i y/   y'
t'       

F
0 y5`  `. 0, C      —   .      '' B 1 f

r o`      
S

00.      g•". aw  ..-
7 e

h            F`'.
3` o ny

t c'      I,_       '

9e    \ F`
y M19 I o

od         ^      `       I
o

moem
1 el f°

oO e d'°      oya ti:

o       ` 2 cP      ' a       5 I=     I

rrn      , O   I  
i S O' s Ees r b s d' I-

s y s Iy syd    ;        I          

289



i N
g

o

Wa 3w i w
o g

w o am      oor       w

ox   6      W o3n kN  o< J   _ J   W m oE'0

m w
6       3 d d  =  ws p 

O ` N=' o

n`'       _ a Ww       '  -       _  _     o     

z      y

g 3      i m r&   xmx

zwaw?   Z{ hy aoa
g' s='. N

3 o Q w

m

3\     

s 5 u¢ m
O    

m o 
o i o O w N i LL w_-_ Z 0 2 1 3 2  _      l  / N

o d m . 
U

Z< o N j o w

r a N w  ;
w

3 p    o i O I  i   '       
y  _ 

o
m  -      

a a w I s og= " E -
a   _   w o      J

I ,    ;   o 0 o

m w  -  -

w    N a; N y 3
s o II I  ,        oaa 3

m_ m z     LL=
og

V      

Y

ii A

Q9h

o

e       \      

e

y
v

fe, '• es.       O

w         
ec   s 6',  OC

5    e      '   
e

f`

Na
D°

r
Nb

4'
y      \\

O w l

e,
ia ee'

6 ooa S Q ,

Ol.      Ag/.      
A   a    +   ti.' I C    

yh e
y,    sf ae, . f   e

fe,
a  

S,    
g         ` E'      

Cl,   ,   ' ec- i    `   ,       $  
s

i. op sb,9
y

l

yv o ety TT_

c9"°    '     e    ees., o
M'

I'       
ti

e 7\     
A

Ni
S£, 9i'zg9c

O- Fs9` bi
a

A`      

g  %.!!. S`
9

a    _,

6t p

s fe'!
c    

2^

o

m
o

s?,  ssos,    - r.       .'    a s    « 
3a ONg,

Op.  '( bT_   
o s'

o  • es,
9.    

i a      , Po.
Se

0.   M.
yy;

zpa_   AON
9`  

A.'       ,
po, 

f`)    0

9e
6yN   , B, ZI

ro, ° s,  
B       ' s2

s
r. 

o,.   

p

W oo dZ,y      ' E, ge S<
x' o/ h r2, ) f0 6fa

b
S 2^

0 ¢/      

S6 Q.   l, P
a i       

t..    2e,       )     9
y

z 

3   
Sb

DA o    )    Q   ,   C x      eg. 9I> y
i       

e o e oeBo`
6'p \° e,

q`
v

e,,

o     ^/  
o sr,se.. pompo e

Sz`'
o.  

s aso' 7'jb 
lt,

y jsss9`'  e 

y
0 3'    / 

s•!
z.     ^      fp as. b a7 l,

p`    , y    / a
Q   ;     _rr b    h         :     9z 7 TyJ,,   ry    ,.       o Y;

eae i av,      
M"

s-       ___'    g'
p

9 gyh'  h/^ 
i,' e      .    »   x   

0'

e2°'>   V   9 m

m
t,

2!°    2" 3 mn,     t,
p i     2      e b,       '°      1 , 3y f a' y a    

Tblqir-_      6_ d
p     / g; i  Ss.   . 9Z,,  ,        21yo l n

a     "   
a          ,. eoa ae.  s, v      , r, • ae,

op, J  f
z_

p... n-
n      } a)   

z,
p , 1y      Ss      

o       CB.
S '" A Q

Sg9N B  '  _.f
5'      ' a 9,

ZC(
b 2°^      

n 2 3 bfa,
B I! H_

S
t!

zN 5   -     -  \. bop   , Op. Zs. 2: pf_  -__-       Y  "       ' y      \

0' O9 S!!-
bl_ N d

3,
y

s2
Q       

r  -

o sd '
i          M' SOYg,

l,
Z m mi i' 62

m       ,
C,     , 6 68= 7   N    -     i 86:    p g. C,BO' Z      

0 2Qii c

6^    

im a  `• C. Z      ' 0'
g

G

lel3
f.

r, P
oe

ry Qy0so,
ra.

six      W '    -  _        ,    OSQ fl
a o - i 9.7 y
o  - _ _   <    , - ,y

o ,

9/'
f01( tl) 3. S0 9Z       _  

cl
w m 3 0

BN      ^' IN
I

r-_-

j 4 I   '   3n°, S'  x    _
and, oT- i   _ 

as ssI¢   ¢   3. ee, rz. oixi T
or, c. asHs aas          i Tr 3.s>,00. oN

a
m

M m
r U

290



U    m
N o

3=       o     a

g
s opao z   _ z   zU6 WUW s-`

m     oa`      a k  r=
J   =

p                y=
ry 

o
a ma'

a
6

W

z  Q o s=

o fAw

p         a_ o  

s V a m       zw w  _   y '< o_.,,
o N

3\--  -     

s o  o      = a`
ooz    so  w"  4< m__ oaa 3  -       U N< 

U

v -
m=> 03 wm<       w a..=

3===    _           I ,   I !   
z

Q" " se     ;
o o=   -      - o     w I og< s " E';

nm<.' o    < ii
ao

I  ,      G CJ O

m   _  _  
N s

z Q o<           w I I  ' II     w--- oaa 3__ .-      sy
m_ m z_ r

o.

77

il a

HS
o S

yry.
B     r

S

0r
o

6 N n

yy\..     , fe
m . 4       '

y

3
b)

e

d

n 9 d'.     , 1L' 98= 1 _

W     ' n      ^ deN \    , L4, BZ. LB= V  e

2'     
A       •

S.   mp       .      J.9' BSZ= 7 aF o^       !
0/   

o     ;       Sl,
sg      

n

g
3oi`      ",

r,

o•     , ef•.<a
Oy

y

r,, c"p    
9-•!

C!'    I      a  zN

xio' oo' xa' wlnl
di T    as. oa_—- p

ez    -    -  I  _ -  3nd, m

eSaey e            
n

m  /  

e  /      °'
i     . h ,

b)
Bs`

3
mm

P.     ' d i o
po,  

i     54     y, ee,
g :

N

0'!`
y P g5 ti00      Y   

l2Nbe
b

ou eV R / P ti3 9g, 
i     _" 

LL

i

p    ,  o? 26.  y

y  

r

ey Cy66 e',^       a.~    - -  
e<,

qj; 

m   

8
Orye

s`        

y

J./   ' a
y'

s` 

r

d:'   
o

p   ,

y
v

2

0 p

p
a

2

322 
z

c? 

m

0  .`    o./       
t!.  

J < 

i

Oti'
P B ti

l,
ry y`',       

o-       

N

6 .:

y   .,

i J4'   .       e

h9    `     
o '

6
5    

a
G    ry

bi,

t`    _     

oaoa
D\     5/

n   9 O     9y,       L 9

F      d     

N

Od     
ry.' 

w'l' ' ry6A e.
j'

4.       
6    m     l,       135

A'
15 m

i.` ry P   o° 
4`' o       b/''a  

t

a'     _  _ _  
e,

ry,
0 566 e O a oti'  s

m

m 4''
o eys    ao.       rycp

3
s

e1   GPeryti b/3    ,,,
h-   

p    
o  eh

m

y5.      ifla.    
m3     .

y 5.

O

O ryp\\ LL

6

0
M1ry9

m

a
S,"}'    

pP  '
a O` 2 p n9.

3 
3'\  p ryti

P",   .
a,
r '  '

ti b/ mm    '      h as

95

l,1./    .  
r ti13 fiS f

a

A  0'
s' 

m

o   \ ¢ ryg' `\  v°'

l6so`

s         

y

y  

A

m

F,',m     5«    d
w

t

rsy    , s    
s

m a3A AQ
cV'

h\  

m

m

9

O .      . o-

O c\     0 69'
m y  $  m

ssi   '`\ O ``  \

d

y

J   i

291



i

m
N

o 
a a  o w

6 o F

O F     '

oa      oa=       wo   o o   '   '°
w 3r o m o E:m ;   

m
6<      6F       

z       

o Y       pa  =  =       ao y"   O _I     

3      o z m wp os             O 
y

3 s ps  
a

a

f p w o waw   o N
o a LL

o

0 Z J  
3\_~  ——       ___—     

3 5 u
a d m o N W m?

z oz    ,  - N
s - w w  4 mw--- oaa 3 5  _      U yagoeV v

m=   3         <       

oow

Ny
w Q,:

w

o< o      o          I    
z

H o

z s o=  --      - _  _       w i
o ,       

o`s    " E-`'
m?      N <

o      J I I I  '; I ,  
o c o

mw  -  oda 3  ''     j " N g
m_.- am oa

W    ? 

H

o

i     
w

y33flS 33S
c i

m

3lld,9l' EO{(
tl13, 50, gZ. 6N` 

I I

o
r li I g

Iw   — I" TE')3.Sb.UO. LON
1, 95' S9 3. eC 62. 0lryaj      I

J I

6L' OOl( tl) 3, 10 1E. EN

J 

m Y I
i      

m 

a9`' rybry 3fld S      I   - -   l

9 F
lo a 

5'    
p

s m- __   

f  ! I 

a 11I
J _ _ _ 

m z

S`        I

I6 
1¢ II

m \ 

h

S'      `

o     '     a o    29  
6

2 9'   `  
a

1
L 2   ¢

l\ s
f0' f6= 7

L5. 60. B, p W

l.    
b.   41' 6'-    

i. 6d' C[ i,       ly
9'

l' hb i     '^  e3fi
g

qq•ELR) I,,.".     _       • ZO, fp,s
a >.       

O       

S`.       ` N73'
45__,   ,       m4   00' 692- y S P  

0 9 p25 6g 00 9,     .       _ 1 M. L6,Bf. 9BN
Q?

ti
9' I:

4
p. M

n' tl OS' OEF_'_   
J/',.,ry5

0    '^   
e

y       p1 pe\
B°

a
pB'    ;. 1\ B5B'    00 6S. BL_'

7    \

V`'e• iti 0.
0'

3 n 00' 062_ bV
4'+.  g6; 1

Q,'pe2
a'  i A     0. 90, LBl= V AD' lld=tl

ti5
y Q

ry

609, O
1'       

m'  

g  
5

m

3`

F oi    o

r''/

y/,/  

4  

o         
9       , q

S      
p!      /

3'       
A°

O     
P

o   o a.
7 0

4

O6'p`'%,  g 4

i 9° c Q
O . s

r    - - o-' y     ' cP GF'   titi

q  
ti

Oy    '°. n C'     !¢          
a;

cA   w
i35,       a,s

i

tiq•   _      

9h\  aa ryN  ..  ¢      /,  
0.

Q
O     

ppe Cfi' 91- 
d     5

dJ ss     \=

0 00' 6t%      S F,      
r` 'p     ,

2

4`g.J'   
BOSSE6g, 4

y 06= tl

im

1

F

U

292



aa       
m

Y

s

ooam      o r-     p =   s

N       - Ue=  o

aQ   U  ¢ mWb  = .x os<      6 cN  `_ oo W= LL  E
m

moo o  

a d w  w-       
z     O <„ 6= 0¢ o

a a<  o
m

zp  =   =
mx osa"            o 

g=
3     _       

w waw- y
e sog       

o`      03  =` J  _-    -
aa   owm  -? o' g--.,<

o      ;`

Wv       sc=i a    o o 
w    -      _:i

s     o: amm"Woaz  o p    ? -   
4< m.,___ oaa i  _   U     .. e r..'  _

N=- m  - 3    a oa
o I i

oow w

No; E_
o moz    N'- W j '' ' i OO n O

o   _  _ az,.,    `' i ti y  
SSF       ..

a   
o< 

ao 

J I I II li , I '   m.,___ soao. 3.,., -.   w8y
m.-_ m z_     

o    /      

l      `         
a   '  

J
m

I     ,     '

sz\;
M

NVycYydS,  
e>. si\ v oosi_ y

w
r

0s.
t, p  8' BCZ! S;   I

e 
S c- . op y ss y_ " lE,lg, Gl-

cv`
v m o' o. e,

p P, 00' S6g_2  
v  ,

BO' Z9_ .  ' b

o               

3       ;

ry 3\/ '

96,
60. Z-

p     -
dB' 65= 1 C

Zi 3v . 66 09. 1= p 6v

a^  2y^ L  -'?  l     
l V2 %       3 o   e

g'&;  \\

0

G.  b in

9
tl,

Op
s< lzZs. top \\   1       •, m     

ti ?: 

Y '>.
B Sbb 6/,   

0 `   
Oq,

bQ
7,     

e

3
pa

b" rb1,;,,     s. o

Bb,4/y 2lpb'0,

oe'
ef,

8p

tsB Os
s, , TJbIM' s       , asss2so     

y .

ep,yE,°p, 
b '  M.

sLsa, i N    ''   e°
s, yr

nozs\   y'?       r`°- 

aa' s Qb Aze      , 00 c     ,
W,.

E2,
9f

90 Q   , oy.2 ey,r  ,         
m lxP,  NO(1      

b L

a    VO  \ I
U

b    
3

e29s9'      J!\ oo
p    , pf      '\ ab

e a 7

o     , rB 9S
t    \ 

J

1,
BD• 

2

1'     e2 Sy 9y      ea
es eo

3.
zs,

y      '          Q o  °, o Q  
S. P

9  ,
Dps    s,            

5
a^

l   d      \    
d° cf   Q V r

F sy.«  
3, sz   

i,,

e'    
o,

o'  ,

ra G'
p, J4'

C    `'
s

x   
9

6?
oEN Q\ e'

0 9      

GO //   
s

ti

vi

o2S   
0,       

y        \
3

a',    a
BeN

Q

ry     '

rsm.      s      

i\      J
e 5°\ mm      \e

es_    e z 9
ol, B!

p'
7   ry f

g   po
P   

ry'    i.ay
teB    §     

m

o     
o

az 8.

po_  Q o:     d       \

2p    , C
3\       

fo6. O'

B(
Bb   P,°' eB2 y,,   

N3Ry Y f c,   \
a     \r'

D ai a
Z 2,

ny, p0
0 s o'   %'  s

s

f

s9+
b

m        

d o p`1a n.     
o, M'/

d'p o    oe'    3, ^     y'- "        oi
w c,    :

S °\ 6     6

yy,,;      12• 23 q.'
i9! ' N'

e

To nz?% a  

6B9• OV' o0•      

Nu.
no

y 054/      
N

1,,' Ia4    
a a2 dJ  •'.' r  ,      ^       

o

u,

0

o     .. o
0

p    d    
5'    

l   . O w 160 1
i-       2 '

o        ° ry        e
56, 

H
e,

x

R R VF,_ "    
y9

v     q4, MC   / 265.
p2 oZ,\` o+e6

N19°33
N   / /  OS      1       16p2, W 11
R N19     1l

6

29' l' N1•
29' -,      /   ' I

6

ys
e rl 29'  \(

I`, 

JI  
EEr

W    
i SEE sx

aw
a

Q FZ
a
d

293



N
N g 

orw
wo w O

r 3      c-  
a H'

ox     `.       2
n s" w

w   
S¢ d_:

m    oa      a p3    k      
J               

p

s ma'
6

6
W  

w=       z   o fA ;:

p 3
m rJ     mx= os`  o"       

sg< o  
m o waw y oo< g _ o

a Js  w y_.'<o io w  
a

s o   N - " m` :.
Z O i ONO  o ¢` w w F 2 3 v i Z v i¢ mw 11 oaa 33 vq   1 1 yoF om     -;
Q   

c i3
W

I  i    
I o;   a:_

m=  -       e=      o

i
y

w i y osa,   E
ma pao w

I ,     yy o 0 0       _     
y

s€

y mw--- o
a"'    V - W oo`       aa 3    .I I   i  I i Y

m_ m z_     j ogH

u
m      \  

Z

Ww szzss=, se, ss.       
dVM NV,LBVdS

s= v_ oo• aosi= y
o-__ry' 69_ EOl 3. IE, SO, fN I

M-/ I 6b' 99 3. 9Z, 55 2N

ONB
3}    

BL' Z

Ll_      
0!' BY_    LS' l . LE ISo

3 .

te. ob,= v    ,, ersu,. ob 6o p

9t= H AaN9 89' B6 0;     
3, 4g, 50,¢ N

o     ''    

o' s', e e= i a

m  . h%  o ao. z= v
N QV

2   T:
Ss,`    

jS i66Ld 00' SS   , OS' 4Z
2 O 137tltld -  _ 

6Ia Q:, .. o

ry     "+/     ,

2p 
m'.

o"     
m

d'
B       ` a   '

Q.\ y9
r M, ry  '`

3 r

2 a.       

m `'

ame
ll

i,,  
3

go,   
i

Ua.   2   

N

S6   S' 6Z
f' ge• 

m 01. E\ PL
j:  

ma O.  Z6' Eb_   6epp,     _L 2   
y,     ys    Otio3'  ,. fi¢!.

g
p-     

N       
1` o

a

I  
S 1    t

y e, yp1     85' BS2_  '     59.
50    [—     

w

Y ra• r;f
2'

W       -    F¢,

m

CLj
r    ' 

m
n.'   

e PUE N 9°   i'

N

J`    " J/ 10

dr, ` , r    _      /       k,L1 GD g•
W? 1

a   m  i,     '

rV      r' a°' s     '   s' C' l x15°`-"  P  

2g,    0` fSB
o

m

I  '_,. D.
V

F
osr`)  rsbs9\    o GV`   (       

J

oz,  • o A A o- ti       ti
Q•

a? od      
J'     

f\  
9  /` BZ,,  

O 1
f

o/

r

p  '
l • ll,

90. S8.
0 er` \ P\, y     ,/

z.     6

Og.   o0' Od= H p9    35.
00'   9.       9t  , bJj.__    ry     

S: 05/  P54. 40' 29'       a ?  
N/

3so,   
3.

1

0,[
l.!' e 

P
6"\     

d>j   'Sp` e2.
29'      _ D° V       AD• S2_    2ZM fN•     vo-•k

bOJ•        b/   

N

C,
h     2e  _^   V/-      

Y   \     a_  -   • . S       
f     _____    ,

S' s!
l    \  

s

a J \      B.  

N

b       :    - 
e  

Jl  ' d                • sa

i, 

ti    1      d  . ;,
oo      

gygo.     9' 9 4   /   r,

i
w \      

m

m       
3`yl 16

r; ( y.  J'  Oi   '  .   
3

O ,

2" b ro \   5    
i ryti    A0 0       .  -

o\  o   
p      yry   6q      -

a      - -       in       O y.       .   .
wS   ` y°

4yE oo' e-  ,' L
o°

a\ Fo          D`;' OA.
g\

p ph   '       
i

n`    \ c F'  , P\     '
f•   p6

S EL pd/   59l,

i
o\  Z '_   03 d).' S0.,    p

a,

y
N  ze 5?.- Q/   o

s\ 
Q' Q9   6gh0

J'       
o` "   

El.l 9
p2^

NL7 1„',  

N

N
9°' C N6°',

pt'' Eil

NLZ
2 . M

m     ,, TE.

4 ,42;
t2      •

ti'       

q;`
P M m

0 2      ?\
H 9'   4

N\ 

F

1
sf 1 a

z

U    ,  .,

1
3

E@
E SH

E

294



z_
o

N=
z a o"     

Y $o; am      oa> w w o
a       =      p o< o" W my oE=,`a<      o    w

K  
xJ=

oo

o o     -       

6p6 W  

W O Q,¢=

oQ¢ y

g 3       m m3n               z aw=    y o a s o_' o
a          

w     -       6---   Wm o    e=   a4`;'<w 3o WN   
s,  ;  N             

a      -       o - wsw  - 4< mw--- oaa 3  =       
U 

o" mw  " iC

m= 3 o    o< oa w
li iw

oow w

oyQ Q

s o= N-      - a     , o :•,      s      E=
v, m< o=   v'„<

o           

I i  I '
I

O O O

mw--- oaas3_..      g

m_ m zaH i r  ,    
N Sy

L 1

a

o  

Gm

aHEE
o

u5     s¢

aj\     .30't%i`l  
N

9-'" , OO

o;w s.
3'  q m

n 4122 y

V R
RNE  -,   

gs,CU   /
4:

MM
a  O O   ' W 265 9
s\ y p2•     2 7̀    

N,9•
33

1s`  i".
s lal i"       

ox.'?—{{

eo°    f 1       ,       

N,,.— /   
N19°

99 /    \ i
l\   "    _ i.plN   //'` O, '       

m

P•
z 

I
1

1   ,

1

J

29'    
I       

IlE' BOl( tl1M. 4Z 80. 9N
I   i  '    

r
I'     `

a    _

I'         ¢
l9' 60l Itl) 3. 9S. SO. ON

m       

I
p I      -   

e    ,

69' BOl( tl13. 95, SS. ON

I
yw  3fldUl yI r

Wh 6
i

I +
9'

n 901

L' n/       

I-- ( tl13. B0 El. OIN

f

N       '^   . vJi

I o0{ rtl73. lL, dB.( ON. I
J o

V/      
o OS' LOl 3. 9S, ld. SN

mi
0 1,      I o

y       /` m BZ Y S' 6l

Q o     
0 1    

C9
b

b 3.2z
pZvoZN = f

N     [

8' SOl 3. 9S lZ. SN   I^       
I

L' ti    eryo q i     
i

Q`.    73. 00, g>. BON I a
3

9. /  
mn n a    ( 

i       _b
P ps

r
m

Pry. o yry       
Z    

m

in

I    .

e

d 9

z
0

BL' LIl( tl13. B5 lZ. Sry    

J

q Iep
f  -  Q 

an.      m

V    '

P..        
y    

m

m 

oI    I   
N      O Sti   9' 6ll( tl) 3. EY,( S, ENe'      ` 

m

Iw
s

W. 06

m^       

eN

N\ 9°
9. 2oW   io   '

N

6
m       

G 28       
r..      

LB' S01( tl) 3. OE, EE. ZN  I

l

I   'Wdn H, y pB,

2 W,

4    

f

I¢

2y A9 3M1 311dOl
f

69' EUl( tl13. L1, 60. IN I I

N

I
00' EOI Itl1M. 95,> I. ON I

J  

6d S' Bl

m

N      j
e al    '

j 00' EOl M, 12 Bl. ON

NIN v,   I

ti 
m

N       

y a I    -
m

I rI00' COl M, tL, BI. ON

I

i

295



p
N g 

am      oo= w O U < y_
3w sa s W„ LL E;o

LL oo 
o

m    sa      a      Ko
y n=  W  W       

oo O o Ns oQosN7  _
n ma'      o=

w< 
o =  =   o  a-  a

a         _       j a. go    =: a
a=

m m
J`  =

w-     m  o ozw w"              F   y
e <

o _, r

s       
Y   <        

ia?   -       =  w  -  N _  Q :
3p w   n n   _---       __¢" ss o  

U 
e mm

ooz    Noo=       o wsx   < mw--- oa 3  -    H< wsw a ;

w rm 3    ' J
o Ii ''      

o

oNogx   E
m; 3= a    o=      w
o=-      - _ -_            I ;      o 0 0       _       tv>      s

a Iwa iJ I I    II    mw--- oda 3_, •-

m       m z     LL

E1, L3flH5 335

0

e I      ,

00' EOL M. ld BI. ON   

3fld Ol y sIm$

I
00' EOL M. IZ AI, ON         

ml
II

I

V

f

N IN I
U 00' fOl M. IZ, BI. ON

5

gNF'
F'       

f

I

m  

6d S' 6t
0

5 

90' 6B M. 9E, 4V• 7t!      o

i9b 9( tl) 3. 00, 05. 2N  

J

3

I
N

4
a p5

w`     _       

I

q hh' m

z

6(' SOl(
tl13.^ OI, lO. BN  

o _    

al
e.       ^       

f

r  '      

H I
m

y,
2j b/  z

N60 d  $'    fl' dB_    '  __      

4
CO W

OB ' g29 3p55._   . 55. I6, p     , i,^^      
q11 A'  eN`  e B9

B " 

m

I'
o','

B' 
66   b1_

tiS9'     ' 1. O T5' I c

N

t
N/

J

m

m  ¢

m.\     
E    oy

y

x    ' \    $        '

N"  

p o/

50.      eJaJ^     "     (/   

N         

v n

1' 1•
41 40

N 0 o
7Vx   •`^ aru 3,

fB.
qh oI\ l   _?

1¢

IN

a      '

o

Sf` da

pN    
OS.       .

P _    

y BlN Y a  , 62
Cl' SOl Itl) M. OS. dO, bN    o

0

q_ q00 ryry   /
m.

m
ry  = g4°32g9

10 50' a
o

d

6Z' LL= 7
n•

f[
p9! l

pp'
W

p 6L, OY. 00_ p
a     ( N13.! \

N°
41     

e

n.

A056= N

3. f0eg SD  '
5•

B! ry-   

i

f < 6p` Z pg• B N ryt 7

d _ 
o\

m       p     °
5=

7—.= 3 6  '' pz       "' m

S e
y

o

m s\    o\    a 1a'     
sp`      N Q  W aao a           

N.      O'•        
o

q•
w 100      ¢ 

a.
t,\  2

n

M  \ 7

N

N"
6

y

M  hI¢    
m

b,\ 4`     \ 
ef zd'       , ez

o`    
JSZ     

N p,   m      „ ur3          ;      r
Q     \       22,

yb
0oc      \ W      y°    

N          `
40

m       "      
2.'    

0
N\

4

9
j' o

a ti
s   

o a d   O

S,          
B      .^' Qi o"'.,

4a. W
o0 50

s

S

N yÒ
N11•

4

0     '
2,`  J O

i, e'  O

o _ -   

n
b.?

sr

N      ,^

a`_      ,/    oPy
a:\ .     "'   , p

4'    
p y51

y

P
a\""   .

59. q4'
W1P)  

1y'`    .
v/

J N 9
Z9,         y.

j   ;'i.

96

o

oW      o    ,

A on

9ryA0 O    ^ y.;

y   \

s            !
N    `

p9
99

A    y1 g0    E6/
m>

FQ j
53,`

p,
oayv` Z  '

eba'     
m    \       \   y6. 90

ns.     

nGj
d, or     \^   o`^ 

j
o ' ca rdro'

i  Z  
e 9 

ef
p F• `6 `__' _\_/     ,' Lp! cP/

F,'    ry9 p.,

s

y\      

l2 2E=' 1  '_ t%" .`  

c

h
p

O. Z6= 4 ¢   .' tip'9 • 

OZ A'
y

e   .?:

n-—-'  r.b',  ie ee=
y`--    '

z,eo. ze= v L     
00' Bb_ tl       ',$

A'=

4 N•

r9 N8, 66' 09=, y
9B= v , oe' oo_

296



j m w u 

z o      waaa       o
N

F

O F      -o3am      oo> w w  &     z
y__-

ox   = as      o W=      
V

a
N

c i^§ my d_:..

mi mo
o      

w`    
z

G'"  yU€       a a  =  S a       
a'=

oo Q W

a
z   O o 

s€ o H

il   • NSs
3 0'' m m rJp__     =

6

ooz? i"
H m•' goa g_''-sd  __    \      _---      __-

a Qo  -       
o

N m: 4>
s'

Q
oxo    W o Q

5w    N am.,     s s d 3  _       U o
grY.S

m= 3=    oa op
Q     I ,  i I

o w

yQ aJ

w i
J\,

II os a   E°'
m< J< o     w I ,     yyIc o o       -  -     v;      N

g

6i no   Oa J I I I I i I : Y

mw___ Z oaai3pG i i        

r      
H dwoo

K m  - m Z N I I

l  "    ?

o

V     '

I

Z

U 4
ryMa

SN po
c EF'       J°,  169 ep0

o
a P. l p°je A

g,
R     "

o       42 i      ,   

m

y G+R'  
w,

u/  
s

f

P$ j?°   500 
Q

e          90 3. Ib 2
S'  tit/   

M1 p                

S Z 9'!2  
2, 

N29 34       
6'      

o`..

V`'   

2 pg 0
m

4    

112°' SA,     i
vZi

l,

v y g`,    ^    
o-  -    s g         

a{   oT

p

o r yo       W' -       S'

O;      
y ui   °  i N li

s° 59   i z       
zj

a  \ 
o e n'-   ,

9     o

N

F     i3O' 6S 9 09     (\1
50       P, m     '

S       ZZB.

y0 95       ¢  
N

S4,\/   -    
k.L     , gsB,       

m n G 46 59' Aa a\
p\      '

19      r y-"   

7 m\50' 3g` q2'
1  li1',

fi°     
a

ob      "'          
o a6 h

u    \ 6' . o\     ,

0,  

s'

o
Q              '!• 3T12'      P`44>, La  „ l2. W I

p     j.  \    66 0   
y       _

e

s\
o52

H`

q0
5'   i '`. M1' N6 2B, M, M OO

f+
c   

y\     y \   i  \  3° 3' IN2 p9' 4 
q° 1120E`

L"    
i-   I

e, d • g        
E 1.' S2

B'  . 9 Nl_-,
v s P     o 9 po'   y.4, f-r_    l
Z m a\' ' ra \  / S      `

d     

n Z   /     Po62
l_

13503/      fiZ' L2,
m:/NZ /  

O

p3'
4, a+, 65 00.

66ey
P*0

O 9       
0o' SE_ y

30 Qooj ryq'
o   NT.        P.

B.'-    1909Y g, Oti i   -   
Ni\            26  2•`'  `         9 4a4•

45'\      _  _ 

Co

e W`
3

O   /,  l„
p0' 

A' 
G`

450 59'     o 
z       

i   

b
9    i P' 

y.       
Y'

i'
i'     , 1'

9     
4   1p PV Bk.4,      `     

p
3° Q 23'         o m   '  

2      '  GP` e°" w       s      :<     -       

we<   1q\
i            

p3`    ' Q6 i

L.  p.
OL[

B Q
a.

r H75,
9,

1'    

759     `
46.      w a 

N
B 5, l{     '

y N 32,      \ 

ab
6t'      \ a     d

y   \   /.   
a

nZ
m i       v

2A 195 V o. ry9    i'    

s     -        
N

v

02' S5

a ry
6S' 60

M, bE, 09. 4N
yW M. 06> 9. 4N

i 6\ m H245, a0

JN No\ 2g   "'      '_  

0 o3.
W

o l`       8
n

A\ _    
j°<+, 0.  sa i,    opWl0.       c; v

n

a\  

N, q• 05  eS

Q\ 
m  \     3e pi

6 19`' 

29    \      
N  \

pp5    
4

pn'
ao' W

5tF
w m oy

E
5EE

L N

N\  
2          

J N

N

r
U

N

297



ATTACHMENT D

CITY OF LATHROP

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN ( CLSP) PHASE 1C— TRACT 4062

LATHROP LAND ACQUISITION, LLC

This Subdivision Improvement Agreement (" Agreement") is made and entered into this

eleventh  ( llth)  day of October,  2021  (" Effective Date"),  by and between the CITY OF

LATHROP, a municipal corporation of the State of California (" CITY") and Lathrop Land

Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (" SUBDIVIDER").

RECITALS

A.       On October 5, 2006, CITY approved Vesting Tentative Map 3533 to create 62

parcels on 960 acres of land. On March 20, 2007, CITY approved Vesting Tentative Map 3647 to

subdivide a portion of Tract 3533 into 1, 071 parcels on 190 acres of land.  All Vesting Tentative

Maps referenced in Recital A are hereinafter collectively referred to as " VTMs".

B.       SUBDIVIDER intends to record one Final Map for Tract 4062 to complete the

Central Lathrop Specific Plan Phase 1C, as shown in Exhibit " A" ( hereinafter " Final Map").

C.       On June 24, 2021, CTTY approved a request to commence at- risk grading and

improvements for Central Lathrop Phase 1 C ( hereinafter" At-Risk Agreement"). Pursuant to the

At-Risk Agreement, SUBDIVIDER agreed that all activities will commence " at- risk" because the

City Council has not yet approved the neighborhood small lot Final Maps for Tract 4062.

D.       SUBDIVIDER is the record owner of all land incorporated with the Final Map and

is therefore responsible for compliance with all conditions of approval associated with, including,

without limitation, the construction of specified Improvements ( as that term is defined below) as

described more fully herein.

298



E.       Pursuant to Division 2 of Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California

and CTTY' s Subdivision Regulations  ( City of Lathrop,  Code of Ordinances,  Chapter 16),

SUBDIVIDER is required to make certain offers of dedication and to construct certain

Improvements required under the Conditions of Approval on the VTMs ( collectively, " COAs")

and as identified in the approved Final Map, Improvement Plans and this Agreement. For purposes

of this Agreement, the term " Improvements" shall collectively mean all public improvements

required under the COAs and as expressly set forth in this Agreement that will provide services

and access to lots within the Final Map and the term" Improvement Plans" shall collectively refer

to the Improvement Plans approved by CITY.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of CITY' S pending ( 1) approval of the Final Map

on October 11,  2021,  and subsequent recordation;  ( 2)  approval of Improvement Plans in

accordance with the terms of this Agreement and all applicable laws and regulations, the parties

hereto mutually covenant and agree as follows:

1. SUBDIVIDER shall construct or cause to be constructed at its sole cost and expense

the Improvements as specified and in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.   All

Improvements shall be constructed to the reasonable satisfaction and approval of the City

Engineer, in an ethical and workmanlike manner in accordance with the approved Improvement

Plans and specifications, the applicable improvement standards and specifications of the CITY' S

Department of Public Works, the applicable Ordinances of the City Lathrop, and the applicable

provisions of the California Subdivision Map Act.

2. SUBDIVIDER shall complete, and CITY shall have accepted all Improvements by

October 11, 2022, subject to any extension( s) provided for herein and as otherwise expressly

299



provided for in this Agreement.   Provided, however, that said deadline shall be extended for

twenty- four  ( 24)  months upon SUBDIVIDER' s request to CITY,  supported by reasonable

documentation that it is using commercially reasonable efforts to complete same and have said

Improvements accepted by CITY.

3. The parties acknowledge and agree that SUBDIVIDER is removing any existing

well sites as required in accordance with applicable laws and regulations, including those required

by the County Environmental Health Department. The parties further acknowledge and agree that

SUBDIVIDER is conveying any and all groundwater rights associated therewith to CITY via the

Final Map.

4. SUBDIVIDER guarantees and warrants that the Improvements shall be constructed

in compliance with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, free from any defects in work or

labor done and from any defects in materials furnished.  Further, SUBDIVIDER shall repair and

warranty the Improvements in good condition and in accordance with CITY specifications for one

1) year after CITY' s acceptance of the Improvements.  As required by this Agreement, prior to

acceptance of the Improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall deposit with the City a Warranty Bond in

the amount equal to 10°Io of performance bond {( Cost + 10% Contingency) x 10%} for the

Improvements for Tract 4062 to ensure SUBDIVIDER' s repair and warranty of the Improvements

in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.  The Warranty Bond shall be released at the end

of the one- year guarantee period provided no claims against it are then outstanding. The Warranty

Bond value is shown in Table 1 of this Agreement.

5. Because the Improvements are not entirely complete, SUBDIVIDER is required to

post Performance and Labor & Materials bonds to guarantee the unfinished Improvements

associated with the Final Map as included and described in Exhibit D of this Agreement.

300



The amount of performance security shall be equal to the unfinished Improvement cost plus a 10%

contingency. The corresponding labor and materials bond amount shall be 50°Io of the performance

bond amount ( Performance Security x 50%0).   Further, SUBDIVIDER shall also comply with

CITY' s insurance requirements set forth on Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein.

The Performance and Labor & Materials bond values are shown in Table 1 of this Agreement.

Table 1 — Bond Values

Improvement Total 14, 083, 772. 96

Unfinished Improvement Total 11, 931, 878. 42

Performance Bond Value( 110°Io of Un inished Improvement
13, 125, 066. 26

Total)

Labor & Materials Bond Value ( 50% of Performance Bond
6, 562, 533. 13

Value)

Warranty Bond Value ( 10% of Improvement Total)   1, 408, 377

6. SUBDIVIDER shall construct or cause to be constructed at its sole cost and expense

the offsite improvements required by the Assignment and Amendment of Development Agreement

by and Between the City of Lathrop, Saybrook CLSP, LLC., and Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC.,

approved by the Lathrop City Council on December 6, 2016, by Ordinance No.  16- 370 and

recorded by the San Joaquin County Recorder' s Office as Doc # 2017- 007992 ( Agreement

hereinafter " DA", Improvements hereinafter " Offsite Improvements").

The Offsite improvements include, but are not limited to, completion of Stanford Crossing Drive

north of Spartan Way with the installation of the Community Park driveway cuts and barricades

at the north edge of SUBDIVIDER' s property.  SUBDIVIDER has deposited cash to CITY in the

amount of$ 7, 810 to guarantee the completion of the Offsite Improvements with the SIA for Tract

4062.

7. SUBDIVIDER has guaranteed the frontage and grading improvements of the

Linear Park and the Neighborhood Park with this Agreement. The Linear Park land was dedicated

301



to CITY as part of the Vesting Tentative Map for Tract 3533 as Lot 18.  The Neighborhood Park

land is dedicated to CITY as part of this Final Map.  SUBDIVIDER has obtained approval for the

design of the Neighborhood Park and Linear Park.  SUBDIVIDER has the option to pay or cause

to be paid the CLSP Neighborhood Park Fee for all lots prior to the issuance of the first building

permit within the Final Map area, or, pay or cause to be paid the CLSP Neighborhood Park Fee

for each individual lot within the Final Map area at the time of individual building permit issuance.

SUBDIVIDER shall, prior to issuance of the 186r" building permit within the Final Map area( 3151

percentile), commence construction of the Neighborhood Park at the cost of the SUBDIVIDER.

SUBDIVDER shall obtain or cause to be obtained an encroachment permit from CITY for

the Linear Park and Neighborhood Park construction as CITY is or will be the owner of the park

land.  SUBDIVIDER shall provide or cause to be provided sufficient performance and labor and

materials bonds in the amount of $ 1, 853, 647. 40 for the Linear Park and $ 1, 421, 040. 50 for the

Neighborhood Park.  SUBDIVIDER shall, prior to the issuance of the 307th building permit within

the Final Map area ( Sls` percentile), complete construction of the Neighborhood Park at the cost

of the SUBDIVIDER.  Pursuant to the terms of the DA, CITY may not issue building permits if

SUBDIVIDER does not perform the required construction prior to the aforementioned deadlines.

At the time of acceptance of the Neighborhood Park, CITY shall reimburse to SUBDIVIDER the

collected Neighborhood Park Fee revenue if SUBDNIDER paid or caused to be paid the CLSP

Neighborhood Park Fee prior to the issuance of the first building permit in the Final Map area.

After the time of acceptance of the Neighborhood Park, CITY shall reimburse to SUBDIVIDER

the Neighborhood Park Fee revenue on a biannual basis pursuant to Lathrop Municipal Code

Section 3. 22. 070 if SUBDIVIDER pays or cause to be paid the CLSP Neighborhood Park Fee

upon individual building permit issuance within the Final Map area.

302



8. On September 13,  2021,  SUBDIVIDER purchased 8, 562 gallons per day of

wastewater treatment capacity from CITY to be combined with SUBDIVIDER' s existing 29, 639

gallons per day of wastewater treatment capacity for a total of 38, 201 gallons per day, which is

sufficient capacity for the 191 lots within Tract 4062.  On September 13, 2021, SUBDIVIDER

contributed fair share of funds towards CITY' s recycled water river discharge project, which

secured sufficient storage and disposal capacity for the lots within Tract 4062.

9. SUBDNIDER shall, prior to approval of the Final Map,  assign and allocate

wastewater capacity and potable water capacity to each lot within the Final Map area.

10.      SUBDIVIDER shall, prior to CITY acceptance of Improvements, provide or cause

to be provided the GIS layers and attribuCes in compliance with the City Standards effective at the

time of acceptance for all public Improvements related to Tract 4062 as well as the Offsite

Improvements referenced in Section 6 of this Agreement.

11.      SUBDIVIDER had deposited cash to CITY in the amount shown in Table 2 below

as payment for the Agricultural Mitigation Fee, which fulfills the obligation for payment pursuant

to the Sierra Club Agreement.

Table 2— Agricultural Mitigation Fee

Tract Acreage Cost/Acre Total Fee

4062 44. 97 4, 539. 00 204, ll8. 83

12.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees or agents shall be liable to

SUBDIVIDER, and/ or SUBDIVIDER' S agents, contractors or subcontractors for any error or

omission arising out of or in connection with any work to be performed under this Agreement on

property other than the parcels of the subdivision owned by SUBDIVIDER (and its successors and

assigns) ( the " Subdivider Property").

13.      Neither CITY nor any of its officers, employees or agents shall be liable to

303



SUBDIVIDER or to any person, entity, or organization, for any injury or damage that may result

to any person or property from the subdivision of all or any part of the land covered by this

Agreement.

14.      SUBDIVIDER hereby agrees to, and shall hold CITY, its elective and appointive

boards, commissions, officers, agents and employees ( collectively, the " Indemnitees"), harmless

from any liability for damage or claims which arises from SUBDIVIDER and/ or SUBDIVIDER' S

contractors, subcontractors, agents, lessees, or employees'  operations under this Agreement,

whether such operations be by SUBDIVIDER or by any of SUBDIVIDER' S contractors,

subcontractors, lessees, or by any one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by, or acting

as agent for,  SUBDIVIDER or any of SUBDIVIDER' S contractors or subcontractors.

SUBDIVIDER shall, at its own cost and expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal

proceedings of any type that maybe brought or instituted against CITY and the Indemnitees on any

claim or demand, of any nature whatsoever, and pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered

against CITY and the Indemnitees in any such action, suit or legal proceedings, resulting from or

alleged to have resulted from SUBDIVIDER performance or non- performance of its duties and

obligations under Chis Agreement, or from the negligent act or omission of itself, its agents,

contractors, representatives, servants or employees, except in the event and to the extent said

claims resulted from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of CTTY and/ or the Indemnitees.

The promises and agreement to indemnify and hold harmless set forth in this Paragraph 17 are not

conditioned or dependent on whether or not any indemnity has prepared, supplied or approved any

plan or specification in connection with this wark or subdivision, whether or not any such

indemnity has insurance or indemnification covering any of these matters.  CITY does not, and

shall not, waive any rights against SUBDIVIDER which it may have by reason of the aforesaid

304



hold harmless agreement, because of the acceptance by CITY of any deposit with CITY by

SUBDIVIDER.   The aforesaid hold harmless agreement by SUBDIVIDER shall apply to all

damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by reason

of any of the afaresaid operations referred to in this Paragraph 17, regardless of whether or not

CITY has prepared, supplied or approved of, plans and/ or specifications for the subdivision.

15.      Neither SUBDIVIDER nor any of SUBDIVIDER' S agents, contractors, lessees or

subcontractors are,  or shall be,  considered to be agents of CITY in connection with the

performance of SUBDIVIDER' S obligations under this Agreement.  Neither CITY nor any of

CITY' s agents, contractors, lessees or subcontractors are, or shall be, considered to be agents of

SUBDIVIDER in connection with the performance of any work contemplated under this

Agreement. SUBDIVIDER shall not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of

CITY, which such consent shall not be unreasonably delayed, conditioned or denied, except that

this Agreement may be assigned to any purchaser or transferee of an interest in all or a part of the

SUBDIVIDER Property without the need far CTTY consent.  If such consent is given, or not

required, the terms of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors, executors,

administrators and assignees of SUBDIVIDER,   and any heirs,   successors,   executors,

administrators and assignees of SUBDIVIDER shall be jointly and severally liable hereunder

unless SUBDIVIDER and its assignee have executed an Assignment and Assumption Agreement

in which case SUBDIVIDER shall be released from all of its obligations hereunder so assigned to

the assignee.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the foregoing, SUBDIVIDER shall be

permitted to assign its rights and obligations under this Agreement to any " Affiliate", which is

defined to mean an entity or person that is directly or indirectly Controlling, Controlled by, or

under common Control of SUBDIVIDER.  The term " Control" as used herein, shall mean the

305



power to direct the day-to- day management of SUBDIVIDER, and it shall be a presumption that

Control with respect to a corporation or limited liability company is the right to exercise, directly

or indirectly, more than fifry percent ( 50°Io) of the voting rights attributable to the Controlled

corporation or limited liability company, and, with respect to any individual, partnership, trust,

other entity or association, Control is the possession, indirectly or directly, of the power to direct

or cause the direction of the day-to- day management of the controlled entity.

16.      SUBDIVIDER shall, at its expense, require or cause to require all its contractors

and sub- contractors to obtain and maintain all necessary permits and licenses for construction of

the Improvements, and commercially reasonable insurance.  Prior to the commencement of said

Improvement construction, the General Contractor/ subcontractors shall obtain a City of Lathrop

Business License. SUBDIVIDER and CITY, as applicable, shall comply with all applicable local,

state and federal laws applicable to this Agreement whether or not said laws are expressly stated

in this Agreement.

17.      This Agreement and the Exhibits attached hereto comprise the entire understanding

and agreement between the parties regarding the subject matter of this Agreement. The Recitals

are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference, as if fully set forth herein.

18.      Notices.  For purposes of this Agreement, " notice" means any notice, demand,

request, or other communication to be provided under this Agreement.  All notices shall be in

writing and shall be sent to the below addresses or at such other addresses as either party may later

specify for that purpose.

19.      All notices required or pernutted under this Agreement shall be personally

delivered or sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or by a

nationally recognized overnight courier, such as FedEx or UPS, with charges prepaid for next

306



business day delivery, addressed to the parties as follows:

If to CITY:  City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attn: City Clerk
Email: website_ cco@ci. lathrop.ca.us

With a copy: City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attn: Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney
Email: website__cao@ci.lathrop.ca.us

If to SUBDIVIDER:     Saybrook CLSP, LLC

303 Twin Dolphin Drive, Suite 600

Redwood Shores, CA 94065

Attn:  Jeffrey M. Wilson
Email:   jwilsonC saybrookfundadvisors. com

The date of any notice shall be the date of receipt, provided that, rejection or other refusal to accept

or the inability to deliver because of a change in address of which no notice was given shall be

deemed to constitute receipt of the notice sent.  Either party may change its address for notice by

giving notice to the other party in accordance with this Paragraph 22.

23.      The following miscellaneous provisions are applicable to this Agreement:

a. Controlling Law.  The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed

and construed by and in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

b. Definitions.  The definitions and terms are as defined in this Agreement.

c. Exhibits.  The following exhibits are attached to this Agreement and are

incorporated to this Agreement by this reference:

EXHIBIT A:   FINAL MAP TRACT 4062

EXHIBIT B:   TOTAL COST ESTIMATE

EXHIBIT C:  CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT D:  COST TO COMPLETE IMPROVEMENTS

307



d. Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account

of any delay or failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement, and all performance and

other dates specified in this Agreement shall be extended,  where delays are due to:   war;

insurrection; strikes and labor disputes; lockouts; riots; floods; earthquakes; fires; casualties; acts

of God; acts of the public enemy; acts of terrorism; epidemics and related governmental orders

and restrictions; quarantine restrictions; freight embargoes; materials shortages and/ or inabiliry to

obtain materials due to tariffs, governmental restrictions or priority; unusually severe weather; acts

or omissions of the other party; or acts or fail ires to act of any public or governmental agency or

entity ( except that acts or failures to act of CITY shall not excuse perfoi-mance by CITY); or

moratorium ( each a " Force Majeure Delay").  An extension of time for any sllch cause shall be

far the period of the enforced delay and shall commence to run from the time of the commencement

of the cause, if Notice ( as thaC term is defined above) by the party claiming such extension is sent

to the other parry within sixty ( 60) days of the commencement of the cause.

e. Headin s.  The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and

shall have no effect upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

f. Incorporation of Documents.  All documents referred to herein and all

documents which may, from time to time, be re erred to in any duly executed amendment hereto

are by such reference incorporated herein and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

g. Moclification of Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be modified or be

binding upon the parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

h. Severabilily.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any

provision of this Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so

affected shall remain in full force and effect.

308



i. Successors and Assigns.  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein,

the provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the

successors and assigns of the parties.

j. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of

its provisions ( subject to Subparagraph 23( d)).

In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be performed

shall be computed by excluding the first day and including the last.

If the time in which an act is to be performed falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any day observed as

a legal holiday by CTTY, the time for performance shall be extended to the following business day.

k. Venue. In the event either party brings that suit hereunder, the parties agree

that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County

of San Joaquin.   The party in whose favor judgment is entered shall be awarded reasonable

attorneys' fees.

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGES]

309



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this lltn
day of October 2021.

CITY OF LATHROP,

A California municipal corporation of the

State of California

By:
Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

ATTEST:

City Clerk of and for the City
of Lathrop, State of California

B y:
Teresa Vargas Date

City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM BY THE CITY OF LATHROP CITY ATTORNEY

By:     
Z  . ZoZ(

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

310



EXHIBIT A

FINAL MAP TRACT 4062

311



8

a     \ NEEP * a             

paCP d     -       0
9  _   

d      -_
05o ag H

sY    N g   .%    ' m_     
g  66  o       o W g

p3o dj0
0 So4

O3p-_   
d3itl93tl 

S

tt3p Q

O go
3 Z  2

R

o

3o
za U1        a

o
N

Qa o

W s
F-  U_ x  -       Sw Z   W  i H  ' w a LL W

W  -_       i 3       Z     _    -        Z F

W  So-   -  -         a
rn a g w  - 

y w     
x w aln       -         -    '   o

O
v  LL a

o       -  so  .-    Q o2 J  ac i  -       W    
a

q1 W U o    w
Z  - o

F'    F'
ttd 0 wg3E_   _   W  

Ri O
Q  .,

V  _ v a_  o oa  (.  _-, na o c c    V  _ z d Eoa E  _.- o rci n U)    o      wc   V  E LL      n¢ in

i NP w

N/
1      

S

1elsb3 03    `
c,°         

o

L 
y o biui

1ry
sdBNd  .

P   000 n' a
s

Naby            3Ji i 
5

w   
o n        

b

f

a m„ LL E             - N3o, a       

j o   
Ow=' 

o

a              QQ       g      
NNo, _    o              o o

o s o y
o

aw m w       o    
7 ,an`„ g g< 

g-:       :      
Y

SP'
F

o       

o     
a

Qa o a

oU      =" ,      y6 Uo       =       o¢

N    m  y.
6

2 F y Q'   wg

Uo     
d Z o   O

og a
a      ,   '  -   w Z 5 0  " 

N" os    " E: f=     W o o
W         3`     

5'  
a`

b w Q      ' 3    

z d       F      
s    

o  '
s3

N
i      6

3w

m.     LL o o

ZJ1-. N  ¢
i-    Q zo       

O  -

a     
0'.  

w
o z

lL     _  _            
Z

Q  
z

ax o4d W Q
Q  ¢ Sd

fA  .- w o      o p.'  oc msodoa ma VI  ¢ u,

3ao      c 
a m`" p

z u3 ia,

N z   _    

m w
3¢_    o Y Q o

i wo     p    -   
J_       

w    

e       

o x    -   m C o

oQ      _      _  __    
3  o g  

m`$
d   _       

a

o
o

3

o

JyI

3          

Z am LLJ

o

o

a

30   -  -      

3 03    ¢`   o{     a a2U          
m a3Y_

Z N g

I
o Q o¢ J  ;       S x

11  > z    W Oo
W wo z¢

w-   
O a Y  E  

V       -      }-   

n    ?    x3  
V o

o  -   3 V   -    g   -     
a3          

Z   _        . 
o_  

d   =

o       _

Q og       _    H         2   -_ o   __     _      _ _  _

O  .. a,  .  .-      _         

m w °  N   o o  ,    U   a
O  3    odd a __    a   . 2 a c u

312



m
N 5 

ox n    
z

s   s
o s kN  o 1          W mN o Ex ;   

m 
o

N         a z a w  s           Q o, s` o yd    o        
J  =   am     

s= a3 w w       '

a

oza W         Z N = s p
g

U 3a__    _  \ a=---       asm o     N m :$ Q :
o i w w r LL Vt EN amw___ aZona 324 t/ 1/  -  U VJ' do6QN

U _

w- ¢
i  _c i3

Q

o

I I

x o w w

jy yw .`

a   _                  i    ° °_   -  -  N gs   E
J w    

a  II    ,     mw___ oaa 3 ._       
h

m_ m

o

q ;\
o      V `       ,,>

7 w VA"ZmA m
U

I h'-(\

o

G,    

4 `    /

I sy  
Y         , A /

6%
3,

n

saM.  1Q„
sei

J  >'\ )•

J• Cd O o0l        '   yg d:6, Q/ . 3,Q.
9 t('  G   o,

O C E. •' L6/
o

y 2 Z     w6,'
vp'N

m O O'Sj• ` Y   

II
n^      i  '

o 5  s d4 l .       e:  
y

C4'
sf`    o2a e  , . ..   o V 

D  D ly,,.__         
7d>_,   00   oo' ,   q' sv

d      f,   Sy H N 9      =

7s.

zH
9`

b
es'

2t_ '  
Q, Q'  —

s9              \

se,. z z  
i    

I—

1i 
u ON

g   7bIM. 9D,
2066g

v

0091- tl

J—
l b l 

0 0 2,      d0   

3+ OO, g[ gNZ-_ ' g9eao2   E, IS ClzlS= Ell .

6,     S691_ y N
U

I   H13. GS;'  ,     
a

6S.
Z{ N UN

i db1Y SIH1 H1IM 43HSIl19NI1% 3 3B O1       L,  /

y
a Il' tl) 3fltld, Od' X3 j

O2       
1_       

O
Q       _   _ 

I 3, Ll, 1t./ 9N•     G,',  ,
S.   

i e)M: s,os."aiN` e     /
ss m,   

Z. 9P, 00. 80N` 

I I
md \     '   

d\\   '

Oooo,.    —/ I

rno r, 
6 o v  

w' i       
I+      

po

Iy  \   \    
N

a m' IoN

2`N o       

I I
v N

zI
I I

I          i j 
I Ia

m    

o'o m o1
y N h 0 2

w

o'! c-     P' 0 m        
L     N

h,e=     i 0 ry
V       `   ,  

i 1    \ Z M J Qp qy  '/      /   _° a a

ca o c i u c
ca   .       

1          y6 //      /     a y

1        J

m        /    /     

Uop3
9,-:      

a    
k o

inAF,  3
m

a      . i z

J

m

II

ii   .   ,.     '..   .   '     i.     '    

o i rc a o

313



W
N g

a O sg y,
ds;     

ww   my o E_
n on¢       

J  _   N  3 a a         z  O o, w= o asy
g 3

l  

w o<       7 ' o g y
g m r     .,     oZ,,,

a,       
1'-'- 

y
o`' a. W= o

4  
z

j  -     
z---          <

m      

o"

4:'
o     W-  

V   

s         oo mm"
o i

mo= o == LL< mw     oaa 3  -    o< W w e

o^ o'"           I i I I i o  oz     -  -    yN sg E'..

m J I I ' ' I   mw--- oaa 3 ._       wsN
m_    i

a o_

1       
V7

m

o

i
d 

Q

Q m

N :

o'%
w

m-  z
3 , 

o     ` J'

l¢       db    :
m       o

o       e   '

e,  
m: n     y i   ,

o Q'      
oo m

b°
d;     /

Q'      '"' c   Oy  "', ao;           7 T
e

a    °., dj L/' 
L I 

Y

T b'7
0 l3 tlYd

Oy .

o a,`  m`

y
S        ; i.      A

p

y 4?`         
w        

bd l p. R     
m  

a   

b     , om O' 
4  '  

p'       E4  ,

v  /      %

V QGFo'     pv' G
F'  

v1
m,.`'   Y 

P.

a,     
VE

a I

dd SP SRR      a z 
cr      ti,     

n   !       " o a.0
o, R    o q        

y. 

f

m
P

tPv
C

x  
I

o o
a o       

w
l

p           I

i      

QaN o

f

3 i

3     1     \   
0 0    1 i      /

v iK?
m 1      \  

io w- i
i

g m 5     -   

o«<
o

314



m= Q   Q N 8m 
o     waaid o o

F   o3am r-  w     
Q o og

os     > p o    kJ a      
Q

n      

z
es

m "
d`

m  wp  = W oo LL o
sl mo o J     o=  _ os     

z  o '  "¢=y 

s _     ' m 3     
x  

waw       F- a y o a= o ':
3o w       -  _;_  _-          _---     s w  o  E"' N    m :w       -=      W     - m a    '  -      

voa w oa         o wsw,< mw--- oa  3       y

w _ = 3=     os o     
o I ,   

U >„ „ oo;       ,
s o„-     aUOW_      w

I
I    

w w

o og= "_`_'.
Nm< =  w< o     w I I   i    I  

c o o

m   _  _  v;      N s'

I w    a s
m= m o_

w--- oad 3    .       

a o_

a

o

W  

m        a  

m

A           

m 6    --- _,            `
ys

S

5
m

i' z,a,•  ----
o        5

m

Q24` e58,
Y. 4 S06f.`\ OS  \      i

OD\
m ral.o QV  

o

m
0. z           

i' c ' e   s.      

od F,O/. ti""     

sO QG,/    `   m s'° a u
d6,` Y,

1'

1 \  

m

p3   
9rya H7fi59%_..

N P) R
a. `      i      ;p0

e9 , r,` S"„'Eg O

n-
s        i     

I
i

i
i

Oy Z] 
Y>

oM Si.  _       
n I9

J

k. ,       I

00 a i

Sy N
s/      

o     /tie     

i       !  i

m

2.  
O `

0 

w
31\'      G```   /  /  

5
0°     p/, y `'

o e2      
W tia%  FLv

00  $

j'`' Sp`' 
P

o.         

o 5

S`'  v'b

95\
Ypy  `$'           

c 1d`

o

ON
a\•'

O2 O I.   
e

y
y

N     

F

I J -  -  

I

r i    '
i

i
w     '  

a I

N
7   o I

o

w i

J
ls

l       /%: OO
U

i

I'
a

II
c'

u.       .  

315



po  =     a s

s"   s y

i       
s Y 3 aza  -_          

o m
W .. d.

J       
o    _     

W  

w         '      
a a   

N 

00:
0'.5,,  

A
u O o , m¢ o` g(

m 3a  ?        --       wawQ  _ o
a'

Qa S__'. o

o  - o W= Q`';sa w,., sc  ,$,,.,< m„--- ssssoua 3 zs« ammw

z
I

i
I   

o w

Q a,

og

U

OO OO O   _  _    sr  `      \  05` _       -
I ,       mw--- oaa 3_. "      . g

i  4A 5
3,

oe, s.

os 3, n

S' Bl - '   

PoBZN•
se;    a'

d).

z    / , ez `  q; BeBr 
i

9y'         m a

y./  

p O`

r

O  

c~>
d 

b
m o 2y   a\ 1' a` 

Qa     a      b\ 

o   -
3 3/       

g       /   n ryy `' 
0

3     h/    '  //  
m SQJ         \

aU
2      

r

p       \     \    N ; qm l     , Cb'
Odl s'

a o
I 3. pp, 90

B[ N      , yA' '\       71             yÌ'Nwo .  
o z a 1`  \ r            ' d

v• ei¢ ,
ez      °       s. o   pd        

s

3oa=<    
eat g o

m

o

i

3' Y0,
9o. B[ q          

e$   

r\  
w

mQ

N

y\       

m
o-  vY- 7N B      S'-i

l  ,

st po' s[ Na      '$    
z¢ o.-     3.)

pSp,   
ryA

o
9! N 0'',       ./

o

n

m     %      

o/ p

N e       '            

m

i o a/    F9'
Hll(

tl13.
Dp           p(

1'

0

sl
1

m  /             B N r'       
m I

n` 8. mv           m  I

p

ry   '     ry o
a`     

rl.
m

w   3a H   oy 601    s mry Or pV
s

v/ Cy Nv:,  d 3.
Bl,

Op. o2
3,

s, 

p',    

y08      `      tt.     
N         

zr ,      ti,    ',
e

x t sa`    

v      

m jv 3° dy` , s h  "   /
m

w

r      
g       -  o

ry. 

a
I

m
a c c 7Q' x yp:   

c
fo

bl
0^

2^   ,
e°}<<  H-_'      

3•
te,

ss.    m 3 3'       . m" bJ,

ng=       i''   `       
a

sez
r;

re    o'       
f   

re

e

sey FeN. 7bj     °' N-

O y 0 , zs.
a

rr

N A    /       .
P   

i   

oJoozo yb
r/

b/
3 oryp'    `

S  N 

n

Q¢-' m    4ir a •  96
09       

9p    s n`

4
0s O( d

w z   u 3
y^

4.  
w/

v f2ry d/
3

o     

Ao     b2m
U' r

xm
r 60

y

r0

o   N q,  ,

Cg,'/  ''       '
a'

to
e

s'°,   
i 

o OQ.    1.
i sq,

v_>.- o? Y,',   ;    ' 
N)3,,  3,    n n: Q,  6T' aa   . ss     .

y`
O$    

Cyysz, 
o•

ee1      '

n 

mN
ny

ry ,
y

e     

m

m a m s'
s     

2 .",

N 2ry
o   

Ba
2o           s

o o"'/ O .     b/36n^

0
h in

sr   -- 7-

b"

7b)3-,   , o

b
32 m

o        
y 

v

so a'
Sg. ZI'-. m ryty

pe oo/   ry
i

c i     sfy

ma       
0

a aN `      _  
t2         ' O e> m     ''`   M1

VfE
bZN h h V o e"'   

b'

2
Iry,

pa.
2pt           ^,

e`     /' , ^

o/%     
8!,/

f,y      >  v

v   `

J  

e b/3
v       

n S'
S

c

y
a   

nv
i'o

IbT-,  o       s

o-        
3lt'

Q. s2310',, azN

N
N

l      `      s g       

tr"'   ^ va SO.
Da    „       o"`",

tr

b/j s
b/3.  1

S,

oe
C m

v y  / m=' lo,
Za b     ZN       

e e

l`       /   fd      ,  O2N f    
h    .      a

ly/  c2N 
h

A

m    /         r--

Ary     '       o 0

i¢     "'      

9`

tzry Nv  -    /,   BL ) a` 3a, pyy

bg•
p0[   

m      

e T , 62
4l

e

D
N 2yoa L

0 3.
CF

J /

e         em 4,

w z.     /       / gS•     o
Z

ZN T!/
3_ 

B!

d         tv
Ob  d G'    b F,

S' 6!` ' 62 n

BO[
IBl3.[  3

o-      ""

p
sy     

l2,p' Y
z,

C2
y2ry     >.    

0

a
b

B2.([       

o    

Be•    
m       /'       /    ` v  /

J/

ry

o N p0!
3

o$   
i

2,^  /       

i  __  '
I        

eC
Cz           `/ 

a2`  
N   /  

n L,   ss 0/
o
s\     ` ^"'

3
d;  iN  ^       nN 3nd o'`, 25, n

2      .\    Lg• yB-   0 8  / ro     .'
3/      

S SrN

o
m oao

j\   N P Q /      N` 3n
o.o; p  "

b D) 9B' 69[
3  ,\'  

m'         

a/      
ti/ o d, S, E

p

ps
B`.      '\   

OO,
HI.

SIN \'
26'

DB_\ ¢

J '   ,

62
x'  3nd'

g 

ry

d

i

b D I QdQ J
o

SO/  ea     

N;
e 

dV f
3
ti.     

e   : c a
fB[

38[  m
o/

I m`\ d'l,k__        1tO f-

dOryg siN- t ,,    .  ,  en   h    <   
g2• Z Z3 J  °   ss'  ro esc' 9N     

9l, 91N
G, j 2,: • d ' o

es,y'     b
0       I

s

w    •   a ge2
bsOz 99

Z    
S'f. 0

f
p

s

b\  

e b
V 1•

316



i N    '

az
y

z aw O y   

o o_   pas   a b =,_

p   oa`      a
3    G  YU p         a

U=" 

oE ,

mj ma"'       _<    p o o  ;       np6

w 0 o N=
o= ff

m m >            x x s`         

7    a g y o
g             

3a J  

waw-  
z tailN e a,

W=-.

4\-  -

a m  

N   .'__w z o
s   

Jg p
l

Q Ymm oz oz      No      - - w., LL i< mw--- sodd 3  _
V n^    

m       '

i aoo o
mw i    i

a j<` w a..,w   o        o<    
o       i ', I oN H s 

z o

m"^

o"     w    w sa E >
wa< o    w

I         6  O

m      _  
r n og

U
O      
N

z am        
J

I I  I w--_ 3 Z ou u33 v i v'i ..

i

r  '      QwUr ii
m_ n Z- i y

LL

3  /       7     \

m\   N     \       

n /

N m     be;     

12
2,

9
a` n

O  ' o.    
69 P    

O6
g      5.     \

6b     Z cai

C  /"     °' 
e

h,    EF'   te     g N s.
5°   5`¢ os° s°' m A           a

ti
s 

PIO
O

4t
4' .

h

y

3\Y`    

a GQ' 5°       ti m s  

y,' L       y
r( T        n'>    y   \  

o  

m3,g` ea.   ">pd.      • ya' 

Qo 20  
S`

2

Q

p    ryh sry   
W    . 2   

e"
e. 0

3¢?"',  6:     Q
ti' pe`•'  y-       ' 4/ ,

y so     ^       

co„,.   •/    ' s> z     '    , eof
a,     

f,f ° 6   

m

pl oy'       ° y 2-_- b

3
d'w

i x 2"
P       ,".

h,'p
v

n ?

3
Of B

0    .     
0      Pa ca

j     °a v d; er • sa2Bro"`' i "'

A

e     . Qv.      fi     \ 

a`,  os,Myt, ' °% . a'
ry   s s,n

S B      y r22  •
2'%'

629s     '`' e"" N      `   e.

Bi,HrPo 2y/ co°er' es%
oe,\`

P,

o

2,    
p'  

o'     

w ' oy
2     d

2   '^'      510"    f aJ C'      \

y l 91 ° 3     .

o.\       `
o\ J

a,
p;' 

l`'' LL      

d  e^

2
oa   

b  \    

i

o
sr a P

E
a   [     

y
ti        , o/ ` e    s'• a' o.° l b   

y
a,o

Y v°

ti tir,   . es4. F` y O'    .

g       5 od,.      o v 

V              '    
e,  s      

a o

Ne 26, P•' e ' p
1oe. j9    Q' )  

6

i

y     `' $.[       .'

lp6' N?°'      •
o   G Y'  

J\ 9    
4•     . 

L` d

B\   
o

L  \ me p" 0\
Q'

I•

c
lSe

O

v 

o      " 9.` o i   4`',C
s          Od 

k     ` `  
e m oe

ti5a)    y 4
v  /

N° eA-    9m
6'

d\,   

e``    1A' o       

aA1 
m

F

g;`     N44° 3B E9' W PL,  4y, .    .'—"'
u

I   ..
y_ y-}' ¢ j J

NS° 35' SB' Wip) 148. 15'  
N

m/ 
l

l
o

p       !.

f   /       .

2 g,'
5,

a

4

j'
1

J,

J

y

f1   = P
j

a  

A
U

0O O0ry1 h ry/
4\

9006 p Atiry^   ,/ s. z"    
0; 1      

Q ryM1,   ., P' 66 E= b/3
ti

i

O' °. i'>'° ,y      -_   r"az•s
40    ,   _       er_    _ zN

3

py9o-   ;\, oa.` 0se.      
V O Q9 6'  ,

t  

N
B0 eyW 8

J      

ro

Ov    py1    O
m

dZ0S Se ti,
i

b/
3

r`   

N     pti

so- o
J ..._  : _      92Be,y

b?

Sps  
a

ti h n

Am
F

rl

317



m
N m

waa s` G 0    g y:_
o p     <

w               

o- c i^ w s y d=:

s a w

K  yU       n 6    z       po o
o
0..o 3

w

a     w a&   o,       
j O  . m¢' o= y :

o

J     

xmx

zwa            Z '' oSQ S,_. o

ow
d

aW     _     Sa  o     o   " _,...

soz;  G  sv< m.,___ oaui3 vVS  _     T \ oo
mm''"

o -

o I   I

o W

u >``"aW Q _

os       w I ; ,   '    o o       _  _  o .,    os<   E;=

i l    
mw--- oaa 3,. N    

o< o      I    ?

og-

o. a o
o;;°       >

f b      1 J

v T?`[`,

J'

C       \   

m      

ip
j.

b     \

V     :'      

O.
QB \  

B
ly:.    n

te %

Ha • b,

O

i    y      

p U 0' C'
d m/ Ag 90 J 6air

p\     

t4'
b M. B'     -•

f
i v       

f9S
BDry  ?

s
l7se

D

oa

i

10
v  0.  d

t,     

m

j sd'9!    

I m

L,` 
n py/bb

I OF y^:  F')

W
o°>.      ' D pO

3e ; t e"' y.
r

p2 2S
r

n F yoo N     

y y,

j

ry   } m  ? , b   f ).

oiam h
Y

4 e ry.       C51' a5'

1 /
N

o'•     a937. 25'  . 6Z, gl
A.

i        3o2"ti ev • s,
o   o  `. 6  ' 

e. z= v Zr.       Y%   '§   '       .  3,. 92sa
z

d3; ' 9C          5, 9    , 00'[
9, i M1 b , ya;   ' f )

x    '.' o n
a

e0 tt',  5! L6 V   b 2'''  e

N

m    

o o oe.       "     $  .   +
ti° g

c m a5 m 
o° ym       v

d'       Y   '      A9. 00'     

N`    

p i
a i   a 3,

a2
3a:,   i `

P
p• oo' 00•      •

s"
i°

s.       
g t,

ai r      `;
a'- 

n
by)'. u_    

o? s           "
ro

o,,

g
s e nv  ti i o s    m e

0 0S p  Pe20.
00'  sb` D    o2' h       o9a' 

a. yy, ? y5;
o"   

m gp° 0000•      .       ' 2.       oao se,    <   p yy T/     
31A2' I eG   ' s'  S y5     "'n e2

n

z 08=   ei
a,      

s r • oy,` `'      , cr'

z

3
z t9f      ,^ A   

2!
b/     .

3/ 628
S   

bO  . a;

y2    
df,, fy      , j

m

2eN   °'    ' s2        A 2fb CG  ' Y\
2° df J 0

O-¢       m       '

4 0
Y 6` fN   . 4

t       
N m    s90

pum
i       ./

o

vary   
i  '62   

w'  
m d 0' 422 Y       ' ZF̀''b 2 S fM     \   5

m i   m d/
d om/       /   

2`%
s w LL i1.      vyyvi

4
D`l. p vayi6 ry h!    E

osN N,
o- vye v     m a k.

s   °   b, es.    ,,    
e Ny: r, faf

y
r o    , i ry'1

o`'    ,"  

a
eN..

2.  / y, 
e

y   .
5/    h'

y  

3a' t.   ?'              ^ l.

4y      ` 9p ,
3,

e      ti"bm' 4        h  %  
9

2e'
SS

o

y  ! C, w.00j s.' f ' S. bI   !   ; e P 6%,    f.  

y,y     2
sa       h;     i oo',  d

i °
t

d g y
Y

o
Y 1/     •,   ."

ma    "
22,° 2,

s
et yh    3 ^°/

pp
9p

a

N Z^.,-Q/ ^,.
n

e^
e" f; 

2

pF,
y sE.  

r^

o

b h,         %.;
N

r

e a      `'
g•      ' 

rJ=  a     '^  QesN

O /
B

3,
se 

r

o' _      Se t         

0 SBrN  ` 0eN
O       o'  >" 04Q /      ,

3         s

r      >,` '      
o^ 

v.   

Bo,   
e

a'   /
y oy. ef,   ' yh o ' a a      - 

y yj„      1

3sz, sy          m'       • pa:    e2, '' sC,

i i       'r',   '       titi%     e'  
Po°

cq ° 0s, y    ' y       
e'• 

i

y

g°       
ro

6ser`
i' OOe Sx   ? yrypA A.   

P/         
i,p5 /  ' S

0     .,  

3

0

m

la". i

I
S/, )    u

ej b . ti0m       /    A\ail       ' p
o( ap       

oo    
D0y00

4

O

f'/

s2F yy p
A'.

b G
v\    O,  

r

2f q' 2    

yy.      , p • 2o°: s     , s\   
o'•      o

e 

y

V           m
m

Var, r
y

re<
s, r 

I y    Q       I
b}.  `

b D \\    
a' S    ' e.

d,
q Yd V    e:    b tj 9p      

O     \ 2 9:     '     0'    a       / b       _

N9       f,  ry9  ' DB 6t'   l D?  U ',      m
m

2B6     \`, p  •
Sl, Y5, 90sV N2 a4.,   

S LLA,'  .         BS OP d= b
y F

P m

a

0 d'2,     °
sF 4 r, A HV 4

I a
y     

ro 7'    '    a     ,

00         , aj   ,,,2
p Mb   ` o,     

N

lp      ,
P. D'

a     .
f0` 0

7 3

a

95 S4
d/  

y0 F
D S      --       B2 a1 O

00     £    . lQ V a     0 51•      !      F.

s
f    

a o,
9

m       °

ay y

s     

ypb,`

a

n

y
m

Oym    `''
p` `.      

ti 1 
o ,

s,    '
cP• S   ' 5,°?   I

e      $' r               

i

ssy`'°     \ dd"    %      
m       

J

318



i

a    N g

o3p
o3a` 5   

g y`

d     =       3     o J   __          - 
d' s

mya o E:Y   a    
w

k  
x=      dpa  = p  =-             W   o

s       ' p_       w z o= H 7

ai,   
3 o.

J, -    i     "' X o`.,        3g g     o

Ng   
m

ra  
w_    ozwaw=   h. a a oo „o      ; o=  _    

3 

z  _            ---     w a.

V'Sm o        N "' F-;,

M z oo      o   s a N    E n? m.,--- oda s n        y mHmUo
w Y 3

ma N
w a

m; 3       os o      o I ,   I h s= 
z i a og s   E
w li  '    o 0 0       _  _  v; N g

0   .,   <
o.-            

I  ' I '   m"'--- oa. a 3_._. NN .-      c-W o
m  _     z_  j ogy

e    /

V

n

e

o

a

fe s.       o

s'        `°'_"   y        5       •      .   _        or   y
5    

y       '  '
eq,`° a

e 0V°,` Yb'd Z W  
g

e'

o

f
s2 o

S
J  \ 

m    ^&    

J

9,
d V ' 

yhA   a
Q,    

c ey, • f!       o

e_`, 195     V

oi°     
t op

Q A
ef9°)    ?

o

a

3 Cefe/= j) S69l..       
f,`   

o
0o D   , d

2 u

D          

p ,

0 Cf bb,      r)'-_  

fs9lba h     '   Q see(.-    e'
F2('       A.     

E   ' eef )    .  o SaN       n s
n a

1
se, z 2ss,Y   

99 a           S   ll,
bs,[_• 0p 61- p 7

rS. faf C I_   ?
E^` 3^

o 

O

yTE,

0, 6    
6

Y     

y C^

O      

3       NBmo sz,  Sos,   s.            a R 00•  ' e' IxJ',_`       
D 6x0 C 9lbx n

o      ' p'
SO

0!!'    M•
qf,

2-   ' 0Q1o+       W    . s.  ao. fee,,>           ^ m
d Ot

z   °° B9N,   N8, e.
e

e
e

A,
es.      sU c S° B!  Z S,

o s{ 7 ' Beo Zse:       b     ,
sy.    a

o- 

W      

z

A sa
N     , Op. ss,!!: p Ile0  2f,       \     f Ib     _/ 3       B b9[,

b",      
a

P^^  CS O' OSBO OdO  • b,`

O      •

eFf,
fop'   9l'

D9I. P
b

2.     S  
0/'

p   7I  ' 0•  0 3 a
0   '

OS   !!,_ b lS 9_ C-"^    n I v
g. z    

o>      
s

ya
e,

y
d.J̀   '   ss.

e, p    , h        
e

a  - _    /  .
s

2eed°    $'     '   st p J,K e i;'   a,^    i   y S'

3 , e,      .
n:^    

p
oe 9,  

e°

S9NN
l

a  
m  f

V 

ii
m

2,
2!

6 2 y,\

O

yiM1    ?! W  '   
v

m Yv'    l       1

N 

d
N       _     f   / o:'j

rJ,{-,       \ f w4'

a'     '   
a    eodee.. su,y 9     \ r . a, 00 z`>, i     

s
J o_

z.
v    .      n.,      fa7,K_   ° y

49 es.
s ti  a? s:_      ', -,

yS     9 Zfl6 2^       ';       
Bf. f    .

I2B g=)
S       . j   -     '   . D_      zS. Z_2'Y r  _       n      \' 0• o S![_ P

u,  br'       ' B!!_ y\' b
3

ge
t,     -  

z

i,62

N     

Ob
BHry   , l2'

66_    Y'
M1, m oo r

Bb.    sl,Bpe` Jao zoi
luy. s   1       N' 

8

m`

e. z., P   ,
00

epa eb Qy
o. iz. s, y      /

o  a'`      

NpSQ bH.7
p  z^'.' '_          o y ,      

ph   g ;
st em(

u13so, sa. sx         _      f;

y l0

4'--

3nd--,s.

m

I I

3nd,o   - 

P     ,

ss ss
i I¢   ¢   3. Cf bZ, 01NI i      '

ar J, 3: HS 33S¢         I 7N 3.S6,OOo( ON o
ti

w. a

H

m

U , mIN

I

319



i

w m

N s
o      aa o   -      W -

ooa      oorw w       O o g   '
o3n U o" z s my  LL E`'.m     on<      n o     Y       

a d    _              o W''= oo    ;
a a= w z  O  , s= o= er

o" sa       a

s       = m m r   _ w-   ,      waw=       7._, y osa s olf " o
0 4

3  ? J_-     --  _---      -  < m op w o   ='= a'; a
w s     Ns mm   , c  

o=       o a
o wsw    < mw--- oad 3  =       U :      v

wo      m W w a;:
m= 3=

3    oQ o o I F yo" 

a om     w< o w       , ,   ;   o 0 0       _  _  
N gs= 

NE

J II    I      mw--- oa< 3 N ._       y w y
m_ m   =  

og_

0

o n       K

Hs
o^     

S

U q
p``    

3,6
a r2

y\

eb v
o     ef

l rd')

n

62 ' dy
a 2e  $,'\    , 41' 09= 1 ,

n

y     
m           

ie'N N ' . L4, 9L. L9= p  x

Z     o'    m' o      L9' BSd=)   \
E 2.^      ,

g

o    '

N^     ^    pess r

3

S h1 y t,•    ,

Ce 1
Od

h g
r

r  Gy    f.q
t'           f

I

tM1'
m s%    '°      `

t    N10° 00' 24 W1p1
b/

f

m

55. 00'__- Q
I

BS J 3p
a°'

N N mm i   ' '    /   g,       . e'

J

eQ  /  ,''
n. m /      "      _ o    ' 6g.

f
Y` m

n 33
J

y.
e   o,      y oy b)g',, 

i!
3

m
ye,     e

a>
y       `

i          \\   e„
s

v

Q ti' 98' 
vz,  --`'     ` Oj

N

Be

zry` 

2

s'i i              5. y

r eA,      , e2o.:' ti    

z_,     «
5e e  '; o-"          1   ' se:  

s

r^

y
C56ry 2 k.'   i  -   -    .gy

09 ryd o D'
y 9r`

r

p.    b,    amv 2Q.       ti
a',

d   

m
p   ,    

2   a tt r
A sP' z

f2B rye,   
r'

l   , o.      o       
2ls2a  •^ 

1

ti°    cz.       m

p?,,
6`° 50`  5, 44 di,;    

e w

e9'      o           5 G     ','

o

e'  

D

ti5 Q`  Ay0 s° es°     -,
s

e m    <! e       `' A 6a
b

4.
Q,/          ,     

ry   
m

g 9 1    p0 n    6'/d
e   .`

L
6

1. F    pp.    ` >   p

p

P°
i o s2  V'

6       %/  

10,, oryp 9°a
q,    $

g   - --    GP4,0oo; Dya    , eo`      
m      

v

o
m

6  a

g
s<

c'' s5e\  Pl     /      
Q '

L',   

d'%

y\       _       F'"\"  e3 a°'   " yr.   oz m

e, et;'  /'   sy 5' t

d 
a\  

h
Pl           

3,

Op'., y'
1'$.  C .>

n  .\

O       , Sr
P

q^.   
m

y  M1'
tV3,   ry.     y/ m

6'

J'      h

ryR 6h
e` 03"' e2 m

9
So'

d"    
N

y

hoA
O

E

py    .\ 19    s jm N`-      

0   

4,

a`
e+.    `

sy  ,
qO°,    5

S

ry s     , 
m

O   $:  Ob
o

y \   ' Sq A 5 v̂
O c•\ O  . J \  

a 

d  .$  m

S  '
Q

a

e

i6'
d,        m

I    -     

y
b

m
c

i

320



S

a       N
o 

3am      ooQ       o     0
Y  =

g 1A

w       ag w
w

s 6 m
W s d:

m    o6N      a
3•-     

z

CN  ,`„ Ui
z oo j? "  oO`

N     ;       

m

z

n

6F o 5w     

O
ay g: .

tg1 n
s       pd" a m 3 a

Z  -

o m ti Q
o    ::. Q

zZ o¢ J4pd
a

aU___     5 U a a
m W

h t mm U~  
o o o o

o- w w F 4 V 3 N¢ m w___ Z E E o a a 3 g V  _      

V f r N  _
l- ¢ 3''    a od

Q I
I i

o w w

N NwO a a.."
w

o
m     -    -

Po Z

I      , I    

og s NE=o o   N Qo w I i        c o       _     o ,;  

N
s'

2'    m_ v m ZaN

a      

J

I 1 I mw___ 33ZZoud 3.. Uv i .      

y=
V

O

V

I

r
m

B y33Hs 39S
I

3lid, p!
BL' f01 ftl13. S0 92. 6N 1            /

I
o

I  '     la   '
m

N      - IN
p -

7a)3 omN
I, BS' S9 3. FE, 6z. 0lNI

J

Im
I

m scoa       

J      

I
e 3. io ie. ex

ti      I D la      -  I
S, B 311d, S        

a   -

9

q la    o

f,,     1  b m         

r' O
a   

m z 3
5     

a_      S- -

Sw`     m
m

m 
i  ,     il iV

m     _    
o

m \ 

h

o       =    

m„ o          

P5'      

o \    

4B  

als     
f0' Eb_ 

i      

ry9;
16

6

w LS. 60. B, V     lL m.    
q'    i. bS'[ lZ-   S

ti, S 3fi49 49' 49' E R I."'.     o.   0069ZO f0.
6S, P  

n

n 45'       y

5,
11"  ,

s     

j3°__--'   . Z_ y      
p0`    

e,
9016, oo      N 1       IE') M. L6 BE. 9B/ J       '

1 4
Y_—'_fl_w'.'m

s Pc 032 9     

M OS OEE- '-
M15 sy        

G    C', 8
De    /

1.
1185B M  _

00, eS. el; p 7     ,
s'      

V

Rti 2`0'
9 N 00' 062= tl

c
j̀.  i , 6.   ,

e,      p0 Cr`
s., i q'       BO. L81= 4 00' lld=tl

m  

f 
P`     g,. 00,

g      

e

S bg
y.

m e   ' k      

p°   `
v.

o

o

A
p      

p        

ryg6 M1M1     / /.
hh

o A     P

Qa,
r \  

a

r     

pp d9° bti
0 ,`     

m    •$      

a5•   

b' QO`-A° c

0    -   !` y     ' oa i e'°  GF'   ti

o   .°

s'
d, 

y

y s      N.'     

A  , 9
0.

5 9'   

oQ'' q      `'   Op  [ 8 BL- y    5
i      \_ V 00' fitli F,F'

y ,','

2

S

e
agsSe6B a

Z
l   

9 06= tl

1

U

321



N    $ 
a«       a w

T     --

0
3 a  r-     w

o

N       
0 03

as   
V   O wo ^.:

m   aa      <= o o  _         _    o W= LLo oE .
z      O a a= s

I   _  -       
m r     _  = mx

osa"  
z

o g '` o
s'  a-     wzwaw_  osa ,

o o N
mia

a= m N ow='="' `''w w

s
o      

o _ mmn =   o=    = o -'   J" w F- N< mw_   oaa 3  -   U oo
a.. _   

o v
3

oow w       --       

NyoU   a _m==       o oa
o       ,  i,   y

w         ;

o   =-      - a w I  ;   !  
s`¢   E

f'

ao
C G O S r

O

mZ a   

w        

J I I I i I II  mw--- 3333od a Z 3.. uiv i ,,  y N Q, wl= N

2'    m- v m    - ry

LLz f

I

N     {
V

ez•_ SM Nb 86'dS
9>. ei. p oa\ oos_ y

V     :

n

p
3  ,

Be' ZS    10

U m

f6
s. vy

N8'
8CZ[

g,    

V"'bg g9;   " E, l
ao, e  -    

S°/=
v

w

m     o. t,
p         , 00' Sbgl ym

v
x so' 2g_

ry

2T

3y .
56,

60. 2 p      ' Z
o

n     

r

n

m
B 69 7

y   h n 2, v . 6E
9. 1_ p          

4'

ry

N Q

o

2p

e

ry  %

3

P Fr4
W

3^   Oi 7
18

e='  ^ \\           ry P  ^  
y r

Yz 3 m,

V\,[ 0,\

Osy` J

Z    <  

os28os` 7
i

o

0

3 

2 

y  }
b)

1.y_     
S.

p 2^

A

r p

BD a

s,  ! t.      %_    << N dz Bs,.Sg.
e_ pBB' 7 rbJ;\   es. 9pB     

I_.Cp9ES6 H[_
d,' b)

BD,!/ yN 
Bs2..`

C

S
E/ 09 9x      . i'+''

3

a    -
9i 2 )     

n o s=o   _;

a  

o p               

s

o            . Fzse9,
I Sy"

y
f

8a    a'`'     , v N
S o2. b V

Y \
Ci

eSBgy
6,\

OS'9fC.
p    , pe,      \`

b

3

oN

a

of g' 3;     \  0
1,

6p    o     e2 B3',q,? sSO•
6S SOl 3. 2

pF`` . p        '

S'>.

Blry    
e  ;

p O   " OQ9       P\

Ez
ly  '' 2S

a,       g`?/      

i

g9.      j ' 4`   ,t  3 e,;
g

zs a``

pe

o''    \: r2sms G O       , r

OZ m 9 9
S' 

0 N F f     G   /     
6b 0`  D 9

if

3So 922 0

ry     \       \

o      2p s   ?
a

5

a'   
9

m       \ q      \
i.

Q       •

s' Qv
W r

e'
Bb, 

C

o         '!    

N    -       .;

r2      .
S A

j       \
i         

OI, Bl. O[
op

o

y  s3' s
ap

A     f\ 

J      \N

ry'    i.a4
eb i

m

O
Ozl B.

O-  m P\       
m

p' LM1       dJ   
av

q o
P\

1

11   \
o

to   , e o`' f,     3  s      A

p . p     ,°'  
2 N   

esoaia  a°    my H'       r ` ry   s„      
n  o

o      , s     2    

1
fe d

b ' o       
O` 

oa'    
m    A   m         W -/?'       O 6;       oB6l     E g'   . 

m     ¢ 

h°? 23, N l4I
s S<f a.

o.

6 A 2 i v' ah,     ' Hz2 u:
y,       .      

o., x? i, Pti ey,v
P

j, oo\     Ba 5°       + 
d>  • i N 3^-'       a',

o   ?
b   4• ? s°Js W1661p`   j\•   

J

y     j ,, ea56 H 9°
3a' 

pR1
F,   i'   i

v l S R    ; aw  1 N No`?    \

2 C'U /
W

Z

g4
i       y` o         

d 33,
p2 o

N 9
N   -/  

W»
p5'  1 16

aw N, 9,•

02    1

29  N1,.
g^Nl

e  

e I
29•   ( e, l3s

j l ;    I
F 5H

W
f/ w

azJ
a

322



i N
g 

3 d      _ 3¢      
0

2 O o 0

a o    G
g

V

e o LL E .
s m   w=<    o o U;       npn

w z   a a= o¢ y

s  o    w          xmx o     
o

rys _  
m

w

3ap=  aw  -    oSa o='

N   -   0 3p< w=       -    s a< m
E,,, i    "

U

a"s
N  -

W-  J-     

m a<  =

U
N m   a Ya z ooz     o  s wsw w  ,< mw     oaa 3

Hs ' v

mo. V3
w

oow w

a
w -   3=       

a
m

o

i    I    
z

oN N' 
ma-    ;-  - --      w o 0 0       _     o .-•.       N sg;   E

m 3'      N
q

H
2'    m= z

m_   

p

a

N¢¢
o r

J

I   I '      w_-_ 3 3 i o n n

z o

a     

m       ..

I

I   _       _     

dVM NVJ, BVdSo

ry w 9Z_SSS;=. SE 9Y. 81= V 00' 0081= tl
fl_ X, 69_ fOl3. 6E, SO, fN I

tl- N 66' 99 3. 9d, 55 ZNO
3 T

S"`"       ` qlBONB BCZIS'.
LE ISoLI= Ve, Os,_

v      ', s>' su_    ,
00' S49!= H A NB, 69' B4 l

5,      ^   $ u        i. 00,eo.>= o 3. 66, SO, EN       +     °
te• e= i a      /`.

ti  , LP    On J     . CO BO, Z= 7 r
Q T       ! S i4BLZ

9S

N       

I     

3^

a  ,      S
b

g, 

A// 
ss

z   a 139tlVd _ - _     ,
00     ,

os rz

s 3 z,    6I
N

m

L,, °       O

p N      _

1     

f

r  _', h  '
i6 BT'A'  i e- 3 YyP           m 

tr
m mI

ro mo d,   
z i       J 

n.,   o o;/.' f   
2 2

pl      
56   

S' Od

C ? iyp
V`%   

6.

p
C`'

91 s9'
7: 0,,  . fib,

flESlxp- i

Np6.
p40\' ES--_

U   -

z<

9   s.     9S' BSZ_ i     

5g5B  I  
Y 5.` s'

e

q4w`
r  }

C m FUE N19    

v

iI   'i 4    •
2. ,

o`/      

yi       , e GO w x1 a
bs.   • r    -       5e'-    a     ;     .

s .
e

a.     _    9.      q',  
s< ,

e'° a m 5     
x 5_,   

eOs ijrr,eorg    a,` GyQ'  , j p  -
2•

02 Brd ``
o  n. ry       ~  m Nj

J

Q` i. tP
J'     

J'

I'     c+`—'     _

e\   ,
ei  "        -  

oo, o

M1°
j .([,

90. 59`
C mc` \ Q'

b"      ( Z.     o

00' OL= tl p0    35
00'   Oq'  ? N

9

3. ,
tl, 3. t4;    

w    ' 

y.. 
P`. q0' 29' A9   r.__    bC   ! b,-_       

o,     q6
2, 

9pg    ' Cp,
2N fEry

o a' Zr%ry,
Py       "°   ,, '

e       e `" a,
s    

z    `     

m' ,

j.        -    ---'    
d;;..    

r`%   
v\ zido m s.         s: s

so    `'     e
a,     

m

de.      .;;    -   
a     '  ,  a

J!   dl        sa ,; a Q      
d  , ;;,. oa      9 4   /   

A ', a'?       

E
m ki e;' ",  -  a-   ..     

3
me`

J\
ysd.          LR "    „

O
0

G   
y"%   6

M1 h6 0 e,       
90. ,  ryryy.

Q       \       
0, 0

3`
p. p5/          

z

n`            P'  P\     09.   ab
y`'_     

P • Q 00  59
o' 09; So.-    aYr'";.       

7q
O\

6a65'!'!, P3/   O^
s 50w o

n      a -  /\  ,
69

i
pq,

tlt1 < 01,  P`

i
H 9.,' , C' ,

o'I' q'" 0l

H
4 22, M u

P

N^

1,, h     

N 9° ry O'
wxfi5qe

4M  `"

s\      I
o

m

N`     H

m j    '  '
i'  JI V

1 1
E

SEE
SH

323



om
N N    

3Q      o V o a
ox          V

oG K  

a       

z 8
w d=..

m    a`      <      x      a a w  _-              
o`

oa  Ot
n      = N Qo w z  Q ;.== os er

3      -    - w xmx o"       
s       _      sJ   `           Waw  -     N; aoa

g . o

3pQa=       -  \___  _-       
a=---     

s,  o o ow='=      

n          
W-  

w-  oNo     _   mza 4       _       

o 6mm ;o    Noo a o w w LL  < mw--- oaa       o   _     
v .

w=-
3    - o o i

U ''
y sa a,>

w o    s
z

o `   -    

l`     w II I  '' I I    

o

mw--- oaa   ''      

N

ss   " E

m_ a   a   
p N W

o
LL

y

F,T

p9'    n 

02
1  

V

f

b ael\     3'S!_/
N 9% l r

W" m.

q9 W m

I

2 22, p.

V
c,   

J, v>       R Dg V          
19 5,c'

i id  \.--       V'f   i;vM
oe\ p p w Zb5

se
J       -

m     y: 93
p2 29    

N       
O         

ia`.'    • 2v' lRl i"
z,

W n
p5 eo   r 1   a   1      

v/  

N

N19
3a

o /       

mm sl

e

l
r

p1'.    o-\   

r

m

1
29         

lE' BOl( tl1M. OL¢ fia 9N  

ilJ
vz

JI
I   1i  "    

n
I NI

I         ¢,
lb' EOl( tl 3. 65 S0. ON             ^ g I

4o-      I      -  fi9' 90t( tlI3. 9S, 55. ON  

J     ¢

I
y 

a

I 311d al'

4'

v^=

I

v

e' so lela, e
N      -

f I ?
J

BO
1. 01 a

I ei3lid Ol f73. 12,____     '
o

DS'      
SE. GON ,

J  '     

i

V/     L01 3, 85, l2. SN   ),   '    $

yy/       /

p

m

r—   

BS ,
S' 6l

p^       (

9
b``(

bl3
zz

z°
o2p =

L
N     ,[ 9' Sol 3. 9S lZ. SNo   

o

I    '
ry/    

o     q

I     '
i

Q',

v

m 3

73. 06, 96. 90N       Q

e

o; ry/    

BS`
2   ^ 

vn     

iry
n."-

Q

y d/,  

m
m

o

O
9f,

2
o

AL' Lll( tl) 3. 95 IZ. SN    

J

q IN a

vh'   
I-   

U la   _
V' l1 i

B

b    

m

m

i    Im
r     ..\ p 5' s\  

3'

6
B' 6ll( tl) 3. 66. LSefN    

6\` oi`

6

o r

1,       

p89
W_-

i

IN   -

w 6
N19 25'     v 

I o

N d
e       

4

N` 9eo
O

W;
29

r.      ,(
9' S0t tl) 3. OE, EE. ZN  I

J

Inv g' 3

Qp..       . la  \   
f   _  

I¢
D

3ry

ti

a79
A9

i      I311d, Ol

69' EOI Itl) 3,[{, fiO. IN I I

I
00' EOl ItlIM. 9S, bL. ON I

r
I

J  

6S S' fil

J Y v  c

I

e xl    _
00' EOl M. l2 Bl. ON

a v,   I

I

m I
Ig

m    ,

00' EOl M. IZ, BI, ON   I
I      

324



m
m

w a      ' aN=      d- 
o

Q mG d;
ox   6      op 3   Co x 3 a d w    a" zo osy
a              -_    

J      o   -  asa o         y o g olf,,`a
al    in3 c.+ p Z m m 

w

zW-  

i^   

oz< O     __

g       Y   )        

o

a

6 v

J  -\ \      _--      
Z

wa1w    i
N m

ti- a_
3o

wN       U _ w-  __    n r   _   

S Jp  
r- \,   

p   
m

Uo
z oz      G6o aa w.- LL g< mw s s odd 3 5  _       V u o< Hsw Q -

w _ m  _ 3    o<
m

o li ,   '
i `

yI

o
z

y

s= " E
a   -_  o

w y y y g>m  -      pa      w V
I

o 0 0   _  _
w       :

v'  

I 3J I I I I  I I Y

mw___ 33 on n     . v n •

m_ m o_ n o
L33HS 335 0

e I            

00' E l M, IL, BI. ON   

311dOl

I    -
00' E04 M. IL BleON

lo
n Ie

a' 

f

m

l00 co M. z, e. ax

o yNF'
F.'

5
f

m Im  6d ° S' 61

SE a m
00' fi8 M 9E 04. 4N

i
z   ,

B4' 90l( tl13. Ob, OS. 2N  

f N4s
e

h w,   _      

8' 

J

I

pS
h    

z    

6(' SOl( U) 3, np
o      =

I

a9s 55
s  

m
1 10. BN    

J

NIf
s

9 /
b

d

N

wil
NI50 y

N
40' W

W
o '? Br'.     0`'

S   
dSA6,

9; 
z  '   

1

N1' I°,  Bf'' •
N`  P

3

B9 D9, G V
p „ S6' S6'       m

M150.    
i{ ip 

3    

y

N  ¢ W v

f^

n yy     •/ Qt N  

Z

m

e   _

o
e       

p'   I
eo w

oo, so'      o       ;,
N1' I' 4  V   ' Od.y2 7 3. IOes Sy t\ 

l/
O

0.       ` P-

pN     
5.

9[ N` Y
l    ,

B2

I
6 0     

El' S01 Itl) M. OS Z0. 4N s P= 2 9rytio
J     \

b e'  A= 94°92y9
5  

n Q' 

6d'[ Z_ 7 M, el•9
40. p\

00.  
i. 6Z Uh. 16, p ry    / b/\_

H,°
4\     

e`

G\.,
00' SE= tl

3. lpeD S>  

3.
lO,

D9. Bµ-   
r

po sy` 9, g N
6        m       ,     

lg, P  ,,  ` e  , oO
pZ      ' 22' s     /' S sl

m   >\   $      
N

9.

p

o. N n

N.                 , w.
q

o0 60
a d   

m NA\ W N\
1°

4\      Aph y

J

o/  ¢  /' 

W N\ PG     \  aa°_
A

i''^      ,ez`
o             

62

p„   - o b/
3    ^  ry  w,       2

tz       ,, o:  .
b'/       ro

N      >  
w

o 50 a
N   '   n   O  ,

N.
s\'

n0 0 2  / O  
h

n       '  ,      .` 9    ^  

yyti
ti

3
r       ^

ry
O

O.= o'
o

ry       /

o0 5    _  eeN A y Q  ` o
ao• G oN11°

4 zl    

e.
o/  

N„

oi

o\ -    
N

dJ'
6 ^      0 Y 1'/    9b

a+\      "'   , pp4\.   
2!

0 yy^
q y.,    

Q
i

9
Zp.

N P)  seH o  '
L'    `%/

J

N\
B°

5 y ryA,
1 29          

A/9 5 V

r       /W'.  op   p o
1 M1A   '    S.

1     "'       
u'     

o' o ho' 00
0

6/
ip 1 . O

1
fl      ,     

o y 60 i
7      .   l., l

p
o i Zi      R

2 63
W`   

a!     

m    \ l          N2fi 30
s.    '

m    \

s
dl i e N    

3ti
j

o~ a`
y

ej  .\ 
o

O q dJ, o. i

s.'',     '

s     

e%   

o :\
b ` Z`'   \_/      ° Lah'  •

ry   
o,

p, '

ti`_    ,

z' ze=  ''_?
5?"'

E?

d>.d' 195  , po O. Z6= d a'+    ' ^,? I,>'

d
02= N       j','

n_— '_IB' 9[= l
y_._    Z 80. Sfi= V       \

P>     

00' g6= tl       

ti:

s9 N8 66' 09=
9Bop 05' 04,

t

325



N    $
Qa

U3p
g   

O 
oJ  •,    o  

o m   
d..:'

s   
6¢      

n_

o   
k  N a     w         O o= o o y .

n     '`''

a" 3      `' o z m y         xmx o5a      

N,
0• 5    ',o wnW Z N QOQo _ 

o
s       --  `       m3  J       

Q :3aaw=       -     w     -       ---  was  ow o

oz    N - 
o - wsw mw--- oma 3  -       U § y<

y

U

v

w _ a   _ 3    oa m

o      i I , y „ a a ;
Z i s os<      E-:

ry. a^    vi`
wp' ao w

I     
I

C O O

m   _  _  sF;      ai og:
5   <                  i   '     

oaa a_.. ..
m  _ Sm z_ 

o

Y

I

SH'

0.   

2a
EE JJ 9 0

1 B
5 6'• s

o P°, p2p90

Oa 33b'

Et'F'F'  /,/       
tio

E   A/ 

m

cP%   
5°   s          W io,

CJQ.  • 35      N19' e     '

w%° 6°
p°'    "'    '

q,    

S       W

a'

L 9 3 m

N2,

v

1 29 9! N'     "    
50     

N

W F-'

N

s

y

Nyg 5e
0

vYi

0 0o ai         :,`,      0 pe
z

u~
J'     -    

v

a J.   ' m oo
Z

O,
o^=/    "    

q`
Op

o!  r 6p   6'   S' i

ml ooe/       ' a

W     ..   
y     

O`
9,,   NZ y^

m
z `

o W     n   y

v    

55°\ B' 17'-   
29        

h
p\',`    

i A` e53.
9     ,(

zZB'
r 9`'°        5°'

tV m                  , ss . o       _
Z

e     ` oy n6 W s2, i\
m     \  

0      '
Ly,     

J y,'•-  ce_g
5

5638,> 7,'    

N

N.  

iN    \ O  ' 
11263     ' o

o

y
J 6'  o \     `

p\   
o

oi
9. y'

12'     ' p`pu> hy  ' 92. W I

6
0     d   

52, 49' 
j5.     

C` M1' N15°
4 .

M- 0
o              6-   

Q'       _  ,

n    
1' t    

l' `, 40.  
IRL N  `   . 2i       I

SN   \    W n

P

Z 31      p3
q1,  

q• 11
9-'     _=-

o  
o,   s d g v mN d p,

3°

2
a

p'
e Ni'-     y

9 . n '

P\ 7 P
E,    

o

n
5

9Op`   M. M -  
G m

m  '" \  
j

a

W           
32   /    PoB2 135H       6S'( Z_      e0./

5  q9•
4<, N. 6Z, 04. 66_

p
o /

o\ 0^ g,       00' 9C, y
y

O 39
0

0/   

9      ti19   -
2

4

F/

9,
p3,

p1
10

9      , -- 
9y

1.\     

e\ 

o i 626W` 32• `    

P 

p.

a ,

3'
45' 13'    m J  __ ._

5
s"  C   - ee s°    -'

so  
I'     ..".,h1        / 9

61g  \    ^-      ,

V,. 0_ "     
c'

s

5o.
es'   ?       I

ti  . - CQ` so?_ w      F
OE=" 1 P\/      

W
p      ? 

o 

095.( B= G a,   , 3
1'!'     

3`\

3 q6
f

9h\   
02_ y N2/ N'LS`

3,     

W. 

y      '   
v

r  (, -   - 

ebb       :       
Z..

r _

c       "
OyA 195-{     0 9N   /.,    W

n

1

OZ' SS

d2'ry0(.      
O'\     6S' 69

M, 6£,> 6= 6N

1B Ofi•
W M. 9fi. 09. 9N

N  \¢

29   \` o          

N24
50

33

w

H2p O 40

l aN¢
10p•' IB

s n\      `"" OZ    
Op•

WIA       5'

a N19
p6

p ph ps
f

b ` 9\}

N,

Zg

N          

h

V
J

W`
pp 5   

h

N`^\   

n`.
q1'

40 1

N
m \

N\  
s   \\ 0'% 

E,F, SN

U N

N N

m

2

326



EXHIBIT B

TOTAL COST ESTIMATE

327



Ol 00 tJ' 1 t! 1 vl N
W -- I -- I Ol I 41

01 M V W l.l1 ' i
00 i I O V 01
ui n  m n o0

01 e- V 7 7 N N
ul e- 1 O Ol 01 D
ul V V a-- 1 N 00

V .--       D

00 vl O O O M
r m m rn in oo

oi o 00  ri ri
n v v .- rn o0
r+ , m  v r

oi ri rn oo ri vi
N O o0 00 N

N oo eo m n n
00 N

M'rl

iA L1 L? L} L} i/T

l0 N M O1 V1 O
M V u' 1 W lO M

O Ol N N 

I ti M n'1 N Op
c- I N V7 V7 (' 7 C1
0 o in m in ^

I W N

Ia
N
e- 1

FVT V? L} t/ 1 L] VT
W 1D

M W D
i i     ^

Lf1 W
O I

13`     ul
r      O

f
Z

rl
v<

A . t"p' LT LT L} LT LT LT
rh;

rr'= N V O O O D
W N O O O 01

S', f M N M Ol / 1 N
N V ul 00 lD 1
N O Ol N N n

f' 1 c- I ( V7 f' 1 N M
N N ul lll fY1 pp

o o vi m n o
N 00 N       

ci

J
a

r d y:F/

P t r

a.

z

Wc
CW

0Ca
w

i v

W
J

7

a

m a

p E c

v v v     °
O m
r 3 m ,

O a '

v n'f df c - o

tiq - o
ra c

c

p   u   ON
a a  , 

m
u a ~  '^  

K q   
C   O

F J Q
328



EXHIBIT C

CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

1. The Subdivider shall obtain commercial general liability insurance companies licensed to
do business in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating Insurance rating of no
less than A:VII which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage
liability in the amount of at least$ 1, 000, 000 for each occurrence and $ 2, 000, 000 in the aggregate.

Said insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance with policy endorsements,
executed by an authorized official of the insurer( s). All parties to the Subdivision Improvement
Agreement must be named insured on the policy. The policy endorsements to be attached to the
certificate must provide all the following:
a. Name the City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions,  and
members thereof, its employees and agents as additional insured as respects to any liability arising
out of the activities of the named insured. A CG 2010 or CG 2026 endarsement form or the

equivalent is the appropriate form.

b. State that " the insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be primary insurance as
respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or self-insurance
maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in excess of the

insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to any loss.
c. Include a statement that, " the insurer will provide to the City at least thirty ( 30) days prior
notice of cancellation or material change in coverage." The above language can be included on the

additional insured endorsement form or on a separate endorsement form.

d. The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest clause.
e. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five
years after completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as commercially available at
reasonable rates.

329



EXHIBIT D

COST TO COMPLETE IMPROVEMENTS

330



m n n n o m
N W .-- I Ql Ql rl

lD u' 1 V o0 I M
W o0 I O I M
rn o  m oo n

l0 Oi V a D N
m rn o rn rv o
V N V a-- 1 N t! 1

a-- I       O

N

v1 O1 O O N t0
7 lD M Ol Ol N

N .- i 00 I / 1 l0

V c- I Lfl D

rn m m o  o

m oi rn co rri vi
Ol O o0 V1 N

00 V7 00 M V rl

00 N fYj
py

i/ T [/ T [/} i/} i/} 

M O O o0 N
V O o O m 

O O m O1 vi 00
N .-- Vl a0 O I
V7 lD O1 N V1 00

I M M N - 1
01 '- i V7 l! 1 ri M
I 00 V1 M V 01

h N rl
N

t/? 1/} /} 1/? t/} V?

I .-- I N ct
V V1 l0 V1

n c- I Ql a
o m ui m
n a n ro

ni        ri
N O       .- i V1
OO N       - i ri

u: rj N
Vt

i!%rk'` i
i/ T V) VT i/ f i/ f i/?

N < t O O O D
W .- I O O O 01

n'1 N f+ 1 Ol Vl N
N Ct vl 00 l0 1
N O Ql N N ^

1 r-I M M N fV
N N V1 t! 1 ( Y1 pp
l0 O V1 M v1 O

N DO N
CN

N  N

JQFO

y

i

Z

Wc
GW

0

a

a,

W
Ja

m a

O
V 41 N     
Q p     N

3 m 

N v o    = 
p 0 3

02{ o     C ' O

pp - 6
N C

N C L h0 
10 p 7 v C 
a c o 

i o" u
F.  V'    N ' F
CJ N    - p 7

@ ' 6 C  O
C

F-     7   Q
331



ATTACHMENT E

JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF 1 FINAL MAP

CLSP PHASE 1 C TRACT 4062)

October 11, 2021

Via Email and First Class Mail

First American Title Company
4750 Willow Road, Suite 100

Pleasanton, CA 94588

Attn: Tammi Buna

Re:   Recordation of 1 Final Map:

Tract 4062; Map Escrow No. (XXXXXXX]

Dear Tammi:

This letter constitutes the joint escrow instructions (" Escrow Instructions") of Lathrop
Land Acquisition, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and Saybrook CLSP, LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company ( collectively " Develope"), and the City of Lathrop

City') in connection with the above- referenced escrow ( the" Escrov l'). The Escrow was

opened in connection with recordation of the above- referenced final map ( the " Final

Map").  Recordation of the Final Map is subject to the conditions set forth below.  The

transactions described in these Escrow Instructions are referred to as the " Transaction."

First American Title Company is referred to as "you" or " FATCo."

A.       Date for Closinqs

The Final Map will be recorded at the time designated by Developer as set forth below.
The Final Map can only be recorded after the City has approved the maps in writing. The
closing date for the Transaction is intended to occur by April 30, 2022,  at the time
designated in writing by Developer, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth below
each, a " Closing'). If the Final Map have not been recorded by April 30, 2022, FATCo

will return the Final Maps to the City.

B.       Recordation Documents

In connection with the Transaction, you have in your possession or will receive the
following document from City for recordation in the Official Records of San Joaquin
County, California ( the " Official Records").

B1. One original Final Map for Tract 4062, executed and acknowledged by
the City and Developer.

The document listed in Item B above is referred to as the " Recordation Documents."
The date on which the Recordation Documents are recorded in the Official Records is
the Recordation Date.

1

332



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF 1 FINAL MAP

CLSP PHASE 1 C TRACT 4062)

C.       Funds and Settlement Statement

You also have received, or will receive from Developer, prior to the recordation of the
Recordation Documents,  in immediately available funds,  the following amounts,  in

accordance with the settlement statement prepared by you and approved in writing by
both Developer and City ( the " Settlement Statemenf'):  recordation costs, escrow fees,

and other amounts as set forth in the Settlement Statement.  Such costs, fees, and other

amounts are the sole responsibility of Developer.

C. 1 Funds to be wire transferred directly to the City, prior to the recordation of
the Final Map, in accordance with the wire transfer instructions for each entity attached
hereto:

a. The amount payable to the City pursuant to that certain Agreement
to Settle Threatened Litigation Regarding the Central Lathrop Specific Plan ( as amended,
the " Sierra C/ ub Agreemenf'), outlined in the table below, is to be transferred to the City
upon recordation of the Final Maps.

Tract Acreage Cost/ Acre Total Fee

4062 44. 97 4, 539. 00 204, 118. 83

The amounts set forth in Section C are referred to as the " C/osing Funds."

D.       Closinq Requirements

When the following has occurred, you are authorized to close the Escrow at the time( s)
and in accordance with the process set forth below:

D. 1.  You have delivered copies of your Settlement Statement by email
transmission to ( a) Jeff Wilson ( jwilson@saybrookfundadvisors. com);  ( b) Scott Bayliss

sbayliss@saybrookfundadvisors. com); ( c) Seth Merewitz ( seth. merewitz@bbklaw. com)
d) Stephen Salvatore     ( ssalvatore@ci. lathrop. ca. us);     ( e) Salvador Navarrete

snavarrete@ci. lathrop.ca. us;  ( f) Cari James ( cjames@ci. lathrop. ca. us); and ( g) Glenn
Gebhardt ( ggebhardt@ci. lathrop. ca. us), and have confirmation ( by telephone or email)
from Jeff Wilson and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt that the Settlement Statement
is accurate and acceptable;

D. 2.  You have not received any instructions contrary to these Escrow
Instructions;

D. 3.  The Recordation Documents and all other documents described

herein as being held by you or delivered to you have been received by you, and have been
fully executed and,  where applicable,  acknowledged,  you have attached all legal
descriptions or have confirmed that all exhibits and legal descriptions are attached;

D. 4.  You are prepared to record the Recordation Documents,  as

designated, release funds in accordance with the Settlement Statement, and complete the
Transaction in compliance with these Escrow Instructions;

2

333



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF 1 FINAL MAP

CLSP PHASE 1 C TRACT 4062)

D. S.  You have delivered a copy of these instructions, executed by an
authorized signatory of FATCo with authority to bind FATCo, and initialed all pages, by
email transmission ( with original hard copy to follow by U. S. Mail) to Jeff Wilson, Seth
Merewitz and Glenn Gebhardt at the email addresses set forth above.

D. 6. You have received confirmation ( by email or other writing) from Jeff
Wilson and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt to record the Recordation Documents

and complete the Transaction.

E.       Closinq Process and Priorities

When you have fully satisfied all of the closing requirements set forth in Section D, then
you are authorized and instructed to do the following in the chronological order given:

E. 1.  Date the Recordation Documents to be recorded.

E. 2.  Record the Final Map in the Official Records.

E. 3.  Pay the costs associated with the Transaction.

E. 4.  Refund any funds delivered to you by Developer that are not
disbursed at the time of the final Closing pursuant to these Escrow Instructions to the
following entity and address:

Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC
303 Twin Dolphin Dr., Suite 600

Redwood Shores, CA 94065

Attn:  Jeff Wilson

E. 5.  Notify Jeff Wilson,  Scott Bayliss,  Seth Merewitz,  and Stephen

Salvatore and Glenn Gebhardt of the completion of the Transaction;

E. 6.  Within five ( 5) business days after each Recordation Date, deliver

by overnight delivery via recognized, national, overnight delivery carrier, to ( 1) Jeff Wilson,
Lathrop Land Acquisition, LLC, 303 Twin Dolphin Dr., Suite 600, Redwood Shores, CA

94065; and ( 2) Sal Navarette, City Attorney, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre Drive,
Lathrop, CA 95330

A)   a certified copy of the Recordation Documents,  showing all
recording information of the Recordation Documents and an electronic copy of the
Recordation Documents; and

B)   a certified copy of the final Settlement Statemer t.

F.       Additionallnstructions

When assembling the final documents, signature pages from all parties shall be inserted
into each respective final document in creating fully executed counterparts.

Please acknowledge receipt of these instructions and your agreement to act as Escrow
agent in connection with this Transaction in accordance with these Escrow Instructions,

3

334



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF 1 FINAL MAP

CLSP PHASE 1 C TRACT 4062)

by executing and dating a copy of these Escrow Instructions where indicated below,
initialing all pages and returning it to both of the undersigned.

The Escrow Instructions may be modified only in a writing signed by both of the
undersigned.

Very truly yours,

Owner: LATHROP LAND ACQUISITION, LLC

By: SAYBROOK FUND INVESTORS, LLC
Its: MANAGING MEMBER

Jeffrey M. Wilson
Officer

Owner: SAYBROOK CLSP, LLC

By: SAYBROOK FUND INVESTORS, LLC
Its: MANAGING MEMBER

Jeffrey M. Wilson
Officer

CITY OF LATHROP APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Stephen J. Salvatore Salvador V. Navarrete

City Manager City Attorney

4

335



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF 1 FINAL MAP

CLSP PHASE 1 C TRACT 4062)

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT:

Receipt of the foregoing Escrow Instructions from Developer and the City is hereby
acknowledged.  The undersigned agrees, for itself, and on behalf of FATCo, to proceed
in strict accordance with these Escrow Instructions.  The undersigned represents and

warrants to Developer and the City that the undersigned is authorized to execute this
Acknowledgement and Agreement, for itself, and on behalf of FATCo.

First American Title Company

By:
its:

Date:

5

336



ITEM 4. 16

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF REAL PROPERTY SALE AND APPROVAL
OF EASEMENT DEEDS FOR THE OVERHEAD

ELECTRICAL TRANSMISSION LINES ON

CHRISTOPHER WAY AND D' ARCY PARKWAY WITH
PG& E AND A RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Reai Property Sale and
Approval of Easement Deeds for the Overhead

Electrical Transmission Lines on Christopher Way
and D' Arcy Parkway with PG& E and a Related Budget
Amendment

SUMMARY:

PG& E (' PGE") is processing the entitlement for an expansion of their substation on
Vierra Road and the addition of two 115, 000 volt transmission lines, one into the
Crossroads Commerce Center to reinforce the electrical demands of that area, and
one into Simplot to provide them with a secondary electrical source.  A Vicinity Map
is included as Attachment " B".

PGE provided an appraisal of the value of an easement through the City property
along Christopher Way  ( Easement)  and a Letter Agreement dated June 30,  2021
Attachment C").   PGE will pay the Easement value over the parcels on the north

side of D' Arcy to Richland Crossroads, L. P. by separate agreement due to their right
of reverter in that property.

Staff recommends Council Approve Real Property Sale and Approval of Easement
Deeds for the Overhead Electrical Transmission Lines on Christopher Way and D' Arcy
Parkway with PG& E.  Sufficient funds were not included in the adopted fiscal year
2021- 22 budget.  Therefore,  a budget amendment is necessary to increase the
revenue received to fund 6030 in the amount of $ 131, 000.

BACKGROUND:

Several years ago,  PG& E began the entitlement process for an expansion of their
substation on Vierra Road and the addition of two 115, 000 volt transmission lines,
one into the Crossroads Commerce Center to reinforce the electrical demands of that
area, and one into Simplot to provide them with a secondary electrical source.  The

approval process through the California Public Utilities Commission has many steps,
and takes several years.

Due to their size and cost, PGE transmission towers and cables are typically located
in a separate right of way rather than within the City right of way or a Public Utility
Easement ( PUE).

337



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF REAL PROPERTY SALE AND APPROVAL OF EASEMENT DEEDS

FOR THE OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL TRANSMISSION LINES ON CHRISTOPHER
WAY AND D' ARCY PARKWAY WITH PG& E AND A RELATED BUDGET
AMENDMENT

In addition, the City has the right to allow other utility companies to locate their
facilities in City right of way or public utility easements. PGE needs to be assured that
they have adequate control over their electrical transmission lines to avoid conflicts
with other utility companies and to avoid the possibility the City would require them
to relocate these costly towers.

Although most PGE electrical lines are placed underground when the adjacent
property develops, this requirement is limited to electrical lines of 34, 500 volts or
less  ( Lathrop Municipal Code Section 16. 28. 080,  Underground Utilities).     The

proposed transmission lines are 115, 000 volts and are therefore not required to be
placed underground.

The Easement has two separate sections and is reflected on two separate deeds.

o The first section ( Exhibit A of Attachment ' C") is along Christopher Way,
and it crosses three legal parcels, all owned by the City.  They include
Assessor' s Parcel Number 198- 130- 35, 36, and 59.  The appraised value

of this easement is $ 131, 000 and includes $ 1, 000 in damages in case

PGE needs to remove any of the existing street trees in the future. Staff
reviewed the appraisal and agreed the comparable sales in the area

result in a cost per acre equal to or higher; therefore, find the appraisal
acceptable.

o The second section of the Easement area  ( Attachment " D")  crosses

D' Arcy Parkway and passes through the legal Assessor' s Parcel Numbers
198- 130- 56, and 57. These parcefs are currently owned by the City of
Lathrop and are used to operate Percolation Basin  # 1.    Parcel 6,

Assessor Parcel Number 198- 130- 58, has an existing easement that will
accommodate the transmission lines.

The second section of Easement has a right of reverter clause in the deed that
dedicated the parcels from Richland to the City.   For that reason, the City cannot
further encumber the property by providing an easement to a utility company without
the permission of Richland. On September 13, 2021, City Council approved a Funding
Agreement with Richland Crossroads,  L. P.  for Project Costs related to the Surface
Water Discharge Project CIP WW 20- 17.   Based on that funding Agreement, this

parcel will be returned to Richland once operational for the Surface Water Discharge
project at which time the City will no longer have a need for Percolation Pond # 3.

The reverter of land to Richland is expected to occur in Fall of 2022.

PGE negotiated the value of the second Easement with Richland.  Richland has agreed
to the appraised value of $ 79, 900 for 37, 941 SF,  and upon City approval of the
Easement, those funds will be provided from PGE to Richland.

338



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF REAL PROPERTY SALE AND APPROVAL OF EASEMENT DEEDS

FOR THE OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL TRANSMISSION LINES ON CHRISTOPHER

WAY AND D' ARCY PARKWAY WITH PG& E AND A RELATED BUDGET

AMENDMENT

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

The alignment for the new transmission lines and providing a secondary power source
provides the greatest benefit to the industrial area and resulting in the least impacts
to manufacturing facilities such as Telsa and Simplot.

PGE reviewed with the City and with the public an extensive analysis of alternative
alignments.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The increased revenue was not considered in the fiscal year 2021- 22 budget.
Therefore, a budget amendment is necessary to increase the revenue received as
follows;

Increase Revenue

6030- 50- 30- 318- 04- 50    $ 131, 000.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Real Property Sale and Approval of Easement Deeds for
the Overhead Electrical Transmission Lines on Christopher Way and D' Arcy
Parkway and a Related Budget Amendment

B.       Vicinity Map of PGE Substation expansion and new Transmission Lines

C.       Letter Agreement,  including easement Deed LD#  2201- 06- 10008 over City
property along Christopher Way

D.       Deed LD# 2201- 06- 10008 over City Percolation Basin # 1

339



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF REAL PROPERTY SALE AND APPROVAL OF EASEMENT DEEDS

FOR THE OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL TRANSMISSION LINES ON CHRISTOPHER

WAY AND D' ARCY PARKWAY WITH PG& E AND A RELATED BUDGET

AMENDMENT

APPROVALS:

l0fS ZO 21
Brad T lor Date

Land Development Manager

t=;, 1 C,,.. , _ Zc::,--,

Glenn Gebhardt'           Date

City Engineer

c. - - z.

Michael King  --    Date

Public Works Director

Cari Ja e Date

Finance Di e tor

6• s--- z-a t I

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

a'• Z

Ste Salvatore Date

City Manager

340



RESOLUTION NO. 21-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING OF REAL PROPERTY SALE AND APPROVAL OF EASEMENT DEEDS
FOR THE OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL TRANSMISSION LINES ON CHRISTOPHER
WAY AND D' ARCY PARKWAY WITH PG& E AND A RELATED BUDGET

AMENDMENT

WHEREAS,  PG& E  (' PGE")  has recognized that manufacturing facilities like
Tesla and Simplot require a secondary source of power to minimize any downtime for
their facilities; and

WHEREAS,  PGE reviewed with the City and with the public an extensive
analysis of alternative alignments, and the alignment for the new transmission lines
that provided the greatest benefit to the industrial area and resulted in the least
impacts, was the Christopher Way alignment shown on Attachment B" to the City
Managers Report dated October 11, 2021; and

WHEREAS,  PGE is processing the entitlement for an expansion of their
substation on Vierra Road and the addition of two 115, 000 volt transmission lines,
one into the Crossroads Commerce Center to reinforce the electrical demands of that
area, and one into Simplot to provide them with a secondary electrical source; and

WHEREAS, due to their size and cost, PGE transmission towers and cables are

typically located in a separate right of way rather than within the City right of way or
a Public Utility Easement ( PUE).   In addition, the City has the right to allow other

utility companies to locate their facilities in City right of way or public utility
easements.   PGE needs to be assured that they have adequate control over their
electrical transmission lines to avoid conflicts with other utility companies and to
avoid the possibility the City would require them to relocate these costly towers; and

WHEREAS,  PGE needs to be assured that they have adequate control over
their electrical transmission lines to avoid conflicts with other utility companies and
to avoid the possibility the City would require them to relocate these very expensive
towers; and

WHEREAS, although most PGE electrical lines are placed underground when
the adjacent property develops,  this requirement is limited to electrical lines of

34, 500 volts or less  ( Lathrop Municipal Code Section 16. 28. 080,  Underground

Utilities), and since the proposed transmission lines are 115, 000 volts, they are not
required to be placed underground; and

WHEREAS, the Easement has two separate sections and is reflected on two
separate deeds; and

WHEREAS, the first section is along Christopher Way, and it crosses three

legal parcels,  all owned by the City.   They include Assessor' s Parcel Number 198-
130- 35, 36, and 59; and

341



WHEREAS, the appraised value of this easement is $ 131, 000 and includes

1, 000 in damages in case PGE needs to remove any of the existing street trees in
the future. Staff reviewed the appraisal and agreed the comparable sales in the area

result in a cost per acre equal to or higher; therefore, find the appraisal acceptable;
and

WHEREAS, the second section of the Easement area ( Attachment" D") crosses

D' Arcy Parkway and passes through the legal Assessor' s Parcel Numbers 198- 130-
56, and 57. These parcels are currently owned by the City of Lathrop and are used
to operate Percolation Basin # 1.  Parcel 6, Assessor Parcel Number 198- 130- 58, has

an existing easement that will accommodate the transmission lines; and

WHEREAS, the second section of Easement has a right of reverter clause in

the deed that dedicated the parcels from Richland to the City.   For that reason, the

City cannot further encumber the property by providing an easement to a utility
company without the permission of Richland. On September 13, 2021, City Council
approved a Funding Agreement with Richland Crossroads,  L. P.  for Project Costs

related to the Surface Water Discharge Project CIP WW 20- 17.  Based on that funding
Agreement, this parcel will be returned to Richland once operational for the Surface
Water Discharge project at which time the City will no longer have a need for
Percolation Basin # 1.  The reverter of land to Richland is expected to occur in Fall of

2022; and

WHEREAS, PGE negotiated the value of the second Easement with Richland.

Richland has agreed to the appraised value of $ 79, 900 for 37, 941 SF, and upon City
approval of the Easement, those funds will be provided from PGE to Richland; and

WHEREAS, the City, as the current property owner, also needs to sign the
Easement Deed; and.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby approve the Real Property Sale and Approval of Easement Deeds
for the Overhead Electrical Transmission Lines on Christopher Way and D' Arcy
Parkway with PG& E; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Counci)  of the City of Lathrop does
hereby approve a budget amendment to increase the revenue received in fund 6030
in the amount of $ 131, 000 as follows;

Increase Revenue

6030- 50- 30- 318- 04- 50      $ 131, 000

342



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this llth day of October 2021, by
the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas Salvador Navarrete

City Clerk City Attorney

343



ATTACHMENT B

m

a

w

Kttdt+:a e+pt
H  ' x I Fld  

t 
I,. a vC Ci":.,,       i, C. Y a           

x   

x ;,, 
l%.

ir:      4  

4" ae Ls      ; 4} i i Rlg     
e +'  LJf] SC3" ICafl t    

r_', taC+       1 . fe t t  '        , t       `   

r ;.

e=: a       x    ,   

j3    ' 
a

ry       

t      

wifi 1  ,..    

i4 11+. F     j ` Y x

µ              _

m a k

i      .   

w .

m o

a '   

i ltt` tr; l,. $''à,.              a , ra,   a`       '.

C°'. 3t1.: iNy .     `+,       t.,5¢       ..   
d

KGai: n . ae. a   

t,

P tr t1.  ,
z+d° tse'  , 

ti     ;      
Ka . ,   yti

x     4

w.      

rw a.,,.       

e+    
k     #       "

e

ry"       

d ff  '   "'      - p     °`   Fi z'   d   a

p;'.      .-     #       ,    
t a   

v, 3, r, Srr „,.    :
r.

E       
@"  

y:  

s     #  

rf     

sT q   
a.°'"      . , 

P  A
a

w s     

Ri ,  
3-.`

e.   g
roA

sg,'.     P`        i

s r%  r'                
av       s"";.  `     ,'"'.      

h      

Y 
t.,    t'

c    ;    ' j i 4 Mr'-_   sCa $  

l 
F        M'   , p fi 9   1 4. 

f R+  r

6

h     

4

d• a'     

r            "             :      
x,

C S dt. 4 1. Q I'*     
c,,,     

a;;    ,,. , ,,    
r           ._,_     

r       s.' . 4     

Su( E ai c? i i
J``       ;,

9      R

i          

t yj "'    
a° ,

a F v 5. rY' . y,      . 
s.

i.,       
f,

i     x 1' 

t ya",;.,
p +

b` „     ",       

aj

7     ts  

r   ,;,  

4tI Fr,
x, b s  .       "`  

Ukd' tl+ T
r    :,

j  ,   p

k s

r,  

a5   "
f

b a       #

t .

i,       

yg=  `     n    

w

1y3        a'    

t  
x

u

w,.    
v',       z      '  Rt              ' e  , ""' z 

w

y c x  p,.` ^      :"       ,       
i     ?>. 4,   ;      

e

a

t'       
k.    

a r

3  . '     a,       

s``     
z

d

g     yt i°

r s       
v, , i'  "       

p,       x. aScY y
eAi`   '       

a

6'
f       '

G}`   '     p    

3 ,   0 e
e

y

t.

x  x

k.     : a r x
rt`_   "'    &'' "       `

il/, sw

z '  
aU  x'

r.w' a.  

J, t x..' ,+'..

r-"' `   '.

4 ' r g-
r, ew.. xi:. k ar ,    b

n, ,

r` ..-    '` p"":   3 4^ v+ ro1 P"'"`'° . t ,     i d  ' y d 

r`"

y  .

u,       ,'    , t,` ,...       "  .. w-     

d   "

y      ...`
w`. r:ae-       1 

r"' y;    .
r

r..  .
c'    .°"°

n` A s,,

z      an' 4           eF,; S t   ,

k., ,

e    
e,,,,'    ,:        y     " t ' i       ,:    .

a; a+, r' ,,  3  na
r    .     

o.    

m<

r n         -       ".      v,,,,"' 7-   ,    
p

r.'.  k

9    '  

s.,      +       

n
e

n

w„,. y

a"   .       r

r
q,.   

Yw ti .

l4,  .:., s   ,, 4:_       t1, , - e+,,    e   -       w_.                •    
y CL—

1+,-+ u1" fyUl d . t7i(       f[ t ffa r i  

P;{ rtn nj(' l.rrf 1 la L? lt5t    
e_  

a

x 5ttif, l I k' LN r"-.  E} p t,:'+ d Ut',- dG+'      p# [ Gd#' tls i fkt
p T"* J'. 4C: ktLn Ir4qR` Ct P[, e`uY:       

A YS' MII 15 k. r Fri' sltrt 11 k I at'
Ftd CS d 4' CIT3

ms a- c..,,-: r: a,, r, i:, i 4'=-:, aoy,  s x. 9, e.;,,:,:.,

sc c:= 5:`+ aa t , 7 1

344



ATTACHMENT C
ELEC? RICTRA?vS!vi35SIONEf1S AiEM'T( REV 03:` tt;

RECORUING REQUESTfiD BY FtETUR. N TO

PACIFIC GAS AND ELEC7WC CDMPANY

Z S hiarkel Street, NI DA, Rovm 1 l

P.0. 13ox 77(IOII

Su i Frvnciscn, Culifnrnin 9 177

Locntic n: Cit}°/ I..Tninc

Recording Fec$
Document Tr nsE' er'' nx$

This is A com eyance i here the considerution nd

Va1ue is less than$ lOt1. Ofl( f2& T 11411,

Con} uted on Fuil 7alue of Praperty Conv.g ed, ar
Computed an Pull Vuluc I,ess I. ieas

Encumhrances Remainin at Time of 5ale

j Exempt from the fee per GC 27388. 1 ( a}{ 2),' I is

document is subjec[ tQ cument a y Trunsfer 7 y

Si ature of di ciArttnt or a ent determinin ta*:

SPACE AIIOVE; FOR ItECOttI] ER' S USE ONLY}

LD#  2201- fld- IOU12 EASEMENT DEED

2 r=r 1 Ts1

Yiei• a T line I ei orcer re t

CITY( 7F LATHRC P, a Califc rn a municipal corporation,

GrAntar"}, in consid ration of value paid by; PACIFIC AS AN7 ELECTRIC Ct3MPANY, a

Cali£ornia corpflratic n {" rantee"}, the receipt of which is hereby acknawled ed, grants to
Grantee the ri ht tc excavate ft+r, construct, reconstruct, replace ( af initial or any other size),
remove, maintain, inspect, and use poles, towers, andtor other structures ( or any combination
thereof, . it such i ires and cables as tsrant e deems necessary for ihe transmissian and
distribution c f electric ener y and for comma nica ion purposes, and all nec ssary fc undations,
fa4tings,  crossarms,  guys,  anchors,  undergrt und ancl overhead  round wires,  and ot er

appliances, fixtures, and appurtenances, to; ether with a right of way, within tt e easement areas
described b l w, ying within Grantor' s l nds situated in t e City c f L throp, Caunty of San
Joaquin, State f Ca ifc rnia, tiescribed as fQltc ws:

t s- 3o- s ts- l as

See LANDS described in EXI IBIT" A" axtached h rett

Tl e easem nt reas are described as folloG- s:

See STRIP described in E: HI BIT" A" attach d hereto.

Cìr ntee' s L7rau in attached hereta as Ehr- II.T3IT<` B" #°ar ref rence purposes anly.

Cirantor further grants to Grantee:

a) the ri ht of in ress to and e ress frc m the easemenc ar c ver and across the lands 6y
means c f roads and lanes therec n, if such there be, otherv rise by such route or routes as shall
nccasic n the least practicable damage and inconvsnience tt finantc r, provided, that such ri ht of

345



in ress and egress shall not extcnd to any portion of the lands vhich is isolated from the
easement area by any public road or hi h« ay, nc; crossin; or hereafter crossi lg the lands;

b} the ri, ht,  frorn time ro tim, to trim or ta cut do r n, without Grantee paying
compensation, any and ali trees and brush no or hereafter iihin the easement area, and shall

have the further ri ht, from time ta time, to trim and cut do« n trees and brusll along each side af
the easement area vhich no v ar hereafter in thz, opinion of Grantee ma} interfere with or be a

hazard to the facilities instaJled hereunder, or as Grantee deems necessary ta comply with
applicable state or federal regulat ons;

c) the right from time to time to enlarge, improue, reconscruct, reEocate and replace any
facilities constructed hereunder rvith any othcr number ar ty pe o{` facililies either in the original
locatian or at an} aEternate loc tion or locations Lvithin the easernent area;

d) the ri hi to use s ch partian of the lands contiguous to ihe easement area as may be
reasc nably necessary in connection vith th exca ation, construciion, reconstruction,
replacement, rernoval, maintenance and inspectic n ofthe fàcilities;

e} the ri ht ta install, maintain and use ; ates in all f'ences ti rhich no cross or shall

hereafter crass the easement area; and

fl the right to mer: the location c f the easement area by suitable markers set in the
round; provided that the markers shall b plaeed in fences c r otl er lacations hich will not

nterf re with any reasonable use Grantor st all m ke of t e easement area.

Grai tee covenants and agrees:

a) not to fence ihe easen} ent arc:a;

b} to repair any d 3mage ta tl e lands caused by Grante: as result af exercising its ri; ht c f
irs rc:ss and egress ranted herein; and

c} ko indemnify C'.,ra tor against any ioss anci dama; e vhich shall b caused by any
ti+ ron ful or ne ligent aci or omissian af C; rantee r of' its agents or employces in the course of

their emplayment, pravided, ho vever, thai ttais inde nity sl all not e` tend to that portion ofsuc}}
Pos or dama e that shall have been caused by Grantor' s cc nparati e ne ligence r willful

rnisc; ond act.

irantor reserves the right to use tne easen cnt area fc r purposes which will nat intcrfere
u itl Grantee' s full enjoyme.ni of ihs rights her b} rarneci; rovided that Grantor shall nc t:

place or consiruct, nc r alloiv a third } arty ta place car cc ns ruct, any buildin oe atlier
structure, or stcrre flammablc substances, or drill or operate ang « rell ( eYce t far Grar tc r' s

aistin  maniiaring  cll shawn on CXHI43[ I;  " B'`),  or canstruct any reservoir c r other
obstruction witl in t3 e e sement area, ar dinainis or substantial y add to the ; round level vithii

346



the easement area, or construct any fences ihat vill interfere with the maintenance and o eration
of the facilities; and

b) deposic, or allow to be deposited, earth, rubbish, debris or any othcr substance or
material, whether combustible or nancornbusEible, evithin the easement area, vhich now or

hereafter in the opinion of Grantee may interfere vith ar be a hazard to the facilities installed
liereunder.

RICNLAND CROSSROADS, L. f'., recained autt matic reversianary ri hts to the lands as
addressed in the CiEy of, athrop' s Certificate of' Acceptance that stated, "" 1' his is to certit'y that
the interest in reai property convey ed by the Grant Dee with Rigflt to Reverter dated May 26,
2015 and recorded as do ument number 2015-06?316, San Joaquin County Records, fro n
Richland Crossroads, L. P., to the City c f Lat} lro, nunicipa! corporation and avernmental

a ency in the County of San Joaquin, State of Ca( ifornia, is hereby accepted by order of the City
Council of the City of Lathrop, on May 4, ? O( 5, It m l. 2. 2, anci the granlee consents to the
recordation theret f b} its duly authorized oi icer." Ricl land Crassroads, [.. P. r o v cansents to

the conveyance of tlie easement ri ltts rovided for herein being ; ranted b the City flF Lathrc p
to Pacific Gas and Clectric Company.

T17e provisions i ereof shall inur. to tile beneiit f and bind the successars and assi, ns of

the respective parties hereto, and a! I covena ts shall a ply to and run vith the land.

Dated 0

C] TY tJF i' I" I-! Rt)P, a Calit'ornia munici al corporation

By

f' rint name and tiile

RIC!- II, AND CR SSRO DS, L. 4'., a CaliFc rnia lin ited partnership

ay
o C, Trout tn, n

a b' Yu r

rint name and i c

347



I hereby certEfy that a resoluiion was
ac34pted

flz tl day of_.___.____
n_'—____;by t# e

uthflrizin tlie fore oin; graa t oFeasernrnl.

Y ,..      

Area 6

Sacramenio Land Services Office

Line of Business: Electric Trans nissio{?}

t3usiness Doc Type: Easement

N1" TRSQ; 22. 01. 06. 35. 32, 22. 02. 05.( 12. 4
PG YcE Dr ving Number( s): SL- 1SXX
PLAT N0. Y 1010& Y I 106

LD o1' any af7ected docunients: N11
LD t f'; ny Cross- referenced dncumenis: NA
TYPE OF iNTEREST: Electric Tawcr l. inc asett: nl ( 2), E( ectric Pole Line Easernent { 3},

lectric Under round Easem ni( 4), Cc tr municatinn Easement( 6)

513 (' arce! Number: NA

rder# ar E' M : 7401# 761

JCN: 06- 15- 0 2

County: San Joaquin
S 1 Approval Application Na.  Decisian

Prepared £ iy; CKF?
Checked By: CXC7Q
Revision Nu ber: I

RCCO( 2C 7"- 115 I' AGE ' iTN DC} CUMENT

348



CAUFORNIA ACKNOWLEDGMENT C! V! L COE3E  1189

A notary pu6lic or ather offi+cer completing this tertfticate verifies only the identity of the individual wha signed the document
to whith this certificate is atiached, and not the iruzhfulness, accuracy, or validity af that document.

State of Calif ia

County af--,`-' "
t

On  ;  : F 2 i befare me,    Pss; c  
o :     

Date Nere Insert Nome arrd Tiite o the O c r

personally appeared L...   '.„ r., p„

Name( s) of Signer( s)

who paaved to me on ihe basis o# satisfactary evidence to be the persan{ s} whose name} isla subscribed

to the within instrument and acknowiedg d to me that he/ s Ithe%'ex cuted the s me in his/ h fhh

aukharized capacity( i lsj, and that by hislhqtlth ir signature j on the instrument th person( g}; or the entity
upon behait af which the person acted, xecuted the instrument,

I certify under PENAI.TY OF PERJURY under the

lav s oE the itate af CaliFarnie ihat khe Faregt ing
p ragraph is true and correct.

JESSttA TOOHEY
r''"<.    

xoca Puhtic- California WI' NE5S my hand and of#icial seal.a,,       rY

Orange CeLntYy}

wx    Cammission R 2292 f 15
A,.y temm, Expires J n 4, 2023

r

r         .

Signature..-       -         

Ploce Notary Seat an i/or Stamp Above Signe7ture Of Nota Public

pTION1 L

Cornpfeting this in; ormation con deter aJterotion of the document or
froudu/ ent reatiachment of this form ta an unintended document.

Description ot Attach d Docurnent

Title or Type of Document:

Document Date:    Number of Pages:

Signer( s} pther Than Named Above:

Capaci#y{ies} Cl s'ra ed by S3gner( s}
Sigrer' s Name:    Signer' s Name:

Corporate O cer- m Title{ s};   Corparate Officer- TiEle{ s}:

O Par#ner-  Limit d C7 General ParEner-  Limited  General

Individual 0 Attarney in Fact Individual O Attarney in Fact
Trustee o Guardian or Conseroator     Trustee o Guardian or Conseroator

ther:    Other:

Signer is Representing:   Sfgner is Representingr

2019 National Notary Association

349



LD 2? Oi- 06- 1d012

7401476] ( 06- 15- 072}

Vierra T- line Rein(' orcemeni

EXftIBIT " A"

LANDS:

PARCELS 7 and 8 as shau upon the Parcel Map filed for record July 28, 240 in
Boc k 23 of P. rccl Ma s at pa; e A7, San Joaquin County R cords.

STRIP:

A strip of land of ihe uniform width af { 0 feet extending from the southwesterly
i oundary Iine of s id PARCE, 8 nortl3easterly and southeasterly to the southeasteriy
boundary line of said PARCEL 7 and lying 30 feet c n eacl side of the { ine described as
fallows:

Beginning at a pc int in tl e southwNsterly boundary( ine of said PAI2CEi. 8 and runnin;   
thence

1) north b3° 32' 11" east 41, b4 feet, more ar less,  

ta a point wtucta bears north 8t° 8' S5" east 94. 80 feet distant from the foun 3 2 '/ z inc3 brass

disk in manument well marking the intersectian af Christopher Way and ll' arcy Parkway as
sho vn upc n said Parcel Ivlap filed for recard 3Uly 28, 2004; thence continuin;

2} south 67° 16' 18" easi 590, 72 feet, more ar less,

to a point in the souTheasterly bc undary line of said FA CLi. 7; excepting iherefrom any
partic n there f lying outside af said PARCELS 7 and .

Cantaining 0. 871 acr s, morc or Iess.
LaraC

w

a EF'. 1 1'      -;

a FINL 1`      x

59228     .

Zs? x    .     
c c

F'

The basis c f bearings used is based on the centerline of Christopher Way which
ccor in; to said Pttrcel h ttp lias a be rin af I 63° 32' 3", takea as N 63° 33' 2G" .

Page 1 af 1

350



T. 1 5„ R. 5 E., MDM

sEc. ss, sw ifa ofi sE ila

BASfS aF BEARiNGS:   SEC. 35, SE ]/ 9 OF SW 1/ 4

TME CENTERLINE OF CHRIST4PHER WAY AS SHQWfJ UPON
23 PM 47, FILED JULY 29, 2004, S. J. C. R., WHICN ACCORDING
TO SAID MAP HAS A BEARING OF N 83" 32'30" E, TAK N
AS N 63° 33' 26` E.

N A c. $
pMA7

Q FYN' R: cr r o t,a r r roP

1 PN 14+8- I D- 55

n;171IJ1 S- Od23lb
pA G. 7

N 86° 58' 55" E

94. 80'

2 112" BRASS D1SK
N 63° 32' 11' E p; Yh'F.R: CIT}' f" LATKTtt) P

IN MON. WELL
t 4t. 64

A!' h' 19R- 13- 57
PER 231PMf47

o Q'

STRIP 4C}
J'    POB r,.,  EASEMENT W1DTti= 60'     O

R 6`'.,   AREA= Q. 871 ACRE

ts:; la^  oiy
r

so y,. `    „      QS
r

e       '

a O    `'`_,,,,    ' o

r''/" a.      f

jJC?.
1,   

f, *°'\

G'   O t
V     LS
ra

F"

ARGEL   pQ'
C1

P4

14tiU
4'

O
y1

r

UNGESS OiHER4Vl5E 5H0' NN AlL COURSES EXTENO TO R ALQNG AtL BGilPdDARIES OR LINES.

AUTHORIZATIQN

74Q14761 EXHIBIT * g      
ra iS072

gY
a Ea N. VALLEY

OR EKF2
Vi RRA LQOPING 4scE N NE

AQUIlJ

ClTY OF LATHRiJP
CH CxOt   

I. ATl iRUP, CA s+ ser wo.   +,.     oF t

CJ. K. EKF2
pACIFIC GA8 AIVD ELECTFt{ C G( MPANY

dRA4MNGNUMHEFt cN,aivc

QATE 911512020 San Francisco Cali#omia
S-' ISXX

351



ATTACHMENT D

P c` f'ic Gas and

E1ec#ric Company,

LETTER AGREEMENT

June 30, 2021

Glenn Gebhardt

City of Lathrop

Re:  Vierra Looping, Electric Transmission Project
APN: 198- 130- 35, 36, 59/ 18800 Christopher Way, Lathrop CA.

Dear Mr. Gebhardt:

At Pacific Gas and Electric Company ( PG& E), we' re committed to strengthening our electric
transmission system to better serve our communities.  As part of that commitment, we are moving
forward with our Vierra Looping Electric Transmission Project. in order to facilitate the Project, PG& E
proposes to acquire a new easement through your property.  Here are the key terms:

1.  Premises: 1. 492 acres in San Joaquin County with APN' s 198- 130- 35, 36, 59.
2.  Type of Agreement: Permanent Easement.

3.  Price: $ 131, 000.

4.  Use: Overhead Electrical Transmission Line.

5.  Conditions: See LD # 2201- 06- 10008.

Copies of the easement deed is enclosed for your consideration and signature.  Signatures to the
easements must be acknowledged by a notary. An IRS W-9 form is also included and must be
completed and signed in order to process your payment. Please return the signed W- 9 form and the
notarized.

Please contact me with any questions or if you need assistance with notarization.

Sincerely,

Jeff Aldal, SR/ WA, Senior Right of Way Agent
June 30, 2021

Please sign and date to indicate your agreement with the above referenced terms:

Signature:    Date:

Title:

352



ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION EASEMENT

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND RETURN TO:

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY

245 Market Street, NIOA, Room 101 S

P.O. Box 770000

San Frczncisco, California 94177

Location: City/ Uninc
Recording Fee$
Document Transfer Tax$

This is a conveyance where the consideration and

Value is less than$ 100. 00( R& T 11911).

Computed on Full Value of Property Conveyed, or
Computed on Full Value Less Liens

Encumbrances Remaining at Time of Sale
Exempt from the fee per GC 27388. 1 ( a)( 2); This
document is subject to Documentary Transfer Tax

SPACE ABOVE FOR RECORDER' S USE ONLY)
Si nature of declarant or a ent determinin tax

LD#  2201- 06- 10008 EASEMENT DEED

9 20 4( 74014761)

vierra T- line Reinforcement

CITY OF LATHROP, a California municipa( corporation,

Grantor"), in consideration of value paid by PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY, a
California corporation (" Grantee"), the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, grants to
Grantee the right to excavate for, construct, reconstruct, replace ( of initial or any other size),
remove, maintain, inspect, and use poles, towers, and/ or other structures ( or any combination
thereofj, with such wires and cab( es as Grantee deems necessary for the transmission and
distribution of electric energy and for communication purposes, and all necessary foundations,
footings,  crossarms,  guys,  anchors,  underground and overhead ground wires,  and other

appliances, fixtures, and appurtenances, together with a right of way, within the easement areas
described below, ] ying within Grantor' s lands situated in the City of Lathrop, County of San
Joaquin, State of California, described as follows:

APN ] 98- 130- 35, 36, 59)

See LANDS described in EXHIBIT " A" attached hereto

The easement areas are described as fo( lows:

See STRIP described in EXHIBIT" A" attached hereto.

Grantee' s Drawing Number SL- 1593 is attached hereto as EXHIBIT `B" for reference

purposes only.

Grantor further grants to Grantee:

a) the right of ingress to and egress from the easement area over and across the lands by
means of roads and lanes thereon, if such there be, otherwise by such route or routes as shall

353



occasion the least practicable damage and inconvenience to Grantor, provided, that such right of
ingress and egress shall not extend to any portion of the lands which is isolated from the
easement area by any public road or highway, now crossing or hereafter crossing the lands;

b) the right,  from time to time,  to trim or to cut down,  without Grantee paying
compensation, any and all trees and brush now or hereafter within the easement area, and shall
have the further right, from time to time, to trim and cut down trees and brush along each side of
the easement area which now or hereafter in the opinion of Grantee may interfere with or be a
hazard to the facilities installed hereunder, or as Grantee deems necessary to comply with
applicable state or federal regulations;

c) the right from time to time to en( arge, improve, reconstruct, relocate and replace any
facilities constructed hereunder with any other number or type of facilities either in the original
location or at any alternate location or locations within the easement area;

d) the right to use such portion of the lands contiguous to the easement area as may be
reasonably necessary in connection with the excavation, construction, reconstruction,
replacement, removal, maintenance and inspection of the facilities;

e) the right to install, maintain and ise gates in all fences which now cross or shall
hereafter cross the easement area; and

the right to mark the location of the easement area by suitable markers set in the
ground; provided that the narkers shall be placed in fences or other locations which will not
interfere with any reasonable use Grantor shall make of the easement area.

Grantee covenants and agrees:

a) not to fence the easement area;

b) to repair any damage to the lands caused by Grantee as result of exercising its right of
ingress and egress granted herein; and

c) to indemnify Grantor against any loss and damage which shall be caused by any
wrongful or negligent act or omission of Grantee or of its agents or employees in the course of

their emp( oyment, provided, however, that this indemnity shall not extend to that portion of such
loss or damage that shall have been caused by Grantor' s comparative negligence or willful
misconduct.

Grantor reserves the right to use the easement area for purposes which will not interfere
with Grantee' s full enjoyment of the rights hereby granted; provided that Grantor shall not:

a) place or construct, nor allow a third party to place or construct, any building or other
structure, or store flammable substances, or drill or operate any well ( except for Grantor' s
existing monitoring well shown on EXHIBIT  ` B"),  or construct any reservoir or other
obstruction within the easement area, or diminish or substantially add to the ground level within

354



the easement area, or construct any fences that will interfere with the maintenance and operation
of the facilities;

b) deposit, or allow to be deposited, earth, rubbish, debris or any other substance or  
material, whether combustible or noncombustible, within the easement area, which now or

hereafter in the opinion of Grantee may interfere with or be a hazard to the facilities installed
hereunder; and

c) construct a conductive fence in the easement area within 8 feet of any pole, tower,
and/ or other structure installed by Grantee.

The provisions hereof shall inure to the benefit of and bind the successors and assigns of
the respective parties hereto, and all covenants shali apply to and run with the land.

Dated 20

CITY OF LATHROP, a California municipal corporation

By

Print name and title

By

Print name and title

I hereby certify that a resolution was
adopted

On the day of 20    , by the

authorizing the foregoing grant of easement.

By

355



Area 6

Sacramento Land Services Office

Line of Business: Electric Transmission ( 42)

Business Doc Type: Easement

MTRSQ: 22. 01. 06. 35. 23, 22. 01. 06. 35. 32, 22.02. 06. 02.44
PG& E Drawing Number( s): SL- 1593

PLATNO. Y1010 & Y1106

LD of any affected documents: NA
LD of any Cross- referenced documents: NA
TYPE OF INTEREST: Electric Tower Line Easement ( 2), Electric Pole Line Easement ( 3),

Electric Underground Easement ( 4), Communication Easement( 6)

SBE Parcel Number: NA

Order# or PM #: 74014761

JCN: 06- 15- 072

County: San Joaquin
851 Approval Application No.   Decision

Prepared By: EKF2
Checked By: CXOQ
Revision Number: 3

RECORD THIS PAGE WITH DOCUMENT

356



LD 2201- 06- 10008

74014 61 ( 06- 15- 0 2)

Viena T- line Reinforcement

EX IIBIT "A"

LANDS:

PARCEL 2 as shown upon the Parcel Map filed for record February 20, 1990 in
Book 16 of Parcel Maps at page 184, San Joaquin Cvunty Records, and the parcel of land
described in the deed from River Islands Public Financing Authority to the City of
Lathrop dated November 18, 2016 and recorded as document number 2017- 019108, and
the parcel of land described in the quitclaim deed from Crossroads Crea Investors, LLC,
to the City of Lathrop dated December 23, 2003 and recorded as document number 2003-
293368, San Joaquin County Records.

STRIP:

A strip of land of the uniform width of 40 feet lying contiguous to and
southeasterly of the southeasterly boundary line of Christopher Way ( 60 feet wide) and
extending from the northeasterly boundary line of said PARCEL 2, southwesterly
1, 625. 00 feet( measured along said southeasterly boundary line).

Containing 1. 492 acres, more or less.

o
aP- ANp V`

u
C'

c r" ;<.      
a

Q      f-t,...

Ftiitii_ Y      

S9        

202    
TF OF C A F

Page 1 of 1

357



T. 1 S., R. 6 E., MDM
O,

SEC. 35, S 1/ 2 of SW 1/ 4 y

T. Z S., R. 6 E., MDM C/-

SEC. 2, N 1/ 2 of NW 1/ 4
A

9,Q     
GL"

9{-

APPROX. LOCATION EXISTING
MONITORING WELL

a
9,'     ,

A F,
9 s

STRIP      '   
EASEMENT WIDTH= 40'

AREA= 1. 492 ACRES  '    

PARCE   ti4 //
23 PM o     /   

PAR EL 2
Py '    //       16PM184

Q-

Q      

c    / od

G`       "     bo
O

OWNER:    

CITYOFLATHROP tiq
DN2004- 270240 Q

APN I98- 130- 59

PARCEL 4

OWNER:

CITY OF LATHROP

OWNER:

CITYOFLATHROP

DN 2077- 019108

APN 198- I30- 36

t

OWNER:

CITY OF LATHROP

APN 198- 130- 35 DN 2003- 293368

UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN ALL COURSES EXTEND TO OR ALONG ALL BOUNDARIES OR LINES.

AUTHORIZATION

74014761 EXHIBIT 8 
cN 06- 15- 072

BY
AREA N. VALLEY

DR EKF2
VIERRA LOOPING couNTv SAN JOAQUIN

CITY OF LATHROP
SCALE NONE

CH CXOQ
LATHROP, CA SHEETNO.         oF   

O. K. EKF2
PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY

DRAWINGNUMBER CHANG

DATE 9/ 15/ 2020 San Francisco California SL- 1593

358



ITEM 4. 17

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       ACCEPTANCE OF REMAINING PUBLIC

IMPROVEMENTS FOR TRACT 4017,  PHASE iBi,  IN

THE CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN AND

RELEASE ASSOCIATED BONDS AND DEPOSIT

SECURITY

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Accepting Remaining Public

Improvements for Tract 4017,  Phase 1B1 in the

Central Lathrop Specific Plan,     and Release

Associated Bonds and Deposit Security

SUMMARY:

Lathrop Land Acquisition,  LLC  ( Saybrook),  the developer for the Central Lathrop
Specific Plan   ( CLSP),   has completed construction of the remaining public
improvements listed in the GASB 34 reports ( Attachment C) for Tract 4017 depicted
in Attachment B,  Phase 1B1,  in accordance with their Subdivision Improvement
Agreement ( SIA). These improvements have been inspected by the City Staff and
have been deemed complete.

Saybrook has provided a one- year warranty bond based on 10% of the completed

improvement construction cost and a lien release for the improvements being
accepted.     Staff recommends City Council accept the public improvements in
accordance with City specifications.

BACKG ROU N D:

On October 5, 2006, the City approved a Vesting Tentative Map ( VTM) for Tract 3533
to create 62 parcels on 960 acres of land.   On March 20, 2007, the City approved a
VTM for Tract 3647 to subdivide a portion of Tract 3533 into 1, 071 parcels on 190
acres of land.   On August 13,  2018, the City approved VTM 3967 to subdivide a
portion of Tract 3533 into 113 parcels on 18 acres of land to replace the previously
planned school location with residential lots.   The land for Tract 4017 is within the

geographic boundaries of the VTMs for Tracts 3647 and 3967.

On January 11,  2021,  City Council approved Tract 4017,  establishing 311 single-
family lots.  As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance, the approved Tract 4017
included an SIA to guarantee certain public improvements associated with the final
map. On May 10, 2021, City Council approved the partial acceptance of the public
improvements for Tract 4017,   Phase 1B1,   which excluded the following
improvements:

l.  Sidewalk,  Slurry Seal and Striping for Barbara Terry Boulevard as noted in
Paragraph 6 of the SIA.

359



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPTANCE OF REMAINING PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR TRACT 4017,
PHASE 1B1,  IN THE CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN,  AND RELEASE

ASSOCIATED BONDS AND DEPOSIT SECURITY

2.  Traffic signal for Golden Valley Parkway and Stanford Crossing as noted in
Paragraph 7 of the SIA.

3.  Stage 2 recycled water storage and disposal facilities as noted in Paragraph 9

of the SIA.

The sidewalk,  slurry seal and striping for Barbara Terry Boulevard as well as the
traffic signal for Golden Valley Parkway and Stanford Crossing have been completed.
City staff has inspected the improvements and confirmed that they were completed
in accordance with City specifications and approved plans.   Saybrook has provided
sufficient security for the Stage 2 recycled water storage and disposal facilities with
the SIA for Tract 4017 and therefore no additional security is necessary.

Staff recommends the release of Performance Bond No. PB01987300002 in the sum

of  $ 11, 855, 574. 46 and Labor and Materials No.  PB01987300002 in the sum of

5, 927, 787. 23 in addition to Saybrook' s cash deposit in the amount of $ 440, 000 as

guarantee for the completed traffic signal.

Saybrook has provided the one- year warranty bonds based on 10% of the completed

improvements construction cost listed in Table 1 below and lien releases from each

contractor ( Attachment D) for the improvements being accepted.  Staff recommends

City Council accept the public improvements in accordance with City specifications.

Table 1

Contractor Scope of Work Bond Number Bond Value

Pacific Excavation Inc.       Traffic Si nal 3716156M 44, 836. 60

Teichert Construction Barbara Terr 070212854- M 23, 861. 45

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff has inspected the remaining improvements for Tract 4017 and confirmed that
the improvements listed in Attachment C have been completed in accordance with

City specifications.  Saybrook has submitted a master lien release,  confirming all
contractors have been paid in full and a one- year maintenance bond for the
improvements being accepted. Staff recommends Council accept the improvements

identified in Attachment C to allow for the City to provide maintenance.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The City' s maintenance costs will increase because of the additional improvements
that have to be maintained.  The Service Maintenance CFD 2019- 02 has been

established to fund City maintenance and operating costs.

360



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPTANCE OF REMAINING PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR TRACT 4017,

PHASE 1B1,  IN THE CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN,  AND RELEASE

ASSOCIATED BONDS AND DEPOSIT SECURITY

The one- year warranty bond covers any repairs or replacements that become
necessary during the one- year period,  beginning with this acceptance,  due to

defective materials or workmanship in connection with the completed improvements.

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.       Resolution Accepting Remaining Public Improvements for Tract 4017, Phase
1B1, in the Central Lathrop Specific Plan, and Release Associated Bonds

B.       Vicinity Map - Tract 4017

C.       GASB 34 Report for Remaining Tract 4017 Improvements

D.       Lien Releases & Maintenance Warranty Bonds

361



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ACCEPTANCE OF REMAINING PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR TRACT 4017,

PHASE 1B1,  IN THE CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN,  AND RELEASE

ASSOCIATED BONDS AND DEPOSIT SECURITY

APPROVALS:

9 3o 2 z1
Brad ylor Date

Land Development Manager

G--  3 0- 2o Z t

Michael Ki Date

Director of Public Works

cj1 '. Z/
Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Engineer

af,1,  ,

Cari a Date

Financ irector

f  3  

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

a•'• Z 1

Stc en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

362



RESOLUTION NO. 21-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP ACCEPTING

REMAINING PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS FOR TRACT 4017, PHASE 1B1, IN THE

CENTRAL LATHROP SPECIFIC PLAN, AND RELEASE ASSOCIATED BONDS AND

DEPOSIT SECURITY

WHEREAS, on October 5, 2006, the City approved a Vesting Tentative Map
VTM) for Tract 3533 to create 62 parcels on 960 acres of land.  On March 20, 2007,

the City approved a VTM for Tract 3647 to subdivide a portion of Tract 3533 into
1, 071 parcels on 190 acres of land; and

WHEREAS, on August 13, 2018, the City approved VTM 3967 to subdivide a
portion of Tract 3533 into 113 parcels on 18 acres of land to replace the previously
planned school location with residential lots.   The land for Tract 4017 is within the

geographic boundaries of the VTMs for Tracts 3647 and 3967; and

WHEREAS, on January 11, 2021, the City Council approved one Final Map for
Tract 4017, establishing 311 single- family lots.  As required by the City' s subdivision
ordinance,  the approved Tract 4017 included an SIA to guarantee certain public
improvements associated with the final map; and

WHEREAS, on May 10, 2021, City Council approved the partial acceptance of
the public improvements for Tract 4017,  Phase 1B1, which excluded the following
improvements:

1.  Sidewalk,  Slurry Seal and Striping for Barbara Terry Boulevard as noted in
Paragraph 6 of the SIA.

2.  Traffic signal for Golden Valley Parkway and Stanford Crossing as noted in
Paragraph 7 of the SIA.

3.  Stage 2 recycled water storage and disposal facilities as noted in Paragraph 9

of the SIA; and

WHEREAS, the sidewalk, slurry seal and striping for Barbara Terry Boulevard as
well as the traffic signal for Golden Valley Parkway and Stanford Crossing have been
completed.  City staff has inspected the improvements and confirmed that they were
completed in accordance with City specifications and approved plans; and

WHEREAS, Saybrook has provided sufficient security for the Stage 2 recycled
water storage and disposal facilities with the SIA for Tract 4017 and therefore no

additional security is necessary; and

WHEREAS,   staff recommends the release of Performance Bond No.

PBQ1987300002 in the sum of  $ 11, 855, 574. 46 and Labor and Materials No.

PB01987300002 in the sum of $ 5, 927, 787. 23 in addition to Saybrook' s cash deposit

in the amount of $ 440, 000 as guarantee for the completed traffic signal; and

363



WHEREAS,  Saybrook has provided the one- year warranty bonds based on
10% of the completed improvements construction cost listed in Table 1 below and

lien releases from each contractor ( Attachment D of the City Manager' s Report) for

the improvements being accepted:

Table 1

Contractor Scope of Bond Number Bond Value

Work

Pacific Excavation Inc.   Traffic Si nal 3716156M 44, 836. 60

Teichert Construction Barbara Terr 070212854- M 23, 861. 45

Staff recommends City Council accept the public improvements in accordance with
City specifications; and

WHEREAS,  the City' s maintenance costs will increase because of the

additional improvements that have to be maintained. The Service Maintenance CFD

2019- 02 has been established to fund City maintenance and operating costs.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Lathrop
does hereby accept the completed public improvements listed in Attachment C of the
City Manager' s Report dated October 11,  2021,  from Lathrop Land Acquisition to
allow for the City to provide maintenance and authorize the City Clerk to release the
associated bonds and deposit security.

364



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11t" day of October 2021, by

the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:    APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas Salvador Navarrete

City Clerk City Attorney

365



ATTACHMENT B
d   `+.,         " w.  + k. E#   '

g          " 
u

a

t    
o

I,.+ k "         
a g      ..    

t
i,       N

W      "+ 
1 J   }

r' k z ^' o°;+    dw r
I", r''' J-,°   ,. N i      > 

z     ar°^,' r r'°

y`', 

f   `-  
s,        N

a    . f    p ',' 7" y 3           
y      

ra
ey s          "

g  '"        '+          . .
o

fi'* • Jg„       cf " 1    "    
4          S      

O

N
r;.  r„- r:".  

o  ,

u   

t I  w

a o z

o         

5
S  ,  

z      

N G    
a

1

1 S

31Nt O cUn

a

M

N O
o

t , ,  ,     `_

K_`,
r;     W p.

c , i yg"       Z ( D

Ez w 
a f      

r

a? k  .'•     

r

Q
d

4g_       f:  s a

Q

4  ,   d

Qa

e.. '. 5

b     

J Ofl

i-      ,.       '  

i.  
5    ,

f,

Z
v

U
P y   

k % L";,     f

i `}

r a, 

a

xa(
s       

U p      ;,  a a z
i

a ti

Q      t l" 

8     

3 1   

b t      

g   

s

b

ry p
y b 8. y      

aBa
51

ox' a    .

i       ; c e_  q   

i'   g,  Q       :'°` a  a'' Q

d  t          a              ;      ' 
Q, y,:  „ ffi.   t

w'k
U i,  5

ti      a       z     
z rU e  `        .'         a

W t             ,   r  .    t

t 

y
4'„,.    '  '

re
A

q  

k"      

M

n F

y

q    « r`'   «  F-    

a x q t

a
k

y

x

3     

r^

y
w      

6   . 

r    .   
M f

Q   3' t  ;  ,° C?   C" a ' 

r

s  " .   '"

J"      
Q s, s  f R

p      
1

r
t

Nw
d

Z    S,£      ` e   ,.       

W      °': s.     s:,

U             w^;     a

i
c  . a      '  "» a,.,„",.`

s,.,`" {;."'

k';  1   ,

a'     °   '  v   '       " w
x

e<`        „  

y+      .     "  `'
b

i"`  r   .      

t   ;  ,

r%    4y b i    Ili    .l
i t'     ' f i;  

r  
d

r          '`  ,       °°'       
b

ys      ,,     r.

r`.`     

r

a    '  '   d`   3 u` n;
a             

s   ' u '°°„°``'    , .

t,      `          ';,

4

ap   . Y
3       ,. j ",,Tu d` f f      '` s M dd  _

6 9 n k  [:£ d,."f e'
q wu

s      ' _     +   

k       .      

f.'

d      
aw}     .; s` a a  €

m

Q         

m   , .„ .

366



ATTACHMENT C

CITY OF LATHROP

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE

GASB 34 REPORT)

Date: 10/ 1/ 2021

Submitted by: MacKay& Somps

Central Lathrop Specific Plan- Traffic Signal- Golden Valley Parkway and Stanford Crossing- Lathrop, CA

Based on Improvement and Grading Plans prepared by TJKM dated April 2021

Item Unit Quantitv Unit Cost Cost

Signal at Golden Valley Parkway and Stanford Crossing LS 1 400, 000 400, 000

Striping LS 1 5, 000 5, 000

Signing LS 1 5, 000 5, 000

Total:      410, 000

367



ATTACHMENT D

To:     City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

NOTICE OF WAIVER AND RELEASE

5aybrook CLSP, LLC has received Unconditional Waiver and Release On Final Payment forms

from contractor( s) it engaged for construction of the following improvement:

Stanfard Crossing Neighborhaods Phase 1B Sidewalks & Slurry SeaUStriping

Copies of those documents are attached to this Notice.

Those documents waive and release lien, stop payment natice, and payment bond rights the
claimants had for all labor and service provided, and equipment and material delivered, f'or the
wark of improvement Iisted above.

In addition, CLSP certifies:

1)  To the best of its knowledge, any and all persons entitled to record mechanics lien, stop
payment notices or payment bond claims for labor, service, equipment, or material
pravided to the work of improvement identified above have been paid in full; and

2)  That it has not received any notice or ctaim frc m any persons entitled to record
mechanics lien, stop payrnent no iees or payment bond claims for labor, service,
equipment, or material pravided to the work of improvement identified above.

SAYBRUOK CLSP, LLC Date:         2' 7 02

By:     Saybrook Fund Investors, LLC

Its:     Managing Member
f

By:     
Jeffr M. Wilson

6513A. 40001 32757210. t

368



S ' f',c
S      

A       

UNCC? NDITiONA WAiVER AND REC. EASE t}N FlNAL PAYMENT ',.
p  `

3,

PAYMENT NOTICE AN PAYMENT BOMD R G HTS UNCON TIUNALL. Y AND
P `

G

STATES THAT YOU HAVE BEEN PAI FC1R GtViNG UP TNOSE RIGHTS. THiS
DOCUMENT iS ENFURCEABL. E AGAINST Yt U IF Y4U SIGN IT, EVEN iF YfJU HAVE
NOT BEEN PAID. iF YOU HAVE NC} T BEEN PA1D, USE A C{ 7NDiTlt} NAL WAIVER
AND RELEASE F4RM.

Identifying Infarmation

M11ame of Claimant: Teichert Constructian

Name o Customer: Saybrook CI.SP, LC

Job Loeation;      
i H8 Z5ff D PFT1 SE- i

Owner: Saybrook CI SP, LC

Unconditiona6 Waiver and Release

This documet t waives and releases lien, stop payrnent notice, and payment bond rights the claimant
has for a( I labor and service provided, and equipment and material delivered, to the custamer on this

job. Rights based upor labor or service provided, or equipment or materiaf delivered, pursuant to a
written change order that has been fuSiy exeeuted by the parties prior to the daie th t this doeument is
signed by the claimant, are waived and r leased by this docume#, ur fess lis#ed as an Excepfian

belaw. The claimant has besn paid in fu11.

Exceptions

This document does not af ect any of the foilawing:
Disputed claims for extras in the amaunt of: $ p. pp

Signature

Claimant' s Signature\ ., 1,,      ',.  y-. g     --`''------'

Claimant' s' tltle: Jennife` ones- Di  ns,/ t. reditAnalyst

Date af Signa#ure: Q9l2712a21

7i1/ 12

369



Ai. tFORN1/ 1t A1. 1.- PURP45E ACKNOWl. EDt M NT C( VIL COE3E§ 1i89
s-,        ,.>. t,  fx< n  ., a",  :.-:  ..,,.

A no#ary pubiic ar other offiicer complsting this certificaie verifies or ly the identi#y of the indi idual wha signed th
document ta which this certifcate is attached, and nat the# ruthfta{ ness, accuracy, or validity of that document.  

State of Catifo nia

County of_ San Joaquin-----       -_____.______.  )

On 9. 27f242i before m,_ L. Nimc ct cs, Notar} r Pubfic
C1afe Nere Inserf IVame and Ne c f the Offieer

personally appeared ___   
Jennifpr Jones- Dickens

Narrte( j ot Signer#}

wht proved to rr e on the basis c f satisfactory evid nc tcr t e the person(} whase name{ t} is.
sukrscribed ta the within instrument and acknowleciged to me that D she1 sxeCuted the sarne in
t3i' lherf autharized eapacity('s', and that by BG' therf3 signature} on the instrumeni the person(,
ar the entiiy u Zcan behalf of which the person( s) cted> execufed the instrument.

1 certify under PENA TY F PERJURY under the laws
c i the State of Califarnia that the foregoing paragraph
is true and correct.

WIT l SS m    ''"

LL~_

r Nuxocxs    Y E? nd at d officiaf seal,
v r oiae p, b sc Calit3r s- a

r t a`"     Sac ' oa4u: Caunry     >      i
5      -      

f Commissian i 2274968 r
My{ amm. Ex tros Jan 34,? 023

3 riStU'     

ignature of Naiary Public

Place fVofary Seai A6ove
PTtt3/ V,4L

7hough this section is opiianaf, camptetfng thrs ir fc rn atian c n d ter alferatron of the document ar
fr udulent reat#achment of this fc rm ia an urrintended documenf,

T3escriptitrn of Attach d Do ument
Title or Type of t3ocum nt: Documenf Da#e
Number of P ges: _      ___ Signer( s} t ther Than Named Al3ove:     

apacity{ iesj CEaimed by Signer( s)
Signer' s Nam;____ igner" s Nam:
O Carporate C.lfficer — Title( s):__ 7 Gorparate Qifcer --- Ti#ie{s}   ,_

Pa tner — C Limit d C Gerc r!    t P rtner — Q im t ci   Genera!   __    
Cl individuel CJ Attomey in Fac#   1 Individual Atkomey in Fact
Cl Trustee uard; an or Gt nservatc r C: 3 Trustee C Guardian or Cons vatc r

iher: ___  Other:
Signer! s Repres ntin:._       _____    Si ner Is Representing--_       _______

w
r

@ZQ14 fa ienal No# ary As ociatian• wna w. Nafi qnalhintary. org
ti 1- S t- U NQTA fi'( 1- 00- 87- 6827   lte# b907

370



EXECUTED IN QUPL. ICATE
Bond No. 070212854- M

MAINTENANCE AND WARRANTY BOND

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:

WHEREAS, City of Lathrop, hereinafter called the Obligee or City, and Saybrook CLSP, LLC,
hereinafter called Saybrook, the developer for the Central Lathrap Specific Plan (" CLSP"},

entered into a Development Agreement dated December 5, 20I6, and subsequently a Subdivision
Improvement Agreement dated lanuary i 1,  2021,  requiring construction of certain offsite
improvements at Neighborhood Phase I B- 1 - Tract 40( 7 including, but not limited to, sidewalk,
slurry seal, signs, and striping (" Phase iB- 1 Offsite Improvements"), and

WHEREAS, A Teichert & Son, Inc., dha Teichert Construction hereinafter called the Principal

or Cantraetor, construeted and eompleted the Phase 1 B- 1 Offsite Improvements under a cot tract
with Saybroak dated October 15, 202Q; and

WHEREAS, the City has inspected the Phase 1B- 1 Offsite Improvements and deemed said
impravements to be complete and built to the Obligee' s specifications and the City Council of

Lathrop accepted the Phase t B- 1 Offsite Improvements at its meeting on October 11, 2021; and

WHEREA5, Saybrook is required to guarantee replacement andlor repair of the Phase iB- 1
Offsite Improvements as a result of defective materials, equipment or defective workmanship for
a period of one ( i) year from the date of acceptance of the Phase 1 B- 1 ffsite Improvements by

the City Council of Lathrop.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  Principal and Liberty Mutual Insurance Company  ,  hereinafter ca( led

Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the Obligee, in the penal sum of Twenty- Three Thousand
Eight I- undred SiXty-0ne and 45/ 100 Dollars ($ 23, 861. 45} the payment whereof Prineipal and
Surety bind themselves, their heirs, exect tors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and
severally, firmly by these presents.

The condition of this obligation is sach that, if Prineipal shall, up n reeeipt of notice in writing
from City, promptly investigate and make all repairs to the Phase 1B- 1 Offsite Improvements
ai•ising out of defective materials, workmanship, or equipment that appear within one ( 1) year
from the date City accepts the Phase lB- 1 Offsite Improvements, then this obligation shall be
null and void; other vise is shall remain in full force and effect.

PROViDED, HOWEVER, that the Obligee shall give Principal and Surety n tice of observed
defects with reasonable promptness.

City is hereby authorized to make such repairs, and the Principal and Surety shall be liable for
the cost thereof, if ten ( 10) days after giving of such notice to the Contractor, the Contractor has
failed to make or undertake the repairs with due diligence.  In case of emergency, where in the

opinion of the City delay could cause serious loss ar damage, repairs may be made without
notice being sent to the Contractor, and the expense in connectian therewith shall be charged to
the Contractor, and its Surety shall be liable for the cost thereof.

The Surety, for vatue received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time,
alteration or addition to the terms of the Development Agreement, Subdivisi n Improvement

65134. 0000 11343 4 1( 63. 1

371



Agreement, or to the Phase 1B- 1 Offsite Improvements to be perfarmed thereunder shall in any
way affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change,
extension af time, alteratian or addition to ttie terms of the Develapment Agreement, Subdivision

Improvement Agreement, or to the Phase 1B- 1 Offsite Improvements, including b it not limited
to the provisions of sections 2819 and 2$ 45 of the Califonlia Civil Code.

IN WiTNESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the Contractor and Surety
above named, on the 23rd day of September , 2021.

CONTRACTOR, as Princi al SURETY

A Teichert& Son, Inc., dba Teichert
iberry Mutual tnsurance Company

Construction

B ::  _   .   -       B

P`rini:   apx e J _  Cu 2 '`.— j'j t/  Print Name:   Natalie K. Trofimo

T tle' Ti{ l;    Attomey- In- Fact
f
1

Add ss:   - Address:

CS Val Der in Parkway
175 Berkeley Street

Stockt n; CA 95206
Baston, MA 02116

Sacramento, CA 95834

Attn.

NOTE: NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGMENT FOR SURETY AND SUIZE'I'Y'S POWER OF
TTORNF,Y MUST BE ATTACHED.

65 t 34. 00001 34381163. 1

372



A o A. i- u os AeK vow. Ea nn NT e v coa § 1789

A notary pt biic or other fficer completing this certificate ve iiies only the identizy of the
individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the     

truthfuiness, accuracy or validity of that document,

State of Caii€ornia

ss

County of Los Angeles

n before me,  Noerni Quiroz, NotarY Pubiic. Persanally pp ared

Natalie K.' rofimoff who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the

person{ s} whose name{ s} is a e subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged ta me
tha sh executed the same in # her{# e+ authorized capacity{+ es}, anci that i y

herl+,„,= signature{ s} on the instrument the person{ s}, or the entity upon behalf of which the

persora{} act d, executed the instrument.

I certi jr under PENALT` l OF PERJURY under the ( aws of the State of California that the foregoing

paragrap is t ue an carr ct.

V l1TNESS my hand and officia! seal.

5igna ure:

Sea1) iVoem uiroz, Notary Public

A

NOEMI QU ROZ
Notary Puhtic- Cal'tfornia

a   Los Angeles County
Commission x 2297839

My Comm. Expires Jun 26; 2023

373



This Power of Attomey limlts the acts of those named t rein, and they have no authority to
bind the Company e ccept in the manner and to the exterK herein stated.

Liberty Liberty Mutual Insurance Company

Mul.udl.    
The Ohio Casualty insurance Company CerUficate No: 8204962-977459

West Ameriqn insurance Company
SURETY

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOWN ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company a capora6a duly organized under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, that
Liberty Mutual Insurance Company is a c4rporation duty organized under the laws of the State of Massachusetts, and West American Insurance Company is a corporation duly organ¢ ed
under the laws of the State of Indiana( herein cdlectively cailed the" Companies, pursuant to and by authariry herein set forth, does hereby name, constitute and appant, C. K.
Nakamura, E. S. Albrecht Jr., Jessica L. Rosser, Lisa L. Thomton, Maria Pena, Natalie K. Trofimot Ncemi Quiroz, Patricia S. Arana, Tim M. Tomko

aIl of the aty of Los An eles state of CA each individually ff there be more than one named, its true and lawtul attomey- in- fad to make,
execxite, seal, acknowledge and deliver, for and on its beh f as surety and as iLs act and deed, y and aG undertakings, 6onds, recognizances and other surety obliga6ons, in pursuance
of these presents and shall be as binding upon the Canpanies as ff they have been duty signed by the p esidait and attested by the sec etary of the Companies in their own proper
persons.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Power of Attomey has bcen subsaibed by an authorized officer ar offiaal of fhe Companies and the caporate sea s of the Companies have been affared
thereto this 4th day of March    ,  2021 .

L ty Mutual tnsurance Company
Nsu ZY Ng Nsu The Ohio Casualty insurance Canpany

a`Pc O"
C+      gJPc°

O U y      .
Poo' OR,,':'       West Amerir.an Insurance Canpany

3      ° bm Q3 Fo +      3      Ot

1912 0 0 1919          1991 o N

S4CHU9~

p

a
y

MAYPaa`, aDO Yg NDIAN , aa C)

9i * yl *   M * 1      By'       m
David M. Carey, Assistant Secretary

cc̀ State of PENNSYLVANIA
ss

N County of MONTGOMERY
0

w 3 On this 4th day of March    ,  2021 before me persai ly appeared David M. Carey, wtw acknaxledged himself to be the Assistant Secretary of Liberty Mutu Insurance 
c6 Company, The Ohio Casualty Company, and West American Insurance Campany, and that he, as such, being authorized so to do, execute the fwegoing insirument for the purposes`•—

therein cantained by sgning on behalf of the corporations by himself a duly authorized officer.      
N

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto subscribed my name d affuced my notadai seai at t ng of PNssia, Pennsyivania, on the day and year first above written. 
c•    

FR
a O

0      
rZ,
k' Po' N5 F{     Commomr ith ot Pennsylvanie- Notary Seal

Qj O co'
x    ¢

l,
s.'. g,

Teresa stefla, N

n
PuAlic

f' B     
fd

Y b
l.da   11. 1:. L t-dvt?F

My mmmission expires March 28, 2625 BY;       
41

C p Canmis5ion number 1126044
y    `  eresa Pasteila, Notary Public Q o

qy Ng ŷL' P yC+     Member Pennsylvama Assoriation W Notaries r—ZS     
y iIJp

1'-

a       O

4; This Power of Attomey is made and executed pursuant to and by authority of the fdlowing By- laws and Aathorizatlons of The Ohio Casuafty Insurance Company, Liberty Mutua{

a Mfnsurance Company, and West American insurance Canpany which resolu6ons are now in fuli force and effect re ing foliows:

ARTICLE IV— OFFICERS: Section 12. Power of Attomey.       o 0
My oificer or othe official of the Corporatlon authorized for that purpose in wribng by the Chairtnan or the President, and subject to such limitation as the Chairman or the

o      President may prescribe, shall appant such attomeys- i- fad as may be necessary to ad in beha{ f of the Corporabon to make, execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver as surety 
any and aIl undertakings, bonds, recognizances and other surety obfiga6ons. Such attomeysan- fad, subject to the imita ons s forth in their respective powers of attomey, shall 
have tull power to bind the Corporation by their signature and execution of any such instruments and to attach thereto the seal of the Corporation. When so executed, such o m

Z v insWments shall be as binding as if signed by the President and attested to by the Seaetary. Any power or authority granted to any representative or attomey- in- fact under the' a m
provisions of this artide may be revoked at any time by t e Board, Ihe Chairtnan, the Presid t or by the officer or officers granting such power or authority.    
ARTICLE XIII— Exeeution of CoMracts: Sedion 5. Surety Bonds and Undertakings.

Any officer of the Company authorized fa tfiat purpose in writing by the chairman or the presid t, and subject to such IimitaHha s as the chairtnan or the president may prescribe,
shall appant such attomeys- in- fact, as may be necessary to act in behalf of the Comp y to make, execute, seal, adcnowledge and deliver as surety any and aH undertalcings,
bonds, recognizances and ofh surety obligadons. Such attomeys- in- fact subject ro the limita6ons set forlh in their respec ve pow s of attomey, shall have full power to bind the
Company by their signaturs and axecutlon of any such instruments and to attach thereto the seal of She Company. When so executed such insduments shall be as binding as if
sgned by the presid t and attested by the seaetary.

CeRiflcate of Designation— The President of the Compariy, aeting pursuant to the Bylaws of the Company, authaizes David M. Carey, Assist t Secretary to appdnt such attomeys- in-
fact as may be necessary to act an behalf of the Comp y to make, ea ecute, s l, acknowledge and de iver as surety any and all undeRalcings, bonds, recognizances and ofher surety
obligabons.

Authorization—By unanimous consent of the Company's Board of Directors, the Compar y cansenis that tacsimile w medianicalty reproduced signahxe of any sistant secretary of the
Company, wherever appear g upon a certified copy of any power of attomey issued by the Company in connecfion with surety bonds, shall be valid and binding upon e Comp y with
the same fwce and etfect as though manualty affixed.

I, Renee C. Llewellyn, tl e undersigned, Ass'stant Secret y, The Ohio Casuafty Insurance Company, Libedy Mutual Insurance Canp y, and West American Insurance Company do
hereby certify that the original power of attomey of which the foregoing is a ful, true and care.ct c py of the Power of Attomey executed by said Companies, is in full force and e ed and
has not been revoked,     

r'`

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affaed the seals of sad Companies this day of   ' '         
Y.

p,
1NSU SY INgV N3/

O onPwr 4 J Mo 4 R4.      oQ' 0° 4>' G
rc     $ o^+          "     r`     co

c`  

Jl
g

191 Z       0 1919          1991   c, r'—
c       o g .

S84CNUg
r SO    

y

NANRba`. aD      ' '' DIPNP' , aa
y•

R@fIC@ Ci. U@WC} fl Iq551S Clflt SeCfCtN
ei * , N dyl * * a dM * ,

LM& 12873 LM1C OCIC WAIC Mul6 Co 02/ 21

374



To:     City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

NOTICE OF WAIVER AND RELEASE

Saybrook CLSF, LI.0 has received Unconditianal Waiver and Release On Final Payment fonns

from contractor( s) it engaged far construction of the following improvement:

Stanford Crossing Neighborhoods Traffic Signal Installation at GVP and Stanford
Crossing

Copies of those documents aze attached to this Natice.

Those documents waive and release lien, stop payment notice, and payment bond rights the
claimants had for all labor and service pravided, and equipment and material delivered, for the
work of improvement listed above.

In addition, CLSP certifies:

1)  To the best of its knowledge, any and all persons entitled to record mechanics lien, stop
payment notices or payment bond claims for( abor, service, equipment, or material
pravided to the work of improvement identified above have been paid in full; and

2)  That it has not received any notice or claim fram any persons entitled to record
mechanics lien, stop payment notices or payment bond claims for labor, service,
equipment, or material provided to the work of improvement identified above.

SAYBROOK CLSP, LLC Date:       Zq + 2ot1

By:     Saybrook Fund Investors, LLC
Its:     Managing Member

r

By:  f`"--"'

Jeffr y M. Wilson

65I34. OWO1132757210. i

375



Job#       21- 2070

UNCONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE UPON FINAL PAYMENT

NOTICE TO CLAIMANT: THIS DOCUMENT WAIVES AND RELEASES LIEN, STOP PAYMENT

NOTICE, AND PAYMENT BOND RIGHTS UNCONDITIONALLY AND STATES THAT YOU HAVE

BEEN PAID FOR GIVING UP THOSE RIGHTS. THIS DOCUMENT IS ENFORCEABLE AGAINST YOU

IF YOU S1GN IT, EVEN 1F YOU HAVE NOT BEEN PAID. IF YOU HAVE NOT BEEN PAID, USE A

CONDITIONAL WANER AND RELEASE FORM.

IDENTIFYII IG INFORMATION

Name of Claimant: PACIFIC EXCAVATION INC

Name of Customer:       SAYBROOK CLSP, LLC C/ O SAYBROOK FUND INVESTORS, LLC

Job Location:      TRAFFIC SIGNAL AT GOLDEN VALLEY PARKWAY& STANFORD XING

Owner:     SAYBROOK CLSP, LLC C/ O SAYBROOK FUND INVESTORS, LLC

UNCONDITIONAL WAIVER AND RELEASE

This document waives and releases lien, stop payment notice, and payment bond rights the claimant has for
all labor and service provided, and equipment and material delivered, to the customer on this job. Rights
based upon labor or service provided, or equipment or material delivered, pursuant to a written change order
that has been fully executed by the parties prior to the date that this document is signed by the claimant, are
waived and released by this document, unless listed as an Exception below. The claimant has been paid in
fulL

EXCEPTIONS

This document does not affect any of the following:

Disputed claims for extras in the amount of:  ZERO

SIGNATURE

Claimant' s Signature:  2.:. GG Y,C    G: i

Claimant' s Title:   CORPORATE S CRETARY

Date of Signature 10/ 1/ 2021

FORM R104 rev 07- 02- 12

376



Bond No. 3716156M

MAINTE: tANCE A tiD V4' ARR NTY 130ND

KN(' ALL PERSONS BY TNES- PRESENI' S:

W iEREAS, City of Lathrop, hereinafter ca( fed the bli ee c r City, and Saybrc ok CLSP, LLG,
hereinafter called Saybrook, the develaper far the Centrai Lathrap Specific Plan (" CLSP''),

entered into a Develnpment Agrecment dated Decemb r 5, 201 i, and subsequently a Subdivisian
Improvement Agreement dated January Il, 20? 1, rec uiring construction of a traffic signal at
Golden Valley Parkway and Stanford Crassing {" Traffic Signal [ rr provernents"}; and

V4' t CREAS, Tin1 Paxir' s, Pacific Excati ation, Inu, dba Paci e Excav tit n, hereina' ter ealled the
Principal ar Gontractor, canstructed and compietec the Traf e Si nal lmpro' ements under a

cor tract u ith Say brc al: dat d March 8, ? 21; and

WHBREAS,  the Git}  has inspected the Traffiic Signal Impra ements and c eemed said
improvements to be cornplete and bi ilt tc the Obiigee' s specifications and the Cityr Cuunci] of

Lathrap aceepted the Traf ic Si nai l nprfl° ements at its meetin on t ctt ber ] 1, 2021; and

WHEREAS, Saybro k is reqtiired t guarantee rep( acement andlor repair f the " I' raffic Si nal

Improvemet7ts as a result c f defective materials, equipment or d fective workmanship for a
period af o e ( t) ear from the date of acceptanc of the Traf c Si¢ na1 lmpravements by the
City Cauncii of Laths-op.  

NOW,  TNEREFORE,  Pr•incipal ar d   `
t Ameriean Insurance Company   reinafter called

Surety, are held and rmly bou ld unta the Obligee, in the pen l sum Qf Fort}-- Fraur Thaus nd

Eight Hundred Tl7irt; r- Si and 60I100 Dall rs { 4, 83b. b0) the pati ment whef eof Pri cipal and
Surety k ind themselves, their heirs, execut rs, administratars, successors and assigns, jc intly and
several( y, firmly by thesz presents.

Tl e eondition of zbis obliga io is s ch hat, if P'rineipai shall, up n receipt of notice ii ° riting

frcm City, promptly ir vestigate and make ali re airs to the Traftic Signa Impravements arising
ut af defective terials, orkznanship, r e uipme t thak appear tivithin one ( 1) - ear from the

date City accepts the Traffic Si nal 1Enprovements, then this a ligation shall be nuli and void;
otherwise is shall remain ii full force and effect.

PROVIDED, H01 EVER, tt at the Obli ee sha(( gi e Principal and Surety nc tice of abserveci
defects« ith reasonable promptness.

Gity is herebl authorized to make stieli repairs, and tk e Principal and St rety sh( 1 bz liabie for
the cc st therec f, if ten ( 10) days after givin af sitch nc tice ta the Contractar, the Contractar 1 as
failed to make c r undertake the repairs ith due dili ence.  In case of emergency, ti here in the

opinion of the C" itti ielay could cause seri us lt ss or da nagc, rtpairs may be made « ithput

notice bein sent to the Coni actcr, nd the expen in canneetion t} ere ith shall be eha- eci tc

the Cantractor, and its Surety shall be liable fior ti e cc st there f.

The Surety, for value received, her by stipulat s and agrees that no change, xtension of ime,

alteration c r addition to the te- ms c f the D vel pment Agreernent. Subdivision lmprov esnent
Abreement, or t the Traf e Signal mprovements to be perfarn ed thereunder shall in an} tivay

i

6< I 3a.( Ct 1 i C3d349R8a_ 1

i

377



9

affect its obtigations on this bond, and it daes hereby waive notice of any such change, extension
of time,  alteration or addition to the terms of the Development Agreement,  Subdivision

Improvement Agreement, or to the Traffic Signal Improvements, including but not limited to the
provisions of sections 2819 and 2845 of the California Civil Code.

IN WIT'NESS WHEREOF, this instrument has been duly executed by the Contractor and Surety
above named, on the 29 day of september     , 2021.

CONTRACTOR, as Princi al SURETY

Tim Paxin' s, Pacific Excavation, Inc. dba

Pacific Excavation Great American Insurance Company

J

rmt Name:   /    Print Name: James D. Einersan

Title:,  T1tIC: Attomey- in- Fact

Address:    Address:

301 E. 4th Street, Cincinnati, Ohio 45202
9796 Kent Street

Elk Grove, California 95624

Attn.:  Prescilla Gastelum

NOTE: NOTARY ACKNOWLEDGMENT FOR SURETY AND SURETY' S POWER OF

ATT4RNEY MUST BE ATTACHED.

6 134. 00W 1134349884_ 1

378



t

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public o other offlcer compisting this
certificate ve ifies only the ide tity of the individuai
who signed the document to which this ce tificate is

attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or
validi of that dacument.

State of California

Counfy of Sacramento

On   P 29 2 21 before me,  Gail C. Einerson, Notary Public
insert name and title of the o cer)

personalty appeared    mes D. Einerson, Attorney- in- Fact
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the pe sonf,lj whose name is/ e

subscribed to the within instrument and acknawledged to me that he/ ie/ti y executed the same in
his/ Nit/ t1 r authorized capacity( i M), and that by his/ J t/tiwi r signature(+ o the instrument the

person(}, or the entity upon behalf of which the person(rj acted, executed the instrument.

I ce tifjr under PENALTY OF PEFtJURY under the laws of the State af California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and carrect.

GAIL C. EINERSON 

WITNESS my hand and officia( seal.  i y` pB zt Q
SACRAMENTO C4UNTY 

CO AM. EXPiRES APR. S, 2Q24'

Signature.,,. 4. u2., C .      •    Seal)

379



GREAT AMERlCAN INSURANCE CQMPANY
Administrative Office: 301 E 4TH STREET • CINCINNATi, OHIO 452 2 • 513- 389-5000 • FAX 513- 723- 2740

The number of persons autharized by
this power of attorney is not more than THREE

Na 0 14660
PQWER OFA1" fQRNBY'

KtVQW ALL ENEN BYTHESE PRESENTS: That che GRkATAMERtCAN INSURANCE C0 4PANY, a corporation organized and existing under
and by viRue ofthe laws of the State of Ohio, d s hereby nominate, canstitute and uppoint the persan or persons named betow, each individually if more than
one is named, its true and lawful attomey- in- fact, for it and in its name, place and stead to execute nn behalf of the said Company, as sureYy, any and all bonds,
undertakings and contracts of surctyship, or other written obligations in the nature thcreof; provided that ttte liabitity of the said Company nn any such bond,
undertaking or contract of suretyship executed under this authority shalf not exceed the limit stated betaw.

Name Addtess Limit of Power

JRMES D. EtNERSON ALL OF ALl

GAII C. EiNERSON GOLD RIVER, GALiFORNiA 100, 000, 000

MICHEILE FURN

This Power of Attorney revokes all previous{ wwers issued on behalf af the att rnry( s)- in- fact named above.
N W[ TNESS WMEREOF the GREAT AMERICAN[ NSURANCE COMPANY has caused these presents to be signed and attested by its appropnate

officers and its corparate seal herrunto affixed this 2ND day af DECEMBER 2020

Anest GR AT AritER[ CAN INSU NCE COMPA

a.....,
Y

i;`        

r      c i

i:,

Assrstant Secreiury Divisianal Senior f re P sident

STA"fH OF OH[ O, COUNTY OF HAMILTUN- ss: K v crwro( ar- 3n- 2ao

On this ZN day of DECEMBER 2420 , bet'ore me personally appeamd MARK VICARIO, to me known,
being duly swam„ deposes and says that he resides in Cincinnati, Ohio, that he es a Qivisional Senior Vice President oP the Bond Division of Great Amcrican
lnsurance Company, the Company described in and which execuied the above insuumenr, tha he knaw- s the seal of the sard Company; that the seat afTixed to thc
said instrument is such corporate seal; thai it was so affixed b authorih• of his ofTice uader che By-Laws of said Company, and that he signed his name thereta
by tike authority.

Sf.fSAN A KOFIORST

tbtuy PuWk
StaL ot OMo

J
µll Conrn. Eiepkes

Mry t b, 202f

This Power ofAttomey is granted by suthority af the following resolutions adopted by the Board of Direciors of Great American Insurance Company
by unanimays written consent dated June 9, 2008.

RESOL{ ED: That the Divisianaf Presrdent, the scrvern! Divisiona! Senior" tce Presidents, Divisional ce Presidents and Divisona/ Assistant ce

Presidents, or any one ofthem, be and herehy rs autho i:Rd,from time to time, to uppoinr one or more Attorrreys- in-Fact to execute on behnlfof rhe Company,
as surety, vny und oll bonds, undertnkings arrd cnntrocts aJ'suretyship, or other writtea obligatians in the nature thereoJ to prescribe their resperti e duties and
the speetive limils ojtherr authoriry; and to mtiroke cury such appointmenr at any trme.

RE,SOL6' ED FURTHER That the Comp 7nv SCQI QYEtI IIDC S1giM7lif7P OjC771V Of lFlt Jf{?fPSAlCI O iC2 5 Q/! CI QIry SPCJflCD' V Or A311SIQIJJ SCf7P1C71' y Of lI1C
Comparry mav be rt„(f't rd by facsimrle to arry poxer ojattorney ar cert ate ojerrher gruen jor thc executron of wry bond undertaktrrg, evntract of sureryship,
ar ather written obligatian in the nature therrof, such signnture and seal when so ased being( zereby adopted by the Compariy as the orrgrna! signature ojsuch
offrcer arrd the origrnat seal ojthe Camparry, to be valyd ar d birrdlrrg ey on the Campare with lhe same,forcr and ef''ect as though mamratl a,' rxed

CERTIFICATION

t, STEPHEN G. BERAHA, Assistant Secretary of Great American Insurance Company, do hrreby cerkify that the foregoing Power of Attorney and
the Itesolutians of the Board of Directors of June 9, 2UOR have not been revoked and are now in full farce and effect.

Signed and sealed this day of September 2021    .

w".
rrr

Assisluat Serretnry

S1029At1( 03/"

380



ITEM 4. 18

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 11, 2021, CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION

IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT FOR 47 LOTS IN TRACT
4053 VILLAGE   JJ2"   WITHIN LAKESIDE WEST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

RECOMMENDATION:     Adopt Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 4053
Village  ') J2"  within the Lakeside West District,

Totaling 47 Single Family Lots and Subdivision

Improvement Agreement with River Islands Stage
2B, LLC

SUMMARY:

The proposed Final Map for Tract 4053 will be the second and final tract map within
the Village " J)" area.   Pulte Homes is proposing eighty ( 47) 47' x 101' single- family
lots. A Vicinity Map is included as Attachment B".

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the proposed Final Map Tract 4053,
Village JJ2" and Subdivision Improvement Agreement with River Islands Stage 2B,
LLC ( River Islands"), included as Attachment ' C".

BACKGROUND:

The City of Lathrop City Council approved Vesting Tentative Map  ( VTM)  3694 on

March 27, 2007 and an amended VTM 3694 with updated conditions of approval on
June 1,  2015.    On December 2,  2020,  the City of Lathrop Planning Commission
approved a Neighborhood Design Plan ( NDP) and Architectural Guidelines and Design
Standards ( AG/ DS) for the Lakeside West District, known as Stage 2B, within Phase
1 of the project.   While the NDP contains conceptual guidance on parks within the
Lakeside West District, a Master Parks Plan includes revisions to the parks and open
spaces within the Stage 2B area and is pending Planning Commission action.   The

land for the proposed Final Map for Tract 4053 is within the geographic boundaries
of VTM 3694 and Stage 2B.

As required by the City' s subdivision ordinance,  all final maps must include a
Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee specific offsite and onsite
improvements.   The total cost of the improvements for Village " JJ" is $ 2, 072, 000,

however, a large portion of the improvements have already been constructed and
therefore do not need to be guaranteed.  Performance and labor & material securities
were provided with the SIA for Tract 4052 that guarantee the unfinished
improvements for Village " JJ", including both Tracts 4052 and 4053, in the amount
of:

381



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

FOR 47 LOTS IN TRACT 4053 VILLAGE  ) J2"  WITHIN LAKESIDE WEST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Total Cost of On- site Im rovements: $ 1, 727, 000 x 120%      $ 2, 072, 000

Unfinished On- site Im rovement Total:     438, 000

Performance Bond     ( 120%     of Unfinished On- site   $ 525, 600

Improvements):

Labor & Materials Bond 50% of Performance Bond 262, 800

Future Maintenance Bond     ( 10%    of Total On- site   $ 207, 200

Im rovements

At the time of approval for Tract 4052, Village JJ was not adjacent to other approved

maps, and therefore off-site improvements including roads and utilities that connect
this Village to other approved map areas were guaranteed with the SIA for Tract
4052.  The full cost of these off- site improvements and the associated bond is in the

amount of:

Total Cost of Off- site Improvements:       298, 000

Unfinished Off- site Im rovement Total:  All Com lete 0

Performance Bond     ( 120%     of Unfinished Off- site   $ 0

Im rovements  :

Labor & Materials Bond ( 50% of Performance Bond) 0

Future Maintenance Bond    ( 10%    of Total Off- site   $ 29, 800

Im rovements

The SIA for Tract 4053 refers to the Agreement for Dedication,  Inspection,  and

Guarantee of Streets and Public Improvements  ( Off- site Agreement")  that was

approved by the City on September 30,  2013.   Although the Off- site Agreement

applies to Tract 4053,   the Final Map will not trigger any additional offsite

improvements or security.

Acceptance of the public improvements will be processed by staff at a later date and
when the unfinished improvements are completed.  Prior to acceptance, River Islands

will be required to provide a one ( 1) year warranty bond.

Village JJ" was annexed to the four different Community Facilities Districts ( CFDs)

for maintenance purposes with the approval of the Tract 4052 Final Map in January,
2021.  The CFDs are for the City, Reclamation District 2062, RIPFA 2020- 1, and River
Islands Public Financing Authority ( RIPFA).

River Islands must satisfy the Escrow Instructions, included as Attachment " D", to

guarantee the payment of all fees and execution of the documents related to the SIA.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

River Islands has fulfilled all of the requirements of the City' s subdivision ordinance
as listed below:

382



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

FOR 47 LOTS IN TRACT 4053 VILLAGE  JJ2"  WITHIN LAKESIDE WEST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

Documents Status

1.      Final Map ready for signature Completed

2.      Subdivision Improvement Agreement Completed

3.      Performance Security - Uncompleted Landscaping gond accepted on
and Miscellaneous Improvements provided with

1/ 11/ 2021
Tract 4052

4.      Labor and Materials Security   -   Uncompleted

Landscaping and Miscellaneous Improvements
Bond accepted on

rovided with Tract 4052
1/ 11/ 2021

5. Street Improvement,  Landscape,  Light  & Joint

Trench
Completed

6.      Geotechnical Report Completed

7.     Agreement for Backbone Improvements and Parks

Agreement for Dedication,    Inspection and Completed

Guarantee of Streets and Public Improvements)

8.     Approval of 3rd Amendment to Development

Agreement that guarantees creation of CFD for City
Maintenance and Shortfalls, and Guarantee of Completed

Developer CFDs for Developer/ other pubtic agency
Maintenance

9.     Allocation of Water and Sewer capacity Completed

10.   Recommendation for approval from Stewart Tract
Completed

Desi n Review Committee

11.     Submitted Certificate of Insurance, Tax Letter Completed

12.     Submitted Preliminary Guarantee of Title Completed

13.     Escrow Instructions Completed

14.      Tract 4053 Village   J] 2"   -   City of Lathrop
Community Facilities District No. 2013- 1 ( River

Annexed with

Islands Public Services and Facilities) Annexation
Tract 4052 on

No. 9
1/ 11/ 2021

Fees Status

1.       Final Map plan check fee Paid

2. Improvement Plans -  Plan check and inspection
paid

fees

3.       Sierra Club Settlement fee
To be paid in

escrow

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no budget impact to the City as all costs are covered by development fees
and any shortfalls in the City' s maintenance and operating costs are covered by the
CFDs.

383



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 4

OCTOBER li, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

FOR 47 LOTS IN TRACT 4053 VILLAGE  JJ2"  WITHIN LAKESIDE WEST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

ATTACH M ENTS:

A.       Resolution Approving Final Map for Tract 4053 Village " JJ2" within the Lakeside
West District, Totaling 47 Single Family Lots,  and Subdivision Improvement

Agreement with River Islands Stage 2B, LLC

B.       Vicinity Map - Village " JJ"

C.       Subdivision Improvement Agreement between the City of Lathrop and River
Islands Stage 2B,  LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, for Tract 4053,
Village JJ2"

D.       Escrow Instructions for Final Map Tract 4053 Village JJ2"

E.       Final Map - Tract 4053 Village " JJ2"

384



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 5

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

APPROVAL OF FINAL MAP AND SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

FOR 47 LOTS IN TRACT 4053 VILLAGE  JJ2"  WITHIN LAKESIDE WEST

DISTRICT OF RIVER ISLANDS

APPROVALS

I z/ zo21

Brad ylor Date

Land Development Manager

9 ,2 21
Glenn Gebhardt Date

City Engineer

2 S 2 oL(

Michael King Date

Public Works Director

ort GJ g Z' J 2o21

Cari James Date

Finance Director

2 £s  • La

Salvador avarrete Date

City Attorney

o•• Z/
Steph       . Salvatore Date

City Manager

385



RESOLUTION NO. 21-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING FINAL MAP FOR TRACT 4053 VILLAGE  JJ2"  WITHIN THE

LAKESIDE WEST DISTRICT,  TOTALING 47 SINGLE FAMILY LOTS AND

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT WITH RIVER ISLANDS STAGE 2B,

LLC

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop City Council approved Vesting Tentative Map
VTM) 3694 on March 27, 2007 and an amended VTM 3694 with updated conditions

of approval on June 1, 2015; and

WHEREAS, on December 2, 2020, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission
approved a Neighborhood Design Plan ( NDP) and Architectural Guidelines and Design

Standards ( AG/ DS) for the Lakeside West District, known as Stage 2B, within Phase

1 of the project; and

WHEREAS, the land for the proposed Final Map for Tract 4053 is within the
geographic boundaries of VTM 3694 and Stage 2B; and

WHEREAS, required by the City' s subdivision ordinance, all final maps must
include a Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( SIA) to guarantee specific offsite and
onsite improvements; and

WHEREAS, the guarantees for Tract 4053, in the amounts shown in Table 1

below,  were provided with the approved SIA for Tract 4052 executed with River
Islands Development, LLC and therefore additional guarantee is not required to be
provided with the SIA for Tract 4053.  Tracts 4052 and 4053 are collectively known
as Village JJ"; and

Table 1 - Bond Values

Total Cost of On- site Im rovements: $ 1, 727, 000 x 120%      $ 2, 072, 000

Unfinished On- site Im rovement Total:     438, 000

Performance Bond     ( 120%     of Unfinished On- site   $ 525, 600

Improvements):

Labor & Materials Bond 50% of Performance Bond 262, 800

Future Maintenance Bond    ( 10%    of Total On- site   $ 207, 200

Im rovements

WHEREAS, at the time of approval for Tract 4052, Village JJ was not adjacent

to other approved maps,  and therefore off-site improvements including roads and
utilities that connect this Village to other approved map areas were guaranteed with
the SIA for Tract 4052.    The full cost of these off- site improvements and the

associated bond is shown in Table 2 below; and

386



Table 2 - Off- site Bond Values

Total Cost of Off- site Im rovements:       298, 000

Unfinished Off- site Improvement Total:  All Com lete 0

Performance Bond     ( 120%     of Unfinished Off- site   $ 0

Improvements  :

Labor & Materials Bond 50% of Performance Bond 0

Future Maintenance Bond    ( 10%    of Total Off- site   $ 29, 800

Im rovements

WHEREAS, acceptance of the public improvements will be processed by staff
at a later date and when the unfinished improvements are completed.    Prior to

acceptance, River Islands will be required to provide a one ( 1) year warranty bond;
and

WHEREAS, Village JJ" was annexed to the four different Community Facilities
Districts ( CFDs) for maintenance purposes with the approval of the Tract 4052 Final
Map in January 2021; and

WHEREAS,  River Islands Stage 2B must satisfy the Escrow Instructions,
included as Attachment " D" to the City Manager' s Report, to guarantee the payment
of all fees and execution of the documents related to the SIA.

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED,  by the City Council of the City of
Lathrop that approves and accepts the following actions:

1.  The Final Map for Tract 4053 and is hereby approved as submitted for
recordation with the San Joaquin County Assessor/ Recorder/ County Clerk
Office. The recorded executed copy will be filed with the City Clerk.

2.  The City Manager, or their designee,  is authorized to execute a Subdivision

Improvement Agreement with River Islands Stage 2B, LLC, in substantially the
form as attached to the October 11, 2021 staff report, the file executed copy
will be filed with the City Clerk.

387



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lathrop this 11tn
day of October 2021 by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FO M:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

388



v       

VILLAGE HH

N   ;

VILLAGE KK

VILLAGE II

LAKE 13
l

TRACT 4052

VILLAGE FF

VILLAGE JJ
TRACT 4053

VILLAGE NN- 1

TRACT 4052

LAKE 12

1

VILLAGE EE-2

VILLAGE EE- 1
VILLAG

VILLAGE DD

ATTACHMENT " B"

F,   VILLAGE JJ
s

q
o

VICINITY MAP

s„  SEPTEMBER 2021

389



ATTACHMENT C

SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF LATHROP AND

RIVER ISLANDS STAGE 2B, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

FOR TRACT 4053 VILLAGE " JJ2" 47 RESIDENTIAL LOTS

RECITALS

A.       This Agreement is made and entered into this llth day of October 2021, by and between
the CITY OF LATHROP, a municipal corporation of the State of California( hereinafter " CITY")

and River Islands Stage 2B,  LLC,  a Delaware limited liability company,  ( hereinafter

SUBDIVIDER").

B.       Pursuant to Division 2 of Title 7 of the Government Code of the State of California and the

CITY' s Subdivision Regulations   ( City of Lathrop,  Code of Ordinances,   Chapter 16),

SUBDIVIDER is required to make dedications and improve Tract 4053. However, SUBDIVIDER

has completed a significant portion of public infrastructure improvements associated with Tract
4053 ( Village " JJ2") located within the Lakeside West District of River Islands Phase 1, which

also includes major streets necessary to access the site. Performance and Labor & Material

securities have been provided with the SIA for Tract 4052 that guarantee the unfinished
improvements for Village " JJ", which includes Tract 4053, in the amount shown in Section 8, and

therefore no additional security is needed for Tract 4053.

C.       SUBDIVIDER has completed a portion of the joint trench improvements for Tract 4053
and as noted in Recital B,  security shall be required for the unfinished portion of these
improvements, along with other required infrastructure associated with Tract 4053 and Village

JJ2" overall.  Improvement plans, and street light plans prepared by Power Systems Design, Inc.
have already been approved by the City. The street, sidewalk, underground utility, storm drainage,
streetlight and joint trench improvements  ( hereinafter  " Improvements")  are substantially

completed and minor improvements not yet constructed as part of the required infrastructure for
Tract 4053 are required security as outlined in this Agreement is required.

NOW THEREFORE in consideration of CITY' S pending approval and acceptance of the
Improvements upon their satisfactory completion,  and in consideration of SUBDIVIDER' S

construction of Improvements in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, all applicable

laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations currently in force and effect in CITY, the terms

and conditions of which are incorporated herein by this reference, the parties hereto mutually
covenant and agree as follows:

390



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4053 Village " JJ2"

l. SUBDIVIDER shall complete construction of, or cause construction to be completed at its

sole cost and expense, the Improvements for all of the lots within the Lakeside West neighborhood,

to the limits identified in Exhibit" A", including the public landscaping, streetlight and joint trench
improvements. A Vicinity Map is included as Exhibit "B".

All improvements shall be constructed to the satisfaction and approval of the City Engineer, in a
good and workmanlike manner in accordance with the above referenced improvement plans and
specifications, the improvement standards and specifications of the CITY' S Department of Public

Works, the applicable Ordinances of the City of Lathrop and the California Subdivision Map Act.

2. SUBDIVIDER shall complete the Improvements, including all deferred and unfinished
improvements, prior to occupancy of the last home constructed in Tract 4053 that is conveyed to
a private interest not associated with the transfer of title of Tract 4053 associated with the filing of
Tract 4053 ( homebuilder), prior to the completion and occupancy of the last production dwelling
unit associated with Tract 4053, or October 11, 2022, whichever comes first.  Such occupancy
shall be documented by CITY in the form of a Certificate of Occupancy or Final Building Permit.

3. CITY, or its agent( s), shall, at any time during the progress of the Improvements, have free
access thereto, and shall be allowed to examine the same and all material to be used therein. If the

Improvements or any part thereof are not completed in strict compliance with the standards set
forth in Paragraph 1 above, CITY may refuse to accept and may reject the defective Improvements
and/ or materials therein.

4. SUBDIVIDER shall secure the services of skilled personnel necessary to construct the
Improvements. CTTY is not skilled in these matters and relies upon the skill of the SUBDIVIDER

to ensure that the construction of the Improvements is in the most skillful and durable manner.

5. CITY' S acceptance of the Improvements does not operate as a release of SUBDIVIDER

from any guarantee hereunder.

6. SUBDIVIDER guarantees and warrants that the Improvements shall be constructed in
compliance with the standards set forth in Paragraph 1 above, free from any defects in work or
labor done, and from any defects in materials furnished. Further, SUBDIVIDER shall repair and
maintain the Improvements in good condition and in accordance with CTTY specifications for one

1) year after CITY' S acceptance of the Improvements. As required by this Agreement, prior to
acceptance of the Improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall deposit with the City Engineer a Warranty
Bond in the amount of$ 207, 200, equal to 10°Io of the estimated cost of the Improvements for the

Village " JJ" entire area ($ 2, 072,000) as included in the Engineer' s estimate attached to this

Agreement as Exhibit " D", to insure SUBDIVIDER' S repair and warranty of the Improvements
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The Warranty Bond shall be released at the end
of the one year guarantee period, provided there are no claims against it are then outstanding.

7. If SUBDIVIDER, in whole or in part, abandons the Improvements, or unnecessarily or
unreasonably delays construction of the Improvements, fails to complete construction of the
Improvements within the time specified in this Agreement, or fails to repair.

391



Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4053 Village " JJ2"

Replace or reconstruct any defects, as set forth in Paragraph 6 above, CITY may, but is not required
to, proceed to complete and/ or repair, replace, or reconstruct the Improvements, either by itself or
by contract for such service, and CITY may cause to be forfeited such portion of any security
deposited therein as is necessary to cover the costs of completion, repair, replacement, or
reconstruction incurred by CITY.

Once action is taken by CTTY to complete, repair, replace and/ or reconstruct the Improvements,
SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible for all costs incurred by CITY, even if SUBDIVIDER
subsequently completes the work.

The CTTY shall have recourse against SUBDIVIDER for any and all amounts necessary to
complete the obligations of SUBDIVIDER in the event the security ( including but not limited to
any Letter of Guarantee, Certificate of Deposit, cash, bond for performance, labor and materials
and repair and maintenance, letter of credit or cash deposit) therefore is insufficient to pay such
amounts. All administrative costs, including reasonable attorney' s fees pursuant to Government
Code Section 66499.4, incurred by the CITY, in addition to the costs of the improvements shall be
a proper charge against the security and SUBDIVIDER In the event it becomes necessary for
CITY to bring an action to compel perfarmance of this Agreement or to recover costs of
completing such improvements, SUBDIVIDER shall pay reasonable attorney' s fees, costs of suit
and all other expenses of litigation incurred by CITY in connection therewith.

8. Because the Improvements are not entirely complete, the SUBDIVIDER is required to only
post Performance or Labor  &  Materials bonds to guarantee the unfinished improvements
associated with Tract 4053 as included and described in Exhibit  " D"  of this Agreement.

Performance and Labor& Material securities have been provided with the SIA for Tract 4052 that
guarantee the unfinished improvements for Village" JJ", which includes Tract 4053, in the amount

shown in Table 1 below and therefore no additional security is needed for Tract 4053.
SUBDIVIDER shall also comply with CITY' S insurance requirements set forth on Exhibit " C"
attached hereto and incorporated herein.

Table 1 — Bond Values

Total Cost of On- site Im rovements: $ 1, 727, 000 x l20%    2, 072, 000

Unfinished On- site Im rovement Total:    438, 000

Performance Bond ( 120% of Unfinished On- site Improvements):  525, 600

Labor & Materials Bond ( 50% of Performance Bond) 262, 800

Future Maintenance Bond ( 10% of Total On- site Im rovements 207, 200

Total Cost of Off-site Im rovements:       298, 000

Unfinished Off- site Improvement Total:    0

Performance Bond ( 120°Io of Unfinished Off-site Im rovements): 0

Labor & Materials Bond ( 50% of Performance Bond) 0

Future Maintenance Bond ( 10°10 of Total Off-site Improvements 29, 800

9. Any alteration( s) made to the plans and specifications, which are a part of this Agreement,
or any provision of this Agreement shall not operate to release any surety or sureties from liability
on any bond or bonds attached hereto and made a part thereof. The above referenced sureties

392



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4053 Village " JJ2"

hereby consent to such alterations and waive the provisions of California Civil Code Section 2819.

10.      Neither the CITY nor any of its officers,  employees or agents shall be liable to

SUBDIVIDER, and/ or SUBDIVIDER' S agents, contractors ar subcontractors for any error or
omission arising out of or in connection with any work to be performed under this Agreement.

11.      Neither the CITY nor any of its officers, employees, or agents, shall be liable to the
SUBDIVIDER or to any person, entity, or organization, for any injury ar damage that may result
to any person or property by or from any cause in, on, or about the subdivision of all or any part
of the land covered by this Agreement.

12.      SUBDIVIDER hereby agrees to, and shall hold CTTY, its elective and appointive boards,
commissions, officers, agents and employees ( collectively, " Indemnitees"), harmless from any
liability for damage or claims which may arise from SUBDIVIDER and/ or SUBDIVIDER' S
contractors, subcontractors, agents, or employees' operations under this Agreement, whether such

operations be by SUBDIVIDER or by any SUBDIVIDER contractors, subcontractors, or by any
one or more persons directly or indirectly employed by, or acting as agent for, SUBDIVIDER or
any of SUBDIVIDER' S contractors or subcontractors. SUBDIVIDER shall, at its own cost and
expense, defend any and all actions, suits, or legal proceedings or any type that may be brought or
instituted against CITY and indemnities on any claim or demand, of any nature whatsoever, and
pay or satisfy any judgment that may be rendered against CITY and the Indemnitees in any such
action, suit or legal proceedings, resulting from or alleged to have resulted from SUBDIVIDER' S
performance or non-performance of his duties and obligations under this Agreement, or from the
negligent act or omission of himself,  his agents,  contractors,  representatives,  servants or

employees. The promises and Agreement to indemnify and hold harmless set forth in this section
is not conditioned or dependent on whether or not any indemnity has prepared, supplied or
approved any plan or specification in connection with this work or subdivision, whether or not any
such indemnity has insurance or indemnification covering any of these matters. CITY does not,
and shall not; waive any rights against SUBDIVIDER which it may have by reason of the aforesaid
hold harmless agreement, because of the acceptance by CITY of any deposit with CITY by
SUBDIVIDER. The aforesaid hold harmless agreement by SUBDIVIDER shall apply to all
damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by reason
of any of the aforesaid operations referred to in this paragraph, regardless of whether or not CITY
has prepared, supplied or approved of, plans and/ or specifications for the subdivision.

13.      Neither SUBDIVIDER nor any of SUBDIVIDER' S agents, contractors or subcontractors
are,  or shall be,  considered to be agents of CITY in connection with the performance of
SUBDIVIDER' S obligations under this Agreement.

14.      Prior to acceptance of the Improvements by the City Council, the SUBDIVIDER shall be
solely responsible for maintaining the quality of the Improvements, and maintaining safety at the
project site. The SUBDIVIDER' S obligation to provide the Improvements shall not be satisfied
until after the City Engineer has made a written determination that all obligations of the Agreement
have been satisfied and all outstanding fees and charges have been paid, and the City Council has
accepted the Improvements as complete. The CITY and SUBDIVIDER have formed Community
Facilities Districts to finance maintenance and improvements. The CITY expects to preserve the

393



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4053 Village " JJ2"

ability to use future special taxes of the CFD for payment of the cost of acquisition of the
Improvements, which may require that acceptance of improvements by CTTY be subject to the
provisions of an acquisition agreement to be entered into by the CITY and SUBDIVIDER
providing that CITY expects to be paid or reimbursed acquisition costs through future CFD special
taxes. SUBDIVIDER shall cooperate to facilitate such method of acquisition.

15.      SUBDNIDER shall pay service fees far the utility services from the time the
Improvements are accepted by the CITY to the end of the fiscal year, or up to a one( 1) year period,
whichever is needed to ensure an opportunity for the Improvements to be included in the next
fiscal year annual assessment.

16.      SUBDIVIDER shall be responsible to sweep streets within the subdivision every two
weeks as directed by the City Engineer, on all streets where lots are occupied and all streets
providing access to occupied lots until the Improvements are accepted by the CTTY.

17.      SUBDIVIDER shall not assign this Agreement without the prior written consent of CTTY.
If such consent is given, the terms of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the heirs, successors,
executors, administrators and assignees of SUBDIVIDER, and any heirs, successors, executors,
administrators and assignees of the SUBDIVIDER and shall be jointly and severally liable
hereunder.

18.      The SUBDIVIDER shall,  at the SUBDIVIDER' S expense,  obtain and maintain all

necessary permits and licenses for construction of the Improvements. Prior to the commencement

of Improvement construction, the SUBDIVIDER shall obtain a City of Lathrop Business License.
The SUBDIVIDER shall comply with all local, state and federal laws, whether or not said laws
are expressly stated in this Agreement.

19.      This Agreement and any amendments hereto comprise the entire understanding and
agreement between the parties regarding the improvements to be constructed and dedications for
Tract 4053.

20.      The following miscellaneous provisions are applicable to this Agreement:

a. Controlling Law. The parties agree that this Agreement shall be governed and construed
by and in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

b. Definitions. The definitions and terms are as defined in this Agreement.

c. Force Majeure. Neither party shall be deemed to be in default on account of any delay or
failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement, which directly results from an Act of God
or an act of a superior governmental authority.

d. Headings. The paragraph headings are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect
upon the construction or interpretation of any part of this Agreement.

e. Incorporation of Documents. All documents referred to herein and all documents which

394



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4053 Village " JJ2"

may, from time to time, be referred to in any duly executed amendment hereto are by such
reference incorporated herein and shall be deemed to be part of this Agreement.

f. Modification of Agreement. This Agreement shall not be modified or be binding upon the
parties unless such modification is agreed to in writing and signed by the parties.

g. Severability. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this
Agreement is void or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so affected shall remain
in full force and effect.

h. Successors and Assigns. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the provisions of
this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall apply to and bind, the successors and assigns
of the parties.

i. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of this Agreement and each of its provisions.
In the calculation of time hereunder, the time in which an act is to be performed shall be computed
by excluding the first Day and including the last. If the time in which an act is to be performed
falls on a Saturday, Sunday or any Day observed as a legal holiday by CITY, the time for
performance shall be extended to the following Business Day.

j. Venue. In the event either party brings that suit hereunder, the parties agree that trial of
such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of San
Joaquin.

ATTACHMENTS:

EXHIBIT A FINAL MAP - TRACT 4053

EXHIBIT B VILLAGE " JJ" AREA

EXHIBIT C:   CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

EXHIBIT D:   UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE AND VILLAGE  " JJ"

IMPROVEMENTS COST ESTIMATE

395



Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4053 Village " JJ2"

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this l lth day of
October 2021, at Lathrop, California.

ATTEST: TERESA VARGAS CITY OF LATHROP, a

City Clerk of and for the City municipal corporation of the

of Lathrop, State of California State of California

BY:  BY:

Teresa Vargas Date Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Clerk City Manager

APPROVED AS TO FORM B THE CITY OF LATHROP CITY ATTORNEY

BY: Z y- Lo Z-(
Salvador Navarrete Date

Ciry Attorney

396



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4053 Village " JJ2"

SUBDIVIDER

River Islands Stage 2B, LLC,

a Delaware limited liability company

BY:

Susan Dell' Osso

President

397



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4053 Village " JJ2"

EXHIBIT " A"

FINAL MAP - TRACT 4053

398



Z  

I
o

s

z

w

o\/

i

a      

I -      

v

ri} *
5/

7.:.     ZI

a

k' I, 
gs,  _-3   . 

Yd   ' '  .   

I   y
I,

7 ia p 0
0

a
a

r.. 
y

g  . _    `

t      -     o  

y .-

y r
a'     z ..   '      

y   U  U  . s

J  

r 

Z   
z

y,       .

I S I.      wl       -  -            zl
r^'  .   ` a I 2 w:

r `        a r WI I wI
Z

a
i    `     

p/    .  

LL

I I

r 5`'-  \
J'%%       I W     

a

o.-.   :
i    -    Z       Q

I w,

v        

wi   I. _      WIcn ._  , c      ._ r[

f  .
i

II.     4 I

m

a z
s        o i     \    ,

E-- 
I I

Uz¢     Z

aJ
r           

I
I

fA     Z Z W

W
2   _       

I

W I

cn li
I

Y
3 I WJ I

wJ

IUO

Y I
U       

C. - -    -  „,  _<      .,.  
Q  --      ,_.  .,

a   -

I  _   
I'

I

i i       ;

I      
I `     i

wz    ,        
o, ,            I IWI      i i
QU     >  I

I i,

I
I 

i F U IZI I  I
w

I
I Z I

i'     I I
r i,     I I i

Wz
z   , Y

1.,    i

U     
O I

Q  ._    - ..     _     . _      .
r_»

399



s
cfl

0

N

a F-

W
x

r.      r_    o
5

s_     -
o

m    3

Z'

o

O

o     

U   '     
k

O

w
I 3 I 3

w I kr             I 

r   

2      - -

m      
N

l7

Q Z

Q I— N
Cf- 

p(.3̀ 4

Q j Z
w W

E3c

i1 I     _   

i I
EYC * S

h3

ti

1 i
i}

S U'
v   *     I _

II
I

z I    '       i

i         
W i i

i wi i
o j

J

I

I

I,<  i  _,     , .,       

400



i            r: zr, i a, tu!

oi v i_ a7    
m       

a

r)

N      '_ _    

3nida dv na       .,     WJ

W

I. f)           
z   ;_

N
n r;, ca  3_. etss v     ,     v

wvo    av

a

V FW   _           
W  ° F          W     " . cazst a ,! s.a'. n -    — I

0 I   a
I

rI
I..

o 
J

Uz ¢         Z I. L

I       :a
Q¢

J
p o'^

a            

f

1 Z       
a;           c'.__._--

K     

W nn   .   t.

CJ      
3 I I       _._...— .

f_'_

n

I
I  `

L

s

I
2     I

aou a. is. cas

I
w
Iw
I

W _\     ZI I IJ 3f

I

I ml I           
m

O O I
i

N

I
yi

OZ
4,     mIs W

I
I     

I     '   
U

I I;     

io         v

o ti,

w o

IN
I' O  I

i 4
v

CL '       F•      ' i,'       
Q !      I i

O J         ZaY, r. i, c'. -      

W   .;;    w  _       `
I

Cn F-   „    w' n
A.

ml .  , _ .     ,-,    
I I a a

4

i I

i
p l7 I

J I             I      
s,:,,c i

I

i I
II'

i.

I
I ^   

I

I     : II      i r

I
ni ' u eC-)       

II

j

I
I

n    
i

i _      ,          

i ci Ios ji       .i
1 i—r':

1i I

I   _ FI     ' I ll I       .. 
C'      I

I    =            
j=     '     

i.        iT    

I _           

4 9 ,

i, 
b

i/     SN,   
Ci\  

II',.aNE
i

PVj`
9 :,   

I I FP

i i
i

j
i i

o ,  _  I

i y '        

i  C)     i 

401



m

E  w

d-  Q       3   

v

w u z g   

Q Z      
3 bo y no

W 7
Q   u.1 I g E

L. t     -         
Z  c'    

1
3b15 F/ 31d 3

i

N      

N

Z—  _    1_    

v

i      _   o"       _      _
z   „_,     o

aa
3

c
s

J on aneyol

R,

f
v

io- _7____  '     

A,

f          
i_`

m

c;     

r —

I o

r

v

lI      __._._ ..      __._'    _____      
II n

I      ^'    
I

SNFUT OFI` i   
E,
1-_'  _--

I
E'

j J

vd 1

I            I      -  -- __
f-  _

j;  --        II i    (;

1    
I

r            ,'           

1  ;      j'   /      
Q     

I

w'' j\.  
i     

yy,
F.         

0P
I

Q

P ;

1

402



o

m
r

z

Q z     ` I N7      : u

Z 1"   

QF— N I,   N
r

ol.  
W 41      ` o      ..

z
J

I n
a

U Q e]       
o     <   

z
J

Z      :    

Q
o

N
s

J
J       ,_ .      

U'     
r  N     . .       . ._

v

n  Q       =           , ,       
m       "     

a €;

W I
o

fl 1    : I
v aa, o

vU

Z  tz
I     --      ' s       _'   L'

l l ZEOY 1`. 2f      

I E 1. 2iv:.' i

i  
i      ( i.i o

3nida dv na

I
C

r ro. 9 a., s.. s. n       .   .   

ao-.     o.- -- , r,r

i

J

0( 7; 1 3, 14, L"     

IrT,cat  is a it  

m

o:  

I
I       ' i      ' a'.     c-     G

I 3 t SlV t r- IP1 I

I
nl

I
I       

ic. i I
r_ t

r       "   o;   1=
a         

c.      

e.      

i

i
T           ^   

I`       
c_. _     

JiO'.     f: l:[;     

I     . 31,/' lN 7„ l,/>(+ s I

I I,     Jli
I

C7it',  l'!', IiI
C -     

4
t  

0 I' 7 I   _ 4    :    
f.

J
l. l{[ ..      `     

I

3. 1 S', N

II 3i
V-

in d. o

j' I- { cr.

a t. i; i t. ` n
r

c„     
r, oi Ii     . .   

4-
i r IS i,W II I

w

i
I

i

w  .  . .-   --    :'       ' i

c.,     

I       ',       ^

I    , ro i' i 3 l i . ci
o

J
V       

C( l'     II
3 1; '. Sl" i I

S.: l:'!     
I              

I

I

I

4

I
i

I'       !       Y

I CO II'. 3 ',/-  .     
I

w

i I C): i l

I >   I'   .'    ''       

Q   ,
I I. t ., u

I LLJ I       '' I

I

Q   .       i   Q=  I     - , I

I

U 
I

p       .    z i

CO: II 7_ l [ - Pl     ' •

Q l.    4
H 7.. 1" ;; 4    '

J i~Ci I i.  ,. 1`     I     ,
SO               I i

C>   II I
I     -

i r.        `  .     
r,^ ui , i  ..     °

t.—  -, --, II
i i,.,.,     

I

i             I
i

i

f G

JI
i I    ," 7' lll I. .   ,

II      I l '     
i:/ .. u II

I I
W       i       

w _  .   a   

o.     

3. s s,     

o
I^      i       , I

o

o...,,..     

o,   v, 95 s .  

i    ,..,.,.,      i
i ii      (       

i I 
9133HS 33S

403



0

m W co

l.(')
N

Z i
m

w P       

F-- o c w w 3

UZa o 3

QgJ
z Y

cn> 
z         3;

Z Q 3 

w
o

w

z

a         

z I     , c . o      _„_
2

S 133HS 33S S 133HS 33S

ii

s ac
I

I
I

i          
v

j       s'          
1_._..  _.  

I     
I

C..I

3 II
3 r

a i

I  _   ,     
u I

V i   _     a

I i vz 
u, 

3nN3nv aoid n s     N

r o F _

o,     ;

o, _  ,

i a;   .
i      ,   s eyF,   i

i

3.. c,. s     
i

i

I
IOI. S

I
I    .

SA ll.( N13 7. LS. h

C     

j
c rio   

i a a5 ' e( a)   
I

t3

W =
tf./.. Sl^     I

l ti f. 11 F_ -.
r      _             

i i       

I      

I

t o o. 
i   i a_ s' o i    . 0 iu( a c ,,.....     _

M112' ld',' r( Hj          oIU Il (.. I    .       n

QF- -     i       -`- i 6   ;; I

i
i I l 

I
I       `      u    i

I
O I

i c       
i z                    u u. l, b. a t_ 

F r, ela5el°. 1     
Ii

i; c

I     .
II Ii

r

1 9.?      

1

I I      — 
r 7;' I i

ot  I   ',

l [. .    

i
ci j          I                    ia

i

i

I      _,
I r       -.     ..;  

a zz       ' a r   
r.  ___

7( aT   '
I

I I t;;  n-, , i            i

i
I

i

1
1

1

I

h oa53i  . q           c n

i.+'  t

E
1A  

li        
c,
i

SN      
I

v   I _      -

II
w

1

I I
o    . —    `  -_ __

I

I
I J

Q
U

I

e'  J
I

I
404



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4053 Village " JJ2"

EXHIBIT " B"

VILLAGE " JJ" AREA

405



v

j       

VILLAGE HH

N  /;

VILLAGE KK

VILLAGE II

LAKE 13

TRACT 4052

VILLAGE FF

VILLAGE JJ
TRACT 4053

VILLAGE NN- 1

TRACT 4052

LAKE 12

1

s

VILLAGE EE- 2

i"  

VILLAGE EE- 1
VILLAG

VILLAGE DD

Fq   V I LLAGE JJ
s

q, VICINITY MAP
SEPTEMBER 2021

406



Subdivision Improvement Agreement( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4053 Village " JJ2"

EXHIBIT " C"

CITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

1. The Subdivider shall obtain commercial general liability insurance companies licensed to
do business in the State of California with an A.M. Best Company rating Insurance rating of no
less than A: VII which provides coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage

liability in the amount of at least$ 1, 000, 000 for each occurrence and $ 2, 000, 000 in the aggregate.

Said insurance coverage shall be evidenced by a certificate of insurance with policy endorsements,
executed by an authorized official of the insurer( s). All parties to the Subdivision Improvement

Agreement must be named insured on the policy. The policy endorsements to be attached to the

certificate must provide all the following:

a. Name the City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards and commissions, and

members thereof, its employees and agents as additional insured as respects to any liability arising
out of the activities of the named insured. A CG 2010 or CG 2026 endorsement form or the

equivalent is the appropriate form.

b. State that " the insurance coverage afforded by this policy shall be primary
insurance as respects to the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents. Any insurance or

self-insurance maintained by the City of Lathrop, its officers, employees, or agents shall be in
excess of the insurance afforded to the named insured by this policy and shall not contribute to any
loss.

c. Include a statement that, " the insurer will provide to the City at least thirty ( 30)
days prior notice of cancellation or material change in coverage." The above language can be

included on the additional insured endorsement form or on a separate endorsement form.

d. The policy must contain a cross liability or severability of interest clause.

e. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at
least five years after completion of the Agreement or the work, so long as commercially available
at reasonable rates.

407



DATE( MMIDDIYYYY)
A    CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 9/ 1/ 2021

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER( S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy( ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement( s).

PRODUCER
CONTACT

Alliant Insurance Services, fiC.     PHONE

Gioria Gabriel
FAX

333 S Hope St Ste 3750 A/ C No Ext:      A/ C No:

Los Angeles CA 90071 aooa ess: Gloria. Gabriel alliant. com
INSURER( S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#

License#: oC36861 INSURERA: U( llt2d S ecialt Insurance Com 12537

INSURED RIVEISL- 01 
NSURERB: NBVI BtOfS S ecialt Insurance 36056

River Islands Development, LLC
73 W. Stewart

iNsuReRc: Homesite Insurance Com an 17221

Lathrop CA 95330 INSURERD:

INSURER E:

INSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 472121180 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
7ypE OF INSURANCE

1DDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP
LIMIT5LTR IN WVD POLICYNUMBER MM/ DDIYYYY MM/ DD/ YYYY

A X COMMERCIALGENERAL LIABILITY Y ATN2117764P 3/ 19/ 2021 3/ 19/ 2024 EACH OCCURRENCE 2, 000, 000

CLAIMS- MADE n OCCUR
DAMAGE TO RENTED

PREMISES( Ea occurrence)    $

MED EXP( Any one person)    $

PERSONAL& ADV INJURY    $ 1, 000, 000

GEN' L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:   GENERAL AGGREGATE      $ 2, 000, 000

POLICY jECT   LOC PRODUCTS- COMP/ OP AGG  $ 2, 000, 000___

OTHER:  

AUTOMOBILELIABILITY
COMBINEDSINGLELIMIT    

y

Ea accident

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY( Per person)  S

OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY( Per accident) $
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON- OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Per accident

e UMBRELLALIAB X OCCUR LA2IFXSZ07WSRIC 3/ 19/ 2021 3/ 19/ 2024 EACHOCCURRENCE 3, 000, 000

X EXCESS LIAB     CLAIMS- MADE AGGREGATE 3, 000, 000

DED RETENTION$   

WORKERSCOMPENSATION PER OTH-

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
Y I N

STATUTE ER

ANYPROPRIETOR/ PARTNER/ EXECUT VE E1. EACH ACCIDENT
OFFICER/ MEMBEREXCLUDED? N A

Mandatory in NH)     E. L. DISEASE- EA EMPLOYEE $

If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E. L. DISEASE- POLICY LIMIT  $

C Excess Liability CPX-7558052- 00 3( 19/ 2021 3/ 19/ 2024 Occ./Agg.   5, 000, 000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS I VEHICLES( ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
Re: FM 4053 Viliage JJ

City of Lathrop, its o cers, City Council, boards and commissions and members thereof, its employees and agents are included as Additional Insureds as
respects to General Liability. General Liability shail be Primary and Non- Contributory with any other insurance in force for or which may be purchased by City of
Lathrop, its officers, employees and agents.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF,  NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

City of Lathrop
390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop CA 95330
AUTHORIZEDREPRESENTATIVE

O 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25( 2016/ 03)       The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

408



POLICY NUMBER:  ATN217764P COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CG 20 10 04 13

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS,  LESSEES OR

CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR

ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Name Of Additional Insured Person( s) Or

Or anization s Location s Of Covered O erations

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, boards As Required By Written Contract, Fully Executed
and commissions and members thereof, its Prior To The Named Insured' s Work
employees and agents

390 Towne Centre Drive

Lathrop, CA 95330

Information re uired to com lete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations.

A. Section II — Who Is An Insured is amended to B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these

include as an additional insured the person( s)  or additional insureds, the following additional exclusions
organization( s) shown in the Schedule, but only with apply:

respect to liability for" bodily injury", " property damage" This insurance does not apply to " bodily injury" or
or " personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole property damage" occurring after:
or in part, by:   1. All work, including materials, parts or equipment

1. Your acts or omissions; or
furnished in connection with such work, on the

2. The acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf;     project( other than service, maintenance or repairs)
to be performed by or on behalf of the additional

in the performance of your ongoing operations for insured( s) at the location of the covered operations

the additional insured( s)   at the location( s) has been completed; or

designated above. 2. That portion of" your work" out of which the
injury or damage arises has been put to its

However:   
intended use by any person or organization other

1. The insurance afforded to such additional insured only
than another contractor or subcontractor engaged

applies to the extent permitted by law; and in performing operations for a principal as a part of
2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is the same project.

required by a contract or agreement, the insurance
afforded to such additional insured will not be broader

than that which you are required by the contract or
agreement to provide for such additional insured.

CG 20 10 04 13 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 2

409



C.       With respect to the insurance afforded to 2.  Available under the applicable Limits of

these additional insureds, the following is added to Insurance shown in the Declarations;

Section III— Limits Of Insurance: whichever is less.

If coverage provided to the additional insured is
This endorsement shall not increase the applicable

required by a contract or agreement, the most we
Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations.

will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the
amount of insurance:

1.  Required by the contract or agreement; or

Page 2 of 2 O Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 CG 20 10 04 13

410



Policy# ATN217764P

United Specialty Insurance Company

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

VEN 051 00 ( 02/ 20)

PRIMARY AND NON- CONTRIBUTING INSURANCE ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies the Conditions provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to SECTION IV -  COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CONDITIONS of the COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART, and

supersedes any provision to the contrary:

Primary and Non- Contributory Insurance

Any coverage provided to an Additional Insured under this policy shall be excess over any other
valid and collectible insurance available to such Additional Insured whether primary, excess,
contingent or on any other basis unless:

a.     ( 1) The Additional Insured is a Named Insured under such other insurance;

and

2) A fully written contract fully executed prior to the Named Insured' s
commencement of work for such Additional Insured for the specificproject

that is the subject of the claim, " suit," or " occurrence" expressly requires

that this insurance:

i)       apply on a primary and non- contributory basis;
and

ii)      would not seek contribution from any other insurance availableto
the additional insured.

or

b.     Prior to a loss, you request in writing and we agree in writing that this insurance shall apply
on a primary and non- contributory basis.

Name Of Person s Or Or anization s

As Required By Written Contract, Fully Executed Prior To The Named
Insured' s Work.

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this
Endorsement and remain unchanged.

VEN 051 00( 02/ 20)      Page 1 of 1

411



Policy: ATN217764P

UNITED SPECIALTY INSURANCE COMPANY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY.  PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

VEN 064 00 ( 01/ 15)

THIRD PARTY CANCELLATION NOTICE ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies the Conditions provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

If we cancel this policy for any reason other than nonpayment of premium, we will mail notification to the
persons or organizations shown in the schedule below ( according to the number of days listed below)
once the Named Insured has been notified.

If we cancel this coverage for nonpayment of premium, we will mail a copy of such written notice of
cancellation to the name and address below at least 10 days prior to the effective date of such
cancellation.

Our failure to provide such advance notification will not extend the policy cancellation date nor negate
cancellation of the policy.

SCHEDULE

Name and Address of Other Person/ Orqanization

City of Lathrop, its officers, City Council, 
Number of Days Notice

boards and commissions and members thereof,
its employees and agents
390 Towne Centre Drive 30

Lathrop, CA 95330

All other terms, conditions and exclusions under this policy are applicable to this Endorsement and
remain unchanged.

VEN 064 00( 01/ 15)    Page 1 of 1

412



Subdivision Improvement Agreement ( River Islands Stage 2B, LLC)

Tract 4053 Village " JJ2"

EXHIBIT " D"

UNFINISHED IMPROVEMENT COST ESTIMATE

AND VILLAGE " JJ"— FULL IMPROVEMENT COST

413



ENt'.s1NE RING

DRAFT ENGINEER' S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST April 23, 2018

VILLAGE JJ( 77 UNITS) Job No.: 25503- 46

STAGE 26

RIVER ISLANDS

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

STREET WORK

1 Fine Grading 179, 100 SF    $    0. 45  $  80, 595. 00

2 4. 5" AC Paving 93, 400 SF    $    2. 25  $ 210, 150. 00

3 8" Aggregate Base 93, 400 SF    $    1. 20  $ 112, 080. 00

4 Vertical Curb and Gutter ( with AB cushion)       2, 110 LF    $  15. 00  $  31, 650. 00

5 Rolled Curb and Gutter ( with AB cushion) 3, 720 LF    $  15. 00  $  55, 800. 00

6 Concrete Sidewalk 34,420 SF    $    5. 00  $ 172, 100. 00

7 Driveway Approach 77 EA    $ 600. 00  $  46, 200. 00

8 Handicap Ramps 11 EA    $       2, 500. 00  $  27, 500. 00

9 Survey Monuments 8 EA    $ 300. 00  $   2, 400. 00

10 Traffic Striping& Signing 3, 080 LF    $    5. 00  $  15, 400. 00

11 Dewatering ( Budget)     3, 080 LF    $  75. 00  $ 231, 000. 00

Subtotal Street Work 984, 875. 00

STORM DRAIN

12 Catch Basins ( type A inlet over type 1 manhole base)  11 EA    $       2, 500. 00  $  30, 800. 00

13 Catch Basins ( type A inlet over type ll manhole base)   6 EA    $       5, 000. 00  $  30, 000. 00

14 Catch Basins ( rype C inlet over type ll manhole base)   2 EA    $       3, 300. 00  $   6, 600. 00

15 15" Storm Drain Pipe 690 LF    $  34. 00  $  23, 460. 00

16 18" Storm Drain Pipe 670 LF    $  46. 00  $  30, 820. 00

17 30" Storm Drain Pipe 700 LF    $  80. 00  $  56, 000. 00

18 36" Storm Drain Pipe 130 LF    $  95. 00  $  12, 350. 00

19 Manholes( type ll)      1 EA    $       5, 000. 00  $   5, 000. 00

20 Connectto Existing 3 EA    $       1, 700. 00  $   5, 100. 00

21 Plug& Stub 2 EA    $       1, 000. 00  $   2, 000. 00

Subtotal Storm Drain 202, 130. 00

SANITARY SEWER

22 8" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 1, 610 LF    $  28. 00  $  45, 080. 00

23 10" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 540 LF    $  35. 00  $  18, 900. 00

24 12" Sanitary Sewer Pipe 870 LF    $  42. 00  $  36, 540. 00

25 Manholes 10 EA    $       4, 000. 00  $  40, 000. 00

26 Manholes ( Trunk)      2 EA    $       6, 000. 00  $  12, 000. 00

27 4" Sewer Service 76 EA    $ 600. 00  $  45, 600. 00

28 Connect to Existing 4 EA    $       3, 000. 00  $  12, 000. 00

Subtotal Sanitary Sewer 210, 120. 00

L z a ST. J' V EiL*",', LL£+ Jr.G° S. tE' E j fi.£"' aA dr 1 v,wyAW' 4 * R r.:' 13, E3 i;, • F, ZG a;#: d F

T: 25503- River Islands\ Phase 46- Village JJ\ Word& Excei\ Cost Estimate\ Village JJ Cost Estimate- Stage 26\ Improvements
414



ENGtNE ttNG

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

WATER SUPPLY

29 8" Water Line 1, 690 LF    $  32. 00  $  54, 080. 00

30 10" Water Line 1, 460 LF    $  40. 00  $  58, 400. 00

31 Water Service 7S EA    $ 800. 00  $  62, 400. 00

32 Fire Hydrants 5 EA    $       4, 000.00  $  20,000.00

33 8" GV 11 EA    $       1, 550.00  $  17,050.00

34 10" GV 7 EA    $       2, 500.00  $  17,500.00

35 Connect to Existing 5 EA    $       4, 000. 00  $  20, 000. 00

36 Plug& Stub 2 EA    $       1, 000. 00  $   2,000.00

Subtotal Water Supply 251, 430.00

NON- POTABLE WATER

37 8" Non- Potable Water Line 540 LF    $  35. 00  $  18, 900. 00

38 10" Non- Potable Water Line 930 LF    $  43. 00  $  39, 990.00

39 8" GV 1 EA    $       1, 550. 00  $    1, 550. 00

40 10" GV 3 EA    $       2, 500. 00  $   7, 500. 00

41 Non- Potable Water Service 2 EA    $       2, 000. 00  $   4, 000. 00

42 Connect to Existing 2 EA    $       3, 000. 00  $   6, 000. 00

43 Plug& Stub 1 EA    $       1, 000. 00  $    1, 000. 00

Subtotal Non- Potable Water Supply 78, 940. 00

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST( nearest$ 1, 000) $       1, 727,000. 00

COST PER LOT $  22, 429. 00

e" d t, :"+I GiC E, 4." a1CL R."`.aA,G S!" E'; i.+`= E, 1Fi'' i is C;. 5=ir 3 •  25 w 3.' wiw, . 7; 5Tt:. t.;

T: 25503- River Islands\ Phase 46- Village JJ\ Word& Excel\ Cost EstimateNillage JJ Cost Estimate- Stage 2B\ Improvements
415



EMGINEEl IN .I' a

ENGINEER' S BOND ESTIMATE September 25, 2020

COST TO COMPLETE Job No.: 25503- 46

RIVER ISLANDS- Stage 26

VILLAGE JJ( 77 LOTS)

CITY OF LATHROP, SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

Item Description Quantity Unit Unit Price Amount

1 Sanitary Sewer Raising Iron& Setting SSCO boxes ( o/ Completion)       1 LS   $   40, 400. 00  $ 40, 400. 00

2 Storm Drain Raising Iron ( o/ Completion) 1 LS   $      800. 00  $   800. 00

3 Domestic Water Raising Iron& Setting Water Boxes ( o/ Completion)      1 LS   $   36, 800. 00  $ 36, 800. 00

4 Non- Potable Water Raising Iron& Setting Water Boxes ( o/ Completion)   1 LS   $    2, 800. 00  $ 2, 800. 00

5 Joint Trench( 60% Completion)   1 LS   $  340, 200. 00  $       340, 200. 00

6 Striping& Mounments( o/ Completion)  1 LS   $   17, 000. 00  $ 17, 000. 00

TOTAL COST TO COMPLETE $       438, 000. 00

Notes:

1) Estimate for cost to complete based on contractor's note for Village JJ dated 9/ 25/ 2020

a1: 4TL?JtR+ GGE t:tALL€? mi, 31 r TE 3 i. LE, S.' f''; a , r".,+ 4' 5U   S>:. s. 3»„, • F; t3v+ ŝ^ i:. G E

T:\ 25503- River Islands\ Phase 46- Village JJ\ Word 8 Excel\ Cos[ Esfimate\ Cost to Comple e\ 2020- 09- 25 Village JJ Cost To Complete. zls\ Impmvements

416



ATTACHMENT D

JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

October 11, 2021

Via Email and Hand Delivery

Old Republic Title Company
1215 W. Center Street, Suite 103

Manteca, CA 95337

Attn:  Lori Richardson

Re:  Recordation of Final Map 4053; Escrow No. 12140221

Dear Lori:

This letter constitutes the joint escrow instructions (" Escrow Instructions") of River

Islands Stage 2B, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (" RlS2B') and the City of
Lathrop (" City') in connection with the above- referenced escrow (" Escrovd'). The Escrow

was opened in connection with recordation of the above- referenced final map (" Final

Map").  Recordation of the Final Map is subject to the conditions set forth below.  The

transactions described in these Escrow Instructions are referred to as the " Transaction."

Old Republic Title Company is referred to as " you" or" ORTC."

A.       Date for Closinqs

The Final Map will be recorded at the time designated by RIS2B as set forth below. The
Final Map can only be recorded after the City has approved the map in writing. The closing
date for the Transaction is intended to occur by December 30, 2021, at the time designated
in writing by RIS2B, subject to satisfaction of the conditions set forth below ( each a
C/ osing'). If the Final Map has not been recorded by June 30, 2022, ORTC will return

the Final Map to the City.

B.       Documents to be Delivered and Recordation Documents

In connection with the Transaction, you have in your possession or will receive the
following documents from City and RIS26 for recordation in the Official Records of San
Joaquin County, California (" Official Records").

B. 1.  One original Final Map for Tract 4053, executed and acknowledged
by the City ( provided to title by City).

The document listed in Item B. 1 above is referred to as the " Recordation Documents."

The Recordation Documents shall be recorded in the order referred to above.  The date

on which the Recordation Documents are recorded in the Official Records is the

Recordation Date.

C.       Funds and Settlement Statement

You also have received,  or will receive from RIS2B,  prior to the recordation of the
Recordation Documents,  in immediately available funds,  the following amounts,  in

accordance with the settlement statement prepared by you and approved in writing by
both RIS2B and City (" Setflement Statemenf'): recordation costs, escrow fees and other

amounts as set forth in the Settlement Statement.  Such costs, fees and other amounts

are the sole responsibility of RIS2B.

1

417



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

Funds to be wire transferred directly to the entity as instructed by City ,
immediately upon recordation of the Final Map, in accordance with the wire transfer
instructions for each entity are as follows: The amount of $ 18, 403. 84, payable to the City
pursuant to that certain Agreement to Settle Litigation Regarding River Islands at Lathrop
as amended " Sierra Club Agreemenf'), constituting the amount of $ 3, 328. 00 multiplied

by 5. 53 acres (or portion thereof) included in the Final Map, is to be transferred to the City
upon recordation of the Final Map.  The City' s wire instructions have been provided to
ORTC.

The amounts set forth in Section C are referred to as the " C/osing Funds."

D.       Closinq Requirements

When the following has occurred, you are authorized to close the Escrow at the time( s)
and in accordance with the process set forth below:

D. 1.  You have delivered copies of your Settlement Statement by email
transmission to:  ( a) Susan Dell' Osso ( sdellosso@riverslands. com);  ( b) Debbie Belmar

dbelmar@riverislands. com); ( c) Brad Taylor( btaylor@ci. lathrop. ca. us); ( d) Sandra Lewis

slewis@ci. lathrop. ca. us), and have confirmation ( by telephone or email) from Susan
Dell' Osso and Glenn Gebhardt or Brad Taylor that the Settlement Statement is accurate

and acceptable;

D. 2.  You have not received any instructions contrary to these Escrow
Instructions;

D. 3. The Recordation Documents and all other documents described

herein as being held by you or delivered to you have been received by you and have been
fully executed and, where applicable, acknowledged, and you have attached all legal
descriptions or have confirmed that all exhibits and legal descriptions are attached;

D. 4 You are prepared to record the Recordation Documents,  as

designated, release funds in accordance with the Settlement Statement and complete the

Transaction in compliance with these Escrow Instructions;

D. S. You have delivered a copy of these instructions, executed by an
authorized signatory of ORTC with authority to bind ORTC, and initialed all pages, by
email transmission ( with original hard copy to follow by U. S. Mail) to Debbie Belmar and
Glenn Gebhardt at the email addresses set forth above; and

D. 6. You have received confirmation ( by email or other writing) from
Susan Dell' Osso and Stephen Salvatore or Glenn Gebhardt to record the Recordation

Documents and complete the Transaction.

E.       Closinq Process and Priorities

When you have fully satisfied all of the closing requirements set forth in Section D, then
you are authorized and instructed to do the following in the chronological order given:

E. 1.  Date the Recordation Documents to be recorded;

E. 2.  Record the Recordation Documents in the Official Records;

E. 3.  Pay the costs associated with the Transaction;

2

418



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

E. 4.  Refund any funds delivered to you by RIS2B that are not disbursed
at the time of the final Closing pursuant to these Escrow Instructions to the following entity
and address:

River Islands Stage 2B, LLC

73 W. Stewart Road

Lathrop, CA 95330
Attn:  Susan Dell' Osso

E. 5.  Notify Susan Dell' Osso   ( sdellosso@riverslands. com),   Debbie

Belmar ( dbelmar@riverislands, com), Glenn Gebhardt ( c qebhardt@ci. lathrap. ca. us), Brad

Taylor( btaylor@ci. lathrop.ca. us), Sandra Lewis ( slewis@ci. lathrop. ca. us), Teresa Vargas

tvarqas@ci. lathrop. ca. us),  Sarah Pimentel  ( sqimentel@ci. lathrop.ca. us),  and Jose

Molina ( JMolina@sjqov. orq) of the completion of the Transaction;

E. 6.  Within five ( 5) business days after each Recordation Date, deliver

by overnight delivery via recognized, national, overnight delivery carrier to: ( 1) Susan

Dell' Osso, River Islands Stage 2B, LLC, 73 W. Stewart Road, Lathrop, CA 95330; and
2) Mr. Glenn Gebhardt, City Engineer, City Attorney, City of Lathrop, 390 Towne Centre

Drive, Lathrop, CA 95330:

A)   a certified copy of the Recordation Documents, showing all
recording information of the Recordation Documents; and

B)   a certified copy of the final Settlement Statement.

F.       Additionallnstructions

When assembling the final documents, signature pages from all parties shall be inserted
into each respective final document in creating fully executed counterparts.

Please acknowledge receipt of these instructions and your agreement to act as Escrow
agent in connection with this Transaction in accordance with these Escrow Instructions,

by executing and dating a copy of these Escrow Instructions where indicated below,
initialing all pages and returning it to both of the undersigned.

The Escrow Instructions may be modified only in a writing signed by both of the
undersigned.

Very truly yours,

Stephen J. Salvatore Date Susan Dell' Osso Date

City Manager President

City of Lathrop River Islands Stage 2B, LLC

3

419



JOINT ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

RECORDATION OF FINAL MAPS

RIVER ISLANDS AT LATHROP)

ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND AGREEMENT:

Receipt of the foregoing Escrow Instructions from RIS2B and the City is hereby

acknowledged.  The undersigned agrees, for itseif, and on behalf of ORTC, to proceed in
strict accordance with these Escrow Instructions.   The undersigned represents and

warrants to RIS2B and the City that the undersigned is authorized to execute this
Acknowledgement and Agreement, for itself, and on behalf of ORTC.

Old Republic Title Company

By:
its:

Date:

4

420



ATTACHMENT E

j co
o

o
p}   -   I     o

y1..'
My      ` 

T

Z _     f NEER * r
m„,,,,;.   , .;     

w _   y      

w a€<
Q    

s<
F

@ F ao    

v

d
sis u ;

s'  o

s* Z =     a-aai> k'
d'' r.

1      ...,    . a
w

O m  .
i Qm o z lo

n

o        p o<

o o o aa=    l
0

w Nn     
I

z a o mw a

Z  m

Q - w          z

y;      

e w a w
a     i         vi    LLa       -    

p w           

tr/

A

Z i S o

o

w Z m    O o
40        oa o

r

O o as      

o E    V -- Qa c a a c  Q -       ` na n

o   3   --      

m p
Z

3   `

s w

o

N
x -

M W a Nam _    
z

3>

H Z s o a g

W -       
W

o   - _    <  

Q  a
o=

Uzg z

Q n>     a             Z      -   po` '      -   
m -

z w   _-   o-       c    

o  o W
o

o€

o

ow a< o Z    

N -

o 

m

w o z
30  -    a       -  w  - o  -      -  €

a

Z    -   o    
U - o_$ J _<    -  

o=   

o« _ a 3   , a

o   Na o    _
c i 3

3r

F,    

m

i"   -
4     

w  Q

z

o
z

o
Z  ¢ ww n€ "

3" 0

O z- 

J

Q  -_

Q p J
a o       

I

F3 0
Q

U

i _    o W i zo\    -o       

No a

V a

H a    _ -   w       

m_    aw a
Z           ,.,    `

V

Z o

W
os -       

3           _ W a3z
FQ- Q v¢Ji Q     ?    a

w o¢    _       _   K Na I O zw   -    _     o       --  .,

O  xia  N€   o mz_       
o ,, Q

ooz   _    
o _      -  -_

421



LL0

o s
N

w

o

e

p

o

T

o

N
S S S Q

m

3

o Q

o

c!! -  p e -  o o
o 

L. L  _     0      ¢€       3 3 3 3

w U  Sa
o Q o       

m -     -

a a a a a Q oK 
m       

Cn m  _ d

z

m
o _

N

m

Z

W

f— p C7 W

zQ z

Q i>     a     z
W     -  _- 

w    -

oo o

F o-

J

EYP4* b/  
za

m oti€ o      

oo
i OER  cwia' ipN U      

6             
v'

zk' i n

JEYOR*
b aQ o'

J   
a='     

0o S- a
iopo    ''

o
z 4

a
04 w o

k+oz_   
m<

bava f       i ac

sS3oad#
s

P

o a     

V       -    

a     

o

o     ,    o z> m=_
sS3 oaa+ z`

N N z- < a,
z,-¢

Y

F

o o a a

o<     a

F -     _

Q       -_ 

c~i ¢      w    o       a a   -  ",   
w S ao<   ¢ o wa`      

O   _      

o
O 3 z Q   -   a

N-       

sc  o U -
aa n_- dina o- zau Y i m¢

U -- o n¢  c t Z- mc> o c N n c

422



i
q

sa [[ ot v I o

m      ;
i v avd

c,

N

Mw     "_ _   
anidadvs na          W

W

Q Z i w- rv). 00zez 3, ic, ss N

Q c      

w a o _        
I

OOZSI 3, lCLS. SIN-     

2

Uzg z    

Q   ` Q o              u

Q        o N
i   

i

o   3 F

I Q
0£

0
ao<<< 3.«, S. S N

Z

i
i

ww

o
w
d 3

w

m ZIp
o Y

o    

N Q Z¢  -     3 3 w tD
W 3      m

m

j
J V

N
o¢      

O 0.
N

W3 cri  - 

V Q

a, _    Uvc r'

Z Qa o m P     
F.           3

W o   ¢
3

z

I

m za)' 3 n a, o

O       —  w,,    

zl
w    za) 3na, oi

m       

O
N

w c

m a 3a Z- a n U   

Q O

Fd

Ir(za)' 3' n' d, ot 3aoa'  3ooa'

UI Q--_

I
z m

3

I2 I EI
a     

I
Iry NII

o I        N10' 3Y16° E( R) 11117'Ia    

o  mod I         
I I O OF l OS N

l.1 V 0_-__.    I
NI 3000 I O

U I 30 00
O_       d.

a J i     I I    I I        a

I     '1 la
I9I   

i

3

z

a
oo    sz

mI 0.,
30 `,

11195

z

I n\

o 4' S459 0l ti  \

o

s      =    r/" Q
QA

Go69

od
oP_N      

3      _ N J

SNP
SE

I      _-m J w  

n6 
R

I
i

G
A

I
LL        i

i/    
I

u'  
O        IJ •

423



c

0

m

M w     _ -       w
7 0 l7 G w

O
m 3

w  F o w z S
ti 3 a

o j             •

I         

a``
o v

UZa Z ` L

g      
e

Q   aap      z c=n

w
o

o   

133F11S b37dd3
a

r

Zo

a V')  
N

a
r

N       

v

U
O

l

N

s
3nN3Ab o PHpld n s J

N
g

m

N

m
d

m

m

m

U v

dG
m

X

F
Nq U q

N

c Q
CGt-

c{

m F

SHflUTE RIVE
iE,d

9 6
Jd6

d 1

v
r-

qU
K

p 4-

QU
F

3

m  

i
vi  ;  ¢   

4

I QQ

I

W O   
Q

w i        o

I U

Q

ti

5

OQQ-
a

424



co

o

m o

Mw     "_ - 4       W

O            Z

N Q -     -  -  -      
o  

pQ   -                    
J

o 0

J J

o 

LL>     —_     ,        

H   

5  3 3 "

Q       _  

U
m

o 0
N

V

W

ZO z .,       _     -

ta zeot 1 eaa

i e a aCd
i

w o

3A d4 dtl J̀ J(10 4

rv- rv), 00zsz a, c. css N
O       —

00toz— -- ao ss

i ,
oc

I

aozsi 3. ir, cssw I
00' 9L-   -

r     .
00' 9LN       

7

0£     OL I
N

A£

al
nl

a
00 o     00 im

I 3, lC, LS. SIN 3. l£, LS. SIN     

I N

ol o

ml a

I 00" lol 00 o     I

F.
I

3„ lf,(S. SIN 3, lf,LS. SIN

U N
o I

o

i p

OO ltl 3. tL,[& SlN
e

oo oi

tl

ao a     I 000[  i

i
3, 1f,( S. SIN 3„ If,LS. StN

i  -    o I
g I o            p---

3- n a, oi       

m       
F-' 3' fl' d pl       '

0' 101
I OO lll 3. 1f,/ S. StN     I

I     . 00' 101    '     

r

j,£.lS. SIN o I
W I

3, l£,LS. SIN I
o I

aI
I

I

o

I I
O ml I     

w  - I 00- 101
I 00' Ill 3.. lS. LSSIN     

0' l l

3 3„ If.LS. SIN    
d 3, lf,LS. SIN 3

0
W N

I al
o

P

ol o
u'

al
I oo ia     i       I    , 00 iu 3. r,tss N     °

j 00' 101
3„ 1£. LS. SIN

o I XI 3, lF, LS. SIN
W n

Q o I II O  ¢  I
3 I N       -    

U

g m I o I

N     _    

R .o I 00u 3. c, ss N     °     

V 00101 Z

Q _  
I     .

00' 101

r „

lE. LS. SIN
o     

1-'

o I J3lFLSSIN

N

ol

v 3       Qi    . . i.   
O

I       im       I^  
e

00' 101
I       

I    ,
00' lll 3. 1F. lS.StN

h- 00' l01 3„ t£, LSSIN           

3„ l£, LS.SIN I

I I i o I       `      
ai ip

i

W i
o<    

a  .

ao im I    , 00' u j, r, tssiry     °

of    , oc
I     , oa o 

r

3„ ic,[ s. s N I
o I3, lf, LS.SIN I

w
I I I o I

ioi iv

z m I 3 n a, ai-- I o

j
a     

ao' io     I
00' u 3„ r, tss N

a ao o    3. ccss N

3.. 1f.( S. SIN
I n I

o

d o i o i a

l       I

ry

o

I

U 3 p   
I oa u 3. c.[ ss N     .

n
m_,     

I a oi. oY oa a[-. 00 oc   
I

I oo ioi         Nisae' 2e' e( a)          

I j
J

mI 3, lC, LS.SIN

I
I i

9133HS 33S
o     •

425



0

m cp

MW     `°__ _       
wm

W

a a
Z

m ?   m  v=i

w  oo       a  w5

V
p       ¢

wi     .
I.    F   a3 - w_

UZ¢     z w a a   - a
w n

JJ` n        

Z   _     -   3 Y

M/   UFZ     , y o
m     

O    `
5 _   -      3

I.. L     _     

o       `

Y

Z2\    _

y

m w       _ Son

LL

enen O 4 LL \ tn a a \

a

Q
z   ,      O . o e     =,

2

5133HS 33S
o O O

S 133HS 33S

i i
i

o

i i

3 Of           
I

i       I
o

H o             n

cu s

I s      O`"
I

3

O              
i ol        o

3f1N3 d dOldl( 1JS     i j      I i-- o' P. ue r

oo u 3. c. tsstN     °
ioioY       •--- OO---• la

i
00 oc

I ,
oa ot

00' 101 N15' 4fi' 29" E( R)   I

i3,
l£, LS. SIN I

o       c.            

V     

u'       
a'    Y t

3 °°   

n

I O
3

U O
I    - 

p     

p

iot. s7 I I
ee u( a) 3. oc. tz. a n

I a
00'! Ol

N14' 5' 14' E( R)    
0.

3.. lL. CS. SIN 10' P. UE I
oi I I

z

Q o   
N I w         o i

3       

m

I J  

0

104. 34'     
I nll  

o

I    , Ll lll( 21) 3. fL.Ot. ZIN
f0' 101

N12' 24' 00 E( R)     
3, lf,LS. SIN

Z
I

I
33

IU r J        H3"
z

I
a I

p

I  J

I    

N

O o

I ql J
I     . 6S' 101

10768' Ll' lll( tl) 3.,9l, CtAIN
3, lf. LS. SIN

N10' 424fi'E( R   
I

3' fl' d, Ol

J

3 a

I
N

I

II I

l0' SOl 109 44

q H I
3, l£, LS. SIN N09' O1' 32' E( R)   

I
00' Ot   . 00Of  I

J

3

1    
N

Q
N

Q---.•       1 ILJ O II     
vi Q } p00       

j c    z 109 22 30 00'

I ila0fi

N

NOT20' 17' E( R   
I •

I N09' 3B1YE( R) 1, P   I
11

1 ;   

I

NI N

107 08
1

1

m

N07' 20' tYE    
o

m NIIr

0903 1 r'

N
413Z

WIRI
N; -      

N

1

o      
u'   

Im r         '

N

L13"   •       

o       o    
I         '

m-<

G9"    

a
m'     

C` Q;

5q59 ,
11195  -

ooll
3pOp'    

p=     WU O
R`

4
o 00

10414 NOT2017     )    
a'

ti

p, 1 54 9\ 5491M     
p,

2i"
5

aP
E i

OJ%"' SNR

I w

a0

z
5v

J
r

F-

426



ITEM 5. 1

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       PUBLIC HEARING     ( PUBLISHED NOTICE)     TO

CONSIDER THE SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL

PROJECT GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT NO. GPA- 20-

139,  REZONE NO.  REZ- 20- 140,  SITE PLAN REVIEW

NO. SPR- 20- 141, AND TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO.

TPM- 20- 142

RECOMMENDATION:     Council to Consider the Following:
1.  Hold a Public Hearing; and
2.  Adopt a Resolution Adopting the Initial Study and

Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Scannell

Properties Industrial Project.

3.  Adopt a Resolution Approving a General Plan

Amendment from SC, Service Commercial to GI,

General Industrial
4.  First Reading and Introduce an Ordinance to

Approve a Zoning Map Amendment from CS,

Service Commercial to IG, General Industrial.
5.  Adopt a Resolution Approving the Site Plan

Review for the Scannell Properties Industrial

Project to Construct Three    ( 3)    Industrial

Warehouse Buildings Totaling 191, 160 sq. ft.  in

Size.

6.  Adopt a Resolution Approving a Vesting Tentative
Parcel Map to Subdivide an Existing 18. 2 Acre
Parcel into Four  ( 4)  Parcels:  Parcel 1 is 6. 54-

acres,  Parcel 2 is 5. 58- acres,  Parcel 3 is 3. 50-

acres, and Parcel 4 is 2. 52- acres.

SUMMARY:

The applicant is requesting approval of a General Plan Amendment, Rezone, Site Plan
Review and Vesting Tentative Parcel Map to construct three  ( 3)  new industrial

warehouse buildings totaling 191, 160 sq. ft. in size.  Specifically, Building 1 would be
located in the northern portion of the project site and have a building footprint of
approximately 70, 200 sq. ft.  Building 2 would be located in the southwest portion of
the site and have a building footprint of approximately 78, 400 sq. ft. and Building 3
would be located in the southeast portion of the project site and have a building
footprint of approximately 42, 560 sq. ft.

The Tentative Parcel Map would subdivide an existing 18. 2- acre parcel into four ( 4)
parcels: Parcel 1 is 6. 54- acres ( Building 1), Parcel 2 is 5. 58- acres ( Building 2), Parcel

3 is 3. 50- acres ( Building 3) and Parcel 4 is 2. 52- acres.

427



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PROJECT

The General Plan Amendment would modify the existing SC,  Service Commercial

Land Use Designation to GI,  General Industrial.    The Rezone would modify the
existing CS, Service Commercial Zoning District to IG, General Industrial, matching
the proposed General Plan Land Use Designation.  The proposed buildings include a
total of 236 automobile parking spaces, 14 handicap accessible parking spaces and
101 truck trailer parking spaces in addition to the individual building dock doors.  The

project will include various improvements such as landscaping,   lighting,   and

extension of public utilities.    A portion of the site  ( Parcel 4)  is proposed as a
stormwater retention basin.

SITE DESCRIPTION:

The project site is located near the easterly boundary of the City of Lathrop, south of
Lathrop Road ( 1520 Lathrop Road ( APN:  198- 040- 14)).  The site is currently vacant
land and is bordered by the Sharpe Army Depot to the north,  existing Service
Commercial development to the west, existing General Industrial development to the
east and south, and existing Limited Industrial uses to the south.  The project site is
generally flat, with an elevation range for the entire project site of approximately 16
to 23 feet above sea level.  The property has a General Plan land use designation of
SC, Service Commercial and is within the CS, Service Commercial Zoning District.

BACKGROU N D:

As stated above, the subject site is vacant and undeveloped.   Based on the Phase 1

Environmental Site Assessment ( ESA) prepared as part of the Initial Study/ Mitigated
Negative Declaration  ( IS/ MND), the project site had historically been utilized as a
truck storage yard.   The Phase 1 ESA identified that in 1975, the project site was
developed with the Reiter Truck Company truck storage yard.   The subject site

appeared to consist of a large lot utilized for long haul truck and equipment storage,
a northwestern portion of the subject site was improved with several small

buildings/ shed structures and what appeared to be two ( 2) covered truck ports that
may have been utilized for truck maintenance located on the central eastern portion
of the subject site.  By 1982, the covered truck ports were no longer shown on aerial
photographs.    By 2005,  no truck storage yard,  or associated structures and/ or

storage equipment was shown on the subject site.  According to aerial photographs,
the subject site has been vacant and undeveloped since then.

During the development of the Mossdale Village area in the 2000' s, the project site
was dedicated to the City of Lathrop from Pacific Union Homes to be utilized as a
sprayfield for treated effluent from the City' s Wastewater Treatment Plant.  With the

dedication, a right of reverter was established on the property, stipulating that if the
project site was no longer used as a spray field, the property ownership would revert
back to Pacific Union Homes ( PUH).

428



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PROJECT

The project is Conditioned to complete the reverter process to transfer ownership
back to PUH prior to approval of the first Parcel Map or issuance of the first Building
Permit, whichever occurs first.

ANALYSIS:

Site Plan & Onsite Circulation

As stated previously, the proposed project includes construction of three ( 3)  new

industrial warehouse buildings totaling 191, 160 sq. ft. in size.  The project is designed
to provide a total of 236 automobile parking spaces and 101 truck trailer parking
spaces in addition to the individual building dock doors.

Specifically, off- street parking is provided as follows:

Building Square Automobile Automobile Commercial

Number Footage Parking Parking Spaces Truck Trailer

sq. ft.)     Spaces Provided Spaces

Re uired

1 70, 200 85 135 38

2 78, 400 50 55 38

3 42, 560 30 60 25

Total 191, 160 165 250 101

Automobile parking spaces are nine ( 9) by eighteen ( 18) feet in size, meeting the
requirements per Section 17. 76. 030: Standards for off-street and on- street parking
facilities.   The commercial truck trailer parking spaces are twelve ( 12) by fifty- five

55) in size.   Bicycle parking is required per Section 17. 76. 120: Bicycle parking and
storage standards at five ( 5) percent of the total automobile parking spaces required,
which equals eight ( 8) bicycle parking spaces.   Bicycle parking spaces are required,
as a Condition of Approval, to be located near main pedestrian entrances for each
building.   Off- street parking for commercial trucks and trailers are located behind
each building, screening commercial trucks and trailers from Lathrop Road.

The proposed project includes two ( 2) driveways to access Lathrop Road, one ( 1)

located in the north western portion of the project site and one ( 1)  located at the

existing " D" Street ( to be formally named during the Parcel Map process) along the
eastern portion of the project site.  The Lathrop Road access point is located at the
northwest corner of the project site.   The access point will allow right- in/ right- out
turn movements only since left turn movements are prohibited by the existing raised
center median in Lathrop Road.   The " D" Street access point is located near the
northeast corner of the project site and allows queuing if/ when needed.  The driveway
on  " D"  Street includes a portion of property owned by the South San Joaquin
Irrigation District ( SSJID) and the project is conditioned to require an easement prior
to the issuance of a Building Permit.

429



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 4

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PROJECT

The access point connects the projects to the existing D Street/ Lathrop Road
intersection which allows turn movements in all directions including an existing west
bound turn pocket that vehicles entering the project site may utilize.  All emergency
vehicles arriving to and from the proposed project would be able to enter via Lathrop
Road and D" Street.

Architecture and Elevation

The building' s exterior walls will be constructed of concrete tilt- up panels.  Dock bays

with section overhead doors would be installed along the south side of Building 1 to
accommodate twenty- one truck trailers.   Dock bays for Building 2 will be installed
along the north side to accommodate twenty- one ( 21) truck trailers.   Dock bays for

Building 3 will be installed along the north side to accommodate fifteen ( 15) truck

trailers.

The exterior of the building will be painted beige, tan, and grey.  The office exterior

will have gray and tan color schemes with brown accents and the windows will have
blue reflective glazing.  The office spaces would include aluminum storefront framing
with tempered glass at all doors and metal canopies.

Landscaping, Lighting and Fencing
According to the landscape plan,  landscaping will occupy approximately 80, 047
square feet of the project site - approximately 10. 1% of the total area ( 791, 023 sq.
ft.  or 18. 15 acres).   This exceeds the LMC requirement of 10%  landscaping for
industrial projects.  Large shade trees will be planted around employee parking areas
and a variety of shade and accent trees will be planted along Lathrop Road and D

Street".   Shrubs and groundcover will be planted throughout the site for aesthetic
value.   Landscaping along Lathrop Road ranges between ten ( 10) feet in width to

fifteen ( 15) feet in width.  Landscaping would be selected based on suitability for the
local climate, site conditions, and reduced water needs. All landscape elements would

be installed according to the project' s Landscape Plan and the City of Lathrop' s
Landscape Standards for Planting and Irrigation.

Lighting fixtures will be installed on the exterior of the buildings for general security
and to provide lighting for walkways and parking areas. Light poles will be distributed
appropriately throughout the site to provide sufficient lighting coverage. The project
is conditioned to prevent lights from reflecting to adjacent properties.

Fencing for the proposed project will be installed around the truck trailer parking and
dock areas for each building.  A six ( 6) foot chain link fence and gate will be installed
around each truck trailer and dock area and a six ( 6) foot chain link fence will be

installed around Parcel 4, where the proposed stormwater retention/ infiltration basin
is to be constructed.  No fencing is proposed along Lathrop Road.

430



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 5

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PROJECT

Utilities

Potable water connections to the project would occur via the nearby connection to
the 24" water line in Lathrop Road.   For sanitary sewer, a new sewer pump station
would be installed on- site with a forcemain that would connect to the City' s existing
forcemain at the intersection of Lathrop Road and McKinley.  Stormwater drain pipes
would discharge into the stormwater retention/ infiltration basin would be located in

the far southeastern portion of the project site. The stormwater retention/ infiltration

basin has been designed according to the City of Lathrop' s design and construction
standards,   and consistent with the relevant multi- agency post- construction
stormwater standards manual.    Fire hydrant( s)  will also be installed on- site in

accordance with Fire Department standards.  Electric and natural gas service will be
provided by PG& E to the project site.

Transportation Analysis

A Transportation Analysis was prepared for the Scannell Properties Industrial Project
Attachment   # 10).     The purpose of the study is to address the potential

transportation impacts associated with the proposed project.   The study includes
intersection operations, site access, and consistency with relevant policies.

Senate Bill 743 ( SB 743), which became effective statewide in July 2020, resulted in
several statewide changes to the evaluation of transportation impacts under CEQA.
SB 743 added Section 21099 to the Public Resources Code,  which states that

automobile delay,  as described by Level of Service  ( LOS)  or similar measures of

vehicular capacity or traffic congestion, shall not be considered a significant impact.
As such,  the Initial Study  /  Mitigated Negative Declaration includes analysis

consistent with SB 743; specifically, the potential impacts based on efficiency metrics
and/ or the project' s effect on Vehicle Miles Traveled.

However,  the City continues to utilize LOS to measure traffic congestion and
operating conditions as part of the project' s consistency with the General Plan.  LOS

is a qualitative measure of traffic operating conditions whereby a letter grade, from
A ( the best) to F ( the worst), is assigned.  These grades represent the perspective of
drivers and are an indication of the comfort and convenience associated with driving.

Project Trip Generation
Project trips were estimated using trip rates published in the Institute of

Transportation Engineers  ( ITE)  Trip Generation Manua/  lOt''  Edition Supp/ ement
2020).  The 10th Edition Supplement provides trip rates for multiple industrial land

uses.  Because a specific tenant has not been identified, a blended trip rate based on
the potential land uses was calculated daily, AM and PM peak hour trips.

431



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 6

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PRO7ECT

Passenger
320 27 5 32      10 26 36

Vehicle
Industrial/ Warehouse

ITE 130, 150, 154, 191. 2 Heavy Vehicle 78 3 3 6 2 2 4

155)

Total 398 30 8 38 12 28 40

Notes:

Trip generation is based on trip rates published in Trip Generntion Manuel 10`' Edition Supplement( Institute of
Transportation Engineers, 2020).

Source: Fehr& Peers, 2021

Project Trip Distribution
Per the Transportation Analysis prepared by Fehr  &  Peers,  passenger vehicle
employee) trips were distributed throughout the study area  ( City)  based on the

location of proposed access, existing direction patterns and output from the Base
Year Transportation Demand Model ( TDM).

As it relates to heavy vehicles  ( trucks),  the analysis shows that all inbound and

outbound heavy vehicles would be required to access the development via McKinley
Avenue to Lathrop Road and assumed that no trucks would be permitted on Lathrop
Road west of McKinley Avenue.  Therefore, the analysis in the Transportation Analysis

assumes no trucks would use Lathrop Road west of McKinley Avenue.

Vesting Tentative Parcel Ma
The Vesting Tentative Parcel Map consists of one ( 1) parcel approximately 18. 2- acres
in size.  The proposal is to subdivide the property into four ( 4) parcels to create the

following parcels:

Parcel 1 is 6. 54- acres;

Parcel 2 is 5. 58- acres;

Parcel 3 is 3. 50- acres; and

Parcel 4 is 2. 52- acres.

All required right- of- way and easements will be dedicated to the City prior to the
issuance of a building permit.

432



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 7

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PRO] ECT

General Plan Amendment

As previously stated, the applicant is requesting approval to amend the General Plan
land use map designation of the subject property from SC, Service Commercial to

GI, General Industrial, and Zoning Map amendment from CS, Service Commercial to
IG, General Industrial.

The primary purpose is to accommodate a wider range of uses that will be allowed to
occupy the proposed industrial buildings.  Although the warehouse distribution use is

permitted in the CS, Service Commercial Zoning District, the proposal would allow
for more manufacturing- oriented uses to operate in the proposed industrial

warehouse buildings.

The applicant believes the General Plan land use map designation change to GI,
General Industrial is the most appropriate designation for this site as it would be

consistent with surrounding land uses, such as Sharpe Army Depot to the north, Con
Fab to the east, California Natural Products and UPS Freight to the west and industrial

uses to the south.  The requested land use designation change is consistent with all

existing General Plan Goals,  Policies and Implementation strategies and would not

require any amendments to the text of the existing General Plan.   In addition, the

proposed General Plan Amendment and Rezone will implement the following policies
contained in the General Plan in support of industrial land use designations:

a)  " Areas designated for industrial use are intended to take advantage of rail and

freeway access". Although the project does not have rail access, it is located
in proximity to Interstate 5 and Highway 120 via McKinley Avenue,  Louise

Avenue and Yosemite Avenue; and

b)  " Areas designated for industrial use are to assure that there will be sufficient

long- term availability of industrial land to expand the City's economic base':
The City has experienced a significant increase in demand for manufacturing
and distribution due to its location and proximity to interstates, rail, airports

and a deep water port; and

c)  " Industrial proposals should be located where possible within an industrial park
designed for the accommodation of a community of industries that are
compatible in terms of operational characteristics, aesthetic qualities,  utility
service requirements and street circulation': The proposed General Plan land
use change to industrial will be compatible and complement the existing
adjacent industrial uses and future developments of the Sharpe Depot to the

north.

433



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 8

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PROJECT

d)  " Industries are to be developed and operated in such manner as to avoid

damage, destruction or degradation of the environment': Development of the

project has been properly conditioned to minimize impacts on the

environment. Prior to building permit issuance, the project is required to obtain
approvals from various county and state agencies such as: San Joaquin Valley
Air Pollution District to mitigate air related impacts, San Joaquin County Multi-
Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan to mitigate impacts on

biological resources, State Water Resources Control Board to prevent storm
water pollution related to construction activities.

Zoning Map Amendment
The applicant is requesting approval to Rezone the subject property from CS, Service
Commercial to IG, General Industrial.   Rezoning of the property will allow a variety
of industrial related uses to occupy the building. City staff supports the project and
believes the proposed zoning designation will be compatible and complement the
existing and future adjacent industrial uses

According to the Lathrop Municipal Code, amendments to the zoning map must be
reviewed by the Planning Commission and forwarded to the City Council for approval.
Before any recommendation to approve by the Planning Commission,  or final

approval by the City Council, the following finding must be made:

1.  That the proposed amendment will be consistent with applicable provisions of
the General Plan.

The applicant has filed for both a General Plan Amendment and a Rezoning. If the

General Plan land use map designation is approved, the rezoning would be consistent
with the City General Plan.

PLANNING COMMISSION:

On September 15, 2021 the Planning Commission held a duly noticed Public Hearing
on the proposed Scannell Properties Industrial Project.

During the Public Comment period, a number of comments and concerns were raised
by the public.  These comments are summarized below and Staff has prepared written
responses as part of the Administrative Record as it relates to the Scannell Properties
Industrial Project.   It is important to note that some of the comments raised lack

specific detail and/ or reference and the comments below are not intended to be
reproduced in verbatim; as such, verbal comments are summarized in italics below.

434



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 9

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PROJECT

Concern was raised regarding the timing of the Traffic Signal at the intersection
of Lathrop Road and the Cul- De- Sac ( Illustrated as " D" Street on the Vesting
Tentative Subdivision Map) and that the Traffic Signal should be required now
instead of later.

As stated in the Traffic Analysis, dated September 9, 2021, while Level of Service

LOS) may no longer be used to identify significant transportation impacts in CEQA
documents for land use projects, the analysis includes a LOS analysis to determine if
the proposed project would result in unacceptable intersection operations at the study
intersections.  The Traffic Analysis included an analysis of a variety of intersections,
including Lathrop Road and " D" Street ( cul- de- sac).  The analysis included a review

of existing conditions,  existing plus project conditions,  cumulative no project
conditions and cumulative plus project conditions.    Cumulative means that the

analysis considers impacts generated at build- out of Lathrop and surrounding
jurisdictions, including but not limited to the City of Manteca and Tracy ( estimated

build- out of 2040).

Intersections studied in analysis would operate acceptably under cumulative plus
project and delay at all intersections would decrease with the proposed project with
rezoning to General Industrial would generate less trips than a retail type

development permitted under the existing Service Commercial land use designation.

An AM and PM Peak Hour Signal Warrant Analysis was completed for the Cumulative

No Project Conditions ( remains and develops as Service Commercial) and Cumulative

Plus Project Conditions ( rezone and develops as General Industrial ( proposed)), with

the installation of a traffic signal and without for the intersection of Lathrop Road and
D" Street.   The Analysis showed that the traffic volumes in the AM peak hour for

both scenarios and in the PM peak hour in the Cumulative No Project scenario would
not satisfy the warrant for the traffic signal.   However, the analysis recommended

that the proposed project pay a fair- share for the future installation of a traffic signal
or install it with the proposed project due to the potential delays in left turning
movements associated with the existing concrete facility ( Con Fab) and the proposed
project.

The Applicant shall pay their fair share equal to 25% of the total cost of a traffic

signal at the intersection of Lathrop Road and D" Street,  per the Transportation
Analysis, dated September 9, 2021.  The Applicant may install the traffic signal and
associated improvements at their cost with the ability to be reimbursed in the future
for the amount in excess of their fair share.   Payment of the fair share shall occur

prior to the approval of the first parcel map or issuance of the first building permit,
whichever occurs first."

435



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 10

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PROJECT

Concern was raised as to history of hazardous waste on the project site and
that additional testing is needed.   Additionally,  the project did not include a
CalEnvironScreen analysis.

As noted in the Hazards and Hazardous Materials Section of the Initial

Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration  ( Section IX.),  a Phase 1 Environmental Site

Assessment  ( ESA),  dated October 15,  2020,  and Limited Phase 2 Site Sampling
Report, dated November 16, 2020, were prepared by Basics Environmental for the
proposed Scannell Properties Industrial Project.

The purpose of Phase 1 ESA is to:  1)  observe site conditions at the property,  2)

identify to the extent feasible recognized environmental conditions in connection with
the subject site  ( evaluate the potential for the presence of hazardous or toxic
chemicals in the soils and/ or groundwater resulting from past and present land use
activities), and 3) render findings and professional opinion regarding the potential
adverse environmental impacts on or adjacent to the site.

The Phase 1 ESA concluded that the assessment revealed obvious evidence of a

recognized environmental condition in connection with the property and

recommended that additional investigation and/ or documentation be conducted on

the site.

The additional investigation and testing was conducted as part of the Limited Phase
2 Environmental Site Sampling Report ( Phase 2 ESA).  The objective of the Limited

Phase 2 ESA was to evaluate current conditions in select on- site areas.  To meet this

objective,  soil samples were collected from the former Reiter Truck Company
operations area and stockpiles, and groundwater samples were collected from the
wells with samples submitted to the laboratory for analysis.

The Phase 2 ESA concluded that petroleum hydrocarbons and Volatile Organic
Compounds ( VOCs) were not detected in site soil or stockpiled soil at concentrations

above their respective Tier 1 Environmental Screening Level  ( ESL) and secondary
ESL.    The reported concentrations of inetals were not detected in site soil or

stockpiled soil at concentrations above their respective Tier 1 ESL and/ or secondary
ESL and arsenic' s lab RL is within its naturally occurring background levels.

Additionally, petroleum hydrocarbons and VOCs were not detected in groundwater
samples at concentrations above their Tier 1 ESL and secondary ESL with the
exception of chloroform in the sample from a monitoring well located near the project
site' s southwestern corner.  The reported chloroform concentration was slightly above
its' secondary ESL.    Vinyl chloride was not detected in groundwater samples at
concentrations at or above its' lab RL or lab MDL; however, the lab MDL was slightly
above its' secondary ESL.

436



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 11

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PRO) ECT

As a result,  the Phase 2 ESA states that the detection of chloroform in one  ( 1)

groundwater sample at a concentration slightly above its' secondary ESL and vinyl
chloride' s lab MDL being slightly above its' secondary ESL do not appear to present a
significant environmental concern for the site based on the depth of groundwater.
The Phase 2 ESA stated that further assessment does not appear warranted at this

time.

Based on the Phase 1 ESA and Phase 2 ESA, the Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative
Declaration concluded that impacts associated with Hazards and Hazardous Materials

would result in a Less Than Significant Impact with the implementation of Mitigation

Measure HAZ- 1, which requires the applicant to destroy the permanently inactive
wells located within the project site, in accordance with standards developed by the
Department of Water Resources and State Water Resources Control Board.

With regards to the CalEnvironScreen Analysis, CEQA Guidelines does not require the

project to undergo the CalEnvironScreen analysis.

Concern was raised as to the speed limit along Lathrop Road and safety
concerns related to the grade separation of Lathrop Road and the Union Pacific
Railroad ( UPRR).   Due to the grade separation,  there may not be adequate
sight distance for commercial trucks turning left onto Lathrop Road from the
cul- de- sac ( safety concerns).

The current speed limit on Lathrop Road is 45 miles per hour ( MPH).   According to
Caltrans Highway Design Manual, the minimum standard for stopping sight distance
for a 45 mph roadway is 360 feet.   In other words, the minimum sight distance

continuous length of roadway/ highway ahead) to allow for a vehicle to stop at the
intersection is 360 feet.   The distance from the top of the Lathrop Road and UPRR
overcrossing, east of the project site and intersection of Lathrop Road and " D" Street

is over 1, 200 feet, far in excess of the distance required to stop for commercial trucks.

In comparison, the other grade crossing on Lathrop Road ( west of the project site) is
930 feet from 5t"  Street and 820 feet to McKinley Avenue.   These distances are

substantially less than the 1, 200 feet from D" Street to the top of the Lathrop Road
and UPRR overcrossing.

Concern was raised related to the right of reverter on the property and
property ownership by the City of Lathrop and Pacific Union Homes ( PUH).

As noted in the City Council Staff Report, during the development of the Mossdale
Village area in the 2000' s,  the project was dedicated  ( i. e.,  given)  to the City of
Lathrop from Pacific Union Homes to be utilized as a sprayfield for treated effluent
from the City' s Wastewater Treatment Plant.

437



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 12

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PROJECT

With the dedication, a right of reverter was established on the property, stipulating
that if the project site was no longer used as a spray field, the property ownership
would revert back to Pacific Union Homes ( PUH).

The project includes a Condition of Approval that states that the " Applicant shall start
the reverter process in order to gain ownership of the subject parcel.  The reverter

process shall be complete prior to approval of the first Parcel Map or issuance of the
first Building Permit, whichever occurs first."

Concern was raised that the property is located in a census tract designated
as  " disadvantaged" that could negatively affect socio- economic and health
indicators.

According to the California Environmental Protection Agency ( CaIEPA), Census Tract

No.  6077005119 is considered a Senate Bill 535 Disadvantaged Community ( June

2018 Update).   In general, disadvantaged communities refer to areas which most

suffer from a combination of economic, health, and environmental burdens.   These

burdens include but are not limited to poverty, high unemployment, air and water

pollution, presence of hazardous wastes as well as high incidence of asthma and heart
disease.

The property is bounded by existing service commercial and industrial uses,  most

notably the Sharpe Army Depot to the north.    The property is not adjacent to
residential uses and the proposal does not include the removal and/ or relocation of
residential uses.    The project site is within an existing service commercial and
industrial portion of the City.   Furthermore, the proposed project is consistent with
the City' s General Plan as it relates to 1) assuring that there will be sufficient long-
term availability of industrial land to expand the City' s economic base, 2) the site is
compatible with existing service commercial and industrial uses,  and 3)  is to be

developed and operated in such a manner as to avoid damage,  destruction or

degradation of the environment via compliance with City Standards, Conditions of

Approval and Mitigation Measures.

As detailed in the Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration, the project includes
appropriate Mitigation Measures to reduce potentially significant environmental
impacts to a less than significant level.

Concern was raised as to the appropriate level of CEQA analysis prepared for
the Scannell Properties Industrial Project and that an Environmental Impact

Report ( EIR) should be prepared.

CEQA requires that public agencies document and consider the potential
environmental effects of the agency' s actions that meet CEQA' s definition of a
project."

438



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 13

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PR07ECT

Briefly summarized, a " project" is an action that has the potential to result in direct
or indirect physical changes in the environment.   A project includes the agency' s
direct activities as well as activities that involve public agency approvals or funding.
Guidelines for an agency' s implementation of CEQA are found in the CEQA Guidelines
California Code of Regulations Title 14, Division 6, Chapter 3).

Provided that a project is not exempt from CEQA,  the first step in the agency' s
consideration of its potential environmental effects is the preparation of an Initial
Study.   The purpose of an Initial Study is to determine whether the project would
involve  " significant"  environmental effects,  as defined by CEQA,  and to describe

feasible mitigation measures that would avoid identified effects or reduce them to a

level that is less than significant.   If the Initial Study does not identify significant
effects, then the agency ordinarily prepares a Negative Declaration.   If the Initial

Study concludes that significant effects would occur but also identifies mitigation
measures that would reduce these significant effects to a level that is less than

significant, the agency may paper a Mitigated Negative Declaration.

If,  however,  a project would involve significant effects that cannot be feasibly
mitigated, then the agency must prepare an Environmental Impact Report.

The Scannell Properties Industrial Project is a project" as defined by CEQA and not
exempt from CEQA consideration.  The City, acting as the Lead Agency, has prepared
an Initial Study to analyze the potential environmental effects and to determine
whether the proposed project would involve " significant" environmental effects, as

defined by CEQA.

The Initial Study concludes that the project would have potentially significant
environmental effect but all of these effects would be avoided or reduced to a level
that would be less than significant with identified mitigation measures.  The Mitigation

Measures identified in the Initial Study are attached to and incorporated in the
proposed project' s Conditions of Approval,  including monitoring responsibility and
timing.  As such, a Mitigated Negative Declaration has been prepared for the Scannell
Properties Industrial Project.

During the Public Comment period, Ms. Mary Meninga requested additional time to
provide comments and questions.  Chair Dresser allowed Ms. Mary Meninga to exceed
the five ( 5) minute time limit and requested Staff to meet with her to answer her

additional questions.

Planning and Public Works Staff ( Community Development Director Mark Meissner,
City Engineer Glenn Gebhardt, and Contract Planner David Niskanen) met with Ms.

Mary Meninga on September 21, 2021 via virtual teleconference ( Zoom) to answer

her additional questions.

439



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 14

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PRO7ECT

Mary provided a follow- up email to the meeting on September 21, 2021 and the email
correspondence is attached to this Staff Report as Attachment 14.

After review and consideration of all information provided,  and after taking and
considering all public testimony, the Planning Commission voted unanimously ( 4- 0)

to adopt the following Resolutions:

1.  Resolution No.  21- 24,  recommending City Council certification of an Initial
Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Scannell Properties Industrial
Project;

2.  Resolution No. 21- 25, recommending City Council approval of a General Plan
Amendment from SC,  Service Commercial to GI,  General Industrial and

approval of an Ordinance for a Zoning Map Amendment from CS,  Service

Commercial to IG,  General Industrial for the Scannell Properties Industrial

Project;

3.  Resolution No.  21- 26,  recommending City Council approval of the Site Plan
Review to construct three ( 3) industrial warehouse buildings totaling 191, 160
sq. ft. in size, with amended Conditions of Approval; and

4.  Resolution No.  21- 27,  recommending City Council approval of a Vesting
Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide an existing 18. 2- acre parcel into four ( 4)

parcels:  Parcel 1 is 6. 54- acres, Parcel 2 is 5. 58- acres, Parcel 3 is 3. 50- acres,

and Parcel 4 is 2. 52- acres, with amended Conditions of Approval.

The above Planning Commission Resolutions are attached to this Staff Report as
Attachment 13.

Conditions of A proval
Planning staff routed the project plans on ] anuary 13,  2021 and subsequently on
March 11, 2021 to the Building Division, Public Works Department, Lathrop- Manteca
Fire District,  Lathrop Police Services and various non- City agencies to ensure
compliance with applicable codes and requirements. As a result, staff developed a

consolidated list of conditions. Staff finds that the proposed project has been properly
conditioned to meet the City' s standards and requirements.

Public Notice

A Notice of Public Hearing was advertised in the Manteca Bulletin on September 23,
2021.   Staff also mailed the public hearing notice on September 24, 2021 to notify
property owners located within a 300- foot radius from the project site.   In addition,

the Public Notice was emailed to the City' s Public Hearing subscribers on September
23, 2021.  The meeting agenda was also posted at our designated posting locations
in the City.

440



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 15

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PROJECT

CEQA Review

In accordance with Public Resource Code Section 21000 et.  seq.  and State CEQA

Guidelines Section 15000 et.  seq., the City of Lathrop prepared and circulated an
Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration for a 20- day public review period
beginning August 11, 2021 and ending August 31, 2021, that evaluated the potential
environmental effects of the proposed project.  It was determined that although the

proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment,  required

mitigation measures will be implemented to reduce these effects to a less than
significant level.  Mitigation measures are incorporated and included as part of the
Conditions of Approval for the project.

The City received eight ( 8) comments during the 20- day public review period from
Adams Broadwell Joseph  & Cardozo,  Ms.  Adriana Lopez,  Catholic Charities of the

Diocese of Stockton,  Ms.  Mary Meninga,  Pacific Gas & Electric ( PGE), San Joaquin

Environmental Health Department  ( SJCEHD),  San Joaquin County Multi- Species
Habitat Conservation  & Open Space Plan  ( SJMSCP),  and San Joaquin Valley Air
Pollution Control District ( SJVAPCD).  The comments and responses to the comments

are attached to the Staff Report as Attachment 12.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Planning Commission and staff recommend that the City Council consider all
information provided and submitted, take and consider all public testimony and,  if

determined to be appropriate, take the following actions:

1.       Hold a Public Hearing; and

2.       Adopt a Resolution Adopting the Initial Study and Mitigated Negative
Declaration for the Scannell Properties Industrial Project.

3.       Adopt a Resolution Approving a General Plan Amendment from SC,
Service Commercial to GI, General Industrial.

4.       First Reading and Introduce an Ordinance to Approve a Zoning Map
Amendment from CS, Service Commercial to IG, General Industrial.

5.       Adopt a Resolution Approving the Site Plan Review for the Scannell
Properties Industrial Project to Construct Three   ( 3)   Industrial

Warehouse Buildings Totaling 191, 160 sq. ft. in Size.
6.       Adopt a Resolution Approving a Vesting Tentative Parcel Map to

Subdivide an Existing 18. 2- acre Parcel into Four ( 4) Parcels: Parcel 1 is

6. 54- acres, Parcel 2 is 5. 58- acres, Parcel 3 is 3. 50- acres, and Parcel 4
is 2. 52- acres.

FISCAL IMPACT:

All application processing fees and costs are charged to the applicant. The request
has no fiscal impact to the City.

441



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 16

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PRO] ECT

ATTACH M ENTS:

1.  Resolution Adopting the Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration
2.  Resolution Approving the General Plan Amendment from SC,   Service

Commercial to GI, General Industrial

3.  Ordinance to Approve a Zoning Map Amendment from CS, Service Commercial
to IG, General Industrial

4.  Resolution Approving the Site Plan Review for the Scannell Properties Industrial
Project

5.  Resolution Approving the Vesting Tentative Parcel Map to Subdivide an Existing
18. 2- acre Parcel into Four ( 4) Parcels.

6.  Amended Consolidated Conditions of Approval, dated September 15, 2021

7.  Vicinity Map
8.  Project Plans  ( Site Plan,  Utility Plans,  Landscape Plans,  Elevations,  Vesting

Tentative Parcel Map)
9.  Proposed General Plan Amendment and Zoning Map Amendment
lO. Transportation Analysis, prepared by Fehr & Peers, dated September 9, 2021

11. Final Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration Insert
12. Comments Received Regarding IS/ MND and Responses
13. Planning Commission Resolution # 21- 24, 21- 25, 21- 26, and 21- 27

14. Mary Meninga Email, dated September 22, 2021 and September 29, 2021

442



CITY MANAGERS REPORT PAGE 17

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PROJECT

APPROVALS:

David Niskanen Date

Contract Planner

U.---  

Ri Cagu`       Date

P incipal,  lanner

q- D- l
ark e'  sne Date

Comm nity De elopment Director

fv ' 3• 2v. 

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

to•s'•zl
Stephen J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

443



RESOLUTION NO. 21-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

ADOPTING THE INITIAL STUDY/ MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR

THE SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PROJECT ( GPA- 20- 139, REZ- 20-

140, SPR- 20- 141, AND TPM- 20- 142)

WHEREAS,  the subject parcel currently has a Service Commercial  ( SC)

General Plan designation,  is located within the Commercial Service  ( CS)  Zoning
District; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a General Plan Land Use Map Amendment to
General Industrial ( GI) and Zoning Map Amendment to General Industrial ( IG);

WHEREAS, the request is for a Site Plan Review to construct three ( 3) new

industrial warehouse buildings totaling 191, 160 sq. ft. in size.   Specifically, Building
1 would be located in the northern portion of the project site and have a building
footprint of approximately 70, 200 sq.  ft.     Building 2 would be located in the
southwest portion of the site and have a building footprint of approximately 78, 400
sq. ft. and Building 3 would be located in the southeast portion of the project site
and have a building footprint of approximately 42, 560 sq.  ft.    The proposed
buildings include a total of 236 automobile parking spaces,  14 handicap accessible
parking spaces and 101 truck trailer parking spaces in addition to the individual
building dock doors.     The project will include various improvements such as

landscaping, lighting, and extension of public utilities.   A portion of the site ( Parcel

4) is proposed as a stormwater retention basin; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a Vesting Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide the
existing 18. 2- acre parcel into four ( 4) parcels:  Parcel 1 is 6. 54- acres ( Building 1),
Parcel 2 is 5. 58- acres ( Building 2), Parcel 3 is 3. 50- acres ( Building 3), and Parcel 4

is 2. 52- acres; and

WHEREAS, the property is located at 1520 Lathrop Road  ( APN:  198- 040-

14); and

WHEREAS,  notice inviting comments on the Initial Study and Mitigated
Negative Declaration was given in compliance with CEQA Guidelines 15072; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Public Resource Code Section 21000 et. seq.
and State CEQA Guidelines Section 15000 et.  seq.,  the City of Lathrop prepared
and circulated an Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration for a 20- day
public review period beginning August 11, 2021 and ending August 31, 2021, that

evaluated the potential environmental effects of the proposed project; and

444



WHEREAS, on the basis of the whole record before the City Council, which is
documented in the project files of the City of Lathrop Community Development
Department,  it was determined that although the proposed project could have a
significant effect on the environment,   required mitigation measures will be

implemented to reduce these effects to a less than significant level.  Mitigation

measures are incorporated and included as part of the Conditions of Approval for
the project; and

WHEREAS,  the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed
public hearing on September 15,   2021,  to consider the Scannell Properties

Industrial Project,  including the Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration,  and

Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program   ( MMRP)   prepared for the Scannel

Properties Industrial Project and after reviewing and considering all information
provided and submitted,  and after taking and considering all public testimony
adopted Resolution No.   21- 24 recommending City Council certification of the

IS/ MND; and

WHEREAS, proper notice of this Public Meeting was given in all respects as
required by law including the published legal notice of the hearing in the Manteca
Bulletin on or about September 23, 2021; and

WHEREAS,  the City Council has utilized its own independent judgment in
adopting this Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop does hereby make the following findings:

Section 1.    Notice inviting comments on the Initial Study and Mitigated
Negative Declaration was given in compliance with CEQA Guidelines 15072.

Section 2.     In accordance with Public Resource Code Section 21000 et. seq.
and State CEQA Guidelines Section 15000 et.  seq., the City of Lathrop prepared
and circulated an Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration for a 20- day
public review period beginning August 11, 2021 and ending August 31, 2021, that

evaluated the potential environmental effects of the proposed project.

Section 3.     On the basis of the whole record before the City Council, which

is documented in the project files of the City of Lathrop Community Development
Department,  it was determined that although the proposed project could have a
significant effect on the environment,   required mitigation measures will be

implemented to reduce these effects to a less than significant level.  Mitigation

measures are incorporated and included as part of the Conditions of Approval for
the project.

445



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
based on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings and
pursuant to its independent review and consideration,  hereby adopts the Initial
Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration attached and incorporated by reference
herein  ( Attachment 11 of the October 11,  2021 Staff Report),  as the appropriate

environmental document for the Scannell Properties Industrial Project pursuant to
CEQA.

446



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11t" day of October 2021 by
the following vote of the City Councii, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

SIGNED:

SONNY DHALIWAL, MAYOR

APPR M:

S
Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

447



RESOLUTION NO. 21-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

ADOPTING A GENERAL PLAN LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT FOR THE

SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL WAREHOUSE ( GPA- 20- 139)

WHEREAS,  Section 65358 of the California Government Code provides for
the amendment of all or part of an adopted General Pian; and

WHEREAS, the City has complied with the Government Code ( Government

Code Section 65300 et.   seq.),  the current State of California General Plan

Guidelines,  and the City' s applicable ordinances and resolutions with respect to
approval of the proposed Scannell Properties Industrial Project General Plan

Amendment ( GPA); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 65090, notice of the City
Council hearing was published in accordance with State law in at least one

newspaper of general circulation within the city of Lathrop at least ten calendar
days before the City Council' s public hearing; and

WHEREAS,  the subject parcel currently has a Service Commercial  ( SC)

General Plan designation,  is located within the Commercial Service  ( CS)  Zoning
District; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a General Plan Land Use Map Amendment to
General Industrial ( GI) and Zoning Map Amendment to General Industrial ( IG), as

shown in Attachment 9 of the City Council Staff Report;

WHEREAS, the request is for a Site Plan Review to construct three ( 3) new

industrial warehouse buildings totaling 191, 160 sq. ft. in size.  Specifically, Building
1 would be located in the northern portion of the project site and have a building
footprint of approximately 70, 200 sq.  ft.    Building 2 would be located in the
southwest portion of the site and have a building footprint of approximately 78, 400
sq. ft. and Building 3 would be located in the southeast portion of the project site
and have a building footprint of approximately 42, 560 sq.  ft.    The proposed
buildings include a total of 236 automobile parking spaces,  14 handicap accessible
parking spaces and 101 truck trailer parking spaces in addition to the individual
building dock doors.     The project will include various improvements such as

landscaping, lighting, and extension of public utilities.   A portion of the site ( Parcel

4) is proposed as a stormwater retention basin; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a Vesting Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide the

existing 18. 2- acre parcel into four ( 4) parcels:  Parcel 1 is 6. 54- acres ( Building 1),
Parcel 2 is 5. 58- acres ( Building 2), Parcel 3 is 3. 50- acres ( Building 3), and Parcel 4

is 2. 52- acres; and

448



WHEREAS the property is located at 1520 Lathrop Road ( APN:  198- 040- 14);

and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Public Resource Code Section 21000 et. seq.
and State CEQA Guidelines Section 15000 et.  seq., the City of Lathrop prepared
and circulated an Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration for a 20- day
public review period beginning August 11, 2021 and ending August 31, 2021, that

evaluated the potential environmental effects of the proposed project; and

WHEREAS, on the basis of the whole record before the City Council, which is
documented in the project files of the City of Lathrop Community Development
Department, there is no substantial evidence that the project will have a significant
effect on the environment; and

WHEREAS,  the City Council has independently reviewed the information
contained in the Initial Study/ Negative Declaration for the project and any

comments received during the public review period; and

WHEREAS, notice of the proposed GPA was provided pursuant to California
Government Code Section 65352. 3 and 65352. 4 ( General Plan review by California
Native American tribes).  Notice was mailed out to California Native American tribes

on a list provided by the California Native American Heritage Commission  ( NAHC)

on March 11,  2021 and March 17,  2021.    No California Native American tribe

noticed requested consultation with the City in accordance with Senate Bill 18; and

WHEREAS, State Planning Law and the Lathrop Municipal Code require the
Planning Commission to provide a recommendation for a General Plan Amendment
to the City Council by Resolution; and

WHEREAS,  the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed
public hearing on September 15,  2021,  to consider the proposed General Plan
Amendment and after reviewing and considering all information provided and
submitted, and after taking and considering all public testimony adopted Resolution
No.  21- 25 recommending City Council approval of the proposed General Plan
Amendment; and

WHEREAS, proper notice of this public hearing was given in all respects as
required by law including the published of a legal notice of the hearing in the
Manteca Bulletin on or about September 23,  2021 and mailed out to property
owners located within a 300- foot radius from the project site on September 24,
2021; and

WHEREAS,  the proposed General Plan Land Use Map Amendment will
implement the following policies contained in the General Plan in support of

industrial land use designations:

449



a)       " Areas designated for industrial use are intended to take advantage of

rail and freeway access".  Although the project does not have rail access,  it is

located in proximity to Interstate 5 and Highway 120 via McKinley Avenue, Louise

Avenue and Yosemite Avenue.     Additionally,  the project site is within close

proximity to the Union Pacific Intermodal site which this project may benefit from;
and

b)       " Areas designated for industrial use are to assure that there will be

sufficient long- term availability of industrial land to expand the City's economic
base': The City has experience a significant increase in demand for manufacturing
and distribution due to its location and proximity to interstates, rail, airports and a

deep water port; and

c)       " Industrial proposals should be located where possible within an
industrial park designed for the accommodation of a community of industries that
are compatible in terms of operational characteristics,  aesthetics qualities,  utility
service requirements and street circulation':  The proposed General Plan land use
change to industrial will be compatible and complement the existing adjacent
industrial uses.     The project has been conditioned to incorporate enhanced

architecture elements along Lathrop Road, along with extensive landscaping, truck

loading/ unloading south of the buildings and away from view from Lathrop Road;
and

d)       " Industries are to be developed and operated in such manner as to

avoid damage, destruction or degradation of the environment': Development of the

project has been properly conditioned to minimize impact on the environment. Prior
to building permit issuance, the project is required to obtain approvals from various
county and state agencies such as:  San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution District to
mitigate air related impacts,    San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat

Conservation and Open Space Plan to mitigate impacts on biological resources,

State Water Resources Control Board to prevent storm water pollution related to
construction activities.

WHEREAS,  the proposed amendment will be consistent with applicable
provisions of the General Plan.   The proposed General Plan Land Use Map
Amendment to General Industrial and Zoning Map Amendment to General Industrial
would provide consistency between the General Plan  & Zoning and would further
General Plan goals & policies; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the proposed project is consistent with
the land use goals and policies the City of Lathrop General Plan, and complies with

all applicable provisions and standards of the Zoning Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, proper notice of this public meeting was given in all respects as
required by law; and

450



WHEREAS, the City Council has utilized its own independent judgement in
adopting this Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop hereby make the following findings:

Section 1.   This Resolution incorporates, and by this reference makes a part
hereof, that certain GPA,  as shown in Attachment 9 of the Planning Commission
Staff Report,  relative to the proposed development of the Scannell Properties
Industrial Project on certain real property consisting of approximately 18. 2- acres
located at 1520 Lathrop Road ( APN:  198- 040- 14).

Section 2.   General Plan Amendment Findinqs.   The City Council finds and
determines as follows:

1.       The proposed GPA would amend the General Plan Land Use Map adopted
December 17,  1991,  as amended through 2021, to reflect the proposed
Scannell Properties Industrial Project land use.

2.       The proposed GPA will implement the following Policies contained in the
General Plan in support of the proposed land use designation:

a.  " Areas designated for industrial use are intended to take advantage of
rail and freeway access".  Although the project does not have rail
access, it is located in proximity to Interstate 5 and Highway 120 via
McKinley Avenue,  Louise Avenue and Yosemite Avenue Additionally,
the project site is within close proximity to the Union Pacific

Intermodal site which this project may benefit from; and

a)  " Areas designated for industrial use are to assure that there will be

sufficient long- term availability of industrial land to expand the City's
economic base".  The City has experience a significant increase in
demand for manufacturing and distribution due to its location and
proximity to interstates, rail, airports and a deep water port; and

b)  " Industrial proposals should be located where possible within an
industrial park designed for the accommodation of a community of
industries that are compatible in terms of operational characteristics,

aesthetics qualities, utility service requirements and street circulation':
The proposed General Plan land use change to industrial will be

compatible and complement the existing adjacent industrial uses.  The

project has been conditioned to incorporate enhanced architecture
elements along Lathrop Road, along with extensive landscaping, truck

loading/ unloading south of the buildings and away from view from
Lathrop Road.

c)  " Industries are to be developed and operated in such manner as to

avoid damage,   destruction or degradation of the environment".

451



Development of the project has been properly conditioned to minimize
impact on the environment.     Prior to building permit issuance,  the

project is required to obtain approvals from various county and state
agencies such as:  San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution District to mitigate
air related impacts,   San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat

Conservation and Open Space Plan to mitigate impacts on biological

resources,  State Water Resources Control Board to prevent storm
water pollution related to construction activities.

Section 3.  Upon adoption by the City Council, the Community Development
Department is hereby directed to retain said GPA on permanent public display in
the Community Development Department of the City of Lathrop.

Section 4.   Based on the findings set for in this Resolution,  the CEQA

Resolution,  and evidence in the Staff Report,  the City Council hereby adopt the
General Plan Amendment,   as illustrated and incorporated by reference as

Attachment 9 of the City Council Staff Report.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lathrop
based on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings, its above
findings, including the staff report and associated attachments, and pursuant to its
independent review and consideration,  does hereby adopt the General Plan Land
Use Map Amendment, as illustrated and incorporated by reference as Attachment 9
of the City Council Staff Report.

452



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11th day of October 2021 by
the foliowing vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

SIGNED:

SONNY DHALIWAL, MAYOR

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

453



ORDINANCE 21-

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

AMENDING THE ZONING MAP FOR THE SCANNELL PROPERTIES

INDUSTRIAL PROJECT ( REZ- 20- 140)

WHEREAS, Chapter 17. 124 of the Lathrop Municipal Code provides for the
review and recommendation of the City Council on ali zoning amendments; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 65090, notice of the City
Council hearing was published in accordance with State law in at least one

newspaper of general circulation within the City of Lathrop at least ten calendar
days before the City Council' s public hearing; and

WHEREAS,  the subject parcel currently has a Service Commercial  ( SC)

General Plan designation,  is located within the Commercial Service  ( CS)  Zoning
District; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a General Plan Land Use Map Amendment to
General Industrial ( GI) and Zoning Map Amendment to General Industrial ( IG);

WHEREAS, the request is for a Site Plan Review to construct three ( 3) new

industrial warehouse buildings totaling 191, 160 sq. ft. in size.   Specifically, Building
1 would be located in the northern portion of the project site and have a building
footprint of approximately 70, 200 sq.  ft.     Building 2 would be located in the
southwest portion of the site and have a building footprint of approximately 78, 400
sq. ft. and Building 3 would be located in the southeast portion of the project site
and have a building footprint of approximately 42, 560 sq.  ft.    The proposed
buildings include a total of 236 automobile parking spaces,  14 handicap accessible
parking spaces and 101 truck trailer parking spaces in addition to the individual
building dock doors.     The project will include various improvements such as

landscaping, lighting, and extension of public utilities.   A portion of the site ( Parcel

4) is proposed as a stormwater retention basin; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a Vesting Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide the
existing 18. 2- acre parcel into four ( 4) parcels:  Parcel 1 is 6. 54- acres ( Building 1),
Parcel 2 is 5. 58- acres ( Building 2), Parcel 3 is 3. 50- acres ( Building 3), and Parcel 4

is 2. 52- acres; and

WHEREAS the property is located at 1520 Lathrop Road ( APN:  198- 040- 14);

and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Public Resource Code Section 21000 et. seq.
and State CEQA Guidelines Section 15000 et.  seq.,  the City of Lathrop prepared
and circulated an Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration for a 20- day
public review period beginning August 11, 2021 and ending August 31, 2021, that

evaluated the potential environmental effects of the proposed project; and

454



WHEREAS,  the City Council has independently reviewed the information
contained in the Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration for the project and any
comments received during the public review period; and

WHEREAS,  the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed
public hearing on September 15,  2021,  to consider the proposed zoning map
amendment and after reviewing and considering all public testimony adopted
Resolution No.  21- 25 recommending City Council approval of the proposed zoning
map amendment; and

WHEREAS, proper notice of this public hearing was given in all respects as
required by law including the publishing of a legal notice of the hearing in the
Manteca Bulletin on or about September 23,  2021 and mailed out to property
owners located within a 300- foot radius from the project site on September 24,
2021; and

WHEREAS,  the City Council has reviewed all written evidence and oral
testimony presented to date.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop based on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings
and pursuant to its independent review and consideration, does hereby approve the
Zoning Map Amendment,  as shown in Attachment 9,  relative to the proposed
development of the Scannell Properties Industrial project on certain real property
consisting of approximately 18. 2- acres located at 1520 Lathrop Road  ( APN:  198-

040- 14) in the City of Lathrop, incorporated by reference herein,

NOW,  THEREFORE,  THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

DOES HEREBY ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1.     This Ordinance incorporates,  and by this reference makes a part

hereof, that certain Zoning Map Amendment, as shown in Attachment 9 of the City
Council Staff Report,   relative to the proposed development of the Scannell

Properties Industrial Project.

Section 2.     Zoning Amendment Findinqs.     Pursuant to Chapter 17. 124 of the

Lathrop Municipal Code, the City Council finds and determines as follows:

1.       The proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the

objectives,  policies,  principles,  standards,  and general land use as
specified in the City' s General Plan,  as amended by the proposed
project.  The proposed project is in a location that may take advantage
of rail and freeway access, increase the City' s availability of industrial
land to expand the City' s economic base,  located in area of the City
that can accommodate industrial growth and is compatible with

surrounding Service Commercial and Industrial uses,  and is properly
conditioned to minimize impacts on the environment.

455



2.       The proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the purposes
and objectives of the City of Lathrop zoning ordinance because:  ( 1)

the proposed Zoning Map Amendment provide for appropriate

industrial development and is consistent with surrounding land uses,
including but not limited to Sharpe Army Depot to the north, Con Fab

to the east, existing industrial uses to the south, and California Natural
Products and UPS Freight to the west;   ( 2)  the proposed project
promotes safe,  effective internal circulation system,  adequate off-

street parking and truck loading facilities, and landscaping; and ( 3) the

proposed project ensures that new urban expansion is logical,

desirable and in conformance with the objectives and policies of the
General Plan.

Section 3.     Based on the findings set forth in this Ordinance, the CEQA Resolution,

and evidence in the Staff Report,  the City Council hereby adopts the Ordinance
implementing the suggested Zoning Map.   The document shall be substantially in
the form on file with the City Clerk.

Section 4.     This ordinance is not intended to and shall not be construed or given
effect in a manner that imposes upon the city or any officer or employee thereof a
mandatory duty of care toward persons and property within or without the city so
as to provide a basis of civil liability for damages, except as otherwise imposed by
law.

Section 5.     Severabilitv.     If any section,   subsequent subdivision,   paragraph,
sentence,  clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be

unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such a decision shall not affect the validity of
the remaining portions of this Ordinance.   The City Council hereby declares that it
would have passed each section,  subsection,  subdivision,  paragraph,  sentence,

clause or phrase of this Ordinance irrespective of the unconstitutionality or

invalidity of any section,  subsection,  subdivision,  paragraph,  sentence,  clause or

phrase.

Section 6.     Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take legal effect 30 days from and

after the date of its passage.

Section 7.     Publication.   Within fifteen days of the adoption of this Ordinance, the

City Clerk shall cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published in full accordance
with Section 36933 of the Government Code.

456



THIS ORDINANCE was regularly introduced at a meeting of the City Council of the
City of Lathrop on the 11th day of October 2021, and was PASSED AND ADOPTED at
a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lathrop on 2021,

by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

SONNY DHALIWAL, MAYOR

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

457



RESOLUTION NO. 21-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING A SITE PLAN REVIEW FOR THE PROPOSED SCANNELL

PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PR0.7ECT ( SPR- 20- 141)

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop City Council held a duly noticed public meeting
to consider the Scannell Properties Industrial Project pursuant to the Lathrop
Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS,  the subject parcel currently has a Service Commercial  ( SC)

General Plan designation,  is located within the Commercial Service  ( CS)  Zoning
District; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a General Plan Land Use Map Amendment to
General Industrial ( GI) and Zoning Map Amendment to General Industrial ( IG);

WHEREAS, the request is for a Site Plan Review to construct three ( 3) new

industrial warehouse buildings totaling 191, 160 sq. ft. in size.   Specifically, Building
1 would be located in the northern portion of the project site and have a building
footprint of approximately 70, 200 sq. ft.  Building 2 would be located in the southwest
portion of the site and have a building footprint of approximately 78, 400 sq. ft. and
Building 3 would be located in the southeast portion of the project site and have a
building footprint of approximately 42, 560 sq. ft.  The proposed buildings include a
total of 236 automobile parking spaces, 14 handicap accessible parking spaces and
101 truck trailer parking spaces in addition to the individual building dock doors.  The

project will include various improvements such as landscaping,   lighting,   and

extension of public utilities.    A portion of the site  ( Parcel 4)  is proposed as a
stormwater retention basin; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a Vesting Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide the
existing 18. 2- acre parcel into four ( 4) parcels:  Parcel 1 is 6. 54- acres ( Building 1),
Parcel 2 is 5. 58- acres ( Building 2), Parcel 3 is 3. 50- acres ( Building 3), and Parcel 4

is 2. 52- acres; and

WHEREAS the property is located at 1520 Lathrop Road ( APN:  198- 040- 14);

and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Public Resource Code Section 21000 et. seq.
and State CEQA Guidelines Section 15000 et. seq., the City of Lathrop prepared and
circulated an Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration for a 20- day public
review period beginning August 11, 2021 and ending August 31, 2021, that evaluated
the potential environmental effects of the proposed project; and

458



WHEREAS, on the basis of the whole record before the City Council, which is
documented in the project files of the City of Lathrop Community Development
Department,  it was determined that although the proposed project could have a
significant effect on the environment,   required mitigation measures will be

implemented to reduce these effects to a less than significant level.  Mitigation

measures are incorporated and included as part of the Conditions of Approval for the
project; and

WHEREAS, the proposed project meets all setback, parking, landscaping and
lot coverage and setback requirements of the Lathrop Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed public
hearing on September 15, 2021, to consider the proposed Site Plan Review and after
reviewing and considering all information provided and submitted, and after taking
and considering all public testimony adopted Resolution No.  21- 26 recommending
City Council approval of the proposed Site Plan Review; and

WHEREAS, property notice of this public hearing was given in all respects as
required by law including publishing of a legal notice of the hearing in the Manteca
Bulletin on or about September 23, 2021 and mailed out to property owners located
within a 300- foot radius from the project site on September 24, 2021 and

WHEREAS,  the City Council has utilized its own independent judgment in
adopting this Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the
City of Lathrop does hereby make the following findings:

1.       Site Plan Review Findings.   Pursuant to Section 17. 100. 050 of the Lathrop
Municipal Code ( LMC), the City Council finds as follows:

a.  The proposed Site Plan Review complies with all applicable provisions of
Chapter 17. 100;

b.  The proposed Site Plan Review is consistent with the site improvements
listed in Chapter 17. 100 ( a. through i.) and improvements are such that

traffic congestion is avoided and pedestrian and vehicular safety and
welfare are protected and there will not be adverse effects on

surrounding properties;
c.   Proposed lighting for the project area is so arranged as to deflect away

from adjoining properties; and
d.  The proposed Site Plan Review is compatible with surrounding land uses

and will not be detrimental to the health, safety and general welfare of
the City.

2.       The City Council finds that the proposed project is consistent with the General
Industrial land use goals and policies the City of Lathrop General Plan, and will
comply with the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and design standards
of the Lathrop Municipal Code upon development, as conditioned.

459



3.       The City Council finds that the requirements and conditions of this resolution
are reasonable in preserving,  protecting,  providing for,  and fostering the
health, safety, and welfare of the citizenry in general, and the persons who
work in or visit the development in particular.

4.       The City Council finds that although the proposed project could have a
significant effect on the environment,  required mitigation measures will be

implemented to reduce these effects to a less than significant level. Mitigation

measures are incorporated and included as part of the Conditions of Approval
for the project.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lathrop based
on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings and pursuant to
its independent review and consideration, does hereby Approve Site Plan Review No.
SPR- 20- 141, subject to the amended Conditions of Approval listed as Attachment # 6

of the September 15, 2021 Staff Report, incorporated by reference herein.

460



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11t" day of October 2021 by
the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

SIGNED:

SONNY DHALIWAL, MAYOR

APPROVED AS TO FO     .

Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

461



RESOLUTION NO. 21-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP TO

APPROVE THE VESTING TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP FOR THE SCANNELL

PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PRO) ECT ( TPM- 20- 142)

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop City Council held a duly noticed public meeting
to consider the Scannell Properties Industrial Project pursuant to the Lathrop
Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS,  the subject parcel currently has a Service Commercial  ( SC)

General Plan designation,  is located within the Commercial Service  ( CS)  Zoning
District; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a General Plan Land Use Map Amendment to
General Industrial ( GI) and Zoning Map Amendment to General Industrial ( IG);

WHEREAS, the request is for a Site Plan Review to construct three ( 3) new

industrial warehouse buildings totaling 191, 160 sq. ft. in size.   Specifically, Building
1 would be located in the northern portion of the project site and have a building
footprint of approximately 70, 200 sq. ft.  Building 2 would be located in the southwest
portion of the site and have a building footprint of approximately 78, 400 sq. ft. and
Building 3 would be located in the southeast portion of the project site and have a
building footprint of approximately 42, 560 sq. ft.  The proposed buildings include a
total of 236 automobile parking spaces, 14 handicap accessible parking spaces and
101 truck trailer parking spaces in addition to the individual building dock doors.  The

project will include various improvements such as landscaping,   lighting,   and

extension of public utilities.    A portion of the site  ( Parcel 4)  is proposed as a
stormwater retention basin; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a Vesting Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide the
existing 18. 2- acre parcel into four ( 4) parcels:  Parcel 1 is 6. 54- acres ( Building 1),
Parcel 2 is 5. 58- acres ( Building 2), Parcel 3 is 3. 50- acres ( Building 3), and Parcel 4

is 2. 52- acres; and

WHEREAS the property is located at 1520 Lathrop Road ( APN:  198- 040- 14);

and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Public Resource Code Section 21000 et. seq.
and State CEQA Guidelines Section 15000 et. seq., the City of Lathrop prepared and
circulated an Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration for a 20- day public
review period beginning August 11, 2021 and ending August 31, 2021, that evaluated
the potential environmental effects of the proposed project; and

462



WHEREAS, on the basis of the whole record before the City Council, which is
documented in the project files of the City of Lathrop Community Development
Department,  it was determined that although the proposed project could have a
significant effect on the environment,   required mitigation measures will be

implemented to reduce these effects to a less than significant level.  Mitigation

measures are incorporated and included as part of the Conditions of Approval for the
project; and

WHEREAS,   by Adopting Resolution No.   21- 4923 based on substantial

evidence in the record, City Council, acting as the lead agency, adopted Adequate
Progress Findings toward providing a 200- year Urban Level of Flood Protection in the
Reclamation District 17 basin by the year 2028; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the proposed project is consistent with
the General Industrial land use goals and policies the City of Lathrop General Plan,
and also consistent with the City' s Subdivision Ordinance and the State Subdivision
Map Act; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed public
hearing on September 15, 2021, to consider the proposed Vesting Tentative Parcel
Map and after reviewing and considering all information provided and submitted, and
after taking and considering all public testimony adopted Resolution No.  21- 27

recommending City Council approval of the proposed Vesting Tentative Parcel Map;
and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the requirements and conditions of this
resolution are reasonable in preserving, protecting, providing for, and fostering the
health, safety, and welfare of the citizenry in general, and the persons who work in
or visit the development in particular; and

WHEREAS, proper notice of this public hearing was given in all respects as
required by law including the publishing of a legal notice of the hearing in the Manteca
Bulletin on or about September 23, 2021 and mailed out to property owners located
within a 300- foot radius from the project site on September 24, 2021; and

WHEREAS,  the City Council utilized its own independent judgement in
adopting this Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Lathrop
does hereby make the following findings:

Section 1.  Vesting Tentative Parcel Map Findings.  The City Council finds and
determines as follows:

1.       The proposed map is consistent with the General Plan.  The proposed map
implements the land use objectives in the Lathrop General Plan, as amended

by the Scannell Properties Industrial Project GPA.

463



2.       The design or improvements of the proposed subdivision are consistent with
the General Plan. As conditioned, the design of the map and proposed utility
and improvements are consistent with the requirements of the General Plan.

All required improvements are conditioned to comply with the City' s standards
and specifications.

3.       The site is physically suitable for the proposed industrial development.  The
proposed General Plan Amendment would designate the site as General
Industrial land use in the General Plan. The applicant and staff have worked

closely to ensure the map and its conditions of approval address public
infrastructure, public services and phase for the development of the project.

4.       The site is physically suitable for the proposed density of development. The
Lathrop General Plan identifies the project area to allow for a broad range of
use types such as manufacturing,   warehouse,   distribution and related

industrial type uses. Development of the site meets the requirements set forth

in the Lathrop Municipal Code Development Standards.

5.       The design of the subdivision or the proposed improvements will not cause
substantial environmental damage or substantially injure fish or wildlife or
their habitat.  The development of the Scannell Properties Industrial Project

would involve a range of potentially significant environmental effects, including
effects on plant,  fish and wildlife species or their habitat.  These potential
effects were explored in detail, and available mitigations were identified in the

Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration.

It was determined that although the proposed project could have a significant
effect on the environment, required mitigation measures will be implemented

to reduce these effects to a less than significant level. Mitigation measures are

incorporated and included as part of the Conditions of Approval for the project.

6.       The design of the subdivision or type of improvements will not cause serious

public health problems. The development of the Scannell Properties Industrial
Project would involve a range of potentially significant effects on public health
and safety.  These potential effects were explored in detail,  and available

mitigations were identified in the Initial Study and Mitigated Negative

Declaration. It was determined that although the proposed project could have
a significant effect on the environment, required mitigation measures will be

implemented to reduce these effects to a less than significant level. Mitigation

measures are incorporated and included as part of the Conditions of Approval
for the project.

7.       The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with
easements,  acquired by the public at large,  for access through or use of,

property within the proposed subdivision. The design of the subdivision does
not conflict with any public easements for access through or use of property
within the subdivision.

464



Conditions of approval are included to dedicate land,  right of way and to
provide easements where necessary for public access,   utilities,   and

infrastructure.

Section 2.    Based on the findings set forth in this Resolution,  the CEQA

Resolution, and the evidence in the Staff Report, the City Council hereby approves
the Vesting Tentative Parcel Map,  dated April 2021,  for the Scannell Properties

Industrial Project subject to the conditions referenced as Attachment 6 of the City
Council Staff Report.   This document shall be substantially in the form on file with
the City Clerk.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lathrop based
on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings, its findings above
and pursuant to its independent review and consideration,  does hereby approve
Vesting Tentative Parcel Map No. TPM- 20- 142, subject to the amended Conditions of
Approval listed as Attachment  # 6 of the September 15,   2021 Staff Report,

incorporated by reference herein.

465



The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this llt'' day of October 2021 by
the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

SIGNED:

SONNY DHALIWAL, MAYOR

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney Teresa Vargas, City Clerk

466



ATTAC H M E NT "       "`

Community Development Department —Planning Division

Amended Consolidated Conditions of Approval

September 15, 2021

Project Name: Scannell Properties Industrial Project

File Number:   General Plan Amendment No. GPA- 20- 139

Rezone No. REZ- 20- 140

Site Plan Review No. SPR- 20- 141

Tentative Parcel Map No. TPM- 20- 142

Project Address:      1520 Lathrop Road ( APN: 198- 040- 14)

The following list of conditions shall be incorporated into the final construction plans and development phases of the project.
The list of conditions are not intended to be all- inclusive or a comprehensive listing ofall City or district regulations. Please
note that additional comments and/ or conditions may be added pending the response to the comments noted below and/ or
changes to the proposed project.

Approval of this project authorizes the construction of three ( 3) new industrial warehouse buildings
totaling 191, 160 sq. ft. in size.  Specifically, Building 1 would be located in the northern portion ofthe
project site and have a building footprint of approximately 70, 200 sq. ft. Building 2 would be located in
the southwest portion of the site and have a building footprint of approximately 78, 400 sq. ft. and
Building 3 would be located in the southeast portion of the project site and have a building footprint of
approximately 42, 560 sq. ft.  The Vesting Tentative Parcel Map would subdivide an existing 18. 2- acre
parcel into four( 4) parcels: Parcel 1 is 6. 54- acres( Building 1), Parcel 2 is 5. 58- acres( Building 2), Parcel

3 is 3. 50- acres ( Building 3) and Parcel 4 is 2. 52- acres.  The proposed buildings include a total of 236
automobile parking spaces, 14 handicap accessible parking spaces and 101 truck trailer parking spaces
in addition to the individual building dock doors.  The project will include various improvements such
as landscaping, lighting, and extension of public utilities. A portion ofthe site ( Parcel 4) is proposed as
a stormwater retention basin.

CEQA DETERMINATION

An Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration( IS/ MND) was prepared for the Scannell Properties
Industrial Project to disclose potential significant environmental effects of the proposed project and
identify feasible mitigation measures that would reduce the potential significant environmental effects
to a less than significant level.   The IS/ MND was prepared in compliance with the California
Environmental Quality Act( CEQA).

PLANNING

1.    The project is subject to and shall comply with the applicable Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting
Program ( MMRP) resulting from the Scannell Properties Industrial Project Initial Study/Mitigated
Negative Declaration, ( attached).

lof8  Pa  es

467



2.   No heavy vehicles ( CA Legal and STAA trucks) shall be permitted on Lathrop Road west of
McKinley Avenue, as directed bv City Council at their meetin of September l3. 2021, unless this
restriction is modified by Citv Council.

3.   Prior to any ground disturbance, the developer shall consult with the San Joaquin County Multi-
Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan ( SJMSCP) for biological coverage, mitigation

and participation in the plan. Participation in the SJMSCP satisfies requirements of both the State
and Federal endangered species acts, and ensures that the impacts are mitigated below a level of

significance in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA).

4.    The applicant shall coordinate with the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District to comply
with District rules and regulations including but not limited to Rule 9510, Indirect Source Review.
The applicant shall provide proof of compliance prior to building permit issuance.

5.    The project shall comply with all applicable site development provisions contained in the Lathrop
Municipal Code including but not limited to parking, lighting, landscaping, etc.

6.    The applicant shall submit appropriate plans to the Community Development Department for plan
check and building permit. Final site plan, elevation, landscaping and irrigation, exterior lighting
and site improvement plans and details, etc. shall be reviewed and approved by the Planning
Division. Any significant change or modification to the approved plan is subject to review and
approval by the Community Development Director.

7.    Landscaping and irrigation must be consistent with the City' s Water Conservation Requirements
LMC 17. 92. 060) and the State Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance ( AB 1881). Provide a water

efficient landscape worksheet with water budget calculations identifying the water allowance and
estimated water use.

8.    The entire site including landscaping areas shall be maintained in a healthy, weed free condition.

9.    If proposed, trash enclosure( s) shall include but not be limited to a covered roof, metal gate and
have three solid walls. Details and/ or alternative designs or location shall be subject to review and

approval of the Planning, Building and Public Works Department. The trash enclosure design,
material and color shall match or compliment the main building.

10.  Any building or parking area lighting including security lighting, shall be arranged to not cast light
onto adjoining properties.

11.  A final site lighting photometric plan with detailed specifications of all lighting fixtures, poles, and
wall packs as well as a manufacture' s catalogue sheet containing photometric data, shall be
submitted with Building Permits for City review and approval. Parking lots, driveways, trash
enclosure/ areas shall be illuminated during the hours of darkness with a minimum maintained one
foot- candle of light and an average not to exceed four foot- candles of light. The illumination shall

not exceed ten ( 10) foot- candles in any one location.

12.  No signs are approved for this project. Sign Permits for any exterior signs shall be submitted to the
Planning Division for review and approval prior to installation. All signage must be in accordance
with the applicable standards of the Lathrop Municipal Code.

13.  Bicycle parking shall be installed consistent with Chapter 17. 76. 120 of the LMC.

14.  Roof-mounted mechanical equipment shall be screened and not visible from the public right- of-
way. Screening materials shall be compatible with the architectural style, materials and color of the
building upon which the equipment is located,  subject to the approval of the Community
Development Director.

2of8  Pa_ es

468



15.  Ground- mounted equipment that is not require to be visible, shall be screened and not visible from

the public right-of-way using the most practical means of screening, such as landscaping, a
freestanding wall/ fence, matching paint, subject to the approval of the Community Development
Director.

16.  The Parcel Map shall be in substantial conformance with the approved Tentative Parcel Map, as
conditioned, and future development shall be consistent with applicable sections of the Lathrop
Municipal Code.

17.  The applicant is responsible for contacting all appropriate utility companies to obtain their
agreement for extension and/ or relocation of services necessary to final the proposed Tentative
Parcel Map.

l8.  Any activity authorized by this Tentative Parcel Map shall constitute acceptance of all of the
conditions and obligations imposed by the City on this Tentative Parcel Map. The applicant( s), by
said acceptance of these Conditions, waives any challenge as to the validity of these conditions.

19.  Unless otherwise specified, all conditions of approval shall be complied with prior to the issuance
of any Building Permits.

20.  The Tentative Parcel Map shall expire twenty- four ( 24) months from the date of approval unless a
time extension is granted consistent with the policies and procedures of the Lathrop Municipal Code
and the Subdivision Map Act.

21.  The applicant shall provide a copy of the recorded Parcel Map to create the subject parcel prior to
issuance of the building permit.

22.  The Site Plan shail expire thirty- six ( 36) months from the date of approval unless a time extension
is granted consistent with the policies and procedure of the Lathrop Municipal Code. Prior to the
expiration, a building permit must be issued and construction is commenced and diligently pursued
toward completion of the site or structures.

23.  The City of Lathrop may conduct annual and or spot inspections to ensure that required site
improvements and conditions are being complied with and maintained.

BUILDING

1.    All construction shall comply with the most recent adopted City and State building codes:

2019 California Building Code
2019 California Residential Code

2019 California Electrical Code

2019 California Mechanical Code

2019 California Plumbing Code
2019 California Fire Code

2019 California Green Code

2.    Special Inspections — As indicated by California Building Code Section 1704, the owner shall
employ one or more special inspectors who shall provide special inspections when required by CBC
section 1704.  Please contact the Building Division at time of plan submittal to obtain application
for special inspections.

3of8  Pa  e 

469



3.    The Title Sheet of the plans shall include:

Occupancy Group Type of Construction

Occupant Load Height of Building
Description of Use Floor area of building( s) and/ or occupancy group

4.    School impact fees shall be paid prior to permit issuance.

5.    Dimensioned building setbacks and property lines, street centerlines and between buildings or other
structures shall be designed on the site plan.

6.    All property lines and easements must be shown on the site plan.  A statement that such lines and
easements are shown is required.

7.    The project design will conform with energy conservation measures articulated in Title 24 of the
California Code of Regulations and address measures to reduce energy consumption such as flow
restrictors for toilets, low consumptions light fixtures, and insulation and shall use to the extent

feasible draught landscaping.

8.    A design professional will be required at time of construction drawings, to prepare plans for
proposed improvements per the Business and Professions' Code.

9.    Public and private site improvements shall be designed in accordance with the Americans with
Disabilities Act and Chapter 11 B of the California Building Code.  Site plan shall include a site
accessibility plan identifying exterior routes of travel and detailing running slope, cross slope, width,
pedestrian ramp, curb ramps, handrails, signage and truncated domes.   Path of travel shall be

provided from the public right of way and accessible parking to building.  The design professional
shall ensure that the site accessibility plan is compliance with the latest Federal and State
regulations.

l0.  A site accessibility plan shall be required as the attached policy from the link below.
https:// www.ci. lathrop.ca. is/ sites/ default/ tiles/ tileattachments/ building division/ pa e/ 1651/ site a
ccessiblitx p( an_ requirements_ 3- 17- 20.pdf

PUBLIC WORKS

1.   Wastewater

a.  Applicant shall be required to connect to the City sewer system prior to certificate of occupancy
for the first building within the project.

b.  The wastewater will be treated at the Manteca Wastewater Quality Control Facility ( MWQCF)
and capacity is available for purchase.  The total developed parcel acreage is 15. 60, applying a
factor of 355 gallons per day/ acre per City Standard for industrial use, the development will
require 5, 538 gallons per day of wastewater capacity, equivalent to 23. 075 ISUs.  The cost per
ISU for the MWQCF can be found in the City Master Fee Schedule.

c.  The sewer main shall be connected to the City force main located at Lathrop Road and McKinley
Avenue.

2.    Potable Water

a.  Applicant shall be required to connect to the water utility for domestic supply and pay all
applicable connection fees. Any groundwater wells on site shall be abandoned under a permit
from San Joaquin County prior to connecting potable water to the site.

4of8  Pa  es

470



b.  The total gross parcel acreage is 18. 15, applying a factor of 926 gallons per day/ acre per the
City Standard for industrial use, the development will require I6, 807 gallons per day of water
capacity. The City has sufficient water capacity to sell at the cost shown in the City Master Fee
Schedule.

3.    Storm Drain

a.   There is no storm drain utility available at this time. All storm water shall be retained onsite in
a retention pond sized per the City of Lathrop Design and Construction Standards.

b.  When the storm drain utility becomes available the site shall be required to connect to the storm
drain utility.   The applicant shall pay into the storm drain capital facility fee for future
improvement and enter into a Deferred Frontage Improvement Agreement( DFIA) for the future

connection to the storm system once available.

c.   Storm drain basin shall comply with City standards.  Maximum side slope shall be 3: l and the

access road should be sloped away from the basin so the storm water can be concentrated on an
entrance to the basin with erosion control.

4.    Storm Water— Construction

a.  Project is greater than one acre, applicant shall complete a SWPPP, obtain a WDID number and
list the number on the improvement plans, and submit the SWPPP to the City for review and
approval.

5.    Solid Waste

a.  Applicant shall install a trash enclosure with three solid walls, the fourth wall with a gate and a
roof. Trash enclosure will require a man door. A sewer drain in the enclosure is not required as

the use is industrial/ warehousing.

6.    Frontage Improvements

a.   Applicant shall dedicate right-of-way and public utility easement as necessary.
b.  Applicant shall move all existing overhead utilities less than 34. 5 kVA underground with the

frontage of the proposed development.

c.   Most of the frontage improvements have been installed by the City with the Lathrop Road UPRR
overcrossing project. Applicant shall reimburse City for these frontage improvements.

d.  Applicant shall complete all offsite work under a Subdivision Improvement Agreement or

Encroachment Permit included the addition of driveways and any items that need to be
completed include but not limited to sidewalk, curb, gutter, paving, signing, striping and fire
hydrants.

7.   Access

a.  The proposed " D" Street access driveway crosses the SSJID parcel.  An easement from SSJID
is required prior to Building Permit issuance.

8.   Parcel

a.   Applicant shall start the reverter process in order to gain ownership of the subject parceL The
reverter process shall be complete prior to approval of the first Parcel Map or issuance of the
first Building Permit, whichever occurs first.

Sof8  Pa  es

471



9.    General Comments

a.  Applicant shall retain the services of a California licensed civil engineer to design the utility
plans for sewer, water storm drain lines and systems.

b.  Applicant shall ensure that all off-site and on- site improvements comply with City Standards.

c.   The parking areas and drive isles on site shall be paved with asphalt concrete.

d.  Hydrology and hydraulic calculations and plans for on- site storm water system shall be
submitted to the City for review and approval.

e.  The Applicant shall execute a maintenance agreement for all onsite storm water quality
treatment devices, swales and/ or ponds.

f.   Applicant shall install as part of their onsite improvement all necessary Best Management
Practices ( BMP' s) for post construction in accordance with City guidelines and standards.  The
BMP' s must be in place prior to final occupancy.

g.  Any driveway access to Lathrop Road shall be right- in right-out only.

h.  Applicant shall pay all appropriate fees including but not limited to Levee Impact Fee, Capital
Facilities Fees, and Plan Check and Inspection Fees.

i.   A geotechnical report shall be submitted for the project, which includes groundwater elevations,
percolation rates for retention basins, soil compaction requirements, and recommendations for
asphalt paving.

j.   Grading and other construction activities that may cause dust shall be watered to control dust at
the City Engineer' s direction.  A water vehicle shall be available for dust control operations at

all times during grading operations.  The adjacent public street shall be kept free and clean of
any project dirt, mud, materials, and debris.

k.  The Applicant shall pay their fair share equal to 25% of the tota( cost of a traftic si ilal at the

intersection of Lathrop Road and " D" Street, per the Transportation Analysis, dated Setepmber

9, 2021.  The Applicant may install the traffic si nal and associated improvements at their cost
with the abilitv to be reimbursed in the future for the amo int in excess of their fair share.

Payment of the fair share sha( I occur prior to the approva( of the first parcel map or issuance of
the first buildin permit, whichevee occurs first.

LATHROP- MANTECA FIRE DISTRICT ( LMFD)

1.   The project must conform to the appropriate edition of the California Fire Code ( currently the 2019
edition) and all related standards.

2.    Permits shall be obtained from the fire code official. Permit( s) and fees, shall be paid prior to
issuance of any and/ or all permits. Issued permits shall be kept on the premises designated therein
at all times and shall be readily available for inspection by the fire code officiaL ( Permits are to be
renewed on an annual basis).

3.   Approved automatic sprinkler systems shall be provided as required in 2019 California Fire Code
903. 2.  Tenant/Occupant/Owner shall have the responsibility to ensure that the correct fire

suppression system is added/ modified/ tested and accepted by the  ( AHJ)  Fire District.  Fire

suppression system plans shall be modified under separate fire permit and shall be submitted by a
licensed contractor, to the ( LMFD) Fire District for review and approval prior to modification.
Deferred submittal accepted.

6of8  Pa; es

472



4.   An approved fire alarm system shall be installed in accordance with 2019 CFC § 907. 2 and 2019

NFPA 72.

5.    Fire Department Development Fees for all new buildings must be paid in accordance with the City
of Lathrop' s Ordinance and Resolutions adopting the fee schedule.

6.   An approved Fire Flow test shall be conducted prior to ground breaking to determine the allowable
Fire Fighting capabilities for the site.

7.   An approved water supply for fire protection, either temporary or permanent, shall be made
available prior to commencing construction beyond the foundation stage, or as soon as combustible
material arrives on the site.

8.   Approved vehicle access for firefighting shall be provided to all construction or demolition sites.
Vehicle access shall be provided to within 100 feet ( 30 480 mm) of temporary or permanent fire
department connections. Vehicle access shall be provided by either temporary or permanent roads,
capable of supporting vehicle loading under all weather conditions.  Vehicle access shall be
maintained until permanent fire apparatus access roads are available.

9.   The Fire Department Fire Access Roads shall meet the requirements established by the San Joaquin
County Fire Chief' s Association.

10.  Where access to or within a structure or an area is restricted because of secured openings or where

immediate access is necessary for life- saving or fire- fighting purposes, a key box is required to be
installed in an approved location. The key box shall be of an approved type and shall contain keys
to gain necessary access as required by the fire code officiaL In addition to key box( es), any

automatic gates shall have Opticom access ability to provide necessary access for emergency
apparatus.

11.  Where a portion of the facility or building hereafter constructed or moved into or within the
jurisdiction is more than 400 feet ( 122 m) from a hydrant on a fire apparatus access road, as

measured by an approved route around the exterior of the facility or building, on- site fire hydrants
and mains shall be provided where required by the fire code official.

12.  Other fire & life safety requirements may be required at time of building plan review.
13.  Final approval is subject to field inspections. Minimum 48 to 72- hour notice required prior to any

life-safety fire inspections. Other conditions may apply at time of inspections and are subject to
correction.

LATHROP POLICE SERVICES ( LPS)

1.    Prior to occupancy, the applicant shall install roof top address, subject to review and approval by
LPS. The numbers shall be at least 3' tall, 2' wide, 9" apart, with 6" brush stroke with a color that

contrast the roof top. The number shall be oriented to be read from west to east.

2.   Applicant shall install dedicated lights in the parking lot that are properly maintained.

3.   Applicant shall install recording security camera system that is maintained and accessible to LPS
with camera views covering all ingress and egress to buildings and parking areas.

4.   Landscaping shall conform to standard CPTED measurements:

a.   Maintain natural visible surveillance to building from parking lot and street.
b.  Plants taller than 8 feet shall be trimmed up 4 feet from ground.
c.  Plants under 8 feet shall be trimmed to allow ground level surveillance.

7of8  E' a  es

473



ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES

l.   By exercising this approval, the applicant hereby agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend
the City, its officers, agents, elected and appointed officials, and employees, from any and all
liability or claims that may be brought against the City arising out of its approval of this General
Plan Amendment, Rezone, Site Plan Review, and Tentative Parcel Map to the fullest extent
permitted by law.

SAN JOAOUIN COUNTY ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT

See attached memo dated March 16, 2021.

SAN JOAQUIN COUNTY MULTI- SPECIES HABITAT CONSERVATION & OPEN SPACE

PLAN

See attached memo dated February 5, 2021.

8of8  Pa eS

474



I Environmental Health Department
µ

11U
C O U N T Y

Jasjit Kang, REHS, Director
9 Muniappa Nafdu, REHS, Assistant Director

r- x PROGRAMCOORDINATORS

Robert McCiellon, REHS

Jeft Carruesco, REHS, RDI

Willy Ng, REHS
Melissa Nissim, REHS

Steven Shih, REHS

March 16, 2021

To:   City of Lathrop Community Development Department
Attention: David Niskanen

From: Naseem Ahmed; 209- 616- 3018

Senior Registered Environmental Health Specialist

RE:   Scannell Lathrop( GPA-20-139, REZ-20- 140, SPR-20- 141, and TPM- 20- 142)

The San Joaquin County Environmental Health Department( EHD) is supportive of this project in regards
to the provision of full public services. The EHD requests the following comments be added to the above
praject for consideration:

1.  Any existing wells or septic systems to be abandoned shall be destroyed under permit and inspection
by the EHD ( San Joaquin Caunty Development Title, Section 9- 1110.3 8 9- 1110.4).

2.  Any geotechnical drilling shall be conducted under permit and inspection by The Environmental
Health Department ( San Joaquin County Development Title, Section 9- 1115. 3 and 9- 1115. 6).

3.  Before any hazardous materials/waste can be stored or used onsite, the owner/operator must report
the use or storage of these hazardous materials to the California Environmental Reporting System
CERS) at cers. calepa. ca. qov/ and comply with the laws and regulations for the programs listed below
based on quantity of hazardaus material in some cases). The applicant may contact the Program

Coordinator of the CUPA program, Melissa Nissim ( 209) 468- 3168, with any questions.
a.  Anv amount but not limited to the following hazardous waste; hazardous material spills, used oil,

used oil filters, used oil- contaminated absorbent/ debris, waste antifreeze, used batteries or other
universal waste, etc. —Hazardous Waste Program ( Health& Safety Code( HSC) Sections 25404

25180 et sec.)

b.  Onsite treatment of hazardous waste — Hazardous Waste Treatment Tiered Permitting
Pragram ( HSC Sections 25404 8 25200 et sec. & California Code of Regulations ( CCR), Title

22, Section 67450. 1 et sec.)

c.  Reportable quantities of hazardaus materials- reportable quantities are 55 gallons or more of
liquids, 500 pounds for solids, or 200 cubic feet for compressed gases, with same exceptions.
Carbon dioxide is a regulated substance and is required to be reported as a hazardous material
if storing 1, 200 cubic feet ( 137 pounds) or more onsite in San Joaquin County — Hazardous
Materials Business Plan Program ( HSC Sections 25508 & 25500 et sec.)

d.  Anv amount of hazardous material stored in an Underground Storage Tank — Underground
Storage Tank Program ( HSC Sections 25286 & 25280 et sec.)

i.    If an underground storage tank ( UST) system will be installed, a permit is required to be
submitted to, and approved by, the San Joaquin County Environmental Health Department
EHD) before any UST installation work can begin.

1868 E. Hazelton Avenue  Stockton, California 95205  T 209 468- 3420  F 209 464- 0138  www. sjgov. org/ ehd
475



Page 2 of 2

ii.   Additianally, an EHD UST permit to operate is required once the approved UST system is
installed.

e.  Storage of at least 1. 320 gallons of petroleum aboveground or any amount of petroleum stored
below grade in a vault— Aboveground Petroleum Storage Program ( HSC Sections 25270. 6 8

25270 et sec.)

i.   Spill Prevention, Countermeasures and Control ( SPCC) Plan requirement

f.   Threshold auantities of regulated substances stored onsite - California Accidental Release

Prevention ( CaIARP) Program ( Title 19, Section 2735. 4 & HSC Section 25531 et sec.)

i.    Risk Management Plan requirement for covered processes

If you have any questians, please call Naseem Ahmed, Senior REHS, at nahmed@sjgov. org or ( 209)
616- 301$.

Steven Shih, REHS

Program Coordinator

476



S J C O G, Inc.

555 East Weber Avenue • Stockton, CA 95202 • ( 209) 235- 0600 • FAX( 209) 2-0438

Sari Joac i in Coiinh Multi- Species Hnbitnt Conservntiofi £ Open Space Plan ( SJMSCP)

SJMSCP RESPONSE TO LOCAL JURISDICTION( RTLJ)
ADVISORY AGENCY NOTICE TO SJCOG, Inc.

To: David Niskanen, City of Lathrop, Community Development Department

From:     Laurel Boyd, SJCOG, Inc.

Date:      February 5, 2021

Local Jurisdiction Project Title:  Scannell Lathrop( GPA-20-139; REZ-20-141; and TPM-20-142)

Assessor Parcel Number( s):     198- 040- 14

Local Jurisdiction Project Number:      GPA- 20- 139; REZ- 20- 141; and TPM- 20- 142

Total Acres to be converted from Open Space Use: Unknown

Habitat Types to be Disturbed:  Urban Habitat Land

Species Impact Findings:      Findings to be determined by SJMSCP biologist.

Dear Mr. Niskanen:

SJCOG, Inc. has reviewed the project referral for the Scannell Lathrop Project. This project consists of a:
General Plan Amendment ( GPA)— Modify the General Plan Land Use Designation from SC ( Service Commercial)
to GI ( General Industrial); and

Rezone ( REZ)— Modify the Zoning District from SC ( Service Commercial) to GI ( General Industrial); and
Tentative Parcel Map ( TPM) — Subdivide the 18. 15 acre parcel into four ( 4) parcels.  The size the subdivided

parcels are as follows:  Parcel 1 — 6. 55 acres; Parcel 2 — 5. 58 acres; Parcel 3 — 3. 47 acres and Parcel 4 — 2. 55

acres.

Site Plan Review ( SPR) — Development of three ( 3) industrial warehouse/ distribution buildings on three ( 3)

parcels.  Off street parking is provided for automobiles and commercial truck trailers.  Additionally, each building
includes dock doors for operation of the distribution business.  The project also proposes to construct an on- site
stormwater retention basin ( Parcel 4) to service the entire development and to construct an on- site sewer pump
station with a force main that will extend off-site and connect to the existing service.

The project site is located at 1520 Lathrop Road, Lathrop ( APN:  198- 040- 14).

The City of Lathrop is a signatory to San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan
SJMSCP). Participation in the SJMSCP satisfies requirements of both the state and federal endangered species acts,

and ensures that the impacts are mitigated below a level of significance in compliance with the California Environmental

Quality Act ( CEQA).  The LOCAL JURISDICTION retains responsibility for ensuring that the appropriate Incidental Take
Minimization Measure are properly implemented and monitored and that appropriate fees are paid in compliance with the
SJMSCP. Although participation in the SJMSCP is voluntary, Local Jurisdiction/ Lead Agencies should be aware that if
project applicants choose against participating in the SJMSCP, they will be required to provide alternative mitigation in an
amount and kind equal to that provided in the SJMSCP.

This Project is subject to the SJMSCP.  This can be up to a 30 day process and it is recommended that the project
applicant contact SJMSCP staff as early as possible. It is also recommended that the project applicant obtain an
information package. http:// www. sjcoa. orq

Please contact SJMSCP staff regarding completing the following steps to satisfy SJMSCP requirements:

Schedule a SJMSCP Biologist to perform a pre- construction survey prior to any ground disturbance

SJMSCP Incidental take Minimization Measures and mitigation requirement:

1.   Incidental Take Minimization Measures( ITMMs) will be issued to the project and must be signed by the project applicant prior to any
ground disturbance but no later than six( 6) months from receipt of the ITMMs. If ITMMs are not signed within six months, the applicant

must reapply for SJMSCP Coverage. Upon receipt of signed[ TMMs from project applicant, SJCOG, Inc. staff will sign the[ TMMs. This
is the effective date of the ITMMs.

477



2  S . lC } G .  Ir c .

2.   Under no circumstance shall ground disturbance occur without compliance and satisfaction of the ITMMs.
3.   Upon issuance of fully executed ITMMs and prior to any ground disturbance, the project applicant must:

a.   Post a bond for payment of the applicable SJMSCP fee covering the entirety of the project acreage being covered( the bond
should be valid for no longer than a 6 month period); or

b.   Pay the appropriate SJMSCP fee for the entirety of the project acreage being covered; or
c.   Dedicate land in- lieu of fees, either as conservation easements or fee title; or

d.   Purchase approved mitigation bank credits.

4.   Within 6 months from the effective date ofthe ITMMs or issuance ofa building permit, whichever occurs first, the project applicant must:
a.   Pay the appropriate SJMSCP for the entirety of the project acreage being covered; or
b.   Dedicate land in- lieu of fees, either as conservation easements or fee title; or

c.   Purchase approved mitigation bank credits.

Failure to satisfy the obligations of the mitigation fee shall subject the bond to be called.

Receive your Certificate of Payment and release the required permit

It should be noted that if this project has any potential impacts to waters of the United States( pursuant to Section 404 Clean Water Act], it would require
the project to seek voluntary coverage through the unmapped process under the SJMSCP which could take up to 90 days. It may be prudent to obtain a
preliminary wetlands map from a qualified consultant. If waters of the United States are confirmed on the project site, the Corps and the Regional Water
Quality Control8oard( RWQCB) would have regulatory authority over those mapped areas( pursuant to Section 404 and 401 of the Clean Water Act
respectively] and permits would be required from each of these resource agencies prior to grading the project site.

If you have any questions, please call ( 209) 235- 0600.

478



3  S . iCfJG .   lnc .

S JCOG, IriC.

San Joa ttin Cozenty Multi- Species F-IaG7tat Cor serr ation Operz Space Plara

555 East Weber Avenue Stockton, CA 95202 • ( 209) 235- 0600 • FAX ( 209) 235- 0438

SJMSCP HOLD

TO: Local Jurisdiction: Communitv Development Department. Planninq Department, Buildinq

Department, EnQineerinq Department, Survev Department, Transportation Department,

Other:

FROM:     Laurel Boyd, SJCOG, Inc.

The landowner/ developer for this site has requested coverage pursuant to the San Joaquin County Multi-
Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan ( SJMSCP).  In accordance with that agreement, the

Applicant has agreed to:

1)     SJMSCP Incidental Take Minimization Measures and mitigation requirement:

1.   Incidental Take Minimization Measures( ITMMs) will be issued to the project and must be signed by the
project applicant prior to any ground disturbance but no later than six( 6) months from receipt of the ITMMs.
lf ITMMs are not signed within six months, the applicant must reapply for SJMSCP Coverage. Upon receipt
of signed ITMMs from project applicant, SJCOG, Inc. staff will sign the[ TMMs. This is the effective date
of the ITMMs.

2.   Under no circumstance shail ground disturbance occur without compliance and satisfaction of the ITMMs.
3.   Upon issuance of fully executed ITMMs and prior to any ground disturbance, the project applicant must:

a.  Post a bond for payment of the applicable SJMSCP fee covering the entirety of the project acreage

being covered( the bond should be valid for no longer than a 6 month period); or

b.  Pay the appropriate SJMSCP fee for the entirety of the project acreage being covered; or
c.  Dedicate land in- lieu of fees, either as conservation easements or fee title; or

s   E
d.  Purchase approved mitigation bank credits.

r  .
4.   Within 6 months from the effective date of the ITMMs or issuance of a building permit, whichever occurs

first, the project applicant must:

a.  Pay the appropriate SJMSCP for the entirety of the project acreage being covered; or
b.  Dedicate land in- lieu of fees, either as conservation easements or fee title; or

c.  Purchase approved mitigation bank credits.

Failure to satisfy the obligations of the mitigation fee shall subject the bond to be called.

Project Title: Scannell Lathrop Proiect

Assessor Parcel# s: 198- 040- 14

T R Section( s):

Local Jurisdiction Contact: David Niskanen

The LOCAL JURISDICTION retains responsibility for ensuring that the appropriate
Incidental Take Minimization Measures are properly implemented and monitored and that
appropriate fees are paid in compliance with the SJMSCP.

479



Scannell Properties Industrial Project

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP)

480



MITIGATION MONITORWG AND REPORTING PROGRAM

This document is the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program ( MMRP) for the Scannell
Properties Industrial Project ( project). This MMRP has been prepared pursuant to Section

21081. 6 of the California Public Resources Code, which requires public agencies to " adopt a

reporting and monitoring program for the changes made to the project or conditions of project
approval, adopted in order to mitigate or avoid significant effects on the environment." A MMRP

is required for the proposed project because the Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration

IS/ MND) has identified significant adverse impacts, and measures have been identified to

mitigate those impacts.

The numbering of the individual mitigation measures follows the numbering sequence as found
in the IS/ MND.

MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM

The MMRP, as outlined in the following table, describes mitigation timing,  monitoring
responsibilities,  and compliance verification responsibility for all mitigation measures
identified in the IS/ MND.

The City of Lathrop will be the primary agency responsible for implementing the mitigation
measures and will continue to monitor mitigation measures that are required to be

implemented during the operation of the project.

The MMRP is presented in tabular form on the following pages. The components of the MMRP
are described briefly below:

Mitigation Measures: The mitigation measures are taken from the IS/ MND in the same

order that they appear in that document.

Mitigation Timing:   Identifies at which stage of the Project mitigation must be

completed.

Monitoring Responsibility:  Identifies the agency that is responsible for mitigation

monitoring.

Compliance Verification: This is a space that is available for the monitor to date and

initial when the monitoring or mitigation implementation took place.

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program- Scannell Properties Industrial
Project

481



w';
w=.

p

c G o  ao
ca v,  n      o c  

o  
x,    o  °° , ao ,

y 5
Q1 t°       o ° J ` L° u   C

a ° E u ǹ r"a a`'. u E on ca o ^ a  a

ty
a.    u.

Z  
o    ,      ya L c ,  c ,

4': W a'.+ 
J' 

7      C ... 
ai a'-+ ,+-..'       w 6Ci

v' a. E 6' o       a °  n. E 6' o  
o   ,    

m .   c

o  
o o .   

c

E >  o.     >      E  > a.        >
v i 0     v i v U U n n    cn U v

ae o v . c a - a    +' ^ a ^ a +'       ao c o ^ a t7  -  v  c      

Q[  c a ` L°  o `° v  o  `°        a a  c ' Q, p   N cn      i

c/   
S"' tn

O . G. . 
C6        t-   .   v) 

N    
y  

L O

O
C4   ^ C,,      

O '       bA    u
y ' Q L]. N ' y, N y

1G i'     
aNi F o  `° `"  ° `" f°       o y ° a  

3 ° v   c'     

CC

vi . a o w C o       
a; 7 n         

O

a wy    ,    v           y      o N    =    
O       

a'      L dA

y,,, 

U bJJ N
N

C1 7 = C N U fC W      bp
a'"i a "         ;:       E  m 6' 

a ;
a u y . a ,  o C

Z o v  . c - o   v v E        °' '  °' 
E `'  

N o ' c   ic C

a.i °' '  `°  c o ?,        a . a °, o o a, °° a 4w..  ' N o
y a ; a  >  '>  °' 

on  v a cvi "   
v o ;°   +

6'"

CC
v  O   O J

C      "       E Y   N Y v a  

N tuO bA
O

ar. a a` a a   v  y c a - a o  o in E  . c.  °'      o

C o
N  c. :°  c. 7        "   s N   o    a  o C

W
cfs o. N     

c'' `' .  o       °' 
aNi = =    > o "-'  a, L s 0

0.!     Q o x , u  , o O , c 3        p on 3 .   , u  `° 

c  a,    .    

Q o v  °    . i'''
v  .

v
o    °' u a a  •" Q  '  =    

b°

a.i  ^ cs "   o
N

v ,            co a a + > s in
y '-    

o  o  @ c  ¢, '       o o n '
b o  v  s°, rn ., 6,   

L y

z„  r7 V]       •   C y:,     O .   I

C,7 a  
o  , i o  n. o o °'     °'      ° +

C- .

a    ` a ,    u
c a c    yc y   y °- °' - o o 

a

G      
Q       

u o '  ° N'    v °' v,    p - u ` v, o y   ai '   : v   
o

l     a a ,,,  c  a, o m          '- 
s  c a  >  ,   c •  a

O O C   a    ,

a  ,   x c  '    tq  o o
c °' m   c 3  = a, in

F"      ° C o '  F"   ;
a o a         Gz. a  .

L y +.' . o
O ao o  

s..

x., y v:. o '   ia C c a ' B 3 ao cCa
s. a..+   " '"    

a cyd
Z

cyo  ° , n    w °'  a a y s.

v.    

cya
i" 

y, a, aLi L1: i u 3    cn a
a a. ca p, o av i

n' o
a   >      a ,  ' N  o@ 3 a    • i..  3 C

O a   •  
w 

n      V o     o io a  °'  y  c   a' w  
cn

W C
y : O ' o     u c C   y ., a o '''  ` cNa  c.  a  

7-       O  , 
a'  c `''n   "'  E,¢„ 

O O  ^ G   
i., i.

v.  o cn o o   
O

V1 1+   fG J-O
Z b 0    t.,  '      

C D ',—
j ..^ 

N N    
s"  

c..  c. i o 0 o s.„ pE"'      R 7 

V +  
a,  a, a  v  , a      a i     y

o a.  a,
a

s.

V Z c E   a Q'   c°'. E      m    c c   , °:    °;  
a'

v

F-      O a t  >, y; N N a - o a  I L b0 Li      N y C   
5 Z O   ' B  .      '

O U

r a            

ro   o c N a u 
CS'      V y vi p ' LS

0      
o

G      y    

i      o " fl-  
Q           c, , ,., u '       

H a  m a •- c  ,  •=

1           Q: :.. 7 ' 6 W F.:   O C cC u"   
C           r.r : ' . ' B         v?  N..

C L3 Q;   t0
a'  Gi p t. c 0 

a      ,:       , c     .  m L
H           . , ;      

N ; 

Q  '  
O  

W
p, .   "  •  v "' O N .

m 3" . 
7..Q K       ~  

C}..:: [ C N ,   v i  O CJ CJ (% 7

482



c,     -
o

u
C         

U
f" 

L     .,' O    , II 0
C6  C ' D

0 y,.

N i.  ,  Gl i:+   tC L C
y;, O

G1
y O  L U 7  U N

Y s"  ' L O U ,„ C  j bD L C t.. i7
O U  y

U

vi vi a., y  N O C N G  C ' O N >     p     Q

G s- ',' ,' L y ca +,,;,' 
N

7 O a  
a L O u s.  h 7 a 

L"

t-. i1 v v cC w CL v ' C ' O c.   s.. w bA c. i ra G. . p G.
p"

fx
a a a,  
o            +       c o

v c       ' on o t

Z a       °'       o N
J  a.     v O O" U

rC v  
n J bA C

w O
7.
Y.    ,  

6    
cC     

y ,
u  '   C p v

L pO    c0 s..   

y

HL  p   Ga1     L p c6   N p L.

O V CJ ( f    O d U] CJ Z Q = V CJ CO     

OQ+ 
G O ' B N 6   N [ 0 ' 6 bA O C ^ CS O! ' O N

a"i - u,  c ' s. 
C6 i° , 

a . c '  a c in  o a on s. o m °'      a  co-- v a v,  cn a

N O y„ bD c.. C .
y.+  ' C         ' D C w V  a+     7 O

L

TS  .
y.   '

CS v
y .

a'

C^.+  y   O O
v i p G C 6 s..   

N  i- -O y y W      y O . ' O         

G  
s.  3 :. 

G
N  

c. s..  >,    
O  d ' S u   . ' C  

N p  ` n Li'  v C

Z o v,  • o    '  o  cz. s'-. a c ' c 3   v c r o a   `'° 
a,   a c a o a ci        u

Q a,  c . s. °' w c  `°    s'. a,  . o a  y  
a c s  °°  ,  °

c° c      `
n

C7
A; o  w °  fl. 

acn   °  
a   a   ti   o . o N c o c  ' Q,       

Z a'

o a, 
n

o . L c y . o  N • °; N c  o  °' on
y o ti   E  ro°  °'       

ai          o   a    n o E  °' ° J a v  G  a     v  '  y tnf"    
o . a ` n

h a   a   L   t°.      an   E "   0 3 '        o

o  v   v  E " E o o . a  ¢ .  c a.  F' v     '- a o.

U a s  L y  o L   U ti     
z ¢

L     c '" ?+        n

s.       a n'     
ai

a  u c     cC Y a d  o   ao v
a, °; > °' fl. s°'.       

Z a , a v     c s. .  > cn o '
u

c   

y  y ry ' m .   o
o    a      '

Q c 4.       '   °; ,  
o    - a ,   c   . a  ,    a '- a

a  o a  , v a  ?;     a v o . n ai >'  Z "'   L +   a .^ °  ie       
L

h 
o ^ a ; ca 0 v

s.. A V 7 . o    . 
a °  

n y ca a.    '"' ,       [
s.

vi '-' '       ' ao    • h a a o o - a   L a x ' a
s°'.  v n a  °   a c a"i c c a r, a   c v y o u c '      y  r'a a   ,

Z a    ° u  ° m v,  ;
a L' ic y 4-  c aLi u .   o G

cc    o        ' O

u   ;   a i a  '  aki af4i     >, `
o , n *

N- 

o ., E ¢   s.   o . ;    .       
m
ao

a'"i  v Q  N c a        r a 3 ai w '° c a   c v Q    a a  L    ai G

o o y
a. a c  ° .    - -  > o  o  o  .  , ..,      a

L
o

y c i.

Y U v '      fy tC Y    ` C O       ,
b •y .      c9 rl  O     U C       

7 i,         ^-. ..0 G     L p N y v i O  c.. N : D N Z a '      
c`"      

a  O
O .    , >,.  a,   a    O a.  a L • C

F"'    s, ' o .  ;_, •- ic m c a •   o     . a . v v t co °' o '
rs E 4, z W  o c u            o

v y a    a . a ra '
v  s. u     y   rn a ,^ C_, 

t. ¢ ¢ o   
C7 v7i

t'     ` n        

d ' o y o y o^. N, o o ai p q     U ? 
y

o     '

v    •`"   o

tC V   a)       ' O  ^ "' r6 4      L. V ""  C cC c%i t  > G   7 L   ,    
N C.       O7 a ia a a  cc c > L o •      +    },     h 4•    ''' . Go o o 

i. ' o .. 
V    

v i . eA cyC o d v  ° J   '

z   -°  
cyC  Y ia ai w        f 0

y  w a, ; o ' N m '  a' ci;          c  .     
a  

u y on o        . ao

o n ,     , '- E- a °' a s.      " u  o ic ¢ o o . o
L,    . ,

C   - a    cn
f°    «-      o y p i p V j o p V C

q a , a  a i :;       ,
y

t-, `.«;   a i i  aNi   , C      vYi v
bA w .  N    - O y t0   O    N a1

V N      VI
O V N CS. f-.  C L p L G C  ( C v1 ' N L

y   
d

L+  
r..'  

GJ dfE ' L   L f0 VI N L.  
j     RS 0! C O   ' O N iZ     ..'-.     E CJ C L

on p o a  a? 
o  o , N a  '     ac `-' °' `

o
o v  n  • ., '   ao a ' c oA ' g aiy ,-+  U a. d-     O U y., 

cC O 

n v        

y   7,   > N       C  U O
p

O v, 
C +'  

GJ OJ  O
o E a n.  n s. o  E  n L . fl     m E c           in s.  a. a o o L 

a ra o a  c a   a, a y       a

L W 7-
N.    

L:   V1 VI
y C

N O N W v  y O 7 ..

D N t C       ' 6

O
L U > ..,       0 G

C v i        
v ¢. t-.   7'          • o

v             N        u

V L
U C       ,„

4:. G1        = y, i. n

N       7

ij , u b A v          N 7         a.+ >    ca 
y

U . N ' y t.      .  
a,     

L' •     

p .:  N .    
v C 

y O v   
O        

y
O

EL]  R
Y L     CC J.+ •      y    T

N  
dJ    £+  7

a ; , _      v   o       

7 67 .
v

C 7 4J y      C. 7 .,. Sr Y         
N .

v     vi 41
L

1 -
U

rC  O v
c6 U      O : y 6        

fC U  C/ 1 A U ( 6      U .  O 3 :. f4 CL d ...,'    .= c

483



w

o o *-
Y O

O V   O U b.0  

s, t E - p i.   

p    
L

O  ' O ,...  

L N   N L.  tn (
C .^. L.

a  . o o.       a.  ao a

a0 o i

Y °° c ai c
a      a

a a`'i c a' E       E
w G o

O C ' y b-0

CJ W C]  vi L W x L

N O C i- N +' tn N n     . x i..  
w bA O bA^ , 7, L-      

b U

L', }+ A O Q1 CJ Ql y U N Ql  C' i
L'    C"i     y U

C
3     

o 0
C N 0.    Y  

V           

Q       C6 ` n Z O..     O   u C. O '_"  G1 O"   

O   O N

4        
p„     r,  O C „ C

y     
s.., +   a.+ ^ p

P:

o a, a w o-   o a` `.     `  `'     o o
o

A,,,    o  a on c c

U

S G Y v i'.+  O  7-

N.  ac6- i'"'  
p O

O ' ' O          GO

Z       a `° a o o . `°   c   a      o ǹ a  r'  v zr

o   a n. v o v  o v •
N  o ¢, a     

o  c a o o         oy

fx ia , ' s  a°, o ia  , o ° 4.  .
n '" a i r a  m a  n + v a c

Y " a i 

7 o c a
3   c L o   .    c °'   a'i        

o

p.,      v c . v ai  u ra  c           a''i ' 3 o s". ,       

W       ca 6n 
a  v o 

o s. o  a o v 3 y a , o :       o

N .
a

v

u o- 

W v    o  y "  p, '°     v ' c   ,       

0 q  . o :- a p
c m • ca .

N y
Y  v n.      y ° .   o a4

a o z 
c  

o  °' y

m >,  ° J a   c.         

a a       o v  ',       >.,       o ._    .
n

a       i

o   o a a y      °' N a 3 v .._.     u            

Z n E"' a`'i ic aL. n
c o  x  v F '3   y a i

a i E- ,  
s. o rl `° •' N '' 

a'  a'\ b         v @ ' N av,i ` n `
r'       o

o o Q  .   3
a, v m c ai v on W m ^ a

N . , cG a y n.

O y ''      a°     w  a a  N
L°  a  - o o'  a d n, ci   3 i

F,      o @         o     .   ' 3        x a, o   ,       

z
c v  v o  3     a  ',  y ¢ `'    c va' i

c  o  •,      cn - o    a, a
N 

a  
v ? }'  

u
a' 

4n . o  `°

O Q   N Vf ' D O     ;, 6  . + j y y . 0 U O Vl   O G       O

t"' ' O    ' n C u F'  
N

U . 
N '     +' 

CC n fC O a. , 
y p C

O.  N C
bA

r--, ` 
a". in    ' O '°  ' n  v' '

O    > 

d 6i'.  N   u tn

G O p [ Zl G' O  N P]  
s-' 

N

t0 O O     C .. 0 '-' E < d         Y
O Y o o. y , c

o z E f6
o a,  a, u °     c o "    a ._       s.

w.     0 7 vi "  o Y v°1i p  • o  c c ?       a.
N (' a

c''. ;     b0  a' .; . N ac,  °' "   , N °=  
y    °' p a  "       

o

d       X  o a`'i
J  m  Lmo  ai  °' o        a

v , u      cG s.  a ,  ... o ao a a u L a°  c  c

v

o T's ' °  

u        . °-'       o h - o a ,.  a    c
Y o ..  a; c       = '  '_' a .=' o y  Y

c.

3 ° N ° . v       ° o   
o v o, v

L      
cn

x           3    t4 on 

4 L  N
r/ 1 C   ' 3-.       L+    y S'..     L,+   

tn ' U

v
O

v1       
tC    []  

C" J         
A O O          S..Ll

b   
p

bD Gi     C    .--    
x a    Q : tC a-+ n G. i      O.

a av- ^     O 6 Ql  tn n
C . i.,    i,,v N

O h  Q,          O t0  y C    fn U N L +'.+     n.

b

fu4 N 7  O  ' i,      

m        

O U
O

N   y Yp    
O C  v s, ' C 0

O ^ 6   tl.    y C p ; N ,  G    . a C

C]  u p

o

y„  '    
LY] w  y Q.   

a    
N

o

p   

o

CO     
y„ c'.i  N  >

p N S.. C.  ( 1, C a  . Y. 
yr L t.,   

C        . s  au tn  a. O  n     ' C ' C  U O     N L i :^ O .    O. V7

484



E E
G! 4.. y„  

L N ,,, y„  
L

d

a-+   a.       

O U  bA O U       U

O  : d O  : a      O
7 ^'       7 .^

Cl.   GD 0.  . . fl b 0
Q'

L.
o.. a

a o o

J- Y

z a        

F
o        o      

Y      

o W W

0

W o ,^ cs 4`".,            o a —     v  - a, o -- c v a a    o L
y

L c on o p.
a o c . '"' 

r-+ a '_'   ia c ,  o ao   a o o Q  ;   a o        o a a E N a r, a ° 23 . w'  `-     >, 

u

C v  
6,,  ( j G

c`"   

p p
p" N  y p L • 

O
N C  C      

Q y', 
C C6 N    pp tC     p.,   h qp   y. y O   i, N i, 'T   

p bD U  ,,, ¢'        G'   v       s.,   O 7     
n

a v ' 6    ^ •    tn  O cC
Z c v , o a ca a a

Q;   o . o .       c  c v  °' a a o  ,   F'  o o   v',  "   cn
s.   w+       C1 y O C N O L1  L 6     c, L1 y

C7
C6 ^' 

f4 ¢' `° , a       . o r'- 
a"i

3 0 `'      o ti . c a  c L  on a @  ca

7 o a a   
v u  - o E ' E   _" v u    " ` - N v    . c a, 3

v   
a  . s-:       J-• C CCO     . J-^+  

TS Q" N
C f G    y  i.     N t f-  N

L

µ  Q @           
C     

N         „ a  L 7 .  

O '
B O ,   

O N  
a v E 3        o p o F- 

fl'    a  . o o ° . `..° u m   v •   p-

E a     c L   o ,

N E a ,       n, y       .   `°  z,  a •      E- b    E  . a o     , ' `   Z
y A

C. (
7 V y       (

G 
J c6

CJ ^  V N

O .

r ,$]     O   C. 1  
4' L   U . C: .  

v L.

r ,

6     a O X t1  N .    ^       X u y C " a 7   C O

o v o.  ts y        N
a on  ro o o ' o  _.      ao  ,  ° o  a w- H    _` a p,

y o •-  —' c  a a + 
s. 

o ,
a

o , ,_,  a,       aa       c  ,

s.  , y `" o        u o c   ,  ` " c     y p a  
c'a p  °; a a c >,  o        =

Z
n

F"' 
ra  

u n' ,,,       S i bn a i > w u   ` n '      

s. t a.+     a m  ao ca  .           '

0 p„ ,  N
7                p  '  O L.   

i. ' C .  u   . v v 7 a O `. y w   fC

c o        E- n, a a'    
C..,  u     • ' o   L  _:   '  y bA

i .  
L, 

O

N G,       N
v       \ 

s"' U y C
t1. 

N    a'    
t. '

x
0..  C  O 4J > y C  s.    

L7 a a a v  ' rY
a p n. o a`°i o  o   o. cs  o  ai o  °' o . c    '    °

c.  o
o    ,        u       fs      . o    .  u   , c    ^   ai Y on  ' dn       

C'   0  c           A ° o  u  °'  v c
c, '    u g .°'  ,. a, y w N R

E ' a o
o `° a'.+ ct".i v        ic s"' , . v p, y `     "' > y ' a '-     a     

v'   '

s:, v i v'       '-'       +
rn        .

T.  i..
cJ O v     s..   ( 4 Gl G L.  c J O' u N rC      v i   p        

F.

v  v      c°'. 
y

a'"i a a h a     a a.   `° a h a ra ` w°. a E a o      U O
y ,,.°

J,  

ai
a, c o °     y s.     o o

m y..,  
c a.  s.     , 3    .      ca

y O a O bA

w @         o       
o a a

o O, o s`
n.  a, 7       

y
p

u bD
s"' ' p v . C 0 i7   

aNo  o E •-  c ao 3 ' L    .  
f+  ] 

L' O' [.,'  ( 6    + d  

r
O y,

C, bD O tyi i.. U L      N

CO O   [ 6 N    ,    r 4, N N

Y    , y `. O :
V

O    • + V O  - p O v N O N
a' 

N    `- 
i'' u  .. 

C        C i .      >         i  0     C

4-° o o a      `'  3 t''' 3 0         
h 3 3

6
ai a   o v i o o N ai o  ,    n. o o      c

0,  s Y o    
ti   a`'i    ,  ca rc °           ` II a o

a s. w Y   }' o , m °  ti `  ,' 3   
o         

w oǹ

F . O L .  C,      RS  p •  4. 41 •        O

4 .   
O - . 

C 1.,  N U     p ,  
Ql N p L       r..

L y L
y        u w  4.  a.+ C  i7 O    +     O C

O C

3       
c0

y G G  

1.,     .  
7 U s"  s. b  

vui ' C "'       O C C1.
4. ,

Q, .  
cC a O 7., '" C  C T

N ,    

7 U   N      U y, 

o   

Sy  o o    °  0 3 0    o  .} a `     °    .°  

o '            
o  c a`'i   ,

a  ° c°  m     o E , c ao
a    c     ;°  ,     ;_, N  c : o o    ', c '      ° 1 -' ;

g  `°
sa-  `  a.' ° Y    `. 9    o L o . x L  o           ra

x ::u cs a  , m .  rx ' ti cn a E c o 3 a Ts ,  a a, .   a'   E

485



4..o
v;    

7     O c. i  
a.+

i. +=+ 

c  >      fl E
a o u v i '  as" i
O   c w ;   a

o    +      o
a i

y t.

y

a   R.  a N
o +' G

O E v   O C

E > C. T CO
N  q O

V V  V W

N N 3.. J-+  L      ' 4J G'  t+   .  VI    QJ d bD        i''      r..

a'.+

cC U N p      O O  C , '  ' x C N      
r./       CJ      N a      Y.

4

vi O l  
N

O L"  ¢'     

n '_'    s..    > '_'   " yc         s., +-' ,      O

V
c x o 3 0       c - cs  a          a a      w 3 ,      

O.,/   
L dJ O

y

y       Y
L O    RS

OL `"  O         O. a'.+     CC
F4 N          

y U fb       N         
CJ R.    U  7 f4 L

Y f

Q+   O
a  c i:+  C  n     ..,  , . ,  a    a '  w y    °    

a N
c •,  o + 

y
m , c       > .      3

O O L'  7
U

y

al     O w    QJ C Y "..    U 1"'    U bA w U C
Z n,       

a
u 4.

V O .,           7 N C y
O G    

N  
y u       L.

H.,/   5..  s"'         
O  . f.  L  '     

N vl ""'-+  
L d        U ¢  

C '    O y.      O

F4

L       
O

i''     u r6
N 7 V OO       '   c.  bp +'     v '  " y a.  C     ''       s.. y A G c      Q

u o a,     ,  v h  v 3   Y uo          

L  ,      . p   Y           o       o       

o c a  o,  a    C
3.7 o       '  

a o n'      °
N'  `° w c '°    s, y t'' a`°,    aì Q1

i o     •    E o      a`'i      in    `°  a'-'i a i     a'  ''  '"    o ra ° °'     

o Y    ^ .   ° y     '—'        >, s °'  co    v a a.`      
Q L1 .       N a.+    

y       7    O    N C Ql y  ¢  
Z ucn L E       v    3      , a    E a i

a i      E   ° '   o  
a     

Q
r'    

n       o  °'    -     y o    , a  o '  °'     o o  p,      
p      Vf "' y 5..        . 5..'         G        ' . O '  L C6       U

Z
a    °'  °?   o     a,  a    a         a

N
s      a,  o a c 6. c ' o  `

y,° i c o o ai c  °    °'  
e;, n, °'     o

O Z   • p    ' F a 3           c   c c     
ai cn c  °`'    vi  `,° o

a

F
L      

C i •^ N
O

U
O

b    3"'       O  J
L' L A N U

fO

6„   C O   ' C    > C U   .       O y
v N N 6) ..+     y ' 0 y N 1-+

y ' O W N   .          ' 0 L V +  
y    

L
L .+      

VI

O N L H CJ GJ       aS"'+  
y ' N Q. C.)  ¢' 

J''     [.,•  C f6   O , 7
J-+  VI y.,  

CJ    N

fC N v]  O•  , a   L     C    
6" -

S-
J    

d d E o

O

C1 Y     
Li

N o o
co        ^   ae

ro    
c   a

acai L   o '  
N =  aNi a i

z o     c    o     ¢  E o :  c  .`° c a m N 3 0 v°'i c w„  
p c a a

a

ao .=  3    .   ao a"i = a o
a.      o o. a a

c C w c3.  m
y

F C C 6 a       C iC N >' y >' y ' B iC ' N C

O cd
n

Y

U .''' U .''' O
C ''     U

Y f0      S"'„  
f""  .Ui f'.    

N ^' ' N ;--' 
U

v      
V7

m

v " o,  ` o        3 o.
a '

a,°  o E
a     ; a c c

o

cc     . a i  `°          a i H . ti o  `,° ,  `,° 3 C ' 
Y

N      
cC

Q
L

y G O G `+—   '

0 0  o   o a`      Q, > a 3          , a a`'ia

o      . U>'       ° w    ° , a` c a ì   °  

N   

b A O O  >     >   4"   

L + '    n N y K .. B f6 pp • pq as,. pCp
N

G L'  N    U  ' f' v} -::  f^ 
yV1i • . II ` . D

L.' N   ( C

O  C  N O   U     c N
QJ Q       

cC

v  U v ' O G. p y Ql y N 7 fl'       .

a c c x ,  - , a    ,     u
a , .  .   a  o v G.   ca y .   a a c ca , u .   m

486



U

aI O

V a
O n

a

z

H

o
a
w a

0 c
z

z

a 0

o
H

z
0 0

a

z
o

H 0

0

y

4.. i

y O L
y Lx.

O 

L.

s. 
w0 N

O N N . V

7L
y U N
N  

O

y U

G1   O
Q. ,

t,     c

0 o a
w    +-+

v  N O

L1 G

487



MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM

This page left intentionally blank.

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program- Scannell Properties Industrial

Project

488



ATTACHMENT "   7     "

6
s       .    

t
i    

3: 5.:   '

FF e? r 1     '
P', a   * Y

a     .° ,,    

q
ila `' a "+°      

g,          '   

g`      "       ',""`       un    ' s v:       rx

e
a, e

ss       .4 y y,  ;  
e  .;.       c,'.,

n« xik+.

ti   

f      

s        ;,    
E

u,       u

t,            
p `  

e ,;-,, _,

4
k    ,   ` i+t ..:,.       ,'.      

k     
z. a _,,`.

r,  ,.

r

1 1 OJ V J  

v <\   
c    '

H° "

aa Y          
c

z 

u ,."      `, 
4       

ite
s

a,,' 4

n   °   ,   '       .;'    5`.`

a 

r

w'w
r. 

4     ..,.,,,,
y; a.,,..,,

y,,:.      .._....
a4,.`- u- o       .

r

m   .      .       .   

n   .«...,  /'-') f"` R . -   ?.   ° Ca

c .:-    ( F' i Y

a      
Y.  ? q4< d        

2'°  Y a„ '
7+       ^, .       

rt                 
z i " hi" M:,}q

A<      d,?f     L!     
T.      ",      ,

tt y
a, 

p  .    

t

Gw
3+-   #   s ,      f 1'° t s   

k' i   s+ erars' i    5'    
1 r            x       _       

r   =
ac+    

y';  
t J

r..     

k,   

k„      k`  N      k3

yi       a

z. ' 
a' W.

v    "+.°„    

1

y„ q,
x

t

e

r i.. 3

w 
d

ii.*'. AA{ ,    

dGASx      

4,      °     ':^":,
VY' A*+.--..- tmY-. 

MfIIS

t
w...> w.. A...« r y,e

t,  u;       

7
t n   "' .   ..

E
f       

s
x

z,..  f,    1 3`

d    """^---:, w« x. s: v            

a
ma  „  

t   4= 

1    

Y a'  f,

8

x

er;.

w
aie       g  ,,

we    `

x

e em E  3e^ k- wa       -      

j       ; p}       °"

E

g
ai s°'=,    

w
w    :,

g >      
w`...       

y#
k v,   ,

rdy     uk rt
er-,:     q i?;:i      ' xs`: i  ,x

F

t11 e6A f      ..       ;,' af i.,.
M+'       

s-   

x    "'.

o--     

E i   6';       s,-
x 

t d , q

x, m  !        7       _.
q,». . i 1 y.

p ws .._ Y      a

G          t

r

a

rrs     E.  x ;- 
a^.

u_,.__. _ .. A.

W

t;;   ,           3  
ru'* s   ..

y..
L`   

g           ;
x      i  ' se w.    

3  

s kn 9 rc'a .    y g.    .           m
@ V

y h a`  ' ae
r

v

Hv°:r 7.    C ...    ..     
R.;.^  .       

aayRBecz            
w._.... ..,...

a.

PLANNING DIVISION

Vicinity Map

rti GPA-20- 139, REZ- 20- 140, SPR-20- 141, and N
TPM- 20- 142

r        ,  .
1', ' Scannell Properties

1520 Lathrop Road
Pr'' ; i'   APN: 198-040- 14

v  -    lvot to soate)

489



u g  _
u..

viNao nvo` aoaHltn

e,.. wwo  6   e. 

yP    

a. 3ie= ai.   a . as c                    

421dOZIH1FJ OZ9l I i=      '
gwo w m             r = o

d02 Hlfl NNt/ S e_     ..       ;    Q
133HS 3 111 s g 8

wFN
a

x Q        _\      

W ia

z
Z

W       W        
99  

saa
w §'.^.

s3

r e, ee
U

w
ao a ddw

Q 3YY: 3
S assg ww k N ffffdHa

3

V`       

3,a: sa.< <. :       

Q
J      

a Z
z  ,; 1        F`.      p ,;

at i     ar .,   i,. `     U o

5
y

t u
3      I 1

y U  .
Iq C'   

t     .    KI
W Q.

aS.`, d   ' .       
a$     

g .
L.. w-,.: i d

1,     N 5 ..
n..<.      

fi U O  '_
d'; ,    ;,  _. .,;;       g 3a

g          Q    -
p'     .,

e

t,   , c,`    _.  ..     

g a
r

O4   .   
4 s   R9       2:'     J

k

x

O
Q W

O

ef, 
t

@      S

2

J H',            

o    
L

O Q       ,, r '     

v
A°„       

t

g

J r     ` 

Q o

o

Z
N  r ; 1 w -'- U Gp o

lf Q t a;`  1
U o

Z a y w W       Z
a F_  

C

c"_    
p   

0 m
g

Z        F

w o UtE C { i  

x

O z e Q wa
r ,  Kl Q   d  -

V
y

A"+    Z

t C7
it,.       

aa w     " C   s,    

t       

k

y.  F:

7

a     §

a..  

7      

m     >

490



viNao nv' doaHl n
3  

Me153 leatl lelvawwo ol u6isa0 6uipeal      ,,.. n.. i.. I i I 9    ,
gY IO' I Y i 2It M

aa doaHltn ozsG i r   

d02iHl`d NNf/ S Q
Ntnd alis nva3no e a

@

g a    a a
y„  

e

I      `            
x R W Smg

x

b'¢    g    I
3 b

j l',    b4       .       
5j      .    »    

f

r       8. d kk'«      0 6 9
s      ff         8n 3 F o

W  "    
V 3

y     < e w'    a      

w @           5
s

d    aua s        a              s
3£ Y ' i _  '       i  s x

yy.. '
u     e  O s.    $ a ., g€ _: a` 

n 

y          
a „     .   .<  g.      Z 3 e

Z o      y
y

a          

o

omr

y s  W a       
g

Q
Q =:   £:  

g ; e g r:;  .   

o sas  
ao         .    .  

goo
d-  ; e a ' s=  :  # `     „

z s ;
939 F ' 3 ¢ rk  ; w"  

J

a       <  _ q  =    e

s     o . 3 =     a ws      ¢     a

90

w
a

I

00000 o          

mm   6

o-          n . o •    .

I      —  —    —    —     
r,

i
i ,

i i I z,
i :   v   i

i i i ,  
3 `      

I I I    I ws

u    
i '

q  
LL J I J

a. u»..:       I
3y  (. t`                  Eu O W

C)     

v     
O

o Z S
JIL   -- i]

091 .
a i  

a0L

i 7r^,     
V I ucOi       

I p
1 F+}

F  

a            99   9C  fi 09     `'-
I          I

9£ l            
I

z Iidl. l

09

3 I i  
I

I
I

i _ 04 io _+- J89I

Mo I fV  

yI       
I

O   O .. 

i "_—""_""_"_—"_  _...__-    II_   .'

x_    09
L9oLL

9G'    LL  . OSt   co _,_
09

I
o

o_     .. .  ° '     
I

i

0L

IN
a 09 ',  4S    S9 '- 9L    09  N}

w
SEt         L SEIi r      

4' t-N

I      '   __ h     
o       ..       

I rn         c'J       I c     :        ( V v   
Y II Y

p o..N.
d'       I p_'      n ~   

OrN „ i a
l

a
I Q     m

q
i I           '            I

N
m     

9_   
o m d  '     

I
C     :     o

I
a       

o

I  St od y      j i

I

u

I '
9

05-
9     g

F M u IIL co  -

w
I

1

U

c'  09 L        °
5'     "I _  '   

09 09 9I'',     '       
io     J

y

o:   I ,   6,      I N

1

I

491



viNao nd' doaHlv s

n 3ieaaie„ wwo, o b„ as Pe,       .,     

02! d021H1F/ OZSI
gWO` I W 2IF M

d02 Hlb NNd S
m  1181HX3 JNION3d 311Se a   l

cv a n

0, 3       9  ,. a g
J"   

3    3 g       _    y g 5

i_ -__             32 e      '

s,  ZW
J UIw
d Q

i o

Q

Q Q

Ii
i!   F-

Fi

rd  '     Z  Z' q
t, k± 3 J 3y a4

J. 
ZI

Y  J 4     J   O

Q y f  

i          . .  N   _ 1              ,.  ll   fn.:

k       o  kYd

a   e o :  e

I   -    
ff tl S'    6 I

a,   
rw;..,   i I     _     3, s   e m'     

i

I
a

I

II I      _      7`
x

s 
I      

I I w     u n_       N
r.    I C7  I o4 I

Z

I

r+S        

i

7' t  '.::     -;.;,: 

i      ,  i
t

V Y

Z n      - a 2

t     
w

Y
LL

Z

A
W, I

i
i., '

U

zt      
xr, a vs n,

x4      o      

L t.:     3 J
s

F

y

I F$  _

q. g y E  .
I

wG ' FL` 5      6

I I
ss4'

d I o   
t

rtr
5 r  I

I
k

g
a , 

3 .

N g y

I a a      

I
s y

i wV
yl      "  e 3g W

j

I LL

i

Z

f Y

I  - - - —  --- - - - —   
4, 
I zl

a>

I
x`

n
U;m

II
I

I,      
I

j

il
I I     - :I

r--

q
I t

I

i     
I

I I I      ,
I

I

I —  IT
U   —     

i

492



viNaodnvo' doaHlv  i Q  - 

mLµ

nn 3ie= aie ww, i b aa Pe»       . ,.,. o   ,,       

42! dOt1H1Vl OZSI
SWO' IF W 2IF M

e

d02 Hld 3NNt S a     Qtl

l' JNIQllfiB- NVId 311S IVIlLIVd e B

I

I --
Z

a

4F
J.

J-       ,   
r : 

Q
f___     , 

Q     !.
o -     o-.      o-,    e o s a

I
o e     ;

w 
a-,      o,.:   o. y

r

r      

e
l     ---       

i
e

w

I s6-. r  .   x x

g         

3

c

I
I

s _   _ .       

U      .       
o- 

k,    k    

i g
k

I
I I

w I y        _   ;

I       
I       -—              i I W £  ££     , 

L

k

I F
p 

a 3    
I .

m      

b

i Q w S G     f

I
I

m  . wI i Zo    Y a"• p

G g s s E 1  % 
S   ` b

i I I
Z P = a%  £ kN m  e   

J Q =
3 g i :'  ; 3 a '  i . ba

m., ^ . W a.: : :
n

y

I
I

I  .    
d 6      `  B i
W W

a1

o n     j
j

r—   3i

II e s

I
f j Y

a
w„       k 3

j
r I s 

i
W        

o
a  

J i
a  

o     
g    g

a   °  a     

o
g_              3

rg      _      

Z   _',  w    

r
O i

oo   ¢ 3   5

V

o
N i

W
N

M
J

O
I Z r  I Ho- a       - J  O  I

Z = i      
J

cw.> 

m oo
o

I

I

o I  __--  -  _!   
i 8         $e

Q
a     

LL

I a  5"   S S. J :5

I II

I

II     

a. ` 

l 8.. timE

i
J' a:  . 3

W U

I

f

I Q

I
a

I

I   "

I   il i
i I

I I
I

e        

w
n    - 

y
U I

7•  

I    '',

LJ      . . . .

t

e    _           ,  .       _       --     —__       _      

P     - a,    
r,'.

I_       e

r    o .                , a   _  _  ,    o s

i n      '
n      3I I

a-     _._...      ..     .. ..

493



viNao nv' doaHl n sA

nn: a ieaa ie owwoo. o siAa c n.

42.1 d NH1Hl OZS L 1  '       
N

g W O' I Y i 2IF M s 

d02 Hld NNt/ S      - _-:,..,.      w       =.,;,      3.. 0    ;  =   Q
z waiine nnnd 31is ivilava o s

q:.-  __ .
R' s

I I    _... ... -. 

JI

I Q

w   

I

i
I

I I   J

I
L.__  

Q

I I
I

I
I

a    
a

I
I       I I     . a9 G Y IP, - .-..

I i       .      .

I

a    ;W     ,U     !            a     '=    
a

Y e   . .__,.     

LL I .     .      ILL
s         

3

p          

a
Wo a      o 

a
H ''          _ -  '

o       a    „      

e

w w

Z 3 r5 mi u  ` a s

I     .. ..   ..     I I i Z$  = a  o` = a  " a  a
LL    : Qr  am   aeas   42

i fl    .. ._    ....    
I      

i   a s 
m= z  

e a   
a c -  

o 
w  w      £

I
d    " a   y

j 000000 o 000 00

li
Ii i

w

gu

I! I I
5  

o      

i, 
o

I
z tt¢      o wFI S  d$        

P 

I ; I   ..  ._ _. . .   

I      .'    E s..   k'   ' a       S

@   
g$     3 d    ` =

i          

a a, s       b     :

i
i,

l
c o      e  ., s  .-

x x

i
g    '.` t  i g o d >.

I LL

i  I
J

N o
o N I    o- a        f 1  O  j

i

I
I    . .. .  .  M

i

I i Z ~   II II
Z = I `   J  I   , ; ,  ,       I

m  a

1.   .   .     .    LL
i

A'"

i I
I I v.

J
y

Y

N

I

I
R. 8         

I J'

sy   333

Q . ga s a 4s 

i a   € 
e -  

m

J 9`   

I; 
W a    .   d

U

I
I
i

i .:  _ .  . . . . ..    i i    

I -      i I a

I a

I   

I         _ _ I   = .
i

i  

i I I I'
I

I

w

7 a   - c
I

o
LL

I ( .   
I

LL    O i
I I

i
a

L , 

r =' -,    -   -
a- oe             

f

e   , I
e

o

I       .       
a

I I
J3

494



viNao nv' doaHlv 8    :

02

nnsa iexa ic v. wwo. o c: a s iaa       .  ,   . 

L

M
aa doaHlv ozs

gwo w x nn
d02 Hlt/ I NNb' S Q

N' dld 311S 1V112Nd

3tl

E

y
i, '_

z       

i

li

I

Q= 
k,     

I
J.       I.  

C

I           Z

I

I

I a li a 

ill I
I

I
I

Y

I
I

I a
Z I            G     

I
Z

I

I       
2  I
W Q

I   q s        -   
r,     

F- m
I

o I  --','       u o e R;   '( ';    _
F ' w : 3     

iVJ Y_   
I

I       pz o    '  e 

I     Z w t
a ; E g a: 

i     Q s    `  ` ; s   & ;

i
I

I a' -' " ¢ w m    g F
i FN  c a       a   

s:      ,: . S'' ' aa  y

o0000000 00=o  

r
y

u yYI k S g
J 7  .

W.       

b

nmg f

I\       

W W

i

x—.   x x— x. _.—— T — v—+  r— rc x -- v x   ,— x x-- x— r—  —    ——_       

o

E

y
g

Y

x-  . e x v x o        

ae J8  _   

@     _         3
R C OS

I,  _.   .    ..

i ' \       r., . ..    . . 
o_: . . .  ..   ,, .  ..   . a-„         .-,  ... <       

w

u   `     ..  ..    ;y s

w

oa      

t

3 w

f.... .       
I_..   .       

do `   S   °      -' , q    '

i         .    
w

m

i

l
J

i
W

F F- o- a        L  o . I

I      ... . ..   . -    w       .. U

O I 4rN       _

I x     

I I  ..       g

m     n 5

I I   

I
I ta-  - a     $   ,,,, `

a ` s  m g   §I,     _,€   
a, F

M      
a

mm  

Zv  a
fl I0Z = 

I
I

a 

i

m O
y   

I i

I
I II

LL I            

I

o
II     __—   

K   _   

I

y

j

I

Ix—       —_,.--— —  —  

i

495



o..,.._,

viNao nv' doaHltn s
nn. 3ie aievawwa, oi b as ae.     

µ,, oW,

o    ;       02! dONHlb'l OZSL
b o   

gY IO' IF W 2IF M t'

d02 Hld I NNb' S 3       .°       =.°.° 3°    —_   

s      Q
o,..   

SytlYryltl'

JNI011f193- SNOI1tl 3l3aOR131X3 0 

a m     

I i i  ;.      

p

I II I o'       I I I o=     @       I I I
i   

J     J     o   

C0   Q '. 0]

N

Q]    f/J:  C  
M

W°             
g

i

a

I ZI Z z
O a   w

O i O O
Zw e       ' e mg

f-    F F
Za aR d '" gs ' r3, dI Q o w  : C  „ 

m 3 
WI   I J J    ~ a ; Be4 6z9. 
WI W w Q ;.    3 s `       

o

Q' I
I

y    w €€        `
E

w o 0000000r o0
H H XX X
w W

I

w

m ,.   F' F

W O
OZ N

a

0 a    t =    -    w
9 g o m ' e

n 3 a

LJ 5 _       `_ `^

Z'     '
u  uJ    s F S

y     Y g

Q   w
W= & Q  

s  „ k 
o¢  

J
W" '

m    Z b   ' o n e i 2:    
3 S 3

p

n

a

n
V

w .. g Y O4i l,
Iml I I

I

I
N

Q I

Q
u mi

o    

r
L

w

W

J lJ.

X
m W m

Q

m m

m

L

I
a    _    i i

496



o  - «.,._.

viNaodnvo' doaHi n w

N
AQLS31e N le vawwo io u6i5 0 6uiPeal       ..••

m.   

gWO' I Y i 2IF M
9  ,,.

W       aa doaHld ozs     
ro

d02 H1`d l3NNH S w       =.,.°,.    Q5M

Ztl'JNl lifl9- SNOI1V 313L101? J31X3

3      ' 

0 8

i I '    i    I I :    I I I  , iq
I i o y i i o      i  o=     @      _

J   J     J

m

N

Q ,   m     0]    UJ         : ' S  '

m

Z Z Z O p       .  E z w
i Q

Z w         ' 2   €

Q Q Q Z¢     € " eg 3 6 3
w w

O o : 3 4 ¢=

m i 
WJ J J Q' a ¢  k' g = g 3 3 3 4
W W W b

w    = a e;

w oo 00000 00
t w W w

w w b w
CI  =    

a
C      w

Z
m b

r— h

II   '       9 g    `    ;
Y n 2     s   

a   

7 Z
W =  

ll. g   a Y .,
e   

3t ?.  W;
W

e "  o
3 3   

J  S 9

b      
op6

Q' i3 m € 
S 3

u

w L'` 6N O 3 
Q

n         

Q

Q   

Q o

so o a
w

j`   i N
i ow

o
m

Q Z0
Q a

W
a      ,

JW

Q r

Q.       F Ji
i

X

Y      

W

U

G I
M

Q
i

m

i

Q I i
L_ l 

r

m

I1

Q

497



g

M
ne1s31e+ Mlevawwo o} u6isaafiuipeal     '"'

TM'°"' rc   ,

vwaodnv doaHltn A

42! d02lH1t1l OZSL
SY IO' IF W 2IE M       .. q    ,.       s t

d0? Hl d̀ NNb S w       =• 3tl   _ QSM

ftlJNIOlIf1B- SNOI1tl 3132JORJ31X3

3

s g 8

a'  

0
m

i 
i  a i    !     i  o i    i i       

I o     i           ow i i o     @
o

J   J Y J     s    ' o  .

M o   .

47 Q  m
y

CD .    m    ( n`' G         `° p  o
i

x

z

zo i
z           

r  = p  9
O Q Q z a

@
8 

e

J  

e a
o;  .

yy-" = ;: 6 " " '"W W uf    '' i i Y ` '_  g 9` j J J I       

0'   

J
Q

a

k g  gk k

d'

I
Q.' I R'    W h € a  € o K e §` s 

o3 m,,: 

i
w 000 00000  o0

X    x X
w    w w

Q
N I W N -    a

Z

m
s

o k m

3    

J 3 a ' 3

y  '
s  

3 aW    

Z    Y i y

Fl       

J'.       :LLJ   
g  

n

i 5
a 3= 

3 C     6
W op w-  a e a

Z     e oas ` m   s
w  a

S : J^ g

J C°  o O C
U

I

i

0

V '     
0 M

y  

U

o

o

m

CC Zo.
QI N .

I

WI
KO

WHxI V     
W

i

i w

3
j_ 
i

m

II

I

i— I,  ___.

I
Q

498



viNao nv' doaHltn

mn+33 R+ a eivw, wo, o u5inp 5wap' t      .       
aa doaHld ozs

gWO' I Y I 2It M i    °  d 

dO Hlt NNt/ S     --     --  —  -   --_-       L
a      Qtl

Niaiine sNouvnai3aoiaai a g 

L v'  , a,   

m,     2 . i,'a;

z?-`;   z`     z'-     P;
0 0,     o;  
J   J•     J,      

g
m Q .       -.,  m    

a
m        

g

Z Z Z..   H  s.

p p.   p  Z i

4._    '   j
k

G.       i _    Q Z S: 

r 5
a -.a    : a

f— Z  ' S'

ij d.. ' k        jl j'.   Q    r 
r  6 a :

CL
i ; . ""  

a''.   W, t   Y  y:

I  _ O O      O.   w      .,:_,  i,  ^._,

m '.     w    w w'..
X X      X.
w:    w f wi

M ;   k;      ,   
m j  ;  s

p w p

s
L

0.    I

a `I
c

I
I..__._ Q

4 1.

A      

5  
d  '-

y $ 
t :.

1 d, 7      .,     
W  :`  

W . ff : . s

4 i
3

34 s   q  5
O ,       `U     '_       . __.'_       

Z

p

4 J '

1Ii F
tr`,    ,..  

W      "...
es .,

y.:    .  

x  

a

x%:  

d     'i

i°   

j      '
t

Iy O
E• i

i

vt +     U;      

F'..     

1           Z_     

O.    i-
3 J.,      

j
O.      

k

i j z      i j
o,    

i
i  -

W
F r E

w

I

I

y j X
w

t_ _          e3

i:

R

f
r

s

Q'

499



viNao nvo' doaHitn

a ww• a'° fi a""       •      

42! d021H1t7- I OZ4 L N
gwo[ w m

d02iHl d̀ I NNt/ S      -     - -   Q
z Niaiine sNoiivnai3 aoia3i       a  €

d ,.,. : x. o ,.:... ro m.,.,, ..,.,,,  ., .,,. n-, a.>   ,,,,,    n 3,".

l+ 0 !¢,   t'' ;  ; f,   z,'  `°°    l' .` ?       t  ; o;
s

N       N'    N: YI :   
j Z"       Z.:       i'     Z."_      

p-  p',-     g s 1J'.-   J.^ J..,     i

2

o

i

k.   
m.   Q .       _...-.. p.     T...__.   ,n

y

i W g
L..._     Z.    Z Z h  a I

f      O,       C3 O'' 2 n. 

Ai       
M 0  `      

@ §   

sg
i            J      Q a Y 9

I---    W w iJ g    

d.'      i d'      W  '. i     € ' .

p o w       a, n  ,
w w w
H=    F-       

w-:    w,    W.
i

II i  '    S f-       S

t   ,..  ,.    

0.   p.    
Z'.  

6      
r

m      .

F

g        
k

m.     ,          .   I 3 ,   C

F         n Q'  
i :   

i
i

ak.   
I e Y Z     i1

u  ( Wj   a . s

Q:,   1 J- s ' i
j Z      a'   a

f  `  .    .,   

U ._.....__   _..- rry .._._._.      .   d.   

f   *  €
W      .,. Q     ' lJ

z

1
J

r,  
r  ...

i

i   '    .      l F

I i

C           .

tD
I

3t

i 1
j

1{      ..   

t     

vt : v f Gri 1'  ; U       t:.       ,
s.    

ir
e  ,,    j

N...       
E

in   '^-'   '_"'---- n.

Z'      I

J.
t

r      

Q .._ ..  i

m g

z'
o

1
a I

r_

u w i     .  ,

w
t

i w

r 7 t     ,,.     w
a r

r.,'
wEs

T'.`  ,   ;?' 

U    — -    ?--+- —     '       

t'( 
ybjt       - f-_ y,W

s;  Y'     c:      

P       
fi       ' 

E'"      $ 
I   vrr"       J         

I i

f   

f
y..__.__       ..

I
r,:       

m  ..{  
y

s

f::

f

il—     .       
R

e,.

Q

500



vwao nvo' doaHiv       

nw inaiei, awwo. o+ si: swawi
s o M

aa doaHlv ozs  t      ,
SWO' IE W 2IdM

w  

d

d02 Hlt NNt S E N, a„ e 5NOI1VA3l3iJ012131X3       a g $  

Q! i Q 1 l' i  f Z''  m,     
Y,  x 0'i

Z`   Z      Zr1

J

I
y S

C Q,     
I    .       

Q .       I

J:     
t

s

p'.     e,      . :
Q .__      —.-  -....      0    LZ       -      - r:

r_      yl    r F   _
i.  

W i y,
4

O.  S".' Q.'.,      
F-  

Z a      

Q F
Q Z q-,

pS -       q

w. s g 3s  r  ' —

w
a , ,   H   '         3  

j  ,,     . 
a

s'.       .  
i

W        
m 

S    -

r. a.
a       

w "      , _  ."  ,..
W W

i
X X,

N;    
W Wj 3

i

I    .       N   ______    ..,  .     
o,       r—      

w',    I--      0 3
Z

m

s

t  
w

n
i

f :,    a # s   ;

r__:     `   a            :y Z
l Wa     , s

w   .   - a

z   

i k a 5  J T     _

Z  "              n
W

s 3
g

k

s 

O, w m   < <
t

Es J..^w

w : 1 7M    .'_'      '__"' '     '.   

U ... 
f'___ :  ..-  .-.-.  V i.-.__ J .     .. 3: y. U±.i

i

I

3;       ....   

I

u-'__._ 

I

r

V     ..   
Q M

ii:,

I tite.  '   1'  Uj i

2:     j---"

I i.; 3
Q `.._     

t m

Ii
Zsr;       
O

N       —
E

W
F--       

j; w
r

i I f
i

1

O

I1 .
i 

w

xi i r w
t .   .

U l .
a    ` t    '.

a.   

i r
f ;

r

m   ;      

Q

501



vwao nvo' doaHlFn
a s

Tels3 leay le zawwo a
ufiisap fiuipeal      °

f.' rc

f o      .

aa doaHlv ozs     
b     

H W O' IF Y I 2IF M m    , s o0
d02 Hlb' NNb' S a.. 3.      ,..,    ;  =   Q

SlIVl3  s  8

np
o w<     _     x.    3w

Q3 
a

3
g       j      O

n
s d   a s

a      =_ m         €  

o/     O f       s V   _    a

ll        ` o        n

a  
4     iw    e   £ 9 4'\ 

Cj
bB.  lY Ta     gtl3 mg$       Pr     

w

v     3 3       : i     -.4

Q S s a  `
w

s    _     [-  J
i.

w d: 
3 3.  ym w a

f/ JW
ax'   

G HI3.¢.       b C. 3   dr 0 1£    C73

6     >

J 3 es o            `  zp          s3 Q
f`

oQ
dn»».         

x t m      y s    
3g   

s        .    9i    .
n/`      es:  

6eS 

Q q0     _            sg$ -  m N
8F  C  V     '       a

3  €;_     E         d
Z

lL
Z

OO    
e  

y    . a

g 

m6       3 c J

a c
H   a-       <  c wHo v       m

C   pf y
m

s  , zs @     y   '-  
W 4 i '»  , w I

a @. g  ;  e     a aM m      (..,"\/\/    n  
o' a m WI

1      3 \ /    
J  S a  J LL  35. t^ q Ui a

i= 3Q T v .    @ s= i    3     _   ( n     --      3 e '    

Qr0
3a

s U   . 1

f i

g    ` p.

3  = 
C'=; d    

b o

W. F 1<. seW=     

E d M1Sy,        o@ o ca i. m      
b.  

e."  

V=       ne s U' 9 2

O          `
r     

OOOOOGO C7   _ m  UQ    ,. i u  , zi. a i QH 4u >
3    o r C o

i        co   _ '_  _  " _      ia§   ._        '.-   VJ    aa W       
o

y
a

y"

3
Fo

W

W l   - I3E  ' a  

i3 
ya   -       €  

o z: d P3:.. s wb
a s 9o m Y    3:.. 0  

i m 3 4 8€     c'   F o

e go   '„     ( i oeo s  ' s ow m' e    -   "_   "      -       -     -    e   e   -      e 
e       = ap; 5

w` s   w g=- 4ew w s=     e_    r s.. pa
e4 4   j Q a  " 3.

N'.
3

s, 

vY ¢ s o68 3 Y' 
e y. mso     i'"    

g m   4   ' o o       . `       8><< sy`=       H
j    

3

s a a Z a 3. s 3er:' ,-,      
a   " s       n a   -   E      ' z ay sgz:'$.       g   p a.

F y g. s 3= o     ey'£  i ( 7 w       ; w ff:   '
r

n=    

x^ s= ', a_       aW Z  ffi. a       
1      '     8       C

o"

E>
e   "&   S 5  3   b 5 E'   s' S E`       

Zs            r.= e zm_ e. o_,,, r am8  
W y e m e az " ea sa a   _   _     ' s"asa o U_'       ,.  : s as

j
W a

gws J
W

Z
O

a: V            ZI os O Q
i       2 se:    z '   '  '      >     ,       Q a  O

u qu  V
Y O        Y

t

LL

o g   S ll.       
2N

3 F-     Q   
3`_ 

Z

oY . 
F N   -  ° zaw 7. i,.    6

g. e   - 2    -      Y¢ z'  W
Z

o      '  '

m

z¢      3   
F Wi O^^' sp J

7

9 ' " g Oa z     ; WI ap'„' s 
w,    m    m.,      i n

Z     •       Z   _     

JIJ
y    in;      i

Qa
g:             g,           w  w
w_      , w:    a s-.  

z 5   
a

a   c.      

z       .,,...<.

oa  

me" s

F nN h

Y     4s E m        m u=    ' 3f  J
d`   im    :     `' @e

3 S        3 G
G       

9 3 S    ¢                 := 3e-: biy    ' F 3 3r      
a3 7 Y a:     _-   ' g_   W€.     

5 Ye
u     ,  

q

3a   : 8    et m'. we   '  

lY        
a£      ro€§   F- n       =?

5^<<      5

d, a

y p;        r  m ` a     `  
k  ,    

s        _  d,   o       

s
a

s a Q s
i       

o
a nz :       =      ¢        s s Z a       €  

aa 6

Q       w W Q, W    

m     ;       

iw w
ai
w    W W j a;    

W
m

R I gi arn u       e,  v     y

o o o I IJ       -       J J W

a

I\  U o  `

n

o      .   al.
z z z a
W o w e

Y

2-   2I 2 dy-    a     Z'-       QI

w i   w

y

w w

F
u.  - s3..  

H            
o_,      ,      

H a F- 
o,

a, ywo
Z:

m v.- Cv           rn o

o-,  
y sa e= o= <   . wo ab

J
s

c

g '^ -  "       w s F    ;:,  ,    s,       45     ; -       e

a, o_\ g  ;£
w

p O`
sty o a F-€

a    $ ;
j a      

m`      
g   .      __    

y
i

g d
g €       c=    

a W W
e

In        ^
o r

Un W

g   )       
I

a C7 e     
w F

j   , z'   w

u          ;             w'      Q     -         z

Z OI           Z s c     

O J W w'   U

U m 1_    q
g

W

w 

o f\       H
I

NI S Y Y 
b   QI

d. a  
LL. C V"     

s        _     .   ` i
oT      .      

Z_      VIJ'-     a W=

a    " aa ,  O O   

Im     - m c'      n•  a

9 wa.»   . o.   s

j
c)       „ ,^  __` 

I     

F -  Y
i a 3 "      

6    :       
n";\:

aW s  -   `      $    -       a: aWe7  =,  
y   . 

s= a
3  a. a =€  `      s

o $ 07. 0  ._      a;    dv  s im e : i!\\,a  m= d Fa  ;       s 3m  s s g e„= 
e

a

Ia         
s

g  
s£      _£   '       

j,. 
Q s x R, N`      

a i _ v a a  s      . w m a o n a 3 I   , VAA;
a     =e eK         a

w w      .   
W

w A
a

a z    z
e    ,   m

W W W F U,
3 o Q r o     :'  ZI

Z

o o      

o gr i
w=   o     =     o?

o:   '  9::

s F        

w;=

O s.     pw O   
O   

I,    ml„   I„

502



u..,.._,

VIN2iOdIlVO' d021H1' dl a

s    B
w, x..,,,.. m.,......., a

n ie aie„ wwo, o bi as Pe, 

Oa d02lH1Vl OlSL o    

gL IO' I Y I 2IF M
a0

d0? Hl d̀ I NNt S ps, di3a a Q

L        
o. s s  ui we

1 Jjo o a
L

y 
u 4          $      

J

b z fi     . £    .      I`ao w

1

I
aW

l
zi

Q e

YU
aa

s
w

o/     

IQ

w

3, Z a
r l y Z,a

lo
W y

Y          sg   J   WJ
I       

J. I
4y

E                
w Q   l w2        -.  Q   J y

N2 3 .    .      .]  3
5    : i  90 n

o y V e      l'    I

5 3 o g   
o

o      „   

O

E-    "      

g k;       
9 z...  .     I

ga „         o Y   :s     ;

se

oi $ m  - em   w         o ,     q
a   7 ood

w

o  ,

I/

e  w osa      (/   I   
5,

I. 1 ;

a
a     .  

ek

I    

o Z I i       
d

r a    ---
@„ ZI      '{          ' 

I
S   

Y i i
r     .

n

Z.
o     """."/-...   

ZIa Yo
3„ 0,... y

1 i<     l o:i  , aU N

m U  
yI O n

rn. L2 33z  

i
p i i

o.'.      

e  

I e.   +   

N I i 8i3
L L     _         y

s
i

g i Is I      
5

a 8

I 1d

I I
z aa         le

g
W

wW
I y€

V
y'-; 

3

Q Z
q,     

I m

U`     L I
D

I
Z Z

yh        
I`   

w ti

i

3y\      „\     
H H I A 3

k l     '   a o

a^      3°     W

i gsw k 3

a  

Z
a

o

V a      mg£    
w

i

e` xd` S J   • `   I
G\

5 u

3d g4w 4 o-  
g

r9 i U  o- ai

3 aazs 3 WL"

N N N

503



8  - 

e wop e' day e7
w i a ie v o y a: aa s v i      >  peoa do 4lel OZSI
gY IO' IF Ỳ I 2I`d 1A s/ r

A 

o S3112 3dO IdII NNt/ S w       ""'.'"'";' '_.`'          

ro-

d

Nb' ld 3d' d'JSOMd' 1 AHVNIWIl32Jd a  

uN 1! Y>+Y P I

s asve ms ma    

f
tt

z

C  r

a           °  s

o
w          

a

wA- \ I     
y

o OF
Q LL

WK

Z1133HS 33S 3NIlHOltlW   ..._  .

I_

I

I

I
I
I

I

I
i",    

I

I I

i I

g I
Y I

I I
I

g               

i I I
I

I Z I

I I

I

m
I

I

I
I

I
I

3      I  

S 3 I  =

I W        
w

i

3 0      i
SS Y    '_    

I
I _      ,    i

x '    i i

i

w

3

L

a I

3

I

Jt t; t' .     : t=.; t      '':,- f'=

E,(, E E-.      .,
7`.J.-„.

r:,    : G' Yd K: t': G";   " ( r e?" J t"-(,.    
3..;.. t,.    

i

504



8   

z
B, w iBa' w    

n re a w,,,.. a b, a a,      ..
m. eo da e

o

cw flY IO' IE W 2I dAA       «       
P a 43 l Oa4l

J

o S3112J3d02id ll3NNb S w°      

Mild 3dlMJSaMl7 ATJVNIWil321d       ; g 

nW l! 4+ Y M PwI

u vaxevoaeyy ranolS MN

N

y

6

F W
F

r
y  _ 

n.     _      c a

Q C S= 
y

W W
w

r=ii

2

i q o

wz

I
I
I

I I

I

a      g
I

g3   
I

y      

I

E

g           
a

I

I
i
I

t.. :   ,: 9 c c<•: ,   c  r c .      

i.:

ma    
a:.... 

w
y

o

0

O    i I 

a           

I

I

O,.  . .:,: .    —   

I
Q

I
I I

I

g I

I

g z I      E LL

I14 p

m I
I

I . a I
I

o
I

I
I

I

L1133H533S3NIlHO1VW     

505



S

s
eiwoy e' pe-    

n ie, a i. v w o w us., a s. 

gL IO' IF YQ 2IFfM      • 
peoa do 4lel OzeL

y.        

w c

S3112 3dOZld ll3NNb' S
g  

w       .

u 3e;;„ d

Mfld 3dtl SONtlI AUtlNIWll321d       ;  

a

u»l!4yvM P+ f
av u3eooecY8 i^ ol5 MN    N

N

O
F

F
r.       

5      w

c: 
a ax o

i

1

o W i
o

Q cn      w

41133HS33S 3NIlH 1VW

S_—_.      _

I   

I

I
i

I   `      
I

I   i

Y Y

i      sY i

I           j

I N

W
I S

Z

i oJ

J m

w  I
N  ;   '    I

W   wNW I
y

w

I
C a

U      a

Q    i I
i

I
O.

j   '      € 3
F

z I

I

I Y  
I

c c     c

7      `"    i .    7 S

gg
n

I
F J

I

F_,,     :. C 7e: f-;  f.      >' ti:

i'•.    : C= a'J F_; 4 ::       ;.,. (
c     ; Es,... C n

h

F: .<   : f'" N+,-     

i

d

506



a eiwoNle' da Ael
wnei ai i ,, s, a v t ar>.°"       peoa da4lel OdSL
gWO' IF Ẁ IF M       

S3112i3dOZld ll3NNb' S
d I

Ntlld3dM'JSONb' lA2MNIWll3iJd       ; g 

a

u^u 1FY„ Y admoP'[
u ea3V8 i 15 MN

FN

O
N

1 I
g

I    

a g
a      _    e  

a

Q
s  a

z W w
o

N
O

U I

w
I LLw

51133HS 33S 3NIlH 1VW

9
T    ____—_      t__._—    —_——__      —

I
m

I         i

I
Z

I         
I      =  

a  

m

I
W          

w 
I

w

N            

i d

I

i i

L   :.
o

I tr;

A

o r.:

o

tM  }      I

Ti

i           3
i       I

oa i

p

j
i m

t.;

t

i I
t.;

i   '    

1133HS 33S 3NIlHOlVW

507



nn re, a ie v w, c:. a s, i       ^,^.
a e woN e' daiper7

gy O 7FrW I rM      ':       peoada4lelOZS6

S3112i3dOZld l3NNt/ S
a    '     

uoh 3

Ntlld 3dtl SpNVI ANVNIWIl3ild
a I

5 !

u t' l qa y ada. pwj
u g+ 3vc+ ois, aa

r-

n
I--      

a    -

iJ

I:

f              
Q C   a_

z x     
4                  

Wg  !  3    d E 3ii333333 aa 3333
a a H

9 9 9       44 4 9 94   § 993 i i     

i   —   
r

i i i       !     
s      J

J                 
y          a. 3    !    g3-,! R     i
A 

C$  

8        ! 

C  

g $  i S1 2 9      

9     
a 0: a o. eo 0 0 o 3 0 0 0

e . 

o 0 0

oQ d  4 r  ''` '     
e c o

o o

jt'      
Y.

J

Z

z o

3
m

o O

Y

g      g       I O     
Y

I

u

g-     
O O'J^ a- 0," IO

s

4

W
t.,'..

a,

a

c  .

F:'         

F;
i   ----------------    --------- fi—,---    -----    ''—

41133HS 33S 3NIlHOltlW
l,."  .  -

508



a a      e ad  ,     d» ao, r o, e s aoa., AL 
a

rvry  ..  

ro

go .,. 
e.""     -_.. i3aNsaano      

SdWOS$ AV) I VIII avoa aoaHitii ozs  

o  = a6o  a Ww=   _

Q       -  w  w a
w  wo pw

0 0     __ - N Qo>        p"'  -= FW3p-----     wp

o
a

om  = ao °;  w E E E p

W   
ma= aao p

a sm s' wwLLLL., a° a 0000000
wa

r ere mP

Q mmowww x E Eaaaa 5a a

I V 
I i-     -- --    Z r

J-----    

I
i I I

Qj i     I
o_

z

o

i Q I
Q i            m

Z i      z i
J    

QUo II I i g sQ  v II  ,    I  o               

Q     I       I II      
r'       9         
N i ' m

o, ', i g
a

iZ Ili¢  .    _.  
a

J ai ';',---     I       $    o ° s3
W   _ 

o6s - 
y_    w       ,   . 

a      <
a w o

p
a    "       "   _    ¢   a

i    
W

p

p

Q$    w ' 6   $ ' 3u  ` 3
w   G w 3

x i       .        ;            

oZ LL j I          ,

W

l z
t      I

r:. .Q r  '

i

J a 1 I I F

i I r

O  oi  f     _       w   I
V F z I z     ,,  f i i

i'
r 

I       
a

I     !

x

m

O I
o     ---    --       '

m.  
o 0I    ,   Q

i    ,    I
w

I          J

I 
L'  T• --

I

i

C'v w o

LL  =  F  --       oo  -
3 "

p
a b   _   ¢      °   -     

gow ap   -  o=  w wE sN  =     owowQ
a      '      wo  - sw` o=
a 3 g w° 6°   - -       _       -  _    -     -

m S mrc
a

wW  -      ` -     
3       '    o

G w aa io`m a$ LLw wQ..   o ->     o z       
p

wm o" o     -  - 
rc h i  :

z  _       o'" rc       _  -   
op°    6=° 03

z3  aa x z` ss
a,  rog o 

e< W p      __ 8 _  5E°°  -
a gE. Now    ' 3° ww

SI   - ry = Oo o    & w  --        g& o       -- 
z v„   - o=_     o Q       -            Wo° wW -

F'
o m53a a_ "^_ 5       

Ys oLL  _ p' o o
z           3 „

3      3, aa m      -
a ¢ a      _  -    
w  v
z

o  <   Eao a ,»< yo  saa _ w o .  a> a y_ w a y , as <. o 

wr7 v  ._         a      c .       

N31M

509



A a     ,   

w evao,,. don., o y, o aw. . e

s e

w     . wv   .    --   SNOILaNO' JNI151X30NVANVON( 109
r

m

avwro ava3rtivirv3i rvisn N

w  S$ AY 9WI   „„
w,«, a,.,.,,,,   

avoadoaHlv ozs  o

a  a 

3ca

as
x 

4       c
d  :..

g y      SC m B

Z g R      
y} p w W W

o     € I y 

8% s   $ E R

8 .  ...     

I ii ti
i i I

I   I   ' go

I  ;--+.    _—_—'—_—_—'       

J

ww,     e. as

I
I

e

I i I Y SI'

i
I    

i      ;   
U

i       
z m

I
I
i

I I  ' 
I J

I I
i         

I i
II

s

II         g
I I co

a

a
I h h<

o w

I

I   i  ia3ais a

Ii 
g   ' s' r  .wrw. e. z .. a,,. as

i i         o cc i    °  1

U •

i''      wo m J
w  Q  I8 q I o  ao

x

y Q N

II$` I'   

U •       

yn
1 i' 

Z
O  

I

d Ii   o
U  

LL      I  a

I    

F¢
I I

ly'       
al

p  s

I   3r
I       ' .',

04

I
I., {! ',  „      

iI   ,       y t

I I

g' I

4   ---•----  

L_.---------•--- x,` i ro,: w: o'=- T

i
somWp<   

i 3,°

510



w o_..    
ao, r u...    e d„. o d

r 1( tOAV11N3W35tl30NV l3Jtltld
r¢       

m

evw l3'Jtive 3n tvirv3i n s3n
u E

a; n w SdWOS 8Al1 lYW   ,„„„,„„,,,   ovoaaoaHlvioas  r   

M <,

3 a      -  _   j°   
a

m      N apa aa a a
e a= m

4. y.. Y._ Y.     g
az      

z °

a° Q

S 8      w  o     
n

I a   <''<     
p¢ 

aw p
l< a    - w9 wdwawaw` a

wo o3o 0
o  G

II    .       I

o      . .__ .. . . ..       ,  .  ° zw_  . . . .

I     
i      

I  -——-- wxe. zrin M. eo, e. as

I

il    ,          I

I i  ;          
I I a

I I              
I sl I

i         i g N 8

i al

L_ I

I
I

I

a u. x m sa

I I r ____________  

i
i

I i i

i
i      __________       '___

wa__       

I I i al I I I

I     ,     I I I  '
m,  6  

I ' gli i I m

a
I I

N

I g i iI a

ji i I
I i I j il ; ;

I'
I

I
8 i     I

iaa us a      /   

g

1."''""'     '. AWlB, t5' y5y M. LO, Lt, LS       
I Ir"''""_""' w I I i  ' u

i • mI aa a

II^'    

o I
e

I

L  ------------ s
J  

m ---------------

T T

L rm r,ase
T_______

i

g' I I.    i  I  I I 3 il li inc i

3 5'       

I I q

w,_       
I" ''  ; 

ii  
III'"

k m

I
I a w

I

I III

I'!
E: i i

aE   W;  j j
kp ii '

SI    X i li SIS I igr_ ,     
I J       W8

I g   w
8            

g      w   i'm  —   ii m
s ,  a      

ii ii I
I'     '    

e §   
i

g   '     ' is€ R w i i 3 i

I

i

y  % I  

j '',    
a,  ' '

i       

s_

i i       --  j
se>w>  
p

ii i       a      

rc   i i       - a w
i 

I    ,;-, J---------------- L------ --------------------_
J_..--'--'---   xvzraew aa. ar   --'       

si_ as we_.: T_..----'
Mt' 11' OB' W ] OJ. BB' BM Y I

I I
I

I

I

I I

511



w e.:,   ..-.

d  -,--  «.,
d        ,    

ao,, o, o.. s    e e, o.

Nv d oal uo vin oziaou

v m

SdWOS$ A I dlll ovoa aoaiiivi ozs  

YYYY Y o

k

QAAr

s
8g8
Rj'

g

y  8       ..  `   3..  3
i¢_ '

Y 

g

6   
8    9g 9 R 

Z   I gt§ g W g`; a

gl
i

io
g a  na;; o

m,  

s`-

I i   '   a.     yj. g' 
W'', sl.  a^ eb

L--------------------

L----------=-------_,

e

B i
R3    

s

y"     I
r'____';  L_ 

o_____

I_'____

I
r r-

i
4   =

a=_      
I

Ia  R: 

o

a-     I

iV I
9

I

I p   _..... 
i g  

I M       '     N
m

I9 v       '   '
I

r

Z S ii7  
Io C   a      ,

Q
a     -

l—,    I s          m        -     
I

i33als a        I i o       .
x o;
Q     

r.'--------}`  -• ---------'---

P  '..       ,  .    

r

I

i,       g   r_  "__" _ "________ _.    _-_    

i ..
3 i

6

i

N f  ._     I
G       _ e 

a! 7— ---- 
n.—--.    ,

I I
s.,      

y   

x

f d  .
i

O 1    

f    ' anY

il      ......._ ...._ a 3 i    .._.   .... _      .
I Y         I Y

3e

I
m

i

i .    ...__— JI    
rXm II i

E:      
OS    2 

E t  

1 ,      ui

1

T  .' LL      
I          

o i

a',        '   '      
ot-    '      

I
o

a9 at 09
5 I

I

oi              

T

J         , ,

1

I   '
r  

N Fr—            I
o       I

i 0 Z 2      iI    
K       r I 

i0
Z S

i
w    « w            m  

U ii   32
s  a=.

i m d J I 6       r 1 g
3s.   `—   ".. . 

U._.      
i J

O    __     

r E I ' o
F

r,  
g —'  e , , .

3 I7  s
8 I W I (
a i

a  s I s

i

e   " 
ti   `  I       } z

I     

r--   }   
l—,      

1 c__   m i
J rr-     r -    

i Jg——

aT_"_'
V    '""-

512



w
a ao,, d o e s doa n. L o a

0          ,,  
a    .. -..   ^"_  

sb Ntlld3' JVNItltlQaNtl' JNIdVa`JAtltlNIWlt3tld
i.+   . s..,    , 3 wrv' Tl avd3niv t rlt53n N 

dde ' , w
BdIIUS$ AV pVW   ,„,„   avoa doaHlvi ozs  a     o

s  _

a;

Q g gc
a 3„ i    - .... 1

k
m      gg 9

k'

C 

a
o           1 3 9  Z

1
g  j d  ,

J
ien       

I

e   
g     `       

87    1

I
s       

W      '

B    . f

WIo Wa . i s r

Z

e

d

a-.._.._-    '  _...      

r         "      +/

I
i      

k   3 x s                

r 
a ti i    a'       

ti e3 ac4

e a      

W       
z     °  

L     ;               _    $  

I   :    

S
a

WI_
3 I

m pR
L

m

viri

s_.`  -      ,'._.._,_..

9..        

s

3 4C           
Y€     I,,     

I g    Y    ' 
1

T       

z     

W       `  

M

g        
w        

a
W   

m F

W    

n S

Y

Z

2
s

8

I I   '      -.:   .   .       Y8

U'   

1     

C

014"

a

II I
it

I I r1s10 o

I
I

I I

i
I I a      " opp

I   I I a< w

e$ wwj I             LL#
y

a=
i 4 wp pLL=

o' o 
I ea    '  ',,      

I< Y
I       ,   L  —      — i ams oI I I

i i       —  .--   ----  a 
s   _

6o 7 q<
I,      '

t     a     

a   ;,     . .    ...

I i I  ,    I
U

I . 
f.    .... 

I I i
i       i

m I
I       '  

x     •   j_      ;,     ..         .
j     , ao        j .     ,       LL        `= iI        I           

j; 
I e R   , i

i I

I I  '''  133tl1Sy
0'    

g     

I
Q8 i      j   / I a I

g
I      " 

i  /    

U g  

I r I   ''    .a
I I          ..• 

A %___'%  J__   .`,
14

R e'   
1II     ' I 

I   *       r    --        

I   
I

ti,%"            \^

4   _   ,+;,            
II

i 5W, ,  ,
i

K. v.
m, • 4

II i    ..      ... ;       .   
S

p

p 

m . i . ao    .. II         `  ^
I

I
hp h

w m
I

4
r

I ,      
I I I        y e

c

i s     •

I a         i

pI
i   g   sz9  jl\  

1 3

m

I II R I I lea

w

a ` S„,  I           Y'

I R i I -   ,     
w'.  w      E   Y

I I,      I vl
Y'   .: im   I              q

i  m o o,

g

1 ;:.».,
m„'        ? W.. I, '  _      9         i  ' I        o - ga    

k
R I"°       - 

i
S

o, 

I    
d

m 

mti ' o LL3 i i i

il
W e

m

R

I         
e i

a     a

li w  $ 

a

i
g.  i     i -    e €

I     ,,-   i     
I    d9 4I O

6 Y  ;    
4

a`.    .- o

a q R e
a

I
o „    -       

I

a         o     

I `"    
y,    

6      '

r /     „.-,   I'
3 q.C      

I R ,  

4 d 6    

a '       
r      

s  .  _       

L— z-__  - -•=     -      

s`  
0.

7 gr`--- — a      

I

513



a      . . ,..       re. nn ao r ooH oeo H. s aoa. n„ o., 

g
u    '    '

r          .. . .
rry    _ srox

NVldtl3lVMWtlO1SONVAlll11( IAtlVNIWll3tld      $
m

S 10$$ A11* IYIII odoa doaHivi ozs  b

f o e

a   _... L_ 
a so "           

i 3

3

G  & e 8           g 6

g ~
W     

3          
a

C\

y a 3        ,    

FY__      
W

w  e a R          a   w
s W y

W  €   a- a s             > : eg      4

9 s W"  z3€ '   ,    .        : y S3mi     ,'" 8,  .      

5   -    so:    Y8: a Y    :   g o6       i

Z—      a  €:   _      _

aY S.- Y m " y      

8

a   =
I r.    

sais m>  < s ffi 3 a>$ »> >> 

5 Wi
I j !  

i

I II I i

C li i

I-       
i    ,       I   - -- - -      

9i I
I

I i  '       I
o0

i i I   ,     w m    I LL3j ,  I       ;       
j zI , -      a

I  !       I m '',    _"  i         _ I
I             I I    

i I i

I i
I

i       I  a     ---- I

I        i    '    
I

s

0

I

i     j
Q

I  '

I II I
i m

li      '     I
i33ais a

I          _ _ 
I

i

LL
0 o-.._.._.._.._.._.._.  

I

I     '
a   ,    

LL_-.  '   
j   . I

i

i     '     
LL

i    ' ',  ' i
a,I

I i I 
I o i 4' 

J

I'
mi

I    
i ' '    

Q l j ' I i I iri,i i i ' I
i i j

i  '    i i I

I'  i I  
a i        o

I '    i i  .      s I
m i i

m

I I
i i  .  i I
i iI   

I      i i

i

J' 

i 1
i '      •   

I
X

y   

i i
w

i Ix i i         x

f,' 1'..  i i ...,-,. n I

m      

r—.   

I I    -...—._.... _..—,-!..——-.—,._. J.—    

Ew, x swue.'

I IEARl1IEN ANLE

I
i.—-:"'": z:

s_'""""

I  ` W 

i &    

i i
II i '..  

W

k I

514



A am.         a d do,,, o. o, s aod„. o a
r  -.e

E,. a ,       

e,.,   „       NVldSS3YJtlN fltlllVl tl3WW0

evw a ava 3n ivu 3a ry ts3n w '     
W

ShclOs$ AY IIIW avoadoaHlv ozs  

A 5S

Q

i   -
I

I.   I I

I

I     i i

I  --

Y Y-    Y    Y Y   - Y Y
i i i i i i       _ 

I

I            
r-      

z

I I z

i   I          w Q
m

rcz

I      `    

I

i i iI I     '       A.'    A  _  I   _ A A_   _ A I

I I I  
I

i

I
I

I
I
i

I   
I

i

i
m

p    

i I

I   ,       
j ia3ais o

I I
i       /-•-------

i      1
i

i
P ,  

a    ;

i
ii o ;    

lil
II I

f     z
4,   

Im
m

I

il I

II I
i    '     

IV    ' 
I

I          
I

I     =    .    __    

T .

J   I

r----- -- 
J

i

i

515



a a m.      _..,, a= 3md     d. ao„ r, o od s    d..•,. L, o d

p,.   a.      __  _ 

rrc ve. rvvisn    N ndr+oii nmm N ndl3a i
x    -,,...    ,,..,  arwra ava3n, vw3 n s3n L '    00 m

S IIIOS$ Atl) pWl avoadoaHlviozs  g  

s
6-    

F ,    

s

i

j     I

i

I   I i

li I

i
r-------------  7

I i ! i_  i
Iii  '       i i

I i   ,        o
i i I aZ I

i
I w m

II
I    '   

i          I I

I
I i   'I I

I i I i I

i I

II  I

j    ,     I I
i m I

I      ,    I II i II i33ais o I

I b    

I4        a    

I
a

I'    

I       —       

r— Ii

II  , i i 
Ij  i

a

II I

I

iI
s II 9

i  i 

m I
I m I
I    

I

i'     
I    '   Ii

I      
a

P   . .      ..

Ir

J

i
I i

i

I i I

516



n      a...       

s n o

d aoe, r oo H o. o H> s    oaH n o A g a
g      _.. mrr    ..,.  • a.      ....._  .-_..  NYId SS3' JV 3Sflj3tl

7
a• '  

mwi3 dsa3navir 3a Hi. s3n

m

7   ,
mz,; d

S S BA YII) avoadoaHlv oas  a

o_ ! 

R

Y    \\    

t

cya

i-       
r

ZI   -   

I I I

I I I

I   I

I  I II
i——____   '     

Ii

I I
Y-    Y_   Y_   Y Y Y_  _ Y  ---

I             

I   

i i
Z

I z

wI I
i>      m

r_  I
I          z

i     '          I

II        A_    A =     _ A.    A_._.. A.   I

f I I i

I

I
I II       I     . I           . ..       I

I
I   '     

I

II I Z
p

I
i i

i
i m

19,    

i

I

I   
I

i3aais o
I

I   
I   ,/-'----•---   '

a    '

r;       _     -     
i   , 

ii I       
i a i e i
io

II p I' I
I;

J
Q ili I I

II I

I i I I.. I

Z
o

I'I I 
o

I
I ;    

m
m

I I i

I
I' '   

I

i f i

i9

o '  _ 

r

T .

i :,   i

i           T--------     

i

517



ATTACHMENT "      "

Z
L I?___—__--    /   

O w N
Z  

w w

a U
i I` i" I I             N O Z

i    

a     V a
I a';   -   Ifi I        U  

Q
O

I  ::-.      '   t

LC  c7
I

I ' I! _     z  

I          Z   N
I       j

IN I     m

o

g
I       

I J W II,.

IJ

Qa

I
O

a O

lo H
J..

Q. J...      lO U—      

I',     W¢   Q

IJ I
O   F-

tn I        W J Z y I 0
a

I       " W a
W

I
z~   m w

i
I  - ---' 

c z w   
z U a
W Q N

I    ————      ———   
W 1 1   0 

I    
Z   
W

W W

Q Q

Q  ( V p

W   O

Q   r2

J
CiIZY LL3T__--___----       w

v  -    --       

I i,--       Z
I

i     , W W g  

i i s.

l a Q 
I   

v
N W w

a c°       

w Z
i ; I'--- -   i    

o

i       
a   -

i   ,     —    
1 o   -i

i
1

i Z
i I gI

J

r- 7
I Z

J I
I

U Q   -
U.  O

yLJ
I    

a v

LLIQ"   R' J O

la     I I Q a 0 O   -
I O Z Q W

I
I      W

J
Z I      

I I U W
W

t-   U o  -j Q
I O VWiC7   

V w        -
c Z

wII   N CV

0

518



Z

S LLLIL________       o
N

j W  n
Q   

W '

a ci

a'

I II  I a °    U

i       
J

Z o
I  '  T-

o

i il; f-- p n
N

N

i
I I

I
V V ` I m

II'          Z

I
2

i

I
O

I   li ca <       {       w o

I

II N

I         
J    

I O
II

I  I

I    -    
Q

I

a OI I y
Q i I

I      '       +   
I

I a

5     

i             i z   
o Zi i i

Q=
i i

r---  I W      E=a

i i       ' W Q N
L_-----

o 

o

z o 00

g W W
J Q Q
VN o

d

J
C. LLLIL_--____--       O O

cZ LL 
i z0

i W
c

w

I/ I     uWi

N

I i  Q        
I    0 ?

i; u
i ';       o

i J i i

I      o g
i

N

I        I J W
I  '

I I I I Q   _
I  ; I     --   O

o

g i I  I
J o

ii             Z      

i i o

o

Qi a

U o  :

i
r—    W w

i i       - o a o
o o

L-----       v",    N

I  ---------      
0

519



ATT 4CHMEIVT "   a  
u

Scannell Industrial Development Project -

Transportation Analysis

Prepared for:

De Novo Planning Group

City of Lathrop

September 9, 2021

s?- z

FEHR PEERS

1

520



Table of Contents

1. Introduction............................................................................................................................... 5

1. 1 Project Site Description......................................................................................................................................................5

1. 2 Study Description.................................................................................................................................................................S

2. Applicable Standards and Analysis Methodology................................................................. 9

2. 1 Applicable Policies and Standards.................................................................................................................................9

IntersectionOperations.....................................................................................................................................................9

DataCollection...................................................................................................................................................................10

TravelDemand Forecasting...........................................................................................................................................13

3. Existing and Existing Plus Project Conditions...................................................................... 14

3. 1 Existing Conditions.............................................................................................................................................................14

Existing Intersection Operations..................................................................................................................................14

3. 2 Project Trip Generation....................................................................................................................................................15

33 Project Trip Distribution...................................................................................................................................................16

3. 4 Existing Plus Project Conditions....................................................................................................................................16

Existing Plus Project Intersection Operations.........................................................................................................16

4. Cumulative Conditions Analysis............................................................................................ 20

4. 1 Cumulative No Project Conditions...............................................................................................................................21

Cumulative No Project Intersection Operations....................................................................................................21

4. 2 Cumulative Plus Project Conditions............................................................................................................................24

Cumulative Plus Project Intersection Operations..................................................................................................24

5. Additional Analysis................................................................................................................. 28

5. 1 General Plan Consistency................................................................................................................................................28

5. 2 Site Access Evaluation.......................................................................................................................................................28

Appendix A— Technical Calculations........................................................................................30

521



List of Figures

Figure1 — Project Study Area..........................................................................................................................................................7

Figure2— Project Site Plan............................................................................................................................................................... 8

Figure 3— Existing Peak Hour Turning Movements............................................................................................................12

Figure 5— Existing Plus Project Peak Hour Turning Movements...................................................................................18

Figure 6— Cumulative No Project Peak Hour Turning Movements..............................................................................23

Figure 7— Cumulative Plus Project Trip Distribution..........................................................................................................25

Figure 8— Cumulative Plus Project Turning Movements...................................................................................................26

List of Tables

Table 1: Intersection L. evel of Service( LOS) Criteria............................................................................................................10

Table 2: Intersection Operations— Existing Conditions......................................................................................................14

Table3: Project Trip Generation..................................................................................................................................................16

Table 4: Intersection Operations— Existing Plus Project Conditions.............................................................................19

Table 5: Intersection Operations— Cumulative No Project Conditions.......................................................................21

Table 6: Intersection Operations— Cumulative Plus Project Conditions.....................................................................24

Table 7: Intersection Operations— Cumulative Conditions with Improvements......................................................27

3

522



This page intentiona( ly( eft b( ank.

523



1.  Introduction

This study addresses the potential transportation impacts associated with the proposed Scannell Industrial

Development project located in the City of Lathrop. Intersection operations, site access, and consistency
with relevant policies are analyzed. This report documents the methodologies, inputs, and results of the
analysis.

1. 1 Project Site Description

The proposed project includes the development of three industrial buildings totaling 191, 160 square feet

located in the City of Lathrop. The project is located on the south side of Lathrop Road between McKinley
Avenue and D Street. Adjacent land uses to the north, south, east, and west are industrial. Figure 1

displays the location of the proposed project.

Access is proposed via one right in/ right out driveway on Lathrop Road and one driveway on D Street.
Figure 2 displays the project site plan and proposed access.

i.z Study Description

The study area is based on the proposed project' s location, site access, and expected trip generation,

distribution, and assignment. Traffic operations are analyzed at the following intersections:

1)   Lathrop Road/ I- 5 Southbound Ramps
2)   Lathrop Road/ I- 5 Northbound Ramps

3)   Lathrop Road/ D Street
4)   Lathrop Road/ SR 99 Southbound Ramps
5)   Lathrop Road/ SR 99 Northbound Ramps
6)   Lathrop Road/ Project Driveway( future intersection)

The study intersections are evaluated for the following four scenarios:

Existing Conditions— Analyzes operations as they exist today.

Existing Plus Project Conditions— Analyzes existing operations with the addition of trips

generated from the proposed project.

Cumulative No Project Conditions - Analyzes cumulative year volumes based on the City of

Lathrop Travel Demand Forecasting ( TDF) Model, assuming the project is developed with a retail
type development permitted under the current Service Commercial General Plan designation.

FEHR PEERS

524



Cumulative Plus Project Conditions— Analyzes cumulative year volumes, assuming the project

is developed with the proposed industrial project, rather than a retail type development analyzed
under Cumulative No Project Conditions.

E

525



G21Projects\062.00_LathropSct,P.     ...     , :,F    ;Ui3phics\:d   ..acoi;.rnad

4

oa

r.-,,fk    ,  A  .Z7Vl
Cf   ;      

Q
r

o       On
wn     

iQ
S.7

l%  fl.
OI}

o13

ri>

AvanAve

v 

vo.  FifrhSt

SeventhSt

Mckin{eyAve

rn

rO O

roQ
3>

rtl11tjUOtUt

r-v

0

AirportWy

0
v

0

0

s.

SpruceLn
UnionRd

r0
c
u,'
rp

D
GfD

TidewaterPk

i

O
o  Crest.,:_: :",Jc     

in
ir+      

O iOVdIC1 $t
o`

n   -- 
Q

t

I    Z O

526



N.120?1Projects\4Q6200_Lathrop_Scanneli_industriai_DeveiopmeiflGraphicsl%+JtF:gC2_sitepian.ai

T--  

1----'—"--'--- 

mi —T 1

1
Ir

r

U      

f,._-    v    „.—       ;-ir

V  —       

I  

fX—X
x-1

I
I

µ  '  

o
o

1         €      + m

PRI
i

Tk ., g.. i<   
y  & G      -    
I I  

f  . I i

Q
0

Iimm

ai.       ,     
w

v  

iE

61B^, e   .  
i

I         T   
I, fO

I
r -

6

p

t
gL^    I  - _  Wo     _     

I  

j
I   W     J    7';     

Tro     I= Zm

6    ;-    G.— 
r

j'!"     xzpij          >       o Iia     , '    ..iIIW.N 1.  n
i4      —IV    i:rt

N
p

m

c
aao.   

iao'            iao        ae so
Wtc ;y A ' I o

Eo     

zeT

t

r       _    ,     —
t;  ;       

o9a         f
IEu

r

9 _
r

a

73fdm

FQIi

m   .    .,... s
I    :     

n,WP        .    .    
w   '_nuv_    i    3

O

IC  p

m

P 

x      ..  -.

N— .  

N   /\  %—
MIL..,i_.„..„..,       

I
Fmm

mx
9gj C3jkr     a19

jI    .,   

FFICE
nwr

c        €  '.   

Y
s

m

a

r

ID

7
iU

r.'._"" 
2

Is

IiDSTREET
IL-  9

o
se          eo      s    —ss

D

Zc,      = Zpi.,   —  --   L_     io

mI     
Ao

NNWi        I
O9  !

I
I    T7.       '

g  
I

I

I pt      ..     .1nuiv

Q ..       T
m

1
sr- 

m

I
y

L
1--    

e

I
i'"'""__

a'"  "'.

L_      
1    _

I _—__—_.._-       _
U9] '._   

I   ----$s_,, 
I

Ym       
I'     

o=      _

T

i
jrv--------i--------T---------1--------1--------f-=

J

i  .
m
n

i  

I
N

iv   

N

527



2.  Applica.ble Standards and Analysis

Me hodology
This chapter describes applicable standards and methodology used to analyze the study intersections
described above.

Z. i Applicable Policies and Standards

Intersection Operations

The study intersections are analyzed using procedures and methodologies contained in the Highway

Capacity Manua(— 6 h Edition ( Transportation Research Board, 2016). These methodologies are applied

using Synchro 10 software which considers traffic volumes, lane configurations, signal timings, signal

coordination, and other pertinent parameters of intersection operations. Individual peak hour volumes,

peak hour factors, and heavy vehicle percentages are used for the study intersections.

Levet of Service Definition

The study intersections are analyzed using the concept of Level of Service ( LOS). LOS is a qualitative

measure of traffic operating conditions whereby a letter grade, from A ( the best) to F ( the worst), is

assigned. These grades represent the perspective of drivers and are an indication of the comfort and

convenience associated with driving. In general, LOS A represents free- flow conditions with no

congestion, and LOS F represents severe congestion and delay under stop- and- go conditions. For

signalized intersections and all way stop control intersections, LOS is based on the average delay

experienced by all vehicles passing through the intersection. For side- street stop controlled intersections,

LOS is based on the average delay experienced by all vehicles passing through the intersection and delay
experienced by vehicles making the worst- case movement at the intersection. Table 7 displays the delay
range associated with each LOS category for signalized and unsignalized intersections.

FEHR' PEERS

528



Operations with very low delay occurring with favorable traffic
A 10. 0 10. 0

signal progression and/ or short cycle lengths.

Operations with low delay occurring with good progression
B

and/ or short cycle lengths.      
10. 0 to 20. 0       > 10. 0 to 15. 0

Operations with average delays resulting from fair progression
C and/ or longer cycle lengths. Individual cycle failures begin to 20.0 to 35.0       > 15. 0 to 25. 0

appear.

Operations with longer delays due to a combination of

D unfavorable progression, long cycle lengths, or high V/ C ratios.      > 35. 0 to 55. 0       > 25. 0 to 35. 0

Many vehicles stop and individual cycle failures are noticeable.

Operations with high delay values indicating poor progression,

and long cycle lengths. Individual cycle failures are frequent
E 55. 0 to 80.0       > 35. 0 to 50. 0

occurrences. This is considered to be the limit of acceptable

delay.

Operations with delays unacceptable to most drivers occurring
F due to over- saturation, poor progression, or very long cycle 80.0 50.0

lengths.

Note: LOS = levei of service; V/ C ratio = volume- to- capacity ratio

Source: Transportation Research Board, 2016

Intersection Operations Standards

While level of service ( LOS) may no longer be used to identify significant transportation impacts in CEQA

documents for land use projects, this analysis includes a LOS analysis to determine if the proposed project
would result in unacceptable intersection operations at the study intersections. Based on policies identified
in the City of Lathrop General Plan and the Transportation Concept Reports for I- 5 and SR 99, LOS D or

better is considered acceptable at the SR 99 NB and SB Ramps/ Lathrop Road intersections and the I- 5 NB

and SB Ramps/ Lathrop Road intersections, and LOS C or better is considered acceptable at the Lathrop
Road/ D Street and Lathrop Road/ Project Driveway intersections.

Data Collection

Weekday AM and PM peak period traffic count data collected in Aprii 2018 for the City of Lathrop 2018
Traffic Monitoring Program was used to develop AM and PM peak hour intersection turning movement
counts at the I- 5 NB and SB Ramps/ Lathrop Road study intersections. Weekday AM and PM peak period
traffic count data collected in June 2021 was used to develop AM and PM peak hour intersection turning
movements for the SR 99 NB and SB Ramps/ Lathrop Road intersections and the Lathrop Road/ D Street

10

529



intersection. Figure 3 displays the existing intersection turning movement counts at the study
intersections.

FEHR j' PEERS

530



s

i  fl

n

Brunswick Rd
De Lirna Rd z

r,

c     I

Daisywood Dr
99

Dos Reis Rd
v

Q

O Q O Q
Lathrop ft,.;     

O Q

3. C

7`. s;  C ;       .  v O
j      (  N O

in   > I        p
i/   Q,     4j ui

l N O C

Thomsen Rd    ;              Kt t—
v

m

Tdl
Q

ij C tn

YV

9

E Louise Ave W Lauise Ave
N
O
C

N
O v

y

1. SB i- 5 Ramps/ W LaChrop Rd 2. NB I- 5 RampslW Lathrop Rd/ Lathrop Rd        3. DStllathrop Rd 4. N Main StlS6 SR99 RampslE Lathrop Rd

E
m  °    

N c VN

Vi 1 48 4

N  " 491( 312) 325( 329) o o   
8(    

419( 502)

r- 342( 222) F— 706( 473) 
43( 488)  

r 63 83r'         
r g    r  ( )

w amm Ra w am o aa ain o Re Lathm aa E am o Rd

389( 313)   47( 44)-           
10( 0)      T        

591( 703)—+      

62( 52)   
n rn

354( 698)—   
v o v n o

594( 598) y   o a m,    6( 1)-+   
M o  

67( 103)     n' o
E        n

m
o     

E

5. NB SR 99 Ramps/ E Lathrop Rd 6. Project DnvewaylLathrop Rd

Turn Lane O Study Intersection

U- Turn Project Site
zisc2so

r( ss)      Traffic Signal

E Lat ro Rtl

m Stop Sign
159( 323)     

409( 449),  

E       
AM( PM)   Peak Hour Traffic Volume

N N
M

Fic ure 3

Peak Hour Traffic Volumes and Lane Configurations -

Existing Conditions

531



Travel Demand Forecasting

The City of Lathrop Travel Demand Model ( TDM), which is a modified version of the San Joaquin Council

of Governments TDM, was used to develop cumulative year forecasts for the study intersections.

The City of Lathrop Base Year( 2020) TDM was recently updated for the River Islands project. Minor
modifications were more recently made based on on- going work Fehr& Peers is completing for the City

of Manteca General Plan Update. The City of Lathrop Cumulative Year TDM was recently updated for the

River Islands project and City of Manteca General Plan Update and incorporates cumulative year land use

assumptions for the City of Manteca, City of Lathrop, City of Ripon and surrounding unincorporated areas

of San Joaquin County. The TDF model was used to develop Cumulative No Project ( assuming a retail type

development consistent with the existing Service Commercial General Plan land use designation)

intersection turning movement forecasts. The retail development was then removed from the TDF and

project trips were added to develop Cumulative Plus Project forecasts.

The traffic forecasting adjustment procedure known as the" difference method" was used to develop

Cumulative Year AM and PM peak hour traffic forecasts. For a given intersection, this forecasting

procedure is calculated as follows for every movement at the study intersection:

Cumu( otive Year Forecast = Existing Vo( ume + ( Cumulative Vear TDF Model— Base Year TDF

Modef)

FEHR' PEERS

532



3.  E: isting and Existing Plus Project

Condi ions

This chapter presents the intersection operations analysis under existing conditions and existing plus

project conditions.

3. i Existing Conditions

Existing Intersection Operations

Table 2 displays the existing AM and PM peak hour operations at the study intersections. Technical
calculations are displayed in Appendix A.

AM 18 B
1.   I- 5 SB Ramps/ Lathrop Rd Signal

PM 17 B

2.   I- 5 NB Ramps/ Lathrop Rd Signal
AM 16 B

PM 19 B

AM 1 ( 15)     A( B)
3.   Lathrop Road/ D St SSSC

PM 1 ( 17)     A( C)

4.   SR 99 SB Ramps/ Lathrop Rd Signal
AM 15 B

PM 18 B

AM 12 B
S.   SR 99 NB Ramps/ Lathrop Rd Signal

PM 12 B

Notes:

SSSC = Side- Street Stop Control; LOS = Level of Service

For signalized intersections, average intersection delay is reported in seconds per vehicle for all approaches. For side-

street stop controlled intersections, average intersection delay and ( worst- case movement) are reported.
Source: Fehr& Peers, 2021

As displayed, all intersections operate acceptably during the AM and PM peak hours under existing
conditions. At Lathrop Road/ D Street, motorists making the northbound left turn experience the highest

delay of approximately 15 seconds during the AM peak hour and 17 seconds during the peak hour.

1

533



3. 2 Project Trip Generation

Project trips were estimated using trip rates published in the Institute of Transportation Engineers ( ITE)

Trip Generation Manua( 10t" Edition Supplement( 2020). The 10th Edition Supplement provides trip rates for

multiple industrial land uses. Because a specific tenant has not yet been identified, a blended trip rate

based on the potential land uses was used to calculated daily, AM and PM peak hour trips. The following
ITE land use categories are applicable to the proposed project and were used to develop the blended rate.

Industrial Park ( ITE 130)— An industrial park contains a number of industrial or related facilities

and is characterized by a mix of manufacturing, service, and warehouse facilities with a wide

variation in the proportion of each type of use from one location to another.

Warehousing ( ITE 1 SO)— A warehouse is primarily devoted to the storage of materials, but it may
also include office and maintenance areas.

High- Cube Transload and Short- Term Storage Warehouse( ITE 154)— A high- cube warehouse is a

building that typically has at least 200,000 gross square feet of floor area, has a ceiling height of

24 feet or more, and is used primarily for the storage and/ or consolidation of manufactured
goods prior to their distribution to retail locations or other warehouses. Transload facilities have a

primary function of consolidation and distribution of pallet loads for manufacturers, wholesalers,

or retailers. Short- term facilities are high- efficiency distribution facilities used for movement of

large volumes of freight with only short- term storage of products.

High- Cube Fulfillment Center Warehouse ( ITE 155)— A high- cube fulfillment center is similar to a

high- cube transload or short- term storage warehouse but is different in that it is typically used for
a significant storage function and direct distribution of ecommerce product to end users. These
facilities typically handle smaller packages and quantities than other types of high- cube
warehouses.

In addition to total vehicle trips, the 10th Edition Supplement provides heavy vehicle trip rates. Similar to

the total vehicle trip generation, a blended trip generation rate for heavy vehicles was used. Table 3
displays the trip generation for the Proposed Project.

FEHR' PEERS

534



Passenger
320 27 5 32 10 26 36

Vehicle

Industrial/ Warehouse

ITE 130, 150, 154, 155)       
19' 2

Heavy Vehicle 78 3 3 6 2 2 4

Total 398 30 8 38 12 28 40

Notes:

Trip generation is based on trip rates pubiished in Trip Generation Manuel 10th Edition Supp( ement( Institute of
Transportation Engineers, 2020).

Source: Fehr& Peers, 2021

3•3 Project Trip Distribution

Passenger vehicle (employee) trips were distributed throughout the study area based the location of

proposed access, existing directionai patterns and output from the Base Year TDM. City staff has indicated

all inbound and outbound heavy vehicles ( trucks) would be required to access the development via

McKinley Road to Lathrop Road and no trucks would be permitted on Lathrop Road west of McKinley
Avenue. Therefore, this analysis assumes no trucks would use Lathrop Road west of McKinley Avenue.

Review of Streetlight Data Origin- Destination data indicates that a very low percentage of truck trips with

an origin or destination in Lathrop take SR 99 to Lathrop Road; the majority of trips come directly from I-
5, I- 205, and SR 120. Therefore, no truck trips were assigned on Lathrop Road east of the project site.

Figure 4 displays the distribution of vehicle trips throughout the study area.

3•4 Existing Plus Project Conditions

Existing Plus Project Intersection Operations

As previously noted, access is proposed via one right in/ right out driveway on Lathrop Road and one
driveway on D Street. The D Street driveway would provide access to the Lathrop Road/ D Street
intersection, which is a full access intersection; therefore, it is anticipated that all westbound inbound and

outbound trips would to use this intersection.

Project trips were added to the study intersections based on the trip distribution displayed in Figure 4

and trip assignment described above. Figure 5 displays the intersection turning movements under
existing plus project conditions.

Table 4 displays the AM and PM peak hour intersection operations under existing plus project conditions.
Technical calculations are displayed in Appendix A.

1 E,

535



o i
N p N p O I

i--+ I,
V

V            

I
o o

o        

f

o
L ;

O     S" 1/! 
1 ilo           

o
0
O Q '',N     '     V1 N

o      •     o y poorw saa   Q',

c H ;

m U 
N ',

Id aa ennap l O'',
a,      a !

a'       

a i

o

u a nads

Q

I 21 uo u 
N :

o- X :
v      • W !

a
i

m

i
Q i

d
co

O
O s

I
n

rt3

d
vV

I

N

4t7C. l1  a"i

o

O

o
o      o

X   '-__'

0 0

Unron Parifrc RR a o
o._ ._.       __._

T

N

Q
a     -°

o     

p O
o s a     a,

w m    
0 0 E.  a i a i

a!\ f! a( ll4 W
v v

v
0 0 .

2 d

w-_-„    c cO.     , G ..

C'       et`_{'--.- s"""""<--^='. . .  ,   . ...-.. .  .  .   .     _      O O

S y uanas

0 0
S l!  Q Q

ov v

N
V V

L L

o any uony
o

y c c

v v

a a
o  " S      V1 t

F
O a a

o
J o o

CL ry o
o, e,>;.

f    n       ..         
o  i"'

o   o
a y1 Q+    o X      

o 0
x x r.,,

d oz. Noato.i

536



1

T_      

ZS

12 Q
i'  O

0a

X
De Lima Rd z Brunswick Rd

Daisya ood Dr
99

Das Reis Rd

O Q Q Q       '
t.athrap Rc9

O Q
VS

Y

g ''.,     T d S

St c ,  s
v

f O iv o
vs          

y
s    /       

3
f . c a

Thomsen Rd w        a
c

t.  v
ro

a

J,    W

V

K

y E Louise Ave W Louise Ave
J

JCi

1. SB I- 5 R mps/ W Lathrop Rd 2. NB I 5 RampslNl La[ hrop Rd/ Lathrop Rd 3, D St/ Lathrop Rd 4. N Main St/ SB SR 99 RampslE lathrop Rd

E
o

p

M

N v m  
N

m-
492( 3 5)  325( 333) o o   '

8    o m  

427( 505)
r- 343( 224)  708( 478)  

431( 488)   
N

NI
r i t         r- 22( 7)   1 y    63( 83)

wwm aa w amro aa amro Ra  am o Ro e amro ea

394( 314) y 47( 44)     
355( 706)—   Q      

593( 714)      

62( 52)-+
i 602( 600)   co-, m

n o n

E ^ c c    6( 1)   
W a 67( 105)-

y     o M
rc N o

N

5. NB SR 99 Ramps/ E Lathrop Rd 6. Project Driveway/ Lathrop Rd

Tum Lane Q Study Intersection

Zi8 Zsi     
U- Tum Project Site

r sa( ss)   aao soz> Traffic Signal
E Lathro Rd La hro RE

159( 326)      3, 0, 699,    
r m

m Stop Sign

aio asa, 
g      y 6.       AM( PM)   Peak Hour Traffic Volume

eO N
i M

l l. ir 

Peak Hour Traffic Volumes and Lane Configurations -

Existing Plus Project Conditions

537



AM 18 B 18 B

1.   I- 5 SB Ramps/ Lathrop Rd Signal
PM 17 B 17 B

AM 16 B 16 B

2.   I- 5 NB Ramps/ Lathrop Rd Signal
PM 19 B 19 B

3.   Lathrop Road/ D St SSSC
AM 1 ( 15)       A( B) 2 1 ( 15) A( C) z

PM 1 ( 17)       A( C) 1 ( 21) A( C)

AM 15 B 15 B

4.   SR 99 SB Ramps/ Lathrop Rd Signal
PM 18 B 18 B

AM 12 B 12 B

5.   SR 99 NB Ramps/ Lathrop Rd Signal
PM 12 B 12 B

AM 1 ( 10) A( A)

6.   Lathrop Road/ Project Driveway SSSC
PM

N/ A N/ A
1 ( 11) A( B)

Notes:

SSSC = Side- Street Stop Control; LOS = Level of Service

For signalized intersections, average intersection delay is reported in seconds per vehicle for all approaches.
For side- street stop controlled intersections, average intersection delay and ( worst- case movement) are
reported.

z Intersection LOS differs due to rounding.
Source: Fehr& Peers, 2021

As displayed, all intersections would operate acceptably with the addition of project trips. Intersection

delay would remain the same at all intersections except for Lathrop Road/ D Street. Motorists making a
northbound left turn would continue to experience the highest delay at this intersection. With the

addition of project trips, delay for this movement would increase by less than one second during the AM
peak hour and by approximately 4 seconds during the PM peak hour.

FEHR' PEERS

538



4.  Cumulative Condi ions Analysis

This chapter analyzes the impacts of the project under cumulative conditions. The analysis reflects long-

term development in the City of Lathrop, Manteca and other nearbyjurisdictions using the Cumulative

Year TDF model previously described. It is noted that under cumulative conditions, a significant amount of

growth is planned in Lathrop ( as the TDM assumes full build out of the City). As a result, forecasted AM
and PM peak hour volumes are high, particularly near I- 5. The City is currently in the process of updating
the General Plan, which will include an in depth evaluation of land uses and anticipated growth over the

next 20 years. The TDM will be updated with the General Plan effort and may result in different forecasts

along study intersections..

It is also noted, the Sharpe Depot project has not come to fruition and land use plans are unknown at this

time. Therefore, this analysis does not assume land use growth on the parcel directly north of the project

site. When a project is proposed on that parcel, additional analysis, particularly for the Lathrop Road/ D
Street intersection, should be completed.

The City of Lathrop has completed a Project Study Report ( PSR) for the Lathrop Road/ I- 5 interchange. A

partial cloverleaf is proposed. However, the PSR needs to be updated with Caltrans before completing
environmental and design documents. Although the project is still in early stages and is not fully funded,

interchange improvements are identified in the City' s Capital Improvement Plan ( PS 06- 16) and the City

has been collecting funds for interchange improvements through the Capital Facilities Fee Program.

Therefore, based on direction from City staff, the following interchange improvements are included in the

cumulative year analysis:

Lathrop Road/ I- 5 SB Ramps:
o Modify the southbound approach to include two left turn lanes and two right turn lanes
o Modify the eastbound approach to include three through lanes
o Modify the westbound approach to include two through lanes, one shared through/ right

turn lane, and one right turn lane

Lathrop Road/ I- 5 NB Ramps:
o Modify the northbound approach to include one left turn lane, one shared through/ left

turn lane, and two right turn lanes

o Modify the eastbound approach to include two left turn lanes and two through lanes
o Modify the westbound approach to include one through lane, one shared through/ right

turn lane, and one right turn lane

The following Synchro inputs were used for the cumulative year analysis at the Lathrop Road/ I- 5
interchange:

Coordinated signal timing

20

539



Custom phasing on the I- 5 SB off- ramp
Optimized signal timings and offsets for each cumulative scenario

4. 1 Cumulative No Project Conditions

Cumulative No Project Intersection Operations

The Cumulative Year TDF model was used to develop cumulative year intersection turning movement

forecasts. This scenario assumes a retail type development consistent with the existing Service

Commercial General Plan designation and an FAR of 0. 30 is constructed on the site. No improvements are

assumed at the study intersections under this scenario, except for the modifications to the Lathrop

Road/ I- 5 interchange previously described. All trips to the project site were assigned to the Lathrop
Road/ D Street intersection as there is no specific project and no proposed driveway locations to consider.

Figure 6 displays AM and PM peak hour turning movement and lane configurations at the study

intersections. Table 5 displays the AM and PM peak hour intersection operations. Technical calculations
are displayed in Appendix A.

1.   I- 5 SB Ramps/ Lathrop Rdz Signal
AM 18 B 47 D

PM 17 B 69 E

AM 16 B 55 D

2.   I- S NB Ramps/ Lathrop Rd Signal
PM 19 B 56 E

3.   Lathrop Road/ D St SSSC
AM 1 ( 15)       A( B) 31 (> 1000)     D( F)

PM 1 ( 17)       A( C)       426(> 1000)     F( F)

4.   SR 99 SB Ramps/ Lathrop Rd Signal
AM 15 B 29 C

PM 18 B 28 C

5.   SR 99 NB Ramps/ Lathrop Rd Signal
AM lZ B Z9 C

PM 12 B 35 D

N otes:

SSSC = Side- Street Stop Control; LOS = Level of Service

Bold indicates unacceptable operations.

For signalized intersections, average intersection delay is reported in seconds per vehicle for all approaches.
For side- street stop controlled intersections, average intersection delay and ( worst- case movement) are
reported.

z For cumulative no project conditions, intersection level of service and delay is reported using HCM 2000
methodology, as custom phasing cannot be analyzed using HCM 6' h Edition methodology.
Source: Fehr& Peers, 2021

FEHR PEERS

540



As displayed, the I- 5 NB and SB Ramps/ Lathrop Road intersections would operate unacceptably at LOS E

during the PM peak hour and Lathrop Road/ D Street would operate unacceptably at LOS F during the AM
and PM peak hour.

z

541



aX

Y
j

a `
i

C AtY.     

C k..:;

J  o O 
r

n

N
De Lirna Rd Brunswick Rd

t

9
Daisywood Dr

Dos Reis Rd 1

Lathrop Rd

in
L ;  

n. C

J S i c oa              t m o

f
y

3 3
Thornsen Rd    ;      > 

V    

y

Y

J cV
V

C

O

E Louise Ave W Louise Avea>

f N

z
w

i 58I- 5 RampslW Lathrop Rd l. NB I- 5 Ramps/ W Laihrop Rd/ Lathrop Rd 3. D StiLathrop Rd 4 M Main St/ SB SR 99 Ramps/ E Lathrop Rd

I

s s g ss    
m  „    

L
zo s m o  (

40

N   350( 230)     770( 490) u o n 1, 020( 1, 240)
1, 640(' 1: 830) 1     —

1, 520( 1, 420)

J    2, 710( 2, 780)      y     ,- izo iio> 1 ,    iso so>

W Lathro Rtl W Lathro0 RE la hro Rtl lathro RO E lathro Rtl

a,sao n, soo:  azo aso        
zo s>- a      "'    m

sso zio:     
T 

o 0 0 1, 280( 1, 640)—   o 0 0 o 0 0
1, 960( 2, 620)—   m

105 105       "' 1A

E c'    o 170( 130)- y c o <?

rc        N ci

c m
p   N N

a

E

5 NB SR 99 RampslE Lathrop Rd 6. Project Driveway/ Lathiop Rd

Tum Lane Q Study Intersection

2so sso      
U- Tum Projed Site

r so so>      Traffic Signal

E Lat ro Rd

zso sao>;      

m Stop Sign

sso sio>,  
g       

AM( PM)   Peak Hour Traffic Volume
E  

OCO
W

i i l I' .;

ua 

Peak Hour Traffic Volumes and Lane Configurations -

Cumulative No Project Conditions

542



4. 2 Cumulative Plus Project Conditions

Cumulative Pius Project intersection Operations

Trips associated with the retail development were removed from the study intersections and project trips

consistent with the trip generation displayed in Table 5 were added. The Cumulative Year TDF model was

used to determine cumulative plus project trip distribution which is displayed on Figure 7.

Figure 8 displays the intersection turning movements under cumulative plus project conditions. Table 6

presents the results of the cumulative plus project intersection operations analysis.

A M 47 D 40 D
1.   I- 5 SB Ramps/ Lathrop Rdz Signal

PM 69 E 48 D

AM 55 D 48 D
2.   I- 5 NB Ramps/ Lathrop Rd Signal

PM 56 E 55 D

3.   Lathrop Road/ D St SSSC
AM 31 (> 1000)    D( F)      3 ( 359)       A( F)

PM 426(> 1000)    F ( F)    20(> 1000)     C( F)

AM 29 C 29 C
4.   SR 99 SB Ramps/ Lathrop Rd Signal

PM 28 C 28 C

5.   SR 99 NB Ramps/ Lathrop Rd Signal
AM 29 C 29 C

PM 35 D 30 C

6.   Lathrop Road/ Project Driveway SSSC
AM

N/ A N/ A
0( 16) A( C)

PM 1 ( 21) A( C)

Notes:

SSSC = Side- Street Stop Control; LOS = Level of Service

For signalized intersections, average intersection delay is reported in seconds per vehicle for all approaches.

For side- street stop controlled intersections, average intersection delay and ( worst- case movement) are
reported.

z Intersection level of service and delay is reported using HCM 2000 methodology, as custom phasing cannot

be analyzed using HCM 6th Edition methodology.
Source: Fehr& Peers, 2021

As displayed, most intersections would operate acceptably under cumulative plus project conditions and

delay at all intersections would decrease or remain the same with the proposed project as the industrial
development would generate less trips than a retail type development permitted under the existing
Service Commercial land use designation.

24

543



o
eo o a o p I

o
y-

o V N I

N o o       o

O'    r
N

o r I
t rn'      o p

i ir o     S= 1eV1J
i

o          
I— o N i

o           o 0 o Q !N Y v1 N

o           o y poann sa  Q'
o

I

m j

Id aa enr, ap31 O',
a I

i
v

a ;
I

o

u a n ds i
p uoEu 

a i

I

ac

V '
o Q

o
y      

o

O

O

S'
7e p

Q

vV
r     

N

l(J, II. fOC. ittf
v

f6

0
S a

O

o

o      \      
X      -

O p

Union Parific RR o     _
o_o

v

7

O
s

Q     

o o p S O
o v v
o

w @ @
0 0 i  

O C

ant/ a ui W
o

v

rv__,___

a     

o 0

S y} uanaS Q    

S 4! Q Q

o v v

y     V V

L L

o a/ l/ UO/ f
o

o     a

o
o    t       

N o
a a

0

o o
a     ¢

4J CC       n O o        F

n v     -'      
o o

r
0 0         ^

O x     
N N     

o 0
X X

s s. a(ad 6GOZLN

544



a
i C r

ES S

Q
O

b
o>  

an

n
De Lima Rd a Brunswick Rd

v 99'
Daisywood Dr

Dos Reis Rd

O Q O Q
Lathrop iici

in 
Y

L 7.    d G

J 5;  C T.i

i O
a O

r
O

L N
r

Thomsen Rd    ;  5 v @
v v    

C Q

i Y
N

V

y E Louise Ave       W Louise Ave

N

L SR I 5 Ramps/ W I. a( hrop Rd 2. NB I 5 RainpslW Lathrop Rd/ Lathrop Rd 3. D St/ l.athrop Rd 4. N Main St/ SB SR 99 RampslE Lathrop Rd

E
O N p N O    
V OM.-       MM O  vm

N

351 223 o'?   - 20( 5)    
o o  ' 

50 45
rn  < v 490( 554)     

a y.  --tO o"'   1. 560( 1, 585)       t—. 030( 1, 148)

J   2 621( 2. 773)       
652( 1, 726)  

23( 15)   130( 80)
W athro Rd W athro ftd Lathro Rtl Lathro Rtl E Lathro Rtl

s, s s a, zi i>  szo s o a    ' f P1'   zo s      "    m T P'
y O O N 1, 33' I( 1788)—       1, 015(. 159) y

2, 070( 2,333)--       
5( 5)-+   + o 180( 141)     a`+

E
N O V

M O 1
p         

O

N

z

5. NB SR 99 Ramps/[ Lathrop Rd b. Project Driveway/ Lathrop Rd

Tum Lane O Study Intersection

zao sai      
U- Tum

Project Site

ir- 60( 60)   1, 575(' 1, 590) Traffic Signal
e amro Ra am o Ra

m Stop Sign
220( 364) y            1, 350( 1, 785) y          
sao ss,  

E     
zZ i.       AM( PM)   Peak Hour Traffic Volume

oo v
m

i

1' 1' V
f G  ,

Peak Hour Traffic Volumes and Lane Configurations -

Cumulative Plus Project Conditions

i

i

545



However, the Lathrop Road/ D Street intersection would continue to operate unacceptably under

cumulative plus project conditions. Motorists making a northbound left turn would continue to

experience the highest delay at this intersection.

Signa( Warrant Ana(ysis

Because the Lathrop Road/ D Street intersection would operate unacceptably under both cumulative
scenarios, we completed an AM and PM peak hour signal warrant analysis, consistent with the
methodologies in the 2014 CA MUTCD, to evaluate the need for installation of a traffic signal.

Results of this analysis indicate traffic volumes on the minor street would not satisfy the warrant for

installation of a traffic signal in the AM peak hour for either the cumulative no project or cumulative plus

project scenarios or PM peak hour for the cumulative plus project scenario. Volumes would satisfy the
warrant for installation of a traffic signal in the PM peak hour under the cumulative no project scenario.

However, a signal is recommended at this intersection due to high delay experienced on the minor

streets, need for left turning movements into and out of D Street, and heavy trucks associated with the

existing concrete facility and proposed project. It is recommended that the signal be installed with the
proposed project or the developer pay a fair- share for future installation of the traffic signal. Table 7
displays the results of intersection operations under cumulative conditions with installation of a traffic

signal.

r•     

1.   Lathrop Road SSSC/    AM 31 (> 1000)    D( F)      12 B 3 ( 359)      A( F) 9 A

D St Signalz PM 426(> 1000)    F( F)      23 C 20(> 1000)    C ( F) 9 A

Notes:

SSSC = Side- Street Stop Control; LOS = Level of Service

For signalized intersections, average intersection delay is reported in seconds per vehicle for all approaches. For side- street

stop controlled intersections, average intersection delay and ( worst- case movement) are reported.
z Intersection was analyzed as a signal under the" with improvements" scenarios

Source: Fehr& Peers, 2021

As displayed, the intersection would operate acceptably with installation of a traffic signal. However, this

intersection should be re- evaluated when land use information for the Sharpe Depot project are known to

determine if lane configuration or phasing modifications are necessary.

FEHR' PEERS

546



5. Additional Analysis

This chapter describes the additional analysis completed for the proposed project, including consistency
with the General Plan and a site access evaluation.

5. 1 General Plan Consistency

The City of Lathrop General Plan was reviewed to determine if the proposed development project would

result in any inconsistencies with adopted transportation related policies. The proposed warehouse

project is permitted under the existing Service Commercial General Plan land use designation. The City of

Lathrop General Plan ( adopted in 1991 and most recently amended in 2004) indicates the following
improvements on Lathrop Road:

Improve Lathrop Road to 4 traffic lanes between I- S and the Manteca city limits; provide railroad
separation structures.

Construct Class II Bike Lanes

These improvements have been completed since adopted of the General Plan and the proposed project

will not result in any inconsistencies with these improvements.

5. 2 Site Access Evaluation

As described in Chapter 3 and displayed in Figure 2, access is proposed via one right in/ right out

driveway on Lathrop Road and one driveway on D Street. Civil Sheets 7, 8 and 9 ( Mackay& Somps, April

2021) provide truck turning movements for semi- trailers ( WB- SO), fire trucks, and refuse trucks and

indicate the project would provide adequate emergency and truck access. However, it is noted that

because a tenant has not yet been identified, updated plans may be necessary to ensure adequate ingress

and egress for larger trucks is provided should larger trucks need to access the site.

As previously noted, Fehr& Peers completed an AM and PM peak hour signal warrant analysis consistent

with methodologies in the 2014 CA MUTCD for the Lathrop Road/ D Street intersection under cumulative

no project and cumulative plus project conditions. Results of this analysis indicate traffic volumes on the

minor street would not satisfy the warrant for installation of a traffic signal in the AM peak hour for both

scenarios or PM peak hour under the cumulative plus project scenario. Volumes would satisfy the warrant

for installation of a traffic signal in the PM peak hour under the cumulative no project scenario.

However, a signal is recommended at this intersection due to high delay experienced on the minor

streets, need for left turning movements into and out of D Street, and heavy trucks associated with the

existing concrete facility and proposed project. It is recommended that the signal be installed with the

proposed project or the developer pay a fair- share for future installation of the traffic signal.

547



Additionally, Civil Sheet 4 indicates that a portion of the existing sidewalk on D Street would be removed

to accommodate the proposed driveway. It is unclear how this sidewalk on the southern side of the

driveway approach would ultimately reconnect to provide adequate pedestrian access. If possible, this

sidewalk should connect to the sidewalk proposed on- site for ADA access, similar to the connection to the

sidewalk proposed to the north. This potential connection is displayed via the red dashed line below.

or     
lJr__      _^_ V_^ v

o

MONUMENT SIGN      '`    1
tr  -+

x

x-._..__

j.,  , 
f..

f x_.___.____.__
x.-______._.._.

tr, -.    x____._

k

27'
L 7

66'   --- W
W x

f.___.

x__

18 30'   18
E

W

BIKE PARKING, 1 r--==-===
F  .-;-

t

BREAK E J
AREA

M ii
23. 7'"•-- i

a.,      
r

4,       
1

3  
r

CONFOR TO     -.. _., w

o         
EX C& G

f--

i6  
m r       

w    ,,
e

ac
M,

a__...._      __,

40 r

t

x
1

I
i i

t ° t

1_-       1
m  __       

I i

FEHR' PEERS

548



Attachment 11

Scannell Properties Industrial Project

Final Initial Study / Mitigated Negative Declaration, dated September 9,

2021

Due to the size of this document, it has not been reproduced in the

staff report.  A copy of the Final IS/ MND is available for viewing and

download on the City' s website at https: J/ www. ci. lathrop. ca. us/ com-
dev/ pa e/ public- review- documents.  Individuals that are unable to

access the Final IS/ MND at the website listed above or would require a

computer disk or thumb drive containing a copy of the document
should contact Planning Staff at plannin @ci. lathrop. ca. us or ( 209) 941-

7290 to obtain a copy.

549



c ty of
ATTACHMENT "  Iz

u

RESPONSE TO COMMENTS
L rl`     

RESPONSE TO COMMENTS:

Written comments on the Scannell Properties Industrial Project during the 20- day Public Review
Period beginning on August 11, 2021 and ending on August 31, 2021.   The comments are

reproduced along with responses to those comments.  To assist in referencing comments and
responses, the following code system was used:

Each letter comment is lettered ( i. e., Comment A) and each comment within each letter

is numbered ( i. e. comment A- 1, comment A- 2).

These written responses have been prepared to preserve the Administrative Record as it relates
to the Scannell Properties Industrial Project.

The table below lists the written comments on the Scannell Properties Industrial Project that
were submitted to the City of Lathrop.   The assigned comment number,  comment date,

commenter, and affiliation, if presented in the comment or if representing a public agency, are
also listed.

Response

Code
Signatory Affiliation Date

A Maya I. Smith, Legal Assistant Adams Broadwell August 13, 2021

Joseph & Cardozo

B Adriana Lopez N/ A August 23, 2021( email)

C Ector Olivares, Program Manager, Catholic Charities,       August 31, 2021

Environmental Justice Program Diocese of Stockton

D Mary Meninga N/ A August 30, 2021

E Plan Review Team, Land Management Pacific Gas& Electric August 13, 2021

F Aldara Salinas, Environmental Health San Joaquin August 25, 2021

Specialist Environmental Health

Department

G Laurel Boyd, SJCOG, Inc.    San Joaquin Council of August 12, 2021

Governments

H Brian Clements, Director of Permit San Joaquin Valley Air August 31, 2021

Services Pollution Control

District

1  : _  

550



ADA3e IS ER4AL? Y' ELL JC SEPH& t. AF DtJZt

KEI IN. iCAfuAs H,J1EL
n FR: F£ II I• 2Ne4L LORPJR; ITyON

ct aisr raa a. cr, rxo

sneRnrtaE To a ic

dTIOR: hEIS e: T L?llC
JAVIEA, E. CASTRfl 526 CAPITfDL MALL, SUITE 350

TH6MASA. ENaLflW CO1 GATEiNd. Y Bt} ULE31AftD, SU3Y E 9QOt7 SACFLAMEN70, GA$ 5814- 4721
KELFLAI{ D. FEDERMAN SpU7lf SAN FRANCl5CO3 CA 94{ 520- 7037 TEL IFtB) 444- 8 U1

RAIDRE'NVJ., aRAF
FAX VB1N; 444- 8268

TANYA A. G LES EFtiIAN

KEFIDRAQ_ HAR'€ MANld'       TEL: 1860) 58G- I88-0
DARI' eN K. KEY 6kX. ( 8t+6; 586- 5{ I81

RACkAEL E. K63a
msmith adamsbroadwedi com

ASDAN P MAASFEALL

OtGounsei

nanwc s . sE M au' ust 13. '? f_}"?1
DpNIEL L CAR60ZJ

r: ar aa. ierea. m evnsmr:

ucensea: n sa,w.,ao

VLA E IAIL. A.` I?U.S. l AIL

l rk 11leissner Teresa Ta: gas
Comn unitz• Decelapuient Director Citz Glerk

Citc of Lath op i y of Lathrop
390 Tawne Centre Dri e 390 Tawne Centze Drive
Lath p C.A 953. 3( l Latlirop. CA 9 3:30
Eir il: u neissner' ci. lathrop. ca. us E nail: website cccr' ci. lathrop. ca. us

VL4 E:' L IL

Da id I iskanen. Cantiaci Planner

n. til: plannin consultant'? ci. lalEhrop. ca.us

Re: Request fvr 1 Iailecl Notiee of Actions and Hearin g- Scannell

Propei ties Ixidustrial Praject( GPA-2U- 139, REZ-20- 1 0 SPR-2tl-
1 1, TP 4f- 20- 142)

Dear IIIr. l•Ieissne. 4. arpas. and l Ir. Nisl anen.

Ve e wzitin on behalf of S n Jaaquin Residents far Responsible
Developnzent (" San Jaaquin Fiesidents') tc ret usst inailed notice of the availabilitt-

of anti ens iroruuental reti-iew docuxuent, prepared pursu3nt to the Galifornia
Environn ental Qualitg Act. rel ted to the Scannell Propez tie Indu ti i l Proj ct
GPA- 20- 139. REZ- 20- 140. SPR- 20- 141. TP111- 20- 14`Z) (" Praject"). p3apased by-

Scarxnell Praperties d. b. a. Scaruiell Properties# i. LLC(' pplicant"). as well as a

copy of#he environniental retiTiew docu zient when it is uiade available.

T'he Projec# propa e tb construct three industrial w rehouse buildings on an
1. 2- acre vacant site in the City of Lathrop. Euildin 1 calls fo appro iu7ateh
70. 20C1 square feet on 6. 5- acz:e site. building 2 c lis far appi o a atel' i, U

square feet on a u.: t3- xcre ite. and building 3 calls foi appro i nately 2, 5C 0 square
feet on a 3.( 3- acre ite. The total square faotage for all huildings would be 19. 16C}

square feet. The Praject vvauld include 2. 0 automobile p king spaces and 101
truck/ trailer p l ng spaces. loading areas. and a starm vater retention/ infiltration

s.- oo a

t}« cawA-

2  j      ,

551



u t l. ?0 1

hasin.: gpi oxuziatel 10° fl of the building square foota e sauld be dedicated to
office use v hile the reivainder v- ould be declicated to t ehouse u es. The Project

site is loc ed at 520 Lathx op Ro d. in the C' it- of I. throp. San Joaquin Counts.
C lifo nia l,, ssessor' s Pa cel Nuniber 198- t140- 14}.

San Jaaquin ResidenES is n unincorporated assc ciatian af individuals

nd labar organiz tions that n a,- be ad eisel affected b r# he pot.ential
iinpacts assaciated with P oject develapment. San Joaquin Residents include
the Int,ei xational$ rotherhood of Elect zcal Vorkers I.tical 9. Plumber c

te iYi#"itte s Lacal 42. Sheet 11Ieta1' ozkers Lac l lt. Spiinkler Fitters

Local 6G J. the District Cauncil of Ia•on vorkers and their inembers ancl. their

fainilies: and other individuals that live ancuar vork in the City- of La#hrvp and
S n Joaquin Count_y-. San Joaquin Resident. s have a strong intetest in A- 1

enforcin the State' s environ. uent l lays s that enc w age su tainable

d velopnient and ensure a safe w rking enti irana ent fax• its nieinbe s.

Fe also rec; uest ri iled notice of r ny and all hearings andlor
actians rel ted to the Project. These iec uests are i ade pursuank to Public
Resaurees Gode Section 2. i792. 2. 21flS0. 4. 214fi3. 9. 1092, ` 110b. 1. 52. and

1161(,fj and Covernment Cod Section 6 09 Z̀. w hich requite lcsc l agencies to
ivail such notices ta an per an,- ho h s filed a wi itten request far the ti tith

the clerk c f the agenc= s o ei ning bodti-.

Please send the aha= e requested itenis b einail and L. S. 1 ai1 to aur South

3n Francisca Office s folle«- s:

LT. S. Nlail EII1 lI

Itla• I. Snuth nisniith2'adainshroadwell. coin
dauis$ raadwell Joseph c& Catdaza

601 Gate ra F3oulevard_ Suite 10C14
outh San Francicco. C: 9 0- 031

oo,

3  k      

552



iugust 13. 2021

Pa e 3

Fle ase call me at ( i%0} 5- 16G0 if you have an<<qnestions. ' Thank Srou for A- 1

our ssistance w ith this n atter.

Sincerel-.

l aya I. Srnif.h

I,egal ssist nt

IIS1jl

4  ;'      .

553



Response to Comment A— Mava I. Smith, Adams Broadwell Joseph & Cardozo

Response A- 1: The commenter requests to be mailed notice of actions and hearings regarding
the Scannell Properties Industrial Project. The request is for mailed notice of the availability of
any environmental review document, prepared pursuant to the California Environmental Quality
Act, related to the Scannell Properties Industrial Project, as well as a copy of the environmental
review document when it is made available. The request also includes mailed notice of any and
all hearings and/ or actions related to the project. The commenter has been added to the City' s
CEQA Distribution list and Public Hearing notice list for the proposed project. No further response
is warranted.

5  j' 
s   

554



Ricardo Caguiat

from:      Mark Me ssner

5ent:       Monday, August 23, 2021 1: 22 AM
Ta: AJ Lopez'; Ricarda Caguiat

Cc_  Michael King; David Niskanen
5ubject:    RE: MNa 5cannell

Hella Adriana,

My sign ture is on the dacument. The proJ ct is nat exempt from CEQA sa ar Initial Study was requ9red. de s vo

la ning Group vuas recomrnended by n e t prepare the[ nitial Study. Final ieterminatian will be made by Lhe City
Council.

tcZtc ri Lci33sc a

Director- Eomanunity pevelapment flepartment

City of Lathrop, 390 7oevne Cen#re arive Lathra, CA 95330 B- 1
Office:( 209j 941- 7266 Ceih( 2U9) 992- 0008

From: A1 lopez

Sent: 5aturday, August 21, 2D214: 2Q PM
Tn: Ricarda Caguiat

Cc: Mark Meissner; Michael King; Da id Niskanen
Subject: Re: MND Scannell

Hello.

Who ii th city staff directed a ci giotifie+ 3 Del Ta`- o to pre re tlie I Sh'D° Also. can yot please tell ne# lie name
of t ie p i•son. ie-liase si natru e app a• s a i t is doeiuiiet t?

6 I ' .    

555



Proyosed 5canacEl 1' ropertics lndustr il E" ro ect

4aad ARrnc.

Ctry M C., s:hrpp
4' pW 4 t a l:tr i.?i fs•

lalnnyr fiA 9xpp

iz ahs: tcu

Pza( Net T7q r.S antw?S i`.Jp rte'±.Vep; ix

Vrofer[ loratluo Cfr,( rap35ed Sca+! mG Pr@ ttaea: adv<ir ri' nsl. Y` z k Fr.kreti. 1 C' rc.> 12d Ir,LLu.s2rlai
dfia• c1 fHirv, 9el n. Y. p`" ixFa7clycL" ttays, iSt< q. r, F,' I.: sUe.`„ I" ta° zY r le. u'Ain. 3 e b 171. IF• a vr rm
Y w i iF c t d;: str:   rY sasc u+cr. wdtF u. la q e. c urArwg'.: fu;g. vy s 1 . cr, ar. e» a  . tri, x; f, ru> m

toa n

r 1, eqY. t. te. x x t. f ix. a,.    e: v', r:Ws i  .:f; kis ia  ! i. e Ar, g+, a u. h,+( atsi vey R; f A. W; 1' h7 O4{*
SS) Tli, e   .   vw an. Lnz,. ra; sboxJe dtraxise.+;gSrr. arCom+ceaca: dcvele pmr.t. u' H anci. za. ar g
Ge?rc: 11 tu3. i, fd. i,., rr.r etv% ws Yarodx itk:.. er,.3ca;: crKLia::xdir.C, suu: uc•+ e, eher: Fth. T* p. eo:
sneiv+ r rsi;. ac, x, sba; ri r. ad. . a. gc` irtt eerv+ rry+a; qr F. sr. rap,ryr ir atxi iAi. /^ art rvr• a( c, r!

Ptaiet4ll¢ 5es4pUon: T; sc Rr pnsa-d f' rn tn.°t war t4 sYr rG. p th H: xrx vara rt Pr=:>ra s+. vzh thr>e i ti reet
n arch.vxx bJik: imiq.€ epucr+ t puer. Wac 9x Fea. ct xi; z l: i t, siv.,wn Ar il,. r 3. EAt Rrsx oi, d rtent; v rchaf: x

L: i ro r( 9.; k lm t, N, x,& 6 F< e, a: o: n.., r,a,.- p:, vK„ PrJ, n P ralm! x_ir a, mf duv:. n b„ il: na Qe; nn: Ft
yppr avm. 5c 7,. k. Si, n;# 5•1 . rt wRr 53e,: f gLw uhth i: a' a e ph° ttr vai. Pawrstp c< uk< r. aFr-..- ica

n+! t,avu a t, id aR k.utF n€ f apy naatratciY' 7i£Ait 5N" nn S 5 SH atsr i_tr, ft, i3G, tin 4» x s!? a, 1r.. 1 d in tl
s: rc. xSeanywtA r-u uPr.,. c slaeaadMcea, ziklinga, z} w'! ntotay; ru. Ima: rly42. S6PJfiqaa} q e-y gg p, TY, e

s,taFk; kEng¢ uerrGH3G gc? rualik i: Aispv u xiddx^ 91_tf 175RA graw{ma. IpFc1=a[ ag; sr.aima ry t9„] th[ pjuP
tAc 61 4C n; pTa; en I: xitas wrp; x[ g} a tyy a N rs£f' c vscx v. det C2t rx X4vm 4r rut tiwe h4ILltr+ quam(: io.i, rkc
dr} kTX' fatY. t* i7Z 45.J} 1tn31. 11f aM- fS: A! Ct9(' a„' a} gk,{ q, 5 gps

F II 0.J,S

i@ dC. 1C+ Ll wlt[! A ( l. t:' nt# .   . . F` ntA.' l h: 3tl hf/ lfY. t f C.. ty c(. t, t Y
r

1x^ rt: F ¢ nR li.ii' al GuSv[ Rh

krr r• w! rt° rra l3c; n ssp. s dpe;  a: ap ha a g: ixi: aei      ? r.tx+tM: cn 9ri;nK; xaat? ttrli rnw: 5 wf,-
a'. J P  e: d 41a tg 1 V a. ivx I Yt  .:' k ti..; xle^, a vknl( u. ty,;n.^ CCtk:# 4ittTAg ZCaM. YlA t11, Td. ri D'
afeha i itlal5t. dy. iAs Clt) c( Latbr,+ AemrbF.>> w      lJ

rxzAx:.+: th.r F  . P• t ccv0i dnum^ a r,,nr' tvc; oA7+' s e e1Y+ t r,n t.1c mv. sax, eArC thrre wfit nne ts c
p. s,ntaGv,."`5er( ja rsf, 4r& t ic l KctatclhrD tKfrvaxtneor tafa zptn,' ee+ ra. isi;mtF r,A, ew; rrpo, rs

n o` ah a ry» tftcvatk n 1̂ n n, 2v et s m t, m' nn m n rrc, t. û,r,Ln1 e^+ tn 5awr 5re+<rr F a. i. z tc prr., ar.a
h Ma. rv: M Mey.   ., n... ran .. s 6n» rhaa, Ar. n; rf:u,. J

Thriet: at5; adj, w' rx: N r rn, krt4arhasdcar; Qr  t, toixl 6 er; F. nart. m. iseeteehrdxr aznd. errrw. itrwra.+

t^'I tsl a5c',} r a: L. a uie1 di`1ia. lt'w::; ia hC

j r 1
i

e

d. l.'____.m     .._.._     ....

4 pt;tYikfi       j;y r

Tliatik yai.
r dnana

On Wed. l u s 1S_= 0? 1 at 7: 5 PM: AJ Lopez< ajlo ez63Cf; ci?g ail. co n> i•at:

Please disregard tlte re ious e liail. Fous d tlte docui ient.

i n Wed. Aiig 1S.? 021 at 7: 11 P+ i AJ Lapez< ajlopeza3Cl n;gmail. cotn> i-rote:

I 1y apologies. ilie req est slro ld l a• e beefi for the staff report that ti•as refereuced ui clre attoiney letter from
Buchalter' S caxu ell.

Oti tVeci. Au 15.? 0_' 1 at 10:? 3 r' R I Ricardo Ca= ttiat< rca uiat c;cilatlu•op.e. us> t- rote:

There is no staf# report far the preparation of the IS/ MND. A staff report will be prepared when the pra} ect moves
forward ta the Planning Commissian and City Council. The ISJMND will serve as a supparting document for the
project in ccsmpliance with CEQA.

Thanks,

7I .  .    

556



RICK CAQ UTAT

Pr€ncipal Plannef City of Lathrop

Cornrnur ity Development Uepartment Plannir g Division

39 Towne Ce, ire Drive l.athrop, CA 9533Q

P: ( 209) 941- 7?96 I F: (' Q9} 941- 7339

rcaouiatt ci. lathran. ca. us

Fram: A,! Lopez< ajlopez0304@ mail. com

Sent: TU23t y, August 17, 2+Q219; 52 PM

Tc: Ricardo Caguiat< rca uiat@ci. lathrop. ca. us>

Ce: Mark Meissner< mmeissner@ci. lathrop. ca. us>; Michael King< mkin[ r ci. lathrap. ca. us>; David iViskanen
planningconsultant[ ci. lathroR. ca. us       B- 1

Subject: Re: MN Scanneil

Tlia ik y ot for tlie infaruiatioii. I e- oulcl also like to request ilie staffrepo;- t u ed in preparation for ihis
IS' i`v7D.

Tlk i k y i: eiy mucl.

driana

On?bfon. r'lt g l6. 0 1 a3 6: 16 P I Ricardo C' aguiat= rcaQuiat i ci, latlirop. ca. t s rote:

Hi Adriana,

The City hirecf De Navo Planning Graup to perform the required CEqA work for the project. The same firm working
on the Gtty' s Generaf Plan update.

Thanks,

gl '`;` ;  ._ .

557



F21CK CACiUTAT

Principal Planner S City of Lathrap

Community aevelapment Departrcrent  Planning Divisaors

390 Towne Centre Driue Lathrop, CA 95330

P: (' 09} 941- 7296  F: { 2Q9) 941- 7339

rcaauiat ei. lathrov. ca. us

From: A! Lapez< ajlopez0304@ mail. com>

Sen#: Monday, August 16, 20214: 55 PM
To: Ricarda Caguiat rca uiat@ ci. lathrop. ca. us>

Ce: Mark Meissner< mmeissner@ci. lathrop. c. us>; Michael King< mking@ci. lathresp. ca. us>; David Niskanen
pia n n ingconsultant@ci. lathrop. ca. us>

Subject: Re: MfdD Scannel(

B- 1

GreatE ' 4'Jl a clid the uiitial check caff list that enabled tl e IS` 1NI?

Tiiauk you s-ety mich,

Aclt•iana

On I 1oti, tluo 16. 20? 1 aF 9: 1: A3 I Ricardti Cae1 iat< rca uiat,: ci. latlirog. ca. us=' tt rote:

Hi Adriana,

Please feel free ta e- maif or calf ine if you have any questians an the project.

Tha nks,

RacK Cw uu r

9  .       -

558



Principa) Planner City of Lathrop

Commcanity pevelapment Departrr ent J Planraia g Dsvisian

394 Towne Cersire Qrive Lathrop, CA 9533t1

P: { 209j 941- 7? 96  F: 209) 94i- 7339

rcaauiat ci. iathro. ca. us

Fram: Michaei King cmking@ci. lathrop a. us>
Sent: 5unday, August 15, 20217: 27 PM
To: AJ Lopez< ailopez0304(c mall. com5

Ce: Mark Meissner< mmeissner( a ci. tathrop. ca. us>; Ricardo Caguiat Ercaguiat[ a?ci. lathroR. ca. usa
Subject: RE: MND Scannel)

Adriaiia.

B- 1

Tl e conui7tuii#y developnies t. IbSark aixrt Rick are ce' d. slioulcl be al le to take any c uestions y 411 ll11QI1T
ha- e. If yo r qt estions are rel ted to tna^ ks. please ec rne su ce Public tiVorks- i11 lil:ely be in pactzd.
Tliank you.

Mict ael

Se a#& am ssiy' e 2cix SaYiistitng G l x 5s art l3oTie

Original lnessa= e--------

From: A3 Lopez ajlogez0304,c[%2tnail. conz>

Date: 8 i5t21 ?: 10 PM( GI ST-( S: ilO)

To: hiichael Iiiu<' n king!cUci. Iathron. ca. its

S ibject: I D Scauriell

10  °: :  ` .

559



Hello Mr. King,

This M lD shows Lathrop s the lead agency for CEQA. Who is the person{ s)
that is representing Lathrop at the lead agency and in agreement with #his
Mi iqa ed t e ti ( cl r ti n f r tl e c nnel! Proqerties Ir dustri l Proiect B- 1

f PA-- 1, REZ- 2- 14D, PR- 20- 14 1. TP l- 2- 142} ? Looking forward to
hearing from you.

Thank you,

Adriana

11  ;.. ; .` ,.

560



Response to Comment B— Adriana Lopez

Response B- 1:  The commenter raised questions regarding the preparation of the Initial
Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration. The commenters questions were answered in the email
correspondence above. No further response is warranted.

12    _.   _

561



i} c> lic~ t; st• ities

e:, f` tix I.)ir, c e e:• $ af` t_>r°l. t+: sa

Help fa• Taday._ Hope for• Torytoz•r•ou

Ci& R S Qr= t1R. T JFS

Environmental Justice Program

3°{ >'
t n>; i v Catholic Charities[ 7iocese of tockton

Frtrg,; j=.:,+et

Pdl lt k t_L tii:,•

C fi ir

a  ;, , , a ,:,•   
August 31, 2021

r  ., ;, r  , i r.

E>.. ry f; rir c=r
vrf•= cr,_ rr

Mark Meissner
r, r:- r,;:,    

rtreo   C7irectar of Cammunity Deuelcrpment,

u e nr3et: rs,,, a City of LatEtrop
7rez srt, er

w';: 3t,°h'

w tc res, r=r r RE: Carnment Letter far the Mitigated Negative Declaration ( MND) for

s„    2520 E. Lathrop Roar1, Lathrop California( Scannell Praperties Industnal
s,= ary=    Project).

T>. r[ s. riatc r,` Ltd
ra, t, ni

P, Rs pa.. J rI3n a rn3i t;<+sS, S. T. fl.,
i„ s_< e F   ..

Dear Mr. Meissner.

4., 1} ilCt§3 Di9! 7Pt°Il',*e
r" r`` t  '`   fJn behalf af the Envirr nmental Justice Program at Gakholic ChariYies, Diocese

r rr a t   rc.:-.;

fa i,   ofi Stockton, we respectfu[ ly submit the follouririg commQnts regarding the Mitigated

sclett« ctas(
Negative Declaration{ MND) for the Scannell Properties Industrial Project.

17enw'_ C; i"dYic.

Af#er reviewing the MND, we feel there is r7o clear indication that tfae project
Yil3f' 4f' 13? fTdC3

r t., r,,, s-,, t. d    _   veritl ensure a{ I impacts are mitigated; th refore this MN is in direct viola#ian of
r  t     

CEQA. The perv asive flae s in tFre httlVD demand that this project goes through a
s... F-1

proper Environmental Irr+pact Repart. Ptease nate that the organizatian of ihe

appendix items are out of order in the docurnent, such as, the Traffic impact Analysis
s, s,_._ rr,.

stated to be tisted on page 103 is actually on page 459 of the document.
E- sg rtaa a<a M: r§ irxa

t'c  r. nrty 1 i      
1. The MNQ Fails to Adequately Analyze and Mitigate Lathrop' s 7ransportation

Tt i 5^ lck

rt, r x :,
w,    

Impacts.

t`""` r """'   

The MNa makes no atten pt to analyze whether thi increase in truck traffic
xE,., vr.°.' ec8? r

vuould cause an increase in vehicu[ ar aecidents. This is concerning due to the fact that
students who travel along Lathrop Rcrac! to attend Lathrop High School are not

protected from the oncoming traffic of heavy- ditty trucks. It should also be noted
E       

that three uveeks aga, Lathrop City Council directed City staff to praduce a resolution

that will ban alf trucks on Lath€-ap Road-- exduding the businesses already there. If
this project is passed, it avill negate the Council' s plan to protect the residents that

ive along Lathrop Raad.

Saft J aquir G7f#! Ce 1 9C( t4` tritt EE€ krr. t 1+>`, xa. i$irtk C>r3, C:; A ', f' 1()' 1 P: 1Cs'- i4- 9-'`, ii C1 F:: f;- 4=9-:` f:; 3

C.11li5 ili5 i f7CE ri.; t 1C's9". E S`'.0 i`,. ` k°= r:: a'     vJ-,': 1..' tt' AQ F: 1 yt)- Frot- F>Q, i
1t9C>tFttr LC>tf8 C fflCe 8€ 3r<3CSfr:r° w<_;> r rr,',. G',`+  4 y? C r P; 2f99-` 3?_-7(: 52 F:??-.'> 1- 54

13  " .    ,

562



tl n i< C;. xiti: t;

e> f tlre} Ui<» r• 4
x f;'+ tc> 1 t<ar'

Help for Toda)'.- Hope for Toniorfi•oiv

G Ii. The MNQ Fails to Propose Adequate Mitigation Measures for Noise, Air

Quality.
ISisPi { r t rnr  t , 9;,. s

f' t tr 3:< 1`N rrt

While the MND proposes measures to mitigake any no'tse during the
s«   construction phase, there are no other mitigation measures proposed forthe

d, itait

s,     < ti, x v r<ar:x:   operational phase af the project. It is concerning to surrounding residents that there
b' '' 1 `'"''" n   

will be sigpiticant noise due to heavy truck Crafficand day- to- day operations of the

ae: e   warehous e. Simifarly, it is alarming that there arf no{ ro osed mitigaxion measures
vic<.; rr, rr

to address air quality in the construction or operational phases. The document fails ioh s r, e rc t.a

s•`: r,u   provide the necessary evidenee that the project rvill ensure air pollutant emissions

i, t;,,„
f,q„   are sufficiently minimized so it does not conflict with the SIVAPCD' s air yuality plans.

Not all potential mitigaYion measures have been exhausted in ihe MND. An MND for
r;• erar a projecE of similar size, such as that of the Airport Business Centre Project, has

c, E,,,,,: k proposed several air quality mitigation measures such as limiYing time for idling of C- 1
y construction eyuipment, reducing VNiT, and utiNzing paint witfi a( o VOC confenf.

r.,s%a.     t xr,  , r. t r

re:=;, f.., r lastly, the project wouid be iocatec! in a census tract designated by the state as

ns., or,r areF, si a a,. r..   
disadvantaged. Based on CalEnviroScreen 3. Q, the Census Tract 60774051i9 has a

zpr r<.3r' r: sfs poilution burden percenti e of 1(J0, particulate matter 2. 5 of 82nd percenYile,

E,„,,,   pesticides of 92nd percentile, groundwater threats of 100th pzrcentile, and asthma
t' ` t'` r r r   < p"'   rates of 75tf percentife. it is clear that this project will he located in an area that has

1: 7' 7 fy f e':,.`.

a o; r<   negatively impacted socio- economic indicators. it shou[ d be noted the MND did not

6,  }, 1;;   reference C: alEnviraScreen in the analysis, indicating that there uvas not a careful
t    _   . .   analysis an the community this roject would imp2ct.

It3C- C} 4P113hv? i11P1

F F`'   - lN. Conclueion.
cf t:%pR>r,, r: r„,..

i, catr, t 5.. 3e   We respectfully reGuest that no further consideration be givsn to the
F,   proposed project until an Environmental Impact Report is prepared. The project mus#

ra, er;:, z. 3 s iir,   Provide a full analysis of noise and air quality mitigation m asures. Lastly, the praject
r r>    -..   is located in an area that is designated disadvantaged. It is the city' s responsibility to

i,;   protect enviranmental justice communities so they do not experience the impacts of

pollution. Acc eptirrg this project will L e detrimental to them and Chz communitie
rv¢ra tt, 3 sir   along Lathrop Road.

x  . t,.  r .,,.,

Tha ik you.

Ectar Oli- u•es, Prosi un ManaE'

I'he Eiiruonuiental3ustice Pro¢ rasii

Catholie C' haiities of the Diocese of Stockton

San Joaqufn Cxffice 1 7C6 r 3E. rrt? i L! E a r< dr =, t, SS tiE( ton, C;R J57 J      i'_ c!1- 44,' e a v} P 24;`,t-.. d ,: A3

S#anislaus Office 1; Q{ 3 i.; t a iar;' t., t tt t3' 3frk1 P: 2t+. 5" 9-,3r F ': i- 4` 6

Mather Lczde Office 8 6 adfarr t vc,, at 3 CA 37Ct P: a 3 3-`, 32 i6:32 F ` C+:°, 32_ 14

14  : ,

563



Response to Comment C— Ector Olivares, Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Stockton

Response C- 1: The commenter states that the MND does not propose any measures to address

noise or air quality. However, as provided in the relevant sections of the IS- MND, air quality
emissions and noise generated by the Project would not exceed the applicable thresholds.
Therefore, per CEQA, no mitigation for these issues were required.

The commenter states that other Projects of similar size, such as Airport Business Centre,

includes several air quality mitigation measures.   However, those mitigation measures were

specific to that project — each project is required to be analyzed separately under CEQA.  Since

the air quality impacts were below the applicable thresholds for the proposed Project, no
mitigation for this topic for the proposed Project is required.

The commenter also states that the project is located in a disadvantaged census tract. However,

CEQA does not directly address environmental justice ( there is no environmental justice topic
under CEQA).  Moreover, even when a project is in an disadvantaged census tract, it does not

necessarily follow that development cannot occur and/ or that mitigation is required for this
issue,  per CEQA.   Moreover,  the Project is not required under CEQA to undergo a

CalEnvironScreen analysis. No further response to this comment is warranted.

15  > : e :

564



i

Concerned Citizens for the Airport Way Corridor

Date August 30, 2021

Mark Metssner, Director of Community Develapment, Cty af Lathrop

Lathrop Plan ing Commission

Lathrop Mayor and City Council

Comment letter far the proposed General Plan Amendment and Mitigated Negative C3eclaratian( MND)

for 1520 E. Lathrop Road, lathrop California( Scannell Properties 9ndustrial Project}.

Thank you foe the opportunity to address our comments this evening. The prop sed project is currently
zoned Commercia! Service. It is propos ed to amend the current General Plan to Generallndustrial.

Traffic commer ts: The N3ND staies a total of 141, 1bd Sq ft for 3 warehouses, inciuding 250 auto parking

and ifil truck/ trailar parking. As the City repart indicates, Lathrop Road is a regional significant arteria!

connecting I- 5 to Nwy 99. tathrop is a four lane arteriaL According to staff ieport, Lathrop Road

between Hartan Road and McKinley Avenue experiences nearly 15, OOa vehicle trips per day with

approxima# ely 79b b ing heavy vehicle traffic. At 79d this equates ta 1, 050 heavy truck trips per day. This

informatiort was net mentioned in the MND nor was it tonsidered for the tcmrrrutative affect of this

project.

Access points:

1 East bound traffic can onty enter the property, right turn only into the first drive vuay with no left tum
D- 1

due to rised cement medium.

2 West baund traffic to entee and exit left turn to entee and left and right turn to exit on" Q" Street. The

St. is directly at the base of the railroad aver grade.

M our opinion, this is NOT a wise or wel! thought aut plon. Per NEanteca Potice Department, the posted

speed sign is 45 miles r hour. The average speed is 55. 5 m'tles per hour. At that rate of speed, trucks

entering and exiting at" D" street will create a serious traffic hazard due to the inability of oncaming

vehicle to have dear sight of the stopped truck making a left turn at the taase of the over grade uossing

over 3 lanes of on coming traffic. The radius of the Eeft and right turns at" D" St. is unclear whether the

base of the aver grade will be able accommodate the radius tuming for STM Trucks. An akernative

solution must be addressed for the problematic traffic design for the project. Please see Transportation

16  ' .

565



iz

check( ist c) substantially increase hazards to a geometric design# eature( e.g. sharp curves ar dangerous
intersections) ar in compatible uses( e.g. farm equipment uses, City Staf# checked Less than significant.
Fehr and Peers traffic consultants did not adequately address the future truck and vehicle traffic counts

far the eurrent and future planned developments of industrial and Residential uses near this projec#.
Inc{uding Union Pacific` s expansion of 800, 00 lifts per year, Center Poirei proposed build ouY plan, west

side of Airport Way beiween French Camp Road and sauth o# the 120 6ypass and the proposed
development of res9dential and lndustria! use north of Del Web and Union Ranch to french Camp Road,
to name a few. The dangeraus situation of hundreds of chitdren walking olong tathro s Road to vttend

Lathrop Nigh Schoo/ was not mentioned or addressed The resolution when passed, to ban a11 trucks on
Lathrop Road will greatly improve their safety. 5ince the reso(ution has not been approved at this date,

yau must include their safe#y as a priority in your decision.

No mitigation was merrtianed for the incrsase ofpoltutioro, noiae, vebrations and safety of#he
residents adjacent to La#}rrop Road in both tathrop and Manteca. Lathrop Road is not an approved

STAA a# this time. For many years wre have been told the Manteca Pol9ee Traff3c dfficers were either

untrained or understaffed and citaYlons would not be issued on Airport Way or Lathrop Road until a City
Wide Tru k Traffic Study was compfeted and City Cauncil approval of the Truck Route Map.

D- 1
Fehr and Peers traffic consultants are currently eontracted for traffic analysis for the Manteca General

Plan Upda#e, Lathrop Genera) Ptan Update, Manteca Truck Study, San Jaaquin Council of Government

Caunty Truck Regional Study. With this wealth of informa# ion, they can easify provide further

information to identify the environmer tal impacts and migratians for this project.

History of the project property:

1975- 2004 ReiterTruck Company owed and operated a fruck starage yard and a military surplus
equipment sales operation. Mareh 5, 1992 he was cited by Cal- EPA# or i[ legal storing of 14,Q00( bs of

hazardous material named Impregnite. This p wder form of chemical is used to shield, by dusting on
military uniforms, against chemical liquid weapons. The chemicals were found stored rlirectly o bare
ground. He clalmec! he had purchased the hazardous ma4erial from the dRNiO{ Defense Reafilzation and

Pllarketing), but neither the DRMO or Mr. Reiter could produce a bill of sell and the DRMO refused to
take back the 14, Ibs. of chemica9s. The owner, at his expense[ ad the hazardous material properly
dispased an luiy 7, Y992.

20Q4 City of Lathrop purchased the 18. 5 acres{ rom Mr. Re[ ter f r over 1. 6 million do( lar for the

purpose of utilizing the proper# y as a spray fieEd af recycled water from the Moss dale Sewer Facility. 3
shallow tesY welEs were dug and the water tested. Na permit vas required for the so] I samples becausQ

the samples were less than a foot deep. Soil sampE es were collected of the surface and also khe different

mounds vf unexplained dirt on the proaerty. After tfie resvEts Qf the testing, the City abandoned the
spray field plan. For ll years the property sai idle.

Oct 27, 2020 Phave II testing:

A limit scope of testing was conducied an the property. Again shalkow soi) samples and 3 wel) water

tests were completed_ The testing company stated" more money` wauld buy more than the flmited

l  ?'

566



n r  a

scope of testing on this properky. They could not conciude Yhat aEl environmentai issues had been
de#ectecl and the company preforming the test could not be held responsibie for any undetec# ed

hazards. Aiso, Scannell Propecties' rs nat responsible for any further cost associated with undetected

hazards. The City of Lathrop tax payers are responsible# or any further expenses.

Conclus9on:

Although ove can oppreciate th¢ urgency for the City cf iathrop to rid lhemselves o} thia praperty, they

must aet responsibly to proteM their neiqhborhaods in both ttte City of Lathrop and Manteco. They are

the tegal owners and lead Agency# or CEQA for the proposed project. The stated unmltigated impacts D- 1

listed below should warrant an Environmenta) Impact Report. The MND does not legally address the# ull

impacts anci mitigation to less Yhan an insignificant levei per CfQA regulakions and law.

Aj Praject deems a necessary amendment to the current Land llse Map from Service Commercial to
Genera{ Industrlal.

B} Tratfic data and analysis is incompte# e and faulty.

C) Limiied scope of study was performed for corrtaminated soil and test wells.

We hope you will agree the urgent need to not approve the MND if All Yhe true impacts are NOT

mitigated t4 protect your residents.

Thank yau,

Mary Meninga

1910 Pecanwood Ave

Manteca, California 95336

f209) 403-8415

18  ' n  : ,

567



Response to Comment D— Mary Meninga

Response D- 1: The commenter states that no mitigation was mentioned for the increase in

pollution, noise, and vibration impacts.  However, as provided in the relevant sections of the
IS/ MND, air quality emissions,  noise, and vibration generated would not exceed applicable
thresholds. Therefore, per CEQA, no mitigation for these issues were required.

The commenter also states that the Phase II environmental analysis was ' limited'. However, the

Phase II environmental analysis provided the results that were needed to for the analysis under
the Hazards and Hazardous Materials topic. For example, the on- site soil and water were tested
for the relevant hazards.  The commenter requests that an Environmental Impact Report ( EIR)

should be prepared.   However, there is no CEQA or legal basis for this request.   No further

response is required.

19  ;' :  _ 

568



r' dC 7rc' fS r tlff
Plan Review Te m P Fia,Re,; ev i'!pge. cma

p       ; n
tand Aia emeni

F' T'#`+ i.i{ 7i l t il'  6iitBalingerCa yx.raRaad337tbi
a s Ram[ tri, CJt 9 458;.i

August 13r 2Q2 i

Maria Herrnas lta

Crty c f athrop
390 To vne Centre Drive

Lathrop. CA 9 330

Ref: Gas and Eiectr e Transmission ar d D[ stribution

Dear Nta a,

Thank yo far submitting the Scannell Properties lndusinal Project pians for our review_ PGB E
wil! revi ver the subm ted plans in rel tionship to any existing Gas and Elec ric facilities witt irt

pr ject area. If tt e pfoposed o ect is adjacenUor wiihin PGSE owned praperty andlor
easements, we will be woricirxx wi ya a tv ensure compa6ble uses and activities near our
fac lR es.

Attached you+a ill find infofrnation and requirements as it relates to Gas facilities( Attachment 1}
and Electnc fa i9 ties{ Attachment 2). Please review ihese in de#ail, as it is criticat to ensure

your satety ar ri to protect PG8, E°s faciG#ies and its existinc righis.

Below is adda ional inio€mat on for yaur review:

1.  This plan review prt cess daes not replace the apptication pracess for PG& E gas or
e ecVic service your project may require. For these requests, please continue to w4rK
with PGSE SeN[ce PCanning: httPs:l/www.pqe.cam/en US/ businessJsenriceslt uildinq-

nd- rer va6qNouerviewlovervi w. paqe.

2.  If th e praject being sul mitted is part ot a[ arger project, please inctu ie the entire scc pe
t y aur prt ect, and rtot jusi a port n af it. PG& E' s faciliiies are fo be incorporatsd within

any CEQA documen#. PGB E needs to verify ihat the CEQA docurr nt will identity any
required future PG& E services.

3.  An eng r enr g de it rnay be required to review p ans for a project depending on the E- 1
s ze, scope, ar d location oi the project and as it relates to any rearrangement or new
nstallaiac n of FGBE faciliti s_

Arry peo s d uses v riimirt the PG& E fee stnp artd/ or easement, may include a Galitomia Public
Uiility Cammissian( CPUC} Sectfon 8 1 filing. This requi€es the CPUC to rer der approvai for a
conve arece of rights for specific uses nn PGBE' s fee strip or easement. PG8 E wfl{ advise if the
rte essat+ to inc4rpo te a CPUC Section 851filing is required.

Thls leifer does not cor sii# rke PGS E's consent ta use any rtion of its easem nt for any

purpase not p ev ousiy conveyed. PG& E will provide a project specific resportse as required.

Sincereiy.

Plan Revtew Tearn

Land it+ nagernent

PG& E Gas and Electric Facilities Page 1

F ciffc G arrd

lectric artrpar y

Attachmsnt 1— Gas Facitities

The re tn a4ci h nas tran rrrissinn ninPlirt in this a€ a whfr.h wrnikf hP rnnsi t r d criti l

569



P ific t x, rr J

s    
lectri rr zrry

w cie trench bein dug aiar a 86 inch pipeline, the centertine of the trench would need to be at
leas4 54 tnches[ 24/ 2+ 24+ 3612= 54] away, ar l e entirQiy dug by har d.)

VJai+er jettir g to assrst vacuum excava#ing must be lirr ited to 10 0 psig and directed ai a 40°
angle fo the pipe. Ai1 ple dnving must lre kept a minimum of 3 feet away-

Any p6ans to expose and support a PG&E gas transmissian pipeline aar ss an open excavation
rteed to be approved by PGBE Pipeline Services in writing PRI f2 to perfcuming the waric.

6_      BoringlTrenchless Insta11a6oRs: PG E Pipeline Setvices must review artd approve all

ptans ta e across or paraitel to{ within 10 feet) a gas transmissior pip linQ. There re
s ringent criteria to pottt e the gas transmission facilify at regular intenrals for all parallel twre
instaltatians_

F b e paths thai cross gas transmission pipelines perpendicutarly, the pipeEine mus# be
poiholed a rninimum af 2 feet in the hcuizontal direction af the t are path and a minimum of 12
inches in the vertical direction fram the b sttom of the p[pe with minimum clear r ces measuted
fr n the edge af the pipe in t oih direct sns. Standby persartnel must watch the locator trace
and every ream pass) the path 4f the bare as i# approaches the pipeline and visually rnonitor
txe pothole( with the exposed transmission pipe) as the bore traverses the pipeline to ensure
tiequate clearance with the pipelir e. The pothale width must account for the inaccuracy of the

laca ng equiprr n#.

7_      Substructures: All utility crossings of a gas pipellne should be made as close t4
perpendicular as Teasible{ 9(3°+ I- 15°). A11 utiEity lines crassing ihe gas pipeline musi have a
rnEnirnurrt taf 12 fnches af separat n fi n the gas pipeline. Para[ IeE utiiities, pole bases, water
I ne` Kicker t cks`, storm drain inlets, wa#er meters, valves, back pressure de ices or other
utii ly substructures are not allowed in the PG8 E gas pipe ine easemen#.

f prerriousiy r etired PGBE facilities are in canflict with pra sed subs#ructures, PG& E must
ve ity the} r are safe prior to removai. This indudes verificati n testing of the rAntents of the
facrlities, as v eEl as et vironrrrent l iesting af the coafing and intemal surfaces. Timelines far
PGBE cr pRetitm af this verifieation wiPt vary depending on the type and location af facilities in
can ict.

8_      Structures: No structures are to be t3uiit within the PGBE gas pipeline easement. Tliis
includes bui dings, retainirt wails, fences, d+ecks, patios, carports, septic tanks, starage shecis,
tanks, loatiing ramps, or arry sdructure that cauld limit PG& E' s a ili#y to access its facilities.

9_      Fencir g_ Permar ent fencing is not allawed uvithin PGBE easements except for
perpendicular crossings+ nfiich must ineiude a T6 foot wide gate for vehicular access. Gates will
be secured with PG& E corparativn{ ocks_

1t}_    Lanciscaping: tandscaping must be designed to ail nr PG& E to access the pipeline for
rrt intereance and r i int rfers with pipeiine coatings or other cathodic protection systems. No
Vees, shrubs, brush, vir es, arr ottter vegetation may be pEanted within ihe easement area.
On j fhose pian s, ground cavers, grasses, flowers, and low-growing p ants that grow
unsupperrted ta a maximum of to ur teet( 4°) in height a# maturity may be anted within the
easernent area.

PG& E Gas and Elertric Facilit es Page 3

21  ` ,  :. ,

570



Pacrf c' a r!

F.1 ctr c Cvr rrry

71.    Cathodic Pratection: PG& E pipelines are pratected frc m corrosion with an" Impressetl
CurrenY' cathadic protection system. Any pro sec! facit ties, such as metal conduit, pipes,
senrice lines, raund rods, anades, wires, etc. thai might affect# he pipeline cathodic protectian
system must e reviewed and approved by PG8 E Corrasion Engineering.

72.    Pipeline Marker Signs: PG& E needs to m aintain pi line marker signs tor gas
iransmission pipeiines in order to ensure public a+n+areness of the presence of the pipelines.
With prior written approval from PG& E Pipeline Senrices, an exisfing PGBE pipeline martcer sign
tl at is in direcf c flict with praposed developments may be temporar ly re cated to
accommodate cvns#ruction work. The pipeline marEcer rr st be moved back once oanstructian is
camplete.

73.    PG&E is also the provider of distribution facitiTie throughout many of the areas w thin
ihe state of Califamia. Therefare, any plans at[ mpact PGB E' s facilities must be reviewed and
approved by PG&E ta ensure that no impacf occurs which may endanger the safe operation of
its faciEitEes.

PG& E Gas and Electric Faciliries Page 4

22  '' . _ 1

571



Pacifr"c Gt rrd

El t ta artt lx r r

Attachment Z— Electric Fac Ifties

it is PG& E' s pa icy to perrr it certain uses on a case by case basis wiU in its electric
transmission fee strip( s) ancL or easement( s) pravided such uses and manner in which they are
exercised, will nat interf ere with PGS E"s rights or eridanger its Saciliiies. Sorr

exampleslrestrictiQns are as follows:

1. Buildings and O#her Structures_ No burldings other structures indr ding the foat print and
eave of any tiu3ldings, swimming paols, wel s simila€ siructures vsrill t e pertnitted within fee
strip( s} andtar easement( s} ar as. PGBE' s trartsrraission easement shall be des,ignaied on
subdivisiaNparcei maps as" E2ESTRIGTED USE AREA— NO BUILDING."

2_ Grading: Cuts, trenches ar excavatians may not be made+n ifhin 25 feet of our t4wers.
Developers must sut mit gra iing ptans and site dee+elapmen# p ans( includir g geotechnieal
reports if applicable}, signed ar d dated, frar PGBE°s review_ PGB E engineers must review grade
changes in the vicinity of aur tawers. No fills ar[II al{ow+e+ed which wauld impair ground- to-
conductor clearances. Tc r efs sh t nai be lef! or rno nds a ithcaut adequate road access to

base of tower or siructure.

3. Fences: Walfs, fences, and other stn ct res must tje instaJled at locaiions that do rrot a fect

the safe c3peration of PG8' s facilifies. Neav et uiprr en# access to our faci[ ities must be

maintained ai all times_ Metai fences arQ to be grounded to PG8 E specifica# ions. No walE, fence
or other like structure is to be installed vwifhin 10 feei Qf tower footings and unrestricted access

must be ma[ ntained from a tower structure tv the nearest street. S/ alls, fe ces and other

structures propased along or w. ithin fhe fee strip( s} andAor easement( s) wiU require PGB E
review; submii p(ans ta PC E Centralized Review Team f review arxl ccamment.

4. Landscaping: Vegetat rr ay b e a!luwed; subject ta review af pians. C1n overhead electric
transmission fee sUip{ s) andi' r easement( s}, trees and shrubs are limited to those varieties that
do not exceed 15 feet in hetighf at maturity. PGB E must have access to its facilities at all# imes,
including access by heavy equipment. No plarrting is ta oca r within the fvotprint of the tower
legs. Greenbetts are encouraged.

5. Reservoirs, Surr s, Drainac Basins, and Ponds: Prahibited with6n PGBE' s fee strip( s)
and/ or easement( sj for electric# ransmission lines.

6. Automobile Parking: Short term p lcing af mawable passer ger vehi ies ar I€ght irucks
pickups, vans, etc.) is alkav aed. The lighting wdhin these padting areas witl need to be reviewed

by PGBE; approval wiil be on a case by case basis. 9ieavy equipment access to PGBE facilities
is to be maintained at all times. Parkireg is to clear PGBE st€uciures by at least 9 D feet.
Protectian of PGB E faci9Etiies( rom vehicular traffic is to be provi ed at devetopePs expense, 4lVD
to PGB,E spec cations. Block d-up Wehicles are not alfc ww ed_ Carp4rts, cartopies, or awnings
are not allowed.

7. Storage of Fiarrrmable, Eacpkisive or Corrosive Materia s= The e shall be no storage of fuel or

combustibles and na fuelfng of vehicles within PGBE' s easement. No trash bins ar incineratars
are atlowed.

FG& E Gas and Electric Facilities Page 5

23  ,       .

572



Pacr ic C s rrd

i   
Ele tri tr t rrg

8. Streets and Rcsads: Acc ss to facilities musf be maintained at all times. S#reet lights may be
atlowed in the fee st ip{s) andlar easement( s} b t in alt cases rntast t e reviewed by PG& E tor
prop er clearance. Roacfs and tili es should cross the Vansmission easement as nearly ai righi
angles as passible. Rc ad irttersect ns will not be a[towed within the transmission easernent

9. Pipelines: PipeGnes may be atCor ed provided crossiru s are held ta a minimum and to e as
nearly perpendicula€ as possible. Pipeiines within 25 feet o( PGSE structures rQqu€re review by
PGBE. Sprinklers syster s ma},r be aElowed; sutzject to review. Leach fields and septic tanks are

r at allawed_Ccanst€ dion ans musi be subrnitted tc PGS,E far review and approval prior to the
commencement csf arry ccrnsVuctian.

10. Signs: Signs are not a[towed except in rare cases subject to indiuidua[ revisw by PG8 E.

11. Recreation Areas: Playgrour ds, parlcs, ten is courfs, basketbal! courts, barbecue and light
trucks( pickups, vans, etc_)may be al awed; subject#o review of p ans. Heavy equiprnent
access to PGBE facilities is to l maintained at all# imes. Paricir g is to clear PGBE structur es by
at leas# 10 feet. Pro#ect c f PGBE facilities fiam vehicular tra c is to be provided at
developer" s expense AN to PG& E specifications.

12. Consfruc#ivn Aet vify_Since constru[ ion acfiviiy will take place near PGSE' s ove€head
etectric lines, p9 ase k e advised Fs the contractor' s responsibility to t aware of, and obsenre

ihe min mum cCearances for both wx rkers and equipment operatir near high voltags electric

lines set ot t in# I e High- Vc Etage Elecirica! Safety Clyders af ihe Califomia Division af Industria[
Safety( https:/ fw uw. dir_c<_ govlTide8/ sb5 2. html), as well as any other safety regulations.
ConUadors shalf comply w fh Califomia Pubtic iJiilifies Gomrrtission General Order 95

http: JJ v vc_ cpue_ca_ av+°os+G 95l 0 95 startup na e. ht n17 and a! t other safety rx les_ No
construct on may occur w tl in 25 ieet of PGBE' s towers. All excavation activities may only
commence aRer 819 protacots has been fol eved_

Contractar shat[ ensure the protec eon af PGBE' s towers and paies from vehieular damage by
installing protective ba€ iees) Plarts for p o3ectian barriers must be approved by PGBE priar ta

constnact n.

13. PGBE is aEso the wner oi disintwtion facilities trroughaut many oT the areas wiihin the
state o'f Caiifam a_ Tt erefore, any ptans ihat irnpact PGBE' s facilities must be reviewed and
approved by PG& E fo ensure t racE no impac#gccurs thai may endanger the safe and reiia le
operati vf its taciHties.

PG& E Gas and Electz ic Facilities Page 6

24  ,     _ 

573



Response to Comment E— Pacific Gas & Electric

Response E- 1: The commenter provides the Pacific Gas & Electric information and requirements

for gas and electric facilities.  No response to this comment is required.

25  `' ;  ;, m:

574



Eavironmental Heal Department

U P T,____     Jagjit Kang, REHS, Director
llfurtlYppa MalW{, REH3, AssistANAir iCtgr

l.7it' a: '.     :: ae. .,.

PROGRAM COOR0INATORS

ROEert McClelbn. REHS

JeftCartue co. RfiNS, RDI

tMBy Np. REM&
eiissa N aa+m. REHS

St va S+tt+b RENS

August 25, 2021

Ta: City oi Lathrop Community Develapment Qepartment
Atten#ion: t?avid Niskanen

From Aldara Salinas, 209- 616- 3019

Envi nmentad Health Speciatist

RE: GPA- 20-139, RE2-20- 140, SPR- 20-141, and TPM- 20- 142 Re#e raM SU0014351

1520 lathrop Rd,, l.athrop

The San. laaquin County Enviranmentai Health Qepartment( EMD) is suppartive of this projed in regards
to the pravision of full public services, The EFIL7 requesks the folaowing comments be added to ihe above
project far consideratiorr.

1.  Any existing weils or septic systems to be abandoned shall be destrayed under permit and inspection
6y the EHD( an Joaquin County L1eveEapment TitEe, Section 8- 1110. 3& 9- 1 t 10. 4}.

2,  Any geotechnica{ driUmg shall be ctsnducted under permit and inspection 6y The Environmenial
Heafth Department( San Jaaquin County i evelcapment Titfe, Sectian 9- 1115 3 and 9- 1115. 6).

3.  Betare any hazardous materials/ waste can be stared or used ansite, the ownerloperator must report
the use or skorage of these hazardous materiafs to the CaRifomia Environmentel Reporting System
CERS) at cers.caleua.ca. avl and comply with the laws and regulations fnr the programs listetl below
based on quantity of hazardous material in some cases} The applicant may contact the Program

Coordinatnr f the CUPA pragram, Melissa Nissim( 209) 468- 318$, with any questions,
a.  Any amount but not limite+d to the follawing hazardous waste; hazardous matenal spills, used oil,

used ail filters, used oil- cflntaminated absarbentldebris, waste antif eeze, used batteries or other

universal waste, etc.— Hazarslous YYasCe P" rogram( ki alth& Safety Code( FISC} Sections 25404
25180 et sec.)

b. Onsfte treatment of hazardous waste — Naaardous Waste Treatment Tiered Permitting
F- 1

Pragram ( HSG 5ect+ons 254D4 8 25200 et sec. & Californ" ra Cade of Regulations ( CCR}, Titie

22, Section 67d50. 1 et sec.)

c.  Reptartable quarrtiti s of hazardous materials- reportabEe quantities are 55 galfons or mor of
iquids, 50U pounds for safidsr or 2Q0 cubic feet for compressed gases> with some exceptions.

Carban dioxide is a regulated substance and is required ta be reparted as a hazardous material

if storing 1, 204 cubic fieet ( 137 pounds) or more onsite in San Joaquin County— Hazardous

Materiats Busi ess Ptan Program{ NSG Sectians 25508& 255Q0 et sec. y

d. Anv amount oi hazardous maferial stored in an Underground Storage Tank — Underground

Storage Tank Program( HSC Seetions 25286 8 25280 t sec. j

i.   If en underground storage tank { UST) system will be instafted, a permit is required to be
subm t ad to, and appraved by, ths San Joaqu+n Caunty Envirr nmental Health bepartmer#
EHD) befare any UST installation work can begin.

1868 E. Hazelton Aventwe Stackton. Catifo nia 952Q5 C T 209 46& 3420 F 249 464-0138  www sjgov.orgJehd

26  ;' : p,

575



Page 2 of 2

ii.   Additionally, an EHD UST permit to aperate is r equired once the approved UST system is
instailed.

e.  StoraS e af at least 1. 32( l qailons of petroleum abovegraund or any amaunt of peiroleum stored
below grade in a vault- Abaveground Petroleum Storaye Program( HSC Sections 2527. 6&
25270 et sec.)

F- 1
i.   5pili Prevention, Countermeasures and Control{ SPCC) Plan requirement

f.  1' hreshoid c uantities of regulated subst nces stared onsite - California Accidentat Release

Prevention( CatARPy Program( Titie 19, Sectian 2735.4& HSC Section 25531 et sec.}

i.   Risk Managem8nt Plan requiremer t for ca erscE processes

I# yau have any questions,  please call Aldara 5alinas.  Environmental Heafth Specialist,  af
asalinas u sjgov. arg ar( 2Q9) 616- 3019.

Steven Shih, REHS

Program Coordinator

27I :' .    .

576



Response to Comment F— San Joaquin Environmental Health Department

Response F- 1: The commenter provides the requirements for the San Joaquin Environmental

Health Department. These comments are substantially similar to the memorandum dated
February 5, 2021 and have been incorporated into the Conditions of Approval. No further
response to this comment is required.

28  ;> ., LL,

577



S J O G, Inc.

559 Fazt Stieber. Lxcmae. t,.,. CA 95d72.(` 091? 35-Ori00. FAX!? A4} 5-p}3S

Smg jcaza sirb' c i+mty Mxitti- 5 vecics Hubitnt Conscrvntiart Zr Oprra Sprue Pl sr( 5).'4SSCPJ

SJMSCP RESPC}; ISE TO LOCAL JURISL7ICTION{ RTLj)
ADVISOIiY AGENCY 1VOTICE TO SJCC7G, Inc.

Tc:       C avid N Fcarien, G y f Lathrop, Crxnr ily Devek ptnent Departrnent

Frattt:    La e9 Bc yrd. SJCOG, InC.

Date:     Augttst 12, 2D21

Locai Jur sdiction Project Title: IJ ce of Av t iiy& htent to Adapt a MiUgated Negative Dedar

Assessor Parcel Number( sj:   19& 040- 1d

Local Jurisdictian Prajec# Number.     GPI 2Q- 139, REZ- 20- 74d, SPR- 20- 141, TPNi- 20- 1A2

Total Acres to be convertad from Open Space Use: Unknown

Habita# Types to be Oisturbed:  Urban Habitat Land

Species Impact Findings:     Findings to be defermined by SJMSCP biologist.

Dear Mr. Niskanen:

SJCOG, Inc. has revrewed the Ncstice oi Avaitabilit}+and Intent to Adapt a Mitigated Negat ve ecla€atian for the Scanneil

Properties tndustriai Projecl. The roposed project wouid develop the 18. 2 acre vacanf ptoject site with fhree industrial
warettouse buildings. The frst inefusirial warehouse buiiding{ Building 1) would be located in the no€trier portion of 1he
project site and have a buikiing footprint of approximatety 7, 200 square feet on a 6. 54- acre site. Suilding 2 would be
located in the soulhwest portion of the Project site and have a building foo#print of appruximaUeEy 78, 400 square feet ara a
5. 58- acre s te. Buildsng 3 would be iocated in the southeast portion of the project site and have a building footprint of
approximateiy d2, 55 square feet on a 3.50- acre site. The total building square faotage for all buildings would be 194, 16U
square feet_  The project would inciude 236 standard automobi e parking spaces, 14 accessible automobile parking
spaces, and an additianal 10t VuckRraNler parking spaces, loading areas, and a stormwater reteniianlinfiitraiion hasin.
Approximat ery 1D% ( appraximatefy 172, QU4 square feet would be dedicated to warehause uses.  T e project sife is
located at 152fl Lathrop Rbad, Lathrop( APN: 198- 040- 14).

The City oi Lattrrap ] s a s+ atory to San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat Canservation and Open Space P an
SJMSCP).. Partoclpation in the S, JMSCP satisfies requirements of tx»th the state and federal endangered species acts,

and ensures that ihe irnpacts are mitigated t elow a leve! of significance in compliance with the CaN[4mia Environmental

Quality Acf( CE4A)_ Ttre LC CAL JtJRiSDICTION retains responsibitity for ensuring that 4he appr r ate Inciderttal Take

fNinimizaUon tv9easure ar pr p rPy km¢ Eemented and monitored and thai appropriate fees ar paod in compliance wifh the
SJWISCP. Althaugh pa€ticipat n in the SJh+1SCP is vWuntary, Local Jurisdictianftead Agencies strould be aware that if
prn} eci applicanls choose aga€nsi partieipating in the SJMSCP, they will be required to provide atte€native miiigafion in an

G- 1

amo nt and kind equal to th34 proy ied in the SJMSCP.

This ProJect 1s su6jeci ro ihe SIMSCP. 7h s can be up to a 30 day process ann ii 1s recommentletl that ihe projecl
appCican# contact SJMSCP staff as earty as possible. It is also recommended that the projed applicant obtain an
informat n pacicage. t, tt: J v oo. o a

Please contact S..iMSCP staf regarding completing tYre following steps to satisfy SJMSGP requirements:

Schedule a SJMSCP Biodogist to perform a pre- construction survey priar to any ground disiurbance

SJAa1SCP Incadental take h7inirnization Measures and mitiga2ion requirement:

I.  7a.cadentaS Take P..*+: zeaa St4ea: uxe( ITI fi1i.} wil! be issued to the project and mu: t be agaed by 11te ptoject appliean[ pruoz to aay
p aua3 di; nabance bnt ao Yatez r an sa( 6} mouth finm xeceigt of the IT:4LY4s. If ITAiMs axe noi agued withia sic moaeh;„ the applicaat
mast reapg3y fa SJR45C: F Ca* enge. ii,pem receipt of zigped ITt Il4is from project applicant, SJLOG, dnc.; ta#Iaill si n the IIRf 1:. T' hi
i: effxtire daze of tLe 172oth4:.

3 Undes ao cucs; taaee: lvll grou sd dizturbance ocnv ithaut con pliance and, ati; faetioo of the IIMhSs
3.  Upoa i;suavice of fnlly esecnted Tfi ibis aod prior ro auy grouad di tucbaxtce, the pxoject appfumt mu t:

29  ;' .: v ,

578



J..;_ 3d..   81t'

a.  Po. i a boad fox paymenx of the applicab3e SJMSC' P fee corriing! de eatireh of the prajeet acreage being co ered( the baad

houid be alid ks no Pougei thaa a b ownth periad) or
b.  Pay dve appmpriate S7?.3SC P fee for ihe enrirety of the p=oject acitage beirag rocered: m
c.  Dedacabe laad m- Tien of fees, eifher u con.; enatton ea; Pment, or£ ee atle; or

d.  Pwrda; e app nre d mingatiaa baak eredit.
4.  bt' idvn 6 montfis 6 rhe effectnY daae of the TTZtiAf or i. uwce of a buit,. peimit, atuchex-er occnr. first, ihe proyrct agglicmt mu_t

a.  Pay the appropriate 5TSSStP for the entuety of the yrajeM acrrage 6eing rm ved; m 

7

b.  Deduate laad in-heu oF fees, either as cowen- atioa ea; ement: or fee tisle; ox V- 1

e.  Pvrchr.e approred msagahon bank credits.

Failure W; ati.. f} the obligation. of t e aiitigalion fee zhall zubject the bond to be ea ed.

Receive your Gerki cate of Payment and release the requi€ ed permii

t shoufd be arod i thaC d thrs pro ect has anp patentia! rmpacts to waters ot the UnReA States( pursuanf to Sectron 4tld Clean Wo[ et Ac1f, it wouid requi e
the pru}ecd to seek wotunCary coveroge through the unmapped process umter the SJMSCP wrirch couh! take up to 90 days. lt may be, vnsdent to obtain a
predrmrnaay srePdands ma{ a hom a puatifie i consrtilnnt. If vsaters o( the Unifed States rire confumed on the pro/ ect site,! he Cqrps and the Regfanal Water

uolety Co-aehod Board( FtWOCB) xrould hove regulatar}+ 3uthoriry over those mapped areas jpursuant to Secfion 404 and f0i of ttre Clean Water AM
respecLvely] an t pe.m ds woufd be requrre f from each of Nrese resource agencies prror to gratting ihe pro/ ec! sife.

f you have any questrons, please cail( 209) 235- 0600_

30  -.  , ,

579



3  Jt t) t ,  I t

S J C Gi G, Inc.
San Joagrrrn Coxnit LftrlPr- S res HaJ iaàt Con. rcrcn ian' D,pen S re PlrrrJ

55 East We1 er Avenue. Stocktrny CA 9;i2 2.{ 2U9 23s- U lJO• FAJi( 209) 23- 0 13$

SJMSCP Hf LD

TO:      local Jurisdictian: GcsmmuniN Deve6opment E epartmeni, Planninq Departrr ent, Buiidinq

3epartment. Engineering Department. Su[ vey Departmeni. Transportation Department.
other:

FROM:   laure{ Boyd, SJCOG, Inc.

n :

1   I ' C... 4.

The landowrrerldeveloper for this site hes requested caverage pursuant to the San Joaquin Courrty Muiti-
Species Habitat Conser+tat n and Open Space Plan SJh,îSCP). in accarcfance with thai agreement, the
Applicant has agreed to:

i)    SJMSCP Incidenfat Take Mt€nim zation M4easu€ es and rnmtigaiion requirement:

1_  Incidental Takt Ai*+=rn;>+ K, h4easw es{ IT? L41s) e 11 be i.,su d to the projtM and mnst be sig d by the
project applicaat piior to aay groua3 dunarbaxsce bat na later tt an six( 6) moutlts fram receipt of! he I L\4s.
If ITA 4Ls are not iened smithin six naauti s, the appBicant nast mapgly for SJ iSCP Coceragt. Upom receipt
of sieped ITh314Ls& rnn prcject applicaui SiCL7Ca, Iac. staff eeill sig the I'FhIIVIs_ This is the effetticr date
of the TI14L' bt.

2.  L:uder no cuciunstance shall gra ttad disavaba e. ccsu vc- thaut campliauce and satisfaction o£ ttte ITi C4is.
l  '      3_  LTpan issiuriee of flil2y esecuted FfTe ifs and pric7r tm amy gXoiusd dishubance, the pm,yect appticant umst:

a_ Pc t a bc nd£ ca pa5 nreat of ih applicab4 i.SCP fer covering the eatirety of the project acreage
i          

being so ered{ che baaxd s sould be tia Fa! f s no lamger ti ua a 6 month perio; oc
b. Pay the appropriate SJ fSCP fee fm Yhe en et. r ofthe pmject acreage t eiug tasered; ar
c Dedicate] and iu- Lieu a€ fee. cit n a^:can.ex.• atian easeureuts ar Fee tit3e; or

d. Purchase appro.-pd misiga3icsm b credits.

S' ithin 6 months frr+m the effecfic• e date a: the iI1L'41s o:' wa9tauee of a bnilding pesmit, whichecrx occtus
5rst. the project applicazst mmst_

a Psy tlu apgn} xratr SJ&iSGP fai flxe tmtianc oS' she project acreage beiag cocrred; or
b. Dedicate laad in- itu af feew eicf er a: cc sseas.-ation easrmrnts or fee title; or

c Ru cha, e apprc- rd uutsgaf on bm t: credit.

Faihue to sati; fy the obligatwns of the a tieaticns fee sL6a11 sixbject the bond to be called.

Praject Title: Notice of Availabi3ity an i Intent tv A apt a Miit. Neg. Dec. for Scannei! Prvperties

Assessor Parcel# s: 193- C 10- 14

c.:
T R       , Sec#ion( s)-

Local Jurisdicfion Contact Qauid Niskanen

U The LOGAL JURISDICTI N retain respansibility far ensuring that the appropriate
Inciderrtai Take Minimizativn Measures are property impiemented and monitored and that
appropriate fees are paid in campliance with the SJMSCP.

31  ,;; :   

580



Response to Comment G— San Joaquin Council of Governments

Response G- 1: The commenter provides information related to the San Joaquin County Multi-
Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan ( SJMSCP).  The IS/ MND includes Mitigation

Measures BIO- 1 and BIO- 2 which require the Project applicant to seek coverage under the

SJMSCP and to arrange for a qualified biologist to conduct a preconstruction survey for nesting
raptors.  No further response to this comment is warranted.

32  ;= .

581



San loaquin Valle     
AIR POLLUTION GO ITROL DISTRECT NEAITHY AI R LIVING.

Augusf 31, 202 t

Davic! Niskanen

City of L ithrop

Community Develoament Departn enE
390 Towne Centre Orive

Lathrop, CR, 95330

Project: Initial StudyiMitigated Negative Declaratian - Scanneli Praperties
Industriai Projec#

Distric# CEQA Reference No: 24210853

Dear A 1r. Niskanen_

The San Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pc ll rtion Control District( aistrict} has reviewed the
Initial Study; l litigated PJegati e Declaratian ( ISIMND) for the project referenced above
from the City o# Lathrop City}. The project con ists of canstructing three indust€ial
warehause builc4ings Eacated an 182 acres( Project). The PrQjeet is located at 1520

Lathrop Road, in Lathrap, CA( APN 198- 040- 14). The District offers the following
camments:

1) Proiect Scope
H- 1

The Praject 4vauld construct and develop three industrial warehauss buildings wfth
laading docks on 18. 2 acres.

Builcfing 1: would be C4caied in the northern{ fl tion of the Praject site and have
a buifding fc otprint of approximately 70, 200 square feet an a 6. 54- acre site.

Building 2= waufd be located in ths outhwest portion of the Project sit and
have a building faatprSnt of approximately 78, 4 0 square feet vn a 5_58- acre
site.

sem She; kn

fMEEll9NY8 Qtf2CEfY({ M Ob04WR IS40A Qfk[ Ckf

Narthmrn Repaan Carttr! Ne mn 3Mairt Uf7isa}     rn kppjpn

A8k4#3 Ertte[' vese W94 799t1€. Guftysiv"wg Ar es laiY 9Q F8qa1' r CBIINR

kl lesbm, CA 85 5& 6128 Fs a. CA 5372& 2AA 6 karaf kd, Cd 93 OA 8725

leY x2119155t64IXi FA% 92(}' 557 Ad15 tel i46992311i 7t' i fAA( 55 i2,#} 6114it i ctN6lt: i3Z5 a0p} A; t.{#? fi, 3925 sR5

rrrw.va Y e. or    weuwr. I atsAY riieq.zr n

a. e,..,., eaw Q

33   .

582



San Joaquiia Va eq Air P Hution ControY Qistrrct Page 2

District Reterence Ne. 202 f 0853

August3}, 2fi2i

Building 3: vaould be lacated in tl e so theast portian of the Project site and
hawe building fao#print of approximately 42,560 square f et on a 3. 5(7- cre
site.

The total building square footage for all buildings wauld be 1 J1,' 160 square feet.
Appr+ ximately 30°.0 ( approximately 99,' I' 16 square feei) of the bui[ ding square
faotage woutd be dedicated fo office uses, while the remainder of ttae bui[ ding
square footage( approxin ately 172, t 04 square feet} would be dedicated to H- 1
warehouse uses.

The Project v rauld include 236 standard automobile parking spaces, 14" accessible"
auton7ob le parking spaces, and an aclditional 1Q9 truck rtrailer parking spaces,
loading reas, and a storm water retentioniinfiltration basin_

The Project would also involve a rezone from Commercial Service, as identified in

the Lathrop Zoning a tap by the City of La#hrap, to the General Incfustrial zoning nd
a General Pian amendment.

2) Criteria Pollutant Emiss"rons

At ths federal level under the National Ambient Air Quality Standards( tVAAQS), the
District is designated as extreme nonattainment for the$- hour ozone standards and

seric us nonattainmen# for the particulate niatter less than 2_5 microns in size
Ph12_5) standards. At the state Isvel under California Ambient Air Gluality Standards
CAAQS), the District is designaked as nonattainment far the 8- hour ozone, PI 11Q,

Ph92. 5 standards.

Per the ISiMND, construction and aperation en3issions of criteria pollutants wc uld
not exceed ny of the following District sign cance thr sholds: 100 tans per year of
carl on monoxide( CO), 10 tons per year of oxides of nitrogen ( NOx, 10 tons per H_2
year c f reactive organic gases( ROG), 27 tons per year of oxides of sulfur( St x), 15
toi s per year of particulate matter of' 10 microns or Eess in size{ PRA' 10}, or 15 tons
per year of par#iculate matter of 25 microns or less in size( Ph92. 5) Construction
Emissions. Please nrte, operational emissians from the Praject may have been
underestimated ( see comment 3 below).

Afthtiugh Project construction air emissions are short- term emissions g nerated from
cvnstructian activities such as mobile heavy- duty diese[ off- raad equiprnent and are
determined to resuli in a less than significant impact an air quaEity, the District
recommends the below measure far the Project_

Recomri enclec! h teasure: To reduce impacts from construc6on- retated ciiesel

exh ust emissians, the project should utilize clean aff-road constrc ction equipmen#,
including the latest tier equipment as feasible.

34  '  :  _ .

583



San JAaquin YaJ1ey Arr PoAution Controf DisbicC Page 3

Drstrict Raterence No. 202 f 0853

August3Y, 202f

3) Off-Site Neavy Heavv-Duty Truck Travei

The 1S?P iND incficates that specific tenant has not been identified far the Project and

as such assessed the operational emissions based on the patentia! o# the Praject
being aperated for an industri l or manu#acturing use consistent with the requested
Genera[ Plan amendment However, the IS hi1ND may not have characterized an
apprapriate trip length distance far off-site heavy heavy- duty{ HHD} truck travel.
Based an the following factors: 1} the Project eonsists of a+avarehause developrnent
for potential industrial or manufacturing use which rypieally could invalve a high H- 3
voliime oi HHD Truck trip generation for distribution, and 2) HHD tnacks generaNy
travel further distances for distribution, it appears inaccurate to incorporate a default

defivery trip Isngth assurnption af 7_3 miles as reflected in the Califomia Emissions
Estimator Nlodel{ CalEEI4 ad} analysis in Appendix A CalEEfeqod Results).

Therefare, the District recommends the IS1 9ND be revised to include a discussion

characterizing an appropriate trip length distance for HHC} truck travel, ar d re#lect

the appropriate distance in the air quality analysis for cansistency.

4) Praiect Related Ooeratianal Emissions- Cleanest Available Trueks

The San Joaquin Ualley will not be able ta att in sfringent health- based federal air
quality standards withaut significant recluctions in emtssio as fram HHD trucks, the

sfngle largest source of lOx emissions in the San Joaquin b aEley. The District
recently adopted the 2018 PM2_5 Plan which includes significant new reductions

fram HHD Trucks, including en issions reductic ns by 2023 through the
impiernentation of the California Air Resources Board( CARB) Statewide Tre ck and

Bus Regulation, which requires truck fleets operating in alifornia io meet the 2010
C1. 2 g bhp-hr NOx standard by 2023. Addition Cly, ta meet the federa9 air quality
standards by the 2020 to 2024 attainm i t deadEine, the District' s Plan relies an a

ignificant and immediate transitian of heavy duty truck ffeets to zera or near- zero
err issions technalogies, including the near- zero truck standard of 0_02 g- ND dbhp- hr

H- 4
estabfished by the Califomia Air Resources Board.

This warehause development Praject is expected ta result in an increased amount of

HHD truck traveling to- and- from fram the project lacatic n. To reduce impacts fran
these aperational mobi(e source ernissions, the Di trict recommends that khe

fall 4ving clean air measures be considered for fnclusion in the ISIMND.

Advi e fleets associated with Project operational acti ities to utilize the cleanest

available HHD truck technologies, including zero and near- zero( 0_02 glbhp- hr
N( 3x} technologies as feasible.

Rdvise all on-site senrice equipment( cargo handlfng, yard hostlers, forkEiffs,
paElet jacks, etc.) to utilize zero- emissions Eechnolagies as feasble_

35  :'     ,

584



San Joaquin Vaffey Air Potfut on Gontmt t3fstrkr Fage 4

Distrtct Reference No. 202 i 0853

Augnst 3 f, 2021

5) Proiect Related Operational Emissions- Truck i2auting

Truck routing involves the pathiroads heavy- duty trucks take to and from their
destination. The air emissions from heavy- cluty trucks can impact residential
cammunities and sensitive recsptors_

The District recammends ttre 1 1 7A D evaluate HHD truck routing patterns to help
limit emission exposure to residential communities and sensitive receptors_ More H- 5

specifcally, this measure would assess current truck routes, in consideration of the

nun7ber and type a# each ehicte destinati4nlongin of each vehicular trip: time of
daylweek an lysis, vehicle miles traveted and emissions_ The truck routing

valuation would also identify altemative truck raut s and their impacts on V1 1T and
air quality_

6) Proiect Related Operational Emissians- Reduce ldlinp of Heaw Heaw- Dutv
Trucks

The goa! of this strategy is to limit the potentaal for laca3ized PNt2. 5 and toxic air
yuality impacts associated with failure to comply with the state' s heavy- duty anti-
idling regulation( e.g 3imiting vehicie id6ng to specific time limits). The diesel exhaust H- 6
fram excessive idlir g has the pa#ential to irnpose significant adverse health and
environmental impacts. Therefc re, efforts to ensure compliance of the anti- idling
regufation, especially near s€ nsitive receptors, is irnportant to limit the amount of

idling within the community, whicF will result in cornmunity air quality benefits.

7) Ve etative Barriers and Urban Greening

The DistricE suggests the City cc nsider the feasibility of incorporating vegetative
barriers and urb n greening as a measure tm further reduce air pollution expasure an
nearby receptars{ e_g. , chooEs, residences, business, etc)_

H- 7
Wh(le various emission coniral technique and programs exi t to reduce air quality
emissions from rnobi[ s anti sfatiflnary saurces, vegetative barriers have been shown
to be an additionaE ine sUre to potentiably reduce a population` s exposure to air
pollution through the interception of airbome particles nd the uptake af g seaus
pollutants. Examples of vegetatirre barriers include, but not lim ted to the following:
trees, bushes, shrubs, or a mix of fhese. Gener lly, a higher and thicker vegetakive
baRier with full coverage wilt result in greafer reductians in downwind pollutant
concentrations. In the same m nner, ur#an greening is also a way to help improve
air quality and public hsalth in addition ta enhancing the averali beautification of a
community with dre ught resistant low maintenance greenery_

8) Salar Declovment in the Communitv

It is the policy of the State of Califcrrnia that renewable energy resources ancf zero-      
H- g

carbon resaurces supp y t f°a af retail sales of electrieity ta Califomia end- use

36  ,  .  _

585



San Joaquin Valiey Air Folludaon Gantroi Ilistricr Paqe

Drstrict Re/erence A}a. 202 f 0853

August 34, 262i

customers by December 1, 2045. LNhile various en ission control techniques and

programs exist to reduce air quality emission from mobile and stationary s ur s, H_g
the production c,f solar energy is contributing ta im iroving air quality and public
health. The District suggests that the Project proponent consider the feasibility c f

Continued)

incorporating solar power sysfem, as an emission reduction strategy for this
Project.

S) Charge Up! Electric Vehic{ e Ghar er

To support fu her installation of electric vehicle charging equipment and
de efopmeni of such infrastructure, the District offers incentives ta pubfic agencies,
businesses, and property owners of multi- unit dwellnigs to install electric chargint
infrastructure( Level 2 ar d 3 charger). The purpose of this incentive prograrn is to H-9
prornote clean air alternative- hiel technologies and the use af low ar zero- emission

vehicles. The District suggesis that the Ciry and Project proponent cc nsider the
feasibility of instal6ng e{ectric vehicie chargers for this Project.

Please visit www. vaPlevair. orq, qran#slcharqeup. htm for more informatior.

70) District Rules and Reaulation

The District issues permits far many types of air pollutian sources and regulaies
some aciivities not requiring permits_ A project subject fo District rules and
regufation would red ce ita irnpacts on air quality through compliance with regulatory
req uirements. In general, a regulation is a collection of rules, each of which deaCs
with a specific iopic. Nere are a couple of example, Regulation II ( Permfts) deals

wfth permitfing emission saurces and includes rufes such as District psrmit
requirements( RuEe 20' 10}, Ne, v and Mociified Stationary Source Review( Ftule 2201},
and impEementation of En iasian Reduction Credit Banking ( Rule 2301).

H- 10
The list of rules belaw is neit€ er exhaustive nor exclusive_ Current District rules car

be found online at: www. valfevair. orq' rulesJ9rufeslisthtm. To identify other District
rule or regulations that apply to this Project or to ob#ain information aboui Districk
permit requirements, the appiicant is strongly encouraged to contact the District' s
Small Business Assistanc SB/) Office at( 2t79) 557- 6446_

10a) District Rules 201 Q and 2201 - Air QuaiitY Permitting for Stationary Sources

Stationary Saurce emissions incl tde any bulding, structure, faciiity, or installatian
wrhich emifs ar may emit any affected pollutant directly or a a fugitive emissian.
Distnct Rule 2090 requires operator o# emission sources to obtain an Authariry
ta Construct( ATC} and Permit to Operate( PTO) from the District. District Rule

2209 requires that new and modified statianary sources of emissions rnitigate
their emissions using best available control technology( BACT).

37  ' . - .

586



San Joaqurn VaA'ey Air Foltr n Can#rol Bisfrict Fagc&

Disdriet Refere nce 1hFo. 202 f0853

August3J, 2621

This Project may include equipment tha# is subject to Distrief RuCe 20' 10 ( Fermits
Required) and R ile 22 1 ( New and Modi# ied Statior ary Source Review) and

may require Gistrict permits, such as interF al cambustion emergency back- up
generators greater than 50 bhp_

Prior to cammerrcing constructian on any permit-€equired equipment ar process,
a finalized Atithority to Construct( ATC) must be issued to the Project propanent
by the Disfrict. For further information or assistance, the project propanent may
contact the District' s Sr all Business Assistance{ SBA) O ce at( 209) 557- 6446.

10b} District Rule 9510 tlndirect Source Review)

The purpose af Oistrict Rc le J5 10{ Indirect Source Review) is to reduce the
growth in both NOx and Pi 110 emissians ass+aciated wi#h deve9opn ent and

transportation projects from mobile and area saurces ssc ciated with

construction and aperafion af deveEopment projects_ The rule encourages clean

air d: sign elements to be incorporated into the develapment project_ In ease the

propased project clean air design eksments are ins ffic ent to meet the targeted

emissian reductions, the ru[ e requires dsvelopers to pay a fee used to fund

pre jec#s ta achieue off- site emissions reductiions_

H- 10
The propased Prflject is subject ta District Rule 9510 because it wiCl receive a

peoject- level discretianary approvaE fram a public agency and vifl equa9 or exceed
COntlnued,

25, 0 square feet of light fndustrial space. When subject ta the r€ le, n Air

Impact Assessment( AIA) appli cation is required prior ta applyin for praject- level
approval from a public agency_ In this case, if not already done, please inform
the project propanent tcr immedfately s ihmit an AIA application to the Dist ict to
comply wath District Rule 95' I 0.

An AIA application is required and the District reeommends that demonstratfor of

campliance witt Districf F ule 95' i0, befare issuance of the first building pe€mit,
be made a candition of Project approwal.

Information about how# o comply with District Rule 9510 ean be found c nline at:
http_I/wwtiv. val feva ir.orq! ISRliSRHame. htm.

The A3A applicatipn form can be faund online at:

http_l+'wwrov. val Eeyair. orqlISRJISRFormsAndApplications. l tm.

10c) Dis#rict Reaulation VIII fFuaitive PM10 Prohibitions)

The project proponent may be required to submit a Canstruction Notificatian
Form or submit and receive approv l ofi a Dust Control Plan prior to cammencing
any earthmoving activiEies as described in Regulation Vill, specifically Ruie 021

Cc nstrcrction, Demoli#ioi, Excavatron, Extraction, arrd Other Earthmovinq
1' Cf1Yltf S.

38  ,:. . ,  ,,.

587



San Joaquin Vadey AirPollution Cantroi Dist rct Page 7

DisPrictRete ence Ma. 202YQ853

Augusd 34, 262i

The application for both the Canstruction Notfficatian and Gust Control Plan can

be found oniine at:

https: Ilwww.vallevair. orqlb sindlcompEY:'P 91 fllforn slDCP- Forrn. docx

information about District Regulation VI11 can be found online at:

http: llwww. valleyair. orq+busindJcomply1pm10 compliance uml0. htr

10d) District Rule 9d10( Employer Based Trip Reduction)

The Project may be subject to District Rule tW 10 Employer Based Trip
F2eduction) if the Project would result in employment af 1Q or more" eligible"

employees. District Rule 94' 10 requires employers wifh 104 ar rnare" etigible" H- 10
empfoyees at a worksite to establish an Employer Trip Reduetian Implemsntatifln

continued)
Pl n( eTRIP) that enccsiirages emplayees to red ace sing9e- occupancy v+ehicle
trips, thus reducing pallutant emissions associated with work commukes. Under
an eTRIP plan, employers have the ilexibility ta sele t the options that work best
far their worksites and# heir en3ployees_

lnfom7ation about how District Rule 9410 can be found onlirie at:

www. ua Ilevair. orA tripreduction. htm.

For addikional information, yau can cantact tt e District k y phone af 5 J- 230- 600fl
or by e- mail at eirip valleVair. arc

1 e) Other District Rules and Re ulations

The Project rr ay also be subject to the# ollowing District rules: ule 4902

Nuisance), Rule 4601 { Architectura! Caatings), and Ruls 4641 ( Cuti ack, Slow

Cure, and Emulsified Asphalt, Paving and Maintenance 4perationsj. In the
event an exisling building will be renovated, partially demofished or remove, the

project may be subject to District Rule 4002{ NationaE Emissian Standards for
Hazardaus Air Pollutants}.

39  ' ;    h

588



San Joaqurn Vaffey Air Poflutian t:onfrol LDistr3ct Page 8

District ReTerence No- 202 i 6853

August 3t, 202i

11) District Camrrrent Letter

The District recommends that a copy of the isiricfs comments be provided ta the
Project proponeni_

If yau have any questions or require further in#ormation, please con act Patrick Chin ienti
by e-mail at Patrick_Chimienti avalleyair.Qrq or by phone at( 559) 230- 6139.       

H- 1 1

Sincerely,

Brian Clements

Director of Permit 8erviees

j

a.ux_-

For. Mark Monte{ flngo

Program Manager

40  ,      .

589



Response to Comment H— San Joaquin Vallev Air Pollution Control District

Comment H- 1: The commentor provides an introductory statement and describes the Project

scope. The commentor then restates the results of the IS/ MND regarding criteria air pollutant

emissions ( i. e. that none of the Air District thresholds for criteria pollutant emissions would be
exceeded). No response to this comment is warranted.

Comment H- 2:  The Air District provides a recommended measure to reduce impacts for
construction- related diesel exhaust emissions  —  however,  this measure is not required.

Therefore, no further response to this comment is warranted.

Comment H- 3: The commentor then states that the IS/ MND may not have characterized an

appropriate trip length distance for off-site HHD truck travel. The Air District specifically points
to the CaIEEMod default delivery trip length assumption of 7. 3 miles. However, no specific

information is available to estimate the trip length for Project HHD trucks. In cases where no

specific information is available, the CaIEEMod model guidance directs the modeler to utilize the

CaIEEMod model' s default assumptions. Therefore, no revision to this parameter within the
CaIEEMod model is appropriate. Moreover, for the sake of a conservative assessment, the model

has been rerun internally with a much more conservative assumption for the length of HHD trips
i. e. 50 miles). However, even with this assumption utilized, none of the criteria pollutant or

greenhouse gas emissions thresholds ( as promulgated by the Air District) are exceeded under
this condition, similar to the results reported in the public version of the IS/ MND. Therefore, even

with an unusually conservative assumption for the length of HHD truck travel, the significance

determination for air quality, greenhouse gas emissions, and energy CEQA topics would not be
exceeded. Therefore, no revision to the IS/ MND based on this comment is warranted.

Comment H- 4: The commentor provides additional recommended clean air measure to be
considered for inclusion in the IS/ MND. However, these additional recommended measures are

not required to be implemented, per CEQA. As previously stated, the Project would not exceed

any of the applicable air quality, greenhouse gas, or energy thresholds. Therefore, no revision to
the IS/ MND based on this comment is required.

Comment H- 5: The commentor recommends that the IS/ MND evaluate HHD truck routing
patterns to help limit emission exposure to residential communities and sensitive receptors.

Specifically, the commentor identifies that it would be helpful for existing truck routes to be
evaluated. However, an analysis of existing truck routes to help limit emissions exposure is not
required as part of a CEQA analysis. Therefore, no revision to the IS/ MND based on this comment
is required.

Comment H- 6: The commentor identifies that reducing idling of HHD trucks is a goal of the Air
District. This comment is noted. No revision to the IS/ MND based on this comment is required.

Comment H- 7: The commentor suggests that the City consider the feasibility of incorporating
vegetative barriers and urban greening as a measure to further reduce air pollution exposure on

41  ' ,   ;.

590



nearby receptors.  However, as previously stated, the Project would not exceed any of the
applicable air quality, greenhouse gas, or energy thresholds. Therefore, no revision to the
IS/ MND based on this comment is required.

Comment H- 8:  The commentor states that renewable energy resources and zero-carbon
resources are anticipated to supply 100% of retail sales of electricity in California by 2045. The

commentor suggests the Project proponent consider the feasibility of incorporating solar power

systems as an emissions strategy for the project. This recommendation is not required, per CEQA.
Therefore, no revision to the IS/ MND based on this comment is warranted.

Comment H- 9: The commentor states that further installation of electric vehicle charging
equipment and development of such infrastructure is incentivized by the Air District. The

commentor suggests that the City and Project proponent consider the feasibility of installing
electric vehicle chargers for the Project. This recommendation is not required,  per CEQA.
Therefore, no revision to the IS/ MND based on this comment is warranted.

Comment H- 10: The commentor provides a list of potentially relevant Air District rules and
regulations. No response to this comment is warranted.

Comment H- 11: The commentor provides a closing statement.  No further response to this
comment is warranted.

42  3: ,  :
Y . y

591



ATTACHMENT "  3    `°

CITY OF LATHROP

PLANNING COMNIISSION RESOLUTIOI\ T NO. 21- 24

A RESOLUTION C?F THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF THE INITIAL

5TUDY/ MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATTON FOR THE SCANNELL
PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PROJECT (GPA-20- 139, REZ-20- 140, SPR-20- 141,

AND TPM-20- 142)

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed puhlic meeting
to consider the Scannell Properties Industrial Project pursuant to the Lathrop Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the subject parcel currently has a Service Commercial  ( SC) General Plan

designation, is located within the Commercial Service ( CS) Zoning District; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a General Plan Land Use Map Amendment to General
Industrial ( GI) and Zoning Map AmendmenC to General Industrial ( IG);

VHEREAS, the request is for a Site Plan Review to construct three ( 3) new industrial

warehouse buildings totaling 191, 160 sq. ft. in size.  Specifically, Building 1 would be located in the
northern portion of the project site and have a building footprint of approximately 0, 200 sq. ft.
Building 2 would be located in the southwest portion of the site and have a building footprint of
approximately 78, 400 sq. ft. and Building 3 would be located in the southeast portion of the project
site and have a buildin footprint of approximately 42, 560 sq. ft.  The proposed buildings include a
total of 236 automobile parking spaces, 14 handicap accessible parking spaces and 101 truck trailer
parking spaces in addition to the individual building dock doors.  The project will include various
improvements such as landscaping, Iighting, and extension of public utilities.  A portion of the site
Parcel 4) is proposed as a stormwater retention basin; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a Vesting Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide Che existing
18. 2- acre parcel into four ( 4) parcels: Parcel 1 is 6. 54- acres ( Building 1), Parcel 2 is 5. 58- acres

Building 2), Parcel 3 is 3. 50- acres ( Building 3), and Parcel 4 is 2. 52- acres; and

WHEREAS the property is located at 1520 Lathrop Road ( APN: 198- 040- 14); and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Publie ResoUrce Code Section 21000 et. seq. and State
CEQA Guidelines Section 15000 et. seq., the City of Lathrop prepared and circulated an Initial
Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration for a 20- day public review period beginning August 11,
2021 and ending August 31, 2021, that evaluated the potential environmental effects of the proposed
project; and

WHEREAS,  the Planning Commissian has independently reviewed the information
contained in the Initial Study/ Negative Declaration for the project and any comments received
during the public review period; and

WHEREAS,  the Planning Commission has utilized its own independent judgment in
adopting the Initial Study/ Mitigated Negative Declaration; and

Planning Commission Resolution No. 21- 24 Page 1 of 3

592



WHEREAS, on the basis of the whole record before the Planning Commission, which is
documented in the project files of the City of Lathrop Community Development Department, it was
determined that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment,
required mitigation measures will be implemented to reduce these effects to a less than significant

level. Mitigation measures are incorporated and incltided as part of the Conditions of Approval for
the project; and

WHEREAS, proper notice of this public meeting was given in a11 respects as required by
law; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed all written evidence and oral testimony
presented to date.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of
Lathrop based on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings and pursuant to its
independent review and consideration, hereby recommends the City Council to adopt the Initial
Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration attached and incorporated by reference herein
Attachment 10 of the September 15, 2021 Staff Report), as the appropriate environmental document

for the Scannell Properties Industrial Project pursuant to CEQA.

Planning Commission Resolu[ ion No. 21- 24 Page 2 of 3

593



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Lathrop at a
Regular meeting on the 15`

h
day of September 2021 by the following vote:

AYES:  Dresser, Ishihara, Gatto, Ralmilay

NOES:  None

ABSTAIN:    None

ABSENT:      Rhodes

Steve Dresser, Chair

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM:

k     '   ner,    cretary Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Planning Commission Resolution No. 21- 24 Pa e 3 of 3

594



CITY OF LATHROP

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 21- 25

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL OF THE PROPOSED GENERAL

PLAN LAND USE MAP AMENDM NT AND ZONING MAP AMENDMENT FOR THE

SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL WAREHOUSE ( GPA- 20- 139 & REZ- 20- 140)

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing to
consider the General Plan Land Use Map Amendment and Zoning Map Amendment request
pursuant to the Lathrop Municipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the subject parcel currently has a Service Commercial ( SC) General Plan

designation, is located within the Commercial Serviee ( CS) Zoning District; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a General Pl3n Land Use Map Amendment to General
Industrial ( GI) and Zoning Map Amendment Co General Industrial ( IG);

WHEREAS, the request is for a Site Plan Review to construct three ( 3) new industrial

warehouse buildings totaling 191, 160 sq. ft. in size.  Specifically, Building 1 would be located in the
northern portion of the project site and have a building footprint of approximately 70,200 sq. ft.
Building 2 would be located in the so rthwest portion of the site and have a building footprint of
approximately 78, 400 sq. ft. and Building 3 wouid be located in the southeast portion of the project
site and have a building faatprint of approximately 42, 560 sq. ft.  The proposed buildings include a
total of 236 automobiie parking spaces, 14 handicap accessible parking spaces and 101 truck trailer
parking spaces in addition to the individual building dock doors.  The project will ipcl ide various
improvemenks such as landscaping, lighting, and extension of pubiic utilities.  A portion of the site
Parcel4) is proposed as a stormwater retention basin; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a Vesting Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide the existing
18. 2- acre parcel into four ( 4) parcels: Parcel 1 is 6. 54- acres ( Building 1), Parcel 2 is 5. 58- acres

Building 2), Parcel 3 is 3. 50- acres ( Building 3), and Parcel 4 is 2. 52- acres; and

WHEREAS the property is located at 1520 Lathrop Road ( APN: 198- 040- 14); and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Public Resource Code Section 21000 et. seq. and State
CEQA Guidelines Section 15000 et. seq., the City of I_athrop prepared and circulated an Initial
Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration for a 20- day public review period beginning August 1 l,
2021 and ending August 31, 2021, that evaluated the potential environmental effects of the proposed
project; and

VHEREAS,  the Planning Commission has independently reviewed the information
contained in the Initial Study/ Negative Declaration for the project and any comments received
during the public review period; and

WHEREAS,  the Planning Commission has utilized its own independent judgment in
adopting Che Initial Study egative Declaration; and

PlanninC Commission Resolution No. 21- 25 Pa e 1 of 5

595



WHEREAS, on the basis of the whole record before the Planning Comnussion, which is
documented in the project files of the City of Lathrop Community Development Department, there is
no substantial evidence that the project will have a significant effect on the environment; and

WHEREAS, State Planning Law and the Lathrop Municipal Code require the Planning
Commission to provide a recommendation for a General Plan Land Use Map Amendment and
Zoning Map Amendment to the Ciry Council by resoltltion; and

WHEREAS, the proposed General Plan Land Use Map Amendment will implement the
following policies contained in the General Plan in support of industrial land use designations:

a)   " Arects desig l ted for iiidtistrial i se are intendecl to tc ke ndvantage of rail ancl fi-eeway
access". Although the project does not have rail access, it is located in proximity to
Interstate 5 and Highway 120 via McKinley Avenue, Louise Avenue and Yosemite
Avenue; and

b)   " Ar-eas designnted for irzc i strial icse nre to lss. r.re that there will be suff icient long- terrn
c vailc biliry of industrial land to expc rid tl e City' s econonzic hase".  The City has
experience a significant increase in demand for manufacturing and distribution due to its
location and proxinuty to interstates, rail, airports and a deep water port; and

c)   " Irzdi. strinl p- oposats sho alc  be located where possible tivit{ iin ari indt strial park
desigried for the accommodntion of cz comrn t tiity of industries thnt nre compatible irz
te- ms of opej-ationnl charncteristics, ctesthetics ivalities, iatility service rec iireme zts and
st reet cirer lation". The proposed General Plan land use change to industrial will be
compatible and complement the existing adjacent industi ial uses.  The project has been
conditioned to incorporate enhanced architecture elements along Lathrop Road, along
with extensive landscaping, truck loading/ unloading south of the buildings and away
from view from Lathrop Road.

d)  " Ind stries nre to be developed and oper•nted in such mrrnfier- cts to avoid darnage,

destructio z or degradati ra of the en viro zrraent". Development of the project has been
properly conditioned to minimize impact on the environment. Prior to building permit
issuance, the project is required to obtain approvals from various county and state
aoencies such as:  San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution District to mitigate air related
impacts, San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat Conservation and Open Space Plan
to mitigate impacts on biologieal resources, State Water Resources Control Board to

prevent storm water pollution related to construction activities.

WHEREAS, the proposed amendment will be consistent with applicable provisions of the
General Plan. The proposed General Plan Land Use Map Amendment to General Industrial and
Zoning Map Amendment to General Industrial would provide consistency between the General Plan

Zoning and would further General Plan goals & policies; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds that the proposed project is consistent with the
land use goals and policies the City of Lathrop General Plan, and complies with all applicable
provisions and standards of the Zoning Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, proper notice of this public meeting was given in all respects as required by
law; and

Plannina Commission Resolution No. 21- 2 Pa e 2 of 5

596



WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed all written evidence and oral testimony
presented to date.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of
Lathrap hereby make the following findings:

Section 1.   This Resalution incoiporates, and by this reference makes a part hereof, that
certain GPA, as shown in Attachment 8 of the Planning Commission Staff Report, relative to the
proposed development of the Scannell Properties Industrial Project on certain real property
consisting of approximately 18. 2- acres located at 1520 Lathrop Road ( APN: 198- 040- 14).

Section 2.   General Plan Amendment Findinas.   The Planning Commission finds and
determines as follows:

1.       The proposed GPA would amend the General Plan Land Use Map adopted December
17,  1991, as amended through 2021, to reflect the proposed Scannell Properties
Industrial Pr ject land use.

2.       The proposed GPA will implement the following Policies contained in the General
Plan in support oF Yhe proposed land use designation:

a)   " Arens designatecl for iridustrial use c re intended to take advaratage of rail cznd
freeway c cce.rs". Although the project does not have rail access, it is located in
proximity to Interstate 5 and Highway 120 via McKinley Aven ie, Louise Avenue
and Yasemite Avenue; and

b)  " Areas desigraatecl for i cll strial a se nre to assctr-e t znt there rvill be sufficiertt
lorzg- term czvailctbility of irtdeastricrl lcrnd to expand the Ciry' s econon iie base". The

City has experience a significant increase in demand for manufacturing and
distribution due to its location and proximity to interstates, rail, airports and a
deep water port; and

c)   ` 7ndustric l pr-oposczls should be located rvhere vssible withira an indc strinl park
desig zed for the nccomnaodc tion of a cornrnurzity of intlitstries that c re co yapntible
in terins of operational characteristics,  aesthetics c uc lities,  . tiliry service
r-ec a ij-efrients arad street circcelntion". The proposed General Plan land use ehange
to industrial will be compatible and complement the existing adjacent industrial
uses.   The project has been conditioned to incorporate enhanced architecture
elements alon   Lathrop Road,   along with extensive landscaping,   truck

loading/ unioadin south of the buildin s and away from view from Lathrop Road.

d)  " Indttstries nre to be developed c nd operatecl in such manrzer ns to avoid dafrtage,

destructiora or degrada tiotz of the environment". Development of the project has
been properly conditioned to minimize impact on Che environment.

Piannin; Commission Resolution No. 21- 25 Pase 3 oF 5

597



Prior to building permit issuance, the project is required to obtain approvals from
various county and state agencies such as:  San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution
District to mitigate air related impacts, San Joaquin County Multi- Species Habitat
Conservation and Open Space Plan to mitigate impacts on biological resources,

State Water Resources Control Board to prevent storm water polltrtion related to
construction activities.

3.       Based on the findings set for in this Resolution, the CEQA Resolution, and evidence

in the Staff Report, the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Cotiincil
that the GPA be approved.

Section 3.   This Resolution incorporates, and by this reference makes a part hereof, that
certain Zoning Map Amendment, as shown in Attachment 8 of the Planning Commission Staff
Report, relative to the proposed development of the Scannell Properties Industrial Project on certain
real property consistina of approximately 18. 2- acres located at 1520 Lathrop Road ( APN: 198- 040-
14).

Section 4.  Zoning Map Amendment Findings.  Pursuant to Chapter 17. 124 of the City of
Lathrop Municipal Code, the Planning Commission finds and determines as follows:

1.       The proposed Zoning Map Amendment is consistent with the objectives, policies,
principles, standards, and general land use as specified in the City' s General Plan, as
amended by the proposed project.

2.       The proposed Zonin Map Amendment is consistent with the purposes and objectives
of the City of Lathrop zoninp ordinance because:  ( 1) the proposed Zoning Map
Amendment provide for appropriate industrial development and is consistent with
surrounding land uses, including but not limited to Sharpe Army Depot to the north,
Con Fab to the east, existing industrial uses to the south, and California lVr tural
Products and UPS Freight to the west;  ( 2)  the proposed project promotes safe,
effective internal circulation system, adequate off-street parking and truck loading
facilities, and landscaping;  and ( 3) the proposed project ensures that new urban
expansion is logical, desirable and in conformance with the objectives and policies of
the General Plan.

3.       Based on the findings set for in this Resolution, the CEQA Resolution, and evidence

in the Staff Report, the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City Council
that the Rezone be approved.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of
Lathrop based on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings and pursuant to its
independent review and consideration,  does hereby recommend the City Council approve the
General Plan Land Use Map Amendment and adopt an Ordinance for a Zoning Map Amendment
request for the Scannell Properties Industrial Project.

PlanninQ Commission Resolukion No. 21- 25 Pa e 4 of 5

598



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Lathrop at a
Special Meeting on the 15`

h
day of September 2021 by the following vote:

AYES:  Dresser, Ishihara, Gatto, Ralmilay

NOES:  None

ABSTAIN:    None

ABSENT:      Rhodes

uw

Steve Dresser, Chair

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM:

M rk Me ssner, Secretary Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Plannina Commission Resolution No. 21- 25 Page 5 of 5

599



CITY OF LATHROP

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 21- 26

A R SOLUTION OT THE PLANNING COiVIMISSION OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL TO APPROVED A SITE PLAN REVIEW FOR

THE PROPOSED SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PROJECT { SPR- 20- 141)

WHEREAS, the City of LaChrop Planning Commission held a daly noticed public meeting to
consider the Scannell Properties Industrial Project pursuant to the Lathrop Municipa] Code; and

WHEREAS, the subject parcel currently has a Service Cammercial ( SC) General Plan

designation, is located within the Commercial Service ( CSj Zoning District; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a General Plan Land Use Map Amendment to General Industrial
GI) and Zoning Map Amendment to General Industrial ( IG);

WHEREAS, the request is for a Site Plan Review to construct three ( 3) new industrial

warehouse buildings totaling 191, 160 sq. ft. in size.  Specifically, Building l ould be located in the

northern portion of khe project site and have a buildin footprint of approximately 70, 200 sq. ft.
Building 2 would be located in the southwest portion of the site and have a bliilding footprint of
approximately 78, 400 sq. ft. and Building 3 would be located in the southeast portion of the project
site and have a building footprint of approximately 42, 560 sq. ft.  The proposed buildings include a
total of 236 automobile parking spaces, 14 handicap accessible parking spaces and 101 truck trailer
parking spaces in addition to the individual building dock doors.  The project will include various
improvements such as landscaping, lighting, and extension of public utilities.  A portion of the site
Parcel4) is proposed as a stormwater retention basin; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a Vesting Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide the existing 18. 2-
acre parcel into four ( 4) parcels: Parcel 1 is 6. 54- acres ( Building 1), Parcel 2 is 5. 5& acres ( Building
2), Parcel 3 is 3. 50- acres ( Buildin 3), and Parcel 4 is 2. 52- acres; and

WHEREAS the property is located at 1520 Lathrop Road ( APN: 19& 040- 14); and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Public Resource Code Section 21000 et. seq. and State CEQA
Guidelines Section 15000 et. seq., the City of Lathrop prepared and circulated an Initial Study and
Mitigated Negative Declaration for a 20- day public review period beginning August 11, 2021 and
ending August 31, 2021, that evaluated the potential environmental effects of the proposed project;
and

WHEREAS, on the basis of the whole record before the Planning Commission, which is
documented in the project files of the City of Lathrop Community Development Department, it was
determined that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment,
require.d mitigation measures will be implemented to reduce these effects to a less than significant

level. Mitigation measures are incoiporated and included as part of the Conditions of Approval for the
project; and

WHEREAS, the proposed project meets all setback, parking, landscaping and lot coverage
and setback requirements of the Lathrop Municipal Code; and

Planning Commission Resolution No. 21- 2b Paae I of 3

600



WHEREAS, proper notice of this public meeting was given in all respects as required by law;
and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed all written evidence and oral teskimony
presented to date.

NOW, T IEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Che Planning Commission of the City of
Lathrop does hereby make the following findings:

1.  Site Plan Review Findings. Pursuant to Section 17. 100. 050 of the Lathrop Municipal Code
LMC), the Planning Commission finds as follows:

a.  The proposed Site Plan Review complies with all applicable provisions of Chapter
17. 100;

b.  The proposed Site Plan Review is consistent with the site improvements listed in
Chapter 17. 100 ( a. through i.) and improvements are such that traffic congesCion is

avoided and pedestrian and vehicular safety and welfare are protected and there
will not be adverse effects on surrounding properties;

c.   Proposed lighting for the project area is so arranged as to deflect away from
adjoining properties; and

d.  The proposed Site Plan Review is compatible with surrounding land uses and will
not be detrimental Co the health, safety and general welfare of the City.

2.  The Planning Commission finds that the proposed project is consistent with the General
Industrial land use boals and policies the City of Lathrop General Plan, and will comply
with the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance and design standards of the Lathrop
Municipal Code upon development, as conditioned.

3.  The Planning Commission finds that the req lirements and conditions of this resolution are
reasonable in preservina, protecting, providing for, and fostering the health, safety, and
welfare of the citizenry in general, and the persons who work in or visit the development
in particular.

4.  The Planning Commission finds that although the proposed project could have a significant
effect on the environment, required mitigation measures will be implemented to reduce

these effects to a less than significant level. Mitigation measures are incorporated and

included as pa- t of the Conditions of Approval for the project.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Lathrop based
on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings and pursuant to its independent
review and consideration, does hereby recommend the City Council to Approve Site Plan Review No.
SPR- 20- 141, subject to the amended Conditions of Approval listed as Attachment# 5 of the September

15, 2021 Staff Report, incorporated by reference herein.

Plannin Commission Resolution Na 21- 26 Page 2 of 3

601



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Comrnission of the City of Lathrop at a
Regular meeting on the 15`

h
day of September 2021 by the following vote:

AYES:  Dresser, Ishihara, Gatto, Ralmilay

NOES:  None

ABSTAIN:    None

ABSENT:      Rhodes

G+       

Steve Dresser, Chair

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Mark Mei s er, Sec tary Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Planning Commission Resolution No. 21- 26 Paoe 3 of 3

602



CITY OF LATHROP

PLANNIl' G COMMISSION RESOLUTION NO. 21- 27

A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMNIISSION OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

RECOMMENDING CITY COUNCIL TO APPROVE THE VESTING TENTATIVE

PARCEL MAP FOR THE SCANNELL PROPERTIES INDUSTRIAL PROJECT ( TPM-
20- 142)

WHEREAS, the City of Lathrop Planning Commission held a duly noticed public meeting to
consider the Scannell Properties Industrial Project pursuant to the Lathrop Miinicipal Code; and

WHEREAS, the subject parcel currently has a Service Commercial  ( SC) General Plan

designation, is locaCed within the Commercial Service ( CS) Zoning District; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a General Plan Land Use Map Amendment to General Industrial
GI) and Zoning Map Amendment to Geuerai Industrial ( IG);

WHEREAS, the request is for a Site Plan Review to construct three ( 3) new industrial

warehouse buildings totaling 191, 160 sq. ft, in size.  Specifically, Building 1 would be locaCed in the
northern portion of the project site and have a building footprint of approximately 70,200 sq. ft.
Building 2 would be located in the southwest portion of the site and have a building footprint of
approximately 78,400 sq. ft. and Building 3 would be located in the southeast portion of the project
site and have a building footprint of approximately 42, 560 sq. ft.  The proposed buildings include a
total of 236 automobile parking spaces, 14 handicap accessible parking spaces and 101 truck trailer
parking spaces in addition to the individual building doek doors.  The project will include varioL s
improvements such as landscaping, lighting, and extension of public utilities.  A portion of the site
Parcel4) is proposed as a stormwater retention basin; and

WHEREAS, the request is for a Vesting Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide the existing 18. 2-
acre parcel into four ( 4) parcels: Parcel 1 is 6. 54- acres ( Building 1), Parcel 2 is 5. 5$- acres ( Building
2), Parcel 3 is 3. 50- acres ( Building 3}, and Parcel4 is 2. 52- acres; and

WHEREAS the property is located at 1520 Lathrop Road ( APN: 198- 040- 14); and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Public Resource Code Section 21000 et. seq. and State CEQA
Guidelines Section 15000 et. seq., the City of Lathrop prepared and circulated an Initial Study and
Mitiaated Negative Declaration for a 20- day public review period beginning August 11, 2021 and
ending August 31, 2021, that evaluated the potential environmental effects of the proposed project;
and

WHEREAS, on the basis of the whole record before the Planning Commission, which is
documented in the project files of the City of Lathrop Community Development Department, it was
determined that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment,
required mitigation measures will be implemented to reduee these effects to a less than significant

leveL Mitigation measures are incorporated and included as part of the Conditions of Approval for the
project; and

Plannin, Commission Resolution No. 21- 27 Pa e 1 of 4

603



WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds that the proposed project is consistent with the
General Industrial land use goals and policies the City of Lathrop General Plan, and also consistent
with the City' s Subdivision Ordinance and the State Subdivision Map Act; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission finds that the requirements and conditions of this
resolution are reasonable in preserving, protecting, providing for, and fostering the health, safety, and
welfare of the citizenry in general, and the persons who work in or visit the development in particular;
and

WHEREAS, proper notice of this public meeting was given in all respects as required by law;
and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has reviewed all written evidence and oral testiznony
presented to date.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Planning Commission of the City of Lathrop
does hereby make the foilowing findings:

Section 1.  Vesting Tentative Parcel Map Findin s.  The Planning Comnussion finds and
determines as follows:

1.  Tl e proposed mnp is consistent with the Genernl Plari. The proposed map implements the
land use objectives in the Lathrop General Plan, as amended by the Scannell Properties
Industrial Project GPA.

2.  Tlze desigra or- i»zprove nents of tlae proposec! stt.bdivision are co zsistent witlz t ie Ge lerctl
Plc n. As conditioned, the design of the rnap and proposed utility and improvements are
consistent with the requirements of the General Plan. All required improvements are

conditioned to comply with the City' s standards and specifications.

3.  The site is hysically sa itable for the prol osed industrial developinent. The proposed
General Plan Amendment would designate the site as General Industrial land use in Che

General Plan. The applicant and staff have worked closely to ensure the map and its
conditions of approval address public infrastructure, public services and phase for the
development of the project.

4.   The site r.s physically s iitable for tlie proposed der2sity of c evelopm.ent.  The Lathrop
General Plan identifies the project area to allow for a broad range of use types such as
manufacturing, warehouse, distribution and related industrial type uses. Development of
the site meets the requirements set forth in the Lathrop Municipal Code Development
Standards.

5.  The design of the sc bdivision or the proposed inzprovements rvill rzot cause sc bstantical
eravironme atal darrzage oy- sa bstanticzlly inje4re fish or wilcllife or their habiCat.  The
development of the Scannell Properties Industrial Project would involve a range of

potentially significant environmental effects, including effects on plant, fish and wildlife
species or their habitat. These potential effects were explored in detail, and available
mitigations were identified in the Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Deciaration.

Plannin Commission Resolution No. 21- 27 Pa; e 2 of 4

604



It was determined that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the
environment, required mitigation measures will be implemented to reduce these effects to

a less than significant level. Mitigation measures are incorporated and included as part of
the Conditions of Approval for the project.

6.  The desig z of the scabdivisic n or- rype of improvemen. ts tivill not ca ise serioa s pubtic health
problems. The development of the Scannell Properties Industriai Project would involve a
range of potentially significant effects on public health and safety. These potential effects
were explored in detail, and available mitigations were identified in the Initial Study and
Mitigated Negative Declaration. It was determined that although the propo ed project
could have a significant effect on the environment, required mitigation measures wil] be

implemented to reduce these effects to a less than significant level. Mitigation measures

are incorporated and included as part of the Conditions of Approval for the project.

7.  The desigrz of the subdivisio z or the rype of impf-ovemeizts rvill aot conflict with ensenaents,
acqu red b_y the pa blic at large, for•access through or use of, property withift the proposed
sG bdivisio. The design of the subdivision does not conflict with any public easements for
access throLigh or use of properCy within the subdivision.   Conditions of approval are

included to dedicate land, right of way and to provide easements where necessary for public
access, utilities, and infrastructure.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Planning Commission of the City of Lathrop based
on substantial evidence in the administrative record of proceedings, its findings above and pursuant to
its independent review and consideration, does hereby recommend the City Council to Approve
Vesting Tentative Parcel Map No. TPM- 20- 142, subject to the amended Conditions of Approval listed
as Attachment# 5 of the September 15, 2021 Staff Report, incorporated by reference herein.

Plannina Commission Resolution No. 21- 27 PaQe 3 of 4

605



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Planning Commission of the City of Lathrop at a Regular
meeting on the 15h day of September 2021 by the following vote:

AYES:  Dresser, Ishihara, Gatto, Ralmilay

NOES:  None

ABSTAIN:    None

ABSENT:      Rhodes

i... l-,,

Steve Dresser, Chair

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM:

M k Meis n r, Sec tary Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

Planning Commission Resolution Na 21- 27 Page 4 of 4

606



ATT ICHMEfVT " t '    "-

Ricardo Caguiat

Subject: RE: Information request per Planning Consultants

From: marys2go2003@aol. com < marys2go2003@aol. com>

Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 2021 7: 42 PM

To: David Niskanen< planningconsultant@ci. lathrop. ca. us>
Cc: Ricardo Caguiat< rcaguiat@ci. lathrop. ca. us>; Mark Meissner< mmeissner@ci. lathrop. ca. us>; Maria Hermosilla

mhermosilla@ci. lathrop. ca. us>
Subject: RE: Information request per Planning Consultants

I would like to thank the Planning Staff for the opportunity to voice my concerns again for the proposed
Scannell Properties located at 1510 Lathrop Road during the Zoom meeting last week. During the meeting, I
requested an alternative option # 2 plan for traffic from the development to enter and exit the project. The
Planning Commission approved 4- 0 to recommend this project to the City Counci( using D street for both right
and left turns onto Lathrop Road. We publicly spoke of the danger of this decision at the Planning Commission
Hearing.
I informed Glen Gebhardt, a far safer option would be to have the traffic from the project gain easement access

from the south of the property to the driveway currently in use by the south adjacent property. Using Option #2
would eliminate a traffic light at D street noted in the MND. The representative of Scannell Properties has

stated he is only willing to pay a pro- rated cost of the traffic light deemed necessary by the traffic consultants of
the MND. Option #2 would allow the project vehicle and truck traffic to safely enter and exit the project onto
McKinley Ave without endangering the public at large. Routing the truck traffic onto McKinley would be a
benefit to the residents of Manteca Del Webb , 5 5+ Senior Community and many other residents who are at a
higher health risk to additional truck pollution due to the Staffs Option # 1 plan and MND.
1 am requesting the staff schedule an additional meeting with the Concerned Citizens For The Airport Way
Corridor and Catholic Charities Environmental Justice representative Jonathan Pruitt to work out a solution to

better protect the citizens from the projects environmental and safety issues.
If a meeting is not arranged,  I am formally requesting the items not be included for approval by the City
Council until all options have been explored.

Thank you,
Mary Meninga

Sent from the all new AOL app for Android

On Th, Sep 23, 2021 at 2: 11 PM, David Niskanen
planningconsultant(c, ci. lathrop. ca. us> wrote:

Mary:

Received - Thank you for the email and comments.  We will include this correspondence in the administrative
record for the project.

Thanks,

David Niskanen

607



JB Anderson Planning, Contract Planner City of Lathrop

Community Development Department

390 Towne Centre Drive Lathrop, CA 95330

P:( 209) 941- 7297

From: marys2qo2003( a aol. com [ mailto: marys2qo2003  . aol. com]

Sent: Wednesday, September 22, 2021 1: 10 PM
To: David Niskanen < planninaconsultant( c ci. lathrop. ca. us>

Subject: Information request per Planning Consuitants

Per your request I am sending you selected pages of the Staff Report. Both at the Planning Commission
Hearing, 9/ l5/ 21 and Virtual Zoom meeting, 9/ 21/ 21, Glen Gebhardt stated Fehr and Peers traffic analysis
included future long range traffic calculations ie Lathrop General Plan Update, Manteca General Plan Updaten
and Truck Study, SJCOG Regional Truck Study. Please contact me to have further discussions for clarification.
In my opinion, this project should not move forward to City Council until the MND is revised to include the
vital information not currently available.  Without this information, the impacts and migrations that warranted
an MND are inadequate.

Thank you,
Mary Meninga

Sent from the all new AOL app for Android

z

608



4.    General Comments

a.   Applicant shall retain the serviees of a Catifornia licensed civil engineer to design the utility

plans for sewer, water storm drain lines and systems.

b.  Applicant shall ensure that all off-site and on- site irnprovements camply vith City Standards.

c.  The parking areas and drive isles on site shaIl be paved with asphalt concrete.

d.  Hydrolo y and hydraulic calculations and plans for on- site storm water system shall be
submitted to the City for review and approval.

e.   The Applicant shall execute a maintenance agreerrtent for all onsite storin water quality
treatment devices, swales and/ or ponds.

f.   Applicant shall install as part of their onsite improvernent all necessary Best Managernent

a,.. Fractices { BMP' s) for post construction in accordance with City uidelines and standards. The
BMP' s must be in place prior to final occupancy.

g.  Any drivevvay access to Latl rop Road st all be right- i ri ht-out only.

h.  Applica t shall pay all appropriate fees includin but not limited to Levee Impaet Fee, Capikat
Facilities Fees, and Pl1n Check and Inspection Fees.

i.   A geotechnical report hall be submitt d for the project, which includes; roundwat r elevations,
percolation rates for retention basins, soil compaction requirements, and recommendations for
asphalt paving.

j.   Grading anci ather c nstruction activ'tties that may cause ciust shall be watered to control ciust at
the City Engine r' s dir ction.  A water vehicle shall be available for dust control operations at
all times durin radina operations.  The adjacent public street shaIl be kept free and clean of
any project dirt, mucl, rnaterials, and ebris.

LATHI20P- MANTECA FIRE DISTRICT { LMFD)

l.    The project must cnnf'nrm tc tl e appropriate eclitian of the California Fire Gade ( cunently the 2019
edition) and all related st ndards.

2.    Permits shall be obt iined from the tire code of cial. Permit( s} ant #' ee, shall be paid prior to
issuai ce of any ancUor all pec nits. Issuetl perrnits shall be I: ept n the premises d sign ted therein
at all tin es and shall be readily av iilable for inspection by the fire eode of cial. ( Permits are to be

renecaed on an annual basis).

3.   Approved automatic sprinkler systeins shatl be pr vided us required in 2Q 19 Califarnia Fire Code
903. 2.  Tenant/ Occupant/ Owner shall have the responsibility ta ensure that the correct fire

suppression system is  ldcied/ inodified/ tested and accepted by the  ( AHJ}  Fire District.  Fire

suppression systern pla s shall be modified urlder separate fire permit and shall be ubrnitted by a
lice zsed c ntractor, t thc ( I.MFD) Fire Distrirt f r eeview and apprc v rl prior t moctiticatican.

Deferred sul i littal accepteci.

4.    An apprc ved fire alarm syste shall be installed in a;; orciance vith 2019 CFC 9t)7.? ancl 2019

NFPA 72.

5.    Fire Dep irtme it Dcve( opm nt Fees f r alt ncw builain; s inust he paid in ac; cc rdance with the City
of Lathrop' s Ordinance and tesolutic s adoptin; Ehc fcc schedule.

6.    An approved Fire Flnw test tihall be conc uc: ted ric r tr rc und breaking tc determine the allc wable
Fire Fightin c4 pabilities for tMe site.

fi ot' H 9' . _ : >,

609



ti    This cF apter anal} raes the impacts of the project under cumulative conditians. The analysis refletts long-

term development in the City of Lathrop, Manteca and other nearby jurisdictions using the Cumulative

Year TDF inadel previously described. ! t is noted that under cumulative conditions, a significant amount of
grawth is planned in Lathrop( as the TDM assumes full build out of the City). As a result, forecasted AM

d PM peak hour volumes are high, pariicularly near I- 5. The City is turrently in the process of updating

the Generat Plan, which will include an in depth evaluation of land uses and anticipated growth over the

next 2d years, 7he TDM wi11 be updated with the General P1an effort
ar,...     . . .    .. 3:.. „     ... k. me.

it is also noted, the Sharpe Depat project has nat tome to fruition and land use plans are unknawn at this
a time. Therefore, this analysis does not assume land use growth o the parcel directly north of the project

site. When a project is proposed on that parcel, additional analysis, particularly for the lathrop Raad/ D
Street intersection, should be completed.

The City of Lath ap has tampleted a Project Study Report( PSR) for the Lathrop Road/ I- 5 interchange. A
partial cloverleaf is proposed. However, the PSR needs to be updated wiih Caltrans before campleting

environmental and design documents. Although the project is still in early stages and is not fully funded,

interchange improvements are identified in the City' s Capital lmprovement Plan ( PS 06- 16) and the City

has been collecting funds for interchange improvements through the Capstal Facilities Fee Program.

Therefore, based on direction from City staff, the following interchange improvements are included in the

cumulative year analysis:

Lathrop Road/ I- 5 SB Ramps:
o Modify the southbound approach to include two left tum lanes and two right turn lanes
o Modify the easibound approach to indude three through lanes
o Modify the wesibound approach to include two through lanes, one shared through/ right

turn lane, and one right turn lane

Lathrop RoadJl- S NB Ramps:
o Modify the northbound approach to include one 1eft turn lane, one shared thraugh/ left

turn lane, and two right tum fanes

o Modify the eastbound approach to include two left turn lanes and two through lanes
o Mvdify the westbound approach to include one tfirough lane, one shared through/ right

turn lane, and ane right turn lane

The following Synchro inputs were used for the cumulative year analysis at the lathrop Road/ I- 5
inierchange:

Coordinated signal timing

Custom phasing on the f- 5 SB off- amp
ptimized signal timings and affsets for each cumulative scenario610



Optimized signal timings and affsets for each cumulative scenario

4. Cumulative Na Project Conditians

Cumulative No Pr+ ject Intersectian Operatians

The Cumulative Year TQF model was used to develop cumulative year intersection turning mavement

forecasts. This scenario assumes a retail type development consistent with the existing Seruice

Commercial Genera( Plan designation and an FAR of 030 is constructed an the site. No improvements are

assumed at the study intersections under this scenario, except for the modi cations to the athrop

Roadll- S interchange previausly described. AI! trips to the project site were assigned to the Lathrop
RoadlD Street iniersection as there is no specific project and no proposed driveway locations to consider.

Figure 6 displays AM and Ptvl peak hovr turning movement and lane configurations at the study

intersedions. Tabte S displays the AM and PM peak hour intersection operations. Technical calculations
are displayed in Appendix A.

t

t.   I- 5 S8 Rarnps/ lathrop Rd  Signal
AM 18 B 47 D

PM 17 B 69 E

2.   1- 5 NB RampsJlathrop Rd a      

AM 16 B 55 D

PM 19 B 56 E

AM 1 ( 15}       A( B) 31 (> 100Q)     [ 3( F)
3.   Laihrop Road/ 0 St SSSt

PM 1 ( 17)       A{ C}       d26(> 1000)     F{ F)     

AM 15 8 29 C
4.   SR 99 SB Ramps/ Lathrop Rd Signal

PM 18 28 C

5.   SR 99 NB Ramps/ Lathrop Rd Signal
AM 1Z B 29 C

PM 12 B 35 0

Notes:

SSSC = Side- Street Stop Control; LOS = Levek of Service

Bold indicates u acceptable operations.

or signalized intersections, average intersection delay is reported in seconds per vehide for all approaches.

For sade- street stop controlled intersections, average intersection delay and ( worst- case movement) are
reported.

z For cumulative o project conditions, intersectian level of service and delay is reported using HCM 2000
methodology, as custom phasing cannot be analyzed using H M 6T" Editian methodology.
Source: Fehr& Peers, 2021

FEHR ' PEERS

As displayed, the 1- 5 NB and SB Rampsllathrop Road intersectians would operate unacceptably at LOS E
611



Cumulative No Projett Conditions

q..a Cumuiative Plus Project Conditians

Gumulative Plus Praject Intersectian perations

Trips associated with the retail development were removed from the study intersections and project trips
consistent with the trip generation displayed in Table 5 were added. The Cumulative Year TDF model was

used to determine cumulative plus project trip distribution which is displayed on Figure 7.

figure 8 displays the intersection turning movements under cumulative plus project canditions. Table 6

presents the results of the cumulative plus project intersectian operations analysis.

s.

1.   I- 5 SB Rampsllathrop Rd  Signal
AM 47 D 40 D

PM 69 E 48 D

2.   I- 5 NB RampslLathrop Rd Signal
AM 55 D 48 0

PM 56 E SS D

3.   Lathrop Road1 St S55C
pM 31 ( 10 0)    D( F)      3( 359)       A( F)       ,

PM 426(> 1000)    F( F)    2Q{> 10{} 0)     t(E}   ,"

4.   SR 99 SB Ramps/ lathrop Rd Signal
AM 29 C 29 C

PM 28 C 28 C

5.   SR 99 NB RampsJLathrop Rd Signal
AM 29 C 29 t

PM 35 D 30 C

6.   Lathrop Road/ Project Driveway SSSC         N/ A N/ A
0( 16) A( C)

PM 1 ( 21} A( C)

Notes:

SSSC = Side- Street Stop Control; LQS = Level of Service

For signalized intersections, average intersectian detay is reported in secands per vehide for all approaches.

For side- street stop controlled intersections, average intersection delay and ( worst- case movementJ are
reported.

Z lntersection level of sen+ice and delay is reported using HCM 2000 methodology, as custom phasing cannot
be analyzed using HCM 6j'' Edition methodology.
Source: Fehr& Peers, 2021

As displayed, most intersections would operate acceptably under cumulative p(us project conditions and
delay at all intersections would decrease or remain the same with the proposed praject as the industrial

development would generate less trips than a retail type development permitted under the existing
Service Commertial land use designation.

612



However, the Lathrop Road/ D Street intersectian woufd continue to aperate unacceptably under

cumulative plus project conditions. Motorists making a northbound left tum would tontinue to

experience the highest detay at this inte section.

Signat WarrantAnatysis

Because the lathrop Road/ Q Street intersect'ran would operate unacceptably under both cumulative
scenarios, we completed an AM and PM peak haur signa! warrant analysis, consistent with the
methodologies in the 2014 CA MUTCD, to evaluate the need for installation of a traffic signal.

Results of this analysis indicate traffic olumes on the minor street would not satisfy the warrant for

installation of a traffic signal in the AM peak hour for either the cumulative no project or cumulative plus

project scenarios or PM peak hour for the tumulative plus project scenario. Volumes would satisfy the

warrant for installation of a traffic signal in the PM peak hour under the cumuiative no project scenario.

However, a signal is recommended at this intersection due to high delay experienced on the minar

streets, need far left turning movements into and out of D Street, and heauy trucks associated with the
existing concrete faciliry and proposed project. It is recammended that the signal be installed with the
proposed project or the developer pay a fair-share for futu e installation of the tra c signal. Table 7
displays the resuits of intersection aperations under cumulative conditions with installation of a traffic

signal.

s r-     

1.   lathrap Road SSSC/    AM 31 (> 1000)    D( F)      12 B 3{ 359)      A{ F) 4 A

D St Signalz PM 426(> 10Q0)    F{ F}      23 C 20(> 1000)    C{ F) 9 A

Notes:

SSSC = Side- Street Stop Control; LOS= Level of Service

For signalized intersections, average intersection delay is reported i seconds per vehitle for all approaches. For side- street

stop controlled intersections, average intersection delay and( worst- case mQvement) are reparted.
Z lntersection was analyzed as a signal under the" with improvements" scenarios

Source: fehr& Peers, 2021

As displayed, the intersection would operate accepiably with installation of a traf#ic signal. Nowe er, this
intersection should be re- evaluated when land use information for the Sharpe Depot project are icnawn to

determine if lane configuration or phasing modifications are necessary.

FEHR ' PEERS

613



x  . ,

3) Off-Site Heavy Heavy- Duty Tneck Travel

The 1SIMND indicates that specific tenant has not been identified for the Project and

as such assessed the operatianal emissians based an the potential of the Project
being operated for an industriai or manufacturing use consistent with the requested
General Plan amendment. Ffowever, the IS/ MND may not have characterized an
appropriat$ trip length distance for off-site heavy heavy-duty ( HHD) truck Vavel.
Based on the fallowing factors: 1} the Project consists of a warehouse deveiopment
for potential industrial or manufacturing use which typicatly could involve a high
volume of HNO truck trip generation for distributian, and 2} HHD trucks gene ally
travel further dis#ances for distribution, it appears inaccurate to incorporate a default

delivery trip length assumption of 7. 3 miles as reflected in the Califomia Emissions
Estimator Model ( CaIEEMod} anafysis in Appendix A ( Ca1EEMod Results}.

Therefore, tlie District recommends the 1S/ MND be reuised to include a discussion

characterizing an appropriate trip length distance for NHD truck travel, and reflect
the appropriate distance in the air qualiCy analysis far consistency.

4j Prolect Related pe ational Emissions - Cleanest Available Trucks

The San Joaquin Valley will nat be able to attain stringent health- based federal air
quality standards withaut significant reductions in emissions from HHD trucks, the
single largest source of NOx emissions in the San Joaquin Valley. The Qistrict
recently adopted the 2018 PM2. 5 Plan which includes signi cant new reductions
from HHD Trucks, including emissions reductions by 2023 through the
implementation of the Califomia Air Resources Board { CARB) Statewide Teuck and

Bus Regulation, which requires truck fleets operating in California to meet the 201d
0, 2 g/ bhp- hr NOx standard by 2Q23. Additionalty, to meet# he federal air quality
standards by the 2020 to 2024 attainment deadlines, the istrict' s Plan relies on a

significant and immediate transition af heavy duty truck fleets to zero or near- zero
emissions technologies, including the near- zera truck standard of 0.02 g- NOx/ bhp- hr
established by the California Air Resources Board.

This warehouse development Project is expected to result in an increased amount of

HHD trucks traveling ta- and- fram from the praject location. To reduce impacts from
these operational mobile source emissions, the District recommends that the

foilowing clean air measures be considered far inclusion in the ISIMND.

Advise fleets associated with Project operational aetivities to utilize the cleanest

available HND truck technotogies, including zero and near-zero( 0.02 glbhp- hr
NOx) technologies as feasible.

Advise a!I on- site sen ice equipment( cargo handling, yard hostlers, forklifts,
pallet jacks, etc.) to utilize zero- emissions# echnologies as feasible.

San Joaquai ValpeyAir PoXuCion Controt Disfiict Page 4
1?ishict Reference No. 20210853

August 31.? 021

5) Proiect Relafed Operational Emissions- Truck Routinq

Truck routing involves the path/ roads heavy- duty trucEcs take to and from their
destination. The air emissions from heavy- duty trucks can impact residential
communi#ies and sensitive receptors. 614



San Joaquin Valfey A PoMution Can6roi District Page 4
DistrictRelerence Na. 20210853

August 31, 2027

5) Proiect Reiated_ erational Emissions- Truck Routing

Truck auting involves the path/ roads F eavy- duty trucics take to and from their
destination. The air emissions from heavy- duty trucks can impact residential
communities and sensitive receptors.

The District recammends the ISIMND evaluate HHD truck rou#ing patterns to help
limit emission exposure to residential communities and sensitive receptors. More

specifical[ y, this measure would assess current truck routes, in consideration of the
number end type of each wehicle, destinationlorigin of each vehicular trip, time of
day/ week analysis, vehicle miles travelsd and emissions. The truck routmg
evatuation would also identify aitemative truek routes anti their impacts on VMT arrd
air quality.

6) Proiect Related Operational Emissions - Reduce Idlir p of Heavv Heavy- Dutv
Trucks

The goal of this strategy is ta limit the potential for localized PM2. 5 anci toxic air
quaiity impacts associated with failure to comply with the state' s heavy- duty anti-
idling regulation ( e. g limiting vehicle idling to specific time lirrtits). The diesel exhaust

f om excessive idting has the potential to impose significant adverse health and
enui anmental impacts. Therefore, effo ts to ensure compliance of the anti- idling
regulation, especia[ ly near sensitive receptors, is importa t to limit the amaunt of
idling within the community, wf ich will result in community air quaGiy benefifs.

7) Ve etati e Ba riers and Urban Gnaenin

The District s ggests the Cify consider#he feasibility of incorporating vegetative
barriers and urban greening as a measure ta fu ther reduce air polEution exposure an
nearby receptors( e. g. schools, esidences, business, etc}.

While various emissio controt techniques and programs exist to reduce air quality
emissions from mobile and stationary sources, vegetative barriers have been shown
to be an additional measure to potentialfy reduce a population' s exposure to air
pollution through the inte ception of airborne particles and the uptake of gaseous
pollutants. Examples of vegetative barriers include, but not limited# a the following:
trees, bushes, shrubs, o a mix of these. Generally, a higher and thicker vegetatiue
barrier with full coverage will result in greater reductit ns in dawnwind pottutant
concentratians. In the same manner, urban greening is also a way to hetp improve
air quality and pubtic health in addition to enhancing the ove all beautification of a
community with drought resistant low maintenance greenery.

8} Sola DepEoyment in the Comrnunitv

It is the policy of the State of Califomia that renewable energy resources and zero-
carbon resources suppty 100% of retail sales of elect icity to Califamia end- use

615



616



ITEM 5. 2

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM: CONSIDER THE CREATION OF CIP PK 22- 34

SHILLING AVENUE PARK PROJECT AND

APPROVE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

RECOMMENDATION: Council to Consider the Adoption of a

Resolution Approving the Creation of CIP PK
22- 34 for the Shilling Avenue Park Project and
Authorize Related Budget Amendment

SUMMARY:

At its August 9, 2021 meeting, City Council requested staff look into the possibility
of creating a park on the City owned 1- acre retention pond located on the corner of
Shilling Avenue and Reverend Maurice Cotton Drive.  Staff is requesting City Council
consider the creation of Capital Improvement Project ( CIP) PK 22- 34 and authorize
a budget amendment of $ 50, 000 for an engineer' s review of the proposed location
and the creation of design options based on the engineer' s report.  Completed design

options will allow staff to bid the project, develop construction options, and return to
Council to discuss the options and potential approval of construction contracts.

If approved, this improvement project could be funded from existing funds within the
Culture and Leisure Capital Facility Fee ( CFF) Fund ( 2260).

BACKGROUND:

The City currently owns a 1- acre retention basin at the corner of Shilling Avenue and
Reverend Maurice Cotton Drive.  This parcel serves as storm water flood protection
for the surrounding neighborhood.  Staff is proposing the creation of a park, similar
to the retention basins within the Woodfield development,  that may include a
perimeter walking trail, 3 outdoor fitness stations, a small children' s play structure,
a water play fountain, single unit restroom, shaded picnic table with barbecue, park
benches, a drinking fountain, and a 4' perimeter fence. Approval of this item would
allow staff to:

1.  Conduct an engineer' s report of the parcel to determine what improvements
can be made and options for improvements that would not impact flood
protection of the neighborhood.

2.  Creation of design options based on the report and allow staff to develop
construction options, bid the project and return to Council for approval of a
construction contract for the construction of the proposed park at this location.

617



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 2

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
CONSIDER THE CREATION OF CIP PK 22- 34 SHILLING AVENUE PARK
PROJECT AND APPROVE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is requesting City Council consider the creation of CIP PK 22- 34 Shilling Avenue
Park Project and authorize a budget amendment of $ 50, 000 from the Culture and

Leisure CFF Fund 2260 to the General CIP Fund 3010 to allow staff to generate an
engineer' s report on the location, create design options, solicit bids and return to

Council with a proposed construction contract for the construction of a park at this
location.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Staff requests City Council authorize a budget amendment of $ 50, 000 from the

Culture and Leisure CFF 2260 to the General CIP Fund 3010 to fund CIP PK 22- 34 to
conduct an engineer' s report,  create design options, and request bids for Council
review:

Transfer Out ( Culture & Leisure CFF Funds)
2260- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 50, 000

Transfer In ( General CIP)

3010- 99- 00- 393- 00- 00 50, 000

Increase Expenditure

3010- 80- 00- 420- 12- 00- 00 PK 22- 34      $ 50, 000

ATTACHMENTS:

A.  A resolution of the City Council of the City of Lathrop approving the creation of
CIP PK 22- 34 Shilling Avenue Park Project and related budget amendment.

618



CITY MANAGER' S REPORT PAGE 3

OCTOBER il, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

CONSIDER THE CREATION OF CIP PK 22- 34 SHILLING AVENUE PARK
PROJECT AND APPROVE RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

APPROVALS:

Ii
4

chary Jo Date

Director of k Recreation & Maintenance Services

r. Q -       a-3 -. o
Ken Reed Date

Senior Construction Manager

I - 3o- Zozl

Michael King Date

Director of Public Works

d  

Cari ) ames Date

Director of inance and Administrative Services

z- wZ-/

Salvador Navarrete Date

City Attorney

le •a• 21
Ste en J. Salvatore Date

City Manager

619



ATTACHMENT A

RESOLUTION NO. 21-

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LATHROP

APPROVING THE CREATION OF CIP PK 22- 34 SHILLING AVENUE PARK

PRO7ECT AND RELATED BUDGET AMENDMENT

WHEREAS, at the August 9, 2021 meeting, City Council requested staff look
into the possibility of creating a park on the City owned 1- acre retention pond
located on the corner of Shilling Avenue and Reverend Maurice Cotton Drive; and

WHEREAS, staff is requesting approval of the creation of CIP PK 22- 34 and
a budget amendment of $ 50, 000 for an engineer' s review of the proposed location,
and the creation of design options based on the engineer' s report; and

WHEREAS,  completed design options will allow staff to solicit bids and

return to Council to discuss the options and approval of the construction contracts.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of
Lathrop approves the creation of CIP PK 22- 34 with a corresponding budget

amendment of $ 50, 000 from Culture and Leisure CFF 2260 into the General CIP

Fund 3010 to allow for an initial engineer' s review and development of design

options for staff to solicit construction bids constructions bids for Council

consideration.

Transfer Out ( Culture & Leisure CFF Funds)

2260- 99- 00- 990- 90- 10 50, 000

Transfer In ( General CIP)

3010- 99- 00- 393- 00- 00 50, 000

Increase Expenditure

3010- 80- 00- 420- 12- 00- 00 PK 22- 34      $ 50, 000

620



ATTACHMENT A

The foregoing resolution was passed and adopted this 11th day of October
2021 by the following vote of the City Council, to wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Sonny Dhaliwal, Mayor

ATTEST:  APPROVED AS TO FO M:

Teresa Vargas, City Clerk Salvador Navarrete, City Attorney

621



622



ITEM 6. 1

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       MAYOR' S REFERRAL

RECOMMENDATION:     Appointment of One ( 1)  Member to the Measure C

Oversight Committee with Term Expiring  .lune 30,
2022, Due to Unscheduled Vacancy

MEASURE C OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE - LMC CHAPTER 3. 13. 180

The Committee currently has one ( 1) available vacancy.

One  ( 1)  seat available  ( unscheduled vacancy),  with existing term ending
June 30, 2022

Commissioner Vacancy Date of Reappointmen#    Term Expiration

due to Unscheduled Appointment Date Date

Vacanc

06/ 30/ Z2

Jeremy Aguilar 02/ 10/ 20 N/ A Resigned in May 2021

One ( 1) application was received.

APPLICANT FOR CONSIDERATION:

1.  Gene Neely

623



COM V.IISSIQNICUMMITTEE APPLICAT OIY

Applying for: t'v+r' t,

Q
peciat RconirtmeM    

SEP 2 i ZQ
Yaut6 Adbttory Con risslon: Must be e Lethrog resident belween l3 ln 18 years of agc to serve on this canm9ssion
SeniarAdvhary Cam r slon: Must be 30 ycars of age ar over ar a rpgistered voter to serve on this commissia i;'" CL,
Plo r,ring andParks dc Rscreation Co n ndss3orrs: Must be a Lathrap resid t and a r gtstered voter to serve on this comraus   .

pt. FecF p txT OR TYP THE F'QLI OWING INFORMATION:

Name:       I

Address•   CitY:.,.-'/ t 27f'J Zip•  J'
r

CS

Telephane{ home)    Telephone( workl

Telephone( cell) Telephane( other)

Email:       Resident ofthe City of Lathrop:   2d years

Do you have Transportation to attend the Commission meetings and Functians?   Yes  No C

Background Infarmation:

Are you related ta a current City Employee?      C

If yes, give neme and nlationship

EmploymentNolunteer Iofonuat on:

a,,   .,
o, n r,an varP

001 U  w r. CJ n e
l.ocatiorr Parftion( s)

Responsibilitiesiaccomplishtnents:

Organizatian

Locatfon PnsJtion( s)

Respons ibi lities/$ ccompl Isl ments:

624



Cammuaity Activides that you have been involved with( feei firee to attach additional pages)

1Varnc ajOr$vrrizarion PvsirioniRespa, rsibilfries Dwtes

Name ofOrganaattate Positia»/ResponsfbftltleslAccdmptlshments D ates

Sprcial Awards or Recogn tions you have received:

Educational IaforrnuNoa:

E ational t»stitution LkgreelL7iplomu Field Year

Educattonallnstitutfon LkgreelDiplvmv F eld Year

Additiooal Infarmst on{ Alease provide uriy other infornratlon whkh youfeel wou/d e uceful ta the eiry Caurrcl! in
revlewing, yr u applicattvn}

Ptease sign and drttt you opplicatio and submit ta the O ce of the City C1erJE ut the arddress elow..

7      rL
si na aa

ParentJGuardiau Signatwre( Reem+lredfor Yorrth Advtsory Candidates orrly}

City Clerlt
City of Gat6rop

390 Towae Centrt Drive
l athrop, CA 9533Q

625



626



ITEM 6. 2

CITY MANAGER' S REPORT

OCTOBER 11, 2021 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

ITEM:       MAYOR' S REFERRAL

RECOMMENDATION:     Appointment of One   ( 1)   Member to the Senior

Advisory Commission with Term Expiring 7une 30,
2024

SENIOR ADVISORY COMMISSION — LMC CHAPTER 2. 24

The Commission currently has two ( 2) available vacancies.

One  ( 1)  seat available  ( unscheduled vacancy),  with existing term ending
June 30, 2022

One ( 1) seat available  ( regularly scheduled vacancy, which ended June 30,

2021), with term from date of appointment through June 30, 2024

Unscheduled Vacancy Date of Reappointment Term Expiration Date

A ointment Date

Robert Long 11/ 19/ 18 6/ 10/ 19 6/ 30/ 22

Resigned in March 2021

Regularly Scheduled Term Exp iration Date
Vacancies

Vacancy Recommended Term: Present to 06/ 30/ 24
Prior Commissioner term expired 06/ 30/ 20, due to the COVID- 19 Pandemic

this re ular/  scheduled vacanc was not filled on 07/ 01/ 20.

APPLICANT FOR CONSIDERATION:

1.  Syble M. Tompkins

627



CC) MIVIISSION/ CON VIITTEE APPLICATION

APPIY g for: __(. rr.  ;', r. c r.,...

s a c•

Yoatk. 4dvtrory C'aarrwissiow: Must be a Lthrop rosidaat betwean l3 to l 8 yeats of age bo sarve oa this cammis ion.
Sea ar A vlsory Co u r alo,e: Must be z Ldhrap rosidant SO ye rs of agc ovcr tio a crve+ o this c nnmisaion.

PIaN J g, Fir cs Rsc eada x Caar iana, a d Me t C OverslgJYt Ce rxe Gee: Mnst bc a Lathmp res e

EDthis cocnmiasion. G r

PLEASE PRiNT OR TYPE TRE FQLLOWING INFORMA ox:  (; ? OZt

x:    .__    ,` u
CtTY CLERK

Addr ss•   City,, ec.      Zip:  . 5 3.'

Telephane{ hom)      Tetephonc( worlc)

Tettp6one{ c ll) Telephone( nEher}

Emai1:       Resideat of the City of Lathing:     ..      years

Da you have Transpurtatioa to attend the Commission meetings and Functions?   Ye""      Na 

y Backgcound Inform tton:

Are yon related ta a current City Emplayee? __     . G',

If yes, give name and relationship

Emplaym+caWolanteer Iniormation:

t DG -     - 1
organir tion t are

r   S  :     lu`       ' L -  dC P •

n Pasitian( a)     t'

Responsibilities/ accomplishments:      az.. f

j

s          

t.       m 7" J C'     s

C,`  ;;  4D G.

Orgoit Dats

ca f SS1`"      "
on Po orr( s)

A`

F  ',    

r
Responsibilities/accomglishmeuts: r'

o      

628



Commnnity Acbvities that yau have been utvolved with( fecl free to attach additional pages}

r v

Nama of(hgan tian PatPtfoNR li r
i

t'°! t>>e•--" liv ~   -. t-Fi''' ct'""'`""",,,,.. f,(i.,
r•. fC"` t,•. t..1. c.,.

ll. i cr f 71b '      ' pS̀ t     - 1/&' -

Narnee oJ4rgarrizatto      Pasiti panstbilttief/! rsh, eents 1?mes

Sp ecial Awirids or Recogait3ons yoa Iutve r iv$d:

Edacatioaal Iaform tion:

r'"

Education Instrtr tio t I egres/ Dipto ua Yemtr

F.duccrlana! Jnstftution Dagree/ Diptama F'uld Yeur

Additional I formatloo( Please prsovtde an} other fnformat on wli h,you fe el would be uscful to the City Coancil in
ri' ew ngYQu aPPrfcuMan.)

G s Gw     /'       s

l

C-.'"',     

r^   

j- r

j s i''
r

PXease segn and darteyat ay pGicati'on an isab relt to the OJj'ica ofthR GYty Clerk at tlre address beJow..

a pr`    

r'     c'./ r`,' c.r7 f
i l̀      83C   ,'

x

ParantKivaedian Sigaehm( Raq lndfor Yatrth. ldvisory Candidafes only)

City Clerk
City of Iarthrop

390 Towae Ceatre Drive

L throp, CA! 5330

629



630


	2021-10-11 City Council Regular Meeting Agenda
	2021-10-11 Item 4.2 Approve Minutes for the Special Council Meeting of August 2, 2021 and Regular Council Meeting of August 9, 2021
	2021-10-11 Item 4.3 Second Reading and Adoption of Ordinance 21-427
	2021-10-11 Item 4.4 Treasurer's Report for June 2021
	2021-10-11 Item 4.5 Annual Review and Adoption of the City's Investment Policy
	2021-10-11 Item 4.6 Approve Out of State Travel for the Economic Development Administrator
	2021-10-11 Item 4.7 Christmas Parade Temporary Street Closure
	2021-10-11 Item 4.8 Authorize Purchase of Heavy Equipment for the Parks and Recreation and Maintenance Svcs Dept
	2021-10-11 Item 4.9 Authorize Budget Amendment for the Purchase of Additional City Vehicles for Public Works, Utilities, Street and Maintenance Svcs
	2021-10-11 Item 4.10 Authorize Budget Amendment to Fund a Maintenance Worker I_II Position for the Parks, Recreation and Maintnenance Svcs Dept
	2021-10-11 Item 4.11 Award Construction Contract to G&G Builders, Inc., for the Manuel Valverde Park Shelter Improvements, CIP PK 22-08
	2021-10-11 Item 4.12 Approve Task Order No. 7 with Crane Transportation Group for the Preparation of 2022 Traffic Monitoring Program and Analysis
	2021-10-11 Item 4.13 Approve Lathrop Police Dispatch Agreement
	2021-10-11 Item 4.14 Approve Animal Shelter Services Agreement with the City of Manteca
	2021-10-11 Item 4.15 Approve Final Map and Subdivision Improvement Agreement for Tract 4062 Phase 1C of the Central Lathrop Specific Plan
	2021-10-11 Item 4.16 Approve Real Property Sale and Easement Deeds for the Overhead Electrical Transmission Lines on Christopher Way and D'Arcy Pkwy
	2021-10-11 Item 4.17 Accept Remaining Public Improvements for Tract 4017 Phase 1B1 in the Central Lathrop Specific Plan
	2021-10-11 Item 4.18 Approve Final Map and Subdivision Improvement Agreement in Tract 4053 Village JJ2 within River Islands
	2021-10-11 Item 5.1 Public Hearing to Consider the Scannell Properties Industrial Project
	2021-10-11 Item 5.2 Consider Creation of CIP PK 22-34 Shilling Avenue Park Project
	2021-10-11 Item 6.1 Mayor's Referral Appointment of One (1) Member to the Measure C Oversight Committee
	2021-10-11 Item 6.2 Mayor's Referral Appointment of One (1) Member to the Senior Advisory Commission



